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*. J U N E  8th, 1775.

A t  a C o u rt  o f  O yer and T e rm in e r , and G o a l-d e liv e ry , holden in  and for the 
T o w n  o f  C a lcu tta , and Fadtory o f  F o rt  W illia m , in  Bengal, and the L im its 

th ereof, and the Facto ries fubordinate thereunto, on the T h ird  D ay o f  

Ju n e ,  1 7 7 5 ,  ' m

r  Sir E l ija h  I m pey , Knight, Chief juftiue,
r 1 tt j R o bert  C h am bers, }

Before the H on, < c n  T ( i r r  t n.*^ S tephen  C ^ sar  L em a istre , >Elqrs. Jultices,
C A nd J ohn H yd e, 3

The K I N G ,  verf. Maha Rajah N U N D O C O M A R ,

T H  E  Prifoner being called to the bar, would be tried ? he anfwered, by God and 
and arraigned, and the indiftment read, his Peers. The Court defired to know whe- 

his Counfel tendered a plea to the jurifdidti- ther he had any particular reafon for ufing 
on o f the Court; but the C hief Juftice point- the word Peers ? H is Counfel anfwered, that 
ing out an objection thereto, which went the Prifoner being a man o f the firft dignity 
both to the matter o f fadt and the law con- in this kingdom, thought he Ihould be tried 
tained therein, and defiring the Counfel to by people o f equal rank with himfelf, ag'ree- 
confider i f  he could amend it, and take time able to the law o f England, which permits 
for fo doing, he, after having confidered every man to be tried by his Peers. The 
the obiedtion, thought proper to withdraw Court afked, who the Maha Rajah confider- 
the p lea ; whereupon the Prifoner pleaded, ed as his Peers? H is Counfel anfwered, he
N ot G u ilty : And being afked by whom he muft leavt that to the Court.
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the Turv A  Peer o f Ireland tried in England, M r. W illiam  Chambers, the principal in- 
would be tried by a common Jury. The Char- terpreter, not being yet come frfwp Madras, 
ter directs that in all criminal profecutions, and the two affiftant interpreters, on account 
the Prifoner Ihouldbe tried by  the Inhabitants o f  their imperfect knowledge o f Englilh, be- 
nf the town o f Calcutta,, being Britifh fub- m g deemed inefficient for a trial fo*long as 
. this was expedited to be, M r. Alexander K y n :
]C It 'being late, the Court adjourned till the Elliot, Superintendant o f the Khalfa Records, 
next morning at feven o’clock., - a gentleman eminently (killed in the Perfian

and Hindoftan languages, and M r. W illiam  
J U N E  9th, 1775 . Jackfon, lately admitted an Attorney o f the

T H  E  Counfel for the Prifoner informed Court, who fpeaks the Hindoftan tongue flu- 
the Court* that the Maha Rajah had ently, .were requefted, by the Court, to in- 

been ill in the night,, and had now a flux terpret.
and fever, which rendered him incapable o f  T he Counfel for the Prifoner defired that 
taking his trial. the evidence might be interpreted to him in

The Court defired Dr. Anderfon and D r. the Hindoftan language, as it was moft ge- 
Williams to examine the Prifoner, which nerally underftood by the audience,' and re- 
they did, and reported that he complained o f quefted that the interpreter o f the Court might 
havino- been indifpofedin the night, but that be employed for that purpofe, and objected 
he had neither flux nor fever* and was very to the interpretation o f M r. E lliot, as being 
capable of taking his trial3 whereupon he was connedted with perfons who the Prifoner con- 
called to the bar. fidered as his enemies.

The Prifoner being informed o f his right
to challenge when the Ju ry  came to be fworn, Chief Jufiice. T h e principal interpreter o f
challenged the following Gentlemen, from  a the Court is abfent; the gentlemen o f die Ju -  
paper held in his hand: ry have heard the interpretation o f the affift-

ant interpreters on other occafions. Do you, 
John Lewis, Ramfay Hannay, Gentlemen, think we fhall be able* to go thro*
William Atkinfon* Thomas Adams, this-caufe, with the afliftance o f thofe inter-
John Williams, Bernard Mejfmk, preters only ?
William Dickfon, William Hamilton Bird,. Jury . W e are fure we fhall not be able..
:Richard Johnfon, Charles Moore, Chief Jufiice. It is-a cruel infinuation again#
JoJhua Nixon, Alexander Macneil, the charadter o f M r. E lliot. H is youth, ju ft
Robert Donald, James Lally, rifing into life, his family,, his known abili-
Jaynes Miller, William Briggs, - ties and honour, fhould have protedted him
Tilly Kettle, Philip Coales. from it..

[M r. E llio t defired he might decline inter- 
The Counfel for the Crown challenged, . preting.]

Samuel Stalham, • Chief Jufiice* W e mu ft infift upon it, that
, you intrepret: you ftiould be above giving 

The following Ju ry  was fworn: way to the imputation : your Ikill in the lan-
Edward Scott, John Fergufon  ̂ guages, and your candour, will fhow  how lit-
Robert Macfarlin, Arthur Adie, tie ground there is for it.
Thomas Smith, John Collis, - M r. Farrer. I hope M r. E llio t does not
Edward Ellerington, Samuel Touehet, think the objection came from me 3 it was
Jofeph Bernard Smith, Edward Satterthwaite, - liiggefted to me.
John Robinfon, Charles Wtfton, Chief Jufiice. W ho fuggefted it ?

M r.

Chief YuJiice. The trial can only be by fuch f The Jury electedMr. John Robinfon their
perfoni as are by the Charter required taform forenian. . .



th e^ p erfo n ^ ' 1 * *  n0t authorifed Co name terwards, to wit, on the-fifteenth day of Ta. 
r r  !  , .  . , nuary0 m the year laft abovefaid, at Calcutta
Chief Juftice It was improper to be made, aforefaid, a certain faife, forged and a r  m 

efpeCially as the perfon who iuggefted, does terfeited bond in the Perfian language nur 
n°t  anthonfe W g  avow it porting to have been fealed by the S d  Bol-

Ju ry  W e all defee that M r. Elliot, whofe lakey Dofs, with the feal or chop of him dv- 
charaAer and abilities we all know, would be faid Bollakey Dofs, felonioufly did utteT and
f°  inte-JFet. publilh as a time bond ; which faid bond is in

M r. Farrer. I dehre on the part o f the P n - the words, characters, and figures following, 
foner, that M r. E lliot would interpret. [Perfian bond again recited] with an intent

M r. E lliot and M r. Jackfon fworn to in- S° defraud the laid Bollakey Dofs o f the faid 
terpret. -  *um ° f  forty-eight thoufand and twenty -one

T he Ju ry  being impanelled, were charged l̂cca ruPees principal, and of four annas on 
with the Prifoner, and the Clerk of the Crown ea. lllPê  ^ f the principal fum, as pre- 
read the indictment as follows : mium or profit on the faid principal fum 3

j  t- • r-ptttt~* t t îe â*d Maha Rajah Nundocomar, Bahader.
Tow n o f  Caby f  1 0  Wlt- J H E  Jurors at the time of publilhing of the faid faife,

to T o f'o  t w T l > l nr ° ur Lord  the K in&  \'P- forged, and counterfeited bond by him a.; 
liarn, in Bengal! S  M  That afordaid> then and there, well knowing the faid
x. , , , • V ™  Rajr \  lNUnd° C? mar’ bond t0 have been faife, forged, and coun-

ahader, late inhabitant o f the town o f Cal- terfeited, againft the form o f the ftatute in
cutta, and a pei fon fubjeck to thejurifdnflion o f fuch cafe made and provided, and againft the 
the Supreme Court o f Judicature at Fort W il- peace o f our faid Lord the King, his crown 
dam , in Bengal, after the twenty-ninth day of and dignity.
June, in the year o f our Lord  one thoufand And the Jurors for our Lord the King, 
feven hundred and twenty-nine, to wit, on the upon their oath do further prefent, that Maha 
fifteenth day o f January, one thoufand feven Rajah Nundocomar, Bahader, late inhabitant 
Jumdred and feventy, in the tenth year o f the in the town o f Calcutta, and a perfon fubjeft 
reign o f our fovereign Lord George the Third, to the jurifdiftion of the Supreme Court of 
K in g o f Great-Bntain, at the town o f Calcutta- Judicature, at Fort William in Bengal, on 
afoiefaid, with foice and arms, felonioufly did the fifteenth day o f January, in the year laft 
falfely, make, forge, and counterfeit, and abovefaid, with force and arms, at the town 
did caufe and procure to be falfely made, o f Calcutta aforefaid, felonioufly did falfelv 
forged, and counterfeited, a certain bond in make, forge, and counterfeit, and did caufe 
the Perfian language, purporting to be fealed to be falfely made, forged, and counterfeited, 
by one Bollakey Dofs with the feal or chap a certain bond, written in the Perfian lan- 
o f him the faid Bollakey Dofs, the tenor o f guage, and purporting to be fealed by one 
which bond is as follows [here the bond is Bollakey Dofs (then deceafed) in his life 
wrote in Perfian] with an intent to defraud time, with the feal or chop of him the faid 
the faid Bollakey Dofs o f the fum o f ..forty- Bollakey D ofs; the tenor of which is as fol- 
eight thoufand and twenty-one ficca rupees lows [Perfian bond again recited] with an in- 
principal, and o f  four annas , on each rupee tent to defraud Gungabiflen and Pudmohun 
o f the faid principal fum, as premium or pro- Dofs, executors o f the laft will and teftament 
fit on the faid principal fum, againft the form o f the faid Bollakey Dofs, of the fum c f  forty- 
o f the ftatute in that cafe'made and provided, eight thoufand and twenty-one ficca rupees 
and againft the peace o f our faid Lord the as principal, and o f four annas on each rupee, 
K ing, his crown and dignity. as a profit or premium on the faid principal

And the Jurors aforefaid, upon their oath fum, againft the form of the ftatute in that 
aforefaid, do further prefent, that the afore- cafe made and provided, and againft the peace 
faid M aha Rajah Nundocomar, Bahader, af- B 2 ° f
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of our Sovereign Lord die King, his crown naa on each rupee o f profit or premium on 
andX n i t y  ' the laid principal fum, againft the form o f the

A n d th eJu rors aforefaid; upon their oath ftatute in that cafe made and provided, and 
aforefaid, do further prefent, that the afore- .againft the peace o f our faid Lord the King, 
fa il Maha Rajah Nundocomar, Bahader, af- his crown and dignity.
terwards, to wit, on the faid fifteenth day o f And the Jurors, aforefaid, upon their oath 
January,in the year laft abovefiiid, at Calcutta aforefaid, do furdier prefent, that the faid 
aforefaid a certain falfe, forged, and counter- Maha Rajah Nundocomar, Bahader, after- 
feited bond,, purporting to be fealed' by the wards, to wit, on the faid fifteenth day o f 
faid Bollakey Dofs ('then deceafed) in his life January, in the year laft abovefaid, at Cal- 
tjme with the feal or chop of him the faid cutta aforefaid, a certain falfe, forged, and 
Bollakey Dofs, felonioufly did utter and pub- counterfeited^ writing obligatory, in the Per- 
lifh as a true bond; which faid bond is in the fian language, purporting to have been fealed 
words, characters, and figures following, to by the faid Bollakey Dofs, with the feal or chop 
wit, [Perfian bond again recited] with aa- in- o f him the faid Bollakey Dofs, felonioufly 
tent to defraud the faid Gungabiflen and did utter and publifh as a true writing oblr- 
Pudmohun Dofs o f  the faid fum o f forty- gajiory; which faid writing obligatory is in the 
eight thoufand and twenty-one ficca rupees words, characters, and figures following, [Per- 
o f principal, and of four annas on each rupee fian bond again recited] with an intent to de- 
o f profit or premium on die faid principal fraud the faid Bollakey Dofs o f the faid fum o f 
fum; the faid Maha Rajah Nundocomar, Ba- forty-eight thoufand and twenty-one ficca ru- 
hader, at the time of publifhing the faid falfe, pees o f principal, and o f four annas on each 
forged, and counterfeited bond, by him as rupee o f profit or premium on the faid prin- 
aforefaid, then and there, well knowing the c ip alfu m ; the faid M aha R aja Nundocomar,. 
faid bond to have been falfe, forged,, and Bahader, at the time o f publifhing the faid 
counterfeited, againft the form o f  the ftatute falfe, forged, and counterfeited writing obliga- 
in fuch cafe made and provided, and againft tory, by him as aforefaid, then and there, well 
the peace of our faid Lord the King, his knowing the faid writing obligatory to have 
crown and dignity. been falfe, forged'- and counterfeited, againft

And the Jurors for our Lord the King, upon the form o f the ftatute in that cafe made and 
their oath aforefaid, do further prefent, that provided, and againft the peace o f our faid 
on the fifteenth day o f January, in the year Lord*the K ing, his crown and dignity, 
laft abovefaid, Maha Rajah Nundocomar, And the Jurors for our Lord  the K ing, 
Bahader, late inhabitant o f the town o f Cal- upon the oath aforefaid, do further prefent, 
cutta, and a perfon fubjeft to the jurifdiction that on the fifteenth day o f January, in thfc . 
o f the Supreme Court o f Judicature, at Fort year laft abovefaid, M aha Rajah Nundocomar, 
William in Bengal, with force and arms, at Bahader, late - inhabitant o f the town o f Cal*- 
the town of Calcutta aforefaid,. felonioufly did cutta, and a perfon fubjedt to the jurifdidlion 
falfely make, forge, and counterfeit, and did o f the Supreme Court o f Judicature at Fort 
caufe and .procure to be falfely made, forged, W illiam  in Bengal, with force and arms, a>t 
and counterfeited, a certain writing obligatory the town' o f Calcutta, aforefaid,. felonioufly 
in the Perfian language, purporting to be did falfely make,, forge, and counterfeit,, and 
lealed by the faid Bollakey Dofs, with the did caufe and procure to be falfely made, 
leal or chop o f him the faid Bollakey Dofs, forged, and counterfeited, a certain writing 
t le tenor of which writing obligatory is as obligatory in the Perfian language, purport- 
o ows [Perfian bond again recited] with an ing to have been fealed by the faid Bollakey 

intent to efraud the faid Bollakey Dofs o f Dofs (then deceafed) in: his life time, with 
tfie iiim of forty-eight thoufand and twenty- the feal or chop o f him the faid Bollakey 
one lcca rupees of principal, and of four an- Dofsj the tenor o f which writing obligatory

} is*

T H E  T R I A L  O F



M A H A  R A J A H  N U N D O C O M A R ,  B A H A D E R .  ,5
is as follows [Perfian bond again recited] and counterfeited, a promiffory note for pav- 
with an intent to defraud Gungabiffen and ment of money, in the Perfian language, pur- 
Pudmohun Dofs, the executors o f the laid porting to be fealed by the faid Bollakey 
Bollakey Dofs, o f the fum of forty-eight thou- Dofs, with the feal or chop of him the faid 
fand and twenty one ficca rupees of principal Bollakey Dois; the tenor of which promiffory 
fum, againft the form o f the ftatute in that note is as follows, [Perfian bond again re­
cafe made and provided, and againft the peace cited] with an intent to defraud the faid BoL 
o f our faid Lord the King, his crown and lakey Dols of the fum of forty-eight thoufand' 
dignity. _  ̂ and twenty-one ficca rupees of principal, and;

And the Jurors aforefaid, upon their oath of four annas on each rupee of profit or pre- 
aforefaid do farther prefent, that the faid mium on the faid principal fum, againft the 

• M aha Rajah Nundocomar, Bahader, after- form of the ftatute in that cafe made and 
wards, to wit, on the fifteenth day of January, provided, and againft the peace of our faid 
in the year laft abovefaid, at Calcutta aforefaid, Lord the King, his crown and dignity, 
a certain falfe, forged, and counterfeited writ- And the Jurors aforefaid, upon their oath' 
ing obligatory, in the Perfian language, pur- aforefaid, do further prefent, that the faid 
porting to have been fealed by the faid Bol- Maha Rajah Nundocomar, Bahader, after- 
lakey Dofs (then deceafed) in his life time, wards, to wit, on the fifteenth day of January,, 
with the feal or chop o f him the faid Bollakey in the year laft abovefaid, at Calcutta afore- 
Dofs,felonioufiy did utter and publifh as a true faid, a certain falfe, forged, and counterfeited 
writing obligatory! which faid writing obliga- promiffory note, for the payment of money, in 
tory is in die words, characters, and figures fol- the Perfian language, purporting to have been, 
lowing, [Perfian bond again recited] with an fealed by the faid Bollakey Dofs,. with the 
intent to defraud the faid Gungabiffen and feal or chop of him, the faid Bollakey Dofs;. 
Pudmohun Dofs, the executors o f the faid BoL felonioufiy did utter and publifh as a true 
lakey Dofs, o f the faid  fum o f forty-eight thou- promiffory note ; which promiffory note is in 
fand and twenty-one ficca rupees o f principal, the words, characters, and figures following,, 
and o f four annas on each rupee of profit or [Perfian bond again recited] with an intent 
premium on the faid principal fum ; the faid to defraud the faid Bollakey Dofs of the faid 
M aha Rajah Nundocomar, Bahader, at the fum of forty-eight thoufand and twenty-one 
time o f publifhing the faid falfe, forged, and' ficca rupees of principal, and of four annas 
counterfeited writingobligatory, by him afore- on each rupee of profit or premium on the 
faid,‘then and there, well knowing the faid writ- faid * principal fum ; the faid Maha Rajah 
ing obligatory to have been falfe, forged, and Nundocomar, Bahader, at the time of pub- 

m * counterfeited, againft the form o f the ftatute lifliing the faid falfe, forged, and counter­
in fuch cafe made and provided, and againft feited promiffory note,, by him as aforefaid,. 
the peace o f our faid Lord the King, his then and there, well knowing the faid pro­
crown and dio-nity.. miffory note to have been falfe, forged, and

And the Jurors for our Lord the King, upon counterfeited, againft the form .'of the ftatute 
their oath aforefaid, do further prefent, that in fuch cafe made and provided, and againft 
on the fifteenth day o f January, in the year the peace of our faid . Lord the King, his 
laft abovefaid, M aha Rajah Nundocomar, Ba- crown and dignity.
hader, late inhabitant o f  the town o f Calcutta, And the Jurors for our Lord the King, up- 
and a perfon fubjeCV to the jurisdiction o f the on their oath aforefaid, do further prefent, that 
Supreme Court o f Judicature,,at Fort W il- on the fifteenth day of January, in the year 
liam, in Bengal, with force and arms, at the laft abovefaid, Maha Rajah Nundocomar, Ba- 
town o f Calcutta aforefaid, felonioufiy did hader, late inhabitant of the town ofCalcutta* 
falfely make, forge, and counterfeit, and did and a perfon fubjeCt to the junfdiChori of the 
caufe and procure to be. falfely made, forged, Supreme Court of Judicature at Fort William



in Bengal, with Force and arms, at the town And the Jurors for our Lord the King,
-of Calcutta aforefaid, felonioufly did falfely upon the oath aforefaid, do further prefent, 
make, forge, and counterfeit, and did caufe that on the fifteenth day o f January, in the 
.and procure to be falfely made, forged, and year laft abovefaid, Mahar Rajah Nundoco- 
counterfeited, a promiffory note for payment mar,.Bahader, late inhabitant o f the town of 
*of money, in the Perfian language, purporting Calcutta, and a perfon fubjeft to thejurifdic- 
xo be fealed by the faid Bollakey Dofs, (then tion o f the Supreme Court o f Judicature at 
.deceafed) in his life time, with the feal or Fort William in Bengal, with force and arms, 
chop of him the faid Bollakey Dofs; the te- at the town of Calcutta aforefaid, did falfely 
nor of which promiffory note is as follows make, forge, and counterfeit, and did caule 
[Perfian bond again recited] with an intent and procure to be falfely made, forged, and 
to defraud Gungabiffen and Padmohun Dofs, counterfeited, a certain writing obligatory in 
the executors of the faid Bollakey Dofs, o f the Perfian language; the. tenor o f which 
the fum of forty-eight thoufand and twenty- writing obligatory is as follows^ [Perfian bond 

.one ficca rupees of principal, and of four an- again recited] with an intent to defraud the 
nas on each rupee of profit or premium on faid Bollakey Dofs o f the fum o f forty-eight 
the faid principal fum, againft the form of the thoufand and twenty-one ficca rupees o f 
ftatute in that cafe made and provided, and principal, and four annas on each rupee o f 
againft the peace of our faid Lord the King, profit or premium on the faid principal fum, 
his crown and dignity. againft -the form o f the ftatute in that cafe

And the Jurors aforefaid, upon their oath, made and provided, and againft the peace iff 
aforefaid, do further prefent, that the faid our faid Lord the King, his crown and dig- 
Maha Rajah Nundocomar, Bahader, after- - nity.
wards, to wit, on the fifteenth day of January, And the Jurors for our Lord the King, up- 
in the year laft abovefaid, at Calcutta aforefaid,, on their oath aforefaid, do further prefent,

. a certain falfe, forged, and counterfeited pro- that the faid Maha Raj all Nundocomar, Ba- 
miifory note for payment o f money, in the Per- hader, afterwards, to wit, on the faid fifteenth 
fian language, purporting to have been fealed day o f January, and year laft abovefaid, at 
by the faid Bollakey Dofs (then deceafed) in his Calcutta aforefaid; a certain falie, forged, and 
life time, with the feal or chop of him, the faid counterfeited writing obligatory, in the Per- 
Bollakey Dofs, felonioufly did utter and pub- fian language, felonioufly did utter and pub- 
lifh as a true promiflbry note; which promif- lifli as a true writing obligatory; which faid 
•fory -note is in the words, characters,' and writing obligatory is in the words,'characters, 
figures following, [Perfian bond recited] with- and figures following [Perfian bond again re- „ > 
an intent ,to defraud the faid Gungabiffen cited] with an intent to defraud the faid 
and Pudmohun Dofs, the executors o f the Bollakey Dofs o f the faid fum of forty-eight 
faid Bollakey Dofs, o f the faid fum o f forty- thoufand and twenty-one ficca rupees of prin- 
*eight thoufand and twenty-one ficca rupees cipal, and o f four annas on each rupee as pro-%
0.1. principal, and of four annas on each rupee fit or premium on. the faid principal fum; the 
of profit or premium on the faid principal faid Maha Rajah Nundocomar, Bahader, at 
fum; the faid Maha Rajah Nundocomar, Ba- the time o f publifhing the faid falfe, forged, 
hader, at the time of publifhing the faid falfe, and counterfeited writing obligatory, by him 
forged, and counterfeited promiflbry note by as aforefaid, then and there, well knowing the 
him as aforefaid, then and there, well knov/ing faid writing obligatory to have been falfe, 
the faid promiflbry note to have been falfe, forged, and counterfeited, againft the form o f 
forged, and counterfeited, againft the form of the ftatute in fuch cafe made and provided, 
the ftatute in that cafe made and provided, and againft the peace o f our faid Lord the 
and againft the peace o f our faid Lord the King, his crown and dignity.
King, his crown and dignity.

A n£
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And the Jurors for our Lord the King, And the Jurors for our Lord the King, 
Upon their oath aforefaid, do further prefent, upon their oath aforefaid, do further pre- 
th aton th e fifteenth day o f January, in the fent, that Malta Rajah Nundocomar, Baha- 
year laft abovefaid, M aha Rajah Nundoco- der, late of the town of Calcutta, being a' 
mar, Bahader, late inhabitant of the town of perfon fubjeft to the Supreme Court o f 
Calcutta, and a perfon fubjett to the Jurif- Judicature at Fort W illiam in Bengal, on 
diftion o f the Supreme Court o f Judicature the fifteenth day of January, in the year 
at Fort W illiam  in Bengal, with force and abovefaid, with force and arms, at Calcutta 
arms, at the town of Calcutta aforefaid, did aforefaid, felonioufly did falfely make, forge 
falfely make, forge, and counterfeit, and and counterfeit, and did caufe and procure • 
did caufe and procure to be falfely made, to be falfely made, forged, and counterfeited,, 
forged, and counterfeited, a certain writing a certain writing obligatory in the Perfian- 
obligatory in the Perfian language ; the language ; the tenor of which certain writing 
tenor of which writing obligatory is as obligatory is as follows, [Perfian bond again. 
follows, [Perfian bond again recited] with recited] with an intent to defraud Gunga- 
an intent to defraud Gungabifien and Pud- biften and Hengoo Laul, the two nephews, 
mohun Dofs, the executors o f thefaid Bolla- and truftees named in the laft will and tefta- 
key Dofs, o f the fum o f forty-eight thoufand ment of Bollakey Dofs, deceafed, of the fum 
and twenty-one ficca rupees of principal, o f forty-eight thoufand and twenty-one 
and o f four annas on each rupee of profit or ficca rupees of principal,. and of four annas 
premium on the faid principal fum, againli on each rupee of profit or premium on the 
the peace *-of our faid Lord the King, his faid principal fum, againft the form of the 
crown and dignity., ftatute in that cafe made and provided, and

And the Jurors, for our Lord the King, againft the faid peace o f our faid Lord the.
upon their oath aforefaid, do further pre- King, his. crown and dignity..
fent, that the faid Maha Rajah Nundocomar, And the Jurors for our Lord the-King,. 
Bahader, afterwards, to wit on the faid fifteenth upon their oath aforefaid, do further prefent, 
day o f January, and year laft abovefaid, at that Maha Rajah Nundocomar, Bahader, late 
Calcutta aforefaid, a certain falfe, forged, of the town ot Calcutta, being a perfon fub- 
and counterfeited writing obligatory, in the je6t to the Supreme Court of Judicature, at 
Perfian language, felonioufly did utter and Fort W illiam, in Bengal, on the fifteenth day - 
publifh as a true writing obligatory; which of January, in the year abovelaid, at Calcutta 
faid writing obligatory is in the words, aforefaid, .a certain falfe, forged, and counter- 
•charafters, and figures: following, [Perfian feited writing obligatory, in the Perfian lan-
bond again recited] with an intent to defraud guage, felonioufly did utter and publifh as a
Gungabiffen, and Pudmohun Dofs, the faid true writing obligatory; the tenor.of which 
executors o f the faid Bollakey Dofs, o f the writing obligatory is as follows, [Perfian bond 
faid fum o f forty-eight thoufand and : twenty again recited] with an intent to defraud Gun- 
one ficca rupees o f principal, and o f four gabiffen and Hertgoo Laul, the two nephews 
annas on each rupee, as profit or premium and truftees named in t e a wi an 
on the faid principal fum; the faid Maha tament of Bollakey Dofs, deceased, of the 
Rajah Nundocomar, Bahader, at the time of fum of forty-eight thoufand and twenty-one 
publifhing the faid falfe,. forged, and coun- ficca rupees, o f principal, and of four ann. s . 
S i t e d  writing obligatory, by him as afore- on each rupee of profit or premium on he 
faid then and drerefw ell knowing the faid faid principal fum; thefaid MahaRajah F t n 
obligatory writing to have been falfe,. forged, docomar, Bahader, at the time of publ Ih g 
^ d  coumerfeited againft the form of the the faid falfe, forged, and counterfeited wn- 
ftatute in fuch cafe made and provided, and ting obligatory, by him as â efjiI ) t jjJJ.* 
a g S if t  the peace of-our faid Lord  the King,; there, welkknowing. the faid writing o b h ^
his crown and. dignity.^
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tory to have been falfe, forged, and coun- aforefaid, then and there, well knowing the 
terfeited, againft the form of the ftatute in faid obligatory writing to have been falfe, 
that cafe made and provided, and againft the forged, and counterfeited, againft the form 
peace of our faid Lord the King, his crown of the ftatute in fuch cafe made and provided, 
and dignity. and againft the peace of our faid Lord the

And the Jurors for our Lord the King, King, his crown and dignity.
■ upon their oath aforefaid, do further prefent, (Signed)
that on the fifteenth day of January, in the .  . J A. P r ic h a r d ,
•year laft abovefaid, Maha Rajah Nundocoifiaf, * UD Clerk of the Crown
Bahader, late inhabitant of the town of Cal- „  d
•cutta, and a perfon fubjedt to the jurifdidtion B eckwith,.
of the Supreme Court of Judicature at Fort Clerk oftKe i nd ia ment.
William, in Bengal, with force and arms, at
the town of Calcutta aforefaid, felonioufly did TRANSLA T E  of the PERSIAN BOND,
falfely make, forge and counterfeit, and did recited in the Indictment. . It!svvknefred

. caufe and procure to be falfely made, forged i tuwnneHed,
and counterfeited, a certain writing obliga- I who am Bolaukee Dofs. " ^ ehab -
tory, in the Perfian language; the tenor of A S a pearl necklace, a twifted kulghah, a ---- ——
which writing obligatory is as follows, [Per- twifted ferpache, and four rings, two of which itiswitneffed,
fian bond again recited] with an intent to de- were of rubies and two of diamonds, were Scilaubut th*

. fraud Gungabiflen, the furviving executor of depofited by Rogonaut Roy Geoo, on account ̂ aJceel of Seat 
Bollakey Dofs, deceafed, of the fum of forty of Maha Rajah Nundocomar, Bahader, in the ° a eeJDofs# 
eight thoufand and' twenty-one ficca rupees, month of Aflar, in the Bengal year 1 165, itiswitnefled, 

: o f principal, and of four annas on each rupee, with me, in my houfe at Moorfhedabad, that Abdehoo" 
of profit or premium on the faid principal fum, the fame might be fold ; at the time of the de- Commaul. 

t .-againft'the form of the ftatute-in fuch cafe feat of the army of the Nabob Meer Mahomed Mahomecl- 
made and provided, and againft the peace of Coffim Cawn, the money and effects of the 
our faid Lord the King, his crown and dig- houfe, together with the aforefaid jewels, were 
mity. plundered and carried away. In the year

And the Jurors for our Lord the King, 1 172,  Bengal ftyle, when I arrived in Cal-
Tipon their oath aforefaid, do further prefent, cutta, the aforefaid Maha Rajah demanded AIab<3
that the faid Maha Rajah Nundocomar., Bah a- the beforetnentioned depofit of jewels I could Bolaukee 1

<der, afterwards, to wit, on the fifteenth day not produce the depofit wh?n demanded, and,— ----1
• o f  January, in the year laft abovefaid, at on account of the bad ftate of my affairs, was 

Calcutta aforefaid, a certain.falle, forged, and. unable to pay the value thereof* I  therefore * » 
counterfeited writing obligatory, in the Per-* promife £nd giye it in-writing, that when I 
fian language, felonioufly did utter and publifh {hall receive back the fum of two lacks of 
as a truewriting obligatory; which faid writing rupees, and a little above, which is in the 
obligatory is in the words, characters, and Company’s ca£h at Dacca, according to the 
figures following, [Perfian bond again re- method of reckoning of the Company, 1 have 
cited] with an intent to-defraud Gungabiflen, agreed and fettled, "that the fum1 of forty-eight 
the furviving executor of Bollakey Dofs, de- thoufand and twenty one ficca rupees is the 
ceafed, of the laid fum of forty-eight thoufand principal of the amount of the faid depofit o f 
and twenty-one iicca rupees of principal, jewels, which is juftly due by me, and over 
and of four annas on each rupee, as profit or and above th -t, a premium o f four annas 
premium on the faid principal fum; the faid upon every rupee. Upon the* payment of the 
Maha Rajah Nundocomar, Bahader, at the aforefaid fum from the Company’s cafh, I will 
itime of pubjilhing the faid falfe, forge I, and pay that fum, without excufe and evafion, to 
counterfeited writing obligatory, by him as the aforefaid Maha Rajah. ■ I  have, for the

above
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o f  a bond under my fignature, that when it wards I drew one in Englifh, to Mohun Per- 
is.neceflary it may be carried into execution, faud fingly.

Written on the feventh day of the month rp, ^  c .
ofBhadoon, in the Bengal year 1 1 7 2. , he Counfel tor the Prifoner defiring that

the papers might be produced, Mohun Per- 
The-Counfel for the Prifoner defired that the âuc^ together with the Clerk of Mr. Janett,.' 

witnefies might be kept feparate. Attorney for the Prifoner, was fent to fetch .
them : upon which the Counfel For the Crown*

. Court; T h e great number of witneffes in called 
this caufe, the difference of their calls, and
the length, o f time the trial is likely to take Commaul O D in C awn, fvvorn upon ar 
up, renders it almoft impoffible to confine vuir dire.
them. I f  any method can be propofed, by gueft. from Prifoner’s Counfel. Do you know- 
which thefe lnconvemencies will be removed, the pUni(hment of perjury by the Englifh law ? 
we fhall be very ready to grant the requeft. CourL Y ou bad better tell it him.

After a fhort debate it was agreed, that Counj % w hen the life of a man is at flake, .
peons fliould attend the witneffes to keep ]f y0U tep falfely, you will be deemed infa- 
them feparate,. and prevent any perfon having m0us, put in the pillory, and burnt in the 
communication with them.-, and that each haivcp.
•witnefs, immediately after having given his [Counfel for the Crown defired that the 
evidence, fhould be kept in the gallery; and queftions might be interpreted to the witnef* 
that a conftable fliould attend there, to pre- the perfian language, as the witnefs under­
vent any natives from having accefs to them. jq00cj tj,at language beft.j >

Court... What .language do you underfland
M ohun P ersaud called and fworn on a

voir dire. Perfian.— —[Being again interrogated,
2>ueft. from Mr. Farrer, Adv. for the Prif. he faid he underftood both equally well, and

Has Gungabiffen made you any promife, in could anfwer in either ]
cafe the Prifoner is convifted ? Court. Which can you moft eafily explain

A. I  am to have five ■per cent, on any yourfelfin? ; TT. , a .
• i A  T will anfwer in either* rlindoitan ismoney received. # . W1U *U1VVCI

Court. Ls it a fpecial promife on this occa- my native language. .
gc n p/’ Court. Which language will- you beexa-

A. It is a general commiflion thatT am to mined in 1 . .
. have upon all the affairs o f Gungabiffcn A  I  th.nk I f e l l  be beft underftood m

9  from Mr. F . Is it a promife in writing, Perfian. . , „
or by word of mouth ? C  Per M  * Hpave,  3  o t £

A. I t  is a written letter o f attorney: ori- money from Mohun Perfaud, or any other
ginally it was a letter of attorney to me, Mr. perfon togive e v in c e  on this occaion i
Hamilton, and M r.. Lodge: the-two laft A N o , defend me, good G od! I never
withdrew, upon the commitment of the P n- do lucL clevtlilh. things. favour or protec- -
foner, I have likewife in my poffeffion a • ^  Do you. expert
N a ^ e  lerrer ° f . ar.orney, drawn -by M r. .bon,

J ames D r i v i r . . occafion ?

6). T o  whom is that Nagree letter o f at- Sworn in Chief.
torneym ade? $  * Counfel for Crown. Whofe Teal isto

A. It was a. power of attorney made , to ^  d? [(( ewn the bond.} .
Mohun Perfaud, and one John Love. After.- tna£ Donu L A
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fRt
A„rw fils ' mv feal; but the words figni- A. I do not know what the Coffid’s name 

fvirw ‘ ‘ it is witneffed,”  are not o f my fig- is-; there are twelve hundred at that place—  
j  o It is fourteen or fifteen years ago.

;naS reWhofe name is expreffed in that feal ? &  Do you know if  it was ever received by
A. ObdahuMahomed Commaul. the Prifoner? .
9  Is that your name? 1 do •, for Maha Rajah Nundocomar
s i' That was my original name. wrote me a letter in confequence of it. [The
6)' w hen or upon what occafion, did you letter produced.]

i v„nr nomp ? • * • Counfel for Prif. I  admit the Maha Rajah•change your name.r j J J
J .  At the time of the Nabob Nutchum al had the letter 

SDowi'a, I o-ot a  royal title, and I am fince Counfel for Crown. Read the letter,
ca lle d  Commaul O Deen Ally Cawn. Court. G o  through with your evidence,

a  yOU afftx your feal to that bond ? Counf.for Crown. The letter does not fay 
A  No I did not. the feal was received ; but it acknowledges
<a Can you give an account how it came the receipt o f the letter, and the feal was in­

fixed there:'? clofed in the letter.
A No I cannot fay. Court to Prifoner’s Counfel. Do you fee the
®  Was the feal ever out o f your pofieffion ? confequence ? Do you mean to admit it ?
A- I  fent the feal to Maha Rajah Nundo- CounfeL I have duly weighed what yoiir 

comar, at Mongheer. Lordfhip faid, and therefore w ill not admit it.
When did you fend it ? Witnefs read the letter, o f which the follow-

A. At the time the war between Jaffier A lly  ;ng is a tranflate, omitting unneceffary com-
•Cawn, and Cofiim Ally Cawn, fubfifted.- pliments.

(j) U doU what occafion did you fend it? r r  .  , a .r, T , ■ r i r  1 c „ [A fter the cult omary compliments!A. W hen I was releafed from confinement, L 1 J
Maha Rajah Nundocomar defired a fervant o f “  I  have received your letter, with which I
mine to defire me to fend my feal to him—my “  have made myfelf acquainted, and by which

■ fervant had been beforerhat with Maha Rajah “  I have been rendered joyful------ Thanks to
Nundocomar.--The reprefentation the man “  the great God, you have been releafed. The
made with regard to fending the feal was this.-- “  nazzer o f congratulation which you fent to

4  per Court. Is that man alive ? “  me, has arrived. May the great God reward
A. He was killed that fame evening. “  >'°u with viCcories } In confequence o f your
■ Court. What was his 'name-? g  letter I have got an arzee for you written
A. Eoll Mahomed, my Jemedar. H e like- “ out ;  have prefented it, together with the

wife defired the fervart to requeft me to fend “  nazzer you have fent for that purpofe, to
.a nazzer with the feal, that he might, with “  the Nabob ; and having received an anfwer,
the feal, feal a petition to the Nabob,-and pre- “  fend it inclofed in this letter. Y ou  will be
■ fent it with the nazzer. I then delivered to “  made acquainted with the contents, by in-
Shaik Coffim Ally, my Confumah, one gold “  fpe-dting it. W ith refpedt to the circum-
moheer and four rupees, as a nazzer to “  Ranee of calling you to the army, about
Maha Rajah Nundocomar, and one gold “  which you have written, as the Vidto-
moheer and four rupees as a nazzer to the Na- “  rious (the Nabob) intends fhortly to leave
bob; and likewife the feal, o f which this is the “  Mongheer to go to Patna, there is no ne-
•impreflion, [ pointing to the feal on the bond] cc ce-ffity for your making fo long and trouble-
in order that he might put them into a bag, “  fome a journey; you had better flay fome
that it might be fent by a meffenger to Maha “  time longer at your own houfe, W hen
Rajah Nundocomar.—The bag was accord- ‘ God is willing that the victorious army
angly fent by a meffenger. “  fhould return to Moorfnedabad, you w ill

Lour/. Do you know the name of that mef- “  attend there, and make me joyful by your
fenger? “  company.—— Every thing then will be

“  fettled
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“ ■ fettled Properly. Reft contented.— Remain [The bond ftated in the Indictment produced 1 
certain tha[ 1  am y °ur friend> and write an ^  What paffed between Mohun Perfaud 
account of you? health. The cloth you and you upon the time when he told vou of 

“  before fent is arrived.------ •What elfe lhall I thefeal ? ;
“  w rite?- A. Firft, he bid me pay 6po rupees, which-

Directed to Shark Mahomed Cummaul. I owed the eftateof Bollakey Dofs. I faid 
Dated the 2d of Rubbee,. ul Aklier, in the I am a poor man out of employment; how 

fourth year of the reign. “  fhall I get the money ?,J
C ross E xam ination . ^  When was this ?•

Quejl. Is it always cuftomary to affix the -4 * It was about two months before Mr., 
feal to airarzees prefented to the Nabob ? Palk confined the Maha Rajah. It was

AnJ: Yes.------An arzee is never prefented about two months before I got my poll, which*
to the Nabob without a feal. Is three years fince.

W as your feal ever returned? C- Go on with your (lory, of what paffed.
A. No. between you and Mohun Perfaud..

Do you know who has got it? A, Mohun Perfaud then alked me if I was--
A . Maha Rajah Nundocomar. • a witnefs on behalf of Maha Rajah to a bond

H ow  do you know ? - o f Bollakey Dofs, or if my feal was affixed.
A. I fent it, 'and never got it back. . t0 ^  I faid I was a witnefs for no man, and: 

Have you ever applied for it ? that I knew nothing with refpeft to this mat-
A. Yes, I  have feveral times. I have like- ter- He then alked if my feal, with the name-

wife complained concerning its not being ° f  Abdahu Mahomed Commaul, was fixed to- 
delivered. that bond. I then faid there may be a great.

Did you ever receive any anfwer to thofe many people of the name of Mahomed Corn- 
complaints? maul. I then went to Maha Rajah Nurido-
’ a \ I demanded the fea l.o f Maha Rajah comar, and repeated to him what Mohun 

Nundocomar, who faid it was not in his po(- Perfaud had faid to me. He faid, It is true;., 
feffion. I told Coja Petrufe o f i t : I intended having confidence in-you I have fixed your
to complain, but Munfhy Sudden o dein ad- feaV whlch was m my poffeffion, to the 
, nnt. bond of Bollakey Dofs. Having fworn, you

6). W hen would you have made your com- W1^ §*ve evidence of this before the Gentle---
rffamt? I men of Audaulet. I anfwered, How lhall I

A. A t the time when Mr. Palk confined be- able to take a.falfe oath ? He anfwered, 
Maha Rajah Nundocomar ; it was about three ' I N ®  hopes in you. I anfwered, Men will 

' • years ago, then Munfhey Sudden o dien ad- g ive “ P their hves for their matters, but nor- 
' vifed me not to complain, becaufe the Go- their religion>, have no hopes of me. I them 
vernor had given his fon Rajah Gourdafs the went and informed Coja Petrufe and Munfhey
khallat for the office o f Dewan of the city of Sudden o dien of whathad paffed.

r ft j  1 j « Sk Was Bollakey Dofs alive or dead at the*
Morlhedabad. . ^  , c , , o 3

^  Who did you mean to complain to? time the feal was fent,
A. T o  the Governor and to the Audaulet. *  He was. alive;  he 
9 . Did you want to coroplain to any other Mungheer. Some year

per fon . After you had told Coja Petrufe and

I  b id  you ever hear o f your feal being Munihey Sudden o dien, did you tell it to any
p |  v a s others r^.put to any bond P . ^
A, Yes, Mohun Perfaud firft told me that iN0*

my feal was to a ^ond, and then the Maha C ross E xam ination .
Raiah himfelf told me he had put ipy leal to , ,
a bond y I  faw the bond once before himfelf ^  When did you change your name .- ^
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A. Ten or fifteen days before Mahomed can he make ufe o f it without the permiflion 
Reza Cawn was appointed Naib Subah. I o f the Nabob?
have got -aTeal, which was given me at the A. He gets the funnud, and perhaps a jag ­
time which has got the day and year upon hire from the King, but cannot make ufe of 
it. I can produce it. it ’ till a feal has been given by the Nabob,

1#  Where is the funnud ? and he is permitted to ufe it.
A. The funnud is dated fome years before How came you to apply to M a h a .

I took the title ; at the time .the King and Rajah Nundocotaar to draw up your arzee? 
Colonel Coote were at Patna a funnud w'as A. As I had no connexion with the N a- 
procured for me by Shitabroy, who fent it to bob, why fhould 1 draw up an arzee m yfelf? 
Maha Rajah Nundocomar, who detained it The Maha Rajah defired I would fend my 
fome time in his poffeffion. In the time of feal to put to an arzee, and I did fo. 
the Nabob Nutchum al Dowlah I was ap- Q  In executing any bonds or deeds, do 
pointed to the Foujdarry of Hidgelee, from you make ufe o f  your fignature or your feal ? 
which time my title commenced. A. When I execute a bond on my own

■<j>. Where is the funnud? account, I write the word Oolaubd, (the Slave
A. It is at Hugly, but the great feal is o f God) and fix my feal under it. When I 

with me. witnefs any paper, 1 write, “  It is witnefled,”
[Mr. Farrer defired it might be produced, and fix my feal under thofe words, 

which was agreed to ] [H e produced a paper fe-aled with the fame
What did the dignity confift of? feal, to prove he had the feal. The Ju ry  com-

A. I was by that means named Cawn, but pared it with the impreffion on the bond, and 
received no jaghire. *  think them the fame ; each o f the impreflions
' ^  Is it not cuftomary for natives when fhewed a fmall flaw which was in the original 

they receive a title to take it immediately ? feal. H e likewife produced the great feal, 
A. Whenever the Subah confirms it and which he had from theSoubah.] 

gives him a feal, it is then cuftomary to make &>. W as you e-ver upon terms o f friendfhip 
ufe of it. with the Maha Rajah ?

At what time did the Nabob confirm it ? A. H e was a friend of my father, and m y 
A. Maha Rajah Nundocomar was at that grand-father. W e Were often in friendfhip, 

time Naib Dewan. About ten or twenty days and often broke off.— The M aha Rajah pro- 
after he was difmified, and Mahomed Reza' tedled me from ten years o f age. W hen he.. 
Cawn was appointed in his place. was Dewan o f Mahomed Heha Beg Cawn,

Was Nutchum al D  nvlah Nabob at I was farmer o f Choungi, The firft difference,
the time Golonel Coote and the King were at that happened between me and Maha Rajah, 
* atna” 1 . was when I was appointed to Hidgelee. It

A. He was Nabob at the time the title was was not a difpute, but a diffeience o f two 
“  jarree.”  _ . days. '
"  Interp. This word literally interpreted means per Court. W hat was this difpute about?
“  to flow ; '  but what is meant by it is, ‘ con- A. It begun thus. Firft he laid he would be

uut. j - . my fecurity, and afterwards went off from his
When dftl you ’begin to ufe the feal promife, I got another man to be m y fe-

Wlt, 'V°.ur ^ es. '■ curity, and afterwards went frequently to
A. At the time o f the Nabob Nutchum al Maha Rajah’s houfe.

ow a , when twro feals were given me, 1 ^  T o  w'hat amount was he to be fe-
was appointed Foujdar o f Hidgellee, and had curity ?
two leals, one great and one fmall one, fent A. The revenue, for which he was to be
me6)r0, j 71| e Government.  ̂ my fecurity, was between three and four lacks

^  wneD a royal ititle is given to  a . native, o f rupees,
ijh W ere

T H E  T R I A L  O F



W ere you fo reconciled together as to 1 A. I had another Teal made for me. 
live upon friendly terms ? - Where is thatfeal ?

A  Yes. A  When I got my new title, I deftroyed
£>. W ho were prefent when the Maha that feal, I defaced it.

Rajah acknowledged having put his feal to the Counfel for Crown. Is not that cuftormry 
bond ? upon getting a new title ?

A. No one. A. It is at the option of the party. Some
§). Is it ufual for the Maha Rajah to have people keep their feal, fome are afraid to

no attendants ? do it.
A* Where he is private, or has bufinefs, he Court. Have you any papers with the im-

is certainly very often alone. preffion of that feal ?
£). Did he make his acknowledgment more A. How ihould I have any papers ? My

than once ? houfe was twice befet by the fervants of Ma-
N o. homed Reza Cavvn, and all my papers de-

SK W as it before or after you quarrelled ? flroyed.
A . It was before two or three months. M  Was the fecond feal of the fame fize and
6). per Court. You fay in your examination, characters as the firft ?

“  I am witnefs to no man then how came A. I do not remember,
you to produce papers, to Ihew how you fign How came it that  ̂ you kept the papers
your name as witnefs ?■ y °u produced, as you fa id you loft all your

A  I  did not mean to no perfon whatfoever, papers ?
but to no man upon this occafion. A. I loft moft of my papers.------A little

6). per Court to Interp W ould you, from the box was faved, and thefe three papers were in
idiom o f the language, underftand him to that box. ^  ■ _ ,
fav tf I am no witnefs to any man ?”  [Counfel for Prifoner defires that thefe three

Interp. H is own words are, “  to a man a papers may be depofited in Court they 
witnefs I am not.’ '— [The witnefs laid this was were.
the idiom of the language, and his common Mr. Farrer, Counfel for the Prifoner, ob- 
mode of expreffions, and mentioned fome in- ferved, that in England a Prifoner, from his 
fiances of it 1  knowledge of the language, had an oppor-

Court. Point out the words, “  It is wit- tunity of hearing the evidence and mabng his
neffed,”  which you fay are not your hand- own defence, which Maha Rajah Nundo-
writine [H e points to the words wrote over comar was deprived o f: he therefore t roug 1 
his feal in the bond.] ' it reasonable that his Counfel fliould be per-

•  * Court. Do you mean to fay, that the im- mitred to make a defence for him.] .
preffion of that feal appearing upon the face Court. All the evidence has been given in a
of this bond is the impreffion of your feal ? language the Pnfoner underftands Any de-

. j  I do j that is the place in which I fence he cbufcs to make will be interpreted to

iifuaily write thefe words. ^ w S u n f e l  alfo obferved,' that Com-
cr < Have you ever pa,A the 600 tepees The 0 ^  ^  had c0„.

to the eftate of Bullakey Dofs ?. °  . . h t he had made ufe of his
-  A. I have. About five or fix months after feffed know thaf he had

I was appointed to Hidgelee I paid that mpnej. ^  h;s ver . was it likely then
I have got the acquittal. P ^  ftould [n m l with this roan on fo

Counf for P rif. What did you do for a eal occafion, as the being his fecurity ?
in the intermediate time between the time trifling an occanon, &
vnnr fpnl was fent to Maha Rajah Nundoco- (- ° J A 1 ET , ‘ , r . i ,
T v a n d T h e  u l l  yohr new one? <?, In whac langnage do you chufe .0 be
W hat feal did you make ufe of? • examined ? ^

M A H A  R A J A H  N U N D O C O M A R ,  BA H A D E  R. ,3
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A  In M a n ,  Hindoftany, or Fortuguefe ; a’dm Gnvn twenty years ; what is hts general

bUt/ atArVyoneacquainted with the laft wit- ^  A. I never heard he had a bad name. 
y Dejn p • £>•. H as he a good name ?

5 I have known him upwards o f twenty A. I never knew any thing bad of him; the 
1 world is apt to give good or bad names with,- »

7“ J£* Had vou any particular converfation very little reafon: fome fpeak well, fome 
wirh Cummal o Dein, refpedting a feal ? fpeak ill of him ; I never knew any harm of

A  It was three or four years ago. him.
r  Tell the particulars of that converfation. &  What is his general character ?
A  I will tell what I  remember------ One A. Ten people fpeak well o f him, to four

dav I was fitting in my houfe, Cummal a’din who fpeak ill of him.
O w n  came to me and faid, “  My feal is in <9 Is there # not now, and has there not 
« the poffeffion of Maha Rajah Nundocomar: been for fome time, a declared enmity between 
“  I wanted to get it again, but could not.” —  you and Maha Rajah Nundocomar ?
I then alked, why his feal was in the poffeffion . A. H e may have an enmity to me, but I 
c f Maha Rajah Nundocomar ? H e told me, do not know that he has ;  and I have none 

When Jaffier Ally Cawn was Nabob, he to- him.
“  had defired my feal,. that he might put it M , r _
“  to a requeft, and get me fome employment. M oon sh eeS udder o D ein  called an w rn.

- iv j  fent hijia in confequence ; but he does Are you acquainted with Cummal a
“  not now return it to me* I  will go to Mr. Din Cawn ?
« Barwell, and complain*” ------This was the A. Yes, I  have known him for near twenty

•converfation that paffed between us that day •, years* - #
there was no other converfation. On another Had you at any time any converfation
day there was, refpefting the bufinefs o f about bis feal being affixed to any bond ? 
Hidgelee, where he faid that Maha Rajah A. I  had, in the month o f Aflar, Bengal
Nundocomar had agreed to {land his fecurity. year, 1 1 79*
I faid it was very well. Some days after, I £). D o you recoiled that converfation ? it 
alked how that bufinefs was fettled ?. H e an- you do, tell it as well as you can. 
fwered, “  Maha Rajah Nundocomar is not my A. H e was converfing with, me about the 
fecurity”  balked, how fo ? He faid,. “  he de- farm of H edgelee; the'circumftance o f the 
“ mands three things from me : Firft, That I  fecurity was mentioned. I faid,. Now you are.
“  fhould give a writing, that I was a wi'tnefs to a competitor for the farm of Hedgelee, you 
“  the bond of Bullucky Dofs, to which my feal will undoubtedly be obliged to give fecurity*; ■>» 
“  is affixed:— Second, That 1 fhould reprefent You are always going backwards and for- 

9 “  receipts of money [ Burramed, the Perfian wards to the houfe of Maha Rajah Nundoco- 
tc word] againfl M r. Lulhington: Third, mar : if  you can get him to be your fecurity 
u 7 hat I fhould reprefent another Burramed it will be better. H e faid, I fhall probably 
“  againft Buffunt Roy. I anfwered, I cannot not be able to get him to be m y fecurity, 

fell my religion.”  . becaufe he has affixed a feal o f mine to a bond
Was you acquainted with Bollakey of Bollakey Dofs ; and he fays to me, It is 

Dofs ? necefTary for you to give evidence : but I have*
A  Yes, he ufed to come to my houfe. refufed it, faying, I will not give up my reli- 

Was you acquainted with his circum- gion. I afked him in what manner the feal 
■ fiances ? - . had come into Maha Kajah Nupdocomar’s

A. N o ; I do not know if he was in good hands, and how he had fixed it? H e an- 
or bad circumftances. * fwered, 1 formerly fent him my feal to be fixed

from the Jury, You have known Cummal to an arzee to be prefented b y  Maha Rajah
\ Nundo-

/
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Nundocamar to the Nabob Taffier Allv Cawn a/iv tx„ . 5
and that feal is with him-; he now h i  affixed- duced Another toM oh l *p ‘ f ° d,ge ’ is P-™- '
that feal to a paper o f Bollakcy Dofs’s with- Love A n S b S  ?o S  f W  *?dr }ohn 
out my knowledge. I do not therefore now dated fixth of May
defire him to ftand: my fecurity. ' L  a ral ' ’ / 75, which appeared to

. |  Did any thing more pafs that day ? w i t b ^ „ E
A. I remember no more that day. He percent.] mmo1' 01 fave

came to me upon another day, and faid that U> u , ™  .i . ,  r
Gungabiflen would be his fecurity . - I  then money, in cafe th<f M ah arajah  ° f
-informed M r. Barweli, that Gungabiflen Should be convicted on this tn ip  uncoccmar 
would be his fecurity; but he anfwered that A. iNone.

-fecurity would not be approved of by the

^ n v n  r  F ° ur ° r five days after’ ,c ° mmal11 M qhun P eksaud examined in chief0 Dien Cawn came to me again, and faid that .Q h  ,
by intreaty he had perfuaded Maha Raiah p was 70u acfluainted with
Nundocomar to be his fecurity: of this alfo B°  au^ e.D ofs•
1  informed Mr. Barweli, who faid that if , ! • 1S now fourteen years fince I firft
-he would come and ftand his fecurity, it would u ® ‘ , , . , , ,
do. Maha Rajah Nundocomar afterwards ^  ™ w  long has he been dead ?
wrote a letter to Council refpefting his ftand- § , A , . . -
tag f«urity ; but whether be I d  or not, 1 f  I ™ " '  “  >’° “  “  know
cannot tell. ’ *  A i,M™ df sd-

%  Had you any further conveifation with §  P *  dld hc come t0 C a k u m !
Commaul o Dien ? f  S t  y? " b « ? '  . . .  , '  ,

i r. ’ , -l *• n ■, i i -i SJ. W hat bufinefs did he follow ?A. I loon artei went to Moorihedabad and /?* T 1 at- f  -n f
D acca : when I returned, Commaul oDien A  y J  iC \  10 j  c s
laid to me, Maha Rajah Nundocomar has y  t i  ,1 1 • , if t  jj i \ c n \  r /r 11  • A. -bie was thought a ncn man.produced two papers ; firft, that I fliould give Had he „ i o «fe „ S , „ „ afs,
■ evidence about the leal or the bond of Bol- y  tt l ? r i i. , r r i \ n t r ■ A* hie had a correlponaence there.Jackev U o ls; lecond, about handing lecurity ^  n - n  j  r r j ? i rr  tt i 1 - i r • j  /-r-> i i .  ?  r  i-  &'• B'ld he draw tor any confiderable firmsfor Hedgelee and faid, Take this and fign this ^  tha£ houfe,
pointing to the two papers. I would not j and ^  For many fums. H e drew one bill to
afterwards got Lane, Dutt, and others, to be ^  Clive for a lackof r #
m y fecunties, Was the bill paid?

°  >!£M ohun P ersaud returned with the papers.] A* Yes, the money was paid to Mr. Cha- 
_ 7 ^ r r -r tt t i n mier, then refident at Banarafs-.

Q h  Ccunf for P n f  Have you brought all ^  W as that money ever repaid by Lord 
the letters o f attorney uncancelled, relative to
the eftate o f Bolaukee Dofs ? zf. It was, five months afterwards, to Bo-

A  I have. . . .  laukee Dofs in his life time.
. ^  Have you any other inftrument m wn- ^  W as there any account open between 

ting, relative to the eftate of Bolaukee Dofs, |yjajia Rajah Nundocomar and Bolaukee 
befides thofe you have produced ? Dofs ?

A  I have his books. ^  There are debits and credits between
Have you any other deed, relative to the {hem k  Bolaukee Dofs’s books to a great 

•eftate of Bolaukee Dofs, executed to you by atnounti
Gungabiflen? Are the books now in being ?

J .  Nootjjer. yf. They are in my pofieflion,
[The joint power o f attorney to Mohun Per- ^



Q, What language are the books wrote in? [Golab Dofs Palate -  - - -  - - - - * Jooo  
i  In the Nagry language. Raganaut Deu Shroft, one bill - - - 506

Court. The books muft be' produced, as we Nurbaram on b i l l .......................... 850
cannot receive parole evidence of their con- Accounts.
tents#

My awn Fadtory at Moorfheda- T
Mr. Durham, Counfel for the Crown, ac- 5acjy rather more or 1'efs - - - j  0 00 

quainted the Court that the books were then p QOg Kiflou Dofs at Radaras *V- - 5000
at hand, in confequence of a notice from the * ------ ----------
Defendant to produce them, but added that, 3 6 5 8 8 8
as they we re* in the Nagry chara&er, he could _ ---------- -
not point out the entries to which he meant to
have examined Mohun Purfaud, and theie- B.0y jUI Perfaud’s, what w ill remain due to 
fore declined making any ufe of them. The on fettling his accounts. . 
books were then ordered to be kept in Court, Meer Cuttul A lly, whatever may appear, 
for the Defendant’s Counfel to avail themie vls Befides thefe, whatever fmall debts may 
of them if they fhould be able. appear in my papers.

A Nagree Mounfhy was called and fworn.
H e was ordered to tranflate a paper, which A ccounts, C r e d it s .
the Counfel for the Crown faid was a general ,;>,!>■  ' , ^  t? jx.c m 0nA The Enelifh Company at the Dacca Factory,power of attorney to Mohun reriaud and n  f  r  j  j
Pudmon Dofs, executed by Bellakey Dofs Nabob Jatfiraut Cawn at Dacca
before he went to Banaras, o f which the M eet'Am oo Sa, at H augly houfes, 
r 11 • i n One.houie at Calcutta. .following is a tranflate. One houfe at Moorihedabad.

The W R IT IN G  of B O L L A K E Y  DOSS. I , w0 h °ufes at Patna, mortgaged for 35oo
Lhaja W anyls principal in China concern 2200 

B E FO R E this, being in a bad ftate o f health, Balance o f accounts o f fait in partner- 7 
for which reafon deeming myfelf obliged'to nerfhip, Gobin dun Dofs - S l $ °  
go to Banaras, I have appointed my brother Dacca goods at Banaras, valued at - 10 ,000  
Mohun Perfaud and Padmohun Dofs my Befides this, as by my papers may appear, 
attornies to tranfad my bufinefs and to re- t o  be received from Dr FullerCon 
ceive and pay, and to anfwer and make any T q be received from M r_ Moore 
demands for me, and in paying and receiving
whatever durbar expences may be incurred, This is wrote by guefs ; and, befides this, 
after my feveral debts are collected*; and what- whatever may appear from m y papers is
ever remains, after the difburfements o f the true debts and credits. Befides this,

. durbar expences, to be paid to whom it may . . _ r . A n _  r i l  ,  r
be due ; and of what is due after that I have „  ^ he h° a* o f JMef '  A fcruff was fold to Mr- 
written in a paper with my own hand, which B olts; the bond o f theCouit  o f Cutcherru,
you will pay. as w e“  as t^e kerranamah, or written agree •

ment, which he gave in the name of Mohun
A ccount whatever concerns D e b t s . Perfaud. H e took the feal in the name o f

Mr. Sparks the V akeel: upon it Mr. Sparks 
Maha Rajah Nundcomar 10000 filed a complaint in the Audaulet: you w ill
Doolub Ram Tw arry on account"? 2 r appear and anfwer about it. Upon whatever 

of a bill in Muxadabad - - .) - other oirffanding balances you fhall recover,
Gou Mullick - - - ................ - 2707 8 you (hall receive five per cent, whatever con-
OnRoy Mohun Sing’s houfe at tingent expences you may find it necefiary to

Moorfhedabad, on account of > 35° °  difburfe in Calcutta, and papers you fiiall
. .........................- 3 receive.
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receive. I have appointed you my attorney A  I was prefent, and faw Bollakey Dofs 
for two years; whether I remain here or not, fign his name. '
I  have vefted you with a power in my affairs, r
and in payment of money. I  am not concerned '-Ross E xami nation .
in trade here. ^  W here was Bollakey Dofs, when you

faw him fign his name to it ?
Dated nine days after the middle of Poos, At Calcutta,

in the year 1825.  What houfe ?
M  H is own houfe.

Witneffed Goodharru Signed Kiffen Jewin Q. At what hour of the day?
Perfaud, Mookaus Dofs. A. I don’t know.
Bollakey Dofs. Signed BolaukeeDofs, Who elfe was prefent when it was

Witneffed Kiffen Jew - Dofs Jevo. executed ?
in Dofs. Signed Kiffen Jewan A. Mohun Perfaud, Pudmohun Dofs, and

Witneffed Gherub Dofs. Kiffen Juan Dofs.
Dofs, Puttick, Dia- [Queftion repeated by the Court.]
arane Dutt. A. Mohun Perfaud, Pudmohun Dofs, and

two or three other people. It is now two or 
T o  prove this letter o f attorney, Kiffen three years ago ; how can I remember ?

Juan Dofs was called in and fworn. [Mr. Elliot defired to' explain Mr. Jackfon’s
interpretation, and [aid that the witnefs did 

per Court. Is that paper your writing ? not fay that Kiflen Juan Dofs was prefent, but
A* It is . my writing and witneffing, but that Kiflen Juan Dofs’s fignature was to it ;

I did not fee it executed. and being again alked if Kiffen Juan Dofs was
<3). Is the name Kiflen Juan Dofs, at the bot- prefent, anfwered he was not.] 

tom of the paper, wiitten as a witnefs to the £>. W hat did you mean to fay about Kiflen
execution ? # Juan Dofs ?

A . It is written by way of witnefs. A. That his fignature was to it.
. O f what ? Qz Do you know his hand writing?

A . As witnefs to the fignature of Bollakey A. Yes.
Dofs. Qz Did you fee him fign it ?

6). H ow  came you to put your name as a A. Yes. 
witnefs to a paper being figned by Bollakey £>. Where was he ?
Dofs, if  you did not fee him fign it ? A. In Bollakey’s Dofs’s houfe.

A. It was carried by Pudmohun Dofs to £>. Was it at the fame time Bollakey Dofs
Chandernagore, figned there by Bollakey Dofs, figned it ? •
and brought to me ; and I, knowing his hand- A . It is fix years; I do not recoiled:. I
writing, witneffed it. know Kiffen Juan Dofs figned it.

Did you witnefs it as feeing it figned, or [Mr. Elliot obferves he figned it once when 
as knowing his fignature ? he wrote it, and once as a witnefs.]

A. Seeing Bollakey Dofs’s fignature to it, £>. by Counf for Prif. You have fvvore that 
I fet'my name as a witnefs. Kiffen Juan Dofs figned it, then you muft

know when he figned it.
K e r e e  D oss P ullock called in and fworn. A. Kiffen Juan Dofs wrote the paper, and

a  Do you know this paper? [Ihewn letter gave it into the hands of Bollakey Dofs.
£ Did you fee it?

0 y ° i d o -  it is a power of attorney from /!. Bollakey Dofs gave it me, and defired me 
Bollakey Dofs. • . to fign it, which I accordingly did in Perfian

6). Did you fee him fign it ? D  -

M A H A R A J A H  N U N D O C  OMAR,  B A H A D E R .



«  t h e  t r i a l  o f

a  When did BoUakey Dofi fign fcbefore ( &  Do you recolleft h o *  m a y  books yotx

OVT B o S e y  Dofs having figned it, gave ^

* 1  5 3 JUr e e K ® „ J u * D 0 f s  % n  i t > books d ;a yoû
t  Vhen how do you kfcow that he figned make out that paper ?
%  -1 nen no  ̂ W e had three books withitn the firft

“ 5  I L o w  fioehmg about Maligning it. five years, one caB«d 'he K u & ra  where
Am i  Know & o eveIy  thing is entered fu lly ; from thence it

K issjen Tuan D oss called again. is entered fairer into the RoeyN am ah, and
■ J  from the Roey Namah to the Cotta.

G) -her Court. When did you write this &  From  what particular books did you 
"v, Z, take this paper ?

PT  Having infpeded the papers o f Bolla- A. A ll the books were in m y pbffeffion ;
key Dors which were at Calcutta, I from but what is contained in this paper, I
them drew up this paper.-. extracted from one book, the Cotta It

®  But when? r  is the cuftom to draw up papers from .the
A  I t  may be within two or three Cotta; but the Roey Namah and the Kuflara

months o f fix years, I cannot fpeak with being more full, Merchants frequently refer 
precifion. * to them in the drawing up o f papers..
F a . By whofe directions and from what Q  Are thefe all the books that contain 
materials did you write it ? Bollackey Dofs’s tranfaChons.

A. By the 'directions of Pudmohun Dofs, A. There are two books more befides. 
heis my fuperior; having both o f us inlpeCted thefe three. , . ,
Bollackey Dofs’s papers, we drew up that [The Court directed all the books to be 
paper brought.]

& 'Did you take what you wrote from the ^  Y o u  faid before there were fix books j. 
books, or from what Pudmohun Dols told you ? how comes it that there are only five now 

A. What I wfote I took from the books, mentioned ? _
I f  the books are given you, can you A . One, aKuffara, islo ft; but the fubftance 

point out the parts from whence you drew is extracted into the Cotta, 
thefe papers ? ^  H ow  came you to fign this paper

A  I can. twice ? |  . ji . . i  . r  §
§K Do you recolleCt how many books A . One figning, which is. in the body of the

were in your poffeffion ? paper, is becaufe it was wrote by m e; the
A . Two books, called the Roey Namah, other as witneffing, having feen Bollakey 

and the Cotta. Dofs’s fignature to it.
6). Were thofe all the books ? W hat is the firft date o f thofe three
A . Our books are drawn up from year to books ? 

year: in thofe two books are the contents o f A* Nine years, and fomething lefs than: 
this paper. two mopths from this time ; it  is dated the

^  Were there only two books for each 1.3th day o f Savoon, N augree ftile, 1823 .  
year ? The three books depend upon each other*

A . Whenrthere'Was a great deal o f bufi- and begin with the fame date, 
nefs in the houfe, two books were filled up in W hat is the laft date in the books t  .
a year ; when not fo much, two books might A . The fecond o f M aug, Nagree ftile,.
laft for four years. 1827 .

%



§). Do the books now produced, contain A. Yes. 
tranfa&ions prior, or fubfequent to thefe ? G) Whar nt-Vr „ a

i i M & S  5 N a'  A- P h r  the books ,„d  \grce ana Bengal year diHer ? papers delivered from the Court.

Choit - there Sare eglns^ 5. firft da7 of [The Court ordered Mr. Sealy, lateRegifter
r f  the May ° r's court, and now Regiftfr on 

vear is 18 J n ™ f  «  the Prefent tie  * * * $  fide of the court, to attend with 
& a ’  i 1 U f  2 Cn? a ' the other books and papers in his pofleffion,

male out the paper pro°duced°m y° "  bd° nging “  the
A. They are. S A T U R D A Y ,  10th J  U N E,  177 c.

Are all the tranfaftions between
Bollakey Dofs and Maha Rajah Nundocomar M o h u n  P e r s a u d .
contained in thofe books ? g). f J A V E  you the two books relating

. A ll the bufinefs tranfadted with Maha XTj L Bollaky Dofs’s tranfadtions with 
Rajah Nundocomar at Calcutta is contained the army ?
^  thofe books, but what was tranfadted A. I do not know where the two books 
before he came to Calcutta is not. kept with the army are ; I never faw them.

Do all the fix books you mentioned, ^  How came you to feledt thofe three 
relate to tranfadtions at Calcutta ? books ?

A. Tw o books relate to the tranfadtions A. I brought thefe books, becaufe they 
at the army ; he was at that time* with the contain the Calcutta accounts, 
army at M ongheer: what was done there was ^  Are thefe all the books and papers 
entered in his books, thofe are the books not you received from M r. Sealy ? 
brought. Bollakey Dofs remained with the A. There are many books in the chefts. 
N ab ob : whatever he tranfadted there, is in I had two chefts o f papers from Mr. Sealy; 
thofe books; he had houfes at Moorfheda- they may contain accounts: thefe three books 
bad, and other places, and at each place there were at my houfe ; I  have three other books 
was a different fet o f books : whatever was at my own houfe, which may be brought, 
tranfadted in thofe places, was in books there. - [The Court ordered them to be brought 

H ow came this account o f the debits immediately.] 
and credits o f Bollakey Dofs to be drawn
up from three books, when he had feparate K i s s e n  J uan Dos s ,
books at different places ? 6). Do you know what are become of the

A. W hat had his affairs elfewhere to do other two books ? 
with a ftatement o f his debts and credits at A. They are at Mohun Perfaud’s houfe, 
Calcutta ? he has taken them out of the cheft.

Then this paper was only a ftatement jjb When did he take them out of the 
o f his debts and credits at Calcutta ? cheft ?

A. Yes. A. Fifteen or twenty days, or perhaps a
{U pon infpedtion o f  the Perfian bond in month ago. 

the indidtment, it appeared. to bear date in &K Did you fee him take them out 01 the 
the. month o f Badoon, 1 1 8 2 ,  Bengal year, cheft? . ‘ f
which anfwers to the Nagree year, 1823.  A. I took them out of the cheft, by Mo­

hun Perfaud’s order, and carried them to his 
> M r. D r i v e r . houfe.

/  6). Court. W ere thofe the books depofited Q. Did he know what they were when
s. in the M ayor’s court ? he directed you to take them out . ^

At
\
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T H E  T R I A L  O F
20 jl

By the M ayor’s Court at Calcutta, at
l A t ' l a t  p S e d i d y o u u t e t h e m  ou, Fort W illiam in Bengal.

o f the cheft ? . > u r /t q ^
J .  At Mr. Driver s houfe. fP* *4
Q. Who were prefent ? ■ h  M aYj R eGr .
A. Five or fix perfons, w V ™  B E ’ I T  K N O W N  to all men by thefe

% b F o w ^ o  F  know that Mohun prefents, that on the eighth day of September 
%  How do y r 1 r b ks ? laft, one thoufand feven hundred and fixty-

PCT h ^ U  t on. S r b o o k a  o f n in i the will o f  Bollakey Dofs, deceaftd
M  f  o f Calcutta, out o f the c h e ft, S T

he® eX  k t 't " h e t a y  of the cheft 1 adminiftration Po f J l  and fingular the
J  Jfa M r Driver,] I think Mohun Per- goods, chattels, and credits o f the faid 

faud • it was given to Gungabiffen, and I deceafed, in any wife belonging, was, and
believe he gave^t Mohun Perfaud. is hereby committed to Gungabiffen, one o f

^ the executors in the faid will named, being
K i s s e n  J uan D o s s . firft fworn, well and truly to adminifter the

© Where are the accounts o f the firft fame, , and to pay the lawfull debts o f the 
year after Bollakey Dofs’s arrival at Calcutta? deceafed, and the legacies in the faid will 
Y A. They are in the books o f the army contained, as far as the goods, chattels, and 

n J credits o f the faid deceafed (hall extend,
aC7 nHow comes it fo > and the law oblige ; and alfo to exhibit into

„ S  There was no harm in that, as the this court a true and perfeft inventory 
balance was put into the new books. ofaU the faid goods, chattels, an ere >

0  Does that balance contain a balance on or before fix months from this d a y ; and 
o f the Calcutta accounts only, or o f the to render into this court a true and[ ju ft 
Calcutta and army accounts ? account o f all theeffefts o fthefaid  deceafed,

A. Of all the accounts j when one year on or before the twenty-fourth day o 
ended, the balance was carried to the next Oftober, which will be in the year o f our 
vear’ s accounts * Lord, one thoufand feven hundred and

feventy. Dated the day, month, year and 
J U N  E  ioth, 1775.  place above mentioned.

M ohun  P e r s a u d . Signed, D avid K illicanv  ©
Q \ \  T H E N  did Bollakey Dofs die ? M ayor.

Y V  A. In the month o f Affar, Signed, C ornelius G oodwin, ©
Nagree year, 1826, or June, 1769. Alderman.

6). Did Bollakey Dofs make any will ? .
A. H e left a power of attorney. ^  W hat do you know concerning the
Court, The probate is the only proper tranfa&ions between Bullakey Dofs and 

evidence. Maha Rajah Nundocomar?
The Probate o f the will, o f which the * r . *

following -is a tranflate, was read.

* It being now eleven o’clock, the Court made no adjournment, but one of the Judges at leaf! always remaining 
in the court, or in a room adjoining, and open to the court, the Jury retired to another adjoining room, under the 
charge of the Sheriff’s officers, to take refrefhment and to deep. T h e Court met the next day about eight in the 
morning, and proceeded on the caufe j the like was done at the end of each day, and at other timw in the ttial* 
when refrefhment was neceffary.
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M  The accounts o f them are in the Cotta, the cancelled bond and the potta into the. 
Nagree year 1825,  or 1768 Chriftian aera. hands o f Gungabiflen; he likewife tore the

A. W hat do you know o f Maha Rajah heads o f three Perfian papers, and faid to 
Nundocomar’s tranfaftions with Pudmohun Gungabiflen, Do you take thefe.
Dofs, and Maha Rajah Nundocomar’s with [Bond fhewn him]
Bollakey Dofs in his lifetime ? ' £>. Is this one o f the papers he cancelled ?
. -.%i About five months after the death o f A. I did not then know what the papers 
Bollakey Dofs, Pudmohun Dofs and Gun- were, I cannot read Perfian; this is one of 
gabiffen obtained the bonds from the Com- them. I have fince informed myfelf of the 
pany, on the account o f Bollakey Dofs, and circumftance : at that time I could not tell, 
carried them to .Maha Rajah Nundocomar. I now know that it is for certain. After having 
In the evening of that day, Pudmohun Dofs torn the tops of the papers Maha Rajah 
informed, me o f that circumftance. I then Nundocomar offered them to Gungabiflen, 
fhewed Gungabiflen the power o f attorney who faid, Give them to Pudmohun Dofs. 
granted to me, and which I had before fhewn Maha Rajah then looked at me Tideway 
to him, in order to prove to him that ten angrily, and turning to Pudmohun Dofs 
thoufand rupees only were due to Maha Rajah faid, Do you take the papers. Pudmohun 
Nundocomar ; and the day afterwards, I Dofs took them ; Pudmohun Dofs and ' 
went to the houfe of Maha Rajah Nundoco- Maha Rajah kept counting by their 
mar. H e defired me to fit down, and faid, memories fome fums of money on their 
T h e Company’s bonds are received j fome fingers, but wrote nothing down. Maha 
durbar, expences will arifeon them. I anfwer- Rajah faid, I will take eight bonds : having 
ed, I am an A ttorney; to whom ever money feparated the other feven, he put them into 
is paid, their names muft be written down, the hands o f Pudmohun Dofs : there were 
and filed in the audaulet: to which he an- originally nineteen bonds ; the Governor 
fwered, W hat is that to you ? I will do it. I and Council took two, on account of corn- 
then went to my own houfe: four or five million due to one M ichael; the other 
days after, I returned to M aha Rajah Nundo- feventeen were given to Maha Rajah. When 
com ar: he afked me if Pudmohun Dofs he gave the feven bonds to Pudmohun Dofs, 
had fpoken any words to me; I anfwered, N o : he faid, Y o u  have before taken two: he an- 
he then faid, l a n d  Pudmohun Dofs have fwered, I have. Maha Rajah faid to Pudmo- 
drawn out (teekkeeah) three papers 5 the hun Dofs, Indorfe the eight bonds 1 have 
amount o f one is 48021  ficca rupees; the taken: Pudmohun Dofs anfv/ered, I will get 
amount o f the other two together is 35,000 them indorfed by Kiffen Juan Dofs, the 

* * arcot rupees. I remained filent, and fome Gomaftah of Bollakey Dofs. Maha Rajah 
little time after went. home. put the eight bonds into the hands of Choiton

Fourteen or fifteen days after, Pudmohun Naut Podar. I, Pudmohun Dofs, Gunga- 
Dofs faid to me, Come along with me to the biffen, and Choiton Naut, (into whofe hands 
houfe o f M aha Rajah, and take the Company’s the bonds were put) went out together, and 
bonds, which he has received. I with Gun- fat down in my bhaitakhauna (fitting room) 
p-abiffen and Pudmohun Dofs accordingly Pudmohun Dofs lent a man to call Kiflcn
went thither : . it was night time, the Juan Dofs. Killen Juan Dofs arriving, indor 
lamps were burning, and the M aha Rajah fed the eight bonds, and Pudmohun Dofs 
was^ittino above ft airs: we fat down by him, gave them to Choiton Naut Podar, who 
and M aha Rajah called for his eferutore and carried them away. .
opened it, and took out all the papers that $  Do you know of any rece.pt or ac-
werecontained in it, and fpread them before knowledgemcnt for thofe bonds >
E ’  he cancebed (by tearing the top) a A. I was at that time confined m the 
Nagree bond for i , L >  rupees, he alfo court o f Cutcherry. he never wrote, or figned 
produced the potta o f the houfe^ and gave
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any receipt before me. Pudmohim Dofs took Allum, who lives three doors from the houfe 
a receipt from him, but' I do not know I inhabited, in a houfe belonging tome:  he 
\vhen he got it. [Paper fhewn to witnefs, came to me, and I told him all the Maha ' 
marked F ]  This is the receipt: I know it, Rajah had faid to Commaul G ’ Dien, and like- 
becaufe I took a copy out of the M ayor’s wife told him Commaul O’ Dien’s anfwer to

Maha Rajah Nundocomar; I likewifefaid to
6}. Are you fure this is the original ? him-"-
2  I do not read Perfian ; the Monfhy Court. W hat you faid to Mahommed 

took the copy by my directions. Alium  is no evidence.
6), Do you know o f any further tranfac- gK Do you know i f  Bollakey Dofs could 

tions? ' write Perfian ?
A  I know a deal more of Bollakey Dofs’s A. H e neither could read it nor write it, 

bufinefs, but not o f thefe eight bonds. nor did he underfland it well.
6). Did any converfation pafs between you £>. Did you ever fee him execute bonds or 

and Commaul O’Dien A lly  Cawn about this other papers ?
tranfaCtion ? A. I have feen him. Sometimes he wrote

A. Some money was due from Commaul the bonds himfelf in Nagree, fometimes.in 
O ’Dien on account o f Bollakey Dofs; I did Bengal, but always figned them with his own 
not know what the amount was. Commaul hand: he did not write the body o f the bond 
O’Dien faid it was about 6oo rupees: I then with his own hand, for he could not write 
faid, Pay it to m e: the demand was made Bengal.
three or four different times. Commaul H ow  did he execute bonds ?
O’Dien one day came to me at my houfe, A* H e always put his fign manual to a 
and faid, I cannot pay this money, I have bond.
none. I then fhewed him copies o f the differ- Court. to M r. Elliot.] W hat word
ent papers I had taken out o f the court, and does he ufe for bond?
defired him to look at them : he read them, A. Immafook, which is a Perfian word; it is
and having read them, faid, This is the im- khut in the Nagree language.
preffion o f my feal: when this paper (hkkut) [To witnefs.] Did he put any thing be*
was written 1 do not kn ow ; the name an the fides his fign manual?
feal is mine; where, or when the paper A. H e put his feal to letters; I  never heard
was written I do not know, I am not a wit- o f his putting his feal to obligatory papers,
nefs to it. About four, five, or fix months on which money was to.be received.
afterwards Commaul CPDien again came to Q. W hat is the ufual manner o f Nagree
me, and faid, Maha Rajah Nundocomar is Merchants executing bonds; do they put their ©
fecurity to government for me, for the pergun- fign manual, or feal ?
nah of Hidgellee : he fays to me, Do three A. A t  Agrah, Delhy, Lahore, Guzerat and 
things, and I will be and remain your fecu- Surat, it is the cuftom o f Shroffs to get the 
rity : with refpeft to the bond o f Bollakey body o f the bond wrote by their Gomaftahs, 
Dofs fay that you are a witnefs, and having and they fign it with their own hands.
Iworn before the Gentlemen of the adawlut give 6). H ow  do Nagree Merchants and
evidence o f it: write out alfo an account of Shroffs in Calcutta execute bonds?
receipts o f money (Burramud) againft M r. A. Shroffs in Calcutta fign a bond, vand
Lufhington : write out likewife a Burramud do not fix any feal. 
againft Baffent Roy. Cummaul O’ Dien told
me, he then anfwered that he could not fpeak Cross E xamination*
away his religion: i f  I  can get any one elfe to
ft^nd my fecurity, I  will give up all thoughts 6). Where does Gungabiffen now live ?

m. 1 at that time fent for Mahomed A % In my houfe.
How



^  jHow long has he lived there? £>. Has he fmce then, been fo fick as not
A. It may be two years and a half, or three to be able to go out?

ye*!"s- ' . A. H e is fo weak that he has been obliged
What age is he, and in what ftate o f to be held up by people when he came out 

. health? . . • | |  o f the houfe.
A. I  do not know his age exadtly, he is a j*>. Can any perfon that wanted to fee him 

young man. have accefs fince he went to the court houfe?
Ms Has he any particular infirmity you A, Any perfon having bufinefs has accefs, 

know o f ?. feveral have feen him fince.
A . H e has been fick fomething above two 6). Who has feen him?

years * he was at firft very ill, then got better 5 A. I do not put a watch over him; how
-he is now worfe.  ̂ can I tell who has feen him ?

Q  H ow long is it fince he relapfed? 6). Mention one that has feen him?
A . H ow  can I tell when he became worfe ? A . Kiffen Juan Dofs, Baul Govin, Kirib

H e is not a dying man, but very ill. Dofs Pattuck.
H ow  do you know that he has got Do you know any more?

- worfe ? A. A  great many people have feen him
A. Becaufe he is in my houfe,, I fee him befides; any body that wifhes to fee him may. 

everyday. Court. 6). Name fome others?
When did he get better ? A . Monic Chud Baboo, the fon of Huzzy-

A. I  cannot afcertain that date fo exactly mull, Jaggernait Dugonaut Duboo. 
to commit it to writing. .

6). I do not afk the exadt date; will you The Counfel for the Prifoner, ftiggefting 
tell it as near as you can ? ' that Gungabiffen was under confinement, and

A. Some days he has violent purgings, at not fo ill as alledged by the witnefs, the court 
other times he gets better; it fometimes con- requefted Dr. Williams and Dr. Stark to ex- 
tinues upon him for ten days, more or lefs. amine Gungabiflen, and report to the court 

Courtf  Give a pofitive anfwer to the quef- whether he could fafely come out and give 
tion. evidence, or not.

A> I cannot tell.
GT H ow was he yefterday, how is he to- i^. You faid Bollakey Dofs drew a draught 

day? on Benares in favor of Lord Clive for a.lack
A. I do not know, I was here all day. o f rupees. Is that tranfadtion in thofe books?

, Qj W ould not you have heard i f  he had A. It is. _ / .
been fo ill as not to be able to come out? Court. How do you know it was paid?

A. I heard nothing of him laft night,, he A. It appears in the books, a. receipt was
has not for a long time been in a ftate able tranfmitted from Benaris, and Lord Clive 
to go out o f the houfe; Tome time ago he paid the money, 
went twice to the court houfe to fign papers. Can you find it out?

Can you particularize the time ? A . lean.
A. About a month or two months ago, I , ’ . Tr.~  r

believe; I cannot tell exadtly. Mohun Perfaud and^Kiffen Juan -
G). H as he ever been out fince he was laft amined the books, and found die foliowin0

at the court houfe ? entry..
A. H e has never been out o f his houfe \Xi[fen Juan Dofs.] The particular account

fince the time he came to the court houfe to ■ ^  ty g tranfadlion is in the Rofenamma.
fign the papers.

I! - E ntry
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< t h e  t r i a l , of
E ntry read M ohun P ersaud, Crofs Examination*

a I a' Whofe property was the money in that
<c The cotta written in the name o account? was it belonging to Bollakey Dofs,

Dewan Nabkifien. Gr the houfe at Banaris?
A . How fhould I know ? It will appear in 

Debit fide, page 403 - 20000 o tjje books.
420 - 100000 o 6). H as any notice been ferved upon you
428 - 7000 o by M n Tarut ?

# . ----------------  \A . Yes.
Making in the whole 127000 o ^  W ho was the witnefles to the bond you

o fay is a falfe one?
Credit fide, page 427 - 335*7 Mahomed Cummal Selabut, and Matob

4 2 9 -  - 93482 8 Rov< t bdieve

1 27000 o ^ i Do y ° u know or can you give any ac-
;____________count o f Matob Roy?

A . I never knew, faw, nor heard o f  Matob
Court. Give a tranflation o f the Rofenam- R o y j  I may h ive feen many people o f that 

ma page 424. name, that I do not know.
^ , ^ • ijh Do you know Selabbut ?
c< In the name o f the Dewan H e was o f the fame caft with me, I

Nobkiffen, i4 M au g , 1822,  (Sa- knew him well,
turday i l l  o f Auguft) 20000 o q  W here is he?

L. . , r  11 A. Dead.Particulars as follows ^  w h ere  did he die ?

Paid by Dukee Ramfeil 14600 o A . In Calcutta, in the houfe o f Bollakey
10000 of which was paid on the 2 1ft  o f Fa- Dofs. Bollakey Dofs was then living,
gun, and 4600 on the 24th day o f the fame H ow  long before Bollakey Dofs’s death ?
month. A . Bollakey Dofs died in 1826,  or 1769.

my houfe and the houfe o f Bollakey Dofs are 
Court. Look whether there is any men- near, 

tion of the lack of rupees o f Banaris in this <5). H ow  long before the death o f Bollakey 
page. Dofs did Selabut die ?

Mr. Elliot. W e are not now upon the . I cannot tell exaftly, he died fome time
lack, but upon the 20000 rupees. ln l 8 l 3 o f Nagm e, 1767.

r  r  j£. W hat was Selabut ?
Dr. Williams and Dr. Stark returned from A. H e was a Vakeel o f Bollakey Dofs’s. I

examining Gungabiffen, and inform the court knew him well, he came to Calcutta before
he was fo ill that he could not poffibly at- Bollakey Dofs: he was an A gra W alla\ I  never
tend. eat rice with him, nor he with m ej he would

i/;/r„n j i y  rv r _  • eat rice which my fcrvants dreffed.
Rilien Juan Dols continues readme: from a  i t i m C-i u ^ r 1 *1 A r

the Rofenamma. b ^  W hat was Selabufs ufual method o f
.• . ' attelting papers as a witnelsr

. a? e t^e narf ie Dewan A. I  have feen him frequently with my
a kiffen, a letter o f credit (fefaurufh) has own eyes take o ff his feal, wet two or three

een written upon Bridjoo Mohun Dofs and papers, and fix his feal to them.
u.r, 1C 0 : o n  account of Lord Clive, and W as not Selabut bred to fome kind of

paid to Mr. Charmer at Banaris, for which a bufinefs with Bollakey Dofs? 
receipt was given on the 5th day of Chyte, I A, H e was Vakeel o f Bollakey Dofs, and 

. one ac 0 licca haulee Banaris rupees. 1executed whatever bufineft he ordered.
'  S i  Did

* 7



Did he write Nagree? heard any thing elfe concerning Durbar cx-
A. I  never faw him; he wrote Perfian in pences, before I heard it from Maha Rajah 

my prefence; he has alfo fixed his Perfian feal Nundocomar.
in my prefence; I have now in my poffeflion Q. Who were prefent when thofe papers 
writings of his. were delivered?

£>_. Were Bollakey Dofs and Sielabut of A. I, Gungabifien, Pudmohun Dofs, and 
the fame caft? the Maha Rajah. Choitanaut came in to re-

A. They were both Agra W alla’s, but I do ceive the bonds; a perfon of the name of 
not know if  o f the fame caft: by Agra, I mean Gooffud, by the orders o f Maha Rajah, brought 
the place he came from. - a little efcrutore. I faw no one elfe.

Court. W as he aNagree Merchant or Shroff? Can you take upon you to fay there
A. I  do not know. were no one elfe?

When did you know, according to your A. How can I fay there was no one elfe ? I 
own account; or when did you fufpedt this a faw no one elfe.
falfe bond ? ijh I f  there had been any one elfe, fhould

A. After the bond had been given by you have feen him?
Maha Rajah Nundocomar to Pudmohun A. We fat in the dhalan, (hall); there was 
Dofs, and I had read it, then I imagined it to no one prefent but thofe that had been men- 
be forged. tioned. When Gooffud came in, and had dc-

jjh Was that the firft time ? livered the efcrutore, Maha Rajah fent hirn
A. From the day on which Maha Rajah away. 

NundocomarmentionedtomeDurbarcharges, Were you three, Gungabifien, Pudmo-
fome doubts arofe in my mind. hun Dofs, and you, ever at Maha Rajah Nun-

&, When was it that you firft heard men- docomar’s houfe at any other time? 
tion o f the bond? A. Frequently, together and feparate.

A. I never heard o f it till Pudmohun Dofs Mention the time,
fhewed it me. Maha Rajah Nundocomar A. I ufed to go every day, I cannot men- 
had mentioned a circumftance o f three papers, tion any particular period when we were all 
but had not fpecified this bond. together.

* <3 W hat were thofe doubts you mention? ijh Can you tell me if at any other time 
A, That the Durbar charges were not juft papers were produced? 

and ' fairly ■ charged, becaufe I knew M r. A. I never faw him at any other time take 
Verelft, M r. Cartier, and M r. Ruffel had not. or give papers relative to Bollakey Dofs’s
received any. eftate. . , ,

» & W as any mention made o f their names ? g*. When you faw the papers at Mafia
A. Their names were not mentioned, but Rajah Nundocomar’s, you knew not what 

M r. Verelft was Governor, and M r. Cartier they were: how come you now to know the
was fecond. bond to be one ° f them *

6) When did you firft hear o f Durbar ex- A. Maha Rajah Nundocomar put this 
pences ? paper in the hand of Pudmohun Dofs: he
P A. When Pudmohun Dofs had told me tore it at the to p ; I^did not read1 it at that 
o f the Company’s bonds, I went the next day tim e; Pudmohun Dofs afterwards b m z g fa t  
to M aha Rajah Nundocomar, and then heard to- me, and explained it to me as one of .
of the Durbarexpences. I heard it before from three papers. . „
S g g g S l K  Who had mentioned fome Are there any other etrcnmitaces
circumftances concerning Gocul. Gofaul, and by which yon know n ,
Nobkiffen- and he faid, You muft prepare a A. There is alfo this circumftance, that j 

- jewel, and then the Gentlemen will pay you knew Bollakey Dofs did not owe Malta Rajah | |  
your money. I do not remember having | more than ioooo rupees. ^  Did
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<9 Did vou ever fee Bollakey Dofs execute %  Do you now know, whether Rogoo’s ac- 
, ?J counts is in the army books or no r

did : was I to fee his hand writ- A. I have not looked into the books.
i - / ‘l f ifu M  know it. €  Don’t you know there are books called

\  [Queftion repeated] army books?
A  I faw him execute a bond for 1000 A. I do not know.
Y" Dp you know whether, among Bolla-

rU1@eSi-y Court W as you intimate with Bol- key Dofs’s books, there are any that relate 
1 akev Dofs at the time o f the wars between to tranfaftions at the army?
Taffier A lly Cawn, and Coffim A lly  Cawn? A : I had hot feen the books before, when
J  j  j  ]uye been acquainted with Bollakey Kiffen Juan Dofs brought them to my houfe,
Dofs 1 4 or 15  years: we correfponded then, and examined them.

0  Did you ever hear o f any jewels be- , ' . , _
longing to Maha Rajah Nundocomar, being [The bond produced.]

depofited with Bollakey D ofs. a  [Counfelfor the Crown.]
A. I never did. I was together with iNob- l  J  J  J

kiffen when he introduced Bollakey Dofs to j s this one o f the three papers you faw 
Lord Clive. . M aha Rajah Nundocomar tear, and deliver

6). Have you difcovered any material jnt0 the hands o f Pudmohun Dofs ? 
tranfaftion o f Bollakey Dofs, except this j m Yes,
bond, which he did not tell you of? g  W as there money paid on this bond?

A . Bollakey Dofs ufed not to inform me ^  T he Company's bonds were thereupon
of all he hid. ; •• indorfed to M aha Rajah Nundocomar.

Do you recoiled being at M r. Driver's 6). D id  Maha Rajah Nundocomar, before 
- houfe fome time ago, and taking away fome this tranfadion, before the three met, when 

books o f Bollakey Dofs's? the bond was delivered up, ever mention to
A. I took them, [pointing to the books y0U his having fuch a bond? 

produced in court.] A. M aha Rajah Nundocomar told me, that
6). Who was prefent when you took them? jie an(j  Pudmohun Dofs had drawn up thefe 
A. Kiffen Juan Dofs and M r. Driver's three papers, one o f the papers for 48021  ru- 

Grcar. pees, and two papers for 35000 rupees. Gun-
4 - Did Kiffen Juan Dofs take them from gabiffen was not prefent. 

the cheft, or did you take them? Court. 4  Where was the bond found?
A. He did.  ̂ A. It was depofited in the M ayor's Court, „

Did you tell him the books by name? as part Qf  the eftate o f Bollakey Dofs.
A.. 1 defired him to look into the books When M aha Rajah Nundocomar told

refpeding an account o f Rogoo, and alfo into y0U that he had drawn up three papers, was 
the Calcutta books. Gungabiffen prefent ?

î >. Did you afk for any other books? ||| j-je was not#
A. I  did not.
4  Did you not afk for the army books? Mr> Sealy, late Regifter o f the Mayor's 

. W I did not particularly mention the army Court, called and fworn.
books, but defired him to look for the books
of Rogoo's accounts. £ Court. 4  Look at that paper, [bond fhewn

4  Are the books concerning Rogoo the him] was it among the papers belonging to 
army books ? ; Bollakey Dofs ?

A. I do not know whether it was entered A. It was. 
in the army books or no. 4  W as it torn then?

A. It was.



Are you enough acquainted with money Second. Among Mogul Muflulmen, who 
tranfa&ion in this country, to know whether know no character but Periian, they write 
that is the cuftomary way of cancelling bonds ? Alaubd, and let their feals. *

A. I am not. > Third. Government affairs pafs by leal,
Was this paper delivered with other without fign manual of any kind, 

papers belonging to the eftate ? Is the application of a feal fufficient to
A. I do not know. I was not then Re- fuch a paper as that? [fhewn receipt, letter 

gifter; it was one o f the papers that was de- F .]
livered to me as belonging to the eftate o f A. As one might know Nagree, and the 
Bollakey Dofs. other Perfian and Bengal, fuch a feal might

be fufficient. This paper being only a re- 
R ajah N obkissen . ceipt, a feal is fufficient. The word Alaubd

§). Do you know whofe feal this is? [paper ^  iljP [^ d fu l in this cafe, 
produced! ^  Is it necefiary that fuch a writing as
P A. The name upon the feal is Maha Rajah this be confirmed by witnefs?
Nundocomar. It appears to be his feal; I  It is not neceffary. [Tranflate of bond
cannot tell who affixed it. exhibit A . read.]

„  r i i i r  11 • • The Prifoner defired he might alk Rajah
T he paper o f which the following is a Nobkiffen a Queftion.

tranflate read by M r. Elliot. _ T r i u - r -  r \ u c1 Court. Let him confult his Counlel before
~— j ------------ he afk the queftion. [The queftion being

B^hTde^1̂ over-heard by Nobkiffen, he faid, <c Maha
Maha Rajah. Rajah Nundocomar had better not afk me

that q u e f t i o n U p o n  which Nundocomar
F O R M E R L Y  the jewels belonging to me declined afking the queftion.] 

were depofited with Seat Bollakee Dofs. In the Court to Jury. You muft receive no preju-
Bengal year, x 172,  he gave me a bond as the dice from this; you muft forget the conver-
value thereof, for the fum o f rupees,, forty- fation, and judge only by the evidence at the
eight thoufand and twenty-one, and a pre- bar._ . ■ , ,
mium.- I having delivered over the faid bond [The Jury  faid they would only judge by
to Gungabiflen, who is the nephew and ma- r^e evidence.]
“ age? of the bufmefs o f the aforefaid Seat; he ' f t  lo“ 8.dld you know Eollll“ y D° 6 
paid all together the fum o f current rupees 0r four years,'when Cord

bonds o f the Englilh Company, which is the Clive DofVs ta fi„ e6?
arnount o f my demand, as principal, pre- %  H e was nQt then inYany bufmefs in Cal- 
mium, and batta.

j  cutta. .
W ritten on the fourth o f M aug, in the <3 Was you intimate with him?^

Bengal year, 1 1 7 6 .  ^  ' A. \ was very well acquainted with him.
Court. Is the affixing a feal, the manner in 9 . What was his general charafter?

this country of authenticating papers ? A. A  very honeft ma «• Dops ?
AThere are three forts o? cuftoms in this &  Did you know Pudmohnn Dois.

4  Do yo o 'm o w  any thing of Bollakey
not fea l; that is, th? B ^ g a l  and Calcutta
Merchants. * j? 2 Are
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© Are you acquainted with Bollakey A. I remained in the fame place with him,
’ Dob’s manner of executing bonds ? from the time I was ten years old, till he died.

A. I know nothing about it. When we were at Delhi, our houfes were
feparated; at Mongheer and Calcutta we lived

M oonshey S udder O’ DrEN. together in the fame houfe: Sielabut was
, , r  n  Vakeel to Bollakee Dofs, and wrote Perfian

£>. Did you know that feal? [receipt exhi- for him<
bit F. produced.] . , &. H ave you feen him write ?

A. The; name of MahaRa,ah Nundocomar £  j  ^  ufed tQ fec him ^
Bahader, is to the ea . equen y, w en p)0 you know his hand writing?
was Mocnfhey to M r. Graham at Burdwan, J  well
had occafion to fee the Rajah's fea l; this ap- ’ w , 7 ■ . * T ♦ , , ?nau uccdiiuii j  . , ’ , r T W hat name is upon this bond ?
pears to be his: as an oath has been taken,! ^  That o f siclabl£  Vakeel to Bullakee
have only to fay, that it appears to me in my ^
mind to be the fame: I believe it to be the T ^  l  j  • • r  i l. Imiiiu lu uc , g). Is this the hand writing o f Sielabut ?

. feal o f Maha Rajah Nundocomar. A  No
9 . Is the application o f the feal alone, ~z* , r . ,

w iSom  the wo3  Alaubd, deemed fofficient .  S .  5' ° “  upon you polmvely towiLuuut uiiv. 3 fwear it is not his hand writing?
authent.cat.on to fuch a paper? I can fwear it.
_ ^  1S Pr0Per a a receiP Qn w kat grounds are you fo pofitive ?

You are afked i f  the feal alone is fuf- I am well acquainted with the form o f
fic& it authentication. What is the cuftom? ^  letters o f the hand OTlting  in Pof-
Is it generally efteemed fufficient in a country e ^  did ufe to atteft p erfian
court or julticer ^  I

A. This is what I think; a man o f rank, w n ings* c a *. v r  j  . , . r  ,
l r r  i • n i M j  H e uied to witnels and put his fealwhofe feal is well known in the country, and , r

is known to above ten people, it is a fuf- Un^e r i Xri 2 j  „ ~  „ u
ficient authentication for L h  a perfon as this. §  W hat do you mean by that expreflion?
I f  the chief perfon of the court is not fatif- A c  word Witnefs, and putting
fied, he can call witnefies and fwear the per- his ea un er 1 •
fon himfelf ~  **ave You *een “ im atte]^ an7 paper?

I t r *. . _ t  ̂ <. ,/f. I  have feen him very often.9 . Have you fat as a Judge in a country ^  ta* j  d • r  , ,7 °  J §>. Did he write better or worfe than thecourt. ^
A , I was once a Durongah o f a Cutcherry PaP^r 70U *, , , . . ,

at Burdwan, under M r. G?aham. . 1S a better hand wntinS  than
0 . Would you, as a judge o f the Court o f ^ie a • • * , , ,  , *

Audaulet, admit the authenticity o f fuch a %  £ ld he WntC l  g ° ° ?  ° f  kbad hand?
paper, fuppofmg the identity o f the feal to be A ' H e wrote rather a bad hand'
acknowledged, without the afiurance o f the [A  paper produced.]
perfon that he had fealed it himfelf? ^  Whofe hand writing is that?

A. I would call witnefles if  it was denied% J  T he hand wrkin Qf  Sielabut.
1 would call witnelfes and oaths. °

^  T o  what purpofe? [M ore papers produced.]
A. I would enter into a regular trial, to a  Do you difcover Sielabut's hand writing

prove i us ea a  ̂not een olen by his among  thefe papers? I f  you do, feparate them 
iervants, or whether it was a forged feal. from reftr  r  J r

c -n A. There is not any o f Sielabut's hand
# writing among them.

£%. Was ycu acquainted with one Sielabut? [M ore
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[More papers produced.] ] A. I am in no body’s fervice. I carry on
Is there any o f his hand writing among a little bufinefs o f my own.

thefe ? . , %  Upon what occafion came you-to live
A. Thofe' three papers have his hand writ- with Sielabut? 

ing. [The three papers were put afide, and A. When Sielabut ferved the Wollaky 
-  marked G .] troops, I was a fervant to him.

^  Have you any more papers o f Siela- £>. What fervice could you do him at-that 
but’s hand writing? age?

A . I haye none. A . Perfons of five years of age enter into .
£>. When did Sielabut die? the fervice of Merchants; I was ten years of •
A, Six. years and three months ago. age; I did whatever he bid me* affifted him

Where did he die? . i n  his trade, .went of .meffages, ,and gave .
A. In an out-houfe near the dwelling- anfwers. 

houfe o f Bollakey Dofs. It was a Bearer’s How. long did Sielabut remain at -
houfe. Delhi ? *

j^. W as you prefent when he died ? A . H e left Delhi with Mynhier O’ Dowlah,
A. I was prefent. into whofe fervice he entered.

j|| Where was that ?
Cross E xamination. A* I do not exaftly remember, it may be •

about fourteen years ago.
6). Where was you born ? ^  Did you leave Delhi with him ?
A. A t Delhi. A. I did not go away, with him:, my
cn When did you firft leave Delhi? father did.
A. About nine years ago. ^  What, employ had your father under
Q. Where was Sielabut born ? him ?
A. Sielabut was an older man than me A. H e did not ferve Sillabut, he was

when he died; I cannot tell where he was above being in his fervice.
j)orn How came you firft to Calcutta ?

6). W hat caffi was Sielabut? A* I came to Sielabut. . ..
A. H e was an A gra W alla, and a Banyan. %  How came your father above ferving 
9  W hat caft are you ? Sillabut, when you did ?
A  A  Bramin. A. I'ferved him in a particular manner:
G) A re there any Bramins. among the A gra he left much bufinefs under me.

Waflas? When Sielabut executed any paper of
A  They are all Banyans. his own, did he put his feal, or fignature ?

•  • & Where is A era? A. When he executed deeds o f his own, .
j ’ A gra is a village, or town, in the per- he began, "  I who. am Sielabut,p and fixed 

’ 1 TTnmJ11i his feal to the deed.
Hlpljf When did you firft fee Sielabut. & Did you ever fee Sielabut fign or atteft

■  £  ^  him * *  *  D d h ^ but d°  ^  " T ^ I ^ W ^ ^ J a g g e r .
" ' I  H ow  old was you when you firft faw naut Bollakey Dofs paid him fame money,-
SI tabut ? for whlch he Save a re c e ip th  P

a q'Vn vears old. ,
6). When you firft faw Sielabut, upon what ^  How old are you now.

bufinefs did he come to Delhi? • ^  ^ l o n ^ S y o u  live with.Sielabut.
A. H e afted at that time as Vakeel to the Q  n<m  long aiu y .

Kings W olocky, Cavalry. at Deihl •
In whofe fervice are you now r .Pp
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A. I was with him‘when he was Vakeel to country. I did not fa perfectly underftand 
the Royal Cavalry, to the Nabob Bnckah. Kerre'e Dofs Pottack, the father, from whom 

9 . A t what different places was you with I interpreted laft night, 
hina ? Court (to Mr. JeM .) W e are informed you

A. I was with him at Delhi, at Bau- fay, that the witnefs Keree Dofs Pottack did 
neehenvonput, which is the jaghireofNaggeer not underftand the interpreter, M r. Jackfon. 
Pollywn : I was with him in the Nabob A. Keree Dofs Pottack told me laft night, 
Sujah al Dowlah/s army at Buxar. Sillabut when he went from the bar, that he was 
came to Calcutta with Bollakey Dofs, and I confufed: I told M r. Driver, that he did not 
went home: He went from Calcutta to underftand the interpreter: I colledted this 
Jaggernaut, from whence he returned to from what the witnefs told me, hot from my 
Calcutta, where he died. own obfervation.

6). Have you been with him at any other [The Counfel for the Crown attempted to 
places ? * call Keree Dofs Pottack to thematters depo-

A. I have been at other places with him fed by Subboh Pottack; which was opofed 
on a journey : I have lived with him at the by the Counfel for the Prifoner; and M r. 
places I have mentioned, but no other. Juftice Chambers being o f opinion, that the

&K Court. Was youiwith him at Mongheer? contradiftion upon his evidence was fuch. 
A. I was not at Mongheer ; nor was he that he ought not to be believed upon his 

there, that I know of. oath, the Court refufed to fuffer him to be
if). How came you to know the fituation called, 

o f this houfe at Mongheer ?
A. I khow nothing o f his houfe at M ong- R ajah N obkissen .

heer, nor have I faid any thing about it. 6). Did you know Sillabut ?
How come you to fay you lived at A  Y es ; he was a Vakeel and Munfliy 

Mongheer? _ o f Bollakey Dofs.
A. I  did not give fuch evidence, that I 6). Are you acquainted with his hand- 

lived at Mongheer. ' writing ?
[Mr. Jackfon obferved, that the witnefs A _ I  am j I  have feen him write many 

made ufe of the word Latcar (Camp) and tjmes 
C alcutta; which M r. Elliot interpreted,
Calcutta and Mongheer.] [Bond fhewn him.]

tut -c Is this the hand-writing o f Sillabut ?
r. llio t . ^  The words <c Sillabut, Vakeel o f

I  have frequently interpreted Arm y and Bollakey Dofs, are not o f his hand-writing; 
Mongheer as fynonymous, becaufe the army ^  *s not lds common: w ritin g : I have feen 
was there. feveral papers o f his hand-writing.

Have you underftood this witnefs Can you take upon you to fwear it is
perfeftly? not his hand-writing ?

A. I have not all through underftood this ^  Sillabut has wrote feveral letters to me 
witnefs fo eafily as the others, tho’ by a re- and Lord Clive, ^andhas wrote feveral things 
petition v f  the queftions I perfectly under- before me : this is not the kind o f writing I 
ftand what I interpret. H is Moors is higher have feen him write ; but God knows whe- 
than what I am ufed to. ther it is his hand-writing or not.

W hat is your opinion about it ?
M r. J acks.on,. A. The prifoner is a Bram in; I am a C o i t ;

it may hurt my religion : it is not a trifling 
I perfectly underftand this man; I learnt m atter; the life o f a Bramin is at flake. 

xi\y Moors by reftding two years high in the • Do you, or do you not, think this the
J  #* hand-
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m a h a  r a j a h  n u n d o c o m a r , b a h a d e r .

hand-writing o f Siliabut ? Remember, you rupees bc[i<fe. j f t f e l  , , , 3 '
are upon your oath, to tell the truth and rifmrrL 1 rv  ^  f  ; and delivered it. to 
the whole truth. . ’ and p T T - V °  S ?  Cavvn’  wh-dfaid he intended

A. I cannot tell what Is upon my mind °  ^  DkTvni * *1? 1 ^ undocomar* 
on this occafion about it. P 7 %  V  d y0Ur  fee the bag afterwards ?

%  W hy not? Never fince. * - f l

A; This concerns the life o f a Bramin. I A  I^averion W  '  6 ^

„a s -*“« «
hand than this ? * r ,immrtl , r .

cpi 1 i • *** Cummaul o dien lent it x I  did notA. The letters on this paper are well laianou.
formed : thofe o f Siliabut are not badly
formed, but are notfo good as thefe. C ross E xamination .

[The papers are fhewn him which were ^  Do you know Cummal o Dien’s Munfhv ? 
I hewn to the former witnefs, for the purpofe A* I do.
o f feleCting thofe which were the hand- ^  How is he called?
writing of Siliabut : he immediately fixes on A* Cordan Nowas Cawn.
the three papers before proved to be the ^  Do you know of his being applied to
hand-writing o f Siliabut.] to give evidence in any caufe ?

Witnefs. Thefe three are the hand-writing A. Y e s ; Cummaul o dien Cawn applied to
o f Siliabut ; lean  find no other papers o f his him to give evidence in the affair of Maha
writing among thefe. Rajah Nundocomar and Mr. Fowke about

Did you ever fee thefe papers before ? the arzee.
A. Never in my life : I never was in fuch Q  Did he ufe any inducement to perfuade

a caufe: I would rather lofe a great fum of him ; and what?
money than be in fuch a caufe. A. I know nothing of any.

Q  What palled on that occafion, to your 
H ussein A lly . knowledge?

. A. Ido  not know of any thing that paffed.
%  In whofe fervice are you ? 6). How do you know the Moonlhy was
A. I am a fervant to Commaul O’dien applied to ?

A lly  Cawn. yf. I know that he was applied to, becaufe
^5 H ow long have you been his fervant ? he actually went to the houfe of the Lord 
A. Tw o years this laft tim e: I was for- Chief Juftice, to give evidence; I have heard 

•  >merlyin his fervice, and quitted it, and re- from many people.
turned to him again. o). Do you know of Cummaul o dien

W hile you was in his fervice did you Caw.n’s offering money to Cordar Nowas, .his 
ever receive directions to fend a fealto M a- Munfliy, to induce him to give evidence? 
ha Rajah Nundocomar ? A. Ido not know of any fuch offer.

A. I had directions : it was the feal o f Do you know one Mahomed Waffen, a 
Commaul O’Dien Cawn ; but he was not at feal cutter ? 
that time called Commaul O’Dien Cawn, but A. I do.
Mahomed Commaul. ^  Do you know of his having been ap-

6). Did you fend the feal in confequence plied to to give evidence ? 
o f thofe directions ? A* I do not know o f his having been ap-

A. I packed the feal in a bag. plied to ; he aiked him if he had cut a feal,
6). W as there any thing put in the bag of which he fhewed him an impreffion, and 

befides it?  laid, Tell the truth, and do not throw your
A. I fewed up the bag with my own hand : religion unto the wind. This is all 1 know, 

in it I put three goldmoheers and eight



t h e  t r i a l  of
~ T 0 . Do thefe five contain all the accounts
Q. In what cap y -  J  o f bufinefs which came within your knowledge

maul o Dem Cawn t ?•
A. I am his Confumma. V Y e s .’

K issen Tuan D oss. ^  Had not Bollakee Dofs, befides his bu- ^
o  Mow lone did you ferve Bollakey finds account, many of a private nature which

~  | B came into thefe books ?
A ‘ It is twelve or thirten years fince I went A  There were other private accounts con- 

~ . tained in books which were ftolen or deftroyed
1 G) In what capacity did you ferve him ? from Bollaukee Dofs, when we were at Buxar

It was my particular province to write with the army. This will appear by the books
die papers. produced; you muft not take it from my

Q W as you well acquainted with all Bol- mouth : I never faw thofe books that weie 
-lakey Dofs’s bufinefs ? ftole; balances from thofe books are entered

A. Bollakey Dofs had many fervants, of in the books on the table, 
all whom Pudmohun Dofs was belt acquainted He turns to the books, and reads this entry.
« h  his affairs; he was the chief. What papers The , u rama o f Dean chund Ruttingar, as
1  m und' ,* md‘n£  i ™ -  . r <• enired in the private cottah of Bollakee§>. What was your particular bufinefs under <( n  c >» Y
Bollakey Dofs ? 0 s‘ . . .

A  To write papers. “  YO U R  Jum m a in the private accounts
£  Did you write in the books ? “  o f Bollakee Dofs. Thofe papers were plun-
A. Pudmohun Dofs and I wrote in them ; “  dered at the battle o f Bu xar; therefore Rut- 

ht was. the chief ; what I wrote I underftand ; iC ton Chund having drawn out your accounts, 
other people alfo wrote in them. u and having extrafted your accounts from

6). Did you read what was written by other u  your books, according to orders, an entryvis 
.clerks ? u made o f them here.”

j  I  did. JVitrufs. There is an account in the Rofe-
Did you ever know of any debts due namma here produced, o f the contents o f all 

fromBollauky Dofs to Maha Rajah Nundo- the papers and books that were ftolen. 
comar ?

A. I knew it from Pudmohun Dofs only. J  U  N  E  ixth , 1775*
Did you know of any bond to Maha _  T / ,. T i • r n ,

R a fh  Nundocomar from Bollauky Dofs, of \ / P r Ju ft‘ce L eM aiftreh avm g  fuggefted, 
your own knowledge ? 1V1 that Dr. W illiam s had informed him, .

A. I knew of one for ten thoufend rupees. that Gungabiffen might be brought into court 
Did you ever hear o f  any jewels of ° n. a cott’  to, | ive his evidence, and the Jury 

Maha Rajah Nundocomar’s being in Bollauky being very defirous to hear it, the Court de- 
Dofs’s pcfleffion ? dared their opinion, that Cjungabiilen having

A. I  did not hear it from Bollauky Dofs. a Sreat intereft in the eftate o f Bo!lakee Dofs’
^  Did you write the bond for ten thoufand whlch was dlv,lded hY his wlU ln ac'

rupees ? cordingly to the component parts o f a rupee,
A. No •, Mohun Perfaud’ s brother Iwal- the Counfel for the Crown would not be en- 

latte Perfaud, wrote it at Chandernagore. I titled t0 ca!] him < tke PHfonet was therefore 
.have feen. the bond here-. & * P ®3 to advife with his Counfel, and fay whe?

ther he wifbed to have him called-. The Court 
u  ^ K0SS E xamination . at the fame time acquainted the Ju ry , that as

«<_ ow many books of Bollakee Dofs GungabilTen was a witnefs who would not 
ave you een ere . be capec} on the part o f the Crown, they muft

* ^ °°k s  produced] five o f receive no prejudice if  the Piifoner declined 
which are of coafequence. % f  calling



catting him ; becaufe if called by the Crown, little room of Veranda, contiguous to that in 
he would have a right to objeft to him, on which he lay, fupported by three or four- 
account of his intereft. The Prifoner having people, at flool, and fo much exhaufted, that 
confulted with his Counfel, returned for an- he tumbled on the cot when they brought 
fwer, that if he was fure Gungabiflen would him to it, and it was feme time before he 
peak to the truth, he Ihould be defirous to could give me an anfwer. After recovering 

have him called ; but that he confidered him his ftrength, I a Iked him fome queftions rela- 
as under the influence of Mohun Perfaud, and tive to his diforder; he told me he was worfe, 
theiefore feared that he might not fpcak the and that his very bowels were coming from 
truth, and that he declined calling him ; him : I told him he muft o-0 with me in a 
but the Jury  Ihewing a ftrong defire that he Dooley: he faid that it was impoffible; did 
might be called, the Prifoner and his Counfel not I  fee what a ft ate he was in ? and held 
confented that his evidence Ihould be received ; out his hand to me. He was then in a cool 
whereupon Dr. Williams and Mr. Stark were fweat, with a low pulfe. I further propofed 
again fent, and on their return Mr. Williams to him, that he Ihould go in his cot, and be 
was fworn. lifted over the Veranda by ropes, and be co-

for Court. How was Gungabiflen yef- vered up. He replied, he muft die if he went; 
terday ? he could not go ; he muft die. I then defifted

A. I  went to Mohun Perfaud’s houfe ; I from any farther perfuafion, and returned, 
found him laying upon his cot. The firft ^  What is your opinion ?
queftion I afl.eed him was, what his name was : A, That the man could not be brought
H e faid, Gungabiflen. I alked him as to his here, and carried back again, without immi- 
difeafe : he told me, he had a fevere nent danger of expiring from fatigue; and 
flux ; ,ten, twenty, or thirty ftools a day; a that he has not ftrength to undergo any exa- 
continual thirft ; and that on drinking, he mination, after the fatigue of bringing him to 
went to ftool, and it came from him immedi- court: Had he not told me that he has been 
ately. I felt his pulfe, and found him to have exceedingly ill near two years, I  Ihould not 
a flow hedtic fever ; and I  believe he has a have fuppofed he could live many hours, from 
fcirrhous liver. the ftate he appeared in this morning.

§). When you faw him yefterday, did you [Mafter Mac Veagh, Keeper of the Records,
think he could be brought into court ? being called, produces three papers.]

A. I thought he could not with fafety. W hat papers are thefe?
On my return, I reported to the Chief Juftice A* The original will of Bollakey Dofs, and
in court, that I did not think it fafe to bring a tranflate o f it; together with an account

• * Gungabiflen to the court. I  thought it, current of Bollakey Dofs's eftate.
and reported it. I afterwards acquainted From whence had you thefe papers ?
M r. Juftice Le Maiftre, that i f  there was A. I received them from Mr. Sealv, the
an abfolute neceffity for his appearance here, late Regifter of the Mayor’s Court.
I  thought he might be brought on a cot;
and I  would attend him myfelf. M r. Juf- Mr. S e a l y .
tice L e  Maiftre having before that faid, that © Did you deliver thefe papers to Mafter
the Gentlemen in the Houfe of Commons Mac Veagh ?
were fometinies brought in their flannels, then ^  I did.
I  faid what I mentioned about the cot. I went ^  Where did you get them from ?
to fee Gungabiflen this morning, with an in- J .  I took them from the records; they are
tention, if  poflible, to have brought him here, part o f the records of the Mayor’s court, and 
I  was the firft perfon that entered his room : were among the other records and muniments. 
1 found him off his cott: no one was in the 6). Is the account current in Englifh an 
room T faw him in yefterday : he was not in original paper ?
the room I faw him in yefterday *, but in a F  A
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$+
. - To my wife, four annas, (4 <*0 T o  Gunga-

Q Are thefe any part o f the muniments of biflen, and Hingoo, my nephews, one anna,
, rnmr ? ( '  «•'> T o  my three daughters, named She-

thelatThey are. ' bun Bebee, Gungaw Bebee, and Motrchun,.
TThe tranflate of the will of Bollakey Dofs three quarters o f an anna, (gp .) or three pica 

was read of which the following is a copy.] each. T o  my brother, Sam. Dofs, a quarter 
’ , o f an anna, (3 p.) and from the remainder one-

A W IL L  of B O L L A K E Y  DOSS, in Nagree anna, ( r a.) T o  Kitten Jebun Dofs, five hun-
Language, tranjlated into Englijb. dred rupees, (500 r.) T o  Pautuckjee, one

r B O L L A K E Y  D O SS A U G U R W A L L , hundred rupees, ( lo o r .)  T o  Balqee, fifty 
teing weak in body, do make this my will, ™ p « s . (Son.) and the remainder- to-other.
as I nretend to difpofe of my eftate perfonally, psrions. .. . . .
ftould I live longer; but, in cafe o f my de- After the Company s money lS-received 
Safe then my faid eftate to be diftributed as out o f the faid money ten per cent to be paid.
folio Vs: After the money due to me by the to brother Prodoomone D ofs,as I.have given 
1UUOVY3. _ / t rpnnpP mv debts him a note ; and after my debts are paid off,
Company is recei ’ ’ and the remain- the remainder and refidue to be diftributed.be naid, agreeable to accounts, ana me remain- . , . i
der to be divided into fixteen parts, or fixteen according to the particulars above mentioned, 
annas, whereof to be diftributed for the divine I have given Baubo Dhorromchun a:no e 
f  rvic viz for ôur ^ ou ân^ ruPees> (4000 r.j which are-

To Sree Goberdun Nautjee, one anna ( i a.) to be paid hum- 
T o  Saut Mundier, or Seven Pagods, named And befides this, the outftanding debts at
Sree B“-tthol Nautjee, Sree Mothurelhjee, Sree Dacca, Kungpore, Denazpoze, Purneah,
Gocul Nautjee, Sree Modun Mohonejee, Sree Muxadavad, Houghly, Mungair and Patna 
Duarrackow Nautjee, Sree Goculchunder to be .recovered agreeable to books and ac- 
Mohunjee, Sree N  own it Peeawjee, two annas, counts on thofe places,.and the fame to be djf- 
(2 a ) To Sree Bridjupauljee, half an anna, tributed as follows, viz.
>6 p ) T o  all the Ballokes ,of Guffainjee, one T o  Sreejeer D-Uarroy, Gooroor Duarroy, and 
anna ( i  a.) To Sree Modun Mohunjee, and Saut D . Mundier, two annas, (2 a.) T o  make a  
Si-ee Bhuoguerrutjeer Boho, half a pic, or Eng- garden, and well in my name, to be given to 
lifh (1 §p.) T o  Sree Govindjee Tickoytmow, the Brahmons, two annas, (2 a.) T o  my 
half a pic, ( i |  p.) To Sree Mohaw Probhojee, wife, four annas, (4. a.) T o  Gungabiffen and 
half a pic, ( i | p .)  T o  Sree Gopceul Nautjee, Hingoo, my nephews, four annas, (4 a.) To  
and Sree Govindjee, half a pic, ( i f  p.) T o  Prodoomone Dofs, for his trouble and plea- •  
Pooreftum Khetter, half a pic, ( 1  ip .)  T o  the fure,four annas, (4 * .)  making fixteen annas. 
Buftnubs of Gocul and Brendabun, a quarter I do further declare, that I had made a 
o f an anna, (3 p.) To all perfons aififting in power of attorney, before this, in the names o f 
the Sreejeer Saut Mundier, half an anna, (6 p.) brothers. Mohun Perfaud, and Prodoomone 
To Sree Brayjayr Mohunt, Buyragguies, and Dofs ; which I reave to the pleafure of bro- 
Goburden Tulhattv, a quarter of an anna, ther Prodoomone Dofs. I  requeft, all I owe, 
( 3 j) J .  For the making of Sree Nautjee’s and what is owing to me, be paid and re­
garden, one anna, ( 1  a.) T o  Sree Bollodebjee, ceived, according to accounts o f every fettle- 
a quarter of an anna, ( 3 p.) T o  Sree Gopaul ment. This is my will, which I thought 
Lauljee, at Banarafs, a quarter of an anna, proper to make.in my life-time, and defire to 
(\ 7.) To Sree Jomunahjee, half a pic, ( i f  p .) be executed in the fame manner as aforefaidj 
To Sree Baulkiflbnjee, at Surat, -half a pic, and at the requeft o f nay wife, I appoint Gun- 
(1 |p .)  Ditto, one anna, (1 ci.) making in the gabiffen and Hingoo Laul, my two nephews, 
whole nine annas. The remainder feven annas my truftees. And the management of all the 
to be diftributed as follows, viz. bufioefs,
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bufinefs, debts and dues, books and papers, mohun Dofs, in the prefence of Guhgabiffen 
I  leave to the care o f Prodoomone Dols* in which the fum contained in the bond is

included, as alfo a paper in the hand writing 
M itty, or month o f June, fourth day of the of Bullakey Dofs, in which the particulars of 

moon Sumbet, or the Nagree year, 1826. the tranfaftions are ftated t and that entries
Written by Kiffenjebun Dofs. were made ° f  the fame in the books that were
c . , , -n 11 1 __ _ . and letters o f correfpondence between
Signed by Bollakey Dofs, who approved of Bollakey Dofs and Maha Rajah Nundocomar, 

the above writing. in which this tranfaftion was mentioned.
Witnefs Dorromchurn, Kifienjebun Dofs, 

being declared by Bollakey Dofs. T age R oy called.

Bengal year, 1 17 6 , June 12th . ^  Have you got any natural brother?
A. I have one brother only, called Malta- 

[A  true Copy.] broy; he was my elder brother.
Jh  Is he living or dead?

Signed, R ichard M c- V eagh, a . H e is dead.
Keeper o f the Records. Where was he during the laft eighteen

months before his death ?
Court. This account is properly no evi- A. Sometimes at Houghly, and fometimes 

dence; it is not delivered in by an executor; at Calcutta,
and very little would arife from it if  it had What was his native place?
been figned by the-executor; for, as the mo- A. Bareai Adampore, at Doncacollah, in 
ney had certainly been paid, whether properly the chucklah of Burdwan. 
or not, the executor would have brought it i^. Have you ever feen your brother write? 
into his account; otherwife he would have A.' I have,
been him felf chargeable with it. ^  Can you read Bengal ?

I A. Yes.
T h e Counfel for the Crown clofed their Is this your brother’s writing?

evidence* J A  letter produced, marked I.]
T he Counfel for the Prifoner obje&ed, that A. It is not my brother’s writing, 

there was no evidence o f the forgery and ^  Who then wrote it?  ̂ # .
publiftiing o f the bond produced; but the A. I did, by my brother’s direction, in his

, Court being unanimoufly o f opinion, that prefence. . ■ v ,
there was fufficient evidence to put the Pri- §£. Look on the cover: whofe feal is that * 
foner upon his defence, It is my brother s feal.

m  Can you read Perfianr
T h e C ounsel for the D efendant ftated his A. I cannot read Perfian, but I know the

defence as follows. feal. , _ ,
^  1, • /r r * &  Was the imprefiion on your brother 3
That, firft, he could call witneffes prefent feaf affixed b ?

at the time when Bollakey Dols executed ^  j  pet fea],
the bond: that two witneffes to the bond, ' H qw came * r brother not to write?
now dead, were living when this tranfadhon y  M v brother was engaged in other bu-
came to the knowledge o f Mohun Perfaud:; ^  J d defired me t0 write,
that he would produce letters in Bollakey ^  T o  whom was it diredted ?
Dofs’s hand writing, admitting the bond, and y  j^ ^ o m ed  Heeamut Seeragut Roop-
the circumftances o f the jewels, and an ac- narain chowdrowjee.
count figned by Mohun Perfaud and Pud- p  2 When
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a  When did your brother die? ^  Was you ever in Calcutta beforef
2  About two years and half ago A. I came to Calcutta nine years ago.
% Was your brother a perfon well known £  Where did your broker die
^ , l  A. At Donyacolly, in his own houle: he'
A  H e was known to rich and poor in was ill five months.

_  , G ). W as you ever in .Calcutta when your
6) Xo whom? mention fome perfons. brother was there.
A. He was a fervant to Sam. Buchy, who A. Yes.

was in the gaol. Baboo Huzreymull and Dia- £>. W ho did he live with 
chund Baboo knew him. ^ S o m e tim e s  in the houfe o f Mohun L o ll

and Nundo L o ll : he always Itaid with Sam.
C ro ss  E xamination. Buchy, being his fervant. _

M Was your brother a fervant to Sam. £>. When was your brother acquainted with 
Buchy ? Roopnarrain Chowdree ?

A. H e was. A. From  the time when he went to Burd-
On what account was Sam. Buchy in wan.

gaol? * &  H ow lon& aS °  is that?
A. He was fix years in gaol, on a difpute A. Ten or twelve years ago.

about the Company’s fait. Q  H ow  long did your brother ftay in
6). How old are you? Burdwan?
A. Thirty-three. A. H e never Raid long.
£>. How old was your brother? W hat do you mean by th e ■ time o f
A. Three years and a half older than me. your brother’s going to Burdwan?
Q. When did you come to Calcutta? A. M y  brother went three different times
A. Nine days ago. to Burdwan upon bufinefs.
6). From what place? gK When did he firft go?
A. Donyacalla in the chuckla o f Burdwan. A. The year M r. Sumner went C hief to 
6). On what account did you come to Cal- Burdwan: he went with Coffenaut Baboo j 

cutta ? - that was the firft time.
A. A  letter came from Burdwan, from the 6). W as your brother ever in Burdwan be- 

Rajah of Burdwan’s houle,. calling me there : fore in his life ?
I did not go on that letter: afterwards Roop- A. N ot in the town o f Burdwan.
narrain Chowdree wrote me a-letter j a peon jT  W as he ever in the province o f Burd-
came with the letter. wan?

j| .  Have you got that letter? A . H e was bom in a chuklah o f that pro-
A. The letter was wrote to the Jannadar; vince. 

he did not giye me the letter: another letter . .6). W as your brother a fervant to Coffenaut 
came to me with a peon and kittree, from Baboo ?:
Roopnarrain Chowdree: when they arrived I A. N o : he went with Coffenaut Baboo, 
was bufy, and was not found; when I was who promifed to give him employment, as I 
found, they gave me a letter, requiring me to have been informed.
come to the Prefence. 6). H ow  long did your brother ftay with

What do you mean by the Prefence? Coffenaut? 
do you mean the court? A. Ten or twelve days.

A. I do not mean the Adawlet: they did £>. Did your brother write Bengal ?
not tell me plainly where I was to come: they A. Yes.
told, me I muft tell what I knew: I faid I j^. Did your brother write his letters him-
knew nothing but what I knew from my felf, or you for him? 
brother: I came on that letter: I  received it 'A, W hen
the third of Juftin, ~
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Vv̂ hen I was with my brother* and hpl G) tv i i 
deflred me to write, then I ufed to write, k 1 f «  know h i s r f S n s l  ’
_ ^  H ow long is it fince you wrote that , A. I did not.

-  ^  Thirty-fix months. ;tk^ ? Do 70u know whether he had a bro-
i?* Where is your brother's feal now? ' m tv t i , - , .
A . W ith me : I can produce it. ' I d f  not P C kn° W ^  thlngS by en1uil7  '• 
Q  H ow  long have you had it? g> n id , .

» 4 ro r i ™  i h S t h” fe *  * *  ° f

any lctters witK',he r?™7 ard h\£¥s  ^
^  N o t W hy thooM I feal with the feal vant to S a L tn 'c h y , «

o f a deceafed perfon?. backwards and forwards to mykoufe
u  u  _ - . ^  Do you believe he was a fervant of Sam
B aboo H uzrey M ull. Buchy’s?

A. I do not remember.
%  W as you^ever acquainted with a perfon ^ .  Are you fure that Matheb Roy ten 
^he name o f Matheb R oy ? years ago appeared to be above fifty?

A . M y  houfe is a houfe o f  charity: a great ' A. I never enquired his age : it is only from 
many people come backwards and forwards looking at hime I have mentioned that he 
to and from my houfe *. I. do not know what appeared above.
M atheb R oy you mean*. 6). Are you fure that he was more than

Do you know any body o f the name twenty-fix years? 
o f  Matheb Roy? A. H e certainly was more than twenty-

A. There was one Matheb Roy, a kitree, fix years : I- before faid he was fifty years : I 
here a great while a g o : he came from the cannot tell to a year.
weflward. : Q  Can you fay with certainty, whether

W hat fort o f a man was he? you fent a man of the name of Matheb Roy
A. H e wore a chowran (broad) turban: to Burdwan ? 

he was rather old. A. I do not remember: I cannot fay for
^  H ow old might he be? certain: Sam Buchy can belt tell.
A. Something above fifty. <£. Is Sam Buchy alive or dead?-

' * Q  H o w  many years ago is it fince he A. H e is alive, 
feemed to be above fifty ?

A . About ten years ago. C o ss e n a u t  B aboo.
W as he fifty ten years ago, or would

he appear to be that age now ? Did you ever know any man o f the
A. I faw him then; I fpeak o f his age as name o f Matheb Roy? 

then : I  have not feen him fince. A< What Matheb Roy do you mean?
Court. Have you feen him more than once? j3>. Did you ever keep any man in your
A* I  may have feen him two or three family o f that name ? 

tim es: I do not recolleft:. it was a great A. There was a perfon o f  that name, who 
while ago. was fon of Bungoo Loll Sunnuh, Kittree of

ijh H ave you ever heard o f any body elfe Burdwan, who ufed to come backwards and 
o f  the name? forwards to my houfe: he did not live in my

A. I  am much employed in bufinefs: I can- houfe, but .eat and drank there: Bungoo Loll 
not tell whether I have feen any other perfon was a man o f confequence y he was a fervant 
o f the name, to the Nabob.

S i  How
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IIow long have you known M atheb! T ajeeR oy is called and fhewn to CossenAu t .
R o y ? §>. Is that the fon o f Saheb R oy?

A. About twenty-five years. , jf. This is no fon o f any Saheb Roy, I
6). Is that fince you firft knew hjm? know.
A. Y e s ; I knew him-well; he was a man Court. T e ll this man what Cofienaut has

fef this country as well as myfelf. faid, and tell him the confequences o f fpeak-
' <£. What was his figure? • . ■ ing falfely.

A* A  whitilh' man, marked with the lrnall A. by *£ajee Roy. I  am the fon o f Saheb
pox. Roy, the fon o f Bungoololl.

j£. How old would he be i f  alive now. H ow  many fons had your father ?
A. I cannot fay for certain; I  imagine ^  0 ne.

about fifty, if  .alive now. , fCoflenaut fays, there is another Bungoololl
&  Do you take his age from his appear- o f anoriier' caft.]

ance, or from your knowledge. 6). O f what pergunnah was the laft Bun-
A. From feeing him. : g 00lolI?

When did you firft know him? ^  I do not 'know where he was born; he
A. The time o f the Marattas difputes, when wag in fervice at MancoOr, and lived at 

the Nabob fled to Ballaw, in the year 1 148 , H o l ,
or 4 9 ,1 firft knew h im : thirty-four years ago, ;£ £ 0 you know his family?
A . D. 17 4 1. -\ j  I  do not

&  How old was he when you firft knew k  Q f what’ pergunnah was the foft named

^im * TT c . u Bungoollol?
A. H e was a young man, from eighteen to . £  O f the city o f Burdwan.

twenty. ' Q- Are you fure he was not o f Doynacolly?
§). How many children had Matheb R oyr y  T  ̂ j  . • T i : J  i.- '„  7 it j-o n i i a  1 r 1  A . I cannot determine; I knew him atA. hour; one called Ballub Koy, thelecond r> j  JT  a-a i * ____« j  a /r 7 l -n 1 1 • j  11 j  o r 1 Burdwan, and I did not know him at Doyna-ecalled Matheb Roy, the third called Saheb 11 .

Roy, and the fourth called Panjefe»R oy. C0 m  know A e  othef Bungoololl ?
9 . How many children had Saheb R oy r T j  7 .. i uj  ✓ C r  t 1 r  7 ./?. I  do not know the man now here, theA . One Ion, 1 knew or no more. ■ , t> i n  ! ?^  , -jv k i t other Bungoololl was ln lervice at Mancoor.£>. Did you ever know any Matheb R oy, ~  ̂ n t r  i_ 0 , ,

the fon of Saheb R oy ? A ~  #  §  «  &  Is y ° ur father> Saheb
A. No.; I  am fure, I did not know a M a- °^J ^ lve_jor ea

theb Roy, the fon o f Saheb R oy. A  1 n € ’
^  Did any Matheb R oy go to Burdwan ^  Where did your grandfather Bungoololl

•with you in the time o f M r. Sumner? lve *̂ . 0 . . . .  j-n -n. f t r  i
^  1 do not remember. *£* M  Saitagong, »  the diftrift o f H ougly .
^  Are you pofitively fure that no Matheb ^  * * *  manY chlldren had he?

Roy was the fon of Saheb R oy? Only one.
A. I did not know a Matheb Roy, the fon %  Can?e y ° .\ t 0 % that Y<™r brother 

« f  Saheb Roy. went to H ougly with Conenaut m the time
C* Was there any Matheb Roy, the fon o f M r-Sum ner ?

Saheb Roy, that you promilfed to get an em- ^  1 do t y j* .  $ at he ^ ent to H oug ™ }h 
ploy for? Cofienaut; if Cofienaut does not recollect it,

A. I do not remember. I cannot help it ; he was a poor m an; I can
%  Do you know the fon o f Saheb Roy? Prove that he did g °  bY a hundred people.
A. I do know the fon o f Saheb R oy the &  t0. CoJfenâ '  any man o f that name 

fen of Bungoololl. / or family had gone with you, fhotdd you
^  Do you know his name ? have recolledted it ?
A . H is name is Doman, I believe, " J .  W hen
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A. When I went to Burdwan,, many A. M y father lived with my grandfather
perfons went with me : I  cannot fay he did <9. Did'your father live in the houfe after
not go. your grandfather’s death ?

you knew the family o f the Bun- A* I was very young,
goololls o f Mancoor ; i f  one o f them had 6). Where was you born ?
gone with you, fhould you know him ?.. A. A t Chirifura, at the time of the Ma-

A» 1  believe 1 lhould have known i f  any ratta invafion. 
perfon o f the name o f Matlieb Roy. had gone Where was your brother born ?
with me. A t Barree Adam Poor in his uncle’s

[Queltion repeated by one o f the Jury] houfe.
A  I f  a man had gone, I certainly %  Have you ever been examined before,

would know him..  ̂ about the matters you have given in evidence
[Queftion again repeated.]5 to-day ?

A. I did not know Bungoololl o f H ougly’s A, Whatever I  was- afked, I anfwered
fam ily; therefore cannot fay whether I fhould truly.
have known him; 6). T o  whom did you fay that ?-

i$>. H ow  old was Bungoololl o f H ougly ? A. T o  the Gentlemen.
A* I  cannot tell. $ jj). T o  what Gentlemen do you mean ?

H ow  long is it fince you faw him ? A. That Gentleman, [pointing to M$.'
A, I have taken an oath; I cannot fafely Jarret, Attorney for Prifoner.] 

fey* '  . i^. Where was that ?
^  H ow  many people do you guefs might A. In the houfe of the Gentleman with 

follow you to H ougly, expefting employ- M r. Jarret, [pointing to M r. Farrer, Counfel 
ment ?. for the Prifoner.]

A, Great men and little men were with 
u s :  I cannot fay exactly, I believe about ' R o o p n a r r a i n  C h o w d r e e . .
500 or 1000-

^  Did you know any perfon o f the name
T agge R o y— o f Matheb R oy ?

Is your grandfather alive ? ^  • •» r v
ja jsjo Sh Where is that perfon now r

H ow  long is it fince. he died ?: ^ eac -̂ ... 1
A. Fourteen y'ears. i Do W>u know the ofM atheb
©. D o you know whether your grand- „ and I was o f

lather was in any iervice r p  , T , * *urj  tt t7 , . T jmmi . - ! another: I do not know his family.A . H e  was Izardar at H ougly. . , " nnmP ?n  1 , 0 7 11 1 Tv/Tvi r> What was his father s name rDo you know a place, called M an- <  Saheb Royj

ccor' ‘ • , H ow  many brothers are there ?
„  , . r  - Tai-iee R ov and Matheb Roy.
&  W as yourgrandfather mfervrce there? j  pnow his.grandfather?
A. I know Mancoor ; it was my grand- . j

father’s farm. , £  What were the names of the brothers
^  W here was. the houfe o f your grand- ^  Matheb R oyyou know ?

•father . a . Taiiee R oy and Matheb Roy.
A. A t H ougly. . • © Do you mean two fons o f the father, or

W as it not at Barree Adam Poor ? h * ? ’
A. M y grandfather’s houfe was at H ougly. 1 only ufed to come to me.
^  W here was your father’s houle . * D q know when Matheb Roy died ?

7 A*



4-0
4 In the month of Maug, 1 1 7 9- ' "  &  Do you know him to be dead,-of your
O vou receive any letter from own knowledge ?

Matheb Roy before his death? ^  I do certainly know
A  Yes in the month o f Baudon, 1179. Q  H ow long is it fince his death ?

y ■ f A. About five or fix years.
Q, Where did he die |

J oy deb C howbee. ^  j  went to the houfe o f M aha Rajah ;
«  Did vou know the late Bollakey Dofs' I  >vas by when he was carried to be buried : 

J I enquired whether it was a Bramin or a
A  I diet Muflulman going to be buried: they an-
j f  Did you know o f his ever executing fwered, it was Mahomed Commaul.

^ny bond to M ahaRajah Nundocomar ? T ell ^  Did you know Matheb R oy ? who was
what you know about it. lie * __ . . _  . CT> , ^

A  'I remember that Bollakey Dofs Seat A. Matheb R oy was a kettry o f Burdwan ;  
wrote out a bond in the name o f Maha I knew him ; he was frequently coming back- 
Rajah Nundocomar; his writer wrote it. wards and forwards to the M aha Rajah.

6), Did you fee his writer write it? H ow  long have you been acquainted
A. I myfelf with my own eyes faw the with Bollakey Dofs ? 

writer write it in the Perfian hand. A. I knew him when he lived at M uxa-
j^. Did you fee it afterward executed ? davad, and often faw him after he^came to
A. I  faw Bollakey put his feal to it. Calcutta.
^  Who were the witneffes to it ? ^  W hat connexion had you with
A* Mahomed Commaul o f Muxadavad, Bollakey Dofs ?

Matheb Roy, a Kettry, and Sillabut, the A. H e was a Banian, and I  was a Bramin j
Fakeel o f Bollakey Dofs. there is no relationfhip ; there was friendftiip

Did you fee them witnefs it ? between u s; I knew him, and he knew me.
A, I myfelf faw thofe three men witnefs H ad you any connection in bufinefs

H  with him |
6). What was the amount o f the bond ? A. There was no connection in bufinefs 
A. I  do not remember exactly : I believe between us ; he was a great S h ro ft: I fre- 

it was within 45,000 rupees, and fomething quently went to lit down in his houfe; he 
above 40,000. delired it.

Q. A t what time of the year was this ? Q  W hat was your bufinefs ?
A. I do not recolleCt. A. I  was formerly a fervant o f  M aha

Tell as near as you can what month Rajah Nundocom ar: he is now without 
it was ? em ploym ent; his employment is gone, and

A. It was in the rainy leafon. fo is mine.
^  Do you know the perfon now called ^  W here is the bond you fpeak o f  exe- 

Commaul O’Dien A lly  C a w n c u t e d  ?
A. I do know him. A. T he bond was executed in the houfe o f

Is he the perfon you faw witnefs that Baboo Huzree M ull in the Burra Buzar. 
bond you mention ? W ho lived in that houfe ?

A* N o. A, T he bond was there w ritten : people
Who was the Mahomed Commaul you belonging to Huzree M u ll lived in i t ; there 

law witnefs it ? was a part o f it  feparated from the reft, in
A> A  man of Muxadavad. which Bollakey Dofs lived ; it was in the
^  Did you know his father ? feparate houfe where Bollakey Dofs lived.
A. I did not. 6). Can you read Perfian ?

i t  t^at ^ •a^or^cd Commaul living ? A. I do notknow Perfian; how can I read 
‘ ^  H e is dead. it?

W ere
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%  W ere you there by chance, or fentfor? and faid, Carry it with Seillabut to M ah aR a, 
A. Bollakey Dols called me and carried jah Nundocomar’s

J k a ,  ' ^  You fay SiHabut figned the bond; what
Jg* Did he come to your houle for you ? did he write on it
A. H e came to the houfe o f Maha Rajah A. H e wrote his own name, as a witnefs • 

Nundocomar, where I was then fitting. I do not know Perfian; I imagined he figned it* 
M aha Rajah Nundocomar faid to Bollakey £). Did Bollakey Dofs read the bond before 
Dofs, Money has long been due from you to he figned it ?
me i now pay it. Bollakey Dofs faid in A. The writer put it into the hands ofBoI- 
-anfwer, I have loft every thing by plunder at lakeyDofs, and he, having feen it, figned it. 
D acca; I have not now the power o f paying ; . 6). Did he read it ?
a great fum o f money is due to me from the A. The writer read it to him ; he heard it.
E n g lifti; when I receive that, I w ill pay you What is that writer's name ?
firft o f m y creditors. H aving faid this, he A. I do not remember it.
added, I will now write out a bond. Bolla- Was. you acquainted with him ?
key Dofs in this manner preffed Maha Rajah A. I have feen him with Bollakey Dofs ;
Nundocomar a good deal, and put his hands I  was not acquainted with him.
together in an attitude o f praying ; and at Do you remember what fort o f a man
laft M aha Rajah confented. Bollakey Dofs he was ?
then faid to M aha Raja, Send Mahomed A. I do; his colour was black; he was 
Commaul with me to my houfe; I w ill there about forty years o f age.
w rite out the bond immediately. H aving Do you know Sillabut ?
faid this, Bollakey Dofs, in company with A. I did not know Sillabut.
Mahomed Commaul, left M aha Rajah’s ;  I W hat was he?
likewife obtained difmiffion from M aha A. A  Vakeel o f Bollakey Dofs.
Rajah. H aving gone down ftairs, Bollakey H ow  many years was he with him ? 
Dofs faid, Come along with me to my houfe, A. I  do not know.
and I having executed a bond before you and j^. H ow  many years did you fee him about
Mahomed Commaul, w ill fend it to M aha Bollakey Dofs ?
Rajah. After this, Bollakey Dofs and I A. Three or four years, 
went to the houfe o f Baboo Huzree M ull, Do you mean three or four years be*
in the Burra Buzar: being arrived there, he fore figning the bond ? 
fent for his writer. T h e writer came, and A. I do not remember how many before; 
was ordered to write out a bond in the name Sillabut lived fometimes with Bollakey Dofs, 

• 1 o f the M aha Raj ah. The writer wrote out a and fometimes with Maha Rajah Nundo-
Perfian bond, and put it in the hands o f comar.
Bollakey Dofs Seat. Bollakey Dofs Seat, H ow long after fealing this bond did
having feen the bond, took the ring o ff his you know this perfon about Bollakey Dofs ? 
finger, and fealed it, and faid to Mahomed A. Tw o or three years.
Com m aul, Be you a witnefs to it. Mahomed Where did he go then ?
Commaul affixed his own feal, with his own A. H e went within that time to Jagger-
hand, as a w itnefs; he faid to Matheb Roy, naut, to perform religious ceremonies along
Be you alfo a witnefs to th is : Matheb R oy with Mohun Perfaud; when he returned to
fealed it with his own hand. H e faid to Seil- Calcutta he died.
labut, Be you alfo a witnefs to th is; and he When did he die ?
figned it with his own hand. Seillabut having A. Id o  not know; I was told he return-
put it into the hands of Bollakey Dofs Seat, he ed : I heard o f his death.
put it into the hands o f Mahomed Commaul, ^  Did any body elfe write upon the bond ?

g  ifi
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' &. Did any body befides Sillabut write large as this ?
anything at all upon the bond ? ■ „  n [Thef  ^ m e n  confiftmg o f two half

A  Sillabut wrote upon i t : Mahomed Com- (beets o f parchment, doubled, was (hewn him.] 
maui fealed it : Matheb Roy .fealed it. A  I  do not remember if it was large or

©. Did any body elfe ufe a pen ? fmall ? '
A  Not to my remembrance. Court. Do you remember i f  the feal was on
TThe Chief Juftice, in a low voice, told the the infide or the outfide of the paper ?

Counfel to (hew him another bond with three A . Bollakey Dofs, I remember, fealed in a 
r . -j place like this, [pointing to a margin in a Per-

Court. You have fvvorn pofitively ; you mu ft (ian paper, (hewn towards the right hand 
anfwer pofitively. corner at top.] \

A. I fpeak from certainty what I know : I Q  Are you fure of that.
faw no body elfe write upon the bond: I  do A  rrenlember.
not remember it. ^  Where did Mahomed Commaul feal ?

67. Do you know Mahomed Commaul ? A  I f  I  were to fee the bond 1 Humid be able
A. I  was acquainted with him. to tell.
6). Where was you acquainted with him ? ^  W as it larger or fmaller than this paper ?
A  He was a fervant o f the father of Maha [A  large fheet o f Bengal paper Ihewn him.]

Rajah Nundocomar : when his father died, A  I  cannot tell whether it was larger or 
Mahomed Commaul ufed frequently to come fm aller: how can I  fpeak to what I do not 
backwards and forwards to Maha Rajah Nun- remember? # -.
doco,mar’s houfe. . [A  very fmall piece o f paper Ihewn him.]

6). W as you intimate? ^  W as it as large as this .
. A. There was no friend (hip between us : A. I  know not.

3 had feen him two or three -times at Maha [The back of the real bond Ihewn him.] 
Rajah’s. ' * ^  W as it like this ?

6). What was his employment when the A. I  do not remember; but if  I  was to fee 
bond was figned ? - the real bond, I could tell the feal and the fize..

A. A  ruflick (dependent) o f Maha Rajah ^  Could you know the imprefiions o f the 
Nundocoman feals, i f  you few them ? _ ‘

gK W hat fort of"a man was Mahomed A. i f  1 fee the imprefiions o f the feals as- 
Commaul? they were, I fliould know them.

A. A middling fize man, o f a yellow colour, ^  Should you know Bollakey Dofs’ s feal ? 
rather whitifh. A  I know Bollakey D^fs’ s fe a l; from fee- *

<9. What was his age ? mg the impreffion of the feal, I fhall know it.
A» H e was near S59 ilh blow  came you fo well acquainted with*

Did Matheb Roy or Mahomed Com- Bollakey Dofs’s feal ? 
maul feal firft ? A* It is a (buddaroie) almond feal.

A* Mahomed Commaul fealed firft. Court. Let him defcribe the ftiape. [H e de-
Who fealed next ? fcribes an-oval on a paper.]

A. I do not remember whether Matheb Roy H ow  can you know th-e impreflion o f
fealed next, or Sillabut figned. Bollakey Dofs’s feal, not underftaoding Per-

In what part of the bond did Bollakey fian ?
Dofs put his feal ? W as it at the top or at the A. I frequently faw it upon his hand, 
bottom ? - ■ £>. Did you ever fee Bollakey Dofs’s feat

A. I t  is a great while ago : 1 know nothing but upon his finger ? 
of fuch a difpute to: come,:. I  cannot be pofitive A. I never faw his feal in any other place 
as to fuch dungs. than his finger.,

& urt*

A . No body elfe. . , ^  What fize was the paper ? Was k  as



Court. W as you to fee the feal o f Bollakee bond was finilhed, he put,if in the witneffes 
Dofs upon a paper, .fhould you know it from hand : we faid nothing : what lhould we flv  >

an^ 0tTflr? \a t  a  ■ fD  ^  H ow  long was the writer writing theM 1  mould know the lmpremon ofBolla- bond? 6
key Dofs’s feal if  I  was to fee it ; I have fre- A. One gurre, (22 minutes)
quently feen it upon his finger. 9 . Who brought in the ink for the feals >
. %  Do y °u know . the impreffiori of Maho- A. The ink-ftand was near Bollakey Dofs • 
med Commaul s feal ? he dipt his feal on the culhion, and fealed the

A. I  mould know it ; I have frequently feen bond.
it upon his finger. %  Did he bring it with him ?

^  W as you to be ihewn a paper with the A. He was a fhroft of confequence, pof- 
impreffion of Mahomed Commaul’s feal on it, felled of a ficca ink-ftand: it was filver. 
lhould you know it ? jjh Who brought it into the room i  ‘

A. I could not read the letters, but lhould A. I firft faw it near Bollakey Dofs. 
be able to judge from the lhape. §K W as the ink-ftand in the room, or

Court. Should you know the feal ? Many brought afterwards ?
. feals are o f the fame fhape. A. Bollakey Dofs went with his fewarry

A. I do not read Perfian ; but I  think I before u s ; when we came in, we found him 
lhould be able to know the feal. fitting, with his ink-ftand before him.

Court, Have you often feen the feal on Ma- W hat converfation pafied, while you
homed Commaul’s finger ? were at Malm Rajah Nundocomar’s ?

A. I have often feen it on his finger; he A* I  have already related, 
ufed often to come to the houfe of Maha Rajah gK Did no more pafs ?
Nundocomar, and I  ufed to fee the feal on his . A. N<x
finger. W as there any converfation about w.ha t

gK W ho fealed firft after Bollakey Dofs ? the fum of the bond was for, at Maha Rajah’s ? 
A. Bollakey Dofs having fealed it, put it A. There was no converfation about the 

into the hands of Mahomed Commaul, and he amount of the bond at Maha Rajah’s, 
fealed it. Do you remember any mention of a

6). W here was it wrote ? premium to be given ?
A % In the houfe o f Huzree Mull, in the As No.

Burra Buzzar, in the prefence o f us all. gK Do you remember the fum ?
gK W hat room was it in ? A> I do not.
A. There is a long room runs Eaft-Weft, g^ Did you hear the bond read ?

* 9 the door to the South : it was executed there. A. The writer read it, but I did not under*
6)̂  W ho was prefent befides ? ftand ; it was read m Perfian. how fhould I
A. Shaik Ear Mahomed, Choyton Naut, know what the bond was ?

Lollah Domanking, Matheb Ro)r, Sillabut ĝ > H ow do you know the fum ?
Vakeel, and the perfon who wrote the bond. A, I did not know the amount of the bond :

6). W hat was his name? * I heard that it was within fifty, and above
A. H e was not o f this country •, I  did not forty thoufand rupees, 

know him. Q  When did you hear t lat
Q. W hat hour of the day was it ? A. It was two or three days after the time.
A . It was before mid-day. &  Did Bollakey Dofs look at any books
9 . Did any particular converfation pafs at before he ordered the bond to be wrote. .

that time ? X 1 A. I  did not fee him examine any books
A. There was no converfation. before the .bond was execiited ; when I came
& W as there not between the reft o f the he was fitting down, and I aid not lee him 

company, while the bond was writing ? examine any books.
1 1 remember no converfation: when the $  H ow long did you come after him ?

H i  **
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A  H e went in his palankine ; I  followed Q  W hat is this paper ? . -
him '• it might be half a gurry, ( 1 1  minutes.) A. This little feal is Mahomed Commaul s.

0  Did you find the other perfons you men- Can you fwear to that pofitively ?
fitt;na: when you came in ? A . I do hot know the words : the largeft

T ’Four of us came together \ myfelf, Ma- feal is Matheb Roy’s. ' ' .
homed Commaul, Choyton Naut, and Shaik %  H ow  came you to know the feal o f Ma- 
Ear Mahomed. Matheb Roy, Lotta Demon, thet.Roy ?
c ;no. Sillabut and the writer, were there when A. I  have feen his feal on his finger : I law 
I  came in * him frequently at Maha Rajah Nundocomar’s

6). Had the writer began to write when you houfe. 
came in ? SLfM  the Gentlemen o f the adaulet were

A. After we had fat down, the writer began- to put the feal o f Mahomed Commaul on an- 
to write. other paper, fhould you know it ?

6). In what language did Bollakey Dofs fpeak A. I fhould. 
to the writer? 6). W as there any converfation o f  jew els at

A. H e talked in M oors: he fpoke Moors, the Maha Rajah’s ?
9 . Does he underftand Perfian ? A. No.
A. I do not know ; he talked Moors. W as there any at Bollakey Dofs’ s ?
Q. Was the bond read in Perfian ? ' A. N o.'*

Yes. [The feal o f Commiaul O Dien- A liy Cawrir
a  W as it, after being read in Perfian^ ex- before produced to the Jury, is fhewn him.] 

plained in Moors ? Q  Do you know whofe feal this is ?
A. N o : it was read in Perfian, and Was not A. I  do not.

explained in Moors. . - f j j  [Jofeph Satcheb, Clerk to M r. Jarret, is
% ^  .Did you hear Bollakey o s gi\ y cajjej  t0 prove the delivering o f notice to 

dire&ion as to the mm. . j Mohun Perfaud to produce an original nagree
A. .Bollakey Dofs faid nothing in my p paperj g jven to him by Maha Rajah Nundo- *

fence about the fum- > ,, comar, when he, Gungabiffen, and Podmo-
%s Did Bollakey Dofs, any time before, tell hun Dofg> were | |  the Maha Rajah’s houfej

h'“  God knows whether he told him before. ® P  “  the Pr°P er ^ - w r i t i n g  of Bollakey 
^  r v a ■d i, i flTr t w * Dofs, and to produce it as evidence for the de-You fay you heard Bollakey JJols give  ̂ 9 - *

d ireai°ns to write the bond what were the ^  M p e1̂ au^  H ave you produced

? H e fpoke thefe w ords: W rite out a any papers, in confequence of the notice >
bond in them m e of Maha Rajah Nundoco- 3 P *  cannot produce .t > I have produced all 
tiunu xu tux. au.v j  the papers I have: I have no paper under fuch

Did he Iky any more ? defeription. g j
. A . No ; he fpoke no other words* M ohun Doss called.

Did Bollakey Dofs fay a bond, or the Q  Do y°H ^ now Gungabiffen .
bond? ^  I  do.

A. H e faid, a bond. Q, Do you know Mohun Perfaud ?
g). Did he fay any thing about confidera- A»_ Yes.. _ .

t\0n ? Qs D id  you know Pudmohun Dofs ?
A. When I went, he fpoke .the words I faid, I did.

and no more. Did you know Bollakey Dots •
§>. Do you know this paper ? [bond pro- A. I  did. 

duced.] H ave you feen him write ?
I A. This feal of the bedamee (amond oval) A, I  have,

fliape, is Bollakey Dofs’ s. rs j



A [e y °u acquainted with his hand- A. Bollakey Dofs’s name is written at the- 
writing ? . bottom. e

H  * am' , I  . , £>. Is that o f his hand-writing ?
Do you remember Maha Rajah Nun- A. There were only fiye letters of Bollakey 

docomar, Gungabiffen, Pudmohun Dofs, Dofs’s name on the paper I coped. I can- 
and Mohun Perfaud, in converfation to- not tell whether this is his hand-writing : I 
getliei ? . _ do not know : I am not his gomaftah

I do j at Maha Rajah Nundocomar’s Kiffen Juan Dofs knows Bollakey Dofs’s 
' houfe* . * hand-writing and Pudmohun Dofs’s /

Did you, upon that occafion, fee any
papers ?  ̂ K issen J uan D oss...

A. Pudmohun Dofs faid to Maha Rajah 
Nundocomary Give me papers. Maha [Nagree paper Ihewn him.]
Rajah having got the papers, bid me copy . rs, Look at that paper: whofe fignature 
th em : I obferved to Gungabiffen, Mohun ls 1J  -n n * ^
Perfaud, and Pudmohun Dofs, that Maha A - LoUakey Dofs’s fignature | it is his 
Rajah had bid me copy the papers; and J 1®  w riting; the body is the hand-writing 
afked them, i f  I fhoulddo it; they all an- o f Pudmohun Dofs.
Iwered, W rite them out. . H aving wrote ^  ^  eF̂  an7 w°tds wrote by Bollakey
them, I gave them to Maha Rajah Nundo- JjL1 es 1S name *
com ar: Pudmohun Dofs took the original, * ere are.

and the copy remained there M r. Elliot delivered into Court the follow-
W hat did Pudmohun Dofs do with ing tranflate o f Nagree papers, which mark 

them ? . . Exhibit L .
A. T he copy I wrote remained with Maha

Rajah Nundocomar ; the original remained M A H A  Rajah DehrajeNundocamafGeeoo,
Wlth Ptidiriohun Dofs. . , , at Calcutta, with compliments, written from

W hat did Pudmohun Dofs do with,the Chinfura, by Bollakey Dofs, with many
papers.? obeiflfances. M ay God always grant him

A. H e took them himfelf, and put them health, and I fhall be joyful. I myfelf am 
u p : whether he carried them out o f the houfe by your favour in h e a lth y o u  have written a 
I know not. Perfian- letter, which has arrived; by the

^  H ave you ever feen the papers fince ? reading of which I have been rendered 
, Never. [A  paper Ihewn him : a copy o f j 0yfuj and contented. You have written,

the paper was offered to be given in evi- that till the Governor fhall come, you wilh 
dence.J _ _ me to ftay at Chinftura. Accounts are re-

Court> You have traced it into the hands ceived that the Governor will fhortly arrive, 
o f  Pudmohun Dofs, but not into the hands of j  have, according to your delire, remained 
Mohun Perfaud. ' This is not fufficient to here. The Governor arriving, as bulinefs 
entitle you to give the copy in evidence. [A  w ill quickly be done, you will do: I have 
N agree paper is produced] hopes in you.

Is that fignature the hand-writing of You will hear other circumflanees where 
Bollakey Dofs ? [After looking at itforfom e you are; I am unjuftly oppreffed; you are 
time, Ihewing great difficulty to make it out, the mailer. What elfe fhall I write ? 
he faid,] You  have written about Derrumchund;

A. I f  I fee the original paper from which therefore he and I acquittal have fettled, 
I  copied, I can read it. which you know ; belTdes this, nothing

£). A re the words at the bottom Bollakey refpe&ing Hate is unknown to you ; accord- 
D o fs ’s hand-writing ? ingly you have told, and what you lay 1
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pay great attention. The Company’s money A. One o f the fignatures is mine : I  can* 
t\eing received, out o f it rupees two thou- not tell whofe the other is exactly, 
fand, out o f that felf will give. I am not H ave you often feen him write ?
difobedient to your orders. A. I have.

A t this time from the fide o f expences Are you acquainted with his hand*
much trouble is ; therefore rupees five hun- writing ?
dred you bellow upon me* then I w ill give it A . I have many papers o f his writing, 
with the reft. Bulinels quickly w ill be done ^  Do you believe this to be his ? s
there firft will give. Brother Pudmohun A, It is my opinion it is n o t ; i f  you will
Dofs is going; you will be acquainted with order me, I w ill bring another paper o f Pud- 
other circumftances by him ; you are a mohun Dofs’s hand-writing, 
mailer o f every thing. A t this time you
have considered everyth in g ; and who, ex- L uchmun Doss*
cept yourfelf, will do it ? What' other re- n  . . .
prefentation lhall I write ? There is no more. . cnow the hand-writing o f your
1 brother Pudmohun Dofs ?

In the year 1826- In Jente the 26th A . I do.
Tuefday. J b  Is the fignature his writing ?

Signature, B o llakey  D oss. yc T|Li^ ,
S'. W ho wrote all the paper ?

You are my m ailer; it is. neceffary you A. It  is all his writing.
Ihould make enquiries about me at this [Nagree paper fixed and marked exhibit M ,
time. The circumftance above written, o f which the following is a tranflate.] 
you will make yourfelf acquainted with.

A ccounts.
M r. Elliot. In tranflating the Nagree R s. A s. 

paperexhibit L . I at firft wrote, “  your- 66 ,320 7 Amount o f a bond
f e l f b u t  as the Counfel for the P r i l b n e r ----------------- -
delired I would tranflate it literally, and char- 50,488 7 One time
ged me not to deviate in the fmalleft degree 10 ,9 20  One time
from the words and idiom o f the original, I -----------------
have now written “  felf,”  the word fignify- 6 1,408  7
ing only “ felf.”  The Moonlhy underftands 4*S>12  Batta at 8 R s.
it as meaning the perfon to whom it was 60,000 One time Durbar and other
written: I fear the tranflation will fcarcely be expences *
underftood. 1 1 ,3 6 2  8 A  bond on account o f  a

r t t tvt t? f mortgaged houfe.
J U N E  1 2th, 17 7 5 , 2 ,5 5 2  Ready calh 2200 R s.

L utchmun D oss. 59^ 2 On account o f  Dearcani
D O you  know Mohun Perfaud? ____________ , ChUn d G h eeT aw n 5 s 7 R s.

A. I  do. 140 ,804 1
f  Djd you know Pudmohun Dofs? ' j ,o o o  Paid by Chitonaute at: one
^.Pudm ohun Dofs was my elder brother: ' time, i  coo

'tfmy Ihould not I  know him ? T l QO
J

M ohun P ersatjd, 1 4 5 ,8 0 4 ” 1

^  ^ is  your hand-writing ? ^ Tom ulook
A. It is. 73)435 4 bonds 20000, 20000
Jib  Is that the fignature o f Pudmohun Dofs? *<3435 Khut
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5 s- A s ‘ /-pi Khut’ have very valuable cloths: a poor man would
6o,ooa Three notes 20,000, 20,000 have a cloth from five to ten rupees over his'

^ Ut- fhoulders.
10,000 Qnejiote ^10,000 ;  4  Is there any thing particular in the

x> Tomufoolc. form 0f  t he drefs o f thofe who attend them?
1 43>435 Bonds 8 . A. They wear their dooty, and throw a

2 ,3 6 9 1  Current rupees remain due cloth,over their fhoulders.
^  What is their dooty?

1 /c . n d . The cloth which common fircars tie
(Signed) round their loins.

MoHUN PeRSAUD,. 6) Arp tViprP omr 1 * •^  __ <• -̂ -re tnere any more particularities at-
P udmohun Doss, tending their burial?

v  l • T . * i N o . .K issen J uan D oss. ^ t u * j
^  TT r t> a 1 r  • , %  In what manner do they carry out a
&  Have y°u fcen Pudmohun Dofs write? Muffulman to be buried?
A. I have. . . A. He wears his own cloths: when they
ijh Do you know his hand w riting. carry a rich man, a fine drefs is wore: the
A> I do. . . drefs o f a poor man is not more than two ru-

Look at this paper: is it Pudmohun pees#1
Dofs s hand writing? 6). Are they always carried on a cot?

wm. ls- A. They throw a cloth over his body: I do
J o v deb C howbee. no not know exactly the manner. *

Court. Are you fure you faw Mahomed <2. What was Mahomed Commaul? 
Commaul carried out o f Ma.ha Rajah Nun- ■ A. A  Muffulman.'
docomar’js houfe to’ be buried ? W hat cloths hadhe when he was carried

A. I heard.it with my own ears that M a- out? 
homed Commaul was dead, and faw them A. They throw the fame cloth over a 
carrying him out to be. buried. Muffulman as over a Bramin.

6). Are not the cuftoms of burying M uf- %  W as you to fee a man-carried out to be
fulmen and Gentoos very different? ‘ buried, attended by Muffulrnen, ihould you

A. They are : I who am a Bramin will not know whether he was a Bramin or a Mufful- 
go near a Muffulman that is dead. .man? /

6). H ow  do they carry out a Bramin? A. I faw from far he was a Muffulman 3 J
A. When a Bramin dies, they either put fhould. know by Bramins being with him, if 

• •him on a cot, or fticks laid in the form o f a he was a Bramin, and becaule the Gentoo is 
e o t : they put a cloth over his body, and lie about the neck of a Bramin.
is carried out on the; ihoulders o f eight or [Queftion repeated.] ■ ■
ten men> A. I fhould know it was a Muffulman,

& Is ffiere any thing elfe particular in the becaufe the Jamma is tied on the right fide. 
•■ BttSl o f a Bramin ? . ^  Do you mean the Jamma of the de- •

A. When a Bramin dies, all his relations ceafed, or o f his attendants. 
and friends, and all the other perfons o f the , A. J  mean of the people, 
village, go to him : he is carried on the ^  Was you to fee Muffulmen attending a 
fhoulders o f eight men, and about twenty; cprp^ fliQuki you-know it 
other people go with h im : they carry him A. I Ihould conceive it to be a i/Iullu.maa.
to the river fide and place-him on wood, certainly. ,
which h» L ,  i f h . h l n y ,  rets fire to. fi, W h «  perfons were attend,»g the bodjr

S ;  Are there any other part, co k r marks away the Body; I
'to diftinguifli the burial o f a Bramin.  ̂ t >1 1 *ni

A. There are particulars in their drefs ac- do not know who attended.him., Y q ^
cording to their ran k : if  a rich man, he may
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6). You fay you know Mufiulmen from ^  W ho witnefled the bond you faw Boh 
■ Bramins at a great diftance: were the perfons lakey Dofs execute? 

attending Mahomed Commaul’s corps M uf- A. Mahomed Commaul, Seilabut andM a-
fulmen or Bramins ? theb Roy. >

A. Mufiulmen. § Q  Did you fee them witnefs it?
£  Do you mean when you firft faw the A. Yes, I did with my own eyes, 

body carried out? W hat was the amount o f the bond?
A. I  .mean when I  firft faw the body car- A. Above forty, and within fifty thoufand 

ried out; rupees,
^  Was you fure they were Mufiulmen? ^  W here is the Mahomed Commaul you 
A. I can fpeak with certainty. faw witnefs the bond?

If, as foon as you faw the body come A . H is houfe was at M uxadavad; when 
out, you faw it was attended by Mufiulmen, he witnefled the bond he ftaid here fome time, 
how came you to afk whether it was a Bra- and afterwards went home, 
min or a Mufliilman ? # ^  W here is he now?

A . I never afked whether it was a Bramin A, H e is now dead, 
or a Mufliilman. - j| |  D id any other perfon witnefs the bond ?

6). Was it becaufe you knew him to be A- N o other than Mahomed Commaul, 
a Mufliilman that you did not afk the Matheb R o y  and Seilabut. 
queftion? Q  Do you know one Commaul O ’ Dien

A. I  did not afk : I heard Mahomed Com- Cawn ? 
maul was dead, and I faw Mufiulmen attend- A. Yes.
ing the body. Is he the fame perfon that witnefled the

f| . Did you hear, at that time, or before, bond? 
that he was dead? A. N o ; this is Commaul O’ D ienj that

A . I heard before. was Mahomed Commaul.
j^. What was the name o f the man ? Q  Do you know that paper?
A1 Mahomed Commaul.

Are you very fure? [Exh ibit M .]
A . Yes. A . Y es.

A re  you fure he had not “  A lly ”  to his j|J. W hat is it?
name? A . A n account.

A. H e went by the name o f Mahomed <§. Can you read it?
Cotnmaul: I never heard o f any other name A. Yes.
he had. Court. Read part o f  it. [H e did fo .] f\  ®>

W as you prefent w hea the account was 
[M r. E lliot informs the Court, that the fettled?

W ord Oblahu on the Seal is no part o f the Al. I  es.
Nam e, but means the Slave o f  G od.] Q  W ho elfe was prefent?

A. I  was prefent, andjoydeb Chowbee, $nd 
C hoyton N aut. Pufludden Gooptbo.

^  T .., , ^ ^  Q  W ho elfe was prefent?
%  D id y °u  know Bollakey Dofs ? -  . A. N o body elfe.
A  t v j  ' . _ ,, , ^  i?- W ho was in the room at the time, be-*
%  Did you ever know Bollakey Dofs exe- fides Joydeb Chowbee, and Puffudden Goop-

cute any bond to M aha Rajah Nundocomar? too?

<5 r U- , Mohnn Perfaud, Gungabilfen, and
%  { ¥  y °u him execute any bond? Pudmohun Dofs.

1  law myfelf, and heard, it,
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Q. Are you fure no body elfe was prefent? in the morninp- and nW  ^  u a

M  M aha NUnd0C° mar'  ™  ^  gabiffen to getPthemindorfed.^Textmornino-
A TXT- ., xt . 1 went to Maha Rajah Nundocomar’s and

J g the gn *¥*»  '» your took the bonds with me to Mohon PeAod's
• * /j npt. r * u u houfe, where I faw Gun&abiHen, Pudmohun

- • m v^refelce CS *  ^  b° tt0m TO'0te P ° fs’ and Mohun Perfaud: I faid to them,
J J w h n r  v  u r , Indorfe the bonds; on which Gungabiflln

. Perf'"d- ^  A p AgnT ^  r , fent f° r Kiflbn J uan Dofs : when he came an
©‘ w t !  Pf f e dS ^  IudlA ° huA D ° fS S> !ndo*m e n t was wrote, written by Kifien Juan
S '  r hM  h IaR S h  NC° Udnt flgnCd' k r P ° fSj and Gungabiffen figned it and delivered 
0  m ?  R  J h Nundocomar s houfe- them to me : I then took them away, and de-
A  In Calcutta hvered them to Maha Rajah Nundocomar.

i?. W as you at Maha Rajah Nundocomar’s 
houfe before the parties came there? Cross E xamination.

A . Y es. Who are you?
W as you prefent when they came? A. Choyton Naut.

J .  Yes. On one day, the three perfons be- 6). What is your bufinefs?
fore-mentioned fettled the account in con- A. I am a Shroff of the Banyan caft
verfation : on another day, two o f them only How long have you been in Calcutta?
were at the houfe or Nundocomar, and figned A. About fifteen years, 
the account. ^  Where did you come from?

. Qs W as there any Company’s bonds at a . I had a houfe at Muxadavad; I have 
either o f thofe times produced by Gunga- one in Calcutta.
biffen, Pudmohun Dofs, and Mohun Perfaud? 6). Have you always refided in Calcutta?

A. Yes. A. I have been to my own houfe, and come
jjb What became o f them ? back again.
A. Pudmohun Dofs gave eight bonds to 6V How often?

Gungabiffen, and Gungabiffen gave them to A. Three or four times.
M aha Rajah. * j^. How long have you ftaid at a time at

Court. T e ll what paired on the occafion. Muxadavad?
A. Upon Gungabiffen’s giving the bonds A. Sometimes one, fometimes two, and 

to Maha Rajah, M aha Rajah faid, You give fometimes four months, 
me thefe bonds inpayment. M aha Rajah told 6). You knew Bollakey Dofs : had you any 

0 Gungabiffen tfl indorfe the bonds, and further bufinefs with him ?
M aha Rajah Nundocomar faid to Gunga- A. I  had no connections in bufinefs w  th 
biffen, Are you fatisfied with this account? him ; I was well acquainted with him ; Bol- 
upon which Gungabiffen replied, I f  any body lakey Dofs had a houfe at M-uxadabad, near 
fiiould call you to an. account about this ac- mine.
count, I will fay, M aha Rajah has nothing to Q. When did Bollakey Dofs die ? 
do with it. Then Gungabiffen took an oath to A. About fix years, more or lefs. 
be anfwerable to his father, brother, and mo- g .  How long had he lived in Calcutta be- 
ther, or any other perfon, i f  they fiiould en- fore that ?
quire about the account: upon which eight A. H e came to Calcutta in 117 2 . 
bonds were delivered to Maha Rajah Nundo- Where did he live in Calcutta?
comar, and he kept them : Gungabiffen faid A. In Huzreymull’s houfe. in the Burrah 
it was late, he would indorfe the bonds in the Suzar, when he firft arrived: he afterwards 
m orning: after they were gone, M aha Rajah lived in feveral other houfc-s^
Nundocomar defired me to come to him early How long did he live in that houfe?

H  4 . 1
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A. I believe, two or three months; I cannot (bond by Bollakey Dofs : was It in his own 
tell for certain. % 'houfe, or where ? ^

Q Do von know what houfe he afterwards A.- Tt was in Hudjeerymull’s houfe, then 
^ J j  t01 } . . inhabited by Bollakey Dofs.

A . To Bogrcry Conty’s houfe, to the eaft- | |  H ow  came you there ? 
ward of Mohun Perfaud’s houfe in the Bur- A. Shack eer Mahomed, Mahomed Comaul, 
rah Buzar; after leaving that houfe, he lived and Joydeb Choubee, and I were prefent at 
in Mohun Perfaud’s houfe, with him. Maha Rajah's : afterwards Bullakey Dofs &.me

9 . You fay you was prefent at the fettle- in, and went to Maha Rajah. Maha Rajah 
mcnt of accounts between Maha Rajah and demanded from Bollakey Dofs the payment 
Bollakey D ofs; at the time of the firfl ad- o f his m oney; Bollakey Dofs anfwered, “  I 
juftment were any books- or accounts pro- have at prefent no money, I -cannot pay it,- I  
duced | will write out a bond/’ Maha Rajah’s Nun-

A. 1 faw no accounts brought. docomar faid, u Very well, write out a bond,
f Were there any the fecond time ? fix your feal to it, and having got it witnefled,

A. Not that I faw. fend it to me.”  Bollakey Dofs then faid,
Was you prefent the whole time ? “  Give me Mahomed Commaul, that he may

A- I was. V go with me, I  wiH give the bond to Maho-
o  What was the balance fettled ? med Comaul, and one o f my own fervants,
A. 2369 r. 1. [This agrees with the ac- and fend it to you.”  Bollakey Dofs having 

count produced.] gotdifmiffion from Maha Rajah Nundocomar,
6)% Was the balance .{truck the firfl: or the went down flairs with Mahomed Com m aul: I 

fecond time ?' likewife got difmiflion, and I, Joydeb Chow-
A. When the faid bonds were delivered to bee, and Shaik eer Mahomed, went down flairs 

Maha Rajah, then the balance was ftruck. together. Mahomed Commaul and Bollakey.
Who wrote the Bengal writing on that Dofs were ftanding there. Bollakey Dofs hav- 

paper? mg got into his palankeen, went to his own
A. Poorfudden-Gooptoo. - houfe; and we four men, half a gurry after-
9  Who is that man? wards, went after him. Bollakey Dofs was
A . H e was a writer to the Maha Rajah. before that fitting in his own houfe; we went 
Qj When did he write the Bengal ac- to him, and fat down by him. Four other people 

count? 1  v were there ; Matheb R oy, Seillabut the writer,
A . Three or four days after. and Diman Sing. Bollakey Dofs faid to the

Where is the man ? writer, J f  W rite out a bond in the name o f
Ak In Calcutta. Maha Rajah Nundocomar.”  H e wrote it in %

Who wrote the Nagree writing on the Perfian. H aving wrote it, Bollakey Dofs faid,
paper ? . “  Read it.”  The writer having read it. he Bol-

A. Pudmohun Dofs. . lakey Dofs heard it. Bollakey Dofs faid it
Can you read both Bengal and Nagree ? was good. Mahomed Commaul faid it is 

A. No. • good. Bollakey Dofs had a ring upon
Did yon fee Pudmohun Dofs write it ? his finger: he took it off, and fealed it with 

A. 1 did. ' his own hand: he then faid to Mahomed
^  W hat fort of a man is Pudmohun Commaul, Do you affix your feal as a witnefs: 

Gcoptoo ? . v- he then faid to Matheb Roy, “  Do you fix the
A. A thin man, o f a yellow colour. feal- o f teftimony to i t : ”  he then faid to ,

You fay Kiflen Juan Dofs indorfed fome Seillabut, “  Do you write teftimony to this :”  
bonds: Do you know what bonds? he wrote, and both o f them fealed .Bollakey

A. The Company’s bonds. Dofs put the bond into the hands o f iVf ho-
Was any body el(e prefent ? I med Commaul, and he. faid to Seillabut, Do

A. Nobody dfe was prefent. I you go along with him, and both o f you
6). You fay you was prefent at executing a deliver
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• # 1 ®  tbe bond f  Maha Rajah Nundoco- | g  Do vou remember Matbeb Roy >
mar. Having taken the bond, they both A . I did not know him '

h° Ufe- %  Are You a fervant of the Maha Rajah ?
' A  I can Z - Z  f  Perfian ?- „  *  1  was formerly a fervant of the Maha

±  Iwcan neither read n° r ™  ^  ; Rajah i I am not now, he is out of 'employ-
^ as y°^ acquainted with Seilabut ? ment; I am yet in hopes ' ' P '

A  I w as: he was Vakeel o f Bollakey Dofs. ^  What are your hopes ?
t j ° W °  V  i; . . 1  hat 1 fhall obtain feme employment;

from , t-irae,aonS ' Vlth Bollakey Dofs: I was once the Nabob’s Huffanchee, [( afh-
T  w l T ,  s 5? !T  ? im- J  ' rkf P er^  1 was « f e  the Maha Rajah’s3b W here is Seilabut now ? Huflanchee. '
. A\ I d f 2  know where he i s : I heard he 4  w ^at reafon have you to hope for an 

■ went with Mohun Perfaud to Jaggernaut* and employment ?
that upon return he died. A. I have no reafon. Maha Rajah is a great

y  ^ h a t  fort of a man was he ? man, a man of confequence ; 1 am in hopes
A. JNot a very whitifh man, nor a very old he may get me employment.

^  How long have you had thofe hopes ?
' W as y °u acquainted with Mahomed A. From the time the Maha Rajah has 
Com aul? been out of employment; I have gone every
. A. I  ufed to go to Muxadabad: he was at two or three days to his houfe : he'fays, Very 
that time the fervant o f the Keblagaw, or fa- well, when I am in employment I will get 
ther o f Maha Rajah Nundocomar. fomething for you.

^  In what capacity did he ferve him ? i^. Where was Matheb Roy born, and.what
si. A  Muflaheb. [companion.] * is his employment ?

How long ago is that ? A. Matheb Roy’s was in the diftridt of
A, Formerly; I don’t know how long ago. Burdwan. I do not know what his employ- 

Did you know him in Calcutta ? ment w a s : he ufed to come once in two or
A . I did: when Maha Rajah’s father died, three days to Maha Rajah Nundocomar’s 

he came to Maha Rajah’s in Calcutta, houfe.
When did that happen ? ^  Had he much refpedt Ihewn him at

A. 1 do not recolleft. Maha Rajah Nundocomar’s houfe ?
When did he come to Calcutta ? A. Not much.

A. Id o  not remember the exprefs period; Did Matheb Roy underftand Perfian ?
it was in the Bengal year 1 17 2 . A, 1 don’t know whether he read Perfian or

’ # * W as he a very black man ? not; he had a Perfian ring upon his finger.
A. Not very black. What fort of a feal was Matheb Roy’s ?
^  W as he tall orfhort? A. Neither very large, nor fmall 5 a
A. O f a middling height, neither very tall four-cornered feal. 

nor very fhort. Q. Did you ever fee him write Perfian?
O f what age was he ? A . 1 never faw him.

A. Within 3 5 , that is about 33 , or 34, Q  Did Mahomed Comaul underfiand Per- 
when‘ he arrived at C alcutta. fian ?

Where is he now ? A. I  do not know. He had alfo a 1 erfian
rr ji. H e died in Calcutta. feal on his finger.

gy In what houfe ? Q  What fhape was it?
A. I do, not know, I heard that he died in A. It was alfo a four-cornered feal, but 

Calcutta. ^  ^  fmaller than the other. .
^  H ow  long ago ? Did Bollakey Dofs wear a feal upon his
A. It might be five or fix years ago. finger?

H  2 ^  He
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^ H t M o n e . '  . Tht: Court, drfirom o f elucitoing ever7
6) O f what fhape was It ? Part ° f  wltnefs s evidence, alked Mr. E l-

A RiwWamieVeal liot, ‘  i f  he was certain that the witnefs under-
■ i> O f what fize ? flood him. M r. Elliot anfwered, “  The wit-
A  Neither very laFge, nor very (mail. nefs feems to underftand what I have faid per- 
© Do you know^he fum o f the bond fettly w e ll; he linderftands Moors as well as 

you faw executed ? any perfon I have examined here in that Ian-
A  It was above forty and under fifty thou- guage. N . B. The man had defired to e 

fand* rupees. examined in Bengal, alledging that he did not
^  How do you know that ? underftand Moors well*
A . When the bond was read before Bol-

3 a key Dofs, in the houfe of Bollakey Dofs, Meffieurs E l l io t , J ackson, and J ebb  fworn.
I alked Bollakey Dofs, as I did not under­
ftand Perfian, what was the amount: he told M r, E llio t ,
frq between forty and fifty thoufand rupees.

Was it mentioned in the houfe of Bol- The man feems to underftand-what I faid 
lafeey Dofs, at the time o f executing the perfectly well. I have no doubt of his under- 
bond, that it was for that fum ? ftanding me : he feems to me to underftand

Al I cannot fay, I do not remember w e ll: it Moors as well as any man I have examined, 
was between forty and fifty thoufand rupees, and fpeaks it more grammatically than com- 

Was it mentioned at that time ? mon Bengalers do : I am fure he underftood
A . I do not remember, 1 don’t know. the queftions I alked refpedting the fum.
£>.- H ow come you then to know it ?
A. Bollakey Dofs ordered the writer to read M r. J ackson .

it • I heard it, and remember that. ' .
Q. Did the writer read the whole bond ? W hen Mr. Elliot began to examine this
A. He did from beginning to end. witnefs, he defired me to give particular at-
Q. Was it only from hearing it read, that tention, during the examination, to- the evi-

vou knew the amount ? • dence he gave with regard to the precifenefs
- A. I knew it from no other reafon •, I  heard o f the interpretation. I dicj. fo, and confirm
of the bond at Maha Rajah’s before. • what Mr. Elliot has faid in  every particular.

Did you hear the fum at that time?
A  No. I  i Mi*. J e b b .

f  ? "  S ? ' angUaS'  WaS !t read ? The witnefs perfeftly underftood M r. E llio t; •*
%  Was it read more than once J . .  he underfcmds Moots perfeaiy.

/  A;  I remember no more tJan once. . M r.W efton, one o f the Ju ry , well con-
%  y  as it read in any other language ? fc fai£ in the ianguage, being alked whether 
A  I do not remember that it was he ht the w6itnefs underftood M r. Elliot,

W hat is Perfian for-forty thoufand? anfwered°  he certainly underftood him, he 
J  H ow Ihould I fay ? 1 do -not underftand underftands Moors perfectly well, and fpeaks

, • ,  a a  i p  p a it better than he does Bengally.gh Ir you did not underftand1 Perfian, and
only knew the fum of the bond from its be- Mr. Jebb  interpreted to him, in Bengally, 
ing read in Perfian, then how can you tell all the queftions that had been put to him in
the amount of the bond ? Moors, refpedting the fum of the bond, to

A. You have fworn me upon the water of which he anfwered, 
the G anges: how can I tell more than I re- A. When the bond was read in Perfian by 
Bomber? Bollakey Dofs, as I did not underftand Perfian,
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I afked the amount of the bond, and Bollakey A. I fhould.
Dofs told me it was more than forty thoufand f t  Should you know that of Matheb Roy?
and under fifty thoufand rupees. A. I fhould. 7 *

f t  Did Bollakey Dofs do any thing more f t  By what means fhould you know Bob 
than put his feal to it ? lakey Dofs’s feal ?

%  A. I took particular notice of it, at that
f t  Did the others ? time, and fhould know it.

Both the witneffes, whofe feals are there, f t  Should you know it upon any paper ?
^  wrote fomething over their feals. A. Not upon any other paper; upon the

f t  Do you know what they wrote ? bond 1 fhould.
A. N o. f t  When the Mohurir read the Perfian
f t  Did they write much ? bond, was Bollakey attentive ?

No. , -A* He liftened with attention,
f t  Have you Bollakey Dofs’ s feal ? f t  When he faid, Very well, did he appear
A  No : the papers fe-aled were in the pof- fatisfied ? 

feffion of Pudmohun Dofs. A. He feemed, I thought, pleafed and con*
f t  Did Maha Rajah readily agree to take tented, 

the bond ? f t  W hat was the fize of the bond ?
A. H e did. A. I have taken an oath ; I.cannot fpeak
f t  Was he afked mote than once to take with certainty: if I was. to fee the bond, I 

it ? fhould know it.
A. M aha Rajah prefled him to give mo- f t  Do not you recoiled the fize ?

ney j he faid, he could not give money, but A  l do no:; I  have taken an oath,
that he would give a bond. f t  H ow come you to remember that one

f t  Did Maha Rajah, without repetition, or o f the feals was fmaller than the other ? 
preffing, agree to take it ? A  W ith my own eyes I faw that the feal of

A . He did. Mahomed Commaul was fmaller than that of
6). Did Bollakey Dofs put his hands toge- Matheb Roy. 

ther in a fupplicating pofture ? f t  Did you not fee the bond with your
A. H e put his hands thus, [joining them], own eyes ? .

and faid, I cannot pay money,* take my bond; A. I law the bond ; I  faw alfo the feal. 
and he agreed to it. ' f t  W hat was the fize o f it?

^  In what room of Bollakey Dofs’s was A. H ow can I remember? a bond may b ®
the bond executed ? large, or it may be fmall.

* * A. In the room where he fits ;■  a long [A  bond fhewn him.]
room. I Iplf ^ is  W

9 . W ho produced the ink ? ^  No.
A. Bollakey Dofs went half a gurry be- f t .  Was it larger or fmaller than that?

fore : when we came, a' Sicca dewat was by A. Shew me the bond, and I fhall be able
h im ; nobody went for it. *' to tell. .

' W hat fort o f an ink-fland ? f t  How can you know that bond-, from'
A . l\ lilver oftagon Sicca dew at; it w as another by the impreffion of the leal, a you 

neithev large nor fmall. do not know thofe feals upon another paper
6). Do you re m e' ber Bollakey Dofs’s feal > A. There is Sielabut’s hand writing, and 

' A . I f  I was to fee it, 1 fhould know it. two feals befides Bollakey Dofs s : by thefe 
Snould'you know the impreffion ? marks I know it. _

2  [ fhould..' [A n impreffion fhewn hunof Matheb R o y  s
Should you know the impreffion of feal.]

Mahomed Commaul’s, if  you faw it ? &
\ || . * |; -NJ
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9 . Do you know this? A. he is here. __ . . .  r  ,
1  I do know it. &  Is Commaul O Dien A lly  Cawn the
TAn impreffion o f the feal o f Commaul man you mentioned by the name o f M aho-

O ’Dien Ihewn him.] med Commaul ?
9  Do you know this? A. That was another m an: I faw him be-
A. I do not know it. fore I faw this now.

L ox-i.au D oman S ing, called and fworn. Cross E xamination .

9 . Did you know Bollakey Dofs ? 9 s W hat are you ?
A  I did. « A. I am in fervice.
9  Did you ever know Bollakey Dofs exe- ^  W hofe fervice are you in now? 

cute any bond? * i  $■  I go through queftion and anfwerwith
A. How can I know any thing o f former R oy Radachurn: [the fon-in-law o f M ah aR a- 

works’? jah Nundocomar] I am in his fervice.
‘ [Queftion repeated.] . . 9 s W hat do you mean by going, through

9  This I have feen. queftion and anfwer with R oy Radachurn?
^  [Queftion again repeated.] A. I go through queftion and anfwer with
A. Yes, I did fee him one time. Rajah Buflan Roy.

" Do you recoiled: at what time you faw 9 . W hat do you mean by going through 
him execute a-bond? queftion and anfwer?

A. 1 do not remember the date. A, W hen Rajah Buflan R oy fends letters,
G). Do you mean the particular day or I deliver them to the Governor, or General, 

particular time ? and get the anfwers.
A. It is ten years age: how fhould I re- . [Queftion repeated.]

member the time ? A. I can fay no more.
9J  In whofe name, or for whom, was the Court. [To M r. Elliot. ] W hat do you un­

bond you faw executed? "  . derftand by queftion and anfwer? .
A. In my prefence he wrote a bond in the A. I underhand the words he makes ufe o f 

name of Maha Rajah Nundocomar. (Jew aub Sowaul) to be a conversation: it is
9 . Did you fee him execute it? commonly ufed for an examination, but is
A. I did with my own eyes. never applied to a correfpondence.
9 . Were there any witnefies to the bond 9 s W ho is R aja  Buflan R oy? 

you faw executed? - [M r. E llio t fays he was the perfon men-
A. There were. tioned by Commaul O’ Dien Cawn, as a rela-
9 . Who were they? N tion o f Ram narrainiRoy.]
A. One Mahomed Commaul, one Matheb 9s H ow  long have you been in the fervice 

H oy, and Seilabut. o f R oy Radachurn ?_
Did you fee them witnefs it? A. Eighteen or nineteen months.

A. Y e s ; I did. - 9 s H ow  often have you been in Calcutta?
9 j  Do you remember the amount o f the A. I  have often been in Calcutta, 

bond ? jjh W here was you born?
A. It is ten or twelve years ago, it is im- A. At Patna,

poflible to tell exactly: I can tell by guefs. 9 s W hen did you firft come to Calcutta?
9  ̂ T e ll by guefs. g l  . A. In the year 1 1 7 2 .
A. I  think forty-fix or forty-eight thoufand 9 s W ith whom did you come ? 

rupees. £  A . I came alone.
9 s L id  you know a perfon o f the name o f 9s Whofe fervafit was you when you firft 

Commaul O’ Dien A lly  Cawn? came?
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- A '  I  was in the fervice o f Rajah Derrick I 0 . Who was orefrar „  ,i,»
Narrain. , J \ vu WdS Prelent at the execution of

3 = Into whole fervice did you enter when Matheb Roy, Salib,tt'

i  ™  down. I  ?

f e  y“ f s t c ye“ e T d "  ? $  ^ h a , was his nanref

J k  ,T° M» »  enter at his |  d 'S 7 ^
win , v , T A - I have forgot.

i  t f g z s h r ? * *

| H o w t n g  did you ftay at Patna? US knCW thCm *“ «”'> lg  *
f ' .  ,W pCn thre Governor, M r. Haftings, How long did you know Mahomed

went to Banarifs, I  went with him : I then Commaul ?
came to Patna, ftaid there as long as the Go- A. I did not know him before I ufed to. 
yernor did, and then returned to Calcutta: fee him fometimes at the houfe of Maha 
it was a month more than two years. Rajah.

<£. W hat were you employed in, all the Did the writer belong to Bollakey Dofs?
eight years from your coming to Calcutta ? J .  I do not know.

A. I was.in the fervice of Rajah Derrick. %  How came you to the houfe of Bollakev- 
H ow  was you employed? - Dofs that day ?

A. I  returned to Patna in 1 17 2 , in the A. I ufed now and then to g o ; it happened 
month o f Carteckt, a particular feaft o f the I went then.
Hindoos. - J^. Had you any particular reafon to go ?

Can you read Perfian? si. I went by chance : as I ufed to go be-*
A. I can. fore, fo I went then.

I n what month was you here? Who was there when you went ?
A. I do not remember whether it was in A.. Matheb Roy and Seilabut.

Byfack, or in Joite, it was one o f them : it What time o f the day was it?.,
was in the rainy feafon. yi. Before mid-day.

, •  ^  W hat buflnefs did you come to Calcut- Was . any other perfon in the room
taupon? _ when you went ?

A. I was fent to Maha Rajah Nundocomar. A.. No body but Matheb Roy and Sie-
W hat houfe did you live in at Calcutta? labut.

A. A t Joorabadun. ■ * ‘ Was it near mid-day when you went ?
Where did you fee this bond executed A. It was.

that you fpeak o f ? , j^. Was Matheb Roy and Sielabut in the
A- A t the houfe o f Huzzrey M ull. room that the* bond was executed in ?

Did Huzzrey M ull live in the houfe ? A. They were.
A . Bollakey Dofs lived there. J9 . Was Bollakey Dofs there when you

H ow  came, you in the houfe ? firft came ?
A. I frequently went backwards and for- *AL No. 

wards there. i?. W as'the writer there ?
W hat kind o f a man was Bollakey Dofs? A. No.

A* O f a yellow, colour, and old, When did Bollakey Dofs. come ?
A*
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A. It  might be one gurree, or one gurree A , H e was not o f fo much rank that he 
# n d a  half, that I'was there before he came, lliouidm ake fo much noife.

9 . Did any one come to them before Bol- i W h e n  did the writer come in ? 
jakey Dofs came ? • A. When Bollakey Dofs came into the

A t N o, '  houfe, he fat down, and ordered the writer to
£). Who came with Bo1 lakey Dofs ? be called.
A. He came alone, only his kidmutgar. Q. W ho did Bollakey Dofs fend for the 
<j$L Did any one elfe come with him ? writer? p
A % No. I  p  A . H is kidmutgar.

What did he d.o when he came? did he t|| W hat did he lay to him ? . 
jpeak to you ? # /L  It is long ago : I do not remember.

A, H e did not fpeak to any body : he H ow  long was it before the writer
took o ff his clothes and fat down. came ?

6). When did the writer come ? A. I do not know exaftly, it was a little
A. After Bollakey Dofs had arrived, half time, 

a gurree after Mahomed Commaul and the ijk Did they mention his name ? 
others came. A. 1  do not remember their fending for

Q. Did they come hefore the writer, or the writer by name.
after ? ...........................  by the Jury. D id the writer live in the

A. When Bollakey Dofs arrived, he called houie, or out o f the houfe ? 
for the writer,, and the writer firfl arrived. A . I do not know. •

ijk Did any converfation pafs between the Could Seiiabut write Perfian?
writer and Bollakey Dofs ? - . 4 . H e could.

A. N o converfation palled. J p  Did Bollakey Dofs, fend for the writer
i^. Do you know that for certain ? directly when he came into the room ?
a . I tell it for certainty. . . A . N o, he fat down ;a little;,, faid a few
Q. Are you very pofitive there was , no words, and then fent for him. 

converfation between Bollakey Dofs and the H ow  long.?
writer ? A. H e fat down, fpoke two or four words

A. There was no queftion and anfwer to Seiiabut, then fent for the writer, 
between them j there was no words between W hat did he fay to the writer ?
them. - A. After his arrival Mahomed Commaul

Q. When Bollakey Dofs came into the and the other perfons before mentioned came, 
houie, did he come diredtly into the room Did Bollakey Dofs give any directions
where you were ? - to the writer before they came in ?

A. H e came* direCtly to the place where A. A fter they came, he ordered him  to 
&e write..

Are you fure he-went to no other room ? D id he before ?
A. I  was fitting in the place where Bolla- A. N o orders were given before they came,

jtey Dofs afterwards fa t : I  faw him fit down. W hat did he order him to write ?
Did you fee him enter the doors and A . A fter they came, Bollakey Dofs .gave

come up flairs ? ̂  directions to the w riter..
I was fitting above flairs.^ I did not W hat directions did he give ?

ee him come up flairs, or come into the A . W hat the writer wrote in the bond',
doors o f the houfe. * W hat was that ?

id he come in a palankeen? . A . I do not rem em ber; it may be feen in
A. 1 was within 5 Id i^ n o tfee . ^ the bond.
^  D id you hear the noife o f Sewarry ? Do you remember what Bpllakey Dofs

told the writer ?
A. H e
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• f  IS t0ld him the fubj eft o f the bond ^  Who fealed the bond firft >
& w °K °r,  angl[age;  A- Mahomed Commaui.
%  W hat was that? . . . . %  Are you certain ?
A. I do not remember; it is what is in the //. I was and fnAJU l *

bond : if  I  remember'd it, why ihonld I keep %  Are you ctm “ V  h" ” '
t ■ ^ . I f a y  fo.

Q  Do you remember nothing that was in £). Who fealed next ?
,tic/bond? A . MathebRoy. .

A, I know nothing at all, not a word. Do you fpeak with certainty?
H ow  long was the writer writing the A. I do fpeak with certaintv 

bond?AL %  Who fealed next ? '
A. About a gurry. ' _ A. Seillabut then figned.
Qz Did Bollakey Dofs repeat once or twice, <̂ . Are you certain ?

or how often, what was to be wrote in the A. I a m ;  I fpeak with certainty.
bond ■ . . T t  , Qs Are you fare, that nobody elfe wrote

A. As rar as I can recollect, he told him to after Seillabut?
write a bond, to this particular purpofe; and A. Nobody elfe wrote but Seillabut and 
then direfted what he was to write. the writer.

W hat was the fam ? Did nobody elfe ufe a pen ?
A. About 47 or 4*!,000 rupees. A. N o : nobody elfe.

Was any mention o f interefl, or any W h at! nobody but Seillabut and: the
thing elfe, in the bond ? W riter?

A. I do not well remember. A. No.
Do you remember at all ? SK W hat place was the bond fealed in?

A. I do not. A, As is cuftomary in Perfian bonds.
After the bond was wrote, whatpaffed? Q  What is thatcuftom?

A. H aving prepared and finifhed it, he put A. They write this way (obliquely). The
it in the hands of Bollakey Dofs. Bollakey right hand is the place for the feals.
Dofs returned it to him, and.faid, Do you ^  Show the pofition of the feals on paper, 
read it over ; he then read it once in Perfiap, A. The bond was wrote obliquely, from
and gave it to Bollakey Dofs. right hand to le ft ; the feals in a line, on the

£>. W as it read more than once ? margin.
A . It was not. Whereabouts did Seillabut fign ?
gK Are you fare it was read in Perfian ? A. Near Mahomed Commaul’s feal, he 

• * A. I am, figned it.
6). Did any thing farther pafs ? ^  Do you know Bollakey Dofs’s feal ?
A. Mahomed Commaui was fitting next to A. I do.

Bollakey D o fs : he faid, Do you witnefs Ma- £>. H ow  do you know it ?
homed Commaui put his fe a l: he faid to Ma- A. I knew it, becaufe he ufed to write let-
theb Roy, Do you likewife witnefs i t ; and he ters to my former matter Roy Derrick, 
fealed i t : he likewife faid to Seillabut, Do Q  Do you know Mahomed Commaul’s 
you likewife witnefs th is; and he figned it. feal ?. •

©. Did any body elfe write on the bond ? A. I do : I frequently faw it on his finger.
A. Nobody elfe. Q  Should you know it, if  on any other
Q. Did Bollakee Dofs feal the bond ? paper than the bond. ?
A. H e did. A. I  certainly fhould know the impreffion
©. When did he feal it? o f the feal wherever I f aw it.
A. H e firft put his feal to it, and then the g j  What lhape is ft ? 

witnefles. A' A  four-cornered feaL
\ 1 (*. How
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g ,  How often 'did you fee M.homed Com- i U ^ b e f o r e  fiid , Shew me the bond, and 

maul before he ligncd this deed . fome. 0 . W ill you fay, whether you Ihould

4  “  « the bond>
J *  x^nnot 'count how often I have feen A. W hat I know I fay : i f  you fliew me 
A. I cann the j  j  fhould know the feals.

hlI% Have you feen him twice > . 4  W hat fize was Matheb Roy's feal?
J  l cannot fay I have feen him twice. A.. It was larger than the, feal o f M aho­

u t  Ihould I fay twice? 1 have feen him med Commaul. [A  paper given him to de- 
 ̂ . - fcribe on.]

m7  Did f lu  often fee his feal ? §  Shew how large the feal was.
J .  1 ufed to fee it on his fingers. A  I am not a feal-cutter. H ow fhould I
6). Did you ever take it off his finger, and mark it ? H aving fworn, 1 will fay what I re- 

, * .. 5 member ; I cannot lay what 1 do not.
eXT T h a v e  feen the feal on his finger. I never ^  M aking a mark is not fpeaking words, 
took it off to examine it. W hy fhould 1 take [H e is again afked to make a mark.] 
off the feal o f another man ? _ Wne/s. Obferve that you order. me to

6>. Then you never -did take it off to exa- make a mark. ' •
jt ? [H e makes a mark near the fize o f  the

At I did not. Why fhould I take the feal. feal.] 
o f another man ? . &  W hat was the fhape o f Bollakey Dofs s

&. Do you mean that, if  you faw the im feal ? 
preffion, you fhould be able to read the name; A. A  Buddamee feal. 
or fhould you know it from any other circum- M  H ow  large was that fe a l. 
fiance ? A. N ot very large, nor very fmall.
■ A. When I fee it, I  will think o f it. 1 W ho brought the inkflahd ?

fhall’ be able to tell. A. H is Kirmutgar. . .
r Queftion repeated *, no ainfwer could J| |  Are you certain, he brought it in .

be obtained. A. Very certain. :
The queftion was feveral times repeated, Q. W as he fent for it ?

but no anfwer could be procured.] A. The Kirm utgar brought it.
6) Do you know Matheb Roy's feal ? i^. W as it before Mahomed Commaul or

' A. I know it a little : i f  I was to fee it on the witnefs came ?
the bond, I Ihould know it. A- Before. '

Should you know  it on any other gK W hat was the ficca dewat made o f. 
paper than the bond ? A. Silver.

A. I  ftiall be able to tell when you try Q. W hat fi2e? 
me. A. T h e fize they generally are.

Do you believe you fhould? W hat fize is that?
Interpreter. H e does not chufe to anfwer [H e deferibes by his finger as before de- 

the queftion. I can procure no anfwer from feribed.] 
him. W hat fize is the bond ?
' <$>. Should you know the feals from their A . I remember thereabout half a cubit,

places on the bond, or from the feals them- nearly the fize o f the bond.
felves ? * What was done with the bond ?

- [No anfwer could be procured, A. When the bond was executed, he gave
Queftion repeated,] it to Mahomed Commaul,-whom he fent with

r  Seillahut,
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Seillabut, to g ive  it to Maha Rajah Nundo- A. He fald nothing, 
comar. . . . . Are you fare?

^  Where did the witnefs go to ? A. He did not.
A. A little after the departure of Maho- <£. Did. not Mahomed Commaul fay It was 

med Com maul, and Seillabut, Shaik Maho- very well? 
med, Choyton Naut, and Chowdeb Chow- A. I do not remember, 
bee, having got their admiffion, went away.

• H a lf a gurry after that, I went away too. [H e proves a feal of Bollakey Dofs to three 
W as then any converfation paffed, whilft envelopes, which had been opened, and 

the writer figned the bond ? which the Counfel for the Prifoner offered in
A. Before the writing o f the bond, forrie evidence, but was overruled by the Court, 

converfation paffed between Matheb Roy, there being no fignature from Bollal cey Dofs 
Bollakey Dofs, and myfelf. to the papers inclofed, nor any proof, whole

W hat was it ? hand-writing they were, or that thofe papers
A* I w ill relate to you what I remember, were originally inclofed-in the envelopes , be- 

Bollakey Dofs faid to Seillabut, I have been caufe, if they were allowed to be given in 
to Maha Rajah Nundocomar ; and we have evidence, they might impofe what papers they 
fettled every thing about the jewels. He is pleafed on the Court, by putting them into 
my patron, and I have done according to his the envelopes. The Jury having defired to 
pleafure. For fueh a bnfinefs as this, it is not look at the papers, the Foreman oblerved on 
proper to have any difference with him . I am infpefting them, that it was an infult to their 
therefore to write out a- bond, Seillabut arid underftanding, to offer thofe papers in evi- 
Matheb Roy faid, You  have done right. He dence, as. papers o f the date which they pur* 
is your patron *, it is proper you fhould not ported to be of.]
do any thing contrary to what he fays. After [The Counfel for the Prifoner fpeaking in 
that they called for the writer. a warm and improper manner to the Jury,]

W ere Joydeb Chowbee, and Mahomed Court. This is a manner in which the Jury 
Commaul there ? . ought not, and- fhall not be fpoke to. The

A . N o : they came after. Prifoner ought not to fuffer, from the in-
6). Did you mention- this converfation to temperance of his advocate. You, Gentle* 

any one before ? men of the Jury, ought not to receive any
A. I never did. prejudice to the Prifoner on that account, nor

W as there no mention of thefe jewels from the papers themfelves, which not having 
in the bond ? been admitted in evidence, you fhould not

• * A. It #iay be ; but I do not remember. have feen; and having feen, whatever obfer-
®  W as Bollakey Dofs pleafed 'when the vation you have made, you fhould forget: it

bond was read ? is from what is ^iven in evidence only, that
A . H e was pleafed, and fatisfied. you are to determine. . •
6) Did Bollakey Dofs underftand Perfian ? ‘ Jury. W e will receive no prejudice from 
~A. He muff have underftood Perfian ; he it. W e fhall confider it the, fame, as u

faid it was very well, but he did not write i t ; had not feen it: we will only determine y
and I do not know that he could fpeak it ; I die evidence produced, 
never heard him.

Did you, by any other means, know -M eer Ussud Allv, called.
whether he underftood Perfian'or not ? ^  r r

A. I did not. Did you know Bollakey Dofs feat.
D id Mahomed Commaul fay any A . Yes. Meer Cofhm Ally Cawn font 

thine: ? . . , me with treafure from Rotas to Bollakey& - • j  ^
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Dofs feat. I  delivered the treafure to him, A . Since I  left Shetab R oy, I have entirely
and took his receipt for it. . bee"  °^} fervl^e-

& Where was Bollakey Dofs at that time ? ^  T o  whom have you applied for employ-
A  At a place called Dues Gauty. mefnt fince you came to Calcutta?
& Where is that place ? A - lt  1S now eIg ht Years fince 1  ca™  to
y  To the weftward of Saflerum. Calcutta: I had an interview with M aha R a-
6?' is there any fcal to that receipt ? jah Nundocomar, who promifed me that, God
y  There was: one feal of his to it. willing, when he got employment, I fhould.
& Where has that receipt been ever fince ? Q  W hat employment did you want?

With me ever fince. [H e produced a A. I wanted an appointment under M olauck 
‘paper, wrapped in a wax-cloth, clofely pref- ul Dowlah, that I might receive fome monthly 
led and doubled into the fize o f lefs than an wages. 4
inch fquare, bound tightly down with a firing, g>. When did you firft fee Maha Rajah 
which was cut open, and the paper carefully Nundocomar?
unfolded, and produced as the original re- A* W hen M ajor Munro brought me to 
cejpt -j Calcutta, I firft faw the M aha Rajah.

Did you fee Bollakey Dofs affix his feal Q  H ow  foon did you fee him after you 
to the paper? JM  came to Calcutta?

A* I f you want to know, there is another A . About four days, 
gomaftah o f Bollakey Dofs’s in C o u rt; call A re you fure o f that?
him. 'A . Can there be any advantage in telling

[Queftion repeated.] a lye on this occafion?
A. I  did fee it with my own eyes. ^  In whofe fervice were you before you

How long ago is it ? ferved Shetab Roy?
A . Look at the paper, you will fee the date A . I  was formerly a fervant o f the K ing at

there. ' Delhi when he came to B en gal: I  was after-
Court. You muft give a pofitive anfvver. wards in the fervice o f M eer Coffim A lly , and 
A. It is ten or twelve years ago ; it was in after that with Jaffier A lly . . 

the.time of Coffim Ally. ^  W hen you came from Patna, why did
6). W hat are you at this time? you bring this paper, with you?
A . I am at prefent in no bufinefs: I  come A . N o no; I was atM uxadavad, when hear-

to feek employment in this part o f the ing o f this, affair, I  told to fome body, I had 
country. a paper with Bollakey Dofs’s feal to it.

^  H ow  long have you been here ? W ho did you tell fo ?
A . About two months. ' *  A . I faid no fuch th in g ; I  never heard o f #)

From whence came you laft ? this affair at M uxadavad.
A. From Patna. ^  D id you know any thing o f this affair

What was you there ? when you left Patna?
A. In fervi:e. A. N o.
^  In what capacity ? ' 6). H ow  came you to fay you know this
A . W ith Shittab R o y ; I was Daroga o f affair ? was it at M uxadavad that you told the 

the Mint. man you had this receipt?
Q- W hat was your bufinefs immediately A ., I left M uxadavad in the month o£M a-

before your leaving Patna ? harun.
A• 1 was out o f employment, and obliged Did you mention any thing o f this

t& come here to feek it. paper to any perfon ?
^nce 7° u Patna ? A. N o ; why ftiould I  mention any thing

A. About fix months paft. o f a paper o f my old m ailer’s ?
When was you laft in fervice ?

I &<
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m a h a  r a j a h  ndndocomar , bahader . . 6i
Think well, and fay whether you ever A  I havf* 

mentioned having this paper to the Maha ®  W hv did von f™
Rajah, or to any other perfon? a t 7 d r y J , y you Came from Patna?

%  W hy fhould I tell any one I had fuch a W   ̂ ? atnaLt0 Muxadavad.
receipt? i f  any one can fay that I did I de- before H ' 1 ° / ^  H** T o  been at Muxadavad 
ferve punifhment: I had a receipt o f my old T / T J ' V *  ^  j ime?
,mafter’s in my pofleffion; i f  I had given it to Zedddi ah * ^  ¥ u^adavad on the month
any ohe, and my children had fallen into the run this year f  hC mQnth ofM ahaur- 
handsofm y matter, they would have been flain g> w u  h -,
h c &  W K „ |  bl, „ g  tMs recripi . f

A. M aha Rajah Nundocomar afked if  I J g  In ̂  vfhofe° no^efT^ ofMahaurun. 
had fuch a receipt; I told him I had, and he feafat MuxadavJd? 7° U ^  thc
dehred me to bring it here.- - ^  { left a litde box wkh

A re you very fure you never told any was this paper. 7 *

g i g ! ! ® ? !  tha‘  C° l,ld “ U RS- M g ? f  »  % pr e f e r  che r e -
A. I told no one o f the circumftances o f the A. Yes.

6)^t-Tn.,r j : j  ]\/r i n -’ v i  . j  Did you fend a verbal-or a written^
-rdow did M aha. Rajah know you had a mefTage?’

reCSiPTt? u _  A. I  wrote a note.
A. in  the courfe ofxonverfation, he men- Q  In what language?

tioned to me the circumftances of the perfe- A. M y own was in Perfian.
cution : I  told him I had a paper with a Per- What countrywoman is your wife ?
lian feal to it, and this was the paper. A. Bengal woman 3 a native of this

Can you lhew in Bollakey Dofs’s books country, 
any account o f the receipt o f this money ?• Q. Doe$ your wife underftand Perfian? 

Court. L o o k  for it. # A. N o ;  how fhould ihe ?
^ ^ nef s\ I  Laid I had a receipt o f Bollakey W hat did you write to her in-the note?

S *  ̂j 1S 1S t îe PaBer* A. I wrote to her to fend-the receipt in the
£>. Did you, at that time, tell the Maha Tavuze bauzu.

Rajah any thing more than that you had a W hat is the meaning of Tavuze bauzu? . 
Perfian feal? # ' a . It is what is kept under the jamma,

A. I  faid that I had the impreflion o f the bound round the arm : the receipt was fhut 
' *feal o f Bollakey Dofs. - up in the Tavuze bauzu.

6). W hat did you mean, when afked i f  you Q. What anfwer did your wife fend ?
told^ M aha Raj ah Nundocomar, that you faid AL. She fent the Tavuze bauzu, and a note .
particularly you did not ? informing me Ihe had fent it.

A. I excepted M aha Rajah Nundocomar. 6). Did you read it?
Court to M r. Elliot. D id he or not? A. Does not a man read a note he receives?:
A, H e  did not. 6>. In what language was it wrote?

to witnefs. W hy did you bring the re- A. In Perfian. 
ceiptto  Calcutta? Did fhe write it herfelf?
. A. I  did not bring it to Calcutta; I left it A , Do women know how to write?
at M uxadavad: when I told M aha Rajah I j$>. Does any body in the houfe write Per-
had fuch a receipt, he defired I would fend fian ?
for i t : I fent a fervant o f my own, o f the name A. She would probably fend for a M ulla to 
o f Berzey, to Muxadavad. • read my note, and get the anfwer w rote: I am

£>j H ave you a houfe at Muxadavad? a poor man, and have no fervant o f that fort.



gy Was you ufed to wear this tavuze What is his name?
'Tauzu about your arm ? A. Buzzoo.

A. I formerly did, but fince my mafter was W hat fort o f a man is he ?
gone I threw it into a little box. A. A  poor man ; young, not old, and fhaves

6y W hy did you ? his beard; o f a middling fize, neither fat
A. M y in after, to whom it belonged* be- nor thin, 

ing gone, I threw it into the box; why fhould Is he your fervant, or any otlterc per-
I keep it any longer ? fon’s ?

6). Did you then confider it o f any further A, H e is a RafFeek o f mine ; what I get 
value when your mafter was gone ? he eats with me.

A. When my mafter was gone, I was at ijh I f  he is a RafFeek, why did you before 
Rotafgur, where my mafter had fent me : I fay you fent your fervant ?. 
kept it out of fear. A. H e is called fervant fometimes, fome-;

W hy did not you give it your mafter ? times a rafFeek, and fometimes a brother.
A. I d id : H e faid, Keep ityourfelf, and I H ow  many fervants do you keep?

will take it o f you hereafter: it remained with A. I have likewife a flave b o y ; he and I 
.me. eat rice together. .m  V *

What did the treafure confift of, you H ave you any other fervant ?
carried to Bollakey Dofs ? j A. I have no power to have fervants.

A. They were bags o f rupees which I paid W hat religion are you of?
to Bollakey Dofs. A. A  Mufifulman.

How m*my ? J|j W hat is Buzzoo ?
A. It is impoffible to fay how many bags< A. A  Shaik fM ufliilm an). 

in fo large a fum. There were many bags H ave you ever had any promife for
containing 20CO rupees; fome might contain coming here ?

.more. A. I have not received the fmalleft thing
gK Where did you carry it from ? from h im ; [pointing to the Prifoner] he only
A. Rotafgur. ' ~ faid he would procure me to be a fervant o f,
ijb T o  what place ? the Nabob's. ■
A. I was- carrying it from Rotafgur ' to the gK W hen was you to enter into your em- 

Nabob Coflim A lly  Cawn : he ordered me to ployment at the Nabob's ? 
carry it to Bollakey Dofs. A. W hen die (M aha Rajah) fhould be re-

Where was Bollakey Dofs ? leafed and fent to. his own houfe, he would-
A. In a tent at Doorgauty. give it me.
Qj How far was that from Rotafgur ? A t whofe expence have you lived fin ce#
A. It is 12  cofs from Saftiram, and that is you have been at Calcutta ? 

three days journey to Rotafgur. - A. T he circumftance is th is; I brought'
jjh Who went v/ith you ? fome rupees with me to Calcutta.
A. M y own people. Y ou  have been long out o f employ-
^  H ow  many ? m ent; how have you fubfifted ?
A. i5ohorfem en, and 150  peons. A, I had jewels and valuables; I have fold

Can you produce one ? them all, and by that means maintained m y-
A. I cannot tell where to find one. Some felf. M ajor Munro gave me 2000 rupees, 

are at Muxadavad, fome at Patna, and fome 6). W as Bollakey Dofs the ufual ShrofFof 
? Coffim A lly  Cawn ?

Can t you produce one ? A. If lie  was net, why fhould he pay the
A. How fhould I ? I knov/of none. money to him ?
"V ^ 7̂ ere man- that brought the Did. you know o f Coffim A lly  paying

receipt to you from M uxadavad ? any other fum o f money to Bollakey Dofs ?*
A. In town : I will bring him to-morrow. A* No.
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” * * “ d dld «  1 P*id »  * •  toufe, from , ,  t0  |jcJ
6) -n-. i can’t remember all.

•Ulcl you ever pay any money to Bolla- Q t„ tt/T/A m u  u  
key Dofs for Coffim Ally before ? - fin^  i  \  n”  you been' at Patna

A. I never did. ^ Ŝ etaJ  ^  d‘ed ?
&  How do you know he was a banker > Pll7 ' i  u ^  t0 Calcutca> to

' ^ bills on him from Coffim Ally, menti P ’ “  ^  ot emr !oy-

■ " How fhouldllknowM  was a poor man. T l W  '  '

y .  The rami’ o f t h c ' o f S  Muftoafab: ° W  ,his b“ k>
his name is Moftowaffee. yf. It would likewife have been in this

&  H ow  could the Mufiowaffee fettle the book : I could find ealiet in the other
Nabob s accounts without this receipt? . • ■

A. At that time the country was in great J U N E  i th 177c
troubles: his houfehold was in great diforder, .
and the Nabob ran away. _  "<?6ftion to Mr. F l lio t .,

W hat part of Calcutta do you live in ^fandS? ^  '^ erfian Word ôr fcr!7-

' A- I live on the Subah Buzar. Chekill Hazuar : in Moors it is Cha-
Qs In your own houfe ? 6) w j f  Y* ^
A . In a religious houfe, in which I live for * p  ^ ° ,CO? t - r

nothing. A% X 1S Penfaw. Hazaar in Perfian, and
6) Did von nr nn- knnTT, t] * rr • Putchaa Hazaars in Moors. [Mr. We (ton,

M u xad avad T  5 W  ° f  thlS ^  at ! ne of the W ,  ^ded, that in Bengally the
. ^  2^0 lums were the fame as in Moors ]

M r. Elliot. I cannot be pofitive that he faid n
that he heard it at Mraadavad ; and that miy GoDoaRo.
ferwe to clear up the inconfiitency, in his faying ^  W as you the officer who took Rotaf- 
-he had told no one, as he had not at that time S ur \ 
told the Maha Rajah. A. I was.

^  to M r. Elliot. H ow  long is it fince the ^  What year was it ? 
date of that receipt ? ^  I don’t recolledl the year by the He-

• » A. I believe ten years and two days; but I S)/ra: I  can teh by that of cur Lord : it was
cannot be certain without calculating. in 1 7 64.

Q  When did Colfim Ally leave Rotargur ?
K issen Tuan Doss. . A% * cannot afeertain when he left i t : 1 be-

~ ^  lieve he never was there: h$ was not there
Vo you know any thing of this tranf- when I took it.
§T i?. Was you at the battle of Muxat ?

^ N oV  J A  No.
Meer UJfud Alh. You  were prefent when ^  When was it fought ? 

the money was paid. yf. Twenty-fecond or twenty-third of Oc-
1° KiJjen Juan Dofs. Do you know any tober, 1764. 

thing o f it? <3). Had Coffim Ally then left the Pro-
A. I do, not remember. vinces ?

Had you been prefent when fo large a A. After taking Patna, in 176 3, Coffim 
fum o f money was paid by the Prince o f the Ally had no. place of ftrength left in the Pro- 
Country, fhould you not have known it ? vinces, excepting Rotas.

A . I don’t remember: great fums of money ^
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a  Can you tell where he fled acrofs the of the receipt now produced, anfwers to the 
Caramanafla ? , 28th of Affum, 1 17 4 ,  Bengal year.; which is

,A  I was wounded, and left at Patna: he exadtly 10 years, 8 months* and 5 days, from 
pafled the Caramanafla at that time: after the this time, (1 3th June, 1775 ,)  I mean calendar 
reduction of Patna, the army pafled into the months, which brings the date of the receipt 
Caramanafla, following Coffim Ally. to the 8th of Oftober, 1764 . N . B. 45 days

a  When did he return ? before the battle of Buxar.
A. He. returned into the Provinces in 176 4 . From w'hat place is the receipt dated ?

A  It is not dated from any place : Dorgolly 
Mr. H us.s t . is mentioned in thepaper.

We took Patna in November, 1763 : our K issen J uan Doss,
army marched immediately to the Larama-
nafli : Coflim Ally and the troops with him Court. Have you examined, and do you 
pafled the Caramanafla at that time: about find thefe and the books • produced 1 aft night 
November or December, i 763, he returned to *-° be all the books in which Coffim Ally s ac- 
the Provinces, -with Sujah ul Dowlah s about counts with Bollakey Dofs are contained ?
April, 176 4 , our army retreated to P atn a: .They are all, and I have examined them :
the cannonade from Sujah ul Dowlah was the I did n o t. look over the books yefterday fo 
3d of M ay, 17 6 4 : Coffim A lly and Sujah ul carefully : one book contains all the accounts 
Dowlah . retreated from, and Coffim Ally between Bollakey Dofs and Coffim Ally, 
never returned again to, the Provinces. Buzar ^  Does that book contain the whole o f 
indeed is. juft within the Provinces. The battle the accounts between Coffim A lly  and Bol-
ofJBuzar- was fought the 2qd of October. lakey Dofs ?>
0 5 6 ■ A . It does.

M a j o r  A cckm uty . , jgr W hat are the periods when the accounts
Court. Do you remember where Coffim Ally in thefe books begin, and when they end ? 

was encamped, three weeks or a fortnight A. They begin in Babuzanee, 1175-, and 
.-•before the battle of Buxar ? ' end in the month of Saubem Nagree, 18 2 1 .

A* I  think at Buxar. |§j Is there any mention o f fuch an account
^  In going to Buxar, do you not*go as this mentioned in the receipt ?

^through Jaffuram ? A  There is no fuch entry : it is certainly
A. You do. , not in the books: I cannot ascertain when the

Had Coffim Ally any fixed camp after books dofe. 
his departure from Patna, till the intrenchment gh Is the date of the beginning of the tranf- 
at Buxar ? .actions in the books regularly entered there ?© ,

A. I believe he had not any camp : he was A . It is. 
with Su;ah ill Dowlah’s army.

Had they any camp at Doorgolly ? C aptain  C armac.
A. I do not know o f any: 1 think they . 6). W as you with the army in 176 4 ?

•would neither o f them leave the body of the A . I was.
.army- Jaffaram is inland, Buxar is on the Do you remember Sujah Dowlah and
river. I .cannot fay but he might have had a Coffim A lly ’s retreating from Patna in that 
camp at Doorgotty. „ year ?

Mr* Elliot I  can now afeertain the date of A . Their armv was defeated before the»
the receipt produced to the Court by Meer Af- walls o f Patna : 3d M ay, 176 4 , they retreated
fad Ally, I can fwear to the date by the to Banaras, and continued there,
records of the khalfa.  ̂ 6y H ow  far is Rotargur from Doorgolly ?

Have you examined the records o f  the A . I  believe Doorgolly is a town on the
4 t * , „ _ " , banks o f the Soame: there is more than one

4 . lh a v e ; and find that the i 4th of Ru- : place of that name,
budanee, in j  178, Hegyra, which is the date ^
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Is there. a river called Doorgotty ? C aptain  C armac.
A i There i s : I apprehend you crofa. it in 

going from Jafleram to Buxar. It falls into ^  Do you know Buxar ? 
the Soam. § A, I do.

H ow far is Jafleram from Rotafgur ? ^  How far is the river Doorgotty from it ?
/ A. It is efteemed 12 cofs. A. \ do not know.

. i£. Did you ever travel it ? j
A  I have. K issen J uan D oss.
^  ^ow many ^ours * ' Qj When the army was near Doorgotty,

* êt out ^ar y 111 morning, and break- do you remember a man coming with trea- 
faftea there, I apprehend, about 10 o’clock, fures, efcorted by three hundred men, on ac- 
I  rode very hard: they are long cofles, and count of Coflim Ally ? 
through a hilly country: it* was in the cold yf. I do not remember any thing of it.
weather. 6). I f  fuch a tranfaction had happened,

Can you tell where the army of Sujah muft it not appear in Coflim Ally’s account ?
Dowlah and Coflim Ally were, fourteen days yf. Such matters were always minuted in
before the battle o f Buxar ? the Perfian office: when any treafure was

A . I believe, encamped at Buxar. brought, it was kept in this book; but no
mk account at large was kept at Patna.

K issen J uan Doss. 6). Was the teep you referr’d to in the book,
' £>. W hat is the laft date mentioned in the Paid in Calcutta, or only entered there after 

books ? the tranfa&ion ?
A . The laft date mentioned in the books is A. The entry was made by Bollakey D ofs: 

taken from a teep, or promiflory note : I en-  ̂ can give no more particular account, 
tered it long after the date o f the receipt: I Elliot. I underftand that thefe books
entered it at Calcutta. It was after the return cnd 1R 1 J 7 ŷ Hegyra.
o f Bollakey Dofs from the army. Do you apprehend that any part o f the

© Was you with Bollakey Dofs with the army with which Bollakey Dofs might be, 
army ? would be detached to the river Doorgotty,
- ^  j  was< within a month of the battle of Buxar ?

Q. Do you know the river Doorgotty ? A. I know o f no fuch detachment
j  Do you remember when the body 01

Q. W as Bollakey Dofs in a tent near that £he army was there ?
.  .rivets about the 1 4th of Rabufanee, 1 1 78 ? . A. The army was frequently in motion. I 

A. H e was with the army : I  know not ean g lve n0 account of the time of its. be- 
. en ing there. When the army was in the held,

, © ’ W as Bollakey Dofs with the body of it was expefted the rain would come on: the
Coffim Ally’ s army, a little before the battle army went to the cantonments at Buxar.

1 2  xar } J J 6). Was the army at Buxar before the
A. PJe was. rams ? i ,
Q. Where was the army 14  days before the A. I cannot fpeak to the motions of the

barrio? army. #
A. A  month-before that battle they were Q  Were the rains fet in when t e army 

*  ̂ "Duvor ' went to the cantonments at rsuxar.
m cantonments at Buxar. . I can’ t tell whether it rained any one

Did the river Doorgotty run near Buxar ? si. 1 can t ten wncuici
A . The army was once near the river Door- day. . , c ^  . „ •  c

g o S ; but nofw hm  tl.ty were encamped at %  Was K, or was .t no,, before the rams, 
Buxar! 'that the amry came there? ^  Tm
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A  Ten or twelve days after our arrival, |  | | -  W hat confinement was Bollakey Dofs

1 T H a bderthe raTnyfeafon fet in ? ^  1  ha^e, “  oath^ and I w ill tell
y  i don't mean to fay that the rainyfeafon the truth. TheN abob SujahDowlah, wanted 

began 10  days before, or 10  days after our to get money from Bollakey Dofs, ir^ con- 
& . 7 fining him firft, before the reft o f Coffim

arrival. A lly ’s fervants. T he treafurer o f Sujah Dpw-
M r . H urst. lah (Collie Joqu) defired the Nabob to put

Bollakey Dofs under his ch arge ; and pro-
0 . About what time does the rainy feafon mifed to get money from him. Sujah Dow- 

fet m at Buxar ? lah likewife plundered all the goods and ef-
A. It generally fets in, the latter end o f fefts o f Coffim A l ly ; he even infringed the

Tune, or the beginning o f Ju ly . rights o f  his Zenana. It was not till after
Does it holdup io  or i a days, during the battle o f Buxar, Coffim A lly  obtained 

the rainy feafon ? his liberty: they did not think it -of confe-
A, There are inftances o f  it. quence enough to confine me at firft with my
<j>. When does the rainyfeafon end-there? mafter. I was confined 1-4 or 15  days after
A. The rainy feafon generally ends in the the confinement o f Bollakey Dofs. 

month o f September, or in the beginning o f 6). H ow  many days were you confined ? 
Oftober. Twenty-one days.

£>. D id you ever, to the beft o f  your recol- 
_  leftion, fee M eer Huffird A lii before yefterday ?

K is srn  J uan oss. ^  I have often feen him lately going about

<p W as you at tire battle o f Buxar ? in C alcutta; but never before.
A. I was. I have reafon to remember. it. H ave you feen him with the army ?

I was, after the battle, flung into confinement. A. I have feen many thoufands whom I  do
<s>/Did the army, or any part o f it, after not reco iled : I know nothing o f him. 

its firft going into cantonments, move towards fsh D id you fee Coffim A lly ’s principal fer- 
DooTgotty ? vants ?

A. I am not well acquainted with the cir- A. I did not know them. I  fat in m y 
cumftances. I was confined before the bat- tent.
tie. A ll Coffim A lly ’s people were confined In cafe any treafures had come to
by Sujah Dowlah. Coffim A lly , or Bollakey Dofs, during their

6). W as Bollakey Dofs alfo confined ? confinement, what would become o f it ? •
A> H e was. A. W hen a man is in confinement, he who
0 . How long before the battle was Bol- confines him will take i t : whatever Bollakey 

lakey Dofs confined ? Dofs had, Collie Joqu  took from him.
A. I believe above a month, perhaps fix D id Collie Joq u  give a receipt for the

weeks. money he plundered?
©; Did Bollakey Dofs aft as a Shroft for A. I  don’t underftand fuch converfation. 

Coffim A lly  during his confinement ? I f  any treafures had come to Bollakey
A. W hat kind o f queftion is that ? Coffim Dofs, which Collie Joqu  had taken, would 

Ally himfelf, was in confinement. W here Bollakey Dofs have given a receipt for it? 
fhould he have money to fend to his Shroft? A. W hy ffiould I fuppofe treafure would 

ijh What kind o f confinement was Coffim come at that time, or why fhould he give a 
A lly  in ? receipt for it  ?

A. In a tent near Sujah D ow lah: his own fjh Can you take upon you to fwear that 
attendants were removed, and chowkies put no fuch treafure arrived ? 
over him. A. From the time that I was in confine-

■’-■ merit/
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■ ment, I can take upon me tofwenr that no]but at the time of the battle, I believe 
txeaiure was brought. ah ,, vAa \ r c6) W ac ait p  4 i) n i ' ^ ° “ im bad not more than from 500 to

W as Coffim Ally* Gawn, and Bollakey 2000 men belonging to him.
Dofs in the fame army together-? £  Was Coffim Ally ciofe confined on

^  DOliakey Dofs was in the fame army the day of the battle ? 
with him. Jji ||L A  He was ; - and at the end of his confine-

' - x ‘ ment, he could not be faid to have any army
Mr . Williams. at all; feveral were gone, and he had given*

■ <cv r\ . .k  difmiffion to others: he had difmiffed Sum-
%  D °  you know the river Doorgotty ? ro°  : Coffim Ally was not releafed till after 
J .  I do not know the names of the rivers A c  battle, 

in that country.
' Qz .Do you know at what time the army S haik  E ar M ahomed.

o f  Sujah Dowlah entered their cantonments
at Buxar? Do you know Mahomed Commaul?

A . They cannonaded Patna in M a y : I can 1 cbd.
only anfwer for the motions o f our own army. ^  Do you know more than one of that 
T h e  battle o f Buxar was the 23d o f October. “ e ?

[The queftion Was repeated feveral times* 
K i s s e n  J u a n  D oss. but no anfwer could be produced.]

Mr. Elliot. It is impoffible he can miftakc 
Jury. For how long a time have you feen me: he will give no anfwer.

M eer H u fill d A lii about Calcutta ? A t laft the witnefs faid, I did not know
A . Ten or fifteen days from this time. any other Mahomed Commaul.

H ow  often have you feen him ? j|k Do you know Commaul O’ Dien Ally
A. About twice- Cawn?

Did you talk with him ? A* I did.
A* N o. 6). Is the Mahomed Commaul you fpeak

H ow  came you to know him ? of, and Commaul O’ Dien the fame perfon?
A. I faw him once on horfeback. H e faid A. They were different.

I know you, you were Bollakey Dofs’s fer- Is the Mahomed Commaul you fpeak
v an t; I anfwered, Very probably : there was of alive or dead? 
a fervant o f mine with me* A. Dead.

> • Q  W hat is his name f §{. H ow do you know?
A. I do not know. A. I buried him.
6). H ad you evef* feen him before ? When did he die ?
A* Once •: nothing then palled between Us. A. Five or fix years ago : I do not remem- 

l &K H ow  came you to know his name ? ber exactly.
A. I  did not know his name when I faw Where did he die?

him in court. A. H e died in the houfe of Maha Rajah
6). Did you go to the houfe o f Maha Ra- Nundocomar, in Calcutta, 

jah  Muncodomar ? Where did he Ufually refide while liv-
A. I  never went near him. I  like to fit in ing ? ■ , , ,

m y own houfe. A. In a little place feparate from the houfe
9 . W as there more than one body o f the o f Maha Rajah: when he came from Muxa-

army at Buxar ? • davad> Maha RaJ ah Pu£ h™  t!?ere: , . ,
- A  T h e two armies were fep arate th ere  ^  Do you know whether that Mahomed
m ight be a cofs or a cofs and a half betwixt, ever witneiTed any bond to Maha Rajah b  un
Cofilm A lly  carried equal army from hence; docomar? ^
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A  I faw him witnefs it with my own eyes: confented andfaid, Very well, write a bond:
I faw him put his feal to it. he then faid G ive me Mahomed Commaui

& W ho gave the bond to Maha Rajah with me, and_ I having gone to my own 
X T t f ? houfe, will write out a bond, feal it, and get

Bollakey Dofs. proper witnefles to it and fetid it back by
d) n°n vou know who were the other w it- Mahomed Com m aul: M aha Rajah Nundo- 

'p  ̂ comar faid, Very well. Bollakey Dofs, taking.
• nCj  S Matheb Roy, a kittree, and Sielabut Mahomed Commaul with him, obtained dif- 
the vakeel o f Bollakey D o fs: thofe three. m illion: M aha Rajah then got up, and we 

G) p)0 you recoiled!: for what fum o f mo- three likewife took our leaves: when we went 
n evit was? into an outer houfe, Seat Bollakey Dofs faid

A  I remember it was for 48 ,021 ficca ru-. to me, D o  you likewife come along with m et 
- ' and I having gotten a bond written out and

PecS* fealed, you will fee it done: he having faid
Cross E xamination . this, I agreed; he having got into his palan-

keen went away, w e four people followed
G) Whofe fervant was you ? him, he having gone with his palankeen, half

A . I am not a fervant \ I ufed, a long time a gurry after we followed him* we likewife 
ago to trade in fait: I am no one’s fervant: I arrived at his houfe* - W e faw Bollakey Dofs 
go back and forwards to M aha R ajah : my fitting, and along^ with him Matheb R oy, 
uncle has a houfe at Siedabad, where we have Sillabut Lallo  Doman Sing, and a M oh u n r: 
carried on bufinefs for a long fpace o f tim e: W e fat down. Bollakey Dofs faid to his 
my uncle ufed frequently to go to M aha R a- writer, W rite out a bond for 4 8 ,0 2 1 ficca ru- 
jah ’s: when I was little I ufed to go with him : pees, in the name o f M aha Rajah Nundoco- 
I have now been ten. or fifteen years in Cal- m ar: he wrote out a bond in Perfian, and the 
cutta, and always with the Maha Rajah. M ohurir having read it, Bollakey Dofs heard 

6) How came you to fee the bond exe- it, and took it into his hands, and having 
cuted? taken it in his hands, he took o ff a ring,

A, Mahomed Commaul, Jo y  deb Chowbee, which was on his finger, and when he had 
Choytou Naut, and m yfelf were fitting taken it off, he dipped it in a ficca dewat 
in the houfe o f Lucky Caunto Seat, in the (ink ftand) which was lying before him, and 
Borrabonnah with M aha R a jah ; Bollakey affixed the feal to the paper which was lying 
Dofs likewife came in, and fat down by before him, and having fealed it, he faid to 
u s: Maha Raja Nundocomar lived in that Mahomed C om m aul, Do you  ̂likewife be a * 
houfe: having fat down, M aha Rajah N un- witnefs to it, and gave the bond into his hands, 
docomar faid to Bollakey Dofs, Y ou  have for H e having likewife taken his feal o ff his finger, 
a 'long time had my m oney; it fhall remain affixed it to the bond as a witnefs.- Bollakey 
no longer with you; now pay it me: then Bol- Dofs then faid to Matheb R oy, Baboo M a- 
lakey Dofs anfwered Nundocomar, M y mo- theb R oy, D o you likewife witnefs i t ; Matheb 
ney, which was in the houfe of Muxadavad R o y  likewife, having taken his feal from his 
and Decca, has been plundered; I have not finger, affixed it, and was a witnefs; H e then 
now the power o f paying the money; a great faid to Seillabut, his vakeel, Do you likewife 
ffum of money is due to me from the Englifh be a witnefs to this bond ; who having taken 
Company: having received that money, I will the ink Hand in his hand, wrote his name in 
pay you firft, and after that will pay others : Perfian, as a witnefs : Bollakey Dofs then 
I will now give you a bond for that mo- took the bond in his hand: then Bollakey 
ney, do you take it from me. H e then Dofs put the bond into the hands o f M aho- 
preffed Maha Rajah very much, with his med Commaul, and faid to Seillabut, Do you 
hands joined, to take the bond, M aha Rajah | likewife accompany Mahomed Commaul, and

deliver
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dehver ^  bond to Maha Rajah Nundo- gone to my own houfe, and having written 
comar. Mahomed Commaul and Seillabut out a bond, and having got it fealed and pro- 
having taken the bond, went to the houfe of perly witneffed, I will fend it to you by Ma- 
Maha Rajah Nundocomar: I likewife went homed Commaul. Having faid this, he ob- 
to my own houfe. O f the bond being fealed tained difmiffion
and executed, I know this. to Mr. Elliot. Does he repeat in

When Bollakey Dofs came to Maha the fame words ? •
Rajah Nundocomar, had he any fervants ? A. The paragraph is repeated in the fame

A. H e had Peons and Kidmutgars; I could words.
not them : one Kidmutgar went up for Mafia Rajah likewife got up • and we 
his fhoes.. likewife too took leave. Having gone into

£ t  H ow  manY ? an out-houfe, Bollakey Dofs faid to me, Do
A. I  cannot tell. you likewife come along with me to my
•§L- W as any on horfeback ? houfe : he having got into his palankeen, he
■A< N o. went before us. We four men, Mahomed
^3 W as there five or fix? Commaul, Joydeb Chowbee, Choyton Naut,
A. I cannot tell their number. -and myfelf, went half a gurry afterwards.
6). W hat did Maha Rajah Nundocomar Witnefs. I cannot tell the fame words,

fay, when firft he came to his houfe? Court. You need not tell the fame words :
A. H e faid what I have given in evidence, tell only the fubftance. W e had rather you

■ ijh W hat did he firft fay ? repeat it in other words.
A. It has been already written. Witnefs. We arrived there. Bollakey Dofs

[Queftion repeated.] was before fitting there, and Matheb Roy,
A. I have related every thing, from the Seillabut, Lalloo Doman Sing, and a Mo- 

time he came, to the end. hurir were there. We four people, likewife
[Queftion again repeated.] fat dow n: Seat Bollakey Dofs faid to his

A. I f  I  begin at the beginning, I can tell, Mohurir, Write out a bond to Maha Rajah
I  cannot begin in the middle. Nundocodomar for 48,021 rupees. Having

Court. L e t him begin again. written out a Perfian bond, and read it to
A. Joydeb Chowbee, Choytou Naut, M a- him, he gave it into the hands of Bollakey 

homed Commaul, and m yfelf were fitting in Dofs : he having taken off a ring from his 
the houfe o f Luckycaunt Seat, with Maha finger, dipt it into the ficca dewat, which 
Rajah, Seat Bollakey Dofs likewife came, he was before him, and fixt it to the'bond; 
Jikewife fat down by Maha R ajah : Maha and he put it into the hand o f Mahomed 
Rajah faid to Bollakey Dofs, There has been Com m aul; and faid, Do you likewife be a 
money o f mine a long time with you; it ftiall witnefs to it. Then Mahomed Commaul, 
not remain longer; you now pay it me : Bol- having likewife taken off his feal from his 
lakey Dofs anfwered, M y houfe at Muxada- finger, dipt it in the ficca dewat; and affix- 
vad and Decca have been plundered; I have ed it on the bond. Then Bollakey Dofs 
not now the power o f paying it, there is a faid to Baboo Matheb Roy, Be you likewife 
a great fum o f money due to me by the Eng- a witnefs to th is : he likewife having af- 
lifh company; when I have received that mo- fixed his feal to it, was a witnefs. He like- 
ney, I will pay you firft, and will after pay wife then faid to his Vakeel Seillabut, Do 
others : I will now write out a bond for you, you likewife be a witnefs : he likewife having 
do you take it ; and he preffed him very much taken the ink-ftand into his hand, wrote hi* 
to take it. M aha Rajah confented: Bollakey name in Perfian ; and became likewife a wit- 
Dofs then faid to Maha Rajah, Give me M a- nefs. Seillabut then put the bond into the 
homed Commaul along with me, and having hands o f Bollakey Dols. Bollakey Do.s gave

0 tile
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the bond into the hands o f Mahomed Com- A. It is here in Calcutta. I can Anew it if
m aul\ and faid to Seiilabut, Do you go you will go. . j V  . . .
along with Mahomed Commaul, and give %  In the mean time, do you defcnbe it.
this bond to Maha Rajah Nundocomar. Seil- A. It is raifed upon a terrafs, [chund].
labut and Mahomed Commaul having taken There is a Chubbuckin under i t ; there weie 
the bond, went away ;• and I likewife went to three openings : one to the lout]h:ward 5 one 

own houfe. This is what I know about to the weftward, which M aha Rajah Nujido- 
witneffino- it. comar ordered to be filled up w ith mats \ and

c9. How long is it flnce you was acquaint- left the other opening for the door, 
ed with Mahomed Commaul ? { ^  W as the third opening to the north,

A. About a month or two before this or to the eaft ?
bond being executed. H e ufed to go back- A. T o  the eaft.
wards and forwards to the M aha Rajah ^  H ow  large was the place ? M
Nundocomar. I likewife went backwards A. I cannot tell how many cubits it is.
and forwards’ T hat place yet remains.

6) Was he the fervant o f Maha Rajah W ho lives in that place now .
Nundocomar? ’ A. M aha Rajah N undocom arV ' Peons,,

A. He was not fervant o f Maha Rajah Kidm-utgars, & c . It  is not appointed foi 
Nundotomar • he had been the fervant o f the ufe o f any particular perfons, as in M  a- 
Maha Raj-ah’s father, and went backwards homed CommauPs time, 
and forwards at Maha Rajah’s. H e remain- %  A re the Kidm utgars, & c. o f the 
ed fometimes two, three, or four months af- 'M aha Rajah’s, Muffulmen or Hindoos ? 
cerwards here, and went to Muxadabad. A. T hey are both one and t ’other.

C). When did he come back ? ^  Do any o f them fleep there ?
A. About four or five years after. A. H ow  can I tell whether they fleep there?
Mr, Elliot. I bid him not repeat fo often; I fee them fit in the day-time, 

he fays he repeats that he may be fiire. H ow  came you then to know, that
<9. Did he flay at Muxadabad four or five Mahomed Commaul flept there, and the or- 

years ? " ders given about it ?
A. H e came back four or five years after A. I  faw M aha Rajah with my own eyes,

figning the bond 5 and then I faw him at order the houfe to be fitted out for him > and
Maha Rajah’s. he lived there.

j9. Was he a fervant o f Maha Rajah’s ? i9. D id you ufe to go backwards and for-
A. I know when a man comes backwards wards, at that time and place ? r

and forwards 5 but j  do not know if  he is a A. A s I went to M aha Rajah ’s Durbar, I 
fervant. ufed to pafs by the place, and made my.

||v Where did he live ? falam to him.
A. When he returned from Muxadabad, ; D id you fee him when he was fick ? 

Maha Rajah Nundocomar gave him a place, A . I did : I faw that phyfic from  M ahav 
near his own houfe to live in. Rajah was Tent him.

Was He long ill before his death ? j§>. W hat year did he die ?
A. H e was well for three or four months : A . I do not know the month or year ;

-after that he was Tick ; and then he^ied. it was in the rainy feafon.
What was the fituation o f the place he jj). W ho was at his burial ? 

had given him ? A. I carried him out to be buried : other
■ A. It was within the four walls o f M aha people likewife went out.

Rajah’s houfe, and belonged to the houfe. W ho elfe was there ?
What fort o f a place was it? A . M any people, Shah Mahomed, Chawn

| abb
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abb Chubdar, Rund M utt, Cawn Temut' 6) Ln„  t
Jum m iatt Cawn, Ika Cawn, , Cawn Maho- t h e \ a h a  R ^ jah V  '  Y° U ^  attending at
med’ nr r° r ftX doolies; nobody elfe. A. I have before faid, I came to Calcutta 

f  Was thefe all who were there ? twelve or thirteen years ago
? XfCepf theC oohes> there was no one %  Did Joy deb Chowbee and Chovton 

elfe I  fpeak with certainty Naut come to Maha Rajah’s together >

bof e  ê ed?yOU ^  attCnd the bUnal ° f  “ H  t 1: ^  not fay that': I faidfwhen I came
J r ' - '  n | to Maha Rajah I faw them.

A. It is a cuftom among us Muffulmen to £>. What converfation paffed at the houfe
go out with the bodies'of any o f our friends o f Bollakey Dofs Seat ? 1
and relations when they die Since I came A  I have kept no account of it. He fpoke
to the age o f maturity, I believe I have at- what I faid to the Mohurir. * P
tended 200 or ?oo o f them. 6) a *1 ^ .  m tt i  r r ~<j  1Ia a  tliat: Monum any papers or ac-

Court. T e ll the names o f fome. counts with him ?
A. I went out with Shau Mahomed, Cawn A. No : he was fitting without any. 

abb Chubdan, Bullab Cawn. Need' I men- Do you underftand Perlian ?
tion any more ? A. I do underftand it little, but do not

W ho were the other perfons that at- write it well, 
tended? t\ Was you afked to witnefs the bond?

A. Muffulmen o f the M aha Rajah’s fa- A. H e defired nobody, but who are al- 
nuly, ready named.

£)j H ow  came • you to remember their jj). When the writer read the bond to Bol- 
names fo exactly ? lakey Dofs, what did he Bollakey Dofs fay ?

A. T he morning after the night o f his A. Nothing, except well, or fome fuch 
death, M aha Rajah was informed o f it5 the word.

• burial was made, and I remember thefe J |  Did any body prefent afk Bollakey 
people. Dofs the amount o f the bond ?

[Being preffed with this queftion over and A. No one afked, as I recoiled!. I think I
over again, M r: E llio t faid, I cannot get him fpeak with certainty. I do not remember 
to give any reafon.] it.

gK D id you fee any o f your acquaintance j*). Did Bollakey Dofs Seat mention the 
that morning ? particular fum the Mohurir was to make the

A. N o  : it rained very hard. bond for ?
I H ow  long have you been acquainted A. H e did/
with Choyton N aur? 6). Do you know Bollakey Dofs Seat?

A. T en  or eleven years. W as you well acquainted with him ?
Blow long have you been acquainted A. I knew him very well, 

with Joydeb Chowbee ? Did Bollakey Dofs give that order in
A . A s long as I know Choyton Naut. Perfian ?

W ere you firft acquainted with- them A. N o, in Moors, 
both in the fame place ? Court. Repeat that order. [H e repeats the

A. I  w a s : they ufed to come backwards fum in Perfian.] 
and forwards to Maha Rajah’s. Mr. Elliot. I examine him in Moors, he

6). D id you fee Joydeb Chowbee the day always repeats the words of the fum in Per- 
o f the funeral ? fian, which is contrary to the ufual manner

A. They both ufed to come to M aha R a- o f fpeaking; for thofe who fpeak in Perfian,. 
jah ’s Durbar : I do not recollect,- with re- when they come tofums, almoft always men- 
fpeft to that day in particular*
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• ion them in Moors. H e now repeats it in Gungabiffen fued Maha Rajah Nundocomar 
zrl for 48,021 X'upees, in the Cutcherry.

°o r How came you always to mention that . H ow long ago was this fuit in the Cut-
furn° in Perfian, which Bollakey Dofs gave cherry ? 

d "  for in Moors > A. About three years ago.
/' I fpoke it for your information. [Ad- 6). In which did it commence ? Whofe

dreding himfelf to Mr. Elliot.] Cotart ?
Mr Elliot. I f  you did that for my infor- A. M r. F a lk s . f ;

matibn, why not'every part o f your evidence Do you know any difpute in the
in Perfian, as I am to interpret the whole to M ayors Court, about this matter? 
the Court ? A  l  do not know o f any.

4 I happened to fa y  i t : I  did not fay it Did you give evidence in that caufe ?
for* your information. A. In the time o f M r. Rous’s I did give

0 . How cama you to do fo three times evidence.
<3). In your evidence, did you mention

A. For your information. [T o  M r. E l-  the fum o f 48 ,021 rupees? 
jjot j  . A. N o mention was made o f it.

Court. Was it, or was it not, for the in- Q. H ave you ever, from the time o f exe- 
formation o f the interpreter ? cuting the bond to this time, mentioned the

A. There was no particular reafon. fum o f that bond to any body?
Court. How came you to be fo particular A. Nobody ever mentioned that fum to 

in your account of the fum ? me, nor did I mention it.
A. I remember it from the long difpute j|h W hat, never fince M aha Rajah has 

. there has been about, the bond. been confined ? N ot to any body ?
®  When did you firft hear o f the difpute A. I do not remember telling to any body, 

about the bond? * * Q  D id you never tell the fum to M r.
A. I do not mean in particular the bond. Jarret, nor any body concerned for M aha 

I know i t ; becaufe Mohun Perfaud and R ajah?
Gungabiffen proceeded againft M aha Rajah, A. W hen M r. Jarret afked me about this 
in the Court o f Cutcherry, in the time o f bufinefs, I  told him o f i t ; I gave account o f 
M r. Palk, and alfo in M r. Rous’s Cut- it, and M r. Jarret wrote it down, 
cherry. ||L D id  you never mention it to this Gen-

For what fum was that complaint ? tleman ? [Pointing to M r. Farrer.]
A. They complained for 1,29,000 rupees, A. Never. I never did ? [M r. Farrer 

on account o f  a depofit. confirms what he faid.] W hen M aha Raj an
Why .do you give that as a reafon for was put into confinement, he defired me .to 

knowing the bond was for 48 ,021 rupees ? go to M r. Jarret, and give him what infor- 
A. I never gave that reafon for remember- mation I could. Nobody elfe . afked me 

ing it. I know it from the mouth o f Bolla- about it.
key Dofs Seat. g). D id you tell M aha Rajah him felf?

Court. [Queftion repeated.] A. I  did not.
A. I never faid fo. H ow  came you to mention fo exadtly

, [M r. E lliot and M r. Jackfon both depofe, the fum ? 
that he did give that reafon. M r. Wefton, ' A. I  heard it from the mouth o f Seat Bol- 
(a Gentleman o f the Jury), alfo fays, that lakey Dofs.
he did fo.] • ijh D id Bollakey Dofs Seat mention it in

[Queftion again repeated.] Perfian ?
A . I ne/er faid that Mohun Perfaul and A. N o  : in Hindoftan.

6)\ .  in
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* V' r C ” “  l,eS it‘fi? rn ’ > > “  o f the cutom of the comury. 7
A  When Maha Rajah wa, firft thrown a i  ' Z g l ^ A ,  *

into confinement, he told me, It was on ac-; cuted. X g  1 bonds exe~
count of a forged bond, which I had hppn G) ,

fh ^ d 1 R rfB o l\Zy  f e l l ?

pl°aint w a s S S S U  f t l  p g f t X  ^
the execution o f the bond; and that the - A. You are mv ™
Gentlemen o f the Audawlet would do him me as you pleafe7 ’ 7 may pUmfh

J ulbce- , . ■ [M r. Elliot being called upon declarer
b o S  ?WaS 7° U at A e  executlon Qf an7 other bis words were, « in my prefence, bonds have 

‘ ' T i ■■ , been frequently figned, and witneffes have af-
R o P ^ v A n f  5 mUCh bufmefs with fixed their feals to them, fince the bond which
BoLakey Dofs Seat. I never was at the exe- we have been fpeaking of." H e now fays that
a T n °  T  ° theV r . , \ , • he anfwered without underftanding w L ’t was

%  2  ° 7 an7  other perfon s bond? faid to him ; and that he thought I afked

G) n « L man7, * lut r- «  vt 7 ™  as to the cuftom o f the country; but
Do you mean to Maha Rajah Nun- this pretence cannot be true, becaufe he firft

d0C° mar • T , . r  , , 1 , .  , gave me a relation o f the cuftom with refpeft
A. N o , I have feen bonds o f h is ; but not to fealing bonds. I ftopped him, and told

fee"  thTeTm executed- him, I  did not alk him to the cuftom; but
: ^  H ave you feen any other bond exe- whether before his face any bond had been

cute,d ;  . . ■ fealed and figned ? H e afked me, whether I
A. I have feen feveral; but do not re- meant to know, i f  he had feen any fealed

member the perfons. before his face: on my arifwering 7  es, he
Court. Name the name o f any perfon you gave the anfwer above rehearfed.] 

laft faw execute a bond? Court. Have you feen any other bondsexe-
A. I  have feen perfons fign and feal bonds; cuted fince this o f Bollakey Dofs ? Now you 

but do not recoiled: who or when. underftand the queftion : anfwer it.
H ave you, fince this bond was exe- A. I do not recoiled to have been prefent 

cuted ? Say to w hom ; and who were wit- at. the executing o f any bond. I know the 
• fieflbs ? cuftom. o f executing bonds.

A. Y e s :  I certainly have ; but how lliould [Queftion repeated.]
I know who the witneffes were, or whom in A, I  thought you afked what the cuftom 
favour of? o f the country was, as to executing bonds

I f  you are fo particular in your recol- from my own knowledge, and having feen 
ledtion o f this bond, and its fum, how them.
comes it that you cannot remember any thing g*. Do you know the cuftom ? What is 
concerning the others you have been prefent it ?
at ? A . I know the cuftom of executing bonds:

A. In my prefence a great many bonds one puts a feal here, another there. I have 
have been figned ; and witneffes have affixed been prefent. -
their feals to them fince that o f Bollakey How ffiould you know the cuftom of
Dofs’s. the country,, if  you have never feen bonds

^  Name the names o f thofe witneffes. executed ?
: A> I did not mean I faw bonds executed: M r. Elliot. H e won't give an anfwer.

L  [Queftion

Bj

M A I I A  R A J A H  N U N D O C O M A R ,  B A H A D E R .  i



[Queftion again repeated.] A. I  remember it, becaufe I remember it.
A. I have been in trade for many years, W hat I have forgot, I forgot, 

and have feen many bonds figned and exe- £>. H ave you, or have you not, any reafon 
cuted to myfelf. for remembering it ?

0  When was the laft ? A. I remember : therefore 1 have told you
A. I am fpeaking o f 15  or 20 years ago ; I have no reafon. 

or when I was 15 or 20 years of- age. £>, Do you recollect any fum o f money
6}, Have you never feen any bonds exe- you ever faw a bond given for, fince that 

cuted, but the bond in queftion, and thofe time?
to yourfelf ? A. I  remember one M r. Morrifon taking

A. I do not remember; I cannot re- 15 ,000  rupees from M aha Rajah Nundoco- 
member ; I cannot pretend to fay. - mar, and giving his bond for it.

6). You fay that you have feen bonds exe- gK W as you a witnefs to it ? 
cuted; but do not remember to whom, and A. N o. 
in whofe favour. H ow came you not to re- W hen was it ?
member thofe to yourfelf? A. I only remember the fum : I do notre-

[No precife anfwer could be obtained.] member the date.
Court. Does he appear intimidated ? £). W as it fince this bond ?
Mr. Elliot and Mr. JackJon. H e does not A. Y es. 

appear the leaft intimidated. gK H ow  lon g ago was it ?
Jury. H e certainly is not intimidated. H e A. Something above fix years, 

underftands the queftion. gK W as you prefent at the execution o f
M r. Elliot. H e faid that he had feen bonds M r. M orrifon’s bond ? 

executed fince this ; but could not remember A. 1 faw him fign : M aha Rajah fent m e 
the perfons who were prefent at the execu- for it.
tion. I afked him if  he knew any o f the W ho were the witnefles ?
perfons who were prefent at the execution, A. H e figned it before none. I  do not
he having faid that he had feen many fince. know who were the witneftes.

6). H ow  came you to recollect the precife W as it in Englifti ?
fum of Bollakey Dofs’s bond ? A. Yes, it was early in the morning; nobody

A. In my prefence Bollakey Dofs ordered was there: he put a feal o f wax, and figned 
the Mohurir to make out a bond for that i t : he told me he was making out a bond 
amount/ to Maha Rajah, and faid, Do you take it.

gK How came you to remember the exa£t gK In what language did you tell it him ? $
fum o f a bond executed fo long ago ? A. I told him in Perfian.

A. What is in my remembrance, I re- W ho was this M r. Morrifon ?
member. What I have forgot, I have for- A. He was Chootan Sah€B (fecondin rank) 
got. at Muxadavad.

W hy don’t you then remember the W here was the bond given ?
fums in others ? A. At Calcutta.

A. 'This one I remember. W hy don’t you Ju ry . M ight the name o f the perfon you
afk me why I have not forgot it ? call Morrifon be Maddifon ?

g^ W hy have you not forgot it ? A. I  know not: they called him Morrifon.
A. I f  I forgot a thing, I muft be content W hat fort o f a man was he ?

'with it. This I remember perfeftly w e ll: A. A  little fhort man, and wore fpeftacles,
what anfwer fhall I give to, W hy I have not Jury. From the fimilarity o f the founds,
forgot ? and the defcription of the perfon, it is evident

Q  What reafon have you for remember- the witnefs muft mean M r, Maddilom
it?  v  f§
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%  Dld y °u ever fee any other bond exe- once to the bond; I was then at the difiance
cut7  V J . , ,  , . , of 5 or 6 cubits (or hauts:) the fecond time 1

A. I never did fee any other bond executed : faw it, was that on the letter wrote from Chin 
I  have no remembrance : whatfhall I tell you ? furah : the other was that I faw at Mr larrct’s* 

Q, Did you know Bollakey Dofs very well ? that Joydeb Chowbee carried.

&  I f l  n ,, , TV r . . Q  How man7 other papers have you, with
■ . ■ d Bollakey Dofs wear ear rings in your own eyes, feen him put his feal to ?
Ins ears ? _ . A. I never faw Bollakey Dofs, with my own

A. I faw no ear rings in his ears: whether eyes, put his feal to any other paper than the 
he wore them or not I cannot te ll; but I did bond: the appearance of the feal and that of 
not fee them. the two letters agree.

£  Do you know his feal ? %  Did you take the bond into your hand
A. I have feen three or four letters of Bol- to examine the feal ? 

lakey Dofs, that came to Maha Rajah Nun- A. I faw when Bollakey Dofs gave it into 
docomar s, with, leals , and by comparing the hands of Iv^ahomed Com maul; when he 
them with the bond, I ihall be able to tell. gave it into the hands of Matheb Roy, and 

How came you to fee thefe letters ? told him to witnefs it. I likewife faw it when 
A  When Bollakey Dofs wrote a letter to he gave it into Seillabut’s hands. I likewife 

Maha Rajah Nundocomar from'Chinfura, I faw it when I did not take the bond into my 
was there, and faw the feal, and one more hands.
feal of a letter o f Bollakey Dofs, which Maha ^  What diftance was you from it when it 
Kajah fent to Mr. Jarret. was put into the hands of Mahomed Commaul ?

H ow  came you to fee that letter that A. It may be at the diftance of three or four 
was fent to Mr. Jarret ? hauds or cubits.

A. Joydeb Chowbee carried it from Maha ^  What diftance was you when it was
Rajah’s to Mr. Jarret: I was then at Mr. Jarret’s put into the hands of Matheb Roy ?
houfe, and faw it in the hands o f Joydeb A . I was rather nearer to him than to Ma-
Chowbee. I faw it in his hands, and afked, homed Commaul.
what letter was that ? he faid, Bollakey Dofs’s. At what diftance were you when it was
I looked at the feal, and faw it was Bollakey put into the hands of Seillabut ?
Dofs’s. A. I was near Seillabut: I cannot be exadt

§). H ow  came you to remember the feal ? as to the diftance.
A . I had in my mind a letter Bollakey Dofs Which was you nearer to, Matheb Roy 

wrote from Chinfura : I remember that, and or Seillabut ?
• feeing that in Joydeb Chowbee’s hand, I faw A. Matheb Roy was near.

they were both alike. I faw him put it to that Court. Tell us the pofition in which they
bond : I have feen him put it to feveral other were.
papers, at a diftance. j  A. Matheb Roy, Seillabut, Doman Sing,

6). W hat do you mean by a diftance, and \v£re all with their faces to the fouthward ; 
what diftance ? Seillabut in the middle, Matheb Roy.on the

A. It was at the diftance of 5 or 6 cubits, right, Doman Sing on the left : we four, Ma- 
(or hauts) homed Commaul, Joydeb Chowbee, Choyton

G) W hat paper have you feen Bollakey Naut, and I, had our faces to the north: Bol- 
Dofs* put his feal to, befides that bond ? lakey Dofs with his face to the weft, and back

A. I  have feen it only upon thefe two letters to the eaft. 
and that bond.' 4  w h o  was on the riSht hand of Bollakey

9 . W hat are the papers which you have feen Dofs ? . . . .  ,
him put his feal to at the diftance of 5 or 6 A. Doman Sing was on the right hand, and 
cubits? Mahomed Commaul on the left.

A* I have feen his feal only three times : ^  What was the month ?
L I
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A  It was the rainy feafon: I do not re- &  Do you know any particular circum- 
‘ member the month. . ftance being mentioned in the bond, when you

G) I f  you remember fo particularly the heard it read ? 
places of all thefe perfons, how came you not A. I did not fay that I  heard it read : his 
to remember the month in which it was exe- writer went clofe to him, and read it gently to 

j  p him : I was at a diftance, and did not hear it.
A  I do not remember the month : I had no Did Seillabut read it ?

reafon to remember that: I am pofitive to the A . He might have read it to him felf: 1 did 
fituation of the perfons: they certainly fat in not hear him : he did not read it aloud, 
that pofition. $  Did anybody write any thing with a

j ury . i f  you was to fee the bond at the pen on the bond, except Seillabut ? 
diftance of three or four cubits, would you A. I faw with my own eyes Bollakey Dofs, 
know it? Mahomed Commaul, and Matheb Roy,, put

At j  vvould not poffibly know it, for this their feals j and Sillabut =wrote his name, 
reafon : I was not a witnefs to the bond: if I ^  Did any other perfon make ufe o f a pen ?
was to put my own feal, or write my own name, A. No.
and if I had read the bond, on feeing it again I Qj Are you fure ? '  A f'
fhould know it. A. I heard it with my ears, and faw it with

^  Do you mean to fay, that i f  this bond my eyes, 
was put into your hands, you fliould immedi- Are you very fure ?
ately know it to be that bond? A • Very fure. I  am certain.

A. By the appearance o f the feal, and the After Sillabut figned it, what was done
fignature of the witnefles, I fliould be able to with it immediately ?
guefs; but would not pofitively fay, that was A . Seilabut gave it to Bollakey D o fs: BoI~ 
the bond. lakey Dofs gave it to Mahomed Commaul,

gK Did you ever put your name as a witnefs &c. as before, 
to a bond ? You fay, the writer read the bond low :

A. I  very well remember I never put my was it fo low that,you could not hear what
name or feal, as a witnefs, to any bond fince .was faid?
the time of the above : whether I did before A . W hen theMohurir had wrote the bond,
or not, I cannot tell. and carried it to Bollakey Dofs, he gave to

Court. Take a pen, and write the name of Bollakey Dofs, to hear it in the cuftomary way.
the Company. A t what time o f ijie day was it, when

[H e writes a very bad hand, .not like ,that the firfl: converfation paffed at the Maha Ra- 
of the bond.] jah’s ? *

You fay you know Mahomed Com- A . About noon,
maul’s feal: would you know it again, if  you 6). Was the bond read fo low  that you
was to fee it ? could not hear it ?

A. I have not fworn that I fliould know A . I  could not hear it well.
Mahomed Com maul’s feal. 6), Did not you hear one word ?

Q  Do you remember any other circum- A  I f  I  did not hear, how can I fay I did
ftances o f the bond and the fum ? ( hear ?

A. I do n o t: what Bollakey Dofs faid, I ^  Did you hear nothing o f the contents ? 
remember. A. I heard nothing o f the contents.

^  W as it a Ample bond for the payment What, not a word ?
of money ? A. W hat elfe fhaJl 1 fay ? I did not hear

A. What I heard from Bollakey Dofs I one word, 
know : I know nothing elfe that the bond Q  W as you deaf, or had you any difeafe in 
was about: it might be as well one thing as your ear ?
another. J |
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A. I  was neither deaf, nor had I any difeafe Court. This is no evidence.
in my ears. gĵ  Did Pudmohun Dofs then {hew you*

H ow  then came you not to hear a word ? any papers ?
A . I  did not-pay fo ftridt attention, nor did A. H e did Ihew me a canatama, wrote by 

be read it in fo high a voice, that I ihould Pudmohun Dofs, and figned by Bollakey Dofhv 
hear it.  ̂ gK Are you fare Bollakey Dofs’s hand was

' g^ Did any body elfe hear it but Bollakey figned to it ?
Dofs ? A. I faw with my own eyes, that the hand-

A. I cannot tell. writing of Bollakey Dofs was to it.
Jury. Did you know the Mohurir ? gK W as his name figned to it ?
A. I faw his face then : he was no friend of A. Thefe are the words written in the hand- 

mine. writing o f Bollakey D ofs: “  It is written by
gK H ow  came you to goto Bollakey Dofs’s Bollakey D o fs: written above by Pudmohun. 

houfe then ? Dofs, the fpace of fix months.”
A\ I went that time, and now and then gL Have you ever feen that paper in any 

went at other times.- body’s hands ?
6). Did you ever fee the Mohurir before or A. After having written from that paper 

fince? myfelf, I have not feen it in the hands of any.
A, Neither before nor fince have I feen him : body.

I  only faw him that time. ^  H ow  long ago is it fince you faw it ?
A. About four years :.I fpeak from guefs. | 

J U N E '  1 775. i9. H ow long has Pudmohun Dofs been
dead ?

K issen  J uan D oss. A. Three years and feven months.
G. T p ^ O yo u  know Bollakey D ofs? ^  Are there any entries made of this

I  y  As I  was his chief gomaftah t I tranfadtion in the books of Bollakey- Dofs,
II fed to faperintend his other gomaftahs, and taken from the contents o f that paper ?
fometimes write myfelf. A  Y e s ; there was an account for 69,750

(ri Do you know o f all the accounts that rupees, 7, on account of a bond, the date ot.
• have ever paffed between Bollakey Dofs and which is entered in thofe books. .

M aha Rajah Nundocomar ? ^  t^e corra nama ls t îere aDy mentl0n
A. I know all the accounts that were entered of a bond,  ̂or only o f jewels • 

in the books at Calcutta. I  likewife am ac- A . I will inform you o f what I know. It 
quainted with the accounts of Pudmohun Dofs. is firft written, that a fum of money, t ie .

• Q. Do you know o f any accounts refpedting amount of which I do not *ec0“ ê ’ was t0 be
ie\vels ? ' Pa^  t0 Governor and Mr. Pearfon *, ^ 50 0

A. 1 do not know any thing of jewels be- rupees on account of teeps ; mention of a bond 
tween Bollakey Dofs and Maha Rajah Nun- on account of jewels is made, in wh.cn it is 
finrnrrinr " fpecified that no mtereft is to be paid.

|  Did you fee, in the hands of Bollakey Court: Repeat what you before fa.d about

S i O T X S S f his accom,G " kh v ° which \  “ ( K  j nKre#' snJA  W hen I  drew up the accounts c^the therefore pay it without (fewaw) •) 
yj. w  nen 1  P j, li/T* 'y/irbfnr? The meanin0- of [ewciwy is,Roze N am a, there was at that time no account M r. Jackjort. J-he  ̂mean

o f any jewels of the Maha Rajah’s. 1 afked that at that time he could not pay mtueit 
Pudmohun Dofs, “  W here is the account was to pay four annas.i ia iis is s iis s
Dofs then faid tom e, -W h e n  Maha Rajah to pay an additional quarter rupee. ^
Nundocomar gave the j-ewels to BoUakey 
Dofs, you was not his fervant.”
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Fonthin 1 but Q, A s the account was entered- after the
w ilfp a y  a"fourth more, as a premium for death o f Bollakey Dofs, how came you to fay

the L r o f ? h e bbond0beS  "  3 . They are the books o f Bollakey Dofs ,
*r . . , .  . • j  „  it is cuftomary to addrefs yourlelf to the per-
f° je  it wou P • w ]ieft a bond is fon in whofe name the book ftands.
mvin and it is exp en d  to be fo long a time &  W hat! after their death?
before it is paid as to double the fum, it is A. Yes.
T L a rewaL  to pay a quarter more as a Is there any 'Other account entered in
I S S t S S i l  . L e r i  theDook after the death of Bollakey Dofs,

P . Did you, from the date o f  that paper, where it is faid % an account with you i
make any entry in the books. [T h e books were infpe&ed, and it appeared

■ A. Yes. . . there was.]
rBooks produced, and the following entry _ , . , , . v. > ,
L f ,  b I ' Thefe are the particulars on the credit fide*
In the private account o f Bollakey Dofs, T he jam m a o f M ahaR ajah , 6 .9,630:7, the 

the fum o f 12.9,620:7 is the jamma fide o f bond o f which Bollakey Dofs wrote the par- 
the account o f Maha Rajah Nundocomar ticulars, 48 ,021 rupees, a bond bearing date 
Gee: the particulars o f which are on the ere- 7th Auguft, 17 6 5 , In Englifh  words, but 
dit fide o f the account given on infpefting a Nagree characters : the date o f the bond is 
dull avaize: The receipt is taken, and it is the 7th Baudon, 1 1 7 2 ,  Bengal ftyle; 12 0 5 :4
written on the credit, “  Maha Rajah Nundo- the account o f intereft few-awy has been fettled: 
comar’s account with you.”  which fums caft up make 6 0 ,0 2 6 :1 4 — 9,604•:

6), Was the entry made after the death o f 3 :16  per cent, on account o f ficca rupees 
Bollakey Dofs? added to that, makes 6 9 ,6 30 :7  ; there is .an

It was. end o f the account* 3 , *>■ *
6) How came it to be entered in the ac- W as this entry made before or after the

counts with you.”  bond was paid? _
[Meaning Bollakey Dofs after his death.] A. It was made long after: I did not know 
A. I had feen that Corranama; and Pud- when the bond was paid : when the papers 

mohun Dofs having told me the accounts were called for by the Audawlet, I entered it. 
were fettled in that manner, I made it after Did you make the entry from the in-
his death. fpettion o f the duftavaife immediately after,# .

6). What was the date of the entry? or from an account in the adawlut?
A. There is no date to that particular A. I faW it the fame day I  faw the duft- - 

entry. avaiie. -
6). What is the date o f the tranfaftion be- 6T. W hat did you mean by tiie exprefliort 

fore or after it? “  for which we are now paying the bond ?
A. The thirtieth o f Choit, 18 27 , is the . A. I  only meant <c for which a bond has 

date o f the one before the account ■: the laft been paid.”
•entry is taken from the date of, a note o f hand: M r. 'EUiot fays one word makes the dir-
there is no date after: it is-not the date o f the fefence; the ■ difference is only as between 
tranfaftion; it is only the date o f the note, • dixit and dicit. ■

What is the date next preceding the Foreman. T he entry ought to be made 
note ? rc when the bond was paid:”

A. That which I have mentioned is the ©. W hy, inftead o f deferibing the bond, 
date next preceding. by “  the bond o f which Bollakey Dofs had

j9. Were there any accounts after the note? wrote the particulars,”  you did not deferibe
it
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it by the name o f the Perfian bond, which accounts that were to be fent to the Ada^w  
! haV; nS  been paid, muft be in their poffeffion ? Afterwards Mohun Perfaud would not a S e

^ ’dT h  d dld n0t fli,eW me ,the 1 Pudm°hun figned it alone, and it wasTent
was dependant upon them : they did not into the Adawlet
fhew me the original bond, but only the %  Do you know of their figning moit 
corra nama : I obeyed their orders. than one account? ®  S

§  dV ° r  T S  b7  thuey? t~\ r  A - Yefterday, when I looked over the
A. Mohun Perfaud, Pudmohun Dofs, and papers, I faw a paper figned by them both;

Gungabifien therefore there muft hale beentwo..
%  a pthf e , 4  In the account you faw the other day,
A. Mo, Mohun Perfaud was notrprefent: was there any mention of thefe accounts>

I went to afkhim t he faid, Pudmohun Dofs is A. There is no account in that paper of 
the head man,, go to him. the bond r  r

Q  Do you know if  Mohun Perfaud and What did they fay when you told diem 
GungabifTen were ever acquainted with this o f the entries?
tranfadlion at the time of the entry? yf. When I firfl informed Mohun Perfaud

A. I cannot fay they knew of it at the time and GungabifTen of entering thefe accounts, 
o f the entry. they faid nothing r after that, Mohun Perfaud

D id  they ever after? fettled the accounts of Goffein, and they
A. They knew afterwards- jointly gaye a promiffory note in the account
^  H ow foon afterwards ? fo fettled, and .paid him the whole but fifteen

. A . H ow  can I tell when they knew o f  it or fixteen thoufand rupees, andtold.him they
firfl? they muft have known it by the paper would pay him the balance: after Mohun 
in-the dewanny adawlet. Perfaud told. Goffein to receive the money

Do you know whether GungabifTen, from Pudmohun D ofs: the amount of the 
or Mohun Perfaud, ever faw this entry in the was about thirty-fix or thirty-eight
accounts? thoufand rupees; but afterwards, Pudmohun

A, I do not know: I can tell I wrote it; Dofs faid to him, I have not money, but out- 
that is a fa<5l  to which I carl fpeak; but I can- ftanding balances which I have not received, 
not lay whether they read it or no. due to the eflate, which I fhall receive ; for

Did you ever tell them, or either o f the fums which have already been paid to dif-
them, about the entry? ferent people, you will demand receipts: I f

A . I did inform them o f itP u d m o h u n  you will flay, I will pay you whatever fum
9 Ktofs was privy to all accounts and papers o f the balance amounts to : Pudmohun Dofs, 

the deceafed: GungabifTen and Mohun per- Mohun Perfaud, and GungabifTen feparated, 
faud were not acquainted with the accounts, and God knows what they faid after; Mohun 

6). Do you mean you faid both, or either, Perfaud and GungabifTen complained againfl 
and whom? Pudmohun Dofs, and then all the papers were

A. W hy fliould-not I have told them? they brought to the Adawlet: thefe three people, 
faid the papers were wanted in adawlet, and Goffein, GungabifTen, and Mohun Perfaud, 
told me to draw them up.. joined together in ceunfel to complain; but

6). W hat did you fay in particular? only Goffein complained: Goffein's name is
A . I went and informed them I had en- Bridjoo Ibifhes Gee: I do not fay exaftly 

tered the accounts as they defired, and that who complained with Adawlet; that will ap- 
they were ready for the adawlet. When Bol- pear by the proceedings, 
lakey Dofs died, Mohun Perfaud and Pud- What diflance of time, as near as you
mohun Dofs tranfaded all the bufinefs: Gun- can recoiled, between making entries in Bol- 
gabiffen is in reality m ailer: Tvtohun Perfaud lakey Dofs s books and the complaint in the 
and Pudmohun Dofs at firfl agreed on the A daw let?'
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St. I made the entries about four years and ; j g  Do you  know o f his haying-jewels at
a In If aco as nearly as I can remember. that tim e. • .

i  produces an office copy o f the ^  H e was not plundered o f any jew eb at
cxicu ors accounts, delivered in by Pudmo- B u x a r : I have heard that at Muxadavad he 
r  filed the firft o f Oftober, one thoufand loft a fmall quanttty o f jewels mortgaged to
feven hundred and feventy-four.] hinn : I was not there myfelf.

Can you be certain that it is about four ^  H ow  long fince did you hear it, and 
i /fioifop-o? from whom?

pears . 5  * but cannot fpeak pre_ A _ T he Gomaftah who had abfconded from
. / r  M uxadavad during the troubles, came in to

T c a n  you fpeak to half a year? Bollakey Dofs, and informed him o f it: I was
I believe it was four years ago, but prefent when the. Gomaftah laid they were 

will not fwear to a paper that has no date to plundered.
i t : there is no date to the entry, I cannot be ^  W hat quantity did he fay, and whofe
any w ays certain. property? .

6) \Vill vou fwear it was more than three A. A  very fmall quantity,, not above two 
% - or three thoufand rupees worth. A  Shroli

 ̂ A  j f  j  thought I fhould be queftioned by at M uxadavad had taken a fmall quantity o f
fuch gentlemen as you, I would have wrote money from Bollakey Dofs, and pledged thele
down what I was to fa y : I can fwear to this, jewels. n  r > i
That I firft entered this account a little time ^  Do you know o f Bollakey Dofs s hav- 
after the- accounts came into the A d aw let: ing been plundered o f any jewels at any other
by a little time, I mean two or three months, time? ' . , ,
or any thing under a twelvemonth. A. I  heard o f no other jewels : I  have told

®  Are there any articles without? you all I know about jewels : I never heaid
g  Yes I can ftiow you fifty. any word o f his being plundered o f any other
# .  Do you know o f any objection made by jewels.

Mohun Perfaud and Gungabiffen, at the tifne %  Do you know o f any money being re- 
o f your writing the accounts, to the .time they covered by means o f M aha Rajah Nundo- 
were delivered in? comar from the company for any perfon?

A. I do not know whether they were dif- A. Pudmohun Dofs ufed always to attend at 
pleafed or no; I know they were in counfel M r. Verelft’s with M aha Rajah Nundocomar: 
with Goffein, who afterwards com plained; when the Governor was going to Europe, he 
but what their counfel was I do not know. was at Belvidere *. Pudmohun Dofs went witji 

Q "Was you ever with Bollakey Dofs at M aha Rajah Nundocotnar to wait upon him, 
the army? and occafioned the Company’s bonds to be

A. I  was. paid to Gungabiffen.
How long ago ̂  W hen h i  aha Rajah Nundocomar .s ac-

A. About ten years ago. counts were fettled, do you know o f the
<9. When you was with him, do you know balances having been paid him ? 

any thing o f his being plundered? A- I do not know i f  the balance ever was
A. I have before faid that he was plun- paid him or not. 

dered at Buxar o f every thing. ijh W as you prefent at Belvidere with thefe
5j>. T ell as near as you can the particulars perfons and M r. Verelft? 

of what he loft? A. I was n o t: I  knew o f their going there
A. A  little trunk o f private papers, which for the purpofe o f getting the bonds : I faw 

he never Ihowed to any body : how can I re- them fet out, and faw them return, 
member what was taken from him? his tents Cnurt. G ive evidence o f nothing but what 
were taken; nothing was left him but his you know o f  yo.ur own knowledge, 
jamma. % A*
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.^U ThlS J . ^ now’ .,that a man ^ s/ ent t0 A. I cannot tell whether fhe was pleafed 
call GungabifTen and Pudmohun D ofs: one or no* ^
went in a palanquin j the other in a carriage i Did %  read the accounts herfelf?
they brought Company s bonds j they told me A. She could not read : Pudmohun Dofs
they were going to Belvidere, that Maha might have explained it to her.
RaJ ah,ca!led them to go along with him. | k  Where is the widow now?

When they fet off, do you know where A. She is at Banaris. 4
they were going? • How long has Ihe been at Banaris?
nn l* 'L W  were going there: A . About a month or two after receiving
M aha Rajah lent for them. _ the Company’s bonds, ihe went there: Pud-

Do you know the papers for which they mohun Dofs accompanied her part of the 
Were going? way.

A. T he payment o f the money had been Is Benaris within the jurifdi&ion of the
daily expe&ed: they went to get the Com- Court? 
pany’s bonds: Pudmohun Dofs and Gunga- A . No.
biflen faid the Governor was going in a few [The Counfel for the Prifoner infifted upon 
days, and they certainly ihould get the Com- giving parole evidence of the contents of the 
jpany’s bonds. Upon their return, they brought account given to her.— Mr. Juftice Lemaitre 
the bonds and carried them to the widow o f objected, that fuch evidence could not be ad- 
Bollakey D o fs : a few days after the Gover- mitted, as no proof was jproduced, to ihow 
iior went away. that any endeavours were made for the at-

^  Do you know o f any o f thefe bonds tendance o f the widow, or the original papers 
being paid to M aha Rajah Nundocomar, for in her poiTeflion; to which objeftion the 
a debt due to him by Bollakey Dofs ? Court acceded, but allowed the evidence in

A . T he w idow  o f Bollakey Dofs, when favor o f the Prifoner.] 
the bonds were brought, defired that they Was there any mention in that account
might be carried to Maha Rajah Nundoco- o f the bond ?
m ar; becaufe, fhe faid, they had been obtained A . There was no mention made of this
b y  his m eans: I was prefent: I heard her bond in that paper; it was only a grofs fum. 
w ith my own ears : fhe faid he had been ve- 6). W hat was it an account of? 
ry generous to her, and had fhewn great at- A  It was not an account, it was only a fird, 
tention: fhe added, having firft fettled with containing an account of money received from 
him, fhe would afterwards fettle the other ac- the Company, which was obtained by means 

t counts o f  the Hotife. Pudmohun Dofs deli- o f Maha Rajah Nundocomar: there is an ac~ 
vered an account to GungabifTen: Pudmohun count o f the different fums due to the credi­
t s  fitting down, ordered me to write out tors, and a balance of 60,000 rupees, 
the account o f M aha Rajah Nundocomar W as it after paying Maha Rajah his
w ith  the deceafed: this was in the prefence demand?
o f the widow : they gave the accounts to the A . After paying all the creditors, that
widow o f Bollakey D o fs; a perfon o f the balance remained due. J
hame o f Durhamchurn, defired her to make £>. Do you mean that Maha Rajahs ac- 
herfelfmiftrefsofthebufinefsofthofeaccounts: count was included in it?
Durhamchurn told me fo. A. Yes. ^ ~  r , « *

Court. Y ou  muft not mention what Dur- £>. Do you know of Bollakey Dofs s bein&
hamchurn told you. confined in prifon ?

9 , D id you fee the widow? A. H e was confined in the Court o fC u  -
A. I  did fee her. cherry one night and one day . ■v\ hen
&  D id fhe feem pleafed or difpleafed with fummons was iffued againft him, he went o

the accounts? Chandernagore. ^
M  ^
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o  Do you "know any thing o f the death H ow  long did you ftay in Calcutta
o f Bollakey Dofs? before you went to Banaris.?

§> He arrived the firft day of Aden, fix or A. Four or five months,
feven rears ago} Bollakey Dofs was then ve- <?. H ad Bollakey Dofs any M unfhy ? *
rv fick: Maha Rajah came to his houfe to A. H e had a Munfhy called Balkopen; he 
fee him about three or four days after his had alfo a Vakeel called Seillabut. 
arrival gflSollakey Dofs’s wife and daughter, Do you know what is become o f.B a l-
Pudmohun Dofs, and many other people; and kopen ? *
I likewife was there. Bollakey Dofs faid to J .  I underftood he died at Jaggernaut.
MahaRajah, “  Here is my wifeand daughter, Q  Where did Seillabut die ?.
and Pudmohun Dofs; I recommend them to A. In Calcutta. .
your care, and I wifh you to behave to them W here did Bollakey Dofs live in CaLr
as you have behaved to me; Pudmohun Dofs cutta ? .
has the management o f all my bufinefs o f A. Baboo Hazzreymull gave him his houfe
whatever nature, I recommend him to you.” in the Burra B u zar: he lived there.
I then went away to my own houfe to eat- H ad Bollakey Dofs another houfe .

Q. When did Bollakey Dofs die? A. Bollakey Dofs had a houfe at M uxada-
yl. He died on the i ith  o f Aden. bad; when he was a little man,, he was in bu­
sy Did Bollakey Dofs underftand Perfian ? finefs withDurramchund, andKiffenchund, the 
A* f j e  could neither read nor write i t ; father o f Diachund i the bufinefs was carried 

nor do I know whether he underftood i t : he on in that houfe ; it was a great while ago ; 
went to the Durbar; what he fpoke there I it was before any thing you have heard.; when 
know not. he became a great man, and had the bufinefs

£>. H ad Bollakey Dofs a Perfian feal ? o f Coffim Ally,, he bought a houfe at M uxa- 
A. He had one; but I do not know that I dabad, o f Durramchund, where he fettled the 

ihould be able to know it i f  I  faw it. accounts with Kiflenchund and Durramchund:
the houfe was not his own. before he fettled

Cross E xamination-  with them.. ' r\
&K W as it a houfe o f  much bufinefs ?

£>. In what language did Bollakey D ofsge- 2L A ll the . world, at that time, knew that 
nerally do his bufinefs l to be a houfe o f Bollakey Dofs si it was a

A . Bollakey. Dofs never executed any Per- houfe o f much bufinefs* .
fian bonds in my p re fe n c e h e  had Perfian Do you know whether he kept jewels*
writers; whatever he d id in  that way, muft or other valuable effefts there ? m
have been with them : I can anfwer to any o f A. I only know o f his having feme money, 
his Nagree bufinefs. and thofe jewels I mentioned j? I know o f no

£)j Was you with Bollakey Dofs in 1.172.?*!' others.
A. When he firft arrived here, I went to i^ . Do you know R o y  Jaggernaut Jew  ? 

Banaris to a m arriage: I came to Calcutta A . I do not.
with Bollakey D ofs: feme months after I W here are the accounts o f that houfe ?
went to Banaris, I ftaid there a year, and then A . I  know nothing o f the accounts o f that
came back. houfe.

Was you at Calcutta the year in which Mg D o you believe that jewels to a very 
the bond was executed ? great amount could have been taken from

A . I do not know whether I was, or was that houfe without your hearing o f it?
n o t; I can find out by the books, when I A . I muft have known o f it, in cafe any
came, [looked at books] I arrived the ift  o f jewels to £ great amount had been plundered; 
Srawon, 1822. J  a thoufand people muft have known it.

&

•f Bengal year. t Nagree sera.
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a %  f * * -  DOfS PUt 3 t f h e ? c ° c Z ” Cy“  " 0 t "  m' Mi0n the bMd
any P aPer.of this kind, A. I f  my matter received any money, and 

hrs Munfhy would have known it. gave a bond, I entered the receipt of the
Have you any paper of Bollakey Dofs’s money, but did not enter the bond into the

w n“ nf  I book till it was paid.
• g)*’ Do you believe, that if a bofid for fo

7 k n,ow . any Pe^ oftJ ln Calcutta large a fum, had been given by Bollakey
that is acquamted with the hand writing of DoTs, about eight or nine days after he came

1S .  .*1 T* ' from Banaris, you Ihould not have known it?
A. I do not. . . ■ When I ftrft came to Calcutta, I roved
A ?  » °W n°n®  T  . lve kim ? about the town to fee every thing I could fee
A- I can ihew how long he lived with him I do not know.

b^ y books- How could the accounts be regularly
&  H ave you any paper o f his writing? kept, or Bollakey Dofs. know what he was
■ "* N o. worth, if  only the money received, and not
£). Do you know any body that has ? the bond, was entered ?
^  N o. I do not underftand Perfian, and A . He may, or may not mention the bond,

therefore did not trouble myfelf with his hand without being irregular, 
writing. 6). Suppofe a Perfian bond is brought to

Do you know whether there are any of your matter to be paid ; he orders you to pay 
that Munlfoy’s writing among the papers ? i t ; how would you enter that in the books ?

' N o. According to the orders of my matter:
D id you ever know Bollakey Dofs give if he fimply bid me pay loOo rupees, I Ihould: 

a Perfian. bond ? * if  he ordered me to take notice of it, I fhould :
A. When Bollakey Dofs, in the coufe o f I fhould fearch the debit fide of my matter’s 

bufinefs, gave any bonds, he ordered a writer account, and fee if  I could find fuch an ac- 
to write them in Nagree, and fignedthem with count.
his own hand. fjh I f  money is paid in, and a bond given,

1§| Do you remember, in the whole courfe do you make no memorandum of the bond? 
o f his bufinefs, his ever giving a Perfian A  I make no memorandum ; if money 
bond? is firft paid in, and afterwards afked for; if

A. I do not remember; i f  any thing o f it is defired to be kept, and the anfv/er is, 
that fort pafled in Perfian, it mutt have been that then it mutt be upon intereft, and a bond 
in the Perfian office: I never was prefent given ; I fhould not enter that laft tranfaftion. 
when he executed any Perfian bond. ' Do not Nagree merchants enter bonds

m  I f  any bond had been given in Perfian, in their books ? 
mutt not you have known it, to have entered A. Some do, and feme not. 
it in the books ? ' Do Nagree merchants ever give Per-

A. The accounts were regularly kep t; but fian bonds ? 
i f  a bond was given, I do not know whether A. Nagree merchants o f rank may give 
it was particularly fpecified; but if  the bond Perfian bonds.
came to be paid, it would be paid if  regu- [bond fhewn him]. Can you tell which
larly executed. ' is Bollakey Do&ys feal?

W as ever a Perfian bond brought you A . I cannot tell which is the feal; 1 fee
to be paid ? feals I do not know.

A . I  never faw any Perfian bond o f Bol- Did you know Bollakey Dofs’s feal?
lakey Dofs’s. A. I fee feals I do not know j it was round

M 2  ‘ fifvcr
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filver fet in go ld ; all I know o f it is, it was A. I did.
round filver fet in gold. ^  Is the bond the fame in all refpedts, and

Q. Do you know if  it is either o f thofe in every part as that laid in the -indidlment i 
on the bond ? -A There is fome variance.

A. I know it is not one of the fquare ones;
the other it may be. Sheer U lla Cawn.

&r Where did Bollakey Dofs keep the . .

I*eal • . „  r ■ , . XT Did you read what was in the recordA. When Bollakey Dofs was with the N a- ^  f ^  /  '
bob, he wore the feal on his finger: when he ^  j  ^
came to Calcutta, he kept it in his ink ftand. ’ .  • ?

9 . Plave you often feen the feal o f Bollakey ... ’ m-<5 . > . A. On the record there are two marks un-
Dofs on his huger. der the word cc nittan wadifteer in the origin

A. I have often feen it, but I fhould not , there are no fuch marks  ̂ &
know it. •

gK Did not you frequently fee him put it , 
to the outfide of letters ? M r. E lliot*

A. When he ufed to write to the Nabob, 
and great people, he ufed to put his feal to ^  W hat are thofe marks ? 
the letter: I  have feen him. A . They are merely dots, called'nochkts-

You hear that there are feveral wit- Q. Are thofe dots material ? 
neffes, that have feen the feal o f other people A. I take it, they are not. Perfian papers 
two or three times upon their fingers, that are wrote fometiaaes with them, and fometimes 
are able to fwear to the impreffions ; cannot without them : if the omiffion. or infertion o f  
you recolleCt/ that have feen it  fo much of- thofe dots was to be deemed a miftake, there 
tener ? would always be at leaft 20 miltakes in every

A . They have excellent memories j I  am 10  lines o f Perfian. 
not bleifed with fuch a one. * Q  Are they underftood to be material ?

£>. W as Pudmohun Dofs any natural re- A. They never are fo- u nderfeed : nor is
lation of Bollakey Dofs** • ♦ the Perfian language ever wrote with, that ac-

A • N o : nor was he of the fame caft ;  but curacy,
he had a very great liking to him •, if he pleafed, Don’t the infertion o f the nochkts,, make
he might make ufe o f a lack o f rupees : Pud- the dift motion of Angular and plural in this  ̂
mohun Dofs was another Bollakey Dofs. cafe ?

W as he his adopted fon ? A. They do.
A. H e called him his fon, but he was not &  Is it the cuftom in Perfian to fpeak o f

his adopted fon. every body, even yourfelf, in the plural num*
[Sheer Ulla Cawn, and Nuzzer o Dien, ber? 

twoMunfhies, being called upon by the Court A . I think it is : I muft correct m yfelf as tcy
to compare accurately the original bond with fpeaking of one’s felf* I, am notfo clear as to. 
the bond laid in the indictment, having com- that.
pared the fame, are fworn.] £). Does this variance run thro-’ all the

counts ?
N uzzer o Dien. A. N o.

T o  which count does it apply ?
§>. Did you read the original bond, word A. T o  the fifth only, 

by word, while $heer Ulla Cawn read the fe- W hat is the fifth count for ?
veral parts of the indictment, wherein it is re- A. For forging, with an intent to defraud 
cited ? I Bollakey Dofs.

* T o
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$.?<> Munjhy: Is there any other, vari- Dofs; the court ordered, that Pudmohun Dofs. 
anc® . . .  - , „  ftould deliver, or depofuin the regiftry of the

T k n0Gkl; etamafook / (>• e. court, all fuch books, papers, and vouchers,
copy of bond) are wrote mPerfian, on the top, touching, or any way relating to the accounts

• 1Q r r £ y£ OUnlr 1 f  u v  ■ of the eftate o f Bollakey Dofs, deceafed; and
[The<Counfel for the pnfoner mfifted on this that the faid Pudmohun Dofs fhall be permitted 

being.a material variance j but the Court over- to attend his own affairs, under the cuftody of 
tuled the objection, thinking it to be no more proper Sheriff’s Peons, until the faid accounts 
than a repetition in Perfian, that it was the te- are carefully examined, 
nor o f the bond, and not meant to be laid as
any part o f the bond*} 14th January, 1772-

M r. D r iv e r  G H O S A I N E  by his attorney, William
M TT7, . *v , / , Magee, informed the court, that Pudmohuw
^  Who were the bonds and other papers be* Dofs, one of the executors to the laft will and

longing to Bollakey Dofs’s eftate delivered to ? teftament of Bollakey Dofs, was lately dead, 
2̂. T o  Gungabifien- and that Gungabifien and his brother Hingoo

M r. S e a l y , late Regifter of Mayor’s Court. Lollan'  who [s #  Patna> the. remaining 
. r . executors; and that Gungabiilen is incapable

Do you know of any application,, ei- of taking charge of the affairs of the faid
ther to this court or to the Mayor s court to Bollakey Dofs. Ordered, that William Ma- 
get the papers out o f the Regifter s hands ? regifter "of this court, fhall forthwith,
j ,  ■ There was an application made to the tajte charge Gf  the books and papers of the 
Mayor s court by Mr. Driver for thefe papers, o f the faid Bollakey Dofs, deceafed,. and
and rejected. fettle the fame, and report to this court a true

ifettlement thereof-
The roreman o f the Grand Jury, who 

had been one of the Aldermen, and ferved the j January 21ft, 1 773*
office o f M ayor, defired that the records of j O R D E R E D , that a citation lhall iflue 
the Mayor’s court might be produced-, they lagainft Bridjoo Rotoon D  fs, Kebolram Pon- 
were produced accordingly by M r. M cVeagh, ida, and Gungabofs, requiring them to be, and 
the keeper o f the records of this court, and the appear before the court, on Tuefday next, 
feveral extracts, herein after mentioned, were to ftiew caufe, if they have any, why they 
read at his defire, for the purpofe of proving, ffiould not deliver over unto Mr. William Ma- 
that Gungabifien had ever been treated in the I gee, regifter of this court, the books, papers 

. * proceedings of the Mayor’s court as a vyeak man, |of acccounts and others, belonging to the 
incapable of tranfaffcing his own bufinefs. [eftate of Bollakey Dofs, deceafed, conformable 

On the 8th of November,. 1769. a motion ;to the order of this court o f the 14th inflant. 
was made and agreed to,, that the will o f Bel- • T , ■
lakey Dofs fhould be depofited in the court. January e 2  , . .

. T H E  Sheriff’s officers returned the citation 
13th November,. 1770,, _ againft Bridjoo Rotoon Dofs, Kebolram Ponda

A  citation, ifiiied, for the executors to bring ;anc| Gonga Bofe executed, 
in their accounts, together with the balance of ! W H E R E A S  Pudmohun Dofs, one of the- 
the, eftate, and to depofijt the fame in the Com- 'executors or truftees of Bollakey Dofs, de- 
pany’s cafh. ceafed,. on the iff day 'o f Odtober laft, was

if f  October,. 1 7 7 1 .  ordered to depofit in the regiftry o f this
_ t* -» mnrr alI the books. and papcis o f accounts 

I T  being fuggefted to.the court, that Poo- ^  tQ fhe fftate Gf  the faid Bollakey
mohun Dofs had conveyed away feveral books s %  J afed in eonfcquence whereof, the
and* papers belonging to the eftate o f Bollakey > faid
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faid books and papers were depofited in a room That the papers o f Pudmohun Dofs ffiould 
of the houie of tlicfaid Pudmohun Dofs, in be feparated from thofe o f Bollakey Dofs. 
order to be perufed and examined, which room This order was not carried into execution, 
was fecured with two locks; the key o f one till the 27th A pril, 17 7 3 . 
o f which locks was in the pofieffion of Bil
govin, and the other in the care of the faid 25th M arch, 1774 . .
Pudmohun Dofs’s people. Balgovm this day M r. D R I V E R ,  attorney for Gungabif- 
appeanng in court upon oath, declaied, that f  read 4 petition froi^  him fly in g , 
one day, when he went up to the faid room, T| ’ . , m  ■ f  . c  ’  ,,
he found the door had been opened, and that lh a t ’ , e • ^  1  Y g  :  « ,?!: , .  . - i 1 papers belonging to the eftate or Bollakeyhis lock, together with a knot he had tied p  &r „ > >k t ^  -• l j  u j  a • _  Dofs, were depofited in the Court, amongupon ir, had been opened, and ongoing into f  _ > * « A ’ • ^
JC 1. r  -j T  » it? which were twenty-eight bonds, receipts,the room, he found that the greateft part o f the , , / ^ j* , & % r  - i and vouchers ; that he had commencedpapers were taken away, together with lome r . . . ^  a j i - a * a

b  & , .  r  , .. i • 0 _iuits in the Dewannee Adawlet; and wantedother things of value. 1 hat upon making an , c  . ,  , , . , T ,i  ̂4. 1  ____ the laid bonds, receipts, and other vouchers,exclamation, and threatening to come to court . , a* , r/1_ r , yr  , . 3
to complain, one Kebolram Ponda, then in order to ^ablifo the fame : and praying,
the houfe, requeued him to be quiet, and not ^ a t  they may be delivered to him, giving
to go to complain to the court, but go and the ufual receipt for the fame, .
fpeak to the w idow ; and foon after'JVIohun .T h e  Court deferred the confideration o f
Perfaud came in, when he and the faid Kebol- the faid P€tltlon tlU next Court da7-
ram Ponda went near the widow, and fpoke AT, n r n r n  t l  .  a- f  , r . , 
to her fomething, which he this deponent O R  D  E  R E  D , T h at an officer o f the faid 
could not hear, as he flood at fome diflance: Dewannee Adawlet be permitted to attend 
from them •, and foon after Mohun Perfaud, at ™ e R eg*fter s office, to lnlpedt the books, 
and the faid Kebolram Ponda came to the PaPers> an<a vouchers aforefaid. 
place where be was, and begged him not to
expofe her, and that lhe would deliver up all 25th D ay o f January, 1775*
fuch papers as remained in her, pofieffion, and
accordingly the faid Kebolram Ponda went M r. F A R R A R ,  advocate for 'Gungabif-
and dug the ground in the compound, and got fen, furviving executor o f  Bollakey Dofs,
fome books and papers out o f it, and delivered deceafed, moves, that two chefts, contain-
the fame to this deponent, which he put into ing papers, accounts and vouchers, relative
a cheft, and locked up : and whereas, the faid to the accounts o f the cftate o f the faid
Pudmohun Dofs having lately departed this Bollakey Dofs, deceafed; and alfo twenty- jjp
life inteftate, and no one having yet petitioned eight bonds and receipts, belonging to the
this court for letters of adminiftration o f the faid eftate, which were depofited in the R e-
eftateof the faid Pudmohun Dofs, deceafed : giftry o f the late M ayor's Court, at the in-

rvDTMTDm , r  ftance of William Magee, .who was confti-O R D F  RED, That public notices be af- ■ , rr> • o r *  n * 1
c  ■, ‘ 1 r 1 r e- *r tuted attorney of Bridioo beer Golhain, a le-nxed, at public places of this town, notify- „ A m  c  s - a  a  r  a

- c  c  r  r  j  gatee named m the will of the faid decealed,ing, That, it lome perion or perfons do & , , j  . ^  r  -j  r -  u*/rT  • t • i /  .̂1 • 1 r  • . may be delivered to the faid Gungabinemnot within 14 days, trom this day, petition 1 ^
the Court for letters o f adminiftration o f the ^  -n tm - -n t- t> -a.  ̂ j
raid Pudmohun Doft, deceafed, the Court , O R D E R E D ,  T h at the Regifter do
lhall appoint a proper perfon to take charge ‘° ok mt0 * e. Pro« ' d:" g s * e late s
thereof & C °urt> relative to the above papers, ac­

counts and vouchers ; and inform the Court 
July ad 1772. I T  W A S  O R D E R E D , thereof, on M onday next the 30th inftant.

J a".
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January 30th, 17 7 5 . hun Dofs, deceafed, who was one of the
M r. F A R R E R ,  • advocate for Gunga- e^ec^tor" o f the faid Bollakey Dofs, deceafed, 

biflen, furviving executor o f Bollakey Dofs, °k je<-ts hereto,
deceafed, moves, That two chefts, contain- TT IS PFRFM PTO RTT v  n R D F R im  
tag papers, accounts and vouchers, relative ThaT the in p V L °  a S ^ h
to the accounts o f the eftate o f the faid the ailiftance o f Huzzermaul Baboo, and 
Bollakey Dofs, deceafed, and alfo twenty- the faid Coffenaut Baboo, in cafe they both 
eight bonds and receipts belonging to the attend, or if one of them only attends, then 
faid eftate, which were depofited in the Re- in prefence, and with the affiftance of fuch 
giftry o f the late Mayor’s Court, as men- one, examine the faid papers, accounts, and 
tioned to this Court, on the twenty-fifth in^ vouchers, bonds and receipts; and feparate 
ftant, may be delivered to the faid Gunga- fuch as appear to belong to the eftate of the 
biflen. faid Bollakey Dofs, deceafed, from thofe

M r. Brix, advocate for Seebnaut Dofs and which appear to belong to the eftate of the 
Lauchmon Dofs, adminiftrators o f Pudmo- faid Pudmohun Dofs, deceafed; and that he 
hun Dofs, deceafed, who was one o f the do deliver the former unto the faid Gunga- 
executors of-the faid Bollakey Dofs, deceafed, biflen; and the latter, unto the faidSeeb-, 
objefts thereto. naut Dofs and Lauchmon Dofs, adminiftra­

tors o f the faid Pudmohun Dofs, deceafed, 
I T  I S  O R D E R E D ,  T h a^ th e R egi- within one month from this d ay ; and in 

fter do, in prefence, and with the affiftance o f cafe neither o f them, the faid Huzzermaul 
Huzzeremaul Baboo, and Coffenaut Baboo, Baboo, and Coffenaut Baboo, do attend, that 
both o f Calcutta, examine the faid papers, the Regifter do examine, and feparate them 
accounts, and vouchers, bonds and receipts; in the beft manner he can, and deliver fuch. 
and feparate fuch as appear to belong to the o f them to the faid parties refpedlively, as 
eftate o f the faid Bollakey Dofs, deceafed, he lhall think right, within the time afore- 
from thofe w hich. appear to belong to the faid* 
eftate o f the faid Pudmohun Dofs, deceafed: M q
and that he do deliver the former unto the r* EALY#
faid Gungabiffen, and the latter unto the Did you, in confequence o f the laft
faid Seebnaut Dofe. order o f the Court, examine and feparate the

papers ?
March 24th, 17 7 5 . A, I did, after having examined them

|< •> .  ' AT, T. r n  .. - £ r n ___* with and without Coffinaut and Huzzer-
I  ^  5 a V° Cf ^  11 1 Yinfc niaul,- by the agreement of the parties..

biflen, furviving executor o f Bollakey Dofs, dfd u deliver the bonds, and
deceafed, moves, That two chefts contain- th(^ ther s> relatklg t0 Bollakey Dofs’s
mg papers, accounts and vouchers, relative eft t0 Gungabiffen >
to the accounts o f the eftate o f the faid Bolla- W Abou£ th A  n laft.
key Dofs, deceafed; and alfo 2.8 bonds and p r
receipts belonging to the faid eftate, which L auchmon Doss,
were depofited in the Regiftry or the late
M ayor’s Court, may be delivered to the faid gK D id you know Bollakey Dofs ?

j Gungabiffen; they not having yet been exa- A . I knew Bollakey Dofs when I was*
i mined, purfuant to the order o f this Court, J^gting. r

o f the thirtieth day of January laft, owing '  Did you ftay with Bollakey Dots t .
to Coffinaut Baboo’s not attending. A . Yes.

M r. Brix, advocate for Seebnaut Dofs and Q  How many years.
I  Lauchmon Dofs, adminiftrators of Pudmo- A . One year. -v
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q  Have you ever Teen him execute an? main there. I arrived here 8 months after 
-papers ? the death o f Pudmohun Dofs. T h at paper
F j '  I have feen him fign and feai many was not in my pofleffion. 
papers Qs H ave you looked over the papers in

& Was vou his fervant? Court?
J .  I was.' A , I  have not.
6? Have you feen him fign any papers ?
7 . I ufed to fee him fign Nagree papers, K issen  j uan Dqss>

and feal Perfian. I have feen him with my
own eyes. ■ , t . W. W hen you went with M r. Seal ey, what

§  H ave ever had a brother ? papers did you look for ?
A. I had two. y I looked for a paper wrote in Bolla*

W as Pudmohun Dofs your rot te r . jcey  Dofs’s hand, figned by Pudmohun Dofe,
A. Yes. . . . It was a paper, in which all the agreement

A  H is affairs and effects are in my hands. D id yQu ]ook oyer every per ?
Have you o tame an or er o our ^  j  looked over every one paper, and 

to be his admini rator. can pwear was not aryj0ng  them.
„ , , ave“ . . . Jury. 9 . W ould not the Curra N am ahave
.  .  T • , . rv j  • been given up, on a bond given to performA. M r. Jarret has it. [Letters o f admi- . «=

niftration produced to him andSeibnaut Dofs, ^  R  g  thg cuftom tQ take away the firft

ls a „ r r  contraft, when the fecond is given*[M r. jarret proves ferviCe or notice on °
the witnefs, to produce a Nagree paper given
to Pudmohun Dofs by M aha Rajah Nundo- L auchmon  D oss.
comar, when Mohun Perfaud, Gungabiflen,
and Pudmohun Dofs, were at his houfe, in D id  you knoto Bollakey Dofs's feal ?'
Bollakey Dofs’s own writing,, dated about A. From  feeing it I  fhall know whether ifc
the 9th o f Poofe. H e likewife proves the is fuch as hfemfed; but I  do not underftand 
fame notice on Seebnaut D ofs.] * Perfian. 1 Ihould know whether the feal was

like it from the fhape.

S eebn a u t  D oss>
C ro ss E x a m in a t io n .

Have you any paper belonging to your
late fon Pudmohun Dofs ? D id Bollakey Dofs fign, when he feal*

A. I  was at Patna, when he died. I  have ed Perfian papers £ 
never had any o f his papers* A. H e  did not.

What part or the paper did he feal

L auchmon Doss* ° n ^ T i ^  i • r i TTA . 1 have teen him feal many papers* H e
&  H ave you any papers belonging to ^ d  to put his feal to letters and papers. 

Pudmohun Dofs ? %  ^ a t  fervant was you ?

A. Both Pudmohun Dofs’s private papers, A  1  uffed f0 WrlK Ietters‘  1  had charS e 
and thofe of Bollakey D o ff  were in th^  ̂  f he 4 * «  „  , -  ,  _
Court. Gungabiflen has taken away Boll a- - D id  you ever fee Bollakey Dofs w rite
key Dofs’s papers. Pudmohun Dofs’s re- ° r leal *

Ah
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and put his feai on Perfian p ^ e rs !" Nagree> ;aĥ wâ “ f-led me thi;ee days before Maha R a- 
H ow  w asyoo, wfieo you faw his he

A. I have feen his feal on his finder very t o l l ' I v n T !  V* ^ ho,deflred me
near W hen the Sepoys ufed to bring d r a S  deal to fay to me" T ^ ak T  T  ^

sm s 1  wer in perL: * Is S S S S  - - « ■
A. i ^ 2 r ldfdv.erreehim  put k  toab o n d ? s oh; rn:lat down, he took out lome papers: he firft 

took out two teeps that were torn at the top ; 
M r. S e a l e y . be. â*d’  ̂ ^a\ e heard thefe are in your hand-

1 . . . writing. I faid, Give them to me, and I will
J|h W as you prefent with Kiflen Juan 1° ° ^  at them. I took them, looked at them, 

Dofs, when he looked over the papers? and â'd» They are not my hand-writing. He 
A. Yes. ‘ faid,You was before a fervant o f Maha Rajah;

D id he look at all the papers ? !  bave heard they were of your hand-writing:
'A . N o. H e would not look at fome, be- They Tare not , o f m7 hand-writing; if

caufe o f the indorsement, and fome becaufe . 7  Were’ /  Y ° J lld te]}  you- Afcer that he 
they were old, and fome becaufe he tied them C? ? k, ° Ut/  ,bond Omafoolc) and faid, I have 
up himfelf. I  apprehend the papers could , • ,rC} tbis ]vas your hand-writing j look
not be examined-in lefs than three days. vy m . 1 . o k . atr lC and read ,lC> and faid,

1 JN either is this o f my hand-writing: in that
bond fomething is wrote about pearls. He 

K issen  J uAn D oss. faid, I heard this is your hand-writing: there
is a friendlhip between you and m e: why don’t 

D id you examine every bundle ? you tell about this ? 1 again faid, they are not
A . There were feveral large bundles o f my hand-writing. Mohun Perfaud faid, If 

papers o f old accounts, that 1  did not exa- you will fay they are o f your hand-writing,
mine, thinking them o f no ufe. Maha Rajah will be a great liar, and will

Court. T h is w ill not entitle you to read meet with great punifhment. I do not want 
any paper, or make what KifTen Juan Dofs you to tell for nothing; I will give you 4 or 

• faid evidence. Rut tho’ it is not ftri& ly fo, 5 ° ° o  rupees, I  faid, I cannot tell fuch words 
I  will neverthelefs leave it to the Jury. as thefe: it is not my hand-writing : how can

I tell it is ? H e then faid, W ell, if you will 
x ̂  . not fay it is your hand-writing, find out a man
M onohur M cjnshV. that will fay it is his hand-writing : whatever

. is to be given I will give him ; I will likewife
D o you know Mohun Perfaud . make you joyful. Mohun Perfaud faid, En-

A- I  do. quire for fuch a man : I  anfwered, I cannot
^  H as he ever fent for you lately ? do this, ] faid that he was advifing me to do
A . H e  has. a very bad bufinefs, and I went from thence.
^  D id  he fhew you fome papers ? 6). Did you relate this to any one, upon
A. H e  did. your getting home ?
Q. In what language ? A. It is a month and 10  or 1 1  days ago,
A. In Perfian. fince this happened: how many men have
Q. T e ll the Court truly what palled on that afked me about this I know not, it is fo long 

occafion ? N ago
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V  ■■ f  l j j g i S S  If" o „ r:  in t  How^camehe to afc y o u f
tions have alked. ^  Becaufe he faw the peon come, he afked

r a ® ‘ Have you told it to any body f  me why Mohun Perfaud lent for me >
9  I mentioned it to no body immediately. %  W nat was the peon s name.?

 ̂ mentioned '  . ? j  j  a(ked his name: j  don’t well remem-
y°  ̂ ber y but I believe it was Cawota : he faid he

%  n 5  J J ii  the next day * was Mohun Perfaud’s man.
f  1 do not know : [he recolledts] upon the £  Did the peon go with you to Mohun

evening of that day 1 mentioned it to Perma- Perfaud’s ?
ft i • J .  H e did not.

nUnd iVlokerjee. ^  did he ca'l you ?

O o ss  E x a m i n a t i o n . A . At /  gurries : l  went after mid-day
e> W ho was at Mohun Perfaud’s houfe ^  Had you ever been at Mohun Perfaud s 

t \ before ?
"  A  I faw Kiffen Juan Dofs; he alfo faw me ; A. I have, becaufe I owed him 72 rupees v I
but in the room into which I was carried, never was m that room before.
there was no body but Mohun Perfaud and ^  Did you teU any body elfe that day . ^
* i lf  A ’ 1 only, told Permanund that day.
11 Were none of Mohun Perfaud's people Q  Did you tell any one the next day ,  
i j |  ? .  y  A. I did not that day j  after that day it got

1 I went up fla irs: I  faw Kiffen Juan Dofs wind, and a great many people alked me :. I
fitting; there: I faw no one elfe. told them. .

6  ̂ When Mohun Perfaud fpoke to you, ^  Did Mohun Perfaud bid you keep it a
did you underftand that he wanted you to tell fecret?
whether you had wrote it or not, or to fay that A. N o  ; but there was a great fnendfhip
you had abfolntely'wrote it if  you had not? 'between us. 1t .. -j m  •

sf. How can I tell what paffed in his heart? ^  W ho did you tell it to next, after you
I tell what happened : I have taken ah oath: told it to Permanund ?
you have put aueftions to me : what I know I A. I cannot remember: many people aiked
told you. me, and 1 told them#

9. What did he fay to you? * * ^  W ho did you tell it to befides.
A. ** I f  you do fay it, Maha Rajah will be A . I told it M r. Durham,

proved a liar, and will have great punifhment. H ow  came you to tell M r. Durham .
You will not fay it for nothing * you will have A. Mr. Durham afked me, who was my
4 or rooo rupees.”  mailer? .

9 . Did Mohun Perfaud mean to get the A  Did you tell any other Dngliihman.
man that wrote it, or one who did not, but A . N o : what have I to do with Englilh-
would fwear he did? . . men? , . . T i

A  He faid, “  I f  it is not your hand-writing, ^  Did you never tell it to M r. J  arret?
find out fuch a man for me, who will fay, A . H e alked me in this co u rt: I  did not
Thefe are my letters: what is proper to give tell all.
I  will give ; and I will render you joyful.”  <$). T o  how many black people did you

6). Yvhere does Permanund Muckerjee tell it? 
live ? A. I  do not remember.

A. In the fame compound with me. gK Did you ever tell it to Kiffen Juan Dofs ?
£>. What is his employment? A. I did n ot: I do not remember any other
A- He is in no employment. black man I told it to.
gK Did Permanund Mokerjee a Ik you, or *1$

did you tell him |
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^  Do you remember any other perron that A. It teas after 
afked you about it ? & .

A . 1 do not remember one that afked me • >  i .'d • ,Dur“ am ftew you the bond ?
there were a great many, but i do not remem- 1 do not M e m ­
ber them. o not remem her the other. Mohun Perfcud fhewed me

(3) * • <-y-. ' three papers. *
rnan}7 witneffes remember accurately 6) pjr<, Tir * r .

■ » ^ V S W  cannot you remember for
A T ^  „ to you ?

i  am a Company’s fervant: whv fhonlH /i n
I  take fuch pains about it ? Y Perfaud h T n ,0” 6 ° l  two days after Mohun

%  W ho do you keep company with * J  n  a fbewn them to me.
A. Mr. Durham. 1 P 7 ' o f % n? d T f  * $  Durham “ y thingfi) , ». , Mohun Perfaud s offer ? J &

iM f ^ ant you remember any one that has No 
afked you ? „  . , „  ,

A. I  cannot remember one. "jf ^  paffed at Mr. Durham’s.

1 1 $ ^  SO tom nke Mams to Maha

A. Since he has been confined in gaol 1 truthV^I f c l / h l ^ v S d  file ^
have not paid falams : I ufed before. *  hand-writing in the book of T  * *

Are you fure you have not vifited him when they were compared they6 were found 
fince he has been in gaol ? not to agree F y ere tound

h in t in g t l 110t rememb£r that 1 haVC Vlfked $  Who were prefent befide Mr. Durham 1 
gaol. A% Mohun Perfaud and Jaggutchund, the

j  _  [Question repeated.] fon-in-law of Maha Rajah.
he f ao 1S the fame ftlrcet w!th the . %  Did you then fay that Mohun Perfaud

r } ' 7  r /  J f O  the. « ?  dV -  1 had anted you the fame queftions before ?
5 !f(>  NoWuff“ ,and P p W  o f . A. N ot why fhould 1 do more than anfcer

rank had been to pay falam s: I like wife w ent! his queftions ?
to pav falam • I uui Xfcc niiu . x u u u  /a* rv j   ̂ . .. ,  .
but that time, ham o f the offer maderyoh &jPl&JSlL^fc Dur-

A. Another time Mr. Durham fent to me,
Y e a n d e l , (Gaoler) fworn. and afked if Mohun Perfaud had offered

_  „ .  r i • v i > me any money : 1  told him what I have before
6). Did you ever fee this man at the gaol ? rejate(f

. , A . I think 1 have feen him about the gaol. «  h ow ]ong ;s it fince Mr. Durham fent
Did you ever fee him more than once r for y0U p

A . I cannot fay with precifion : I think I \  It was bef0rethe Grand Jury met.
have feen him once, and remember him well. ^  How long before?

_ - A. About 4 or c days : I can’t tell with
M onohur M e t r e . certainty.

& Did any body elfe fhew you thefe Per- Did you come when Mr. Durham fent
flan papers ? . for you firft ? , :

A. Yes, M r. Durham alfo fhewed me the A. A  man came to me about mid-day : I 
teeps : I do not remember whether he fhewed faid I was fick, I would come the next day. 
the bond : he afked me if they were in my 9̂  W as you really fick? 
hand writing ? A  l  was feverilh, and had a purge.

Q W as Mohun Perfaud prefent ? ijk What converfation pafled between you
Y es. and Mr. Durham?
W as this before or after what pafled at N  2 4>

Mohun Perfaud’s houfe ?
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off£dHme mon “  %  “  h l t ^ v t a  f .  K p S 'HaSurday * it was upwards of
£ £  ,and J  him wha, I hava btfore month ^

related. >• ■ Ai;n,.'  A . I  do not know.
Mr. D urham • days & W hat induced you to go there then ? _

I was told by rny ^rca ’ , Raiah that A. There was formerly a great friencjftnp
after the commitment e f  Munfliy between Maha Rajah and Mohun Perfaud:
the man that wrote the bond was the Munmy i deal o f „ otice o f  me
oftheCntcherry andtha he had been^attltat ^  q„ a„.e lw > and I went
time M unfey to Maha J h* ^  ^  of equally t0 both when they were feparated.
the bond, and alked h , P , ®  A t what time was this ?
Jaggut Chund and Mohun ud . ^  j  remember the time, when M aha R a ­
the bond and read i t ;  looked at _ 1 J* ^  day to me> Y o u  know I like no
accurately: I gave him all th ^  one better than Mohun Perfaud, except my

\ n0fiVft hlC H then faid it was not his hand, fo n : now b 2  wifhes to ruin me in this af-
,at̂  fnh h S t  to recoiled himfelf, fair o f Bollakey Dofs; he .is only an attorney

1 d,efir ld W  vrnfe h to tell • he ftill faid it in this affair : tell him he cannot get mere
and if he bad wrote ^ me tjian , 7> or IO thoufand rupees, by fuc-

tbeS Uucherry" which he brought imme- ceeding in this affair; tell him, i f  he pleafes, 
tiie Lutcneiry, ,• P , did not j  w ip Rive him 15 ,  or 20,000 to defift from-
d.iatf y il0!?1 T y l d Mohun Perfaud this profecution; I told M ohun Perfaud, and

A  M a n .  M o l L  Perfaud faid, I  have told a great mhny
H e knew a  ̂ little of Perfian as I did myfelf. Englifh Gentlemen o f i t ;  1 cannot defift.
Not a word paffed of any offer from Mohun £  W hen was this converfa ion ?
Perfaud or his having feen the papers before; _ A. It was 9 or 10  months befoie l  gave
every day after that he was at my houfe; he evidence o f this affair before the Judges.
never mentioned a word of any offer from There was a fuit, at that time, in the Dewam  never mentionea a woi / - —  ^ a w ic i .  lvioiiuft rerfaud Kavmg heard
Mohun 1  e r f a u d ^ : ^ elay f0> j fent for what I related about M aha Rajah Nundoco-
Monohur, and he told me juft what he has mar, afked me about it, and defired me to
now related. * * . come, and give evidence of* it on the water

Memorandum. T w o of the witnefles, Ram- o f the Ganges.
naut and Bolgovind, that were on the back o f J). Do you underftand Englifti ?
the indictment, not having been called by the A. N o, I do not.
Profecutor, and it having been obferved by the W hen did M ohun Perfaud firft hear
Court, and the .Counfel for the Prifoner being what you have faid?
told that they might call for them, the Counfel A. I have before faid, it was 9 or 10  
for the Prifoner faid, he was well acquainted months, before I gave evidence before the 
with, and could give the reafons why the Ju d g e s : he defired me to give evidence, re- 
Counfel for the profecution had not called them, fpecting this bufinefs. I believe it was in 
and that he fhould immediately call them. the month o f AfTen.v

R amnaut. " W hen?
Do you know Mohun Perfaud ? W hen this affair was coming into the

A. I do. Adawlet (this Court), he faid, Y o u  remem-
^  W as you preftnt when Maha Rajah was ber what Paffed between you and M aha R a- 

examinedfor the forgery before the Judges? J ah > f ou muft g ive evidence o f it.
A. I was examined that day. . a *
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e v i » « ° W l0” g  tWS bCf° re y° U gaVe W  think within y0u,fc”
e ^  A U how can I defift ? *
.. A. About ten or twelve months before I £  Did Mohun Perfaud fay, if this affair 

gave evidence. There are accounts, pay- had been mentioned before, it would have 
rnents and receipts between us. been poffible to have done it
. ^ ?D ld thlS converfation pafs at this [H e gives the fame anfwer, and fays

W  * t , )&«8r are the words. Mohun Perfaud fpoka
A. I  went one day to his houfe j and he as I have before related P

d^ " me t0 f f e  e7j df ne"  what No further anfwer could be obtained; be- 
paffed between me and the Maha Rajah. ing threatened with commitment, he faid,

%  S h°  Wp 7  . , T . Thefe are the words Mohun Perfaud fpoke;
A. I  his is God s Adawlet, and I will tell what more fhould he fay 1

no he3- I went upon bufinefs to his houfe, ^  Was the lamp lighted before you went
and nobody was prefent. , away from Mohun Perfaud’s ?

®b  A t what time of day was it? A  Yes : the lamp was lighted before I
A. About three or four gurries o f the day went away, 

remained. How long?
^ .  In what room o f Mohun Perfaud’s A. Twent at the time the lamp was light- 

houle w asit?  ed, or about a minute or two afterwards.
A. On a terrafs, up flairs, there is an up- 6). Who lighted the lamp ?

per room, where GungabifTen lives: on the A, There was no lamp where.we were:
outfide o f that, there is a gunja,' where we the lamp was in Gungabiflen’s room, 
fat. . W hat kind o f a day? was..it fair or

W ere you fitting at that time? not ?
A. W e were fitting. A. It was a rainy day ;. I went with.my-
^  W ho got up firfl ? fhoes on : I walked there.
A. I 'g o t up firfl j and. got my difmiflion, Q. Was not this 15  days before Maha R a- 

and went away. j  ah was taken up ?
gK H ow  long -vvAo ixv. # A. I faid it was ten or twelve days.
A* Three gurries o f the day remained, ^  - o f  nouver-

w htn I went there * and when I  went away fation with Mohun Perfaud on this
lamp w “  lighted. Gungabiffen was A. I ufed almoft .every day to go to M o-

afleep » p »  his cotfi there were two or three him Perfaud's. 1 went after that on my own 
aHeep upo bufinefs ; there was no other converfation bn

• T w t o e ' d i d  you fee thefe fervants > this fnbjeft, till f  came here, t e  r f f
7  I n G  m Sbiffen ’s room. I  went opt o f a felt in th is  Court, and come almoft every 
A. m  told me the morning of the day I

* in 'te llin g  Mohun Per-

2 ®  la ii i i i  tirae
many Englifh  Gentlemen o f this affair, an y o u ^ w a s ^  e?amined before thofe Gentle-

C* T m t  fay any thing elfe to him ? men the firft day [Pointing to Mr. Le- 
1  H e faid, I have told many Enghfh maitre^nd ^ H y d J  M  h Perfaud>, 

Gentlem en; think within yourfelf, how can .

I defift. -r, r J  r  -f T U o A  A  T he firft fieht I had of him was here..
^  D id not Mohun Perfaud fay„ if  I had A. g Adawlet?

k n w n  this fooner, it might have been done? &  W ho do you. ou ^
A. H e faid no more : he faid he had told

M A H A  R A J A H  N U N D O C O M A R ,  B A H A D E R .



A. I always come to that Gentleman. There is a Gopenaut D ofs at Malda, who is 
[Pointing to the Under Sheriff.] a relation o f mine. H e is o f my Gaft.

§H When did you fee Mohun Perfaud, [A  man is produced; and the witnefs i$ 
after you gave your evidence the firft time ? afked, i f  he knows him. |

A. I ufed to fee him everyday. A. I do : his name is Gopenaut Nazzer*
G). When did he tell you to come here ? [The man being fworn, is afked his name.] 
A. He told me, the day I converfed with A. M y name is Gopenaut Dofs. 

him on the fubjedt, that I was to give evi­
dence here. H e faid I muft be there :On Sa- R amnaut.
tnrday fe’nnight. H ow fhould I have known Every body calls him Gopenaut Nazzer. 
when to come, i f  Mohun Perfaud had not H e one day afked me, if  I would enter 
told me ? into friendfhip with him. H e afked me if

J|| When he told you fo, was it the firft I would have a fa rm ; and faid, Come to my 
time he was examined ? houfe, i f  you will do thefe things, it will be.

A. It was the firft time he was examined, better for you. I anfwered, I do not know 
i|h Did "Mohun Perfaud offer to give you your houfe. On another day he fent a man 

any money before the Judges? to m e : I then fent an Adawlet Peon with
A. Why fhould he give me rupees in> fuch him, to fee where his houfe was. I did not 

a cafe ? W hy fhould you afk me fuch a que- want any thing with him : I did not go to 
ftion? I am not worthy fuch fufpicion, as his houfe. 
the Gentlemen o f the Counfel, and all .the jjh W hat did he fay to.you ? 
principal people in Calcutta, well know. I A. H e faid, W ill you have a farm ? W ill 
am much engaged in bufinefs with Mohun you come to my houfe ? There are feme 
Perfaud, 13,000 rupees is due to me. I gave perfons, whofe bufinefs it is to be witneffes. 
Mohun Perfaud a writing, that when I re- j^. W hat was his reafon for coming to the 
ceived it, I would give Mohun Perfaud four .houfe ?
annas in the rupee; this was, i f  Mohun A. H e put his palankine down at my
Perfaud would give me 500 rupees, in ready door. I don’t know his reafon.
money. I have not received all the money. - Q- W hat did he fay m you ?

9 . Did Mohun Perfaud never ra? r e t o ld  me what I have fa id ; i f  I  have
&PiXieR£eT:r ..............S r.g iv in g  your told you wrong, you may punilk me. I

* t t ' know o f  the Hate o f this man.A. H e never did. G) a-a 1 ^  \ 1
t~\ -i a  W hy did he offer the farm ?

§  I dV„“  kn0W G0pe"am Dofs 1 ; f  1 "—  knew the man , iTad *  con-

J  Rada Cu“  R°? f g  farm, , beiicveTe is^

J - -  jD(̂ oy°o tknOW GunS adar ? 3 Q 1Whofe nazzer iThe^
6) vmi r i . 1 1 ^   ̂ have heard him called Gopel M ezer

H a d y°^ <**? any convention  with I don’ t know whofe nazzer he is P *
Gopenaut Dofs at the time you examined Is he any relatfon o f VouS * 
before the Grand Jury, or before M r Tnftirp A  ;c 1 • r . *
Lemaitre, or M r. Juftice Hyde ? J  i r  f T * ? *  o f mine : a great

lefl-’ j  ^ C know hlm: I do not recol- was ftanding at the door o f  M r Kellirsn 
p erfo n "1^  . any COnverfatlon ^  fuch a Sheck M a h L e d  Gellamey began m t y  m

co&rany rclation °f §  ̂g S  “ m m  &
A  M y houfe is at M alda. I  do not know ™ u  J  m0ney- T h “  he Wiil eXa,fc 

I have any relation in Calcutta o f that name
' Wt
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- m a h a  r a j a h  n u n d o c o m a r , B A H A D E R .

[T he court here interrupts him • and fair! -u /• u r , • , ' 9 5
he muft not tell what another man had faid I a fk e d ^ h im ^ w te re ^ ^ ' made a falam: 
to him, and told the Ju ry  they m uff take no I have ralT ’ k he. was g ° lngI he faid, 
notice o f it.] f j 7 C n°  l  M f  m *  a buzar in farm. He was on1 When was the offer o f the farm ¥ HPT Z J t f  WWu in my Palankine 5 we

A. It was after Maha Rajah was in con- whit hP? pany r° ad- 1 afked him
finement. . COn I M I  became o f the evidence he gave in

P  V o  you know o f Gowanny ChunN a*? P e r f a u d H  ^  t0 ? e> Mohl,n A. N o. . r e " aud has paid the expence o f my houfe,

&  Do you know Ram Gopaul Gofs > T fa id ^ T fv ^ i  3 ° ° , ruPeeIs. t0 Wm evidence.
A. No. P • 1 a d,’ IfJ ou have d«ne this, you have done:

Q  Do you know Hurrikiffen Muckeriee ? A daw lel are fecret in the'
A. I  know h im : I believe he is S r o -  Mother and 1

ther o f Harry Gunt Muckeriee. ’ u
Did you rriake him write any paper ? amnaut. ■

A. I did occafion him to write a paper ; Pie fa}s he was in a palankine, and I was 
but i f  you can prove that I offered or gave on horfeback : is it likely fuch a converfation 
money to any one to fwear, let me be pu- ihould pafs? 
nifhed: they occafioned Muckeriee to write Attaram Bose.
W r 1 pWmnt £  -houfe ° f  Mr> Driver '> Q  Do you know Mohun Perfaud J 
Hurrykiffen Muckerjee was there. I faid to A. I do.
the three men, two o f them were my men, %  How long have you known him ?
that were witneffes in the affair with Maho- A. Fifteen o f  twenty years/
med Gullamee. I faid to them, Whatever What is his character ? 
you kpow about this affair, give me in writ- A. I know nothing of his character.

daic  ̂ t0 Hurrykiffen, W rite to £K What do people fay of him ?
me. The paper had been wrote. They two, A. Nobody /peaks well o f him.
Govin Sing, and Gundaram Roy, figned it. ^  Do they fpeak ill o f him?
I  faid to Hurrykiflen, Thefe men have given Court. You fbould afk, whether he is to be
me a paper, witiiefs it : he faid, I w ill not believed.upon his- oath or not.
be a witnefs to the p ap er: I fhall be called
into the Adawlet, if I am. There was an- ’ N emo Doss,
other fircar there; and that paper being ~
torn, the fircar wrote out another. Q  How long have you known Mohun.

| | Perfaud ?
Gorpe Naut Doss. Twenty or twenty-five years.

w hat do people fay of him r
5̂  Do you know Ramnaut? ^  They fpeak ill o f him.
A  I know him 5c- Is he to be believed upon his oath ?
9 . H o w  long have you known him ? I cannot fay, he is not to be believed
A. I have feen him in Calcutta four or five upon ^1S oat^’

years. I faw him when M r. Haftings firft M ohun. P ersaud.
came to the government. [Shewn exhibit marked M .]

H  H ad you any converfation with him [For a copy of this, vide page 46.] 
about any evidence againft Maha Rajah Nun- On what occafion was this paper
ebeomar ? drawn out ?

A. I had. A. T o  fhew to Bollakey Dofs’s wife.
j| |  Relate it. Were the papers Ihewn to M ahaRa-

. d . On the 9th day o f Choite, I was go- j.ah Nundocomar? 
a&g to the houfe o f M r, C ottrell: I faw him



a  Was it, when drawn out, reprefented to M aha Rajah’s houfe. _
B  hake Dofs’s wife ? jjh Y ou  have mentioned the Durbar

°A. Pudmohun Dofs alone figned it, and charges: are the other articles right and
carried it sw^y* true • *

m When did you yourfelf fign it ? A. I have not faid the 60,000 rupeees were
/i When there was a difpute between Bol- either right or wrong* 

lakev Dofs’s widow, and Pudmohun Dofs, I %  W hat do you fay now, were they

figned it. fiS ht or, wronS ? . ' j  . .
& Was this after you fettled M aha R a- A. There was not a cowrie expended in

jah Nundocomar’s account ? Durbar expences.
A  Long after. ^  H ow  can you poffibly know, that the
9 . How long? M aha Rajah never paid any Durbar charges ?
A. Eighteen or twenty days after M aha A* H e may upon his own account; not

Rajah received the bond. upon this. . .  r ^  , ,•.
^  W ith what view did you fign it ? ^  W hen was it you firft fufpected this
A. When Bollakey'Dofs’s- widow called me account? # .

to her, flie obferved my fignature was not to Vf. W hen M aha Rajah firft mentioned to 
it: upon which Pudmohun Dofs obferved me, that fome Durbar expences would arife, 
that the widow of Bollakey Dofs had taken I from that time had doubts, 
notice o f  mv fignature not being to it. H e' ^  W hen did you firft fufpeft the bond 
faid, “  Here is no name, no teeps, no account5 to be forged ?
only put your name to this. W hy do you A. Four days after, M aha Rajah Nundo- 
make any doubt about it? only fign it, and comar Kimfelf, faid to me, "W  ̂ have pre-*
I will give it you back.”  pared three papers. ^ ,

Is this Maha Rajah Nundocomar’s ac- ^  W as not that at the time the bonds
•count, or riot? were paid ? jf  . .

A. Look i f  you can find his name to it? A. H e  had the money in his pofTeffion*
Is it his account or not ? T h e bonds were with M aha Rajah, when

A* It is not his account. Pudmohun Dofs faid, L e t  us get the bonds*
Do you mean that this paper does not W hen did Pudmohun, Dofs firft inform

'contain the account ojf Maha Rajah Nundo- you o f it?  *
comar? * A. W hen the bonds were put into the poft

A. N o ; the name o f Maha Rajah Nundo- feffion o f M aha Rajah.
;comar is not in it, nor was it delivered to W hy did you not begin this profecu- •
him. tion fooher then |

Does any part o f this paper conftitute A. I had very little power in the bufinefs 
M aha Rajah’s account? o f the deceafed# Pudmohun Dofs was the

A. It is Maha Rajah’s account : the Durbar mafter.
Karrutch is there; he took the bond for W hen did you begin to have the m a-
5 29,000 rupees, and Obtained 60,000 rupees riagement o f the bufinefs ?
for Durbar expences. A* U pon the death o f Pudmohun Dofs.

W ill you fwear pofitively that this ac- ^  W hen was that? 
count was fettled at the Maha Rajah’s houfe, A. In the month o f Caftick, 1828  about 
in the prefence o f ChoytonNaut and others ? four years ago.

A. N o, it was not. D id you ever mention your apprehen-
^  W as it never fettled, either in writing lions o f forgery to Pudmohun Dof$> and ad- 

Or verbally, at the M aha Raj ah’s houfe, when vife him to profecu te ? 
you was prefent ? ^ Nagree year#.

|  . 1  . ■ . • A*-

t h e  t r i a l  o f

y , J^0-, ,.heVer> A. It was never fettled when I was at the



A. W hen Pudmohun Dofs brought the A. The mornine after rhe nio-u u 
bond from Maha Rajah Nundocomar in the was fent. ®  ond

Dl!ghf n l W  read k  t0r T  i’ \ uafkedLhim %  What did you fee to make you fufneft the following morning if  he had brought all it ? 1

S  ? CWed the three PaPers> A  1 had before reafon to fufpeft it, becaufe
end had the Perfian read to me : I faid, n o - BollakeyDofs kept regular accounts, and that 
thing, was due on thole papers; what did they no mention h a/b een  made of it in his ac- 
mean. Pudmohun Dofs faid Remain quiet, counts: I had never heard it from Bollakey 
a* d. ■ inf<?rm y?u o f the circumftances Dofs: I had feen the letter o f attorney, in 
o f it. After that, the widow o f Bollakey which ten thoufand rupees were mentioned 
Dofs complained to M r. RuffeU thro’ Coffi- as a balance. F
naut: Gofhein like wife complained in the *  Q  Did you fee Upon the face of the bond 
adawlet fi. e. M ayors court) and made M r. any thing to make you fufpedt it?
M agee one attorney, and M r. Sealy his law A. It was not figned by Bollakey Dofs, and 
attorney. _ I knew that Seillabut was dead a year and a

ijh D id  Pudmohun Dofs ever after give you half before, 
fatisfaftory accounts o f thefe bonds ? 6). Before what ?

A. N o : he always put me off, by faying A. A  year or two before Bollakey Dofs 
he would inform me o f the circumftances. died.

^  Did you apply often to him for that £>. What objedtion could his death be to 
purpofe?  ̂ the witneffing a bond in feventy- two ? *

A. I did not prefs him m uch: Gofhein A . A  man may write a bond and antedate
u id : and Pudmohun Dofs, in confequence, it.
was thrown into confinement. When was you fo far certain as to pro-

tjjh I f  you fufpefted forgery, why did yo’ii fecute ?
* not prefs him? . A. When I faW the account o f jewels,

A. H e ufed always to put me off, by fay- the name p f Rogonaut, and the mention o f 
ing he would tell me the circumftances. plunder, I knew it was forged, and from the 

^  Y o u  ought to have preffed him m uch; nature o f the bond, which is not regular in 
w hy did you not ? itfelf, being conditional: bonds are not com-

A. I and Bollakey Dofs’-s widow, Gofhein, monly made out fo when money is received. 
Gungabiffen, and Ballgovin, ufed always to Was it from the fight of the feals or
be prefling Pudmohun Dofs to fettle the ac- fignature,. or the contents o f the bonds, that 

• ^counts, and deliver them over. made you firft fufpedt ?
D id you ever mention your fufpicions A. A ll thefe circumftances together; I men- 

to the widow ? tioned it often to Mahomed Commaul.
A . I did not with my olvn mouth, becaufe Are not the eight bonds on the Nagree

I was not with her, but by the means o f Dun- account, charged by you and Pudmohun Dofs 
liamchurn I did. to Bollakey Dofs’s eftate ?

Q. D id you ever by thofe means inform A, I wrote nothing; Pudmohun Dofs wrote 
her, that you thought it a forged bond? every thing forcibly himfelf.

A. W hat I told her thro’ Durhamchund Are they not charged to Bollakey Dofs’s
was, that the Durbar expCnces charged in the: eftate ? _
account were unjuft. A, The books were in Pudmohun Dofs’s

T e ll at what time you firft fufpe&ed hands, he might enter what he pleafed. 
forgery o f the bond ; and that the leal o f £>. Were, or were not, the bonds charged 
Bollakey Dofs was improperly made ufe of. to the eftate ? . .

A. M aha Rajah mentioned to me the bond, A. Pudmohun Dofs and I never acted in 
and then I fufpe&ed, . 1  conjundtion in fuch a bufinefs.

%  How foon? O S i Then

* Bengal year.

M A H A  R A J A H  NU ND OC OMA R ,  BAHADER.
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o) Then we are tounderftand that you did Nama o f 69,630 rupees, written by Pudmo- 
not'charge it to the eftate ? hun Dofs, and figned by Bollakey Dofs ?

J Iw as not permitted to fee anything. A. No. -
W init is the amount of thofe eight Do you know Monohur Munfliy ?

bo ds ? IS I 11§
J  One lack, 43,485 rupees/ 1 ^  Had you ever any convention withV Who brought the bond to your houfe him about any evidence he was to give-in this 

the morning you firft fufpefted ?: caufe, or about the bond, and what palled on
A. Pudmohun Dofs brought it. # t^at occ^fi°n *
n Was you prefent, when Maha Rajah A. I Ihewed the bond ft tit to Juggut- 

' gave it to Pudmohun Dofs ? chund : I Ihewed it alfo to Coja Petrufe; his
6 A. I was, and fo was Gungabiflen. Munfliy read i t : I then Ihewed it to M r.

6)’ Were any other bonds or teeps cancelled Durham, to fhew it to M onohur; he accordr 
befides ? . !t in g ly d id fo . ; *  ' ’ r

J .  There were three papers cancelled, the I>. Did you fhew it to Monohur before 
bond and two teeps; two were for 35,000 Mr.. Durham Ihewed it him?, 
rupees, the other for 48,021 ficca rupees, be- A. It was not in my poffeffion before ;, I 
lides batta. could not fhew it h im ; I Ihewed him a copy,

6)# When did you firft fee this account which I alfo Ihewed to many people.
| j|  Did you not fhew him. the original^ 

A. When it was figned, and afterwards the day before you ihewed' it him, thro* M r. 
in the Dewanny Adawlet, only thofe two Durham? , ^

'times. A. I can. take my oath I never Ihewed him
6). Where did you fign it ? the original, before I Ihewed him the copy.
A  A t the houfe where I now live. %  Where did you get the copy ?

Are the other articles befides Durbar A. I  took ft out o f the M ayor’s court., 
c h irk s  true ? jjh D id you ever fend for Monohur to your

A. It is no account at a l l : it is not regu- houfe on this occafion? 
lar. A  H e owes me 100  rupees,. I  have fent

Do you know of any o f the fums in it? for him often on that account.
Is any one article right ? * ♦ D id  you ever fend to him about the

A. How can I tell if  it is right ?. bond, and alk him if  he wrote it ?.
W hy then did you fign it ? . A. 1 never fent to him purpofely to fhew

A. T o  fatisfy Pudmohun Dofs and the him the copy. 9
widow. Did you lend to him,, and did you fhew

£). Do you know Choyton Nau.t ? him the copy ?
A. I do. A  It is two years fince I Ihewed him the
f|h Who. is he ? copy.
A. A  fervant of Maha Rajah’s. j^. H ave you not Ihewn him the bond or
SjK Look at the account, and fay in what copy, within thefq three months ?

I rupees it is ? A  N o.
A. It is not fpecified. ^  Did you ever fhew any teeps to Mono'-
ijk Look at the laft line but one. hur?'
A. It is current rupees. A. Yes, in the houfe o f M r. Durham..

Do you know o f an entry in the books Did you not fhew him the teeps about 
of 129,630 rupees ? three days before M aha Rajah was in con-

yf. No, I do not. finement ?
Do you know o f an article in the Curra A, No.

&  Did



ma h a  r a j a h  nundocomar , bahader.
%  Did'you never iliew them to him, ex- w -ir t„ ,  " - n r

cept at Mr. Durham’s ? * n J  an Dofs at )'our houfe,
yf. N 0 when you ftiewed the copy to Monohur ?

£  you ever defire Monohur to fay he I c t ’ J'rancmher"’ -  * yC"  3nd 3 half aS ° : 
wrote; the bond ? o  v r r  ' T ^  .

A  No • , 'y  bitten Juan Dofs been at yourJz&zg? * hc “ "■ *“  S tf *
years, ^ ‘  ™ °  P * *  S 1 ?

f  anfwer dld * e ; ? roomj but fi’nce that time’he'has no” f  a 'Seat
T f a U T 381 8°,od w hlk ago : he could many people come to Guncrabifien whorrfl do 

not recolleft, whether he had or had not; but not fee: I did not fee him at the time you 
when he fliould fee them he might tell. mention. ^

^  ever %  _any thing o f finding £>. How came you to quarrel with Maha
another perfon who had wrote them ? Rajah ?

A. Yes. I told him, if  he knew the peifon A. About this bufinefs. 
who wrote them, I wiftied he would bring # | |  Did you fee Monohur at your houfe, any 
h im : he faid that Maha Rajah feldom wrote time within a week, before the commitment 
different papers with the fame Munfhy, and of Maha Rajah ? 
that as I had not the original bond to fhew, A, I never did. 
he fhould not be able to find out the perfons
who wrote them. Kissen J uan Doss.

Did you make him any promife, in cafe ^  ^   ̂ ^
he produced the man ? r %  o you remember being at Mohun Per-

_A. I did fay, that i f  he would bring the k ^ n d f e e . n g  Monohur, and when?
man that really wrote the bond, I would give f  ‘ , 111  e- er ’ e 0 ten or tu’e ve ^ay s 
h im a fu m : he faid to me, he thought the ° f  Maha Rajah s confinement about noon or
T\,r i, „ • _ i %  r or two in the afternoon. One day I was \va k*Munfhy who wrote it was turned o ff from • u r , , ^ .1,/ri ry * i 7 . A/r a j i i  ing before the door of Mohun rerfaud s hou e.M aha Rajah, and gone to Moorfhedabad. , , , , , L. r^  t v j  n  f  M  n  ̂ Monohur was at the door, and made his k -Did you aik the name or that Munfhy? , T. _ , r -7 r- \ «ir

A TsJ . t Ml l  dr J lam: i  went and lat with bungabiiien : af-
* \T?i * 1 a j  terwards, Mohun Perfaud and Monohur came

# g, . J 3 J 1 into the houle j two qr three gurries after that,
a t v j  t r Tv/r i • r j  Monohur went away.A. I did not, becaufe Monohur promifed ~ r J n i _  % .* . 3 , , i ^ i  j  Did you fee any papers produced to

to find out the man when he came back, and
I might fhew him the bond : a man o f the ^  j  did not fee any ers. they were in 
name o f Buloll Cawdy, firit directed me to , rnnm r 1
Monohur, in confequence of which, I fpoke

t0  ^ m r T  M o n o h u r .
H ow  long ago ? _ - . ,

A. About two years and a half. ^  W as there any wax leal to the papers
S>. W as you not acquainted with Monohur îeWn y °u *? . . , . T

before) * A ' There was no wax feal; there w^re ink
A. Yes, lone a e o : he was a fervant of fea*s* ■ . , , , r

j j . f r  S g>. Are you fore it was three days, before
iviana Kajan s. . i commii-ment of Maha Rajah Nundoco-Q. W as not you and Maha Rajah, once cne comiiiunicm j
upon good terms together ? mar;  _ . • .i j _.tc* A °  r n • a. c . A T am verv clear it was three davs«A. Y e s ; upon terms of ftrict friendlhip: 1 am vcv  ' jyjR
he loved me as hi&fon. ^  2
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M r . D urham. ing backwards and forwards, from H ugly and
Chinfura to Calcutta, for thirty years paft.

I  had the bonds in my poffeffion, three days Q  How came you at Maha Rajah*s ? 
before the commitment of Maha Rajah* A. I ufed to go backwards and forwards to

Maha Rajah’s : at that time I went to pay fa- 
J U N E  15 , 1775* lam.

^  , 9 . Is the whole paper your hand wtifing ?

MR. Farrer offers to rea a as a A. The body o f the paper is my hand writ-
copy of the original paper vvhich the . and my ^  is tQ £  *

reprefentatives of Pudmohun Dofs had been ' v/hat became-of the original ?•
feryed with notice to produce. ^  Maha Rajah gave it to PudmohunDofs,

Court. Y<Ju muft prove fervice o f notice on afld kept thg C0Jpy h6imfelf>
Gungabiffen: Mohun Perfau ai a e pa- © H ow long have you had a houle atCof- 
pers of Gungabiffen were in the hands 01 the
regifter : if  any paper^was delhered to Maha ^  A ll my family are there : I went to Cof- 
Rajah Nundocomar, it was not in is pre e . fhubuzar at time o f the difputes between

, ,  -«-~y Meer Jaffier and Sujah ul Dowlah : I princi-
M o h u n D oss. pally refide here.

Do you know Gungabiffen ? Have you a-houfe at Chinfura?
A . Yes. A . Yes, in theOphium Buzar.

Do you know Maha Rajah Nundoco- Have you a houfe any where elfe? 
mar ? A. I principally refide at Calcutta: I for-

A. Yes. merly rented a houfe in Calcutta, which 1 have
Did you know Bollakey Dofs ? bought for 50 rupees: I ufed to pay feven ru-

A.. Yes. pees per month: I  argued with myfelf, I had
Did you ever fee Bollakey Dofs write ? better buy it.

A. No : I never faw him write on any paper Do you pay a rent for your houfe at Cal- 
whatfoever* eutta?

Did you copy any paper in the prefence A  It is my own property, 
of Mohun Perfaud, Gungabiffen, andPudmo- Is the houfe at Chinfura your property ?
hun Dofs ?. A. It is my own property.

A. Yes, I did, by order of Maha Rajah. [A  W hat is your trade ?
paper is produced] A. I trade in every thing: I trade in long

Is this your hand writing ? - cloth, lead, and every thing elfe: I am a #;
A* It is.  ̂ # merchant.^ for 30 years the place o f my ha-
^  Was the original, o f which this is a copy, bitation has been in Chinfura. 

delivered to any one ? You fay, you trade in fo many articles,
A. Maha Rajah delivered a copy to Pud- andnave different houfes: do you carry your 

mohun Dofs.  ̂ commodities with you ? •
W as any objection made to. figning the A* I go backwards and forwards, once in 

original papers, when delivered to Pudmohun two years: I fend my Gomaftah to thqfe 
# > places.

A. He faid nothing : he figned, and I gave Who is your Gomaftah?
the copy to. Maha Rajah. * A. Kiffenchund was my Gomaftah: I have

Who are you ? what is your bufinefs ? no Gomaftah now.
*6) m trac ê* What fervants do you keep ?

 ̂ ere y °u hve? A. I keep fervants in proportion to my in-
A. 1 have a houfe at CoflTmbuzar: I have come* 

been there thefe two years: I have been go- ’ Is



Is your income large ? . ^  Do you know whether Maha Rajah
A. M y income is 1000 rupees: or elfe how kept any Nagree writer?

Could I pay allmy fervants ? A. Id o  not know: there are a thoufand
Befcribe where your houfe is in Cal- people under him. 

cutta* ; ^  Did you, at any other time, write any
A. The place I have in Calcutta is Huzrey- paper for Maha Rajah, when you called in ? 

mull’s, "but I pay him a quit rent: my houfe A, I never wrote any other paper for him. 
is in Calcutta, in HuzreymulPs garden, in the Was you ever in the room before, when 
Buzar road. Maha Rajah tranfafted any private bufinefs ?

^  W ho did you buy it of? A. I never was prefent* when he had any
A> I bought it from a beetle merchant. other private tranfa&ion..
§h What is his name ? How long ago was it fmce you wrote
A . Rampurfaude. this paper ?
S$j Have you got the potta ? A, About fix years.
A, No : • I get a chit from Huzreymull. What time of the year was it ?

H ow  much do you pay Huzreymull ? A. Before the rains.
A. One rupee per month. Was it morning or night?
gK What occafion have you for fo many A. Three or four gurries of the day were 

houfes ? -remaining.
A- I  live here now: I go fometimes to. How long was you writing that paper ?

Chinfura; I.do not like to hire one: at Cof- A* \ or |  a gurrey. 
fimbuzar my family live. ijh Are you fure it was fo much ?

W hy do not you live with your family? A. It was \ o f a gurry.
A. Women don’t like travelling : they live Are you fure it was quite a quarter of

at Coffimbuzar, where they get their liveli- a gurry ? 
hood eafieft. ■ Ai T ry  me. •

6  ̂ How many wives have you? ^  Did you bring the pen with you ?
A. For a. good man, one is enough. A. No : it was in the froufe.
6># W hat are you? §lj Was the ink Hand there?
A. A  Banian Nagree W allah. A. Yes, Maha Rajah was fitting in the
(ft. W hat was your bufinefs, the day you hall,

wrote the copy at Maha Rajah’s? i ĵ. Did you write in the fame room.
A. I did not go particularly that day: I ufed A. Yes. * _  \

• to go backwards and forwards frequently to gK Who brought you to Maha Rajah to
make falam. ' * a tPaPer * „  ,

6> Do you go to make falam to any other A. No body called me. 
o-reat man, beffdes Maha Rajah, in the town ? ^  Had you ever wrote in the fame room
^ A. I go to no other great m an: I am ac- where Maha Rajah was before .

' qU©ntA r r 1youni)n0Inyr’ intimacy with Maha %  How came Maha Rajah to afk you to

R A h There is a friendlhip between us. A. I am a merchant} every body knows I
Mr. Elliot. The word he ufes does not con- can write. ’ , M , p  • i.

v e , fo ftrong an idea as frienchhip, bur means
fomething beyond an acquaintance. Gungabillen, ana mo

, i  W as you ever a fervant o f Maha R a- wrote A e paper ^  ^  aM(her perfoIlj a
jab ’s ? . _  ’ • ;

A. No : I am a merchant, uramin. yy2S
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<■), Was any- one elfc ?. %  How came youi not to pay cuftoms in
y  No one' die Calcutta for long cloth, lead, &c.?
V  Who was the other perfon l '■  A  l bring lead and long cloth into Cal-
y  T A n  nnr know cutta, and fend them out of Calcutta.
f .  What was his name ? %  Name a perfon to whom you have fold
y  r c]0 not enquire the names o f every commodities in Calcutta, 

body I fee : I have heard his name is Sangoo A  Ten or twelve years ago I bought a 
t . quantity of cloths from Jugal Latty.

J .  f ie  knows himfelf: I do not know. Have you had any cloth fince that time ?
O. Did Sangoo Loll come about bufinefs, A. -No*

or to pay falam ? * liiSir V ]
A. I  do not know ; he came. J ugal. L a t t y .
<?. Was Sangoo Loll a fervant o f Maha G). Do you know Mohun Dofs ?

Rajah’s? A . Id o .
A. I do. not know. What is he ?

Were the whole company fitting, or A. He is in bufinefs: I remember he bought 
Handing? fome cloths from me when I was fervant to

A. A ll fitting together. Mr. Senior : he told me he had got fome fait
6). Did you ever fit in Maha Rajah’s pre- about a year and a half fince. 

fence before this time ? Is he at prefent a principal merchant ?
A- I always fit in his prefence'. A. I know him very w ell: he and-his bro-
<&. Did any one write on the paper befides ? ther were formerly deeply concerned.
A. I wrote: They all figned it. * Counf. for Prif. Do you think him a man o f
6), Who is all ? credit, when upon oath ?
A. Choyton Naut and Sangoo Loll. A. 1 do not know whatpaffes in his mind,
G) Who wrote firft ? Is he a man of credit ?
A. Sangoo Loll .firft, after I had figned a . He formerly was. 

it. **  Was his name hurt, or not?
6). Who defired Sangoo L o ll to fign it ? [N o anfwer could be procured.]
A . A ll three of them defired o f him- Do you know any thing of him ?

Gungabiffen, Mohun Perfaud, and Pudmo- A . He is o f a good caft : I know his brother
hun Dofs. * * is a good man.

6). Who defired Choyton Naut to fign ?
. A- The three men before mentioned. S an go L o l l . ®

Did Maha Rajah fay any thing? 6). Did you ever atteft a copy o f any paper
A . Y es: he defired them to witncfs the paper. at Maha Rajah Nundocomar’ s ?
^  Did Maha Rajah defire any o f  them a . 1 did atteft a copy of a curra nama.

to fign it? 6), w h o  were prefent ?
A. Maha Rajah faid it was neceflfary to a . Mohun Perfaud, Gungabiffen, Pqdmo- 

witnefs it .to make it pukka; and they faid fo hun Dofs, Choyton Naut, and Mohun Dofs. 
too, and then figned it. J5; What do you know o f the paper ?

^  Did Maha Rajah defire Pudmohun Dofs a . What Ihould I know, of the paper? I
to fign it ? know it is my name at the bottom. Maha

A. N o : he did not afk Gungabiffen, Pud- R aj ah told Mohun Dofs to take a copy of a - 
mohun Dofs, or Mohun Perfaud: he only paper*, when Mohun Dofs had taken a copy, 
defired it to be witneffed.  ̂ he defired me to be a witnefs. I afked Pud-

§>* Lo you ever pay any cuftoms in the mohun Dofs whether Bollakey Dofs’s name 
courfe of your trade ? was to it: he faid it was, and then witneffed

A> I never paid any in Calcutta; L
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£>. Who witnefled the paper befides Mohun 6). Did you fee him write the whole ?
Dofs ? M  Yes.

A. Choyton Naut. ' Did all the people who were prefent
What became of the original after it when he began, lit by him till he finilhcd r 

was copied ? . A. Every body.
A . I  know nothing of the original: I know Who are you?

we three were witneffes to the copy : what do A. I am a Bramin and a merchant.
I  know of the original ? Q. How long have you been a merchant ?

^  Did you compare the copy with the A. I have been ten years in this town,
original ? \ Where do you live ?

A  N o, l did not. A. In the Burra Buzar.
gy. Did you read the one or the other ? What trade do you carry on ?
A. No, I did not: Pudmohun Dofs faid A, I am a fhop-keeper, and fell goods.

. they were the fame. ^  How long have you known Maha Ra-
jah ?

M ohun Doss. A. Ten years.
^  Tv-, 1 _  • • t §). Are you well acquainted with him ?w. Did you compare the original with the , ,  7 . n
~  u J /  • a 3 A. Very well,copy after you wrote it ? ^  ; r  M i •1 it ttti 7 j  t a' a , . i j  t) j  Do you go otten to vilit him rA. W hat words 1 did not underftand, rud- A  l  d* &

mohun Dofs explained: after making the copy ' TT0,  ̂ u . / T .•» . . , s  i .t . ■ r *r j9. H ow came you to be there at thatI react it, and the words that were wrong I . 7
. , time?

a ere A, I went to pay falam.
_ _ _  .'9 . Did Mohun Dofs copy it from the'pa-

S ango L o ll . C ross E x a m in a t io n . perbefore him ?

Q. Did not you read the words over your Mohun Dofs copied it from feeing the
name, which are, u I, Sango Loll, have exa- original,, but when he did not underftand, he 
mined the original, and attefted this copy ?”  afked Pudmohun Dofs.

A. I could not read i t : I  did not read i t : What things do you deal in . ^
I could not compare the paper: I cannot read d . I fell China goods, fometimesfruit, and
- what I can get two rupees by.

‘ Could you read it at that time ? Could %  Is your fhop full o f goods ?
you read the original paper ? §§ Tes.

• i A. I  cannot read others hand-writing, ^  ^  hat 1S ^  value o f  them .
though I can read my own. I could not read A. They may be worth about 5 or 600 ru-

® . r W hat rime of the day was it f  ' %  W «  yon ever in any other way of bn-
A. There were 4 gurries remaining when finefs? why do you call yourfelf a mere n .. 

he beean to write , it 'was evenin| when A. I never have been a merchant; I never 
he had done made any great fum in Calcutta, to be called

G). W as he 4 gurries in writing it ? ' a merchant.
A. 1 cannot fay whether it was 4 gurries, or Can you write. -

a very iitdf time to A  at
write after I arrived. . < : r

^  W as he 4 gurries writing it ? Maha Rajah s .
A. I do not know how many gurries of the day A. N ° . , rhnwnmNant >

it was when I w ent: 4 gurries remained when Do you kno y
he |egan to w rite: it was the evening before ■ J  Yes. ^  k  ^  cauft ,
he nniuied. -<j  A. Yes.
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/I, *Jes. is figned by Pudmohun Dofs and Mohun
What is his bufinefs? Perfaud.

A. H e is afervant o f Maha Rajah. ijL What does that account contain ?
6). Do you know where he came from. A. This account is not entered in the
A . I know he lives in Calcutta now. books, but was drawn out in a hurry to' be
G). Did he fign his name in Nagree or Ben- delivered to the Adawlet. 

g a] ? v W hat Adawlet ?
A , In Bengal. A . The former Adawlet, not this*

Did you go to fetch Mohun Dofs, or W as there any account previous to this
Mohun Dofs go to fetch you ? delivered into the M ayor’s courti

A . Mohun Dofs did not call m e; I went to A. There was an account given ir\to the 
make falam. Mayor’s court, o f which this is a continua­

tion.
Choyton N aut. :@L Is the balance o f that former account

Carried into this ?
[The laft witnefs fays this is the pi an] A. The balance that remained due in the 

Was you a witnefs to -a paper with former account, is brought over into this, 
this man 1 [pointing to the laft witnefs.] W ho wrote the former Nagree ac^

A. I was. count ?
GK In what char afters did you fign your A. I did. 

name ? j|§ W hat is the reafon Mohun Perfaud re-
A. In Bengal. . turned to fign the account delivered into the
ĝ  Do you underftand Nagree? M ayor’s court ?

No. A. After the confinement o f Pudmohun
Jp, Do you talk Hindoftan ? Dofs and Gungabiffen, Pudmohun Dofs fet
A . Yes. about drawing accounts preceding: This was
ĝ  Did you hear the Nagree paper, that at that time drawn out: after that, when Gun- 

you are a witnefs to, read ? gabiffen was releafed, Gungabiffen, Pudmo-
A. Yes. hun Dofs, and Mohun Perfaud, met at the
6). Who explained it to you inBengally ? houfe o f the late Bollakey Dofs; and they 
A . Pudmohun Dofs. - * * Jointly wrote out this account, Pudmphun

Dofs defired Mohun Perfaud to fign it. M o- 
K issen  J uan D oss. hun Perfaud, in anfwer, defired Pudmohun

[An account marked Q. is fhew nhim , Doj l  W *. *ndr M °j?un ^ er[ f d- 
found by him among the papers depofi-ted in r Mohun Dois dehjered m the Nagree paper 
the court 1 [exhibit M ] which he had been copying, and

%  Do you know that paper'? {* appeared that he had been one hour and a
A . This account was written by me, and in C0P)7ing  lt:*

M O H U N  P E R S A U D .

.[Exhibit Q^fhewn him..]
»Dr* U f  . Cr.

^ 3 ,8 17 —5 Balance of precedent account. 38, 854— Pai d to different people as per 
7,300 Tw o bonds, by Baboo. following particulars, cur-

Mohun Perfaud rent rupees.
5500 one bond M r.Loofe, 5,800 paid to Mohun Per-

Writef* laud, balance o f n £ 6 i- - 8 ,
• which



l o g

£>r. ..
2318 17-5 Brought ovet. '

2.000 M r. Hare. 8,500 which was to be paid as fol-
14,392- 11-3 Bamboo Molum lows, 10 ,862-8  C. R. by or-

Perfaud. der of Bollakey Dofs, and
1,9 24  9—1 Pudmohun Dofs. 400 at ditfereht times in the

* *"“■“  " r  life tittle of B. D. after the ex-*
ecutioii of the power of attor-

ao,400 Ct. Rs. borrowed from Coja Pe- ney, out o f which 10 ,862-8
trufe, for which a bond was wrote, _ — 5462—8, was paid in
dated 7th May Englifh, and for the life time of B. D
which the following things were 2,000 Account fales of allum be-
pawned. longing to Mohun Perfaud,

Purchafe deeds o f houfe, 2 brought to his credit on the
bonds of M r. Gulver, one for houfe at Moorfhedabad, and
7,639—4, one for 5000^ paid him here.
1 receipt o f M agal Caluftry, for 29,164-2-2 Paid to Lewis Calluftry, at-

torney to Mr. Sparks, the at-
6,947-2 Paid by Allumchund Cuttry, for torney agreeable to a decree of

which one bond was wrote, dated the Mayor’s court.
7th M ay Englifh, for current 21,850 Principal,
rupees. 6,059—8—1 Intereft.

2>ooo A  debt difcharged by M r. Gul- 1 ,2 5 4 - 10 - 1  Exps. adawletr
ver, for current rupees. ----------------

3 3 4  Paid by Lew is Caluftry, theba- 29,164—2—2
lance o f accounts current rupees.

6 66-13-iSales o f a (loop and MuiFagur — —36,964-02-2
cloth* 140  arc. raps, four pieces 2 7 6 - 11 - 1  Paid Kiffenchtind,
o f M uffagur at 35 raps. gomoftah at Patna,
550 Ct. raps.faleof flOop. acco. his wages

1 j  fiatta on the 140 arc. 176 -1 i - i  at Patna,
Sj_________ at 8 per Cent. 100 at Calcutta.
7 0 1—3 —1 ,  ~

24—6 Duty on the floop at ^ ,
* * ____ ____  the Cuftom houfe 1550 Paid Meet Abdul Rupool

6 6 6 - 1 3 - 1  at 6 - 4  per cent. 116 0  Principal
1 , 5 1 3  On account will. . r

1400 Baboo GungabilTen gee

Sawon See 6 3-12-3  Paid°Pottuck Gee acct.
Bill < c ficca rupees1#!3 ^

15  9-6-2 The fuppofed amount fales o f r?
things from the houfe at Patna. 38854-10-2 f  ~

40 Matta, two firings 2484-10-2 Paid accord, to the will of B. V.
14 —8—2 Brafs pot, in weight as follows.

qp. 1 1 61. at i f  per C. R . .
V  * r  ro0 Guireeb Dofs Pottock

bullion ’

15 9 —6—2 p  9° °  1,000

M A H A  R A J A H  N U N D O C O M A H ,  DAHADER,



Cr.
210 --3--1 On account, outftanding balance 1000 K iffen Juan Dofi,

at Dacca.
or 2 bills for fie. R . 19,00

joo account fundries ct. rs. 562-12-3 Bahoo Gungabiffen,
1 r - 2 - - 1 Batira on 95 fic. rps. at 2 1 - 1 3 - 3  Mootychund, by the
3 °  16  per cent.  —  hands of Ruttunchund

^ IQ_ ■ j  ^ 24 84 -10 -2
h i  Out ftanding balance at Patna, 7°  Goodun Dofs acct. (loop expences

____paidbvO gesSein Gomaftah. from 17  M ay, to 2d o f Baadoon.
,  g r  7 0 209-5-3 Adawlet expences.

* • 4 6 6 5 -1- 1  For the expences o f houfe, fer-
vants, & c.

6 0 0 - 1 1 - 1  Acct. profit and lofs, as by Par- 
-------- -— — tar in the books
4 7 3 0 7 1- 15 - 1

9 ,486-14-3

5 ^ 5 5 8 - 1.4 Balance as follows,
v 7500 T w o bonds, Mohun

~ • - . : \ Perfaud,
1 936-3-3 Baboo Mohun Per- 

faud.
5 2 - 1 1  Pudmohun Dofs* 

9 4 8 6 -14 -3
(Signed) P udmohun D pss.

M ohun P ersaud.
Q  Do you know that account ? 1that was allowable in one inftance, it
A. It is an account fettled ; it is an ac- would be a rule in all. „

count paid to different creditors. . Court. In this, as well as in every other
W hy did you fign it ? iriftahee, we fhould confult the intereft and

A. I figned it, becaufe the monies were convenience o f the Company as much as pof-
really paid to the different creditors. I do not fible. W e are not furprizfcd, that the Gover- ^
know whether the former account was right, uor General and Council fliould bê  defirous^ to

t o n j *  . j  prevent their books "being examined, whichMr. J ohn Stew art called in, to produce Mi r b yFL* .J  t , . r y ’1 r  might tend to the confequences they mention;the books of the Council. - nit would be highly improper that.their books
Q  Have you brought the books you were fhould be wantonly fubjefted to curious and

required to bring ? impertinent eyes ; but, at the fame time, it
A. 1 have no authority to carry books out }s a matter o f juftice, that f  they contain

of the office, or to produce them without evidence material to the parties in civil fuits,
order. I acquainted the Board with the fub- that they may have an opportunity o f availing
pmna: the Board defired me to acquaint the themfelves o f if ’ Humanity requires it fhould
1 ^ eir name  ̂ that they conceive it to be produced, when in favor o f a criminal ;

c ria e t0 many inconveniencies and ill juftice, when againft. them. T he papers and
con equences to exhibit the prooeedings of the records o f all' the public companies in E n g-

m ai? °Pe? court o f juftice, efpecially land, o f the Bank, South-Sea-Hpufe, and the
eJ  ma'/ ^rnetlmes contain fecrets of the Eaft-India-Houfe, are liable "to be called for,

the f a f e r T n f tb * le ll1tere >̂ an  ̂ even t0 where juftice fhall require copies o f the re- 
the fafety of the ftate, and as they conceive | . W  cords
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Cords and proceedings, from the higheft and that they did not expert it, .but thought 
Court o f Judicature, down to the Court of when they faw others excufed, they m tht 
Pye Powder, and continually given in evi- put in their claim : we cannot do this in future 
dence. When it is neceffary they fhould be and therefore are very follicitous to be in’- 
produced, the_ Court will take care they are formed by the Governor General and Coun- 
not made an improper ufe o f T o  wifh the cil, what fervants they wifh to have exempted 
C aun al to be put to the leaft inconvenience from ferving on juries, that neither the bufi- 
poffible, w ew iih  they would coflfider whether nefs of the Court, nor that of the Company 
they think the inconvenience of the production may fuffer. The purpofe for which the books 
o f their books and proceedings, or the granting were defired to be produced was to difcredit 
copies o f fuch parts as may be required to be Shaik ear Mahomed, who, as the Counfel for 
given in evidence, may be the leaft liable to the Crown ftated, had been guilty of perjury 

4^bjedtion. The bringing the books and papers' before the Council) and had been by them 
tnay fubjeft them to the hazard of being loft, cenfured for the fame. The Court was c f 
and may impede the bufinefs. On the other opinion, that the evidence was not admiffible, 
hand, if  copies are granted, the court cannot it being a particular fact, and not to general 
hold fo ftridt a hand over impertinent curiofity reputation ; and that no perjury could be com­
as they can, if  the books and papers are pro- mitted, in fwearing before the Governor 
duced in the open court: if copies are taken General and Council, who do not conftitute 
not relevant to the caufe, the court would a court of record: if they were a court of 
moft certainly cenfure the party offending record, the only proper evidence would have 
therein; but the mifchief might be done by been a record of the conviction for the perjury; 
having taken the copies. I f  they are produced the books were therefore not defired to be 
in court, the court will oblige the party to produced.
inform the court o f the matter propofed to be [The counfel for the prifoner informed the 
read, and w ill not allow it, except they fee court that the prifoner had fomething to fay.] 
that it is applicable to the caufe. I wifh you to Court.By all meansflet us hear it: but would 
inform the Governor General and Council it not be more proper for you to afk him what 
o f  what is now faid, and let them know that it is, that you may judge of what he has to 
we wifh to accommodate our practice as far as fay ?
poflible to the convenience of the Eaft-India Counfel 1 know it is not improper. 
Com pany; we wifh likewife that you would Court. What is it ? 
remind the Governor General and Council, A. The Maha Rajah defires that KifTen 

• !iow  anxious we are that they fhould make Juan Dofs may be afked further as to the 
application to the court to have fuch of their CurraNam a.
officers excufed from ferving on juries, whofe Court. Has he any thing elfe to fay ? 
attendances in their feveral offices cannot be A. Nothing elfe. "
difpenfed with, without detriment to the Court. Do you chufe to afk the queftion 
affairs o f the Company. A t the time of the or that Maha Rajah fhould afk them him- 
application to us from the different fervants to felf ? You  had better ask them, 
be excufed from ferving on juries, w e men-
tioned how impoffible it was for us to judge K issen J uan Doss.
who it might be neceffary to excufe, and whom Kama
not That we might err on the right fide, y °u * /  , ■ P t, r j  ?
and not prejudice thf affairs o f the Company, you fp o k e o f to palankine
we were obliged to be liberal- in allowing the . 4 - o un Raiah and 1 followed
esdufe made f  but we have fince found that to the houfe
feveral of the perfons excufed have Cnee owned, after I do not k
that there was little or no excufe for them, paffed between Maha Rajah and Moiiun
?. ,
1  •
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,  _ , « * l r *■ c*\r rh* c « rra Nama A. Mohun Perfaud took me to -the houfe

ftUd : M ah . Pudmohun Dofs Ihewed me before. ' ?
to his own ou e ■ g L  Nama was &  W hy did not you mention this before ?
fent when I iea • D0ps A. Mohun Perfaud forbid me to mention

r - he has given me no viffM is for uirf'
Mohun Perfaud, what did he fay |  ^ D i d y o u  then remember it?

£  Did he makeno’ obje&ion ? f S  Mohun Perfaud had forbid me to tell,
f .  H e did not fay a word of it in my &  A s / ° u were fwonii to tell the whole

t 'r i n T  He only Paid the fpace of fix truth, and have mentioned this Curra Nama 
jita rin ^  . j  r  fo often, why did you not mention this

6) Did Mohun Perfaud fee Bollakey arcumftance before ? .
°v, *. v A. I f  nobody afked me about: it, why

W f e f W  t0 11 ? fcouid i  tell the bad addons o f Mohun PerT
A. He did. r , .
G) Why did Mohun Perfaud defire you to faud . . . . r<r c
^  tv/t L  ? Court. Becaufe it is to five the life o f anp;o to Maha Kiyan r . r
A. He defired me to go along with him. inn^ce^Tt Perlon- , T

> A . Now you afk me the queihon, I r e -
A. He ^did not tell me any thing parti- coll«dt it; I did not before, 

cular I explained to him the Nagree 9 , Who have you converfed with fmce laft 
‘ night?

' PaPe • a . I went down to examine the papers;
C ross E xamination. came here, went home, and did not fee or

. convene with any one lalt night.
ijh What was the fum mentioned in the ^  H ave you fpoke to any body to-day ?

Curra Nama ? a . I  went to the houfe o f M r. Jan-ett, to
A. I faw a promife in favour o f the Go- COnverfe with a Nagree Mohurer. 

vernor and Mr. Pearfon ; likewife account o f 1 q W ere there any other people at M r;
a bond for jewels. There was fome promife Tarrett’s ? '
in favour of Maha R ajah ; - and laftly for A  There were io  or 12  people.
35,000 rupees, on account o f teeps. To^the q Hid you converfe with any o f them ?
article of the bond for jewels, no fum was ^  j  did n o t: I converfed with my own
fpecified. There were fums fpecified to the man_
Maha Rajah and the Governor; but I do 6)_ Did you Ipeak to your own man about »
not recoiled what they were. the Qurra Nama?

9  Is the Curra Nama you now mention, j  did not fpeak to any one. I fpoke to
the fame you made up the books from ? nobody but the Court.

A. It was the fame, but I did not extrad Did not you fend a written account to
the account. Pudmohun Dofs did. Maha Rajah of every thing that you knew?

9  Who produced the Curra Nama, M o- A  j  did write a Perfian letter to Maha 
hun Perfaud, or Maha Rajah ? R aj ah : Maha Rajah wrote a Perfian letter

A. Maha Rajah fent for it from his houfe. to me> H aving read it, I wrote him an ac- 
There was another Perfian letter. count o f books, and accounts, and a few

9  Did you point out to Mohun Per- words o f circumftances that happened before 
feud the name o f Bollakey Dofs on that Bollakey Dofs’s death.
PaP f  * , ^  ‘ , , . . .  9  Did you in that paper relate this cir-

A . Mohun Periaud took the paper in his CUndlance ?
own hand, and read it. A. So far as related to Pudmohun Dofs,

i£. Was this the firft time you had feen j  
the paper ? I *



Did you write that paper for the pur- [Queftion again repeated 1
pofe of acquainting the Maha Rajah of all A. I did not recoiled it. J
yOU,k  ■ • r , .  f  .. ,  . 4  The being afraid of Mohun Perfaud
fta t c !tat M s " "  Clr' Um" “ d ' < *  " ° ‘  ■ f o l l ' f i o g  it, are two different

, - c  u- c U- s rea.fons- Both of them cannot be true: was
&  S h7 dldoy°r  T J nr0CT  him Qi  thls ? 11 becaufe M  was afraid of Mohun Perfaud 
A. Mohun Perfaud defired me to fay the or becaufe you did not recoiled it?

words were erafed and fcratched out; and [No anfwer could be procured!

T  w l J  K T M r nV  rng/ .  °rUt k - ^  When did Moh™  Perfaud fhft bid ^  W hen did Mohun Perfaud defire you you mention it >
M m  - A '  ^[e t0°k  a written paper from m e: in

A. H e told me a great while ago before this written paper, he made me write ten
Ballgovin o f all the circumftances. words I did not know, and leave out ten

Did you mention in your letter, that words I did know, 
you wrote to Maha Rajah what Mohun Per- Do you mean that Mohun Perfaud o o

\faud had faid to you ? cafioned you to write to Maha Rajah ?
d- N o. _ A. Mohun Perfaud and I were on bad
Q  W hy did you not ? can you tell any terms, when the affair was in the Adawlet. 

■ honeft reafon ? I gave evidence in favour of Maha Rajah :
A. Becaufe I am a fervant to Gungabiffen, the complaint was, that Maha Rajah had 

• and Mohun Perfaud is his attorney, and taken money oppreffively. I gave evidence 
Gungabiffen lives with Mohun Perfaud. that he did not.

Did you Ihew Mohun Perfaud the W as you at that time afraid of Mo-
letter you wrote to Maha Rajah ? hun Perfaud ?

A. I did n o t: I only wrote to Maha Ra- A. No : I was not afraid at that time, 
jah  to acquaint him with the accounts. ijj. Were you afraid of Mohun Perfaud,

<3. Did you write nothing, but concerning when you faid that the books o f the army 
accounts? were feparated from Bollakey Dofs’s other

A. I muft own the truth. I did not write! papers by his order? 
to M aha Rajah any thing about this circum-j A. Mohun Ptrfaud forbid me to tell. I  
ftance: Mohun Perfaud is a great m an; he am afraid of him.
told me not. When was it Mohun Perfaud told you

’ <|h W as not M aha Rajah a greater man not to mention it ? 
fhan Mohun Perfaud ? , A. I believe a year and an half, or two

A. I was much afraid of Mohun Per- years ago. In the late profecution Maha
faUd. Rajah told me, if  I would write out a paper,

& D id you recoiled this circumftance at I fhould have my wages. I did write out
thetim e you wrote this letter ? a paper: I do not know the particulars.

A  I did not. Did that paper contain all you know
Q. I f  you had recollected it, would you of this tranfaftion ?

have wrote it > 1  wrote 5t out> and 1 C0Pied
A. I certainly fliould. %  Did Mohun Perfaud tell you what to
<9. Then your being afraid o f Mohun write, or did you tell him ?

Perfaud was not the reafon why you did not A. Mohun Perfaud wrote it out nrft: he 
■ write itV  ufed to tell me, when I wrote it out, he

A. I am much afraid o f Mohun Perfaud. would pay me the wages; it remained io
or 14  days on the bed of- Gungabiffen.

[Queftion repeated.] ey £ ) y  Mohun Perfaud, at any other time,
A. I was afraid o f Mohun Perfaud. except the time laft mentioned [i. e. about
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two years, or a year and an half ago] defire Q  Did he ever mention it but thefe 
you not to mention it ?  \  times.

A. In the paper he gave me to copy this A. No.
is not mentioned, which I obferved could not i£. When did you receive the letter from
add any thing to it. Maha Rajah ?

[Queftion Repeated.] A. It is eight, ten, or fifteen days fince
A. No j about two years, or two years and I got Maha Rajah’s letter, 

a half ago, he told me two or three times,’ _
but never told me fince j I put him in mind JH ere the evidence clo ied j
I  knew another circumftance.

n

♦ ♦

Lord  Chief-juftice

4̂. 1||H®| .



m a h a  r a j a h  n u n d o c o m a r , b a h a d e r * l CO
Lord Chief Juftice I M P E Y .  IPrifoner guilty of that, you would not have

T H E  Prifoner llands indif.cd for forging If™, d"“  “ n S  bo l”  Wh° “  "  " s “  * '

. b̂ t | s ^ s *  beT£t b“F s  7 *
■ W  i,” ™ id g  ill £ J * i  f° ' ged- ™ ! / / 1 of th= 'Bopee” r t c l l f

I  I  x ? w - in K 7 * * £calling it a Writing Obligatory, and fometimes to the prejudice of his nephews Gungabiffen 
a Promiffory Note ; and it is laid to be with and Hingoo Loll ”  ^

' o « ly 'ril” r S e d 'fraUd d itoen t P“ P‘ e’  diffC‘"  „  1  ' f ,  af,er-1 h" e S °“  " ™ „ g h
T / i i  .  , ^  „ the wllole evidence, point out that part of it
1  v-'a, ] aT T  ° f  th® Cafe a11 thofe Counts which aPPlies t0 ^ e  actual forgery/and then
7? 1Gn 1 r, link no eT1'fellrce can,be, aPPhed i what applies to the publication, knowing it to

and mail only mention thofe to winch it may, be forged. ' 5
and fliall point out thofe to which it moft par- As the trial has now taken fo many days, 
ticularly applies. I lay out of the Cafe the and the evidence is fo long, notwithftanding 
Counts where the publication is faid to be to you have given an attention tliat I have never 
defraud Bollakey Dofs, as the publication before feen in a Jury through fo long a trial •, 
which is proved was after his death : as alfo it will be neceffary, for the purpofeof bring- 
thofe which charge it to be to defraud Pud- ing it together, and to refrefti your memories 
mohun Dofs and Gungabiffen as joint execu- as to thofe parts which paffed early in the 
tors, there being no proof that Pudmohun trial, to recapitulate the whole of the evi- 
Dofs ever was an executor. dence.

The only Counts to which any evidence, in [Here the Chief Juftice read over the 
m  opinion, can be applied, are the fir ft, whole of the evidence, and then pro-
fifth, ninth, and thirteenth, which charge this ceeded.J
Inftrument to be forged with intent to de- By the Laws of England, the Counfel for 
fraud Bollakey D ofs: The eighteenth, which Prifoners charged with felony are not allowed 
charges it to be forged with intent to defraud to obferve on the evidence to the Jury, but 
Gungabiffen and Hingoo Loll, nephews and are to confine themfelves to matters of L a w : 
trufte'es named in the will of Bollakey Dofs: but I told them, that, if they would deliver 

» * The nineteenth, to which the evidence moft to me any obfervations they wiftied to be made
forcibly applies, for publiftiing the fame to the Jury, I would fubmit them to you, and 
knowing it to be forged, with intent to de- give them their full force; by which means 
fraud Gungabiffen and Hingoo L o ll : The they will have the fame advantage as they 
twentieth and twenty-firft, which charge the would have had in a Civil Cafe, 
forgery and publication to be with intent to Mr. Farrer has delivered me the following 
defraud Gungabiffen, the furviving execu- obfervations, which I read to you in his 
tor. own words, and defire you to give them the

There has been no evidence at what time full weight, which, on confideration, you may 
the Inftrument was actually forged; and there- think they deferve :
fore it may be difficult for you to afeertain tc It is no forgery on Bollakey Dofs, be-
whether it was in the life of Bollakey Dofs, u catife it is not proved to have been forged
and confequently whether to defraud him, or “  in his life-time.,, < tP
fuch perfons as had intereft in his eftate after He is certainly right in the obfervation,
his deceafe. that there is no proof adduced of the time of

The publication was clearly after his de- the aftual forgery.
ceafe : and therefore, if  you fhould think the T
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It0  „ pvprnrnrs • becaufe was at firft ftruck with ; which was, That
“  No forgery on - . > neither the appointment of executors, or any

“  the profecutor evidence  ̂ part o f the wiH, was to take place till after
wcre previoufly fo Pudmo- the payment of the debt from the Company ;

“  and voluntarily paid the Bond. udmo ® e p a y  ^  ^  confidered himfetf

' “  ^ nqD°n d e S d Y on the evidence, which worth nothing but that debt, and meant only 
This wdl depe f  whether Gun- to make a will in cafe that money Ihould be

I fhall ©bferve-upon hueaftc w h e e l _ g  on looking into the will, I

freafrealbn to " h a t p o i n t e d  out to my Brother Chambers that 
J *  S  the fraud, if any fraud has been, there were d.fpoGrions of other monies ; and 

But F h £ e  laid thofe Counts out of the Cafe, we are both fansfied that the appointment of
which charge either the forgery, or the pub- executors would have taken place, and the 
wnicn cnarge e F ' w;th an will had fufficient to operate upon, though
intent "to defraud Pudmohun Dofs’ and Gun- that money had not been paid; ^and that, if it 

- eabiffen as joint executors, becaufe the pro- was not, Bollakey Dofs did not mean to die 
fecumrs have failed in this proof of Pudmo- inteftate. But however, there is evidence 
hun Dofs’s being an executor. They pro- that it has been fatisfied by Company s bonds. 
* 8 1 2  probTte to Pudraohon Dofs, and Mr. Farter has hkew.fe given me thefe 
would have proved it by his having figned an further obfervations : ' . ,
account -delivered into the Mayor’s Court. “  Perfian Letters, fealed m the ufual mode 
This we did not think fufficient to prove him -- o f the country, not allowed to be given m 
executor*. Mohun Perfand by that means- -  evidence: by our Laws, Letters fealed in 
might likewife. have been proved an execu- “  the ufual mode m England would.* 
tor • for he has figned an account which was You c-aft your eyes on thofe Letters, and 
delivered in to that Court. obferved on the recency of the writing. You
■ “  No forgery upon the truftees, or refi- thought them an lmpofition; but, as they were
“  duary legatees, becaufe they had only a not given in evidence, I defired you would 
“  contingent intereft at the time of the pub- not fuffer it to make any impreffion on you.
“  lication, and not a veiled one. It was not I have no apprehenfions the Laws of. any
-  an intereft debitum in frajenti folvendum in country would permit them to be given in
-  future: had they died before the contin- evidence. They were Letters, enc oied in a
-  gency happened, the intereft would not cover, fealed with the feal o f Bollakey D ofs;
-  have gone to their reprefentatives as fuch, but were feparated from the covers, which f
-  and as claiming under them, but fo the had been opened. Any writings might have 

next of kin of Bollakey D ofs; therefore been put into thofe covers. 1 here was no
“ • they could not be defrauded.”  Ggnature to the Letters. There was no at-

This is a point of Law, and I cannot help tempt to prove that the direction of the co- 
differing from Ms. Farrer in it; for, in my vers were of the .fame hand-writing with the 
opinion, and in all our opinions, the intereft Letters themfelves, or that they were the 
of the nephews and refiduary legatees is a hand-writing of Bollakey Dofs, or o f any of 
veiled intereft,. and would, whenever the mo- his writers. If this- was allowed, any evi- 
uey due to Bollakey Dofs from the Company dence might be fabricated, to ferve all pur- 
Ihould be paid, go to the reprefentatives. pofes-. Letters in England have the ligna- 
The receipt o f that money is, I luppofe, ture of the writer, and his hand-writing may 
what is underllood by Mr. Farrer to be the be proved: it is impoffible thefe could be 
contingency. ' given in evidence.

This objection feems to be made from “  The witnelfes are dead, the tranfaclion 
mif-ftating an obfervation made early in the — is Hale, and long fince known to the pro- 
caafe by my Brother Chambers, and which L| -  fecutord’

Thefe



Thefe are' objections of weight, which I“ a much greater period of time than the 
you, Gentlemen, ought carefully to attend to ,j“  prefent; and that their truth and falfe- 
when you take the whole of the evidence into “  hood are fo artfully interwoven, that it is- 
confideration, for the purpofe of forming the “  almoft irapoffible to come at the truth ”  
verdift; and I have no doubt you will attend My refidence in the Country has been fo. 
to them. # ' fliort, and my experience fo little, that I can

“  No evidence of Defendant's having form no judgement of the truth of this ob- 
“  forged Bollakey Dofs's feal, for which he fervation: it is an appeal to the notoriety of 
“  alone hands indicted.”  the difpofitions of the natives. You have

There is clearly no direct evidence of his been refident long in the Country: fome. I fee, 
having actually forged the feal. But Mr. who were born here ; you know how far it is* 
Farrer is miftaken, when he fays the Prifoner true, therefore I leave it intirely to you. 
ftands only indifted of forging the feal: he is Mr. Brix has communicated to me the fol- 
inaccurate in faying he hands • indicted of lowing obfervations:
forging the fea l; it is for forging the bond. <c Improbability of the Bond’s being forged, 
But he does not’ hand inch fled of that only : u from its being conditional only ; for which 
he is indifted for publiftiing it knowing it to \ there could be no neceffity if it was forged, 
be.forged ; and, as I (hall hereafter fhew, it “  as it rendered the obligation lefs ftroug, 
is to that the evidence chiefly applies, and to jfc without any apparent realon.’' ’ 
which I mu ft require your more immediate It certainly would have been as eafy to. 
attention. / _ have forged an abfolute Bond. But there is

“  T h e  abfurdity of the Defendant’s con- jno evidence when the Bond Was forged, if it 
“  fefling a circumftance, which would endan-1 w ŝ forged: it might have been after the 
“  ger his life, to people with whom he was payment of the debt due to Bullakee Dofs; 
c< not in terms of confidence—.bis refufing, it might be to give an air of probability to 
“  three months after, to become fecurity for it* But this is matter proper for you to judge 
“  Comaul O Deen in his Farm*, a thing upon.
“  trifling in its nature, when contrafted with “  From the circumftance mentioned therein 
44 .the confequences which might naturally ju of the jewels being robbed, as that very. 
u be expefted from a refufal— the fmall de-1 circumftance leflens the value of the obli- 
mCC gree of credit due to a confeffion made “  gat ion, it might entitle the deceafed or 
“  only once, and nobody prefent but the | i his reprefentatives to relief in equity, 

i .i “  party and the. witnefs, which are the words I This circumftance of mentioning the jewels 
“  o f Comaul’s evidence.’' I is undoubtedly one that makes the tranfaclion

It is highly proper you fliould take thefe very fufpicious, as there is no evidence given 
circumftances into confideration : you will con- of any lofs of jewels; and indeed the evi- 
fider on what terms they were at the time of dence that has been produced on that head 
thefe conventions. Confeftions of this na- goes a great way to prove drat no iuch jewels 
ture are undoubtedly fufpicious; and to which, had ever been loft. It is ingenious to turn 
except there are matters to corroborate them, this to the advantage of the 1 uloner. ou
you ftiould be very cautious in giving too much will determine whether it can be 0 aPP ie *
'  di J Thefe are the obfervations made by the

Nothing anyways extraordinary in Co-1 Prifoner s Counfel: you- tv ill confider them, 
V m iul’s mentioning -the circumftnnce o f .b e  together with the obfermtons I have fubmtt- 
“  Defendant’s confeffion ; as it is well known ted to you upon them.
. jjcicuudui. t-wuLt-irtu , T fhall now make fome few obfervations on
“  that, in the moft common occurrences, the 1 man now ma te wu P ■

!■ • . ? v  ^  r . n flip pviHenre both on the part or the Lrown«  nat ves of this Country form the. molt tne eviaencc, UULU r '„ r
“  iniquitous fchemes, which are not brought and the Prifoner; deiinng, as . ave r q 
“  to maturity, or difclofed to the Public, fop Q .2
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]v daring the courfe of the trial, that you will is not o f his hand ̂ writing. Sabboot Pottack 
not fufler your judgments to be biaffed, or the fweaps pofitdvely to this : he %s., He was well 
Prifoner to be any way prejudiced, from any acquainted with his writing ; arid fpeaks as to 
thing that has pall, nor by any matter what- the ufual manner of his attefting which he 
foever which lias not been given in evi- fays, is different to that on this paper. 
cjenceo f Rajah Nobkiflen, on the paper being te w a i

The evidence on the part of the Crown, to him, fwore pofitively, that it was not the hand- 
fuppprt the adual Forgery, is that of Mohun writing of Sillabut; but afterwards retraced 
Perfand, who fays, That'Maha Rajah Nundo- the pofitivenefs o f his opinion : but the cir- 
comar declared,' that he had prepared or cumftance of his immediate fixing on the 
drawn out three papers, the amount of one o f three papers, which were before proved to 
which was 48,021 rupees, which is the be of Sill a bin’s writing, is a ftronger proof 
amount of the prefent Bond, and is applied of the knowledge of his hand-writing, than 
as a confeffion of the aftual forging; but, as any pofitive oath.
the confeffion may bear a different interpre- I muff again caution you -again ft receiving 
ration, there being no diftinffion in general a-ny impreffion unfavourable to the Prifoner,. 
made in the interpretation of the evidence, from the hefitation and doubts or excla- 
between writing or caufing to be wrote, draw- matrons of this witnefs, or from any other 
ing or caufing to be drawn, it may mean, circuinffances except what he a<3:ually depo&d. 
that he caufed Bollakey Dofs to draw or pre- to..
pare the Bond, and therefore I think the firft Both thefe laft witneffes agree, that the 
would be an hard and rather a forced con-[hand to this Bond is better than Sillabiu’s 
ftruftion of his words; and indeed he did hand.
not actually fpecify this Bond. Comaul O Other circuraftances are adduced to draw- 
Deen alfo gives evidence that will apply to an imputation on this bufinefs. An account 
the Forgery. Maha Rajah Nundocomar told fubfequent to the date of the Bond, which is 
him, That he had himfelf fixed Comaul O in 1772 , is produced do fhew, that Bollakey 
Deeffs feal to the Bond; and he proves a Dofs was at that time indebted to. Maha Rajah 
requifition from Maha Raj-ah Nundocomar, to Nundocomar only in the fum of 10 ,goo 
give evidence, That he was a witnefs to the rupees*, but I think no great ftrefs can 
Bond, and makes him promifes if he will, be laid on that, as it contains a reference 
This is the evidence of the Forgery*, but 11to fuch other debts as may appear by his 
think it will be more neceffary to attend to books. ' tttyl* «
the evidence in fupport of thofe Coums*which The Counfel for the Crown have proved,
I have laid the evidence may be applied to, that a draught for a large fum of money was 
and which charge the publication with an intent paid at Banaras, about the time of the Bond 
to defraud. given, on the credit of Bollakey Dofs, in favour

The evidence which applies to the actual of Lord Clive. This was adduced for the 
Forgery, applies likewife to the knowledge of purpofe of {hewing Bollakey Dofs to be ai 
its being forged. Mohun Perfaud proves the that time in good circumftances, and to infer 
Bond produced by Maha Rajah Nundocomar. from thence an improbability of his entering 
A  receipt of^Maha Rajah Nundocomar for! into, this Bond : but I think it proves no fuch 
the Company s Bonds, paid in fatisfaction of thing; a much larger fum would no doubt 
the Bond in queftion, and the aftual fatif- have been paid on Lord Clive’s credit alone; 
fa -ion received by Maha Rajah Nundo- and it is certain, that Bollakey Dofs was
comar. # at that time a debtor to Maha Rajah Nundo-

Two witnefles depofe, That the name pur- comaiv 
porting to be in the hand-writing of Sillabut,

I  I  There



There is another circumftance ; that Bol- at the execution of tho Bond by Bollakey 
lakey Dofs had never mentioned either the Dofs, three of whom had been privy to a 
depofit o f the jewels, or the lofs of them; convention at Maha Rajah Nundocomar’s, 
and that there is no entry of it in his books, when the confideration of the Bond was ac- 

Comaul O Deen produced a paper with knowledged by Bollakey Dofs: the fame 
the impreffion of his own feal, which he perfons prove the atteftation of the Bond 
fwears to be in the polfeffion of Maha Rajah by the three witneffes thereto, who are all 
Nundaeomar : you before faid, you thought dead.

• it to be the fame with that to the Bond ; The brother of Matheb R.oy is produced, 
you will accurately examine i f ,  I have not; who fays, that Matheb Roy was well known 
I am told, there is a flaw in both the inv to Huzree Mull and Coffinaut : Huzree Mull 
preffions. and Coffinaut did know a Matheb Roy ; but

Comaul O Deen accounts for his feal being it is clear, from their defeription of the per- 
in the poffeffion of Maha Rajah Nundocomar, fon, that it is not the brother of the witnefs 
and fwears, he has not received it back : his at the bar. However, Coffinaut gave an ac- 
evidence is fupported by Coja Petrufe, whofe count of the family of the man he knew,, 
ch a rafter you all know, and Moonffiy Sudder whofe father was Bungoo L o ll ; but faid, 
O Deen, to whom he repeated the conver-' there was another Bungoo Loll. It feems ex- 
fations with Maha Rajah Nundocomar, when traordinary that there ffiould be two Bungoo 
they had recently paft ; you know the prac- Lolls, two Saheb R.oys, and two Matheb Roys,, 
tices o f the natives, and whether it is pro- in two different families : however, there is 
bable, as the Counfel for the Prifoner has I no doubt of the exiltence of two Bungoo 
fuggefted,. that this is a deep - laid feene of Lolls and two Saheb Roys; the improbability 
villainy. then decreafes, and bothTage Roy and Roop-

The character of Comaul O Deen was en- nerain (wear to the exiftence of the other 
quired into from Coja Petrufe, and you have Matheb Roy. It is extraordinary, however,, 
heard his anfwer. that this man, who is deferibed by his brother

Subornation of perjury was endeavoured to be a poor man, and fervant to a prifoner 
to be fixed on him by the evidence of Huffein in the gaol, and was not known to Coffi- 
A l!i ; but as to Cawda Newas, nothing was naut or Huzree Mull, ffiould be deferibed 
proved: as to the feal-cutter, his conver- by the Counfel for the Prifoner as a man 
fation with him feems rather to ftrengthen of note and family, and as being acquainted 

• »than impeach his credit. with Coffinaut and Huzree Mull.
This Ron d was found cancelled among the In con trad ift ion to what Comaul O Deen 

papers delivered into the Mayor’s Court, as had faid, the defence introduces another Co­
belonging to the eftate of Bollakey Dofs ; but maul *, and all the four witneffes fwear pofi- 
the papers of Pudmohun Dofs and Bollakey tively to his attefting the Bond. He improved 
Dofs were mixed. ;by two witnefles to be dead; one Joydes

This is the fubftan.ee of the evidence for ;Chowbee faw a man going to be buried, 'and 
the Crown ; and no doubt, if  the witneffes was told it was ComauL. 
are believed,, whatfoever you may think of The other Sheekear Mahomed actually at- 
the forgery, there is evidence of publication, tended his funeral. _ .. .
with knowledge of forgery. I Comaul O Deen fwears pofiuvely it is his

On the other hand, if you believe the wit- deal* and thefe witneffes fwear to the attelta  ̂
neffesforthe Prifoner, a moil compleat an-;tion by. another Comaul. J.oydel Uiowbee 
fwier is given to the charge. ' imentioits. a. oircumftance by which he knew it

There are no lefs than four witneffes prefent .to be the funeral ComauL.
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Whether it was a funeral of a Bramin or the people came from Mali a Raj a h N  undo- 
Muffulman > It feems, the mode of carrying comar to Bollakey Dofs s ; and all the wit- 
r S  men and Bramins differ. You muff neffes, except one, deny any fpeafic dircflions 
S e e  from his evidence, whether he muft being given after. It is poflible he might 
S a v e  known whether it was a Muffulman have fpoken to the Mour before his coming 
or Bramin, without enquiry; indeed he has mto the room ■ winch the other witneffes at 
faid That he did ; and the oblervation was this d.ftance of time might have forgot. _ 
fo ftrong, that he after pofidvely denies he Though there are fome .variations in their, 
ever faid he made fuch enquiry. evidence at the time of the execution, that is

As Comaul is faid to have died in the not at all extraordinary; what is moft Jr,k ing 
houfe Of Maha Rajah Nundocomar, it feems. is, the very accurate memories which they 
extraordinary, that no one but Sheekear Ma- preferve as to fome cireumftunces, and then 
homed is brought 10 prove his aftual death ; it total forgetfulnefs as to others, 
muft have been eafy to have brought many 1  he moft remarkable mftance of their 
perfons of Maha Rajah Nundocomar’s family, memory is the knowledge of the feals, which 
efpecially as he mentions five perfons by fome of them fwear to pofitively., only from 
name that attended his funeral, befides having feen them three or four, timesion the 
Cooleys; three indeed he has buried fince, fingers of the owners, from which (though 
but there are two (till alive. This muft have the feals muft be reverted when applied to 
been known to be very material, for this-is paper, and though fome of them do: nofun- 
not the fir ft time that Comaul O Deeu has derftand Perfian, and confequently not the 
given evidence concerning his feal. charafters engraved on the feal) they fwe$i?

It is admitted on both fides, that Seelabut pofitively to their being able to know the mi­
ls dead. It is remarkable, that no account preffions ; and it is .true, for they do point 
whatfoever is given of the Mour who wrote out to whom the impreffion of each particn at 
the Bond :. he would have been a material feal on the Bond does belong. Kiflen Juan 
witnefs: there is no proof whofe writing it is : Dofs, who muft have feen Bollakey Dofs s 
it is proved, that Bollakey Dofs had at that feal oftener than any of the witneffes, does 
time a writer who name was Balkiffen, who is not take upon him to remember the im- 
dead : there is no evidence that it was of his preffion ; and on being told the other witneffes 
hand; he was, I think, known to one of the did, he faid, they had excellent memories ; 
witneffes to the execution of the .bond. he was not bleffed with fuch.

A  witnefs fays, that Seelabut- was a Per- They are likewife- uniformly accurate in „ 
Can Writer as well as Vakeel to Bullalcer afcribing the order in which the witneffes 
Dofs, and Kiffen Juan Dofs feems to confirm fealed and ligned.
i t ; being afked, What Perfian Writer Bui- I fhall make, no obfervation on the variances 
laker Dofs had at that time ? he anfwers, of the witneffes to the execution ; for, except 
«  He had one named Balkiffen, and Seelabut in two inftances, one of the witneffes, who 
cC alfo underftood P e r f i a n I t  is not faid to remembered the fum in the Bond, from its 
be of his writing; and if Seelabut afted in being explained in a language he did not 
that capacity, what occafion had Bullakee underftand, the other, Sheekear Mahomed 
Dofs to call for another writer ? is the only witnefs that fpoke with precifion

There is no evidence of any particulars as to the fum. You heard him deliver his 
being mentioned to the writer who made out evidence, and will form your own judgement 
the Bond, though it contains very fpecial on that and on his whole evidence, in which 
matter, except by one witnefs: all agree that he affirms and denies the fame thing in the 
no direftions were given in the room before fame breath.
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As to the other, it was fuggefted, that the I nefs to be when Bollakey Dofs was with the 
fame words expreffed the fame fums in Moors army at Durghotty. It feems clear beyond 
and Perfian, which drew-on an enquiry; and doubt, from the date of the receipt- from 
we had the Perfian and Moor words for the the place the army was then in, ahdfrom the 
fums mentioned delivered in evidence; you circumftances that both Coffm Alii and Bol- 
will fee how far you think they agree or dif- lakey Dofs were in at the time the receipt 
ag ree* bears date, that the receipt could not have

Nor fliall I obferve on the manner in which been given by Bollakey Dofs, and that the 
• the witneffes on either fide gave their tefti- whole is a fiction, 

mony. You faw and remarked them. The A  very ftrikingobfervation arifes from this: 
Jury having the opportunity to make their It may account for the witneffes remembering; 
obfervations on the condufl of the witneffes, the feals fo accurately. Tage Roy fays, He 
and.of hearing the queftions put as circum- is in .poffeffion of Matheb Roy’s feal. ’ The 
fiances arife, is the great part o f the benefit of feal of Gomaul O Deen is proved to have 
a viva voce examination. been in the poffeffion of Maha Rajah Nun-

The defence does not attempt to prove ei- docomar; and the perfon who fabricated this 
tlier the depofit or the lofs. o f jewels. , And receipt m ill have had that leal which made 
indeed Kiffen Juan Dofs, on whofe evidence lithe impreflion on the Bond and the receipt, 
fhall hereafter obferve, fays, “  That he never j I f the witneffes by any means have feen thofe 
“  heard of fuch a lofs ; had it happened, he feals, it is no .longer furprizing that they. 
“  muff have heard i t ; and a thoufand people fhould be well acquainted with theimpreffions. 
“  muff have known it.”  He fpeaks of the I his is a ftrong obfervation ; but it is but an 
lofs o f jewels to a trifling amount, but thofe obfervation ; I would have you confider it de- 
belonged to another perfon. This, as I faid liberately and maturely before you adopt it. 
before, is a fufpicious circumffance. But if Kiffen Juan Dofs delivered all his evidence, 
the jewels were actually depofited, o f which till this morning, with fuch fimplicity, and 
there isMio evidence, except what I am going with fuch an air of candor and truth, that I 
to take notice of; the Kurfa-Nama : though gave full affent to every thing he.faid; and I  
they were not loft, Bollakey Dofs might have am extremely chagrined that there has arifen 
told Maha Rajah Nundocomar that they were;! any caufe to fufpect any part of his. evidence, 
and the Maha Rajah might give credit to Bol-I He mentioned a paper, which he calls a Kurfa 
lakey D ofs; or might chufe rather to take a I Natria, in which the whole of this tranfadion 

I • Rond' than enquire further into the matter, was wrote, and which was acknowledged and 
It might poffibly have been a fraud on Maha figned by Bollakey Dofs.- Though the entry 
Rajah Nundocomar. made in the book after .the death .of. Bollakey

Meer Affud’s evidence may be very mate- Dofs, by order of-Pudraohun Dofs, and pur- 
rial. Pie produces a paper, purporting to be I porting to be in the life-time of Bcfllakey Dofs,, 
a receipt given by Bnllakee Dofs to him, forjcarried marksoffufpicionwith.it,; yet, I own 
valuable effects o f Goffim A lii, delivered by Kiffen Juan Dofs had fo compleatly gained my 
the witnefs to Bollakey .Dofs, which had the confidence, that I gave implicit .credit to him. 
feal o f Bollakey Dofs to it. The impreflion Many attempts were made to effablifli it in. 
you will examine ; you will find it to be the evidence, which failed of. legal proof; but as, 
fame as is on the Bond. This was for the I thought fo well of Kiffen Juan Dofs, and 
purpofe of proving the correfpondence of the as it would have been extremely hard, if fuch 
impreflion o f the feal on this receipt, with a paper had exifted, that the Pnfoner fliould. 
the feal on the Bond ; and by that means to be deprived of the benefit of it, I  laid (hav- 
prove, that the feal to the Bond was the iden- ing firft afked the confent of my. Brethren),, 
tical feal of Bollakey Dofs, not one that, was that, .though, it was not ftrtdly evidence, 1 
forged. This tranfasftion was faid by the wix-Lwould leave it to you to give., fuch weight to-

lU
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l \ s v o u tta ,El,t 1ta e fc V d . I ftill leave itl luntarily and direflly confronted him as to 
c } & A :f vml believe that fuch a paper the army books ?

t0 y ft would be the big heft injuftice A ll this fear anfes from no recent th re a t:
ever exifted, n  would b  J ;t js jn -confequence o f a converfation at the
iiot^to acquit t r ^  bring this to the diftance o f forne years.

I nowledge o f Mohun Perfaud ; and if  it did It is for you to determine-how far he red ly  
exift and was in the knowledge o f Mohun ftands in awe o f Mohun Perfaud, and w hat 
Perkud this profecution is moft horrid and the e ffe te 'o f that intimidation was when he 
diabolical. Mohun Perfaud is guilty o f a delivered his evidence.
“  my apprehenfion, of a nature more It is ftrange, as the w.tnefs was fo often 
i hon L Jr L r  examined, and fo particularly to this kurfa

But I own, what paffed after the Counfel Nama, that Maha Rajah Nundocomar never 
for the Prifoner had clofed his evidence, has before iuggefted this matter to his Counfel. 
very much weakened the confidence I had in I f  this latter part of Kiffen Juan s evidence 
S n  Tuan Dofs. The Counfel did not de- is true, he muft be either guilty of perjury 
fire that he (hould be called, affigning as is or very ftrong prevarication m h.s former evi- 
ufual for their reafon, that they had forgot to dence. Being asked as to Mohun lerfaud 
examine to any particular poiut which was and Gungabiffen s knowledge of the entry 
contained in their inftruftions; but we are made from the kurfa Nam a? He M  
informed that the Maha Rajah had fomething “  cannot fay that Mohun I erfaud and Gun- 
to fay. All that he fays is, That he defires |« gabiffen knew of it at the time of the entry; 
Kiffen Juan Dofs may be further interrogated]”  they knew of it afterwards. How can I tell 
as to the Kurfa Nama. The queftion then is “  when they knew of it firft ? They muft 
immediately put to him, Whether he ever ex- “  have known it from the papers in the De* 
plained the Kurfa Nama to Mohun Perfaud? “  wanuy Audaulet; they were all called for 
and then he gives the account of Mohun “  there. I fhould tell, i f  I knew Gungabiffen 
Perfaud’s having feen it at Maha Rajah Nun- “  or Mohun Perfaud knew of the entry. _ 
docomar’s. • H e muft have known it was more material

When he is examined to the reafon of his to prove that they knew o f the Kurfa Nama 
not having told it before, all that fimplicity, itfelf, in which the particular? of the account 
all that air of truth and candor, which we had which formed the fum in the entry were wrote, 
remarked in him, inftantly vanifhed; his looks and which Rollakey Dofs had figned. But 
were call down, his tongue faultered, h^pre- he prefently afterwards pofitively fays, l h ^  „ 
varicates, he contradifts himfelf, he did not Mohun Perfaud and Gungabiffen were not ac- 
feem the fame man. “  He did not tell, be- quainted with the accounts. ^
“  caufe he was not alked.”  “ He did not In another part of his evidence, he fays 
w mention it to Maha Rajah Nundocomar-in to Pudmohun Dofs, fC Make my mind ealy 
€i his letter, becaufe he was afraid of Mohun <c about the Bond we are now paying, or (for 
ct Perfaud.”  “  He did not mention, becaufe u there was a doubt in the interpretation)
“  he did not recoiled* it.”  He did not deliver “  which we have paid.”
“  it in evidence, becaufe afraid of Mohun The time that this explanation was made 
u Perfaud.”  Mohun Perfaud is_ a great man. at Maha Rajah Nundocomar’s is not afeer- 
He was not afraid to~ write the letter. He did tained; but it muft have been before thepay- 
not (hew the letter to Mohun Perfaud : why ment of the Bond ; for afterwards it could be 
(hould he be afraid toinfert this drcumftance? of no ufe. I f  then Kiffen Juan D.ofe had be- 
I f  he now {lands in fo much fear of Mohun fore feen this Kurfa Nama, and explained it 
Perfaud as not to mention this in his evidence, to Mohun Perfaud, why did he demand that 
Was he fo much afraid of him when he vo- his mindlhould be madeeafy about the Bond.
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fcnd how was it made eafy, only by the pro- Much depends in this profecution on the 
duftion of a paper that he had feen be- evidence of Mohun Perfaud : you mud judge 
f ° re ? < how far his credit has been fhaken : moft of

I am much hurt, to be obliged to make you know him : you mud determine how far 
thefe obfervations on the evidence of a man he deferves credit; and how probable it is, 
that* 1 entertained fo good an opinion of. 1 that he would, through malice, or any other 
mud defire you to recoiled, with regard to corrupt motive, accufe an innocent perfon of 
this observation, and every one that I Submit a capital crime. I f  you think him capable 
to you, that you are to make no farther ufe of it, you fhould not give the lead attention 
o f them, than as they coincide with your to his evidence. He fwore pofitively to the 
opinions and obfervations; and when they do Bond produced by Maha Rajah Nundocomar, 
not, you fhould rejcft them ; for it is you, and for which the Company’s Bonds were 
not 1, that are to decide upon the evidence. given, being the fame Bond that was pro- 

Attempts were made, by means of Mono- duced in evidence'; he faid, he knew it from 
hun and other Witneffes, to impeach Mohun- circumftances, but did not explain what thofe 
perfaud, by particular fails, of attempts to circumdances were ; this I mention as going 
fuborn, and by-general charailer. You mud to his credit only ; for the whole defence pro- 
judge how far they have Succeeded. They ceeds on indentifving this Bond, and proving 
totally failed in the fame attempts, as to Co- it a true one.
maul O Deen. You will judge how far he is contradicted

It is to be obferved, likewife, that no perfon by Kiffen Juandofs, as to the army books; and
has been called to impeach the Witneffes which of the two are to be believed,
brought by the Defendant. . An imputation was attempted to be thrown

There are many obfervations to be made in on Mohun Perfaud, for preventing Gunga 
favour of the Prifoner; and I am fure your Vifier from attending, who was faid to be 
humanity will prompt you to enforce them, as able and willing to appear as a Witnefs: but
far as they will bear. that has been cleared up, to the full fatisfac-

I before faid, that the defence, if believed, tion of u s ; and, Ido not doubt, toyourfatil- 
was a full refutation of the charge; it is not faftion likewife. He could not be called by 
only fo, but it muff fix an indelible mark of the profecutor, on account of his intereft; and 
infamy on the Profecutor. no prejudice fhould accrue to the Prifoner, for

There are four pofitive Witneffes o f the not calling him, for the fame reafon.
# aflual execution of the Bond by Bollakey The Counfel for the Prifoner have urged 

Dofs. * the hardship of this profecution being brought
In oppolition to ComauPs evidence, there at this diftance of time. You have heard 

are as many to prove, that the Witnefs atteff- when Mohun Perfaud firft fufpe&ed the for- 
ing was another Comaul. gery ; and when, by Comaul s declaration, he
• Matheb R oy was not mentioned by the had reafon to be confirmed in the fufpi- 
•evidence for the Crown. Four Witneffes faw cion.
him atteft i t ; and two other Witneffes, one of Yon have heard, when the Papers were de- 
them his brother, likewife prove that .there livered out of the Court; if there has oeeu 
was fuch a perfon. any defigned delay, and you think Mohun .

In oppofition to Rajah Nobkiffen and Pat- Perfaud had it in his power‘ to carry on an 
tock, who fwear the name Sillabut to the effeftual profecution before-he has ; it is a 
Bond, is not of Sillabut’ s hand-writing; four great hardlhip to Mah* Rajah Nupdocomar, 
Witneffes fwear pofitively to the having feen efpecially as the Witneffes to tne Bond are all 
, .  ~ 1 dead • and vou ought to confider this among■ him write it. . • Qea£ » dnu ) uu 5 t tjj“

|
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the other circumflances which are in his fa- I have made fuch obfervations on the evi- 
vour. Though, to be fare, this hardfnip is dence as the bulk of it, and the few minutes 
much diminifhed* as there were fo many W it- I had to recoiled! myfelf, would allow me to- 
Defies Hill alive, who were prefent at the ex- make.
ecution of it. You will confider the whole with that can-

There are two pieces of written evidence dour, impartiality, and attention, which, has 
relied on by the Prifoner : one, the entry in been fo. vifible in every one o f you du~ 
the book from the Kurra Nama, on account ring the many days you have fat on this 
of the agreement of the fums ; and you will caufe.
find that the fums faid by Kiflen Juan Dofs You will confider on which fide the weight 
to be contained in the Kurra Nama; viz. of evidence lies; always remembering, that

in Criminal, and more efpecially in Capital 
Durbar expences 6,000 R° cafes, you mu ft not weigh the evidence in
Bond Batta and premium 69,630 7 golden fcales*, there ought to be a great differ-

---------- - ence o f weight in the oppofite fcale before
Do amount to the fum of 75,630 7 you find the Prifoner Guilty. In cafes o f

------------• Property, the ftake on each fide is equal, and
which is the fum in the entry. the leaft preponderance of evidence ought to-

turn the fcale; but in a Capital cafe, as there 
The other is the account delivered' by Mo- can be nothing of equal value to life, you 

hun Perfaud and Pudmohun Dofs,, fubfequent fhould. be thoroughly convinced, that there 
to the account delivered in by Pudmohun Dofs, does not remain a poffibility o f innocence be- 
in which Pudmohun Dofs had taken credit for fore you give your verdidt agarnft the Pri- 
this fum ; and the fubfequent. account likewife foner.
containsit. The nature o f the defence in this cafe is

I do not think much can be drawn from this, fuch, that, if it is not believed, it muft prove 
for the fums had, as Mohun Perfaud fays, fatal to the party ; for if  you do not believe 
been paid, and therefore they certainly would it, you determine, that it is fupported by- 
take credit for them, to prevent their being Perjury, and that o f an aggravated kind, as 
charged with them; this they would do, it attempts to fix perjury and fubornation o f  
were the monies properly or improperly perjury on the Profecutor and his W it- 
paid. neffes.

There is certainly great improbability that a You will again and again confider the cha- 
man of Maha Rajah Nundocomar’s rafik and rafter of the Profecutorand his Witnefles, the 
fortune fhould be guilty of fo mean an offence diftance of the profecuxion from the time the 
for fo fmall a fum of money. offence is fuppofed to be committed, the

It is more improbable, as he is proved to proof and nature of the confeffions faid to be­
have patronized and behaved with great kind- made by the Prifoner, his rank and fortune* 
nefs to Bollakey Dofs in his life-time, that he Thefe are all reafons to prevent your giving a 
fhould immediately after his deceafe plunder hafty and precipitate belief to the charge 
the widow and relations of his friend. brought againft him ; but, if you believe the

There does likewife appear to have been a fadts fworn agaipft him to be true,, they can- 
fait in the Audaulet, which muft have been a not alter the nature of the fafts themfelves,. 
Civil fa it; but it does not indeed appear that Your fenfe of Juftice, and your own feelings, 
Mohun Perfaud was a party; and, indeed, will not allow you to convift the Prifoner, un- 
for what reafon I know not, neither fide have" ie-fs your confciences are fully fatisfied beyond 
thought fit to produce the proceedings. all doubt of his Guilt- If they are not,, you

wilk
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will bring in that verdift, which, from the die- thoroughly convinced of his being'Guiltv no 
rates of humanity, you will be inclined to confideration, I am fure, will prevail on you 
g iv e ; but, mould your confciences be not to give a verdift according to your oaths.

Thp Ju ry  retired for about an h o u r; and brought in their verdift, Guilty. .
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J l  DAW L UT. Literally fignifies Juftice; IJ  amnia. Part of the drefs of a native of India 
but often ufed for a Court of Juftice. Jammah. Debit fide of an account.

Arzee. A  reprefentation in writing, or letter Khalfa. Exchequer.
R from an !nferior a^Perior. Khelaat. A  drefs of invefiiture given to a
Banyan. A  particular Call amongft the Hen- perfon upon his nomination to an office.
d ^°0S# t\ (t r i Kidmutgar. A  Waiting Servant.

“ t/  7D l r “ .c5 excllans e ^P °n coins- Kulgbab. An ornament for the Turban.
Chuck lab. A  Diftndt. Kuttree. A  particular Call amongft the
Lonfumah. A  Household Steward. Hindoos.
-Cooly. A  Labourer, or Porter. Mohirir. A  Writer.
-:Co//id. A  Meffenger. j Moonjhee. A .Secretary or Writer.
.JJarogah of a Cutcheree. Superintendant of a' Mullah. A  Teacher.
n  Urti ’ ,  j Nuzzer. A  prefent of compliment made by
dJurbar Kxpences.. Money given to perfonsin an inferior when introduced to a fuperior.

power.  ̂ Peon. A  Footman, or perfon to go on
:Ferd. An Arabic word, expreffing U n ity -J meffages.

but technically fignifies a Sheet o f Paper J Pottah. Title Deed.
containing an Account. Ruffe ek. Litrerally a Friend ; but •means all

Foujedurree. A  particular office under the through this trial a half-friend and half- 
Government.^ dependant.

; Gold Mohir. Sixteen rupees. 'Serpaiche. An ornament for the Turban.
Gomaft ah. Agent. Sewarree. Equipage.
Gurnee. A  portion of time containing about \ Shroff. A  Banker, an Exchanger of money. 

22 minutes. , SunnudL A  grant from the Government or its
- Hi rcarrah. Litterally a S p y ; but commonly Officers-

D means a perfon who runs on meffages, and Tzaradar.. A Farmer, 
attends the palanquin. Vakeel. An  Attorney.

\
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P. 48. for OUahoo, r. Oldahoo.
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J O S E P H  F O W K E ,  F R A N C I S  F O W K E ,  M A H A  R A J A H  • 

N  U N D O  C O  M A R ,  A N D  R O Y  R A D A  C H U R N ,

For A  C O N S P I R A C Y  againft W A R R E N  H A S T I N G S ,  Efq.

A N D  T H A T  O F

J O S E P H  F O W K E ,  M A H A  R A J A H  N U N D O C O M A R ,  

A N D R O Y R A D A C H U R N ,

For A  C O N S P IR A C Y  againft R IC H A R D  B A R W E L L , Efq.

T o  which are prefixed,

S E V E R A L  D E P O S I T I O N S ;

A N D

An Examination into the C L A I M  of R O Y  R A D A  C H U R N  to the 

Privilege of an Ambaflador, as Vakeel of M U B A R I C K  U L  D O W L A .

A  L O N D O N :

j Printed for T . C A  D  E  L  L , in the Strand.
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C O N T E N T S .

Depofitions concerning a Confpiracy againfl: W arren Haftings, Efquire.

Examination into the Claim of Roy Rada Churn to the Privilege of an Ambaffador, 

as Vakeel of Mubarick U 1 Dowla, Nabob of Bengal.

Trial o f Jofeph Fowke, Francis Fowke, Maha Rajah Nundocomar, and Roy Rada 

Churn, for a Confpiracy againfl: Warren Haftings, Efquire.

Trial o f Jofeph Fowke, Maha Rajah Nundocomar, and Roy Rada Churn, 

for a Confpiracy againfl Richard Bat-well, Efquire.
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D E P O S I T I O N S
C O N C E R N I N G

A  C O N S P I R A C Y  againft W A R R E N  H A S T I N G S ,  Efq;

Calcutta, April 20th, 1775.

ON  the 19th Inftant, about nine in the The Honourable Warren Haftings, 
morning, Comaul O Deen A lii Cawn, Efquire.

the Farmer o f Hedgelee, came to M r. Haf- S I R  
tings, with a complaint againft M r. Jofeph .
Fowke, for having extorted from him, by A  Charge having been exhibited, upon 
violence, accufations againft M r. Haftings and oath, before us, .againft Jofeph and Francis 
other perfons. The particulars o f his ftory Fowke, Maha Rajah Nundocotnar, and Rada 
will be related at large in his depofition. Churn, for a confpiracy againft you and 

•H e faid, he had that inftant made his efcape others; we have fummoned the parties to ap- 
from the hands of Fowke and Nundocomar. pear to-morrow, at ten o’clock in the forenoon, 
His jammah was torn, his face pale, and he at the houfe of Sir Elijah Impey, where we 
was, or appeared to be, out o f breath. M r. muft require your attendance.
Haftings told him, he could afford him no re- yqe are>
drefs; and referred him to the Chief Juftice.
He went. The Chief Juftice, having heard bir,

\  the complaint, fummoned the other Judges to Your moft obedient
V  meet him in the evening ; and late that night APrU x9tll> *771*
\  M r. Haftings received the following Letter humble iervants,

\frora them : E. Impey.
V  \ . Rob. Chambers.
« (Signed) S . c. L em a  ISTRE.

Tohn H y d e .
x Thea a V



form, to Mr. d * h’imT ™5fo ’defired S a t fee ^ould la j  riS
¥he ne«emo?ningMr Haftings attended, as arzee which I had given him againft Mr. 

dB t W t e r  perfons named in the Letter. Archdekin before the Committee and afford 
The perfons examined, as evidence on the me his patronage. The faid Rajah agreed to 

charge were Comaul O Deen, his Moonlhy, this and difm.ffed me. Another day Maha 
Mathew Heranda and Timothy Pereira, two Rajah to d me, that his bufinefs depended on 
writers'of Mr. Fowke, Akramanna a Gentoo, Mr. Fowke, whom I muff vifit. I anfwered, 
and a Moonlhy, both fervants of M r. Fowke,- ‘-that, in the month o f  Poos,' a quarrel hap- 
and Tar Mahomed a well-known fervant of pened between that Gentleman and me, and 
Nundocomar. The examination lafted till that I therefore could not go. He replied. It 
eleven at night. did not f fW P ' A t hls defire> 1 accompanied

It will be neceffary, before we proceed, Rada Churn to vifit the faid Gentleman, who 
to remind the Reader of a reprefentation talked to me very friendly. In the mean 
which wasmade to Mr. Haftings by Comaul 'flme, Moonlhy Sudder O Deen'arrived, and 
O Deen of the like attempt made by Mr. told me to get back my arzees; and that he 
Fowke in December lad, to extort accufa- would fettle my affairs with, the aforefaid 
tions from him; and which was laid before Dewan. I went to the Maha Rajah, and de- 
the Board on the 13th of that month. In fired to have my arzees returned to me. Maha 
the courfe of the late examination it appeared, Rajah replied, Give me the 6,000 rupees, 
that Mr. Fowke had fent to the Board o f according to agreement; and take back your 
Revenue a Letter, dated the iffth of April, arzees. I faid, I have not yet received the 
accompanied by a paper, bearing the feal money; as loon as I have, I will affuredly
of Comaul O Deen, and containing a for- give it you, and will give you a written agree-
mal recantation of his former reprefentation. roent to this effect. He would not 'confent
Mr. Mailings had not yet feen thefe pa- *0 this;; and on the 5th o f Byfaac faid to me,
pers# Hn the paonth of Poos, yourgave in an aczee of

^complaint againft M r. Fowke, on which ac- 
The following are copies of the Depofitions :count he is difpleafed with you, and will not 

which were taken before the Judges. return # them to you. I replied, I gave the
arzees in truft to you, and not to M r. Fowke.

Depofition of He anfwered, Do one thing, and I will re-
C O M  A U L  O D E E N  A L L I  C A W N , turn your arzees: I will give you a draft o f * 

upon oath.. an arzee, which you muft write, and prefent
* ♦ to the General, and agree, that when you are

Having a demand on the Dewan o f the appointed to Poorniah, you will prefent this 
Calcutta Diftrift, for the fum of. 26,000 ru- arzee againft the Governor to the Council: if  
pees, on account of the advances made on the you do not agree to this, your arzees will not 
Collaries in the Hedgelee difttias, which he be returned. I faid, Shall I give a falfe arzee 
had not paid to me; to frighten him, I went to to Mr. Fowke, to procure the return of my 
Maha Rajah Nundocomar, and gave him three own arzees ? He replied, You need not give i  
arzees; two againft the faid Dewan, and the this arzee, or put your feal to i t ;  he only jt  
third againft Mr. Archdekin, telling him to wants to hear the particulars o f it. once from /  
keep the two arzees againft the Dewan in his you : this is o f no confequence to you. Being/ 
own hands; and that when Moonlhy Sudder O remedilefs, I faid, Give me whatever draft! 
Deen ftiould arrive from his houfe,>nd I (hould you pleafe. Afterwards, at night o f the 6th 
receive my money through his means, that I Byfaac, at his own office, he caufed me to

2 /  have

D E P O S I T I O N S .
2 The fame intimation was fen:, in the fame would make him (Nundocomar) a prefat of



D E P O S  I T I O N S .
have it written by my own Moonfhy, and the oth nf r .  „  , 3
took it from m e; and on the 8th Inrtant he h ouff and S ?  
fent me with Rada Churn to M r. Fowke. The Maha Raiah wpep c’ \ -hlS and 
faid Gentleman called me into his chamber, chamber.' I  Rood gm‘-
and, placing two Writers and two B en galis  ries afterwards, the faid Gentleman the Maha 
over me, firft of all afked of me, What fums Rajah, &c. came out, and go h to th e ir  
did you give to the Governor, Mr. Barwell, palanquins. I came before thfm and called 
M r. Vanfittart, &c. as bribes? I anfwered, I for Juftice from the Council and Audaulef 
gave no bribes. Having heard this,. he fud- and defired that they would return me lh e  

. denly flew into a paffion and took up a book writing which they had yefterday forced me 
which lay near him, to ftrike me, faying, Do to write, and taken from me. The faid Gen- 
you defire your own welfare ? Write what I tleman and Maha Rajah, being enraged 
defire you, and put your feal to this arzee. told their people to take me, and keep me 

i I Plu my feal to the arzee, within the houfe. I oppofed them with all
and laid. Tell me what you defire I ihould my force, and got into my palanquin •, there
write, that I may write it. He faid, Write were near 20 people with me. The quarrel
that you have given 45,000 rupees, within continued between my people and theirs till I 
three years, as bribes to Mr. Barwell, 15,000 arrived at the houfe of Rajah Rajah Bullub, 
rupees in nuzzies to the Governor, 12,000 when their people returned. I went to the 
to M r. Vanfittart, 7,000 to Maha Rajah Governor, and reprefented all thefe particu-
Rajah Bullub, and 5,000 to Baboo Kiffen lars to him : I hope for Juftice.
Cantoo. I was confined in a chamber, with­
out any power ; and, being in fear o f my re- "Comaul O
putation and life, I wrote what was defired of Seal. Deen Alii
me with my own hand, and gave it, and Cawn.
thereby obtained my liberty ; and when I got 
out of the chamber, I flood at the top of the
flairs, and called aloud to Mr. Fowke’s fon Quejl* When was it you firft applied to 
and Rada Churn, a  Give me back the falfi- Nundocomar with the arzees ? 
ties which I have been obliged to write, and Anf. The latter end c f  Chite. 
have been taken from m e; otherwife I will He delivered the three arzees to Rada 
go and lodge a complaint before the Audau- Churn, who carried them to Nundocomar, 
let.”  Shimflieer Beg and his Moonfhy are whom he himfelf did not fee that night; but 

1 Witnefles to the truth of this. Mr. Fowke’s the next day he faw Nundocomar, who told 
fon, hearing, went to his father, and after him he had received the arzees; that he would 
much converfation came out, and faid to me, give the one againft Mr. Archdekin to the 
Go for the prefent to your houfe ; the Maha Committee, and keep the others by him. 
Rajah will come here to-morrow, do you come His offer was, by means of Rada Churn, 
here at the fame time ; I will then fatisfy you. 4,000 to Nundocomar, and 2,000 for him- 

H Being remedilefs, I came to my. own houfe, felf. -
\  and went to Moonfhy Sudder O Deen, and He fays, he made this offer becaufe he ex- 
\  faid, Do you go and give notice to Mr. Bar- pe&ed that Nundocomar, by his great influ- 

\  well and Mr. Vanfittart, that Mr. Fowke has ence in Calcutta, which is well known, would 
\h is  day exercifed great oppreffion on me, and be able to procure the payment of the 

made me write a great number of falfities money, 
againft the Gentlemen, which he has taken That Rajah Nundocomar had always mflu- 
from me; and that, whatever is to be done, ence, but particularly fince the Rajah of Buid-
will be executed to-morrow. This day, being wan obtained his Kellaut.j

a a 2 \» \  * s§g



That the faid Rajah and the Rajah of for Mr. Fowke and Nun'docomar’s con- 
Radfitue paid him attention, and that he has duct.
frequently 50 palanquins at his door. He took the Farm o f the Hedgelee diftrift

He did not himfelf, at that time, mention for five years, and furnifhed 375,000 maunds 
the money to Nundocomar, but only made the of fait, and collects 75,000 rupees revenue, 
offer to Rada Churn ; it not being ufual to The Company pays him a lack of rupees 
offer money to the principal, but through an yearly for the fait which he providesfor them, 
intermediate perfon.

What he mentioned, concerning the draft
o f the arzee, was faid by Nundocomar in a Depofition of N U N D O C O M A R .  
whilper ; and heard by no one except Rada
Churn, fon-in-law to Nundocomar, who con- Comaul O Deen Cawn, in his childhood, 
ducts Mr. Fowke’s bufinels, and is fuppofed was with me two or three years ; fince, fome 
to.be his Banian. difputes arifing, he feparated from m e; about

He fays, that Nundocomar diftated the two months ago, he mentioned to Rada Chum 
draft of an arzee to his (Comaurs) Moonfhy ; that a violent enmity fubfifted betwixt him and 
and, after having altered it, defired that he me, and begged Rada Churn to endeavour to 
would order his Moonfhy to write it fair. He bring us together ; he made ‘ many entreaties 
then complained of illnefs, and went away, to this purpofe to Rada Churn, who informed' 
leaving his Moonfhy there. me o f what had palfed ; and likewife inform-

That Nundocomar fent his Moonfhy, about ed me, that Comaul O Deen was much 
ten at night, under the charge of another per- afhamed of his behaviour to me ; and that he 
fon, with 1 he arzee, and direfted him to affix begged his faults might be forgiven him. I 
his feal to it, which he then refufed ; faying, told Rada Churn, in anfwer, that he was in the 
that he had made no fuch agreement. wrong to mention this affair to me ; who earn-

That,’ on the eighth, when he went to M r. eftly requeued, that I would forgive Comaul 
Fowke’s, there were no others in the room ex- O Deen. I anfwered, That he was very young, 
cept Mr. Fowke, Rada Churn, and two Ben- and that this man would occafion more dif- 
gallies and two Writers. Young M r. Fowke putes; but at laft I gave him permiffion to 
and others paffed in and out o f the room feve- bring Comaul O Deen Cawn. One day h$ 
ral times. Mr. Fowke Ihewed him the arzee, faid to me, that Gunga Govin Sing had got 
and defired him to put his feal to it. He fays, 26,000 rupees after the manner of a bribe* 
he was in fear and trembling on account of befides 3000 and 800 which had been taken. 
Mr. Fowke’s anger, who took up a large by his fervants. I alked him, i f  he had ever •’ 
folio, and threatened to beat him with jt/, that mentioned this circumftance to any one elfe. 
he had laid hold of his feet, and defired for- He anfwered, That Sudder O Deen and Gunga 
givenefs, and that he would do whatever M r. Govin Sing were in friendfhip ; and though I 
Fowke pleafed. had feveral times demanded my money from

What Mr. Fowke defired him to write was, them, they would not pay it. I told him, 
that he gave the fums of money formerly men- That, fince that was the cafe, I had 
tioned to the Governor, M r. Bar well, &c. no other remedy but complaining to the 
This was on a feparate lift, written by himfelf Council. Another day, having written two 
out of fear.- arzees, he brought them to me : after reading i f

/That he did not put down any reafons for them, I defired him to carry them to the// 
giving thefe fums, nor was defired by Mr. Council. He then defired me to fend Rada/ 
Fowke to do fo. He did not give thefe fums, Churn with him to M r. Fowke, that that Gem® 
nor any other ; andfhould never have thought tleman might fend the arzees to the Council., 
o accuung thefe Gentlemen, hady  not been I did fo, and defired them to give my compli-

/  I ments,

* : v; iilliv/lM S#
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d e p o s i t i o n s .
ments to Mr. Fowke ; requeuing, that, if the morning the arzee was (hewn to me • I direfted 
proofs appeared clear, he would fend them Rada Churn to carry Comaul O Deen with 
to the Council, that Comaul O Deen might the arzee to Mr. Fowke. This was on Sun- 
obtain juftice. B e  gave the arzees to Mr. day. Comaul O Deen gave the arzee to Mr. 
Fowke, after which feme days elapfed. On Fowke. Two days after, being Tuelday, I 
the 5th Byfaac, I went to the houfe of the went to Mr. Fowke’s houfe, who obferved, 

eneia , to pay lm a vifit. While I was at That if two people witnefled the arzee, it would 
the General s, I received a meflage from Rada be better. I faid, he was right, if Comaul O 
Churn, informing me, that Comaui O Deen Deen would agree to the propofa]. One 
and himfelf were at the houfe of Mr. Fowke, gurry after, Comaul O Deen came. I inform* 

'and requeued I would call in as I went home., ed him, that Mr. Fowke thought it would t e  
I  went there accordingly. Mr. Fowke told right to make two perfons affix their figna- 
me, That Comaul O Deen had made both tures to the arzee as witnefies.. He agreed to 
verbal and written reprefentations to him, and i t ; and two Writers were called, to whom Co*- 
requefted that I would examine them, and in- maul' O Deen faid, This is my arzee; witnefs 
form-him what part of his reprefentations were it. On Tuefday evening Comaul O Deem 
true..  ̂ Comaul O Deen faid, That he had a came to me, and told me, He was informed,, 
pain in his bowels, and could not remain any that Mr. Fowke intended to deliver in the- 
longer, but that he would come with a foul arzee to the Council next day. He requefted. 
draft o f his complaint in the* evening. I went to go for one gurry to the houfe of Mr- 
home. About feven in the evening, Comau! Fowke, and to entreat him to deliver in the 
O Deen came to my houfe, bringing a foul arzee again ft: Gunga Govin Sing firft. He 
draft o f a paper and a Moonfhy with him, made ufe of many intreaties, and at laft 1 got 
and defired Rada Churn to carry him to me. into my palanquin, and recommended his in- 
H e accordingly came to me with the foul treaty to the confideration of Mr. Fowke. 

_ draft; and,- upon infpefting it, I  alked him, That Gentleman anfwered, That he would do- 
W hat was the meaning of Gherab Purwar what was proper. When I was going, Co* 
Audaulet Goofter ? He anfwered, That the maul O Deen reprefented to me, that it was 
Council were entitled to be called Gherab very hard upon him that the arzee againft 
Purwar Audaulet Goofter. He told me, that Gunga Govin Sing was not delivered ; for, if 
the copy he had given me was not well word- the other was given in firft, he feared he fhould 
ed, and begged o f me to make out another, gain no advantage from that. I advifed him' 
His Moonfhy then began to make out another to be patient, and to give in his arzee to- rhe 

• ‘copy. He had written out about half his Council, where he wouldobtain red refs. He' 
arzee,. when Comaul O Deen obferved that would not attend to what I faid, but ran to 
he was ill, and would go home. He left his the Governor’s. I went home.
Moonfhy behind him, and went away. Juft
as he was going, he defired me to fend Sheik S H E I K  E A R  M A H M U D  being/worn 
Ear Mahmud with the letter when it was done; Rajah Nundocomar. defires* he will give:
and that he would feal it at home, and fend an account of the circumfances of this:

|  it back to me. I then went out of the office, affair.
\  and told Sheik Ear Mahmud to carry the arzee;

\  to Comaul O Deen, together with the Moon- One evening Maha Rajah fitting in his. 
M iy ; and in cafe Comaul ODeen Ihould affix his Dewan Khafina, or office, Comaul ul Deen 
Ifeal to it, to bring it back to me, and I would Cawn came to him, and fat with him about 
ilnd it to Mr. Fowke. When the arzee was an hour and a h alt; when he was going away* 
wrote, Sheik Ear Mahmud and the Moonfhy he pointed to his Moonfhy, who was fitting, 
carried it to Comaul O Deen ; . who fealed it, at fome diftance writing; and ordered his peo- 
and gave it to Sheik Ear Mahmud. Next pie to ask. I f  he had finifhed the arzee

\
i \



people returned, and informed him that one £>uejl. Is this the petition which Comaul O
half was done. He then requefted, that the Deen’s Moonfhy wrote in Rajah Nundocqmar’s
Rajah would be fo good as to fend one o f his houfe, and which you carried from thence to
people with the Moonfhy and arzee when it the houle of Comaul O Been ? (/hewing N° I.)
fhould he finifhed ; and that, when he had Anf. This is the petition.
fealed it, he would return it. Rajah Nundo- Did Comaul O Deen’s Moonfhy copy
comar ordered me to carry the paper to. Co- the arzee from a foul draft ?
maul ul Deen when it was finifhed, and to Anf. One man read the > foul copy to the
take the Moonfhy with me. I asked the Moon- Moonfhy, who wrote what was di&ated by the
fhy, I f  his arzee was ready ? He anfwered, It other perfon.
was not; but he had only two or three more S^ueji. W ho was the other perfon ? 
lines to write. After one gurry, the Moon- Anf. I do not know his name. I fhould 
fhy informed me, that the paper was ready; know him if I was to fee him again, 
and I went with it, in' company with the £>ueft. W hofe fervant is he ?
Moonfhy and another perfon, to the houfe of Anf He is a fervant o f Comaul O Deen’s l
Comaul ill Been ; the Moonfhy put the paper Slueft. How do you know.
into his hand. He gave me beetle, and a An/. He told me fo, as I accompanied him
hooka to fmoke. He then read the arzee to the houfe of Comaul O Deen.
from beginning to end, and blotted out a word £>geji. Did Rajah Nundocomar read over
•of it, in that part which concerned Mr. Gra- either the foul draft or the fair copy o f the
ham ; aud Goof haft, he faid, to be put in- arzee ?
Head of it. Jde then fpoke the following Anf. I  do not know that he either read the 
words to me : V Sheik Ear Mahmud, I wrote foul draft or the fair copy. 
u the contents of this arzee ; and if  a hun- Quejl. W ho were the Moonfhys to whom 

dred Corans are put on my head, I will Comaul O Deen faid, Is not the paper well 
-  fwear to the truth of every word in it.”  He, fealed ?
then took off his ring, and ordered his Khid- Anf. The two Moonfhys who accompanied 
midgar, or fervant, to bring his ink-ftand ; me from Rajah Nuhdocomar’s, and who were 
which was accordingly done. He then fealed Comaul O Deen’s fervants. 
the arzee; and asked two Moonfhys and my-
felf, who were prefent, I f  the paper was well a/t n  c\ vr o u v  t t u a u  a d  a ^
fealed? To which we anfwered intheaffirma- M ° O N S H Y  K H A D A R  N E W A Z
tive. After that, I carried the paper home.
Rajah Nundocomar was afleep. I  put the , ' , ,
arzee under the care o f the Confumma, di- *  S ® f  ? ' d .RaJ ah Nundocomar read the
■ redling him to give it either to Rada Churn H ™ 0? after 11 WaS fir(l Wrote from hls dic_
or Rajah Nundocomar in the morniDg. 3 x  a j  • u  c a. r  ,& Anf. He did read it. He nrft gave a foul

. draft o f it into the hands o f one of his own
Examined, the arzee being /hewn to him. people ; and then correfted it. He firft dic-
o a r u . . tated the arzee to me; it was afterwards again /

Idi what part of this arzee is the written by one of his own people; and the j 
worn Goof haft, which you faid in your evi- Rajah then corrected that copy with his own $  

fence was put in the place of another ? hand, and gave it to me to write fair. fj
Anf. Comaul ul Deen made an obfervation, %uejl. Have you a copy o f it? ’

that Goof haft fhould be inferted in one part Anf. N o. -
o  the arzee where Mr. Graham’s name was Do you remember the fubieft o f th^
mentioned; but he did not alter it in my pre- arzee ?

/  Anf. I do not remember any thing o f it.

y  Siuefl.

/  ,
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§ueft. D id you write more arzees than one §ueft. Did you on the 8th affix yonr figna-

' \ r c \  i x. . a tU?  ?r feal t0 anY other PaPer than the arzeeAn). Only one that day. and the furd ?
Quefl. In whofe name ? Anf. No, I did not.
Anf.Com ^ \ 0  Deen Cawn’s. $u eJl. W as the name of any witnefs affixed

■ viuejt. lo  whom was the arzee meant to to the arzee?
complain? Anf. Thefervants of Mr. Fowke did affix

Anf. I  do not know. their names as witneffes to the arzee.
■ ^  A  Againft whom was the complaint ? guejl. Did they likewife affix it to the

Anf. Againft the Governor, in the arzee that furd l 
was dilated to me. Anf. No.

Que/i. W hat was complained o f . in the Queft. Was there in the arzee any refe- 
^rzee ? rences to the feparate paper ?

Anf. I before told you, that I  could not A nf No. 
tell. It is in the petition, which may be pro- W as there no arzee to explain the
dttced. nature of the feparate paper ?

Anf. N o, there was none.
• C O M A T J L  O D E E N  C A W N .  W as there any Bemootaula on the

furd ?

. guejl. W as the complaint againft the Go- Anf '  When the furd firft came on the 
vernor, Mr. Barwell, Mr. Vanfittart, and Ra- Pet’ 1 was blind and fenfelefs with crying, 
jah  Bullub, in one arzee, or in more ? f ^ eA ’ ^ ow d d̂ y ° u wiate *-be furd.in fuch

A n f They were contained in one. . a •
1 Studfl. To how many papers did yofc affix f   ̂wrote opon the furd the words Ruf- 
your fignature that day ? fen tfedum, or right. I wrote no other part

Anf. I put my feal to the arzee, and my j  . . ..,
fignature to one furd on feparate paper. What letters or words did you write

Suefi. W hat did that feparate paper con- on ^ r d * - , T ,
n |.̂ p  Anf. I wrote words to uiew that 1 approved

A nf An account o f Turns given to different lt* _ . . , V - ', : . , c
r -7 %ueft. Whether the furd contained a lilt or

PCS .  W hat was contained in the arzee ? names and [urns of money, or if it contained
* Anf. I do not know : let it be produced. a n y tti,nS e f -  , c

^ n. \xr -u Anf Simply a lift o f the names and fumsS>ue(t. W ere the names or the Governor, >>- , y  „ r u  . i, c BsfXLi collufively taken on account or Hedgeiee.or any other perlons, mentioned in that arzee? ^ . r . j  > &rri p  , k  j  mett. Who wrote the furd ?Anf. The Governor s name was mentioned  ̂ r  \ a \,
in the conversion held with the Rajah, when M g  the room at the time >
the fottl draft was written at night. Tile ^  Fowke an(J Ra(Ja chur„ werc

A  “ mplaint was againft the Governor. M r. '  [he , aftd backwards

\  “ ” ?> Gu” Sa and Ind through the room; who they
\ S n d d e t  O Deen s, were mentioned. were, Ido not know

V  Was *  ™h'ch y ° u f“  J ° “ r I M  W ho brought the pen and ink in, to
.leal at M r. Fowke’s houfe the fame written by >  furd ? 6
4 ur Moonlhy on the 6th ? Every thjng of the kind was there.

I A n f 1 he arzee fealed by me ° n tbe 8' b 5s y &  Was the name of the Governor or
was th ; fame written by my Moonlhy on the ^  { A ,  perfon mentioned in the arzee ?

6th- >  Anf.
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Anf. The complaint was againft the Gover- f h% queftion repeated.
nor. Moonfhy Sadder O Deen, Gunga Govin Anf. I gave it into Mr. Fowke’s hands, after 
Sing, Mr. Graham, Mr. Vanfittart, Rajah writing Ruflan nedum upon it.
Bullub and the Governor's Moonfhy's names Queft. W ho was prefent when the furd was 
were mentioned in the arzee. I do not re- delivered by Mr. Fowke to you to fign 
colleft any others. * Ainf. I did not mark any witnefles; 'it was

^uef. Was there any thing relating to the in Mr. Fowke's houfe; a number of people 
Ino-alee affair and collufions, in the arzee were going backwards and forwards, 
fealed by you on the 8th ? ^ueft. In what room was the fvyjd deli-

Anf. The petition was very long : I cannot vered ? 
remember. Anf. In the bed-chamber.

'$uejl. Cannot you remember the leaft of it? S$ueft. A t what time of the day was the 
Anf I can fay nothing refpefting the furd delivered ? Was it at the fame time the 

arzee till I have feen it. other papers were delivered ?
Comaul 0  Been Cawnreprefents, there was A nf I believe about twelve o'clock the 

another fmall arzee. ' arzee was fealed, and the furd figned at the
I gave in another arzee refpe£ting the Au- fame time, 

daulet of Hidgelee. * £>uejl. W ere they figned in the fame room?
£>ueft. How did you fign the furd ? Anf Yes.
Anf I wrote Ruflan nedum, or I acknowledge Quejl. You  fay that you wrote what was 

it, upon the paper. defired of you, and thereby obtained your
£S>ueft. Bow came you to fay you wrote the liberty. What do you mean by obtaining 

furd with your own hand, when you only your liberty ?
figned it ? Alnf% I was got into a place where I con-

Anf Azduft Khood Noviftadada, which are fidered m yfelf as fubje&ed to misfortunes; 
my own words, may mean figning my name from which I was fet at liberty, 
with ray own hand, as well as writing it out Quejl. W as you ever in danger o f your 
with my own hand. life ?

’Quejl. Into whofe hands was that furd de- Anf. I Was apprehenfive o f my reputation;
" livered ? and, when he lifted up the book, even my

Anf. Mr. Fowke faid to me, You have given life might have fuffered. 
me this. I anfwered, I acknowledge it. I Comaul 0  D e e n  gives an account of his 
gave it into Mr. Fowke's hands, after having figning the a rz e e , (Ac.
acknowledged it. * • When M r. Fowke defired me to feal the

§>uejl. Did you fuppofe that the Writers paper, I anfwered, That I  had made no fuch
Rood over you as guards ? promife to Maha Rajah, and that I had not

Anf. No, I did not imagine they were put given the arzee willingly; that, in the petition,
over me as guards. Maha Rajah had written Ghereb Puelvar

Queft* Are you certain you did, on the Audaulet Goofier, but that I did not know 
8th Byfaac, write any thing upon any other who could be addrefled Audaulet Goofier, | 
paper in Mr. fowke's houfe befides the two and who it was that would iflue orders equal 1  
arzees ? to fuch a title : that if  he would, carry m e/

Anf None but thefe two papers, befides the before any fuch man, I would feal the pape// 
furd, which 1 figned, but did not write. in their prefence. Mr. Fowke was angryIk 

£!uejl. Into whofe hands was that furd de- and, being imprefled with fear, I fealed t ie  
livered ?  ̂ paper; and immediately after this went out

A™f Mr. Fowke faid to me, You have given of the houfe, and raifed the clamour o f which 
me this. I anfwered, That I had written you have before heard. I know nothing fur- 
Rulian nedum upon it. /  ther.

/  S>uejl
/
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T  l  , V „  ,* „  . L Smfi-  W l,e"  tl“  P»P« « l  acknowledgedAnf. My Moonlhy wrote it at Maha Rajah’s by Comaul O Deen, did he do it willinclv -*
h c „• o- Anf. Willingly. “  .

Same queftton refpecling arzeeN ° *. ^ e ft . Did he appear at all frightened ?
Anf. My Moonlhy did write this paper. Anf. No S

W hen I went to Maha Rajah he afked me, in % ejl. Did you fee any thing like force or 
a friendly manner, What reafon tempted you violence in Mr. Fowke’s behaviour, when hc 
to complain to the Governor againft Mr. made that acknowledgment ?
Fowke ? I anfwered, That I was a Farmer ; I Anf. No.
did not complain. I gave an account of what Queft. Did he acknowledge before you 
had paffed from the beginning. When Mr. that he had told many lies about Mr. Fowke 
rowke afked me improper queftions, and was in a former paper ? 
angry at me, I thought it neceffary to com- Anf Knows not.
plain, and gave an arzee into the Governor’s - Queft. Relate, as well as you can, what 
hands, to lay before the Council. Maha paffed.
Rajah afked me, I f  I had a copy of the peti- Anf Mr. Fowke afked Comaul O Deen, 
tion in my poffeffion ? I anfwered, That I j When the papers (hall be produced in Coun- 
had; and then went home. I fought for it, cil, and they fhall demand the particulars, 
but was not able to find it ; my Moonfhy was whofe name will you make ufe of ? He faid* 
gone from Calcutta. As I could not find it, The General's. Mr. Fowke afked him over 
I informed the Rajah of it. .He then defired again, Did I mention the General’s name, or 
meTo write down whatever parts,of it I could even .my own name, or demand fuch a paper 
recolleft ; and that then Mr. Fowke would no from you ? To which he anfwered, No. Mr. 
longer fhew his anger to me. I then made Fowke then faid, Why will you make ufe of 
my Moonfhy, who has this day appeared as an fuch names?. To which, he anfwered, Whofe 
evidence, write down the arzee N° II. and name fhall I mention ? Then Akermannu 
gave it to Maha Rajah; who defired me to alked Comaul O Deen, Who required this 
leal it. I accordingly fixed my feal. to it. paper from you? Did you give it of your 
Since that time, I have heard nothing more own free will, or did any body infift on your 
about this arzee. giving it? He faid, I gave it of ray own free

Comaul O Deen further obferves, Two will. Then he faid, I went to Rada Churn, 
, Portuguefe writers have witneffed the and told him that I have done a great fault on 

arzee N ° 2. though he affixed his feal M r. Fowke. Rada Churn afked him, What 
to it in his own houfe. fault he had committed ? He then faid, He

S>uejl. (by M r. Fowke.') Whether you re- had given him the particulars, which he had 
colled, that, when you delivered the arzee to brought in writing, in that arzee; and that 
the Governor, the Governor faid, Is all this he fhewed it to Rada Churn, who had bid 
true? In anfwer to which you faid, It is all him fhew it to Nundocomar; and the Rajah

\ a ]ye# bid him carry it to M r. Fowke. Mr. Fowke
Anf. It is falfe. then afked Comaul O Deen, Whether this

paper was all true ? When he faid, It was all 
\  M A T H F W  M I R A N D A  true,, but one ly e ; and faid, that he concealed
\  ’  the fault of Moonfhy Sudder O Deen: and

Portuguefe writer to Mr. Fowke, being cjle deponent left the room, and him in it.
* fworn. £>uejt. Did you hear Comaul O Deen afk

Queft. When ‘Comaul O Deen firft acknow- for the paper back i 
ledged the arzee, N ° i ,  was any reluftance '  a f
ihewn on his part ? b b . ^  !J '

D E P O S I T I O N S .  £%#  ( f l o w in g  N° i .) Is this the paper I A n f. Not any.



Anf. I was writing at my deik, and I did Anf. Yes. ■ ' .
hear him aik the papers back, and a/k what gueft. Did you hear Comaul O Deen fay it
he Ihould write; and Mr. Fowke told him, was his feal i 
he Ihould not have the paper back, nor write Anf. I faw him feal it.
any thing in his houfe. ^ e ft .  Is that your fignature to N ° 2 ?

gueft. Did Comaul O Deen bring the ar- Anf. Yes. 
zees^ which you witnefled, along with him to Queft. Did you hear Comaul O Deen ac- 
Mr. Fowke’s ? knowledge the fignature as his own ?

Anf. I  do not know. Anf I faw him feal it, and heard him ac-
guejt. Did Mr. Fowke, in your hearing, knowledge it. . ’ .

alk any queftions about prefents ? w as the ink put on the feal before
Anf Ncj. he put it on both papers ?
gueft. Was Mr. Fowke prefent when you Anf The feal was dipt in the ink before it 

figned your name to the arzee?. was put to the papers. ^
Anf I figned it in the Veranda. Mr. Fowke S&eft. Do you know if Mr. Fowke did, or

was in his own room : both the arzees were did not, alk Comaul O Deen any queftions
fealed in prefence of Mr. Francis Fowke, and relating to prefents ? 
not o f Mr. Jofeph Fowke. After they were Anf I do not know : not in my prefence,
fealed, they were carried into the room to S&eft. What time did Comaul O Deen come
Mr. Jofeph Fowke. They were both fealed to the houfe ? 
at the fame time. They were fealed before Anf About ten or eleven, 
the converfation. S)uejt. In what room was the feal put to

S$ueft. Had Comaul O Deen Cawn feen ! thofe papers ?
M r. Fowke before the feals were put? I Anf In M r. Francis Fow ke’s room.

Anf I do not know: I was not prefent at Queji. Are you fure it was not put to it in 
all times when Mr. Fowke and Comaul O ■ the Veranda ?
Deen were together. Anf N o, it was not put in the Veranda.

Stueft. Can you take it upon yourfelf to fay Stueft. Does M r. Francis .Fowke’s room 
that Comaul O Deen had been with Mr. open on the Veranda ?
Fowke that day, before the feals were put to Anf N o, you go through the hall to M r.
thearzees? Francis Fowke/s room.

Anf I cannot. - Slueft. Where was M r. Fowke when the
«%<?/?. What time o f day were they feals were put ? 

fealed? * . A nf In his own room.
Anf About noon. $Heft* Do you know i f  Comaul O Deen

What time did you fee Comaul O had been with M r. Fowke before the feals 
Deen firft that day ? were put ?

Anf About ten or eleven, in the Veranda. Anf I do not recolleft.
Queft. Did you fee him write ©n any other Que/l. Did Comaul O Deen make any and

paper?* i whatnoife? " V ^
A nf I  did not.. | Anf He was begging and praying ; but I /

do not know for what. H e came out to the /  
T I M O T H Y  P A  Pv E  I R  A , Veranda, and defired Mr. Fowke younger t o /

intercede with, his father; but I  do not know  
a Portuguefe writer to M r. Fowke, being for what.

fworn . * Slue ft. Did you at any time fee Mr. Fowke
- lift up a book, offering to ,ftrike Comaul Q

Anf Is this your fignature to 'the arzee, Deenp
* * * ■ * '  ' Jn f.
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h t a g  Mr- F° *  M  ' t o '  S W I w f M  draft o f theft p a t"
Mathew Miranda, &«;*£ afked the fame Raiah’ MadaFCh“ rn faid’ Shew it to Maha

makes the fam e A n fZ s  K '  ^ r . Fowke alked Comaul O Deen,
J  7 * “  wka[ he had written was true or falfe ?

. C O M A U L  O n r i T M  omauI 0 ^ een anfwered, It is all true; there
a U L  °  D E E N .  was one falfhood. Mr. Fowke afked, What

$uejl. {to Comaul 0  Deen.) Are thefe two fbme t e T T i  °  anf;vef ed* Tkere a ê
writers, who you alledged were put over vou O D e e n relat]n§ t0 Sudder
when you figned the arzee ? P  ̂ ’  faid ’ wkich 1 have concealed. Mr. Fowke

Jn f. P t u - f  was one of the writers; the 
other palled and repaffed; and fomeumes Queft. Was you in Mr FnwWeV■

An/. No.
A  K E  R M A  N  N  U , ffueft. Was you in the room all the time

c with Comaul O Deen >
bervant to Mr. Fowke, being/worn. Anf. Comaul O Deen was in Mr. Francis

Deoofes That Mr Fr™h,= r -a * j  fowke’s room. When Mr. Fowke called me
uepoles, I hat Mr. Fowke faid to me, and mt0 his, either Mr. Fowke or Rada Churn de-

S f c S f e w S  ° amed M o aaijy-iifteB  to Seed that Comaul O Deen might be called : I 
g W - W i ”  Comaul O Deen. called him, and carried httn into Mr. Fowke's 
M r. rowke alked Cpmaul O Deen, When you room with me.

^  Pf,pers to1 Counc,i1’ a a d /v U  be £>uejl. From that time, did you contiriue in 
alked about them, what will you fay, and the room till Comaul O Deen went away ?
r 0 e, e you make ufe o f . He an- Anf. I was all the time prefent, and not ab- 
fwered, That he would make ufe of the Ge- fent a moment.
neral’s name. Mr. Fowke then faid, W hy $u ef. W as’ Miranda all the time in the 
will you make ufe of the General s name ? room with you ?

General a k̂ you any thing himfelf, Anf. He was. He went out for a moment,
or did 1 alk you any thing in the General's to fbut the door.
name? Comaul O Deen anfwered, No. Mr. Que/l. Was Pareira in the room all the
Fowke then faid, W hy do you ufe the Gene- time ?
ral s name ? He faid, Whofe name {hall I ufe ? Anf He was not in the room: be was 
Mr. Fowke faid, Make ufe of thofe perfons waiting in the Veranda, 
names who make inquiries from you about S$ueft. While you was in the room, did Mr. 
this bufinefs. I  then alked Comaul O Deen, Fowke ufe any words or aftions that might

4 I f  he had himfelf, o f his own free will, writ- tend to intimidate Comaul O Deen?
\  ten thefe papers ? or if  he had been obliged Anf. No.
' \  to write them ? Comaul O Deen faid to me, Que/i. Whether you are fure that Comaul 

I  went one day to Baboo Rada Churn, and O Deen was not in the room, before he went 
Mefired him to make me acquainted with Mr. into Mr. Francis Fowke's room ?
Bbwke, as I had faid fomething o f him bad : Anf. We were in the Veranda before. He
Ifada Churn faid, What bad things have you had been in Mr. Fowke’s room before that, 
faid o f him ? On which I informed Rada Qyejl. How long had he been in Mr. 
Churn of every thing concerning it ; and laid, Fowke’s rdbm ?

b b 2 Anf



Anf. I do not know. I know that he was in H E R R A S A U T  V  L  L  A ,
Mr. Fowke’s room. Moonjhy to Mr. Francis Fowke, being

Chief. Was it about a gurry ? /worn.
Anf. I do not know. Quell. Whether you remember Comaul O
§uejl. Do you recolleft if  there was any ^ een.s g0-mg away f r0m Mr. Fowke’s houfe

pen and ink in Mr. Fowke s room. on the 8th Bepaac?
Anf. I did not fee any. ĵ nr  j  do not remember it.
Queft. Did you hear Comaul O Deen cry, £>ueft. Do you remember Comaul O Deen’ s 

or make any noife ? asking to have any thing reftored to him, and
Anf. No. ^  i -pi „>c what he faid ?
gueft. Do you recollefl Comaul U Deen s ^  be ^  ask for fomelbing back

going out of the houfe ? and j  wj|] gjve it in writing afterwards.
Anf. It was part one o clock. cFhe Queftion repeated.
Queft. Did you fee him go out- ^  He did not ask  to take it back ; but
Anf. I did. ’ faid, jt was returned to him, he would alter
Queft. Did Comaul O Deen go out o f the .T

houfe immediately after going out of Mr. ' Gyuefi. Did he fay any thing about falfity ? 
Fowke’s room? An}  He did not fay there was any thing

Anf. No, he went out of the room, and faidj ^here is fomething wrong in
remained feme time m the Veranda. . ive k  me and j win alter it>

Quefi. Did he return again into the room. a ueru Did he complain that he was forced 
Anf. He went into Mr. Fowkes room; but jt ?

not in the room of Mr. Fowke fenior. A .  w JieQ ^  Fowke began to fold up
§>uef. During the time he was in the e- Letter, he began to cry Qut that force had 

randa, did he exprefs any figns of difcon- be£n

Anf. He was difpleafed, and requeued the j ^ j f ^ d i d ^ r y  o^t that force was ufed, 
papers might not be fent into Council that hh , -t had been attefted by two wit- 
day, but deferred to the next. neffes.

ilueft. Did he delire to have the papers G)uef .  How do you know that the paper he
back again. , , . f -A called for was the fame attefted by two wio

Anf. He did not demand them; but faid ^ ?
that he would write them bett?^ for next djd not demand that paper which” *

n ta-j i i u  was attefted by the witnelfes.
| #  Vid he make any outcry when he W h' t paper was it he demanded ?

went into the llreet. paper which was not fealed in
jtof. No. . , my prefence, but which he brought from

Was Shumfherbeg » M r « » k e  s . has ,he word Ifshaad opongit.
houfe when Comau y . §utjl. Did not you ask the meaning of fome i

Anf. I know no one of the name of Shum- < J  lhe aIzceSthat has 7
Iherbee*. I f  I lee the perlon alluded to, I V , T ri s  . ? )
n J] u 1 1  i- r r  the word Ifshaad upon it r /fhall be able to aniwer. A ,  j -j  r  . ' 7

Quell. Name all the perfons who were pre- 7^ *  * ,  0 . |  .r  Did vou copy out the contents o f the/
fent at the tune. arzee, N ° i ; and do yon not know the 3

Anf. I do not remember. ’ . ? ’ }
2>uejl. Were there many people there ? tentj  y  Tu ‘ , T, , r v- n. jIFpf ^  j  £ 1 j  did; I know the fubject and contents

** °* *> o f the arzee : I  learnt it firft from the mouth
1  of
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of Com ad O Been, and afterwards made my- volume of Churchill’s voyages, and mih dif- 
fe lf acquainted with it by reading the arzee, ficulty reftrained himfelf from (hiking him 
where I found fome little difference from the with it. That every fyllable of the furd, or 
information I had received from him. paper of bribes, was falfe; and that he never

QueSl. Do you remember any thing of a law or heard of fuch a paper. Mr. Bar well 
conversation between Comaul O Deen and in reply faid fomething upon the fubjeft of 
M r. Fowke s Moonflhy, Mahmud Muftiruff? this part of the accufation ; on which Mr.

Anf. Yes. Moonfhy Mahmud Muftiruff, Fowke, addreffing himfelf in a very earned 
upon feeing Comaul O Deen, expreffed fome and pointed manner to him, faid, Will you, 
anger again ft him, for having, as he faid, once Sir, declare upon your honour, or your oath, 
before made him give oath; and asked Co- that you never received that money ? (mean- 
maul O Deen, if he came to the houfe with ing the 45,000 rupees faid to have been 
the intention o f doing the like again ? Co- mentioned in the furd as received by Mr. 
maul O Deen anfwered, I did not occafion you Barwell.) Mr. Barwell replied, “  That he 
to fwear by my own pleafure : I wrote out an “  dic\ deny it upon his honour and oath.5’ 
arzee for the prefervation of my own charac- Then, faid Mr. Fowke, “  1 muff acquit you.”  
ter 5 if 1 had not written it, my reputation The. reft of his defence confifts in protefta- 
would have fuffered. tions of his own innocence *, and declarations,

Queft. How many petitions do you know that, while he lived, he would ever ufe his 
o f Comaul O Deen’s figning ? utmoft endeavours to deteft and prevent op-

Anf. He put his feal to one arzee in my pre- preffion, whatever might be the rank or 
fence : other four, which I have feen in the power of the oppreffor ; in inve&ives againft 
hands o f my Matter, though I know not from the charafter of Comaul ODeen, and appeals 
what particular perfons he got them, were to the integrity of his own, with much and 
under hip feal. violent declamation. ^

Queft. W as either of thefe two petitions, The examination being clofed, the Judges 
N ° 1 and 2, the arzees he fealed in your pre- required of the perfons affected by the fup- 
fence ? pofed confpiracy, to declare whether they

Anf. Yes, this was, N ° 2. would profecute the authors of it at the next
£>ueji. W here w asAi's N ° 2 fealed? Seffion of Oyer and Terminer; and the.morn-
^ /in M r.F ran cisF o w k e ’ sroom, before me. ing of the 23d was appointed to receive, this

determination. Mr. Barwell, Mr. vanlktart,:
• W H A T  Mr. Fowke faid in his defence was and Mr. Haftings, attending at the time appoint- 

not minuted. He affirmed that the arzee came ed, declared their intention to profecute Jofeph 
into his hands (whether brought by Comaul Fowke, Maha Rajah Nundocomaiy and Rada 
O Deen or not he could not remember) ready Churn. Mr. Vanfittart and Mr. Haftings re- 
fealed. That Comaul O Deen acknowledged quired bail fhould be given, and bound them- 
it in the prefence of the two witnefles, who at- felvesby a recognizance to profecute; Meffieurs

. tefted it, with every expreffion that could LacamandFarrerwerefuret.es/orMr Fowke;
\  mark it to be his own voluntary and chearful Colonel Thornton and Captain Webber for

, aft • that after Comaul O Deen had quitted Nundocomar and Rada L-Hurn.
the chambeiy he returned, forcing h?s way Sir John Doyly was ^ b y f ^ s ^ I n t e r -  
into Mr. Fowke’ s prefence, declared his un- preterm the fir ft e“ L  , ftice and the 
Villingnefs to have that arzee prefented to the Deen Cawn, before the Ch J  ff J
Council; intreated and implored M r. Fowke Judges, on the 1.9 th, j fe^  P™ f
to give it back to him, fell at his feet, and fuffic.ent refoluuon 
embraced his legs with fuch violence as to people, he defired that forrm
give him pain. That, provoked with, this, might accordingly de-
Mr. Fowke did lift up a book, which was a dayi and Mr. Elliott w S 7 fired

$
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fired to attend with him, which he did, and was, Cawn , thefe appear to. be the fame which 
lircci to acceua w  , ’ the „ oth. were firft prefented by Comaul O Deen
U1 The ’part which Sir John Doyley had'againft Ginga Govin Sing and Mr. Arcbdikin, 
chofc i.) this tafinefs drew on him the fevere and to wh.ch frequent allnf.on ,s made : M 
CJL1,° p nf fhe Board that is to fay, of the depositions. N ° 4 is a Copy of Mr-
General Clavering, Colonel Monfon, and Mr. Fow keY Letter, and N ° 5 Tranflations which 
Francis, who had been affembled as ufual, have been made of the three arzees. 
this being their day, to a Board of Infpedtion, To the Honourable Warren Haftings
and formed themfelves into a Council for the Efquire, Governor General, &c.
General Department; they cenfured him for Council o f Revenue,
negleft of duty, in terms which diredly imply Honoura51e Sir and Sirs, 
a cenfure for having obeyed the orders or the , T a n  , .
Governor General, and threatened him with On the 13th of December Iaft, Comaul ul 
difmiffion from his employment on the next Deen Ally Cawn delivered to your Board a 
inftance of the like neglecl. . P*per containing- many falfines injurious to

N° 2 and 3 are Extracts of the confulta- my reputation; which. I refuted upon my 
tions of the 20th and 24th inftant, containing oath, and the oaths of two other perfons. He 
the examination of Sir John Doyley, and has now put another paper into my hinds, 
other minutes, which refpedt the affair in which I take the liberty o f lnclofing to you 
queflion. Thefe are in themfelves o f no for my further j unification. In this paper 
moment; but they mark the temper of the it is pretended, that the Governor General 
majority, and the intereft which they took in was aftive beyond the limits o f Jultice to 
the profecution. forward a charge tending to my diftionour. I f

But of this they afforded a more confpi- it contains a calumny, I fliall rejoice to hear 
cuous proof on the evening of the 2 ill , that the author has a brand of infamy let 
which was the day following the meeting of upon, him, as a public warning to all ca.um- 
the Judges. General Clavering, Colonel niators and detraftors.^ But, whatever may 
Monfon, and Mr. Francis, accompanied by be the iffue of the inquiry, it is evident that 
the elder Mr. Fowke and others, whofe names the Governor General once thought Comaul 
are not fufficiently afeertained, went to the O Deeri A lly  Cawn a perfon whofe tefti- 
houfe of Maha Rajah Nundocomar, and, as mony was not to be rejefted when againft 
it is fa id, gave him public encouragement me; and# therefore I hope I may be indulged 
and affurances of prote&ion. in a requeft, that the recantation of Comaul^ 0

This vifit is mentioned without Evidence or A lly O Deen may have a place on the re­
vouchers, as a circumftance of fuch notoriety, cords as well as his former accufation. Con- 
that it requires neither; for the fubftance of feious of the refpeft I owe to Government, I 
the converfation comes only report. Such cannot mention the Governor General s name 
an honour paid to fuch a man, and on fuch an without pain, though effentially neceffary to 
occafion, by the aftual Rulers of the State, my own particular juftification.^ 
too plainly indicates their participation in the I have further the honour to inclofe a paper f  
myfterious intrigues which have been long which Comaul A lly O Deen Cawn declares , 
carried on in the offices of Fowke and Nun- to have been the firft account which he 
docomar. The nature of the intrigues, and wrote with his own free will, 
the legality of them, will be bed underftood j  with the greateft fbbmiffion, *
by the future event o f the i  rial, at the ap- TT , c * j  c-
preaching Affixes. ' V  Honourable Sir and Sirs, .1

On the 25th inftant, Mr. Fowke addreffed your very obedient and faithful
a Letter to the Board of Revenud, in which Servant, (Signed) J oseph Fowke.
he inclofed three arzees o f Comaul O Deen Calcutta, the 1 8 *  April, 1775.

3 7‘ranfla-



D E  P O S I T I O N S .
, | ■ *5

cr n 4.* r t7 . petition to Govin Sing; who told me to writ#*
TranJIation of the accompanying Taper, it in this manner: That Mr. Fowke, in the bu-

1 # ' |*nc ~̂s lecka Collaries, had asked me
I am defired to give an account o f what “ Pw rauch I had given as douceurs to the Eng. 

converfation paffed between me and Mr. . ^  Gentlemen, and how much to the natives 
Fowke k I do here declare, upon the faith *n Pov?er> threatening me with fevere puniffi- 
o f my religion, the truth o f this tranfaftion; ™em if 1 did not declare: I replied, “  That 
viz* I ^ r* Fowke did not fay fo*to me; and if

Banafier Ghofe preferred a complaint againft p  in the^eddon^ my o flT w o u i?  b ^ r m n S  
me, on account of fait o f his Tecka Collaries ; « e d G u n g a  Govin anfwered, « Go you to

M r FoV k^ A ^ e r M  F  /  T ^  “  Moon(hy Sudder °  Deen, and ask his ad- 
Mr. Fowke. A fter M r. Fowke, havmg heard “  vice, and I will follow you.”  W hilft I was
both parties, had difmilTed us, I went in the relating this converfation to Sudder O Deen
evening^0 Moonfliy Sudder O Deen, Mr. at his houfe, Gunga Govin came in : after
Graham s Moonlhy and related to him the fome converfation betwixt them, they told me.
converfation that had paffed at Mr. Fow ke’ s. that I fliould not have to fwear; and that I
budder O Deen, “ I comprehend the affair: need be under no apprehenfions on that ac-
“  “  1S .Proper you fliould relate this to Gunga count: having no refource, I complied, with;
' ” ing, Dewan of the Calcutta Commit- the Moonfhy’s and Dewan’s defire, went home

“  tee.5 I  replied, “  W hat is the good o f re- and wrote the petition, which I kept by me:
lating this to the Dewan ? do you yourfelf on the 26th Paghoon, Gunga Govin Sing faid
relate to the Dewan whatever you think to me, <£ You have not yet delivered the peti-
proper, but pay attention to my advantage g tion, and M r. Graham is very apgry about
and intereft : my affairs wear a very fevere r c it; you ought to go immediately to the Go- <

u afpeft with refpedl to adminiftration, and I Qi vernor, deliver your petition, and wait upon-
a  am *n great difficulties.55 On the 19th Pag- r  * Mr. Graham to-morrow, with the account
hoon, I  went to Dewan Govin Sing, and related “  o f your having done fo, and I will be at Mr.
the converfation to him ; to which he made no f* Graham’s houfe at that time too.55 I went
reply, but went to the Durbar. On the 20th immediately to the Governor, and prefented
Paghoon, at 12  o’clock, Moonffiy Sudder O i the petition I had prepared. When the Gover-
Deen fent for me, and told me, that the inter- nor had read it, he faid to me, 66 You have
rogations put to me by Mr. Fowke, and my 1“  written this account in a different manner

• arrfwer upon the fubjeft o f the Tecka Colla- “  from what Mr. Graham related it to me;”
ries o f fait, had been related to M r. Graham I anfwered, “  That I had not mentioned any
by Dewan Govin S in g ; that Mr. Graham, u thing of it to Mr. Graham :55 the Governor
without making any reply, had gone to the replied, “  Mr. Graham informed me, that Mr.
Governor, and related the whole circumftance “  Fowke told you to declare what you pre-
to him; and, returning to his own houfe, had “  fented to the Gentlemen, and what to the

| directed, him (Sudder O Deen) to fend for me, “  Mutfuddies; and that, if you did not, you
and tell me to write a petition upon this fub- “  fliould be well punifhed.5’ From the fear
jeft, and deliver it to the Governor. In con- that Mr. Graham’s honour might fuffer; “  I
formity to what Sudder O Deen had faid, I anfwered, “  That I would correct the petition
drew out a petition, and (hewed it to h im : u to the manner in which Mr. Graham had
havmg perufed it, he told me to ffiew it to u related to his Honour, and bring it the day
Gurjga Govin Sing, and make whatever deduc- {C following. The Governor replied, “  \  ou
tions and additions he fliould direcSt m e; and “  muft not put it off till to-morrow, write
added, u W hat I now tell you, is by the dir.ee- u  your petitldh immediately in this place. ’ I
“  tion o f M r. John Graham .5' I.fhewed the [faid, “  That I had not my Moonffiy with me;55

the



the Governor anfwered, “  My Moonlhy is at I«  had declared what was falfe; and that I had 
«  hand diftate to him, and let him write what “  not made any prefents. _ Mr. Fowke after- 
«  Mr Graham faid.”  I was thus conftrained wards took down, m writing, the reprefenta- 
to indite this petition to the Governor’s Moon- tions of both parties; and then fa.d, I per- 
fhv which I delivered, when finifhed, to the feftly comprehend this caufe, and (hall relate 
Governor; but I  obtained no copy of it. I it to the General, who will decide upon it.
then declared "to him, that a falfe oath would ...
extinguilh the light of my religion : if  there To the Honourable Warren Haftings Efq; 
fliould be any interrogations made to me re- Governor General, &c. Council of
fpefting the petition, I could not take an oath Revenue,
to it: after hearing this, he difmifled me. I
went on the 27th Paghoon to Hoofhear Jung Honourable Sir, and Sirs,
/M r. Vanfittart) ; gave him the account of the
petition I had delivered to the Governor, con- I take the liberty of inclofing three Peu- 
cerning the converfation at Mr. Fowke’s, and tions, which were put in the hands of my fon 
told him, that, if I were to be fimply interro- Francis fome time fince, to trandate, with in- 

• gated upon it, it was very well ; if my oath tendon that they fliould be afterwards laid 
fliould be reqnired, that I would not give it.| before your Board. Comaul Alii Cawn will
I likewife faid the fame to Maha Raja Roy Bui- determine, whether he chufes to proceed on 
lub. I have, in this addrefs, related the truth thefe Petitions or not: he has never counter- 
of thistranfaftion: and G od’s pleafure be done manded his former order; but, as he may not 
with refpeft to the determination of the Ho- fcruple to fay falfely that I aft without his 
nourable Governor and Council upon it. I privity and confent, I beg leave to inform 
have no other fupport but G od and his Pro- you, my foie intention in laying thefe papers 
phet, and the Gentlemen of the Council; from before you is, that they may be fafely depo- 
the commencement of Mahawbut Jung’s time fited in your hands, in cafe it fliould be thought 
to the prcfent, I have afted uprightly, and neceffary hereafter to refer to them, on a 
have never before any of the fucceflive Rulers charge of confpiracy exhited againfl me by 
of this Country uttered an untrue or unbe- Comaul Alii Cawn, for which I am bound to 
coming word. I have here related the truth, bold UP my hand at the Bar at the next Sef- 
and {hall intrude no further. Hons of Oyer andTerminer and Gaol D elivery;

the Honourable Warren Haflings Governor
Tranjlation of the accompanying Taper, N ° 2. General, and George Vanfittart Elquires, being

my profecu tors: Befides thefe Gentlem en,. I 
Banaffer Ghofe Y a r  Mamudar, by means o f was charg ed with a confpiracy againfl; Richard 

Latta A jail R oy, o f certain T ecka Collaries, g arw ejj E fquire, the R ajah  Bu llub , and Baboo 
preferred a complaint againfl me for five K;fijea K uht, as will appear in the fummons 
thoufand maunds o f fa it; in confequence o f j£ uecj gy c h ie f  Ju ftice , and Juftices o f  the 
which, the General fent for me, and then re- g u.-,reme Court o f Judicature, dated the 19th  
ferred me and Banaffer G hofe to M r. F ow ke, d * o f  A p ril iy75<  A t  the clofc 0f  the evi- > 
that the Gentleman might inquire into the de^ce> on the oath o f  C o maul A lii Caun, 
caufl. In the courfe o f the d.fcuflion, Banaf- Richard Barwell E fquire waved his demand 
far Ghofe faid, ‘ ‘ This man has g.ven large for a bail 5uC faid he fhcxoid profecute, or 

prefents, and by this means obtained the as future circum(hnces might appear, 
bufmefsof the T ecka  Collaries: M r, Fow ke T h e R ajah  Btlllub and B aboo Kifhen Kunt, as

faid to me, “  If thofe be true and you have j  underJftand> withdrew their profecutionfen- 
given any thing to any Mutfudd.e, declare rb d  bei now t0 rife or fal] by the LaWS
it: I anfwered, That B u f f e r  Ghofe of ^  Country, I {hall fay nothing at this

time
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time, to influence any man either to my con- (claims againft me, and endeavour to lay theft 
demnauon or acquittal, leaving Truth to find complaints before the Huzzoor. I have been
lts wa*y * very importunate with the Dewan ; and have

T om ft, n t f  reprefented to him, that I am poor, and am
I am, with the molt perfeft fubmiflion, not able to fulfil my obligations for the afore-

Fort William, • t faid fum, and have intreated him to fettle it ;
25th April, 1775. Honourable S ir, and Sirs, but he pays no regard to m e; and I am utterly

, at a lofs where to raife the money, to com-
Your very obedient pleat the inveftment. I humbly recjueft, that

the aforefaid Dewan may be fummoned; and, 
and faithful fervant, upon the juftice of my claim being eftablUhed, 

' - that he may be ordered to return my money,
(Signed) J oseph F owke. with the interefl due to my creditors upon it,

that I may be releafed from the importuni- 
Tranflation of three Arzees, inclofed in Mr. ^  the ftlt-wAkers and my other creditors, 

Fowke’s Letter to the Board of Revenue, ?nc* l?ave leiture to compleat the Government’s 
dated the 25th April, 1775 . . mveftment.

Sealed, Comaul Alli Caun.
lft.

In the Bengal year 1 1 8 1 ,  at the end of the 
month Maugh, I farmed, from the Gentlemen 2C**
o f the Calcutta Committee, all the fait works A r * * * * * *  i*;* A n r m r
in the Purgunnahs of Keura’ Ma’l, &c. Man- Arzee from C O M A U L  O D E E M  
jeh. Mooteth, and Docodumna, &c. in the A L L - I  C A  U N.
diftrift o f Hedgelee, for four years, at an
agreement of 100,000 maunds of fait, to be' In the year 118 0 , Villatty, when the Bun- 
delivered at twice, at 100 rupees; and I dobuftt of the farms took place, a Daroga of 
received in advance upon the account 60,500 the Audaulet to theHidgelee Diftrift was ap- 
rupees out o f that fum ; the Dewan Gunga pointed from the Prefence; upon condition 

•Govin Sing, by an underhand fettlement, per- that he lhould not have any thing to do with 
fuaded me to give him 26000 rupees, upon farming, but lhould confine liimfelf to the 
this agreement, that whatever quantity of fait diftribution of Juftice, in difputes concerning 
I could contrive to make more than the fpeci- property, and in caufes of murder and rob- 
fied 100,000 maunds, he would caufe it to be bery; and that the Officers of the Farmers 
given up on the part of Government, fo that (hould fit with him in the Cutcherry. On 

< I  lhould have an opportunity of difpofing of thefe terms, Ram Ram Bhofe was appointed, 
that fait wherever I lhould chufe, and the on the part of Mr. William Lufhington, and 
profits lhould be for myfelf. Upon this agree- went into the faid diftrift, where be examined 
ment Gunga Govin Sing received from me, in that appointment for the fpace of one year, 
the fir ft time, 15000 rupees in mohurs, upon and did not interfere in the farming bunne s ;  
this underhand fettlement. In the month of and even confulted with the officers ot tfie 
Veyt, I made a demand upon the Dewan to Farmer, in the determining matters ot pro- 
have the fait given up; the Dewan did not perty. He did not interfere, m any manner, 
give up the fait, but forcibly took from me with the„farming bufinefs. On account of 
15000 rupees more, on account of the under- unfeafonable rains that year, there was a - 
hand fettlement: I was therefore unable to ficiency of many thoufand maunds o • 
pay up the advance of the falt-works without the year 1 18 1 ,  on the difmiffion ^
a balance. Thofe falt-workers now bring their Bhofe, Muddun Gopaul was app ^

¥
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l a
place; and, within two or three months after , ■ a> .
his arrival, had committed Aich oppreffions as 3
produced complaints to the A  from C O M A U L  O D E E N
him from great numbers of the Roots , and a I  I  I  C A  W  N
there were great deficiencies m the quantity A L L 1 L A  W JN,
j r  r̂ ]t made* and the Salt Ban gas were not t f
opened at the proper feafon. Afterwards In the month of Bepaack, i t f ju  Velarpln, 
Dewan Gansa Govin Sing difmiffed Mnddun Rampufand Muckerjee under-farmed _ the 
Gopanl, and fent Roop.Ram on his own part Tecka Colaries from me on account o f Ba- 
there who arrived at the end of Chite, and booLeekenace and Nundee giving Mr. Arch- 
exercifed great oppreffions on the Salt Reiots. deckin as his fecurity. In the month of Chyte 
He kept the Salt Tavildars and Kialandars two the faid perfon complained againit me to the 
months in chains, and collefled 3800 rupfees ■ Gentlemen of the Council, under pretence o f 
from them and others in the name of Dewan a claim upon me for the expence of working 
Gunea Govin Sing. Havfhg given fuch fix collaries ; by.which I was put under great 
fums collufively, how could they, without uneafinefs for three months; but after that 
plundering; the fait, makegood their-revenue? time, having been unable to ■ eltabliin ms 
The faid Kialandars entered falfe records in claim by the agreement entered into between 
the Duftur, and delivered the fait at fuch a us, the Committee did not find it valid. In 
fhort weight, that the furplus, which was the meantime Muckerjee died; and, during 
eftabliffied at 54 Mbs per hundred maunds, eight months afterwards, none o f  his heirs 
did not amount to 10 maunds. He now de- either came nigh me, nor adjufted fetdement 
mands from my Renter, on account of the o f the farm, nor delivered the fait, according 
deficiency of the overplus of fait, fix'ty ru- to the agreement executed by the Dewan* 
pees for every hundred maunds. In the Pot- The laid Gentleman, under pretence o f beipg 
tah which I obtained from the Government, the fecurity, has Cnee, without giving me in- 
and in the agreement which I gave, there is tirtiation, diftributed the advances in the diffe- 
no fuch condition mentioned. A t the fame rent Purgunnahs and villages o f the Tecka 
rate at which I deliver it to the Government, Coilaries, although D am  the perfon who 
I receive it from the Reiotd; for I received ad* farmed them from Government; and the good 
vances horn the Government, and paid them or evil, orthe profit or lofs, which may enfue, •  
to Reiots. ""The faid Reiots having plundered is my concern. By what grant has M r. Arch- 
the fait, ahd made fhort deliveries; if  I do not deckin taken upon himfelf the management 
receive it from the Reiots, from Whence am I of this bufmefs, to the prejudice of my affoirs? 
to give it? I iffue an order to the faid Dewan, The faid Gentleman was fecurity for Muc- 
demanding of him on what pretence Roop kerjee, and I have demanded upon him. N.qc- 
Ratn kept the Kialandars and Tavildars two withstanding, from a motive of injuftice, he  ̂
months in chains. No advantage is derived has obtained poffeffion in the country, and 
from Roop Ram’s remaining in the -diftr&t; has complained againft me to the Council, on 
but, on the contrary, ruin to the Farmer and account of the advances, 
lofs to the Government. I am hopeful that The faid Gentleman having been appointed 
the Audaulet bulinefs may either be intruded to fuperintend the fait bufinefs, upon his ar- 
to me, or to the faid Ram R'anvBhofe. It rival in the diftrifl, inftead of living at th .̂ 
was neceffary that I Ihould make this repre- ufual place, took up his refidence at theTack- 
fentation to you* f  fiel Cutcherry, and pulled down the old ac-

cbmmodations, and built a new one for him­
felf, after turning out the Officers o f the 

. , t - Cutcherry.

D E P O S I T I O N S .



^ w ' l o ^ a c e 11 ^ f t a y 'in/ l^m uft^th e I F^mm ™ d ° h  * !°f9 b° th t0 th=
character of the Farmer be in the country? Juftice Jfc * *  CoiDpanjr- 1 am hoPeful for
The Zemindar, Reiots, &c. attend chiefly on *
the laid Gentleman; next to him on Ropram, (A true Tranflation.)
and only wait upon the poor Farmer at their
ieilures. The refponfibility lays with the. Signed, W . C H A L M E R S
Farmer ; but Mr. Archdeckin exercjfes an au­
thority : there cannot be three rulers in one P \  Tranflator to theKhalfiu

• » *
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E X A M I N A T I O N
I N T O  T H E

C L A I M  of R O Y  R A D A  C H U R N

' T.° ,,t,he Privilege of an A m b a s s a d o r ,  as V a k e e l  of 
M U B A R I C K  UL D O W L A ,  Nabob of B E N G A L .

Supreme Court of Judicature.

F O R T  W I L L I  A M, June 21ft, 1775.

P R E S E N T ,

("Robert Cham bers ,
The Honourable < Stephen  Caesar L em a istre , ‘Efquires.

J ohn Hy d e ,

The KING,  on the Profecution of Warren Haftings Efq; Governor 
General, againft R O Y  R A D A  C H U R N  and others, for 
a M I S D E M E A N O R .

T H E  Chief Juftice, being prevented by I
indifpofition from attending .the Court, To Sir Elijah Impey Knight, Chief 

,len t them the following Letter and copy of Juftice, and the reft of the Judges
Memorial, which he acquainted them he had o f the Supreme Court of Judica-
received from the Governor General and Coun- tur5 at Fort William,
cil.

'I

4 B Gentlemen,



Gentlemen 1 entitled to all the privileges granted by fuch
* . . . r : laws to- the Minifters of all foreign potentates

Enclosed we -have the honor to ran mrt I f .̂ates ref](jent within any of the fettlements 
you the copy of a Memorial, which has bee»l poffeffions of the King of Great Britain.
prelented to us by Roy ' 3 a * uvn> e a That a fhort time ago a fummons was iffued* 
keel of the ^abob Mubanck ui ^  Gne of his Ma„.
reprefenting, that a i l  o n i men las j ef̂ ŷ s J uftices of the Peace, requiring your
k ppn nrpfented and found a gam It him in the T J • rn. r ► lT 1 1oeeii preicuicu an » Memorial! It perlonally to appear on the then
Supreme Court o Ju lcature. next day, to anfvver to a pretended" charge of

Ac this- perfon is the \  a Keel', oi lublicj /> • • n itt #. xii t?r k •
.srt V Prlip c nh,h  nf rhefe Provinces we GonfPiracy aI ainft Warren Haftmgs Efquire,

Mm liter,, of the , , . , \ • Governor General, and others; and that your.
ronreive him to be entitled to the lights, pri_ • i*n. i n *  *. c *.i r-tuiiLcnc in ui _ . o A Memorialiit, wholly ignorant or the nature of
Ti)Po-pQ and immunities, allowed by the l_.aw\ r  . * T  3 , >  5? • iviiehcs, auu , t n ?  i &  fuch charge, and of the rights and privileges
o f Nations and the Statute Law  o f England to , ° . l;  . , P  , , rT °  ~or iNdtiurib auu l v. to which he was entitled by the Laws of
the He ore fe natives of Princes. We therefore . -q • . A r rr f- 7 tv/t- -nine ucpiciLu , i i i r  a a r- L  Great Britain as Ambanador or Mimlter as- 
claim thofe rights in his behalf; and cl dire c f  . — ? 1 . r r , ,tltU1J1 r5 . /x l * u -j  OI, j  arorefaid, attended in confequence of fuchthat the Drocefs againfi him may be void, and r j  w •- j  * , ..luai liic piu 5. j  - r , fummons, and was required to give bail to
that the perfons filing out and executing fuch appear tRe then next Seffions of 0yer and
procefs may be proceeded againfi in fuch. a Terminfer t0 be hekj for the faid Ptefidency ■> 
manner as t e aw ire • which he accordingly did. That your Memo-

W e have the honor to be* rialift is informed, that a Bill o f Indiftment
p  . , has fince been preferred: and found againfi-

ent emen, him, on the faid pretended charge of confpi-
Revenue Department, Your moft obedient, , racy,, which, your Memorialift apprehends>

Junc,^775am’ 20th' humble ferrants,; and is advifed,. is an infringement of the laws
J o f nations, and of the eflablifhed rights and

Examined, R. s. Sec. J ohn C l a VERiNQ. privileges to which he is by law entitled in-
G eo rge M onson. the character aforefaid.

P h ilip  F r a n c is ,- Your Memorialift- therefore claims the
interference of the Government of this; 

Copy of a Memorial inclofed in. the above. . . Pfefidency, in fupport o f his faid rights
rr» , tt , i ^  , and privileges-; and that fuch cenfurelo the Honourable the Governor General _______  ̂ u 4- j  , ̂ „ r „. . -T-, , may be pafled on the parties concernedand Louncif, at Fort William, in Bengal. * :i A - „ 1} 5 in the above outrage on your Memo-

Tke Memorial of Roy Rada' Churn. rialift, as the nature of the cafe may.
Your Memorialift begs leave to reprefent, feefti to require,

that he has for two years laft paft been refi- ^  tme C0P3̂  (Signed) 
dent at this Prefidency, as Ambaffador or Mi- Revenue Department, R oy, R a d a . C h u rn .. 
nifter.of his Excellency Mubarick ul Dowla, R* S u m n er , Sec.
Nabob of Bengal, and has the charge of all.
his affairs and concerns there; and has never The Court direfted Richardfon Mac Veagh 
during that period, afted in any other cha- Efquire, one of the Matters of the Court,,, 
rafter or capacity whatfoever, nor been the to acquaint the Governor General and Coun- 
fervant of, or direftly or indireftly employed oil with the refolutions of the Court in con*
by, the Honourable the Eaft India Company, fequence of their Letter, which were as fol- 1
or any Britifli fubjeft; and therefore jonceives lows:
himfelf no ways fubjeft or amenable to the That the Court is o f opinion, That all claims 
Laws of Great Britain, but, on the contrary, [of individuals ought to be made direftly to;

the
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the Court by the individuals, and not by the W e inform you, that Roy Rada Churn is no 
authority of the Governor General and Coun- common Vakeel: he receives a confiderable

Vu 1 • . . . „ „ falai7  from the Soubah of Bengal, as his Pub-
That it is contrary to the principles of lie Minifter at this Prefidency. At his ap-

the Englilh confutation, for any peYfon or pointment, he was honored with the Surpeach 
perrons to addrefs a Court of Judicature by ! drefs and Horfe, which are marks of high 
Letter miffive, concerning any matter pending diftinftion ; and on the delivery of his cre- 
before fuch Court; and that the higher the dentials to the Governor General, he received 
lta/ion is, the aft is the more unconftitutional. Paun and Ottar from him.

lh a t  the ftyle of the Letter now before W e have made fuch replies to your refolu- 
the Court, Teeming to be of the nature of tions, as we think consent with our honor 
an Order rather than- Petition, is a ftyle in and dignity ; and we have directed our Attor- 
which no Court o f Juftice ought to be ad- ney to inftru& our Counfel to move to quafh 
c'relied- jthe Indictment, fo far as it concerns Roy Ra-

J U N E  23d, 1775 . ^ u r n , ^ie Soubah’s Vakeel.

Prefent, all the Judges. A  true extraft.

M R. Jarrett, Attorney for the Eaft India ' (Signed)
Company, offered two papers to the Court, H. A'uriol, Affiftant Sec.
which, he acquainted them, he was direfted to
deliver from the Governor General and Coun- Extraft o f the Confutation, the 2 2d of June, 
cil. j 17 75.

Court. W e cannot receive papers in that n _ r , . ■ J ,  , . . r
irregular manner: if  you will deliver the 1 ft Refolution.  ̂ # e c aim m que -
papers to the Counfel for the Company, and That the Court is not 1 at 0 an
he thinks proper to acquaint the Court with or opinion, inac an >
their contents, we have no objeftion. claims of individuals r̂overnment , 0 ,

The Counfel for the Company, having ought t0 be made di- e .
perufed the papers, faid, he faw nothing re<̂ ty t0 the Court by 0 ie 1 1 °p , e,
• i r  i - L i  1 1  6 klip individual* and pretentative ot the Chiefimproper in them; upon which he read them tnc Hiuiviuudlb> diiU F ^ _i r t, nnrhvrhp anrhoritvnf Indian Potentate, orto the Court, as follows: not oy tne autnority or • , . c ’ p r.

the Governor General Power, within the Pro-
T- cl r /* i 1 J T  and Connril vince of Bengal, Babar,I Ext raft o f Confultation, the 2 2d June, 1775. and council. and Qriffa; between

W e have received two papers from your whom and* the Eaft In-
Court by Mr.. Mac Veagh, who, as we under- dia Company^ a Treaty
ftand, came to us as one of the Matters in fnbfifted previous to the
Equity. I f  he was fent from you in that cha- ' patting the late A ft of
rafter to us, we mu ft obferve a want of form Parliament (under the

j and refpeft due to the Government of this authority of which, and
Country, as he came without his ufual forma- His Majefty’s Charter
lilies. granted in p.urfuance

W e obferve with deep concern, that the thereof, the Supreme
claim made by this Government, of certain Court is eftablillied)
privileges and immunities in behalf of a per-’ . and with whom the
fon, who, being a Public Minifter, appears to . Government of the Pre-

1 us entitled to fuch privileges, fhould be fidency have been in-
, deemed by the Judges of a very extraordi- % ftrufted, iince the pa -

nary kind/ to g  of Inch Afl. to
’  i i E s  . ™ ke
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make a further treaty or directly making his
.or treaties: for thefe claims to a Court, the
reafons, it was incum- authority o f which he
bent on the Govern- conceives himfelf no way
ment to make fuch  ̂ amenable to.
claims of exemption, on 2d, That it is con- The idea of an ad- 
complaint to them made trary to the principles drefs from individuals 
by the party injured, of the Englifh Confti- feems to run through 
as would, under fimilar tution, for anyperfon the whole of this Refo- 
circumftances,have been or perfons to addrefs a lution alfo. It is fuf- 
made by the authority Court o f Juftice by ficient for us toobferve, 
o f Government in Eng- Letter miffive,concern- that the application 
land. The Government ing any matter pend- made to the Court was 
of this Prefidency muft, ing before fuch Court; mot made, b.y the mem- 
in all their negotiations and that the higher bers who have figned 
and tranfaftions with the Ration is o f the it, in their private ca- 
the Country Powers, be perfon or perfons fo pacities, but in their 
confidered in every re* addreffing, the aft is political one, as confti- 
fpeft as inverted with the more unconftitu- tilting the Government 
fovereign authority and tional. o f this Prefidency, con-
all its incidents, under formable to the powers,
the exprefs fanftion of verted in the majority
the Britilh Laws. o f the Governor Gene-

The Company have ral and Council by the
now a Public Minifter late Aft o f Parliament,
refiding at the Court o f The opinion of the
the Nabob, Soubah of Supreme Court does
thefe Provinces. not apply at all to the

The application now prefent cafe, how far
under confideration has , foever it may be right
been made, as near as * on general principles.
cirpumftances would ad- 3d, That the ftyle - This Refolution will 
mit, in the manner above of the Letter now be- be m orefullyandfatif- 
alluded to, there not be- fore the Court,feeming faftorily anfwered, by • 
ing in this country any to be of the nature o f referring to the terms 
Officer o f the Crown or an Order rather than of the application, than 
Company inverted with Petition, is a ftyle in by any remark there- 
powers fimilar to thofe which no Court o f Juf- on. 
of his Majefty’s Attor- tice ought to be ad- The claim of a right 
ney General in England; drefled. is not an Order, either I
who would there have in form or fubftance ;
been the proper officer neither was it our inten-
to have taken cogni- ' tion to addrefs the Court
zance of fuch a com- by Petition,
plaint, on the reprefen-
tation of Government, A  true extraft. «
Without putting the
party injured tp the H. A uriol,.
neceffity o f perfonally Affiftant Secretary.

.) The
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The Court inquired whether either of the pa- in that form! With refpeft to the anulin

aS r C f r a n d  in f ° rm e3 ti0na k f e l f ’  th e  C o u r t  does not efteem  it any  
h e y  h a d  n o t .  T h e  C o u r t  th e n  returned  q u efl io n  re la t iv e .to '  th e  E a ft  Ind ia  C o m p a n y

t h e  f o l lo w in g  a n fw e r  to th e  a b o v e  p a p e rs ,  h a v in g  a p o w e r  o f  r e c e iv in g  A m b a f f a d o r s n o r  
1 h e  C o u r t ,  w ith  v e r y  g r e a t  co n ce rn , p e r -  w h a t  r ig h t  A m b a ffa d o rs  p ro p e r ly  co n ftitu ted  

c e i v e ,  th an  a m e ffa g e  fent b y  th e  F ir f t  O ff ic er  and rece ived  b y  them  m ay  be  intitled to . We 
o t  t h e i r .C o u r t ,  f o r  the  p u r p o fe  o f  p re v e n t in g  o b f e r v e , . that R o y  R a d a  C h u rn  Hates in  h is  
a  co rre fp o n d e n c e ,  w h ich  i f  ca rr ie d  o n ,  m u lt  M e m o r ia l  to the C o u n cil  ( fo r  w h a t  p u rp o fe  w e  
e n d  in a lte rc a t io n ,  h a s  b e e n  e ltee m e d  b y  th e  k n o w  not) , that h e  w a s  called upon b y  a 
C o u n c i l  a  w a n t  o f  re fp e £ t  in th e  m od e o f  fum m ons ilfued b y  S i r  E l i ja h  Im p e v  k n ie h t  

* d e l i v e r in g  it, a n d  h a s  p r o d u c e d  th a t  v e r y  al- on e o f  H is  M a je f t y ’ s Ju ft ic e s  o f  the  p eace ! 
t e r c a t io n  w h ic h  it w a s  e v id e n t ly  in ten d ed  to  W e  m u ft  acq u ain t th e  B o a r d ,  that, the  mat! 
p r e v e n t ; an a l te rc a t io n  w h i c h ,  in  th e  firft ters  laid to th e  c h a r g e  o f  R o y  R a d a  C h u rn  
in f t a n c e ,  o u g h t  to  b e  f l o p p e d ;  a n d  t h e r e f o r e  b e in g  o f  a p u b l ic  n a tu re ,  and affecTing the 
t h e  C o u r t  w i l l  n o t m a k e  o n e  A n g le  o b fe r v a -  F ir f t  M e p ib e r  o f  G o v e rn m e n t  in this Pre fi-  
t io n  on  th e  w a n t  o f  a d d re fs  to th e  C o u r t ,  o r  d e n cy , the  C h i e f  Juft ice, u n w il l in g  to a ft  
t h e  fn b je f t - m a t t e r  o f  th e ir  p a p e rs*  T h crfe  w h o  a lo n e , ca lled  u p o n  all his B re th re n  fo r  their  
f ir f t  end  a  d i fp u te  w h ic h  m a y  b e  o f  fo  m u c h  a f f i f ta n c e ;  and that th e  fum m ons was figned, 
c o n fe q u e n c e  to  th e  p u b l i c ,  in o u r  o p in io n ,  and  e v e r y  o r d e r  in the c a life’ m ade, b y  eve ry  
a f t  w i t h  th e  m oft  d ig n i t y ,  a n d  d e fe r v e  b e f t  of one o f  the  J u d g e s  o f  the S u p rem e C o u rt  o f  
t h e  p u b l i c .  T h e  i f fu e  o f  th is  b u fin e fs  fuffi- J u d ic a t u r e ,  a f t e r  m atu re  deliberation , and an 
c ie n t ly  e v in c e s  th e  im p r o p r ie t y  o f  the  m o d e  e x a m in a t io n  th at to o k  u p  a w h o le  d ay . R o y  
o f  a p p l ic a t io n  b y  t h e  G o v e r n o r  G e n e r a l  a n d  R a d a  C h u r n  w as not at that t im e ap p riz e d  o f  
C o u n c i l  ; i f  th e  C o m p a n y  t h o u g h t  it r ig h t  to h is  b e in g  in v e fte d  w ith  the  facred rights o f  
a p p l y ,  t h e r e  a re  b u t  tw o  m od es in  w h ic h  it cou ld  an A m b a f l a d o r  : T h o u g h  his claim  is m a d e -  
p r o p e r l y  b e  d o n e .  T h o u g h  n e ith e r  th e  C r o w n  v e r y  la te ,  i f  h e  is r e a l l y  and bona fide in- 
n o r  t h e  C o m p a n y  h a v e  an  A t t o r n e y  G e n e r a l ,  vefted  w ith  fuch r ig h ts ,  th e y  w i l l  moft u n- 
t h e y  h a v e  a ( la n d in g  C o u n f e l ; a  m o tio n  o u g h t  d o u b te d ly  b e  a llo w ed  h im  in their  fu l l  e x -  
to  h a v e  b e e n  m ad e  b y  th a t  C o u n f e l ; i f  t h e y  tent. T h e  cla im  feems feriou s, and deferves 
d id  n o t t h in k  p r o p e r  to  in f t ru ft  th a t  C o u n fe l ,  the  attention o f  th e  C o u r t ,  as it is m ade b y  
t h e  p r o p e r  m o d e  w a s  b y  P e t it io n  ; it is th e  th e  G o v e r n o r  G e n e r a l  and C o u n c i l ;  th e y  
m o d e  th a t  t h e  C h a r t e r  h a s  p re fe r ib e d  fo r  t h e  k n o w  th e  fa fts  u p o n  w h ich  they claim  i t ;  th e  
E a f t  In d ia  C o m p a n y ,  w h o fe  A g e n t s  the  G o -  C o u r t  Cannot b e  a p p r iz e d  o f  them . A s  w e  
v e r r ta r  G e n e r a l  and C o u n c i l a r e .  A n  a p p e a l ,  a re  co n fid en t  th e  c la im  w ou ld  not be  m ade 
u n d e r  th e  c ircu m ftan ce s  d e fe r ib e d  b y  th e  A f t ,  w ith o u t  g ro u n d s ,  w e  fhall expect  to  b e  in­
is  a  m a tte r  o f  r i g h t : to  p r e fe r v e  th at d e c e n c y  fo rm e d  o f  th e  fo l lo w in g  circum ftances, w ith -  
n e c e f l a r y  in a p p l ic a t io n s  to H i s  M a je f t y ’ s C o u r t  o u t  w h ic h  w e  ca n n o t  determ in e th e  c la im , 
o f  J u f t i c e ,  th e  E a f t  In d ia  C o m p a n y ,  as  w e l l  T h e  q u eft io n  a p p e a rs  to us to B e ,  w h e th er  
as a l l  o th e r  a p p e l la n t s ,  m u ft  n o t  c la im , b u t  the  N a b o b M u b a r i c k  ul D o w la h  (lands in fuch 
p r e f e r  an  h u m b le  P e t i t io n .  T h e f e  a r e  th e  a  re la t io n  to th e  E a f t  In d ia  C o m p a n y ,  as ro 
w o r d s  o f  th e  C h a r t e r .  It  is a  f a l f e  p o in t  o f  b e  a b le  to fend  to this P re fid en cy  a P u b lic  
h o n o u r  to  d e c lin e  i t ,  th ere  is n o t h in g  h u m i-  M in i f te r ,  u p o n  w h om  th e  r ig h ts  o f  an A m -  
R a t in g  in i t ;  it  is m ere  m a tte r  o f  fo r m .  T h i s  b a ffa d o r  c a n  a t t a c h ;  th e re fo re  w e fhall ex'- 
b e i n g  th u s  e x p la i n e d ;  to p r e v e n t  a n y  f u r t h e r  p e f t  th at  th e  G e n t le m e n , w h o  made the c la im  
a l te rc a t io n s  o f  th is  n a t u r e ,  th e  C o u r t  m u ft  in h is  b e h a l f ,  d o  v e r i fy ,  b y  affidavit, that th e  
in fo r m  th e  B o a r d ,  th a t  t h e y  c a n n o t  ( r e fp e f t  N a b o b  M u b a r ic k  u l  D o w la h  is a S o v e r e ig n  
b e i n g  h a d  to t h e  d ig n i t y  o f  H is  M a j e f t y ’ s in d ep en d en t P r in c e .  T h a t  h e  is in a fitua- 
C o u r t ,  a n d  to  th e  w e l f a r e  o f  the  C o m p a n y )  tion to m a k e  w 5ir and peace w ith  this Se tt le -
r e c e iv e  in  f u t u r e  a n y  L e t t e r s  o r  M e ffa g e s  b u t  m ent. T h a t  h e  is a P r i n c e l y w v j . T h a t  he

?'£*■ ■  appoints.'
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appoints his- Minifters, and performs all a#s Court. Y o u . mu ft fpecify the cenfure and 
of Sovereignty, independently, and without punifhment you wifh the Court to pafs. 
the controul of this Government. That he is Mr. Farcer, 1 did not conceive that to be
in all negotiations treated as a Prince Jui neceifary ; I beg leave to withdraw that part

juris. Thefe are.fa&s within the knowledge o f the motion.
o f the Gentlemen of the Council ; they can (The words in Italic were 'accordingly 
verjfy them; and if they do not, the Court (truck out.)
will underftand that they do not cpnfider him .
as Princeps fid  juris. It will be neceffary Mr. Fanrer9 in fupport of the motion, faid,
likewife to inquire who the perfon is that That Roy Rada Churn, having being in­
is font as Vakeel, or Ambaffador, and what formed that a profecution had been com­
are his powers. W e (hall expert to have it menced againft him, had prefented a Memo, 
verified by affidavit, that a Vakeel is a Pub- rial to the Governor General and Council, 
lie Minifter, having the right jus revocandi Rating, that he was a Vakeel, or Public Mi- 
domum; where he was commorant at the time nifter, to the Nabob, and 'Claiming the privi-. 
fie was appointed Vakeel, and for twelve lege o f an Ambaffador. That, in confluence 
months before, et cujus ditioni tunc fiubditus of that application, the Governor General and 

fiuit. We fhall likewife expeft it to be ve- Council had fent a Letter to the Court, claim- 
rified by the Gentlemen of the Council, that ing, for him, fuch privilege; that an anfwer 
they have always treated Roy Rada Churn as was fent to that Letter by the Court, which 
a perfon inverted with all tfiofe rights which had produced a meffage from the Board; to 
they claim on his behalf, and that they do which an anfwer had likewife been, fent by 
in no refpeft whatever coafider him fubjeft the Court. That as the Court, in their la ft . 
to the order or .controul o f this Government, anfwer, had faid, that they did not confider 
Thefe matters muft be cleared u p ; otherwife this as any queftion relative to the right the 
the allbwance of this claim may be an inlet Ea(t India Company might poffefs o f re- 
to a grievance much complained of, the ex- ceiving Ambaffadors, he would decline faying 
ertion of the power of a Double Government, any thing as to that point.
Thefe circumltance.s are pointed ftrongly, that Court. W e have given no decifive opinion : 
•they may, if poffible, be obviated. # As a therefore exercife your own judgement, 
treaty is mentioned in the papers between (M r. Farrer then proceeded to make fome 
the Honourable the Company and Mubarick obfervations on the meffage fent by the
ul Dowlah, the Court expect that treaty to Court to the Council.)
be laid before them. ' Court. W e think it highly improper that ®

TiTXTr o i - any meffage from us Ihould be commentedJ U N E  28th, I77<. * 1 r? r 1 1 ,J 7 / , J  upon by Couniei; what was mentioned in that
- t^e Judges* meffage was intended as hints to the Gen-

Mr. Farrer. I have the direftions of the tlemen who. made the claim on behalf o f Roy 
•Governor General and Council to move the Rada Churn, o f what it would be neceffary 
Court, that Roy Rada Churn, a Public Mini- for them to prove, which no doubt they have! 
Her, or Vakeel, of the Nabob Mubarick ul done; we therefore wifh you would confine 
Dowlahj may be exempt from a profecution yourfelf to what you can fupport by affida- 
commenced againft him by Warren Haftings vits.
Efquire,^ Governor General*, and that the Mr. Farrer. W e have affidavits to prove 
profecution, fo far as it concerns him, may every thing that is neceffary to be proved ; 
be qu allied.; and that the Court may pafs finch what has been mentioned as neceffary t$ be 
cenfure and puntjhrnent as they Jhall think pro- fupported by affidavit, I do not conceive re- 
fe r  on the perfions who have commenced the. pro- quifite ; many of the things are what cannot 
jecutiono be fworn to, but which I hope will be ad- .

4 mitted
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T t e E  t R t a l  O f  R o y  r  a  d  a  c h u r n , & c. L -

i j u t e d  f r o m  th eir  p u b l i c  n o to r ie t y .  F i r f t ,  I in th is  Se tt lem en t, in the  character o f  Vakeel', 
fh a l l  p t o v e  th e  N a b o b  M u b a .n c k  u l  D o w la h  o r  P u b l ic  M in i fte r ,  e v e r  Cnee that t im e , ex-  
to  b e  a S o v e r e ig n  P r in c e ,  and  th a t  h e  e x e r -  ce p t  For an  in terv a l  o f  a fe w  d a y s ,  f ro m  the 
t i l e s  a i l s  o f  S o v e r e ig n t y  ; I  co n ce ive ,  th a t  in 2 ad  o f  M a y  to th e  3 0 t h .  T h o u g h  h e  fhould  
a l l  m a tte rs ,  w h e r e  t h e . L a w s  o f  E n g la n d  h a ve  h a v e  b e e n  difm iffed in th e  interm ediate fp a ce  
h o t  a lte re d  b is  l i tu a t io n ,  h e  inuft  b e  a S o -  y e t ,  i f  th e  I n d i& n e n t  w a s  fou nd  afterw atds 
v e r e ig n  1 r m c e ; h e  e x e rc ife s  c r im in a l  ju r i f -  it o u g h t  to b e  q u a fh e d .  R o y  R a d a  C h u r n ,  
d i6 h o n  t h r o u g h o u t  h is  d o m in io n s , and  figns b y  v ir tu e  o f  his ap p o intm ent, rece iv e s  from  
th e  d e a t h - w a r ra n ts ,  w ith o u t  a n y  con trcm l w h a t -  th e  S o u b a h  a fa la ry  o f  9 0 0  ru p e e s  p e r  m onth , 
f o e v e r  f r o m  t h is  G ’o v e fn m e n t .  H e  has e x ­
e r  c i  fe d  th e  r i g h t  o f  fe n d in g  A m b a f fa d o r s  T h e  C o u n fe l  fo r  th e  C o m p a n y ,  in fu p p o rt  
t im e Im m e m o r ia l .  H e  is poffe ffed  o f  a  r o y a l  ° f  th e  m otion, p ro d u c e d  th e  fo l lo w in g
m in t ,  a n d  co in s  m o n e y ;  H e  k e e p s  in p a y  p a p e rs .  -

a  body _■ o f troops. From all thefe eifeum- ift, Memorial of Roy Rada Churn. Copied 
fiances, it is evident, he is a Sovereign Prince, page 2. 4
I will alfo beg leave to mention an obferva- 2d, The letter from the Council to the 

- ^ on ^ e  Chief Juftice the other day, Court, which inclofed that Memorial, dated 
which waSj “  That the Ambaffador of a power- 20th June, 1775, which had been altered by 
** ful Prince would be in titled- to no more the Clerk of the Crown (with the permiffion 
fC privilege^ on account of his potency." of the Court) into the proper form of a pe- • 
Therefore a fortiori the prefent weaknefs of tition. Copied page 2. 
the Subah fhould be no argument why his 3 % ,  The following affidavit of Roy Ra- 
Ambaffadors fhould not have their privilege ; da Churn, 
they ought rather on that account to meet
with protection from His M ajefly’s Courts . The King, at the profecution of Warren 
o f Juftice.; I f  the Nabob* is not the* Sovereign, Hastings, Efquire,
1 fhould be glad to know who is. Other f - againft _
European Settlements acknowledge the So- Roy Rada Churn and others, for a Mif- 
vereignty of the Nabob ; and I am inftrufted demeanor,
to fay, that a Frenchman is now under ac- Roy Rada Churn, the perfon abovemen- 
tual confinement for fomc mifdemeanor com- tioned, maketh oath, that he is a Hindoo na- 
mitted within the Provinces. The affening tive of the-province of Bengal, and is now,.

* that the Nabob is not the Sovereign, would and for two years and upwards laft paft has 
be productive of the moft dreadful confe- been, refident in Calcutta, at Fort William 
quences. It would, in all probability, be pro- aforefaid, as the Public Mini iter, or Vakeel, 

.duCtive of a war between us and the feveral o f Mubarick ul Dowlab,. Nabob of Bengal, 
European nations who have Settlements with- Bahar, and Oriffa, (except for about the 
in the Provinces. For, if the Sovereignty is fpace of ten days- in the month of May lad) 
Jvefted in the Company, all the difputes with- and charged with the conducting and tranf- 
in the Provinces mull: of courfe be decided aCting his affairs and concerns, with the 
by us. A s to the Nabob’s being Pr in ceps fui Honourable the Eaft ■ India Company and 
jurisj that cannot be verified by affidavit; it others-, at the Prefidency of Fort William, 
is fuffieient if he is received as fuch by his aforefaid ; and that he receives-a monthly 
own fubjeCts. Rada Chum Roy was invefted falary or nine hundred rupees in virtue-of 
with the enfigns of his office from, the Nabob,* Inch his appointment and office aforefaid , 
whicn was attended with an extraordinary land was, on- his being invefteef therewith, 
degree o f honour in the mode of conferring. I honoured by his filid Mafter the Nabob with 
He received his letters of credence in Sep- a Chauxpaurchait Kelaut, a burpaitch Ma- 
fcember 17 7 2 . Roy Rada Churn has refided [rilfah,. a Jaighaw, a Cala-ugh.ee and I ^



enfigns of fuch his appointment and office.; From the Nabob Mubarick ul Dowlah to the 
and that the Surpaitch Mariffah was tied on Governor; received the 2zd .M ay, 17 7 5 . 
this Deponent’s head by the. Nabob himfelf, As Roy Rada Churn has, for fometime paft, 
as a mark o f diftinguiffied honor. And this been an idle perfon, and confidering his being 
Deponent further faith, that on his intro- retained as my Vakeel, intirely ufelefs, I 
duftion to Warren Haftings Efquire, the bave difmiffed him from the 1 ft o f •Suffer, in 
then Governor, as Minifter, or Vakeel, as the 1 6th Sun (year o f His M ajefty’s reign); 
aforefaid, he received from him Beetle Nutt and write this for your information, 
and Ottar, which, this Deponent faith, he A  true tranflation. 
believes are not ufually given to Vakeels of W m . R e d f e a r n , P . T .
Rajahs, or others or inferior rank, but only
to the. Public Minifters, or Vakeels, of the From the Nabob Mubarick ul Dowlah to
Subahs, Nabobs, or other fuperior Indian the Governor; received the 30th o f May,
States and Powers. x775*

And this Deponent further faith,, that he f  .
is not, nor during the period firft above 1 /om et.m eag0 informed you that I had
written has been, in the fervice or employ- d o f f e d  Roy Rada Churn, at the felicitation 
mem of the faid Eaft India Company, or o f o f Yatebar A lly  Caun. A s the faxd Roy has 
anyBritiffi fubjeft whomfoevcr; but is re- been for a long time employed as my Vakeel 
fident in Calcutta as the Public Minifter, or c°  ? ou’  1 ha$  remftated him ; and I requeft 
Vakeel, of the faid Nabob, and on no other “ at you will ffiew him the fame degree of 
bufmefs whatfoever. And this Deponent favo«r as formerly, and pay attention to what- 
further faith, that there is not now any other ever e rePreffints to you on my part.
Minifter, or Vakeel, of the faid Nabob Mu- A  true tranflation.
barick ul Dowlah refid ent in Calcutta, or W m . R e d f e a r n , P. T .
at the Prefidency aforefaid, as this Deponent

‘ verily believes. The following Affidavit o f Mr. Redfearn
Signed / uLt was affixed to the above Letters.ul5utuJ

Subfcribed, the mark or name o f The King, at the Profecution o f Warren 
R oy R ad a  C h u rn ; Haftings Efquire,

Sworn at Calcutta, this 28th day r> „  t> , i d lc r - ? r I TT R °y  Rada Churn and others, for a Mif-or une, i 77<, before me, j .  H y d e . j 1J 1 ‘ D J  demeanor. * - •
4thly, Copies of Letters of Credence, Dif- m  a c  i
n  v  a  d •?'* „ c xt William Redfearn, o f Calcutta, Gentleman,million, and Re-appointment, from theNa- Ck i ^ - n ri v  j ,  #  ,*  \\ n  ’ n  , maketh oath, and faith, that the Perfian bob, addrelled to the Governor General. T„  v  Z • /  , 9 , •writing, in the paper hereunto annexed con-
■ From 'the Nabob Mubarick ul Dowlah, tained, is a true copy o f the original Letters

to the Governor *, received the 23d o f Sep- of Credence, Difmiffion, and Re-appointment,
tember, 1772-. o f the aboven-amed Roy Rada Churn, as®

Roy Rada Churn, who has been honoured Vakeel to the Nabob Mubarick ul Dowlah,
with the appointment of Vakeel at your which have been filed among the records and
prefence, on the difmiffion o f Roy Ramnaut, muniments o f the Honourable the Eaft India
now. proceeds to you. He will attend upon Company, at their Prefidency o f Fort William
you for the trail far! ion of my affairs; and aforefaid, taken and made by this Deponent
your favour toward him is greater than I from, and carefully compared with, fucht&bri-
-can exprefs.  ̂ , ginals; and that he has a knowledge of, and

trUw tran^atl0n’ 0 is converfant in, the Perfian language; and
W m . R e d f e a r n , Perfian Tranflator. that the Englifh writing, contained in the faid

annexed
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annexed# paper, is a true tranflation of the in the bert manner, agree, that the pro- 
laid original Letters, to the beft of this De- tefting the Provinces of Bengal, Bahar, and 
ponent’s judgement and belief. Oriffa, and the force fufficient for that pur-

Signed, Wm. R e d f e a r n . P0^  be intirely left to their diferetion and 
o__r_ m . r , i ., • o j  good management; in confideration of their
s wom at Calcutta this 28th day paying the King Shah Aalum, by monthly

of Ju ly , 1775 , before the Court, payments, as by treaty agreed on, the fum of
J a . P r it c h a r d , Clerk of the Crown., rupees two lacks fixteen thoufand fix hun-

1 A . T >  rp _/ A dred and fix, ten annas, and nine pice ru-
5I7, Articles o f a Treaty and Agreement pees (216666 10 9) ; and to me Mubarick

between the Governor and Council of ul Dowlah the annual ftipend of rupees thirty
Fort William, on the Part of the Englilh one lacks eighty one thoufand nine hundred 
.baft India Company, and the Nabob and ninety-one nine, annas (3 18 199 1 9); viz. 
Mubarick ul Dowlah. 1 the fum of rupees fifteen lacks, eighty-one

On the Part of the Company. thoufand nine hundred and ninety-one, nine
r 1 annas(i58i99i 9), for myhoufe, fervants,and

W e, the Governor and Council, do engage other expences, indifpenfably neceffary ; and 
to fecure to the Nabob Mubarick ul Dow]a, the remaining fum of rupees fixteen lacks 
the Soubabdarry of the Provinces o f Bengal, rupees (1600000) for the fupport of fuch 
Bahar, arid Oriffa, and to fupport him there- Seapoys, Peons, and Bercundaffes, as may be 
in, with all the Company’s forces, againft all proper for my affwarry only; but on ho ac- 
his enemies. count ever to exceed that amount.

On the Part of the Nabob. A R T I C L E  III.
A R T T P T I ?  T The ^ ab°b Min auh Dowlah, who was at
A  K 1 I L L  L J. the inftance of the Governor and Gentlemen’

The Treaty which my Father formerly of the Council appointed Nabob of the Pro- 
concluded with the Company, upon his firft vinces, and inverted with the management of 
acceffion to the Nizamut, engaging to regard affairs, in conjun&ion with Mah Rajah Doo- 
tne honor and reputation of the Company, lubram and Juggat Seat, ilia'll continue in 
and of the Governor and Council, as his the fame port, and with the fame authority; 
ow n; and that entered into with my Brothers and, having a perfect confidence in him, I 
the Nabobs Nazim ul Dowlah and Syef ul moreover agree to let him have the disburfing 

* Dowlah; the fame Treaties, fo far as is con- of the above fum of rupees fixteen lacks, for. 
fiftent with the true fpirit, intent, and meaning the purpofes above mentioned.
thereof, I do hereby ratify and confirm. This Agreement (by the bleffing of God)

A R T I C L E  II. (hall be inviolably obferved for ever.

The King has been gracioufly pleafed to Dated the 2irt day of March, in the year 
grant unto the Englifh Eart India'Company of our Lord 1770, 
the Dewanneeihip of Bengal, Bahar, and Signed, J ohn Cartier, &c.
Oriffa, as a free gift for ever ; and I, having (A true Copy) 
an intire confidence in them,, and in their .Signed, W. W ynne, Sec. 
fervants fettled in this country, that nothing
Whatever be propofed or carried into-exe- 6thly, A  Sunnud from the Nabob Meer 

/fution by them, derogating from my honor, Jaffier, in confequence of a Fermaun from 
intereft, arid the good of my country, do the. King, confirming a former Sunnud to 
therefore, for the better conducing the af- the Company, for coining money in Cal- 
fairs of the Soubabdarry, and promoting my I cutta, in the name of the King, 
lionor and intereft, and that o f the Company, |- * .

4 |
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Mr. Newmtt. As Counfel on the profe- verted with the power of receiving or treat- 
cution againrt Roy Rada Churn (together ing with him.
with others) for a Cohfpiracy againrt the On the firft application of the Council on 
Governor General, I cannot but rife to this occafion, your Lordftiips announced five 
oppofe this extraordinary application. things neceffary to be eftablifhed by affida-

I underftand the Motion chiefly to be, vit, in fupport o f the claim on behalf of 
That, Roy R a d a  Churn claiming the privi- Mubarick ul Dowlah, the perfon fending a 
leges of an Ambaffador, the Council, by Public Minifter:
their Advocate, moves the Court, that the i ft, That Mubarick ul Dowlah is a So- 
Indicftment, for a Confpiracy againrt him, vereign independent Prince, 
may be quafhed ; the latter parr, at firft 2d, That he is in a fituation to be able to 
mentioned, of the Profecutors of it being pu- make W ar and Peace with this Settlement, 
nifhed, being withdrawn. In fupport o f this gdly/JThat he is Princeps fuijuris*
Motion, the following propofitions are urged; 4thly, That he.appoints his Minifters, and
•viz. 0 performs all arts o f Sovereignty, indepen-

ift, The Sovereignty of the Eaft India dently, and without the controul o f this Go- 
Company. Their power to declare W ar and vernment.
make Peace; and confequently to receive 5thly, That he is in all negotiations treat- 
Ambaffadors for the latter purpofe. ed as a Prince fu i juris.

2d, That Mubarick ul Dowlah is a So- In fupport o f which fa<fts, inftead o f any 
vereign Prince, pofleffing the right of fend- affidavit being produced, the MiniftePs tap­
ing Ambafladors, which right he has al- pofed Letters o f Credence are read; and a 
ways exercifed; and that .he exercifes a£ts Treaty of 2 1ft March 1770 , between the 
of Sovereignty likewife in the following in- Nabob and the Company, exhibited ; by the
fiances: latter o f which it is very obvious, that the

ift, By" keeping a Handing Army. two firft requifites for eftablifhing the claim
2d, And by pofleffing the power of ad- are difproved, and the dependancy o f the

miniftrating Criminal Juftice. Nabob on the Company fully eftablifhed. In-
And in behalf of his Excellency, we are ftead of being able to make W ar or Peace 

informed of his appointment as . Vakeel, or with this Settlement, the Company agree to 
Public Minifter; his being inverted with all fupport him in his Subahfhip with their for- 
the folemnities ufual on the occafion; the pof- ces, and to allow him an annual ftipend of 
foffion of a falary of 900 rupees a month, Rupees 3 ,18 1 ,9 9 1 . 9, which they think pro- % 
and being diftinguifhed and received by the per to make the difpofition of, by fettling 
Governor as an Ambaffador, for that he gave the expences o f his falary, by limiting the 
him Ottar and Beetle Nutt. In fupport o f number o f his Peons, Seapoys, & c. They 
which laft allegations, on behalf of the per- ftipulate for the continuance of the then 
fon font as an Ambaffador, an affidavit of Officers and Minifters in their ports, and ex- 
Roy Rada Churn is produced; and we are prefsly appoint one of thofe Minifters to have | 
told, that every thing is fworn to which the the difpofition (in the manner therein men- 
cafe will admit of, which is the only juft tioned) of one moiety of the money at that 
pofition that has been mentioned, and which time allowed him by the Company; which 
renders it very unneceffary for me to fay more ftipend, fo allowed him, was in the enfuing 
upon the prefent^ occafion, than taking up year, by order of the Court o f Directors, re- 
the foie point of right in the perfon fending duced to the fum of 1,600,000 rupees per an- 

Public Minifter; for, if that is not efta- nuni. W ill thefe arts and power in the Com- % 
bhfhed, the right of the perfon fegt ceafes pany ffiew a Sovereign independency in 
of courfe; and it is immaterial how far the Mubarick ul Dowlah, and his being able to 
perfonsto whom fuch AmbafTador is font are make W ar and Peace with this Settlement?

*  Do
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Do they not, on the contrary, inconteftably barick ul Dowlah is a fon of Meer Taffier 
P ™ ;e’ Z  “5  h;,S * % * * * ? ¥  f  th^ o m -  the Jammada, who was created a Nabob by 
• S  I ’in f  A ’ th° U1gh n™ 115r a Nabob’ Lord Clive; from which circumftance, the 
H  Z  H n°  m0reAthan an‘ rmnent, and >dea of a Pnncepsfui juris ceafes immediately; 
may be deemed an Agent of theirs ? It does and I believe, after what has been (hewn, will 
not appear that he ever thought himfelf a prefently appear more fully: I need not fug. 
Sovereign Prince, or till on the prefent occa- g e t that the Company, in their negotiations, 
fion ever conceived ne had a right to fend an have not treated or ever eonfidered Mubarick 
Ambaffador, which he could only now have as a Prince fui juris- fo that there does not 
been prompted to by fome friends of Roy appear the lead proof before the Court, of 
Kada Churn, in order to lend him an affifting any one of the five requifues declared as 
hand on fo preffing an emergency ? neceffary to be eftablifhed, or a ground for a

The only prelumptive acl o f Sovereignty fuppofition of Sovereignty in the perfon laid 
veiled in or exercifed by Mubarick ul Dowlah, to create and fend the Public Mmifter or Am­
is his figning the wan ants on capital convic- ball ad or to this Settlement ; which renders it 
tions in the Prefidency Audaulet Court, be- unneceflary for me to confider how far the 
fore they are carried into execution; but even Company have or have not an unlimited au- 
this is a delufion : and political motives in the thority for fending or receiving Ambaffadors. 
Company, when they created thefe Courts, in- From the deficiency of evidence in fupport of 
duced them to veil this power in him, which the prefent claim, it is unneceflary on our 
will be prefently fully explained; and we fhall parts to produce the affidavits we have ob- 
Ihew the conflituting the Courts, and adminif- tained, to difprove what we thought might 
tering Criminal Juftice, to be Sovereign Afts have been attempted to have been Supported; 
o f the Company, and not o f the Nabob. As but, in order to convince yonr Lordlhips how 
to the Nabob’s Handing army, announced as an ill-advifed and ill-grounded the claim is, we- 
in fiance-of the Sovereignty of the Nabob, and fhall evince, by the affidavits of the Governor 
o f which, though we are informed by the General and other Gentlemen of the old 
Counfel, there is not one jot of proof; your Council, that Mubarick ul Dowlah is every 
Lordlhips will find his army a very inoffenfive way dependent on the Eaft India Company, 
one; for it is no other than his Swarry, of who appoint his officers and fervants, allow 
which the number of Seapoys and Peons is him an annual ftipend, and themfelves poffefs 
limited by the Company : nor can the Nabob the entire command of the military power of 
have occalion for an army, who has no poffef- jBengal; that he has neither a Seapoy to com- 
iions to lofe, and who is protected in the place raand, an inch of land to enjoy, nor a rupee in 
he holds by the forces of another power, his treafury, more than what the Company 
which the Company, by the treaty which has may think proper to allow him; and although 
been produced, have undertaken to proteft the Criminal Courts were nominally the Courts 
him in. o f the Nabob, yet that thefe Courts were

« That Mubarick ul Dowlah is not a Prince created by the Company, in the month of 
fu i juris, will not bear a moment’s contention. Auguft 1772, by their own authority, with- 
His being a Nabob would not make him fuch, out consulting or requiring his concurrence; 
i f  he had obtained his Subahfhip by the re- and the mode of the Laid Province, fettled by 
gular line of appointment from the Mogul, the lare Prelident and Council, to be under 
whofe officer a Nabob originally was, tempo- the infpeftion and controul of the Company s 
rarily created to fuperintend the affairs of a fervants.
province, and was removeable at pleafure; With refpefl to Roy Rada Churn, who is 
but there has not been a lawful Nabob fince taught to fwear himfelf a Public Minilter, 
the death of Sujah Caun, which happened in believe it never entered his imagination be- 
the year 1739 . It is well known that Mu- fore, that he was more than a common Vakeel *

4 C 2 nor



nor is a Public Minifter ever conrtituted by.taining his appointment and 'inftruftions. 
that name; for at tlie court of Delhy, where Coke, 4 Inft« 1 53*
Ambafladors are received, and a real power is Therefore one who hath not Sovereign au- 
poflefled of creating them, they are diftin- thority cannot fend an Ambaflador to another, 
guidled by the name of Elchee; and by the lb. Grotius de B. &  P. l.'ii. c. 18 . § 2 ; 
affidavits before mentioned, it will appear No fubjedt, though he be very great*; nor 
from Gentlemen long refident in this country, a Viceroy, in whom it would be high treafon. 
a Vakeel was never looked upon as a When the Scots (inconfulto Principe) fent 
Public Minifter, or entitled to the rights o f an Lowden and others to Lewis XIII. to treat 
Ambaflador: but even fuppofing, for a mo- in the name of the whole nation for affiftance, 
ment, the creation was legal and regular, and he would not receive them. Queen Elizabeth,
R o y ‘Rada Churn actually had been a Public! in like manner, refufed to receive Chriftopher 
Minifter appointed in the year 1772 , it ap~ Aflonville, fent to her in quality of Minifter 
pears, and is admitted, that he was difmifled of State from the Duke of A lva,  then Govern 
by the Nabob as an idle fellow on the jyd of nor o f Flanders, he having no Commiffion* 
April, 1775, and is not re-admitted till fome or Credentials from the K ing of Spain, 
time in May following. In the intermediate Molloy, de Jure Mar. 120 . 
time between his difmiffion and re-appoint- It is the aftual exercife of Sovereignty that 
ment, the crime for which he is indi&ed was gives the right o f fending Ambafladors; in- 
committed, difcovered, and a profecution for fomuch that Kings, that are conquered in a 
it aftually commenced; fo that his Excellency’s declared open war, lofe that right, together 
Ambafladorial claim, if there was a ground for with other privileges, Grot. ib. 
it would ftand him in no (lead on the pre- The principal rights o f Sovereignty of 
fent occafion, and it only expofes the wiflies of which the Subah Mubarick ul Dowlah mull 
thofe who prompted him to make jt. I there- be poflefled, to give him fuch a relation with 
fore hope your Lordftiips will djfmifs the refpedt to the India Company as to enable 
Morion, with cofts. him to fend any perfon with the privilege of

Mr. Brin. M r. Newman has fo fully.ob- an Ambaflador to this Prefldency ; are, ift, 
ferved on the infufficiency of the evidence That he is a Sovereign independent Prince: 
produced in fupport ot the claim, that I think 2dly, That he is in a fituation to make Peace 
it unneceflary to add any thing to what he and War with the Settlement: 3dly, That he 
has faid on that head. I Avail therefore pro- appoints all his Minifters, and exercifes all 
ceed to point out the definition of an Ambafla- adis o f Sovereignty, independent of any other, c 
dor, as I find it laid down in the books, which power, and without the controul o f this Go- 
will inconteftbly prove that Roy Rada Churn vernment ; and laftly, that he is in all nego- 
cannot be confidered in that light*, and then nations confidered and treated as Princeps 
proceed to (hew, from the nature of the Mogul \fui juris. Let us fee how far the Subah 
Government, how far the Nabob Mubarick ul Mubarick ul Dowla comes under this de- 
Dowlah comes under the delcription of a fcription. \
Sovereign independent Prince. Whatever the forms of Government in this

Amballador is a perfon fent by one Sove- country may have been in earlier times, it 
rejgn to another, with authority, by Letter is notorious, that, fince. the eftablifliment o f 
o Credence, to treat upon aft-airs of State, the Mogul Empire, Bengal hath been a P ro -,

°Tce’ 4 j ft* 1 53* t vince thereof. The Subah of Bengal, during
t is therefore requifite, that the perfon the time that the Empire continued to main- 

w o cais himfelf Ambaflador Ihould be fent tain its original vigour and ftrength* was lfb 
 ̂ , a . in^5 Abfolute Potentate or State; more than the King's Viceroy or Governor of 

f U 1 vfLq e " have Letters of Credence Bengal, Bahar, and Orilfa: as fuch, he had 
rona t e overeign by whom he is fent, con- the command of the military forces for the

defence
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defence of the Provinces; and the adminiftra- the fervants of the Englilh Company, or of any 
tion of Criminal Jufhce. The branch of the Britifh fubjeft? & r  y
revenue and juftice in civil matters was in*
trufted to a diftinft office independent of the Affidavit of W arren Ha stings  Efq\ Governor 
Subah, viz. the Dewan of the Empire. In General of Bengal.
progress of time, as the Empire weakened,
the Subahs grew ftronger, and appropriated ' Deponent maketh oath, and faith, 
to themfelves the revenue of the Provinces J  Tbat tlie late Prefident and Council did, on 
but even in the weakeft ftate o f the Empire, °.r ab°ut. the month of Augufl 1772, by 
the Subahs always acknowledged the Emperor y* own autbority> appoint Manee Begum,, 
as their Sovereign, ffcyled themfelves their f e r - tbe late Nabob Meer Jafter Ally 
vants, and took the inveflitures o f the Pro- * aWn>. t0 be &uardian of the prefent- Nabob 
Vinces from them. iVIiibai ick ul D owl a 5 and Raja Coordafs, {on of

It is, therefore, by ufurpation only that to be Dewan of the
they at any time exercifed the rights of So* ^ abob s houiehold, allowing to the faid 
vereignty; but thefe, I apprehend, entirely ante Begum a fa 1 ary of’ 140,000 rupees per 
ceafed with the expulfion of Meer Coffim Ally 1 an̂ u‘l 5 and to the faid najaGoordafs, for him- 
Cawh. Meer Jaffier, whom the Company e ancl officers, a falary of 100,000 rupees 
placed in the Nazimut, had only a ffiadow an*™ .\  lh a t  tbe faid late ^ M e n t  and
o f power, and not even 'that ffiadow remained Counci1 dld> 0° or about tlle m(?nth of, 
with either of his children. *77*. Plan a" d constitute regular and diftmft

The prefent Subah Mubarick ul Dowlah is Courts J0T O  civd a«d criminal, by their
fo far from being an independent Prince, i h a t f ^ ? ^ ^  fo[ adminiftration of juftice to

• • 11 i ■ ■> _  ̂ T7 rn the inhabitants throughout Bengal, withouthe is in all things dependent on the Englilh f ! . , 1 . ,  x,b. . 0 5. . , .
S rni° 1 « „ •_.i . coniulting the laid Nabob, or requiring hisgovernment. I hey alone receive the reve-l & , . 1 f -1 •. r>& r 1 -n • i 1 r c concurrence: and that the laid Civil Courtsnues or the Province: he only a penlion or , r , , 1 r 1. , , r c r • r *. r c c were made lolely dependent on tne Prelidency16  lack or rupees tor his mpport: lo tar trom \ c n .1 , l  , v -j  o  . . . r  r  • l V) 1 TXr . or Calcutta; and the laid Criminal Courts werebeing in a lituation to make Peace and W ar, , , ; . . c o- , i , . •, . & -r 1 r 11 a 1 1 c put under the lnlpeaton and controul or thehe cannot even raiie the imallelt body of u , r r . 1. . .  1 • g /  Company s fervants, although oltenubly undertroops, nor hath he the appointment or any u r 3 r T XT . 0 r ,—  ̂ 9 r • • • j  1 r i o  J the name of the Nazim, as appears from theofficers. It is in evidence before the Court on r n . n c T  i c ^  ̂j . *u ■ ■ . following extracts from the plan or the adnu-

a late trnl, that Ra]ah Goordafs Roy received niftratk£  o fJu lli C0Dffi^ ed by the Preil- 
.  , 'n a t u r e  of Dewan to hts houfeho d from L , .  an(, CouJncil.

M r. Flattings, when at the head of the late
Adminiftration, and the fame hath been con- Article I. That in^each diftrift {hall be 
firmed by the prefent Governor General and eftablifhed two Courts of Judicature; one by 
Council. the name of the Mufuflul Sudder Audaule^ or

The late A ft of Parliament, and the Char- Provincial Court of Dewannee, for the cogni- 
1 ter by which the Supreme Court is eft a- zance of Civil Caufes, the other by the name 

blittied, clearly evince, that, in the eyes of of Phoufdance Audaulet, or Court of Phoul- 
the Britiffi Legiflature, the Provinces of Ben- dance, for the trial of all Crimes and Mifde- 
gal, Bahar, and Oriffa, are confidered as a meanors. . t ,, . .
conquered country, in which the Conque- Article IV. That in tjie Fhoufdaacq.Aud- 
ror hath a right to introduce his Law s,'and aulet, the Cauree and I\iufree ot the dtmttt, 
make them obeyed. How can he be called a and two Moulewys, lhall fit to expound the

•Sovereign independent Prince, whofe fubjefts Law, and determine h?« tar the delinquent 
are at liberty to evade his Civil or Criminal (hall be guilty of a breach thereo ; buc uat 
Jurifdiftion, by becoming directly or indirectly the Colkflor lhall alfo. make it his buf.neis^o

T H E  T R I A L  OF  R O Y  R A D A  C H U R N ,  &c. r3

I . ; ‘ '



attend to the proceedings of the Court, fo far 1 7 7 1 ,  the annual ftipend allowed to the faid 
. .  to fee that all neceffary evidences are fum-. Nabob Mubanck ul Dowla was reduced from 
moned and examined; that due weight is the fum of 3 , 181 ,991 .  9 rupees per annum, to 
allowed to their teflimdny - and that the deci- the fum of 1,600,000 rupees per annum. 
fton part is fair and impartial, according to the And laftly, the faid Deponent faith, That 
proofs exhibited in the courfe of the trial; he believes all the above fadts to be publicly 
and that no caufes /hall be heard or tried,'known, as they are particularly fet forth in a 
but in "the open Court regularly affembled. printed book, entitled, “  Reports from the 

Article V. That, in like manner, two Su- “  Committee of the Houfe of Commons.”  
preme Courts of Juftice /hall be eftabliffied '
at the chief Seat of Government, the one (Signed)
under the denomination of the Dewanee Sud- W abrfn  Hastincs.
<kr Audaulet, and the other the Niramut W n  before me> this 
S udder Audaulet. 28 day of June, 1775.

Article VII. That a Chief Officer of Juf- „  T „  
tice, appointed on the part or JN azim, mail
Drefide in the NizamutAudaulet, by the title ascj \T
S D a r r o g a  Audaulet, affided by She Chief G eo ro e  V a s s .Tt a r t .
Cauzee, the Chief Muftee, and three capable This, Deponent maketh oath, and faith, 
Mouluoys; that their duty (hall be to re- That, to the beft o f his knowledge and belief, 
vile all proceedings of the Phoufdance Aud- Mubarick ul Dowla, the prefent Nabob of Ben- 
aulet in capital cafes, by fignifying their ap- gal, is not a Sovereign independent Prince, 
probation or difapprobation thereof, with their nor in a fituation wherein he can or is enti~ 
reafons at large, to prepare the fentence for tied to make war on the Eaft India Company 
the warrant of the Nazim, which lb all be re- or its Settlements. That the faid Mubarick ul 
turned into the MofulTuli, and there carried Dowla does not appoint his own Minifters, 
in execution. That, withrefpeftto this Court, nor perform other Acts of Sovereignty, inde- 
a fimilar controul (hall be lodged in the Preli- pendently, and without the confent o f the 
dent and Council, as is veiled in the Collectors Reprefentatives here o f the Eaft India Com- 
o f the diftrifts; fo that the Company’ s Admi- pany. The faid Deponent further faith, That 
niftration, in char after of the King’s Dewan, the whole military power of this Province o f 
may be fatisfied that the decrees of juflice, on Bengal has been for feveral years pad, and 
which both the welfare and fafety of the now is, folely and entirely under the command 
country fo materially depends, are not injured of the faid Eaft India Company and their Re-° 
or perverted by the* effefts of partiality or prefentatives, without being in the fmalleft 
corruption. degree under the controul or influence of the

And the faid Deponent further faith, That faid Nabob. That the foie management of 
he believes the above to be true extrafts from the revenues of the faid Province has alfo 
the faid plan of adminiftration of juftice, as been for fome time paft, and now is, in the 
entered into the confultations. hands of the Reprefentatives o f the faid Com-

The faid Deponent further faith, That the pany, without the lead participation of the 
management of the Revenues of the faid Pro- Nabob. That a mode for Adminiftration of 
vince of Bengal has for fome years paft been, Juftice both Civil and Criminal to the inha- 
and now is, entirely in the hands of the Eaft bitants of the faid Province was fettled by 
India Company, and their Reprefentatives in the late Prefident and Council, in or about the 
this country, without the fmalleft participa- month of Auguft 1772,  by their own authd*- 
tion of the faid Nabob. And this Deponent rity, without confulting the faid Nabob, or 
further faith, That, in confequence' of orders requiring his concurrence; and that that plan 
from the Court o f Direftors, dated in AprilJ was carried into execution, by which the Civil

Courts
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Courts throughout the Province were put en- Sovereignty: I therefore hope, that he will 
tirely under the Prefidency o f Calcutta, and meet with full proteftion from this Court, and 
the Criminal Courts under the infpeftion and that his Vakeel R a d a  Churn will be allowed 

• controul o f the Company’s fervants, although the right of an Ambaffador. 
the latter were nominally the Courts of the

• t . Chief JuJlice. You are hard preffed, to make
That, in the year 17 7 2 , the faid late PreG- ufe of that argument: the Company will not 

dent and Council did, by their own authority, thank you for Hating the right to be in 
appoint Manee Begum, relift o f the late Mubarick; for, if it is, the exercife of the 
N abob Meer Jaffier, to be guardian of the power muft be an ufurpation in the India Cora- 
prefent Nabob ; and Raja Goordafs, foil of pany; but 1 do not take it to be fo for the 
Maha Raja Nundocoraar, to be Dewan o f the Treaty which you have produced is a furren- 
N abob’shoufehold; and by their own authority der by him of all power into the hands of the 
appointed falaries to the faid Manee Begum Company.
and the faid Raja Goordafs. And the faid In the decifion of this quertion, it will not 
Deponent further faith, That, in confequence be neceffary to enter into the common-place 
of orders from the Court o f Direftors fignified, learning concerning the rights of Ambaffadors, 
he is informed, in their Letter o f the 10th nor in what manner they have been fanftified, 
o f A pril 1 7 7 1 ,  the annual flipend o f . about not only by^the molt polilhed, but even the
3,200 ,000 rupees, agreed to be paid to for- moft barbarous nations. A ll nations, who 
mer Nabobs, and to the prefent Mubarick ul have had intercourfe with others, have held 
Dowla, was reduced to 1,600,000 rupees per their charafters facred; the rights of Ambaf- 
annum. fadors, as far as they relate to the queftiom

The faid Deponent further faith,That, during before us, jus revocandi domian, are clearly 
his reljdence in India, he has never underftood eftablifhed by all the Writers on the fubjeft; 
that a perfon refiding under the denomination nor will it be neceffary to decide, whether the 
o f Vakeel, was . a Public Minifter, entitled to Eart India Company have or have not a right 
the rights o f Ambaffadors5 but conceived fuch to receive Public Minifters, upon whom all 
a perfon to be liable to the local jurifdiftion the rights o f Ambaffadors will attach: they 
of the Courts Civil and Criminal where he re- are authorized to make treaties, war, and- 
fided. peace, with the Country Powers in India. It

(Signed) is moft certainly neceffary, that they fhould:
. Tr receive Agents from thofe Powers, for the

e o r g e  a n s it t a r t . tranfa£);jon 0f their public bufinefs: I do not'
„ t r « 1 abfolutely fay, that it is a confequence, that

day of June, 1775. - thofe Agents mould be put in the fituation of
Foreign Minifters . at European Courts ; nor 

S . C . L e m a i s t r e . would I by any means be underftood to put <u
Tw o other affidavits were fead, one made negative upon it: it is not neceffary in this- 

by M r. Hurft and the other by M r. Lane cafe, and perhaps no cafe may ever arife 
(both Members of the late Council) in wherein it may be neceffary, to determine it. 
exaftly the fame words as that o f Mr. I give no opinion about it; and I defire that 
VanGttart. may be clearly underftood: therefore, how­

ever this cafe may be determined, the dignity,. 
M r. Farrer. There has not been the leaft honor, and powers, o f the Government of 

attempt to prove that the right o f thefe Pro- this Settlement are fafe: they are not affefted 
vinces is not ip the Nabob M ubarick,ul Dow- by it: the Court will always fupport them, 
lah ; his being diverted o f the power is no when they are fairly, openly, and legally 
argument againft his poffeffing the right o f | exercifed. There is enough and enough to

' determine.-
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determine this claim, without entering into the Laws, left the Laws fhould be made the 
that queition. inftrument of defeating Negotiations, which

But though the rights themfelves are clearly might be o f the utmofl confequence to the 
cftabli/hed, it will be proper to confide r the State; otherwife Nations mu ft live in eternal 
■ ■true and fubflantial re a foil that has induced jW"ar, or in infidious Peace, for, if there weie 
that common confcnt of nations, which is not perfons, harbingers of Peace, who could 
called the Jus Gentium, and gives fanflion with'fefety come to the oppofite party to 
to them. One reafon, and a common one propofe Peace, and the terms on which it 
affiSned, is, that they, reprefent the perfon of fliould be held inviolable, though the conten- 
their Prince, and carry his Majefty about ding Powers were each peaceably inclined, 
them; and therefore their perfons' muft be the horrors o f W ar muft continue; and, when 
fee red: this is rather a captivating and daz- they were tired out, an infecure Armiftice 
2ling than a fubflantial reafon; it is a fidion. would take place, $a laft no longer than till 
No nation was more civilized than the Romans; one of the parties haa recovered lliength and 
ho nation (with very few exception^) was Spirits fufficient to renew hoflilities. It is from 
more attentive to the privileges of AmbafTa- the real bufinefs between Nation and Nation, 
dors; yet mere fecrednefs o f perfon did not, inot from any reprefentation of fuppofed Ma- 
among them' protect from juftice: the Veftal hefty,that their rights are fubftantially founded. 
Virgins, the Tribunes of the people, the High !Is Mubarick ul Dowlah, or was he ever, a 
Priefts, the Pontifices maximi (unlefs a dually Prince in a fituation o f tran fading any public 
officiating), and all others, who had nothing'bufinefs of confquence with this Settlement? 
to proted them but the fandity of their per-!Is he, from the evidence before us, capable 
fens, were fubjed to the Courts of Juflice : I o f making W ar and Peace with this Settle-
do not recoiled any claim made Amply on that ment? If not, though there may remain in 
ground, but the exemption claimed by the him a ffiadow of Majefty, I think, no fandity 
Popes for the Romiffi Clergy, perfona enim jof perfon can b.e derived to his Vakeel, which 
quantumvis fa  ntta fold in jus vocatione non vio- 'will be fufficient to give him the rights o f an 
latur. There is another fidion, that Ambaf- AmbafTador: for this reafon I threw out, 
fedors are not confidered as withrn rite terri- when this was before mentioned, what I 
tory of the Prince to which they are lent; thought would be neceffary for the Governor 
this and what I before mentioned are not General and Council to make out, before they 
properly reafons, but.fidions, formed to fatisfy could fupport this claim : I did it, that, if 
the reafonings on the Municipal Laws of the they could not make it out, they might ha*$e ® 
countries to which the AmbaiTadors are fent: an opportunity o f relinquifhing a claim, which 
the true and fubflantial reafon is derived 1 was fully aware muft embarrafs them; they 
from the neceffity of proteding perfons fent have chofen to peril ft in it, and to force the 
on material bufinefs, in which the Public is Court to a determination on a queftion, which 
concerned; it is, ne ab officiofufeepto legationis their Counfel ftates to be Political; and that 
avocentur^ne impedialur legatio, ne prob'd) cant nr "to proted a man, charged (whether properly * 
publico munere fungi; the main great bufinefs, or no, will appear when the lndidment is 
which chiefly operates to gives this right, is, tried) with a confpiracy againft the firft man 
that of making Treaties, more efpecially fuch in this Settlement, the Governor General, 
as concern W ar and Peace, quia pads et feede- Whatever my opinion may be, the Gentle- 
rum funt nuntii et proxenetce, et fine his gentium men of the Council muft have been clearly 
focietas et arnica quies falva effe nequit. Among convinced o f the juftnefs and indilpenfabi- 
Powers capable of making real Treaties, and lity of the claim ; or, in fuch a cafe, I am 
making W ar and Peace, it is absolutely necef- lure, they would not have made it. 
iary that there fhould be intermediate Agents, W e had fa id, it would be neceflary that 
whuie perfons ffiould be proteded even from Jthe Governor General and Council fhould

verify,

n
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aT iMed ty  tl,e o f ' I  >»" Admi.S S fttfeS  :ppSr~ISS3.
indeWndentlv l S  w ir f  ^ 'vere,f %  the Matter, cannot fwear that they do not
t h S ^ dZ ^ Ut. thC Cr r° ul of tbink the Savant liable to the controul of the
tions treater!^  s, P - ^  S "• a11. neSot,a- Government of this Prefidency.
keel i a Pohlir M T *  f \ J- S\ Ut a Va'  , What has been Produced in fupport of this Keel is aiubhclM m ifter, having the jus reva- claim? A  paper, which is called A  Treaty
andi domum: that the Governor General and with Mubarick a Sunnud of Meer Jaffie^

S  nv2 lVe aWT  trCr d Churn A1Jy Kaun’ rhe Affidavit of Roy Rada Churn"
as inverted with the rights which they claim and two Letters to the Governor General,
tor him, and that they do. not confider him which are called the Credentials, 
lubject to the order and controul of this Go- The Treaty indeed, by its ffi-ft Article, no- 
veinment: no fuch affidavit has been made; 1 mindly guarantees to him the poffeffion of 
mould have been much furprized if there had ;| Bengal, Bahar, and Oriffa ; but, by the other 
put the realon given for want of the affidavits! Articles, all power whatfoever is taken from 
is not the true one; namely, That the facts him, nothing is left him but an empty title, 
would not bear them out: the reafon given|and 3 ,18 1 ,9 9 1 rupees annually; even that 

v by their Counfel is, That the Governor Ge-lfum  is appropriated, all but 16 lack, to his 
neral and Council could not make the affida- j houfehold; and it is exprefly ftipulated, that 
vits required, becaufe they are a Corpora-j the remaining 1 6 lack (hould be expended, by 
tl,on* # > the officer named in the Treaty, in maintaining

I cannot imagine from what confufion of the Peons, &c, of his Svvarry. He is thereby 
ideas this notion has fpruug; in fact, they are obliged to keep up the enfigns of power, and 
no Corporation; if  they were, could it enter maintain the outfide pomp of a Prince, by 
into the mind of any man, that it was fufficient the very inftrument, which is an actual fur- 
for a Corporation merely to make a claim, render of his Sovereignty, if he was, which 
without fupporting it by proof? to fling a is not in proof, ever poffeffed of it. 
claim on paper into Court, and leave it to It was ftated, by the Counfel at the Bar, to 
eftablifla itfelf without evidence? Though a induce the Court to believe that the military 
body corporate, qua corporate, cannot make ah power, that fubftantial evidence of Royalty, 
affidavit,each individual that compofes it can: was in his hands, that he kept an army on 

# in faff, the Governor General has : the in- foot: what does it turn out to be? a mere 
dividuals, if  the facts would have borne them Swarry, to keep up oftenfible pomp, and make 
out, might, and I have no doubt would, have him appear what he is not. It is a miferable 
made the affidavits, efpecially as the Court attempt to impofe on the Court. As to the 
had informed them, if  they did not, the ne- Sunnud of Meer Jaffier, that is produced, to 
gative o f the queftion put would be taken fhew that Mubarick has a right tô  a mint, 
pro confejfo. They have not even fworn, or another mark of Sovereignty: does it prove 
given any evidence, that they themfelves do it? It proves that theEaft India Company had 
now, or ever have treated Roy Rada Chum as a exercifed the right o f coining money.; ana 
perfon inverted with the rights they claim for what they poffeffed before, is confirmed to 
him from us, nor that they do not confider them by the grant of Jaffier. By w at au- 
him fubjeirt to the order and controul 6f this thority the Eaft India Company claime i t ^  
^Government: is he then to be treated as a before this grant, does not appear, it _oe§ ‘ 
Public Minifter, merely to elude juftice, and appear they exercifed it: but riioug eer 
in no other refpeft to be fo treated? I have! Jaffier might be a Sovereign, how is ' ti aric 
little doubt but that this man was originallyrconnefted^with him. no title has - j^ p ted  - ^
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to be derived, nor any fucceffion Afiatic; I will not fuppofe that any influence
p3 '  Rom Jaffier to Mubarick. Is there other than theperfonal intereft o f Roy Rada
any proof that Mubarick ever coined money Churn was exerted over the Nabob on this
in his own name ? He certainly did not. A ll occafion. „  ,
his is mere color, and fo faint that I can W e next come to Roy Rada Churn s affi-

W dlv induce myfelf to think that the Gen- davit. I think the perfon that drew, that
tlemen who made the application do them- affidavit, and fuffered him to (wear to it, is 
felves believe what they are defirous the moft highly to be cenfured. What is he made
Court fhonld believe. The Credentials, as to fwear? That he now is, and for two
they are called, inftead of fupporting the years and upwards laft: part has been, refident 
claim prove exprefsly that Roy Rada Churn in Calcutta, as the Public Minifter, 01 Vakeel, 
was not Vakeel to Mubarick, either at the of Mubarick, except for about the fpace of 
time the offence charged in the Indidlmenr ten days in May laft* and in no other cha-
was committed, or at the time that the mat- rafter; and that he has been charged with
ter was inquired into, and Roy Rada Chprn conducting and tranfafting his affairs, with 
bound over by the Judges to appear at the the Eaft India Company and others, at this 
prefent Seffions. He was appointed two years Prefidency. That there is not any other 
ao-o*, on the 22d May 1775 , the laft Letter Public Minifter, or Vakeel, o f the Nabob Mu* 
was read by the Governor from IVIubarick ul beripk refident in Calcutta, as he verily be* 
Dowlah, informing him, that Roy Rada Churn lieves. This laft is, I have no doubt, per* 
had been a very idle perfon, and that he con- feftly true, and he might, I dare fay, have 
fidered his having a Vakeel as a ufelefs ex- fafely added, nor any other place whatioeveiv 
pence, and therefore he had difmiffed him The Letters to the Governor General are 
from the firft of Suffer, which correfponds not credentially for tranfafting bufinefs with 
with the fecond of April. The fa<ft com- the Eaft India Company and others; but 
plained of, and the binding over, was all in what I chiefly blame is, the fuffering him to 
April. .He is reinftated the 30th of May. fwear, what is not true, that he refided as a 
The grounds on which he was difeharged Public Minifter, or Vakeel, when he was not 
are worthy obfervation; I cannot help feel- Vakeel. It is laid he did- not know till thefe 
ing for Mubarick, who, by that Letter,Teems Letters were {hewn him that he had been dit­
to feel his own fituation ; he thinks the hav- miffed ; why then did he make an exception 
ing a Vakeel, or, as he is affefted to be called, to ten days in May ? He muft have known, 
a Public Minifter, was needlefs, and the ex- it when he fwore the afEdavit; if he did not,, 
pence unprofitable. So it w as: had he any the affidavit might have been amended ; if. * 
affairs of confequence to negotiate here ? it was not amended, at leaft it fhould have, 
could he make W ar or Peace ? W hy was been explained to the Court when the afii- 
Rada'Churn difmiffed? Becaufe he was an davit was read. I called upon the Counfel^ 
idle perfon, and becaufe he was chargeable to when the Letter was read, to acquaint the 
the N abob; he is difeharged for a good Court, whether the fafts charged on Roy 
caufe. Is any reafon given why he was re- Rada Churn, and. the inquiry into them, was* 
lfored ? Had he become lefs idle t  Had. Mu- during the time of his difmiffion ; but could 
barick more bufinefs to tranfaft ? The faving receive no anfwer. He that drew the affi- 
his falary could not be great during, his {hart davit muft have knownit. He fwears, he was- 
difmiffion ; was the Nabob grown richer? Why in the char after o f Vakeel for two years laft 
then was. he reftored ?■ The true reafon is too paft, except ten days in May. I f  that had 
obvious. Roy Rada Churn had got into a been true, he would have, continued Vakeel^ 
difagreeable fcrape. Mubarick was defirous till after the time he was bound over. He 
of protecting Him from it. Though the idea thought, or rather thofe who drew the affi- 
of protecting iu this manner is by mo means davit thought, the time material. It is plain

this
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this could not be accident. He is either made The Governor General fwears, that -the 
to fwear what is not true, or to prevaricate late Adminiftration, by their own authority, 
moft abominably. * _ ■ appointed Monur Begum to be Guardian to

But there is another circumftance in which the Nabob, and Rajah Gondafs Dewan of 
. the drawer of the affidavit is moft highly his houfehold, allowing each of them large 

culpable. He is made to fwear to what he falaries: That the fame Adminiftration plan- 
could not underftand, the term Public Mi- ned and conftrudfed Criminal and Civil Courts 
nifter; it conveys ideas that are hardly to b e ' by their own authority, without confulting 
explained to the Natives of this Country: the Nabob, or requiring his concurrence ; the 
and for what purpofe? Could it be expedted Civil were made dependent on the Prefidency 

. that the Court would only attend to the found folely ; and the Criminal, though held in the 
of words ? Could it be thought he was nearer name of the Nabob, are, in fact, under the 
proving himfelf a Public Minifter on whom controul and infpection of the Servants of the 
the right of Ambaffadors would attach, by Eaft India Company: That the management
tiling thefe words, than if he had fimply of rjie revenue (the finews of war) are intirely 
fworn himfelf Vakeel ? There is no affidavit in the hand of the Eaft India Company and 
of the place of refidence of Roy Rada Churn their Reprefent itives, without the fmalleft 
before his firft appointment. But it turns participation of the Nabob: That, in con-
out from this affidavit, that he was refidenf fequence of orders from the Court of Direc- 
here before his laft appointment, and there- tors, the annual ftipend, which was allowed 
fore fubjedl to the Englifli laws. If fo, he is him, was reduced from 3 ,18 1,9 9 1 rupees, 
anfwerable here; for an Ambaffiador, any to 1,600,000, rupees.
more than another perfon, is not to commit By what authority did they appoint a Guar-
crimes with impunity. He will be fubjedl to dian? The Company had no natural connec-
that Tribunal to which he was fubjedl before tion by blood with Mubarick. By what au-
he was inverted with his Public Charadter. thority did they appoint the Dewan of his
I f  he was a fubjedt of the Prince who fent Houfehold, and allow them large falaries ?
him, he will be fubjedl to his Courts of L a w ; It could only be done in their Political Ca-
i f  he was anfwerable to the Courts of Law of pacity, by that authority which they exercifed
■ another Prince, he muft be called upon in over him. i f  the Treaty given in evidence
that Prince’s Courts; if he was before fubjedl was in the nature of a real Treaty with a
to the State in which he was employed, which Sovereign Prince, where there were mutual
is the prefent cafe, he will ftill be amenable agreements and confiderations, how came this

• '’ to the Courts. For if  before the Ambaffy he Stipend, for fo it is called, (a word hardly ap-
was not fubjedl to the Prince in whofe em- plicable to an independent Sovereign Prince)
cloy he is the foie aft o f making him Am--to be reduced to 1,600,000, rupees? By
balfador will not make him liable to his what authority did they eredl the Courts of
Courts’ except, perhaps, in matters which Law, and exercife the Adminiftration or
relate to his Ambaffy. There are differences Juftice, without any communication with him .
of opinions on this fubjedl, as I ftated the Had he himfelf any idea he was a Sovereign.
other day; but I take the reafon and weight Does he complain of the redudhon 0
of authorities to be on this fide. I  then ftated Stipend, or the infringement of Treaties. No :
whv Wicquefort was a ftrenuous oppofer of He confiders himfelf, what he rea y is, a 0-
this  ̂dodlrlne. Bynkerfhoeck is firm in this lately dependent on the Company, and was 
this doctrine, cy  willing t0 acCept any pittance they would

° PThus it ftands on the evidence in Tupport allow him for his 'thaf  ffie'Ad-

but when the affidavits on the other fide are S *
read, that colour immediately vani&es. of the Company 7 pro.
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protection of bis Subjects is dilivered up to have a tight to execute Sovereignty here, 
die Company; and he well knew, whoever and chufe fo far to poftpone their own d.g- 
is held up as the oftenfible Prince, the A d - mty, as to fet up another perfon, through 
mit iftration of Juftice mult be in the hands whom, and in whofe- name, they w,U exercfe 
o f thofe who have power to inforce it. the power, I don t know that any tore.gn

The-Governor General, who I fuppofe had State has any right to complain, nor. do I
d licac , t0 ftate more than what has been think this determination can afteCt the legality 

before made public, clofes his affidavit with of the Courts eftablifhed in this Province, 
fnvine all that he has depofed to he believes All that is determined in this cafe is, that 
to bepublickly known, as it is particularly Mubarick ul Dowlah, who has furrendered 
in  forth in the Reports of the Committee of his power intirely into the hands o f the 
the Iloufe of Commons. I knew it was Engliffi Company, cannot himfelf, nor can 
there and therefore was furprized at this the Eaft India Company in his name, proteft 
application. It is fo notorious that every delinquents, fubjeCt to the junfdiChon of this 
body in the Settlement mull have known^it • Court, from being pumfhed by the Laws o f 
when I fay every body, I mean with an ex- Great Britain ; that the Agents _ of the Eaft 
ception to the Gentlemen who apply to the India Company cannot, by making him the 
Court. The only reafon I can give for their inftrument, do indirectly what they would not 
applying is, the little time they have been in do direCtly. It cannot be a political queftion 
the Country, and the want of knowledge of of a ferious nature in the opinion-of the Gen- 
former tranfadtions of Government, and the tlemen making the claim; had it been fo, 
cuftoms and manners of the people. I wiffied they would not have prefled a decifion on it 
the Governor General had pointed out the in this very unfavourable cafe. It is no right 
paflage to them; for, if he had, it ought, and claimed by the Nabob j both he and his Va-.
I have therefore no doubt would, have pie* keel, as the Vakeel as to himfelf candidly 

. vented this application. confefled in his. memorial, were wholly ig-
The Governor General’s affidavit proves the norant of the rights and privileges to which 

revenues, their collection, the whole admini* he was intiiled by the Laws of Great Biitain , 
ftration of juftice, both Civil and Criminal, as an Ambaflador, or Public Minifter: I f  any 
and even in appointing the Officers of his houfe- material confequences follow from it, the 
hold, to be in the Company. Mr, Lane, Gentlemen fhould have been backward in 
Mr. Hurft, and Mr. Vanfittart, all Members forcing us to a decifion ; for we muft givefuch 
of the late Council depofe, that the Military an opinion, whatever may be the confe- 
is fo likewife. They fwear that the whole quences, as we think founded in Law. f  
Military Power of the Province is, and has They were to judge o f the Politics. They 
been for feveral years, intirely under the have thought it right to have it determined, 
controul of the Company and their Repre- The evidence is before us; we cannot deter- 
fentatives. They fwear that he performs noaCts mine contrary to it. W e muft judge by Laws,, 
o f Sovereignty independent of and without not by Politics. Perhaps this queftion might „ 
the confent of the Reprefentatives of the have been determined merely on the dates 
Eaft India Company. Nothing therefore is of the Letters to the Governor General; but 
left to Mubarick but an empty title. Thigjhas as the Counfel have made the other a ferious 
been faid to be a political queftion, and that queftion, I fliould not have thought that I 
the determination of it againft the right of the had done my duty if I had not given a full 
Vakeel might be productive of quarrels with and determinatle opinion upon it. I fliould 
foreign Nations, efpecially the French. I have been forry if I had left it doubtful 
think it can have no fuch effeCt, for whether whether the empty name of a Nabob could 
the Territorial Acquifitions belong to the be thruft between a delinquent and the laws, 
Crown or the Compauy, if either of them fo as effectually to proteCt him from the hands

o f
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of Jaftice. Had this been allowed, I don’t fter could be received in would be (which is 
know how far it might have been carried; the carrying it a great way) that of the Provin- 
rights claimed extend not only to the Am- cial or Municipal Ambaffadors fent to Rome 

■ baffador, but his family and fervants* It is in the time of the Roman Empire. They 
proper that the Public fhould be relieved were confidered rather as Mandatarii or Pro- 
from the anxiety they mu ft neceffarily be curatores, and were amenable to the Courts 
under from fuch a doubt. It is proper Mu- at Rome for offences committed during their 
barick fhould be informed of our opinion, Ambaffy. This Country does appear to me 
that he may not make the fame attempt in in fome meafure in the nature of a Province, 
future. I would obferve, what has been before ob-

The Rights of Ambaffadors, as we have ferved by feveral Authors, that the diftincUon 
been treating of them, are founded on jus of Ambaffadors from Foreign Princes and 
gentium in Europe ; it is by no means clear thofe Minifters who were fent from the Pro- 
that prccifely the fame ideas rule in this vinces and Towns fubjeft to the Empire, 
great peninfula of Hindoflan, where the clears  ̂up that which otherwife in the Roman 
laws, cuftoms, and manners of the Nations, Law feems contrary to xhe jus gentium, as now 
that inhabit it, are as diffonant from thofe under flood, concerninp* the rights of Ambaf-/ # ? o o
of the Nations in Europe as the country is fadors; whatever is laid derogatory to thofe 
far removed from it. W e know by biftory rights is where they are treating of Provin- 
that the charafter of an Ambaffador of a cer- vincial Municipal Minifters. Of the rights, 
tain rank is held facred here, or perhaps of thofe of Foreign Powers no Nation enter- 
more fo than in any part o f' Europe, but tained, in general, an higher reverence, or 
does it follow, though in Europe the rights afted with greater delicacy. In the infancy 
of Ambaffadors are given to all Public Mi- of Rome, when the Ambaffadors of Tarquin 
nifters of whatfoever denomination, that it is confpired with fome of the Roman citizens ;to 
fo in this Country? Has there been any reftore him, Livy fays, 1. ii. c. 24. Prodito- 
proof of it ? There is to the contrary. Mr. ribus extemplo in vincula conjuftis de legates fad- 
Plurfl, Mr.Lane, and Mr. Vanfittart, who has lulum addubitatum eft, et quanquam viri funt 
refided long in this Country, fwear, they commiftjfte at boftium loco effint, jus tamen Gen- 
uever underflood that a perfon refiding under tium valuit. They a died exactly conforma- 
the denomination of a Vakeel was a Public bly to the prefent idea of the Law of Na-
Minifter, intitled to the rights of an Ambaf- dons. ■ /  |  -
fadorI but that they conceive fuch a perfon I am glad I am reminded of the applica- 

'  Kable' to the local Jurifdiftion of the Courts tion for punifhment; it would not have ef- 
Civil and Criminal where he refides. What caped me, I was on the point of coming  ̂ to it: 
is there to oppofe this ? In Europe there was it was demanded in the Memorial, in the 
a time that thefe were at fome Courts denied Letter from Council, and is again repeated 
to Agents and Refidents. As I have been in- from the Counfel at the Bar. 1 hat is indeed 
formed that one of the Gentlemen of the treating this affair with a very high hand-
Council has ferved in the character of a Public In my opinion, the application is indecent and
Minifter, I will not fuppofejhim not acquainted unjuft. Who are the perfons to be pu- 
with the Law of Nations on the fubjeft. nilhed ? The profecutor and thofe who ler-

I do not go fo far as to fay that Mubarick ved the procefs. W ho is the profeemor. 
ul Dowlah might not have a Public Minifter The Governor General, the firft Magiftrace 
here-but I think the Minifter, in the.higheft in this Settlement. 1 lie very perfons who 
chat-after which he could fend him, cannot apply to have him punilhed very well know 
have any pretenfions to the full rights of an no pundhment can be infl.fted upon him by 
Ambaffador fent from a Sovereign indepen- the Court.* The calling for it rs indecent to 
dent Prince. T he higheft light fuch Mini- [the bigheft degree. A  pumlhment can only,
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be inflifted for a crime; it mud be known (Pope, to indulge himfelf in the ianocent 
both to the Couiifel .and his Clients, that, , recreation of the dews, 
except of treafon and felony, the Governor The more I confider it, the more I am 
General and Council are exempt from the fcandalized at the affidavit made by Roy 
Criminal Judice of this Court. Thofe who Rada Churn ; I do not fo much blame him 
ferved the procefs did it by exprefs.command as the drawer: it is fcandalous, it is flagitious, 
of all the Judges.; is it decent to apply to have to let him fwear to his being a Public Minif- 
them punidied ? Is it not like taking out a ter, an idea which is almod impoffible to be 
procefs in a Civil fuit, which is the voluntary explained to him; to make him fwear to what 
aft of the party, under no coercion of any is not true, as it turns out, that he was a 
order from a Magi dr ate ? Is it juft that any Public Minider, or Vakeel, for upwards of 
one fliould be punifhed on this.account? The two years, with the exception only of ten 
Vakeel fays, he was ignorant o f the rights j days; thofe who made that exception for 
now claimed for him when he was bound him mud have known he was without that 
over. He had. no apprehenfion that he had char after for a longer time. I f  I again fee 
fuch rights; could it be-fuppofed that thofe, an affidavit o f this nature, fworn by a native, 
who ferved the fummons, and afted under the we will inquire who drew the affidavit, and 
order of the -Judges, could be apprized of the Court will animadvert mod feverely upon 
thole-.rights that Roy Rada Churn himfelf was him: it is not to be indured, that the con- 
ignorant of? On what idea o f judice then, can fciences of the natives, fwearingin a Foreign 
a demand be made to punifh innocent men, language, fliould be thus enf&ared. 
afting exprefsly under the order of all the 1 confider this to be an attempt of Mubarick 
Judges, for violating rights which they never (for I defire it to be underdood clearly that I 
heard of, and which in faft do not exid? But, do not fuppofe any influence exerted over him 
was it a cafe for punifhment, 1 fhould be of in this cafe), to fee how far the Court would 
opinion, that a punifliment fliould be devifed differ him to interpofe himfelf between Cri- 
iimilar to that inflifted at Naples on one of minals and Judice; an attempt the more bold, 
the principal officers of an AmbaJT^dor from as the party, intended to be fcreened, was 
.an Italian Prince; it was the Pope’s Nuncio, aftually under profecution before the writing 
His Reverence had been found, by the officers the pretended Letters o f Credence, 
ef the Police, in a Public Brothel; they bur- M r. Judice Chambers. I  agree with my 
ried him away to the Magidrates; who de- Lord Chief Judice in opinion, that Roy Rada 
dared, that the fanftity o f his charafter ex- Churn is not entitled to exemption from this 
empted him from their jurifdiftion : the Reve- profecution, and that the Indiftment ought? • 
rend Father complained to his Reverend Ex- not to bequafhed; though, in delivering the 
cellence, who complained to the Viceroy, reafons of my opinion, I may not, perhaps,
The Viceroy was incenfed at the indignity exprefly and entirely aflent to all the politions 
which had been put on fo high an officer of from which his Lordfhip has deduced that 
the Nuncio; and refolved to punifh it with all conclufion.
the feverity due to fo grofs an outrage on the In confidering this fubjeft, I  fhall nearly * 
Law of Nations. He condemned the. officers follow the method obferved by the Advo- 
of the Police to this infamous punifhment; cate who made this motion on the part o f 
that they fliould be carried through all the the India Company; and fhall fhortly exa- 
markets, ftreets, and public places in the city, mine, ift, The right of the India Company to 
with this fcandalous label on their backs; .receive Ambafladors; 2dly, The privileges o f 
Thefe men are expofed to fhame, becaufe they Ambafladors fo received; and, 3dly, W he- 
would not fuffer the Reverend Father, Firft ther, in faft, Roy Rada Churn is now, ana 
Minifler and Confident o f his Reverend Ex- was at the time when the offence was com- 
.cellency, the Nuncio of our Holy Father the mitted,
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A ^ b ^ ad lfr inhvft£d Whh Ch^ f  ̂  ° F GreaC Bri[ain’ and under fanffion of his So-
b“ "  d“ 'y 2 “ y T 1 ' * * > k  public dia-

a ast£sSs cTrr hN i -  Ind“ i 8  r^®2ssftt2£
believe be denieT and f e *  % f *  1 by the Klng Hirafelf« ™ d ^ay there-
W  Chief Tnft re & Z  ? S fore e*peft from the King’s Court the immu-
w  d a v> - that the n ght of making mties due to that character.
W ar and Peace is the chief ground of fend- I have already faid, that the firft great 1m- 
2 f  Ambaffadors. That Law, munity of an Ambaffador, the fecurify of his
f e r u ^ f 1 the.P erf° n ? f an Ambaffador is life, depends on natural law univerfally ob- 
S 6 ? *  umverfaMy l̂ ewcd, ferved; and it may not be improper Ja d d ,
S 6 r nf w 1Verf  reafo,n, bas demonftrated, that it is obferved by Mahometan Princes, 
that of War there could be no end, unlefs even towards Chriftian enemies, not merely 
feme man might fafely propound the terms of by imitation, but as a religious and moral 
Peace; and that a ceffation of hofttlities, pro-1 duty, qua fme peccato conimitti nequeunt, I 
duced by mere laflitude, could not long con- fay this on the credit of Relandus, in his 
tinue, unlefs an Ambaffador might fafely offer Treatife, de jure militari Mohammedanerum 
conditions for its continuance. The power, contra Chrijlianos helium gerentium; but I 
therefore, of receiving Ambaffadors, does not mention it rather as matter df curiofity, tham 
appear to me to be fuch an incident to the of importance to the queftion before us; be- 
right of making W ar and Peace, as may or caufe he fays nothing of other privileges 
may not accompany its fubjeft: it leems rather that pafs beyond perfonal fecurity; and alfo,-' 
to be an effential property, without which the becaufe I take it to be clear, that in England 
fubjeft cannot exift. Without fuch power, the Ambaffador of the moll inconfiderable 
it would not be a right of making W ar and Mahometan State is entitled to the fame ex- 
Peace, but a right o f making W ar without emption from Civil and Criminal Jurifdiftion, 
poflibility of end; a right, which every found which is allowed to the Minifter of the moft 
moralift will allow, that man can neither pof- powerful Prince in Chriftendom. 
fefs nor confer. 3. It is of more importance, in the prefent ■

Many inftances might be given of Viceroys cafe, to enquire what the fafts are on which 
and Generals, who, by virtue of a delegated Roy Rada Churn founds his claim to be ex­
power to make W ar, have fent and received empt from profecution. He hates himfelf“ to 
Ambaffadors,- In the prefent cafe, as the have- been for above two years J *  Vakeel,

• power of makingWar, delegated by the Crown or Publiek Minifter, of Mubarickul Dowlah, 
to the Eaft India Company, is comprized to Nabob of Bengal, &c. and charged with the 
the Eaft Indies, their reception of Ambaffa- conducing and tran faffing his affairs and con­
dors mull, 1 conceive, have the fame limits; cerns- with;-the Honourable Eaft India Com- 
and an Ambaffador to the Eaft India Company pany and others, at the Prefidency of Fort 
may be received in this Settlement by the William,”  This-is by no means a clear and 

* Company’s Reprefeutatives the Governor and fufficient defcription- of an Ambaffador; and 
Council. it is certain, that ourddeas of an Ambaffador

2. The privileges and exemptions of Am- are not neceffarily comprized in the term- 
bafladors fo received muft, I-conceive, be Vakeel, which generally means no more than 
the fame, which they might lawfully claim if Agent, and is frequently applied to very low 
they had been received in England by the people, employed by private men in the ma- 
King Himfelf. The Eaft India Company can nagement of their affairs. It is true, that if 
neither wage W ar, nor receive an Ambaffador, he be really a Public Meffenger fent by a So* 
by any intrinlick authority of its own; it vereign, with authority to reprefent his Pep- 
does both by the authority of the King of fen to a Foreign Power, he muft be imitled

to
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to the legal privileges and exemptions of an ever Cnee; and, to avoid the neceffity of de- 
Ambaffador, by whafoever title or denomina- termining it for the future, both the States of 
tion he is diitinguiCied. But know that the Holland and the Breach Court have refolved, 
term Elchey is as much appropriated to that they will not hereafter receive a fubjeft 
the office among the Mahometans, as Ambaf- of their own as an Ambaffador. But had Wic- 
fador is in Europe; and it has not been quefort’s offence been committed, and the 
proved, that a Public Minifter, either o f the profecutron againft him been commenced, 
firft or fecond order, is ever called a Vakeel: before the Duke of Lunenbourg made him 
Neither, if proved, would it in any degree his Minifter, I believe no one would have 
avail Roy Rada Churn, who appears, on ex a- dreamed that this new character could flop 
mination, not to have been in faft employed the courfe of juftice, and exempt him from 
by Mubarick ul Dowlah, either at the time punifhment.
when the offence with which be is charged Being, for this reafon, clearly o f opinion, 
is fworn to have been committed, or at the that the Indictment againft Roy Rada Churn 
time when the enquiry into it was fet on,foot, ought not to be quafhed : I think it unne- 
The Nabob fays, in one of his Letters now ceffary to determine, whether the Nabob Mu- 
given in evidence, that he had di(miffed Roy barick ul Dowlah is a Sovereign independent 
Rada Churn from the firft of Suffer, that is, Prince, who can give to his meflenger the 
•from the fecond of April lad ; and the fub- privileges and immunities of an Ambaffador. 
fequent Letter replacing him was not re- W ere there no objeftion to his Sovereignty 
ceived by the Governor General or Conn- and independence but his nominal fubordina- 
cil till the 30th of M ay ; during which inter- tion to the Mogul, I fhould not perhaps heft- 
val both thefe events happened: this, in my tate to fay, that if  he and his anceftors, Sub- 
opinion, entirely puts an end to his claim of ahdars o f Bengal, have exercifed the power 
•exemption ;  for furely no one will fay, that of making Peace and W ar, they have as good 
-his fecond appointment as Vakeel ought to a right to receive AmbalFadors as the Princes 
put a flop to a profecution already commenced, and Free Towns in Germany, which owe a 
for an offence committed while he reGded here nominal obedience to the Emperor and Laws 
as a private man. of the Em pire; but the difficulty which I feel

In the laft century, Wicquefort, a native of is greater in itfelf, and more perplexing on 
Amfterdam, who had an employment with a account of its confeqnences: on the one hand, 
falary under the States General, was appointed jit appears by a very lolemn Treaty, very lately 
by the Duke of Lunenbourg to be hi-s ReG- executed, the Englifh India Company have 
.dent at the Hague: while he remained there guaranteed to the Nabob the poffeffion of the? 
in that capacity, he was tried by the Court of three Provinces of Bengal, Bahar, and Oriffa, 
Holland, for revealing, by letter, fome fecrets with the Title o f Subahdar : on the other hand,
-of the Republick, which it was his duty to it is manifeft, partly from the depoGtions o f 
have concealed, and was condemned to perpe- the Governor General, and other Gentlemen, 
tual imprifonment and forfeiture o f goods, that he has no military force, no revenue ex- , 
O f this treatment, as of a violation of the Law cept a penGon from the Company, and no 
-of Nations, he complains in a Work which {hare in the diftribution of Juftice throughout 
he publifhed foon after While thofe, who the Country, except a nominal fuperinten- 
defended the deciGon of the Dutch Court o f dence over the Criminal Courts.
Juftice, infilled, that if a native, or fettled In this ftate o f things (the caufe before me 
an. abitant of any country, is appointed by a not calling for fuch determination) I (hould 

oreign Prince to be his Ambaffador in that not think myfelf obliged, whatever might fee 
4Spuntry, e continues fubjeft to the fame jurif- my private opinion, unneceffarily to decide, 
™ . on as ° eA°re 5 this has been>° among the that the King my Matter is not Sovereign o f 
W n t ^ o  Natural Law, a difputedxqueftion' thefe Provinces * and to decide that he is, I

would
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would wifh likewife to avoid, becaufe the Par- A Charter was therefore''applied for and 
hament feems cautionfly to have avoided it, granted for that purpofe PP ’ d
by founding the jurifdiffion of this Court, When they were inclinable to conclude a 
over thofe who do not refide in Calcutta or Treaty of Peace, they had conliderable doubts 
the mfpnor Faftones, on perfonal not on local how far they could give up any forts or 
fubje&ion; and becaufe fuch a deafion ought places, the Sovereignty of which was vetted in 
engage us in quarrels with the French and the Crown. Application was made for a 
other European natoins who have poffeffions Charter to this purpofe; which thev likewife 
m Bengal. obtained.

Mr., jnflice Lemaijlre. I defire to teflify my Surely the having the property in plunder 
acquiescence to every part of my Lord Chief and the right of furrendering forts and places 
Juftice s learned and ingenious argument; and taken by their forces, are as neceffary incidents 
defire to be underftood as giving no precife-to* a right of making Peace and War, as the re­
opinion as to the queftion, whether or no the ceivigg Ambaffadors; and if the King’s Law 
Ea(l India Company can or cannot fend and Officers doubted as to thefe points, and did 
receive Ambafladors, or Public Minifters, not confider them as incidental to the power 
upon whom the rights o f Ambaffadors or Pub- granted by former Charters, I think the pre- 
lie Minifters (as acknowledged in Europe) will font matter full as doubtful and deferving of 
attach. confideration.

Though I am very far from acceding to With regard to .this phantom, this man of 
my Brother Chambers’s opinion, that fuch draw, Mubarick ul Uowlah; it isan infult to 
right aftually does exift in the Eaft India the underftanding of the Court, to have made 
Company, as. a neceffary incident to that li- the queftion of his Sovereignty, 
mited right of making Peace and W ar, which But it came from the Governor General and 
they have, from his Majefty’s Charter, for the Council: I have too much refpeft for that 
proteflion of their Settlements; I think it a Body, to treat it ludicroufly; and I confefs I 
queftion of great confequence, which will confider it ferioufly.
admit o f a confiderable degree of doubt, and Mr. Juftice Hyde. I am very happy to find
ought not to be determined without argument, I agree in opinion with my three Brethren, 
and upon mature deliberation. that Roy Rada Churn is not intitled to the

Every definition of an Ambaffador, or Pub- privilege claimed for him by the Governor 
lie Minifter, that I have met with in the book, General and Council, not claimed by him. 
is a perfon fent from one Sovereign to ano- My Brother Chambers feems to differ, but 
ther, with authority, by Letters of Credence, does not really differ, from my Lord Chief 
to treat upon affairs of State. I cannot admit Juftice; for no opinion was declared by his 
any right o f Sovereignty in the Eaft India Lordffiip on the right of the Company to re- 
Company: in every Charter granted to them ceive Ambaffadors. *

* by the Crown, there is an exprefs refervation My Brother Chambers has declared his 
o f Sovereignty to the King of Great Britain, opinion, that the Company have fuch a right.
His Heirs and Succeffors ; and I am inclined to I defire to be underftood to give no opinion 
think, by fome of the late Charters granted to on the fubjeft, whether they can or cannot 
the Eaft India Company, that their rights un- receive Ambaffadors, who will be entitled to 
der former Charters have been very ftriftly all the privileges annexed to that charac er. 
conftrued, and that no more jura regalia have It is unneceffary to decide the queltion in t is 
bc?en allowed them, beyond what exprefly ap- cafe, becaufe'the fituation of the perlon en 
pears upon the face of fitch grant. . , ing is fuffiqent for the dec.fton: but whenever
1 When the Eaft India Company had taken it does arife, it will be a queftion of gre^t 
plunder, it was doubted if that fu n d er could confequence, and will deferve much < ^ era‘  
be vetted in them, without the King’s Grant, tion ; the fafety of this town may depend o

4 E
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C  I f  it (hall be underftood that Public Minif- tion of the perfon fending him is not: fucfr 
ters with the Taft retinue which the cuftom as will enable him to confer the charafter of 
of this country requires to attend them, are Ambaffador. 
exempt from any legal reftraim, it may be
attended with great inconvenience; even the J U L Y  otn, 1775- |
poffeffion of the town may be hazarded. Prefent all the Judges.

The fubftantial reafon for the privileges of . ,
Ambaffadors is, that perfons may with fafety The Chief Juftice communicated to the 
come to treat of Peace or W ar; but it does i Court the following Letter, which he had 
not appear to me neceffary for that purpofe, received from the Governor General and 
that they (hould be exempt from all legal re- Council, inclofing a copy of a Letter from 
ftraint. When the queftion comes before us, the Nabob Mubarick ul Dowlah. 
it may be neceffary to be informed, and to
confider, what rights are underftood ip tWs To the Hon." Sir E l i ja h  Impey Knight,, 
country, in Hindoftan, to be conferred on plOEERT C hambers , ' 1
Ambaffadors; and whether the cuftoms of t is S tephen Ctesar L e m a i s t r e , >Efqrsv
country do not make a diftmftion in the cle- J ohn Hyde
gree of the perfon fent, giving to one ftyled ,  d J q{ ^  s  ’ me Court 0f  Judicature.
Elchee, privileges which are not given to a J  5

I j  v  M; Honourable Sirs,
By the Treaty which has been read, it ap- # .

pears, Mubarick ul Dowlah deprives himfelf W e beg leave to tranfmit, for your infor- 
of the great enfigns of Sovereignty, the right {nation, the tranflation o f a Letter, which we 
to proteft his own lu.bj.efts: he declares that have juft received from the Nabob Mubarick 
flhall be done b.y the Company. ul D ow lah; from which it will appear that

The Aft o f Parliament does not confider he looks upon himfelf as Soubah of thefe Pro- 
him as a Sovereign Prince; the jurifdiftion vinces, and Roy Rada Churn to be his Va^ 
of this Court extends aver all his dominions, keel: we requeft that you will be pleafed to 
to fuch perfons who are fervants of the Com- inform us in what light we are to confider 
pany or of any Britifti fubjeft, and to every thofe declarations, which we underftand have 
one of his fubjefts who choofes to fubmit been made from the Bench, publickly deny- 
himfelf to our jurifdiftion and exempt himfelf ing the Sovereignty o f the Nabob, that we 
from that of his Courts, by making a controul may know how to aft when any cafe occur® • 
above 500 rupees in value, and declaring any with refpeft to the figning of warrants for 
difputeon it lhall be determined in this Court the execution of criminals; or what anfwer 
only; fo that, if we allowed this, claim, his we muft give to the Foreign Companies, and 
Vakeel would be the only perfon in his domi- particularly the French Nation, who, the 
nions, to whom he could extend the arm of better to affert their claims of Independency, 
protection. maintain with us the fame argument which

Roy Rada Churn has not produced his in- we underftood has been ufed by Sir Elijah 
ftruftions, which ought to have been done, to Impey, that there is no Double Government 
fhew he came on public bufinefs, fuch as is in this Country, and confequently that the 
the proper fubjeft of treaty between Sovereign proceedings o f the Courts o f Dewanny againft 
Powers; for what appears, if this were^a their Subjefts, whorefide without thofe places 
proper place for it, his bufinefs as a Vakeel which have been affigned to them by $ie  
might be to buy horfes. Treaty of Paris, are direft attacks of the Eng-

On the whole, therefore, I am°of opinion, lifh Nation againft that of France, 
the Defendant is notintitled to the privilege I f  it be true, that the Sovereignty o f Mu- 
slaimed for him, becaufe 1 think the fitua-ibarick ul Dowla be not admitted by the Su>

preme
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preme Court, we are perfuaded that the Chief fervice but mine- I be? leave m r  
Jufttce and the other His Majefty’s Judges to you,

f -u- 10Wf ™P°*ant 11 1S« not only to the are to be admitted in' the Court, it will re 
tranquilhty of this Country, but likewife to fieft the greateft difgrace and indignity upon 
the prefervation of the Peace which fubfifts me. You Gentlemen, I hope, wfll not ap- 
betweep the King and the European Powers prove of fuch a proceeding; but fpeak in fuch 
who are fettled in this Country, that we terms to the Gentlemen of the Court, as will 
lhould not be left in doubt as to the right to prevent my affairs being impeded or difgraced • 
whom the Sovereignty belongs. The late A& in doing this, you will confer the ereateft 
or rarhament, as we underftand, only fubje&s favour upon me. &
fuch of the Natives to the iurifdi&ion of the A . c ,
Britifh Laws, as are, or were, employed in A  tfUe C0W from the tranflatiom 
the fervice of the Company, or of Britifh
Subje&s, at the time when the fuit, a<ftion,! W m * ® Ru e n e ,
or complaint, againfl them arofe; from whence • Sub-fecretary.
we are led to conclude, that though the King’s
Sovereignty were admitted to be extended The Chief Juftice delivered the fentiments
over thofe who are fo particularly defcribed, tbe Court, in the following words:
yet it does not follow, according to our idea, It is with the deepeft concern we find the
that it includes the reft of the natives o f Ben- Council ftill perfift, notwithftanding the fre-
gal, Bahar, and Oriffa. quent declarations and unanimous opinion of

the Court (for it is a miftake if it is thought
W e are, Honourable Sirs, my Brother Chambers was of a different opi-

r  wn- ~ xr n nion) to addrefs the Court by Letter.
3(f July, 11775! ^ ° Ur mo^ obedient> W e declared our apprehenfions that it

humble fervants, . would, if the opinion of the Court and that
of the Council fhould not agree, lead to alrer-

(Signed) ' cations; the lead ill confequence of which
T p f A v i n j T N r  would b e > the l ° wering both the Court and
P* MdmcaJ  * the Council in the eyes of the Public, and
PfT F r a n c k  would be prejudicial to the affairs of the

Company. W e have done all in our power to
. rni , T , . 1 1 r 1 avoid it; and, affailed as we have been both• * The above Letter, being altered by the • 1 ;  ... , T “z-f 1 r i . P £ c 3r» . hn and out or Court, we will not be provoked

Clerk or the Crown into the form of a Peti- * A n , r _  * r /  •ri , to depart from that iobnety of lentiment,tiou, was tiled. , . uL - o ^ 1 c „ 9which is peculiarly necellary for our fta-

Copy of a letter from Mubarick ul Dowlah, ^ f f h a l l  ever be for fnrnifliing the Eaft
. tQ the Goveruor General and Counal- India Company with every right and every

affiftance, judicially or exrra-judiciaJly, which 
Roy Rada Churn has for thcfe three years I think I legally may, be the application ever 

been my fervant, and is now in Calcutta, in fo improper, or the conduit of their fervants 
the capacity o f my Vakeel: 1 am now ac- fo exceptionable.
quainted by him, that fomebody has com- W e have afferted the impropriety of this 
plained againfl him to the Court. As the mode of application; they give no attention 
laid Roy is now actually employed in the to our Teprefentations, and pay no refpeft to 
affairs with which he is entrnfled by me, and our unanimous opinions. Ihere is no Power 
tor iheie three years' hath been in no other here to decide between us; they ftill perfift:

. 4 E 2 nothing
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nothing but abfolute outrage will provoke us i I will order a copy of this affidavit to be 
to appeal to HisMajefty, or their Honourable delivered, with the minutes o f the Court, as 
Employers* we will not encreafe the embar- it will give great light into this matter, 
raffment his Majefty’s Minifters mult labour ; Can any one after this believe, that the 
under on account of India affairs, nor add to Nabob himfelf really entertained the fenti- 
the diftrefs of the Eaft India Company : the bents which he adopts in the Letter ? 
proceedings will be fent to both: our conduft If this was the, opinion of Roy Rada 
fhall fpeak for itfelf, without a comment: in Churn, it would have been candid in the 
the mean time, we muft fleer between creating Counfel for the Company to have laid it be- 
confufion and lofing our dignity... fore the Court. .

The Letter from the Council enclofes But the clofe of the Letter is really alarm- 
one of a moft extraordinary nature from the ing; it is addreffed to the Governor General 
Nabob Mubarick: his fituation is fuch, that and Council: fpeaking of complaints being 
there is no man, either in England or in India, received in the C ou rt; he fays, u You, Gen- 
will believe he would be induced to write tlemen, 1 hope, will not: approve o f fuch a 
fach a Letter, was it not either dictated to him proceeding, but fpeak in fuch terms to the 
by the Agents of thofe who rule this Settle- Gentlemen o f the Court, as will prevent my 
ment, or .unlefs ,he was perfectly convinced affairs from being impeded or difgraced.”  
it would be agreeable to, and coincide with, Did the Nabob ever write in this flyle to 
their, fentiments. We always have and always the Governor and Council before ? The Letter 
fhall confider a Letter o f bufinefs from that is tranfmitted to us after our opinions have 
Nabob, the fame as a Letter from theGover- been given. I f  it is the real opinion of the 
nor General and Council. , Nabob, that  ̂we can be fpoke. to in fuch

He fays in that Letter, that, i f  complaints terms as to influence our judgements, from 
again ft his Vakeel are to be admitted in the whence did he learn it? W e have a right to* 
Court, it will reflect the greatefi difgrace and demand of the Council, that, in anfwer to 
indignity on him. that Letter,they do acquaint him, it is highly

There pever was fuch an idea entered into derogatory both to the honour of the Council 
the head of an Indian Nabob with refpeft to and the Court, to entertain any idea that the 
liis Vakeel. The Vakeel, in his Memorial, has Council would fpeak in the terms he defires;

. no fuch idea; he claims only as a new right and if they did, that the opinion o f this 
given to him by the laws of England, of Court could be in the leaft influenced by 
which right he was wholly ignorant. ' them. W e think it neceffary, on this occa-

That is not all: I have an affidavit in ray lion to affert, i f  a contrary idea fhould any 
hand, made by Roy R.ada Churn for a different where prevail, that there doth not refide 
purpofe. He fays, “ I never heard of the word in the Governor General and Council any 
Public Minifter: I underftand Vakeel; but authority whatfoever, to correct or controul 
what is the meaning of Public Minifter I any afts o f the Judges, either in or out o f 
know not; Vakeel is one thing, Elchee is the Court, be thofe afts .ever fo erroneous: »
another* I never before imagined I fhould and that no fuppofed neceffity whatfoever can 
have been exempted from punifhment becaufe authorize any check or controul over thofe 
I was a Vakeel. People every where refpeft afts. The law of neceffity is the law o f 
the Vakeel of the Nabob* I never before tyrants: i f  the Governor General and Council 
heard, that if the Vakeel of the Nabob, or fhould affert fuch a right, as they make them- 
even i f  th.e King Himfelf,. fhould commit a felyes judges, of the neceffity, they, and not 
crime, he would be exempted from the punifh- the K ing’s Juftices, would adminifter the Lawr} 
ment eftablifhed for fuch, a crime. Perhaps,, in this Country.
it- the-Nabob or King was to write a Letter, W e could have hoped that the Governor 
A .i  Vakeel might be £orgi.ven/, |General and. Council,, inftead. o f tranfmitting'

this* .
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tliis infulting Letter to the Court, defiring to orevent anv nnfliM*. r c • 
fuch illegal interpofition, would have ac§ or obftruain/the 'mpedin2

w o u l d 'b th e  N ,a b ° b h ° W hi,g h ly - ,Crir inal “  e* P lic it ly d e e fa r e , th ift th e re  is n o A in g T n  the

citations!6 ' hem '°  COmP'y " ‘h h,S U  S 5 ?f|  °f th£ J " dr '  ',hfich
I c^n ot help obferving a fmall citcum- Naib N12“ i " T 0 I f l t

Coun'cil foraVR T A  CW * ¥  the Nothing ^ decided by that fudge-
f t S S f e  R ° y r®ceived tvy? ment, but that neither the Eaft India Corn-
Letters from the Nabob dirededto myfelf, pany nor their Servants, both being fubieft 
undone original Letter from him, d,reded to to the Laws of Great Britain, can, by inter- 
the Governor General and Council, inclofed pofing the name of the Nabob, fereen any 
in a Letter from them to the Court. Though Criminal from the juftice of this Court, 
improper, we took no notice of that Letter. I We have exprefsly laid' that our opinions 
had before received Letters from him; they did not affed the Country Courts eftablilhed 
had the ufual alcob, the fame that is given in thjs Province.
to the firft in Council. The Letters to me fince How far Mubarick is a Sovereign, with 
the difpute, to give him a higher^ air of refpeft to the Company, in the opinion of 
confequence, make the alcob much inferior, thefe Gentlemen, is apparent, by putting the 
The fame artifice is made ufe of in that fent queftion, how they are to aft with refpeft to 
to the Governor General and Council. The the figning of warrants for the execution of 
alcob fent to the Governor General and Criminals. It is plain, we do not differ in 
Council is infinitely inferior to that formerly opinion upon that queftion. Nobody, either 
fent to the firft in Council and myfelf. They in England or in India, will difpute to the 
beft know whether at any other period they Chief Juftice the making ufe of arguments 
would have admitted a Letter from him with becaufe they have been ufed by the French ; 
that alcob. They beft know whether the nor can it be thought that arguments are 
Company in future is to be treated with the weaker becaufe they have occurred to others, 
fame inferiority. What the Chief Juftice faid, was. not Amply

This obfervation will not be fo ftriking to his opinion ; if it was not in every circum- 
thofe who are not converfant with the cuf- ftance the opinion of the whole Court, it was 
toms and ideas o f  the natives, and do not that of the majority of the Bench had not he 
know how tenacious they are of that addrefs. been there. But, in fa<ft, neither the Chief

If our opinions are carefully examined, we Juftice nor any of the Juftices made ufe of 
^hink no doubt can arife as to the queftion the arguments attributed to them. Ih ey  
of figning warrants for the execution of cri- never aflerted there was any Double Govern- 
minals. But, left they may have taken their ment in this Country. All that a negative is 
idea o f our judgement from loofe notes and put upon is, the illegal exertion of the powers 
partial representations, the Judges have writ- of a Double Government to defeat the 

t ten their opinions, which were delivered on King’s Laws. They were very far from 
the late queftion, and will tranfmit them to drawing the confequence imputed to them, 
the Governor General and Council, with the namely, that the proceedings of the Courts 
prefent opinion of the Court. Mr. Juftice of Dewannv, againft the French who refide 
Chambers, having taken no notes o f what he without thofe places that are amgned to them 
faid, has delivered his opinion from his re- by the Treaty of Paris, are direct attac so  
colle&ion and fuch notes as the Chief Juftice the Englifh Nation againft that or France, 
vfas able to furnifh him with. The opinion W e never thought 0 arls*
of the reft of the Court is, as near as may', W e  thinktfhe pofition nfelf, as ftated by the 
in the very words they were delivered. But, French, not true; and arc a oni e ® 
left any doubt after that fhould remain,, and aflerted as our opinion. V e nave, a
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3 w ,  have freauentlv de- could not reft their opinion Amply on the
the very contrary. W  ^  malicious repre- dates o f the Credentials. As Mr. Juftice 
fired, to Preven jP  Company would employ a Chambers was of opinion that an Ambaffa-

f ahle to take down the opinions of dor, a fubjert o f the State m which he .s em- 
perfon able to taice qow r  ployed, is not amenable to the Courts of
the C o u rt  correctly. , f  quences Juftice where he refides; Rada Churn, being

I can forefee t » {  Vakeel, and fo accepted by the Eaft India
ftr ,  "we entered into the queftion. Company (if  that ftould give him the rights
what reluctance we neceffarvfor the of an Ambaffador), on thofe principles ought

not ,0 be amenable to. this Conrt though 
council to iiidiiiia , w  :r tiie offence was committed when he was

W e did not an Ambaffador. The Chief Juftice 
^ t t  they might not perfift in a claim which though of a different opinion, advanced what 

1  feared it wSuld be impoffible for them to he faid on that head with a degree of dif- 
fuDDort They were judges of their own fidence; and only gave his opinion on which 
nofirics. They7 urged us to a decifion we fide the weight o f authorities lay. The other 
wiftied to avoid. We were obliged to judge, Juftices likewife thought the fame, 
h im  the evidence before us, of the legality o f As to the queft.on put concerning the 
the claim, not of the political confequences. right o f the Sovereignty of this Country , t 
If which we do not believe, any ill confe- feems to us as i f  it was meant to draw us 
quences follow to the State, they who un- into a dilemma; but we were never lefs em- 
neceffarily urged us to a decifion, not we who barraffed as to the ftate of Mubanck ul Dow* 
are bound to§ decide according to Law, are lah ; we have before declared, it is not altered 
atffwerable for them. Did they expert that by this decifion As to the queftion between 
we, who muff adminifter juftice according to I the Crown and the Company, it is o f a very 
our oaths, fhould, contrary to evidence, de- delicate nature : both the Crown , and the 
termine that, which, though within their own Company have been anxious to avoid bnng- 
k n owl edge, they would not take upon them- ing it to a decifion : W e therefore are much 
fdves to fwear to? W e don’t know a worfe|furprized that the Servants ol the Company 
chararter than a political Judge; we don’tKhould prefs an extrajudicial opinion upon 
know a more dangerous one. Can any'oite it ; nor, i f  given, do we conceive it would 
believe -this ftrong ftruggle with the Court operate upon their conduct. W e Ihould be 
is'ffmply to protert Roy Rada Churn? Is he much concerned if  they brought a cafe be- 0 
dignus vindice? It is clearly to ferve other fore us which would make it neceflaryfor 
purpofes, which, for fear of prejudicing the us to determihe it. W e would avoid it if we 
enfuing trial, I will not mention. But the could. I f  it became abfolutely neceflary, we 
attempt is on miftaken principles. The Rulers would not retradt from giving our opinion , 
o f a State fhould be very referved in bring- but we would not give it.until we had heard  ̂
ing on political queftions of real .importance, every thing that could be faid on either fide, 
except they are fare the Law on the fubjeft nor until we had obtained all the lights and 
is with them. They mu ft not expeft com- information that could be obtained on the 
plaifance from judges. We mult execute fubjeft. But we mult decline precipitately 
ftern Juftice. W ere Judges to look to poli- and wantonly giving an extrajudicial opinion 
/deal confequences, they mu ft ever be dictated of fo much confequence, efpecially as fuch 
to by thofe that hold the powers of the State, high offence was taken, that the Court had^
It was neceflary to determine that queftion in tried an Indictment, in which a robbery which 
this cafe. Mr. Juftice Chambers avoided k, was committed here was charged to be com- 
and hinted fomething like what is advanced mitted on the King's highway, it being er- 
now by the Council \ but the other Judges | roneouily under flood that the Court thereby

had
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h-ad taken upon itfelf to determine the verv Iirmev Knin-i «-• £■ * r D
queftion now propofed to the Court, though I7 ^  K ght> the 4*  day of July
it had been, and muft have been, the form of
the Indi&ment when the Prefident and Conn- 1 knew nothing with refpeft to the rishts 
ci! were juftices of Oyer and Terminer and o f •  Vakeel, or Elchee, dll £ .  3  

.Gaol Delivery. W e will not enter into an asked me what was my employment: to which 
argument on a matter of Law with the Gen- 1 anfwered, that I was a Vakeel of the Na­
tl e men; much lefs break into their province, bob. When Mr. Farrer and Mr. Jarret> 
to decide upon matters of Politic's. We were together, I mentioned to them that I 
ihould have declined taking any notice of had been the Nabob’s Vakeel for near three 
this Letter, had we not feared that occafion Yearsi and theycaufed an arzee to be written, 
might have been taken from our filence to which I figncd. I imagine that it was ne-- 
put a flop to the Criminal Juftice in the crifary for me to obey any order iffued to me' 
Provinces. ‘ by the Council, and that I muft attend upon

W e take this opportunity to declare, that *n conformity to any fummons they
the eftablifhment of -this Court hath made no maY fend to me. I was one day called to ap- 
alteration in rcfpect to the adminiftration of Pear before the Council, or Committee; and 
Criminal Juftice, except only in this Town ten d ed  accordingly. The Governor, the 
and the Factories fubordinate to this Settle- General, Colonel Monfon, and Mr. Francis,. 
ment. W e declare it, that, if there is a were prefent; Comaul O Deen had before 
flop page of juftice, it may be clear that it is tbat prefented fome papers to Mr. Fowke : 
not occafioned by this Court. die Gentlemen of the Council asked me, if

My Brother Chambers has pointed out to be had given the papers to Mr. Fowke to 
me a paffage in Roy Rada Churn's affidavit, keep, or with the intention that they might 
which I had neglected to make any obferva- be prefented to the Council, 
tion upon. Mr. Farrer and Mr. J arret caufed a paper

He fays, cc He thinks he is obliged to t0 be written out in the Engliffi Language,
u obey the orders of the Council, and that t0 die truth of the contents of which I fwore
et they may fummon him. That, in fact, he before Mr. Hyde ; but they never explained 
u was called to appear before the Council the words Public Minifter to me, they only 
“  when thofe Gentlemen, who make the clain mentioned the word Vakeel. I know nothing 
“  for him, were prefent.”  He faid, in his with refpeft to my having been difmifled

> > inftructions for the affidavit, (C It was not fe°m the fervice of the Nabob for ten days.
“  left to my pleafure whether I would come ^be Nabob never wrote any thing of it to
“  or not; it was faid, Come.,, me: perhaps Mr. Farrer and Mr. Jarret may

W hat then was the fenfe of thefe Gen- have heard ic from rePorl* Mr- Fai‘rer faid
tlemen, as to his having the rights of an to me, “  You was not in the Nabob’s fer-
Ambaflador? Is he not to be confidered “  vice for ten days and faid nothing more, 
merely to elude the juftice of the Court? He probably heard this from others. I never 

— - i * i  n , . . .  heard any thing of it from any one. Mr. Far-
The above, havmgbeen f.gned by all the rer neve/ told 5me that \ hac( been difmifled

Judges, was fent, together m ih their.for- from the beginning of. the month of Suffer. . 
mer opinions and the following affida- Qne d j  w&ent t05the houfe 0f  Colonel Mon- 
vit, to the Council. fon, who faid, Perhaps you was difmiffed for
Txanflation of the Affidavit made by fome days from the fervice of the Nabob : do 

1 Roy Rada Churn, before Sir Elijah you know any thing of it ? I anfwered, I
I

* Counfel for the Eafl India Company. f  Attorney for the Fall India Company,

know*

t h e  T R I A L  O F  R O Y  R A D A  C H U R N ,  t o .
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3 z T H E  T R I A L  O F  R O Y  R A D A  C H U R N ,  &c.

know nothing of it. This converfation paffed the King himfelf, fhould commit a crime, he 
after I had made the affidavit before Mr. would be exempted from the punifhraent 
Hyde. I  never heard the words Public Mi- eftablifhed for fuch crime. Perhaps, if the 
nifler. I underftand Vakeel; but what is the Nabob or King was to write a Letter, the Va- 
meaning of; Public*Minifter, I  do not know, keel might be forgiven.
Vakeel is one thing, and Elchee is another. Mr. Farrer faid to me, I heard that you 
I never before imagined I fhould have been was difmiffed from the Nabob's fervice for 
exempted from punifhment becaufe I was a ten days : this was after I had made the affi- 
Vakeel. People every where refpeft the davit: I never before had heard a word of 
Vakeel of the Nabob. I never before heard it.
that if the Vakeel of the Nabob, or even of Signed, R ada Churn.

T H E  E N D .
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T R I A L
O F

J O S E P H  F O W K E ,  F R A N C I S  F O W K E ,  

Maha Rajah N U N D O C O M A R ,  and 

R O Y  R A D A  C H U R N ,

F O R

A C O N S P I R A C Y  againft WARREN HASTINGS, - Efq;

. r  t h e  JU R O R S  fa-id, not only o f his good-name, credit, and 
'Tow n of Calcutta and I for \pur Lord g g  rfpUtation, to deprive, and to bring him into

. Fa&ory of tort W iM  King, upon their oath, the ill-opinion, hatred, and contempt, of all 
liam in Bengal, to Wit, ^prepent> that J 0feph His Majelty’s fubjecls in the faid province of 

Fowke of Calcutta, Gentleman, FrancisFowke Bengal, and of the native inhabitants .thereof; 
o f the fame place, Gentleman, Son of the and by that-means, as much as in them lay, to 

» vfaid Tofeph Fowke, Maha Rajah Nundocomar, dilturb the good Government of the laid 
Bahader, late of the fame place inhabitant, Country, and the management of the corn- 

• and Rov Rada Churn alfo of the fame place in- mercial concerns of the Honourable halt India 
habitant, all of whom are fubjedt to the jurif- Company therein, which are fo eminently in­
dication of the Supreme Court of Judicature at trailed to the faid Warren Haftings, but alfo 
Fort William in Bengal, being perfons of evil to bring upon the laid Warren galhngs the 
name and fame, and dilhoneft reputation,' artd ill opinion and hatred of the Ring Himlclf, and 
S e d l y  devifing and intending Warren Halt- of the Two Houles of the Parliament of Great 
ines ElquirT Governor General of'the Pre- Britain, *nd of the Proprietors and Diretfors 
fidency of Fort William, in Bengal afore-1 of the faid Ealt India Company, ^d^onthe

£

I



nineteenth day of April, in the fifteenth year curing the faid Jofeph Fowke to be falfely 
o f the reign of our Sovereign Lord George accufed. And the Jurors aforefaid, on their 
the Third, b y  the grace* of Gob, of Great oath aforefaid, do further prefent, that the 
Britain, France, and Ireland, King, Defender faid Jofeph Fowke, Francis Fowke, Maha Ka* 
of the Faith, and fo forth, in Calcutta afore* jah Nundocomar, and Roy Rada Churn, after- 
faid in Bengal aforefaid, confpire, combine, wards, to wit, on the faid nineteenth day of 
and agree among themfelves, falfely to charge April, in the year aforefaid, at Calcutta 
and accufe tire faid Warren Ha flings of divers aforefaid, in Bengal aforefaid, according to 
enormous* and fcandalous offences; particular- the confpiracy, combination, and agreement 
ly, that he the faid Warren Haftings had then aforefaid, between them had as aforefaid, did, 
lately, by divers finiftcr and unlawful means, for the purpofes aforefaid, by certain Snifter 
procured a certain falfe accufation againfl the and unlawful means, to wit, by. intreaties, 
faid Jofeph Fowke, in the name of one Cum- promifes, and threats, procure .
maul ul Deen Allee Cawn, to be made and the faid Cummaul ul Deen pn theA^zee?
wrote, which faid falfe accufation He the 'faid Ally Cawri to affix his feal,
Warren Hastings had himfelf presented to the' containing the impreffiori of his name, tb the 
Governor General and Council at Fort W il- faid paper writing, fo framed and made as 
liam aforefaid, knowing it to be falfe ; and aforefaid $ and that the faid jofeph Fowke, in 
alfo that he the faid Warren Haftings had purfuance o f and according to the confpiracy, 
heretofore, corruptly and collufively, received combination, and agreement, between him 
feveral fums of itldney from the faid Cummaul and the faid Francis Fowke, Maha Rajah 
ul Deen Allee Cawn, in the nature of Bribes, Nundocomar, and Roy Radachurn, fo as afore- 
for fervices rendered or to be rendered to him faid had, afterwards, to wit, on the faid nine- 
the faid Cummaul ul Deen Allee Cawn; by teenthdayof April, in the year aforefaid, at 
that means reprefenting him the faid Warren Calcutta aforefaid, in Bengal aforefaid, did,
Ha flings as guilty of wilful Bribery and Cor- againfl the will and confent of the faid Cum- 
ruption in his office and duty. And the Jurors maul ul Deen Allee Cawn, and notwithfland- 
afofefaid, on their oath aforefaid, do further ing the exprefs declaration o f him the faid 
prefent, that the faid Jofeph Fowke, Francis Cummaul ul Deen Allee Cawn, that the faid 
Fowke, Maha Rajah Nundocomar, and Roy paper writing Had been forcibly and illegally 
Rada Churn, on the faid nineteenth day of obtained, and that the contents thereof were 
April, in the year aforefaid, at Calcutta afore- falfe, take and carry away the faid - paper 
laid; in Bengal aforefaid, according to the writing, and prefent the fame to the Governor * 
faid cohfpiracy, combination, and agreement General and Council at Fort William afore- 
among therrifelves as aforefaid, did, falfely and faid, or to fome or one of the members there- 
wickedly, for the evil purpofes aforefaid, frame of, as an arzee or petition o f him the faid
and make, and caufed to be framed and made, Cummaul ul Deen Allee Cawn to the faid
^ certain paper writing in the Perfian lan- Governor General and Council. Arid the 
guage ; purporting, that he the faid Warren jurors aforefaid, upon their oath aforefaid, do 
Ratlings had then lately, by divers finifter further prefent, that the faid Jofeph Fowke,
ând unlawful means, procured foch falfe accu- Francis Fowke, Maha Rajah Nundocomar, 

fat ion as aforefaid, in the name of the faid arid Roy Rada Churn, afterwards, to wit, on 
Cummaul ul Deen Allee Cawn, to be made the faid nineteenth day of A pril, in the year 
and wrote againfl the faid Jofeph Fowke, and aforefaid, at Calcutta aforefaid, in Bengal 
nad prefen ted the fame to the faid Governor aforefaid, according to the Confpiracy, Corn-
General and Council at Fort Will ram aforefaid, bination, and Agreement aforefaid, betweeii
l<nowirig it to be falfe; thereby filfely and. them as aforefaid had, did, for evil purpofes 
fcandaloufly reprefenting the laid Warren aforefaid, unlawfully, wickedly, and unjuftly* 
Haftings ks guilty of the faid offence of pro-'frame and make, and caufed to be framed an^

5 made,
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made, a certain paper writing in the Perfiap only of his good name, credit and r e r i n t ' 
language; purporting, that the faid Warren to deprive, and to bring h im ’into ;heP ill-opi- 
Haflmgs and others had radireffly and col- nion, hatred, and contempt, of all His Ma- 
lufively received from the fa.d Cummaul ul jelly’s fubjefts in the faid province of Bengal 
Deen Allee Cawn, by way of Bribes for fer- and of the inhabitants thereof: and bv fhat 
vices rendered or to be rendered to him, fun- means, as much as in them lay, to difturb the 
dry fums of money; to wit, the faid Warren good government of the faid Country, and 
Halhngs Efquire the fum of fifteen thoufand the management of the affairs of the Honour- 
rupees, Richard Barwell Efquire forty-five able Eaft India Company there, which are fo 
thoufand rupees, and to Hofliyar Jung, there- eminently entrufted to the faid Warren Haft- 
by meaning George Vanfittart Efquire, twelve ings, but alfo to bring upon the iaid Warren 
thoufand rupees; and that the faid Jofeph Haftings the ill-opinion and hatred o f ‘ the 
Fowke, in purfuance of and according to the King Himfelf, and of the TwoHoufes of>the 
Confpiracy, Combination, and Agreement, Parliament of Great Britain, and the Pro- 
between-him and the faid Francis Fowke, praetors and Directors of the faid Eaft India 
Maha Rajah Nundocomar, and Roy Rada Company, did, on the nineteenth day of 
Churn, Icf as aforefaid had, afterwards, to wit, April, in the fifteenth year of the reign of 
on the faid nineteenth day of April, in the-our. Sovereign Lord George the Third, by 
year aforefaid, at Calcutta aforefaid, in Ben- the grace of God, of Great Britain, France, 
gal aforefaid, did, by divers finifter and un- and Ireland, King, Defender of the Faith, 
lawful means, to wit, by force, threats, and and fo forth, at Calcutta aforefaid, in Bengal 
menaces, procure the faid Cummaul ul aforefaid, confpire, combine, and agree among 
Deen Allee Cawn to write on the faid paper- themfelves, falfely to charge and accufe the 
writing certain words, purporting that he ac- faidN Warren Haftings of divers enormous and 
knowledged fuch fums to have been paid by fcandalons offences; particularly, that he the 
him, notwithftanding the exprefs declaration faid Warren Haftings had then lately, by di- 
at the fame time of the faid Cummaul ul Deen vers finifter and unlawful means, procured a 
A llee Cawn, that the fadts thereby pretended certain falfe accufation againft the faid Jofeph 
to be acknowledged were falfe ; and notwith- Fowke, in the name of one Cummaul ul Deen 
Handing in truth and in fa£t the faid Warren Allee Dawn, to be made and wrote; which 
Haftings has not received fuch feveral fums of faid falfe accufation he the faid Warren Haft- 
money, or any part thereof, nor is guilty of ings had himfelf prefented to the faid Gover- 
all or any of the charges or accufations fo. nor General and Council at Fort William 

1 made againft him as aforefaid, to the great aforefaid,knowing it to be falfe. And the Jurors 
damage of him the faid Warren Haftings, to aforefaid, on their oath aforefaid, do further 
the evil example of all others in the like cafe prefent, that.the faid Jofeph Fowke, Francis 
offending, and againft the peace of our faid Fowke, Maha Rajah Nundocomar, and Roy 
Lord the King, his crown and dignity. And Rada Churn, on the faid nineteenth day of 

» the Jurors o f our faid Lord the King further, April, in the year aforefaid, at Calcutta afore- 
upon their oath, prefent, that the faid Jofeph faid, in Bengal aforefaid, according to the 
Fowke, Francis Fowke, Maha Rajah Nundo- faid Confpiracy, Combination, and Agree- 
,comar, Bahader, and Roy Rada Churn, all of ment among themfelves as aforefaid had,- did 
whom are fubjeft to the Jurifdi&ion of the falfely and wickedly, for the evil purpofes 
faid Supreme Court of Judicature at Fort aforefaid, frame and make, and earned to be 
William in Bengal aforefaid, being perfons of framed and made, a certain paper wanting in 

.>evil name and fame, and diflioneft reputation, the Perfian language; purporting, that le t e 
and wickedly devifing and intending Warren faid Warren Haftings had then late y, y. i-
Ha (liners Efquire, Governor General o f the vers finifter and unlawful means, procured fuch
Prefidency of Fort William in Bengal, not falfe accufation as aforefiud, in the name

J B  b 2 U1C
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T R I A L  O F  J O S E P H  F O W K E , F R A N C I S  F O W K E , '  -

the faid Cummaul ul Deen Allee Cawn, to bel Raftings, to the evil example of all-others m 
made a „ J  wra”  againft the faid Jofeph Fow kejthe like cafe offend,og, and agamft the peace 
nnd had prefented the fame to the faid Cover- o f  our faid Lord the King, his crown and 
nor General and Council at Fort William dignity. . < '
nforefaid, knowing it to be falfe. And the Signed, J a s . P r i t c h a r d ,
Jurors aforefaid, on their oath aforefaid, do| , . Cl. o f the Grown,
further prefenr, that the faid 'Jofeph Fowke, ^ j Line j 7 7 ^  W . M. B ec k w it h ,
Francis Fowke, Maha Rajah Nundocomar, Clerk of Indi<ftmeuts.
and Ray Rada Churn, afterwards, to wit, on
the faid nineteenth day of April, in the year C O M A U L  O D E E N  C A W N .,  
aforefaid, at Calcutta aforefaid, in Bengal .  ̂ . : . . _ ^  , _ . .
aforefaid, according to the Confpiracy, Cora- Are you acquainted with M ah arajah
bination, and Agreement aforefaid, did, fori Nundocomar?
the purpofes aforefaid, by certain finifter and A n f.\ t s. , - .... ■ . , A >
unlawful means, to wit, by intreaties, pro- Quefi. Was you fo m February laft ?
niifes, and threats, procure the faid' Cummaul Anf. W hy (hould I not know him. I have
ul Deen Allee Cawn to affix his Teal, contain- known him for thirty years.
ing the impreffion of his name, to the faid Did you ever apply to him to bor-
paper writing, fo framed and made as afore- row money ?
faid; and the faid Jofeph Fowke, in purfu-j Anf. Yes.
ance of and according to the Confpiracy, ^uc(l, W hen the laft time.
Combination, and Agreement, between him Anf In the month of Chile, I applied to 
and the faid Francis Fowke, Maha Rajah him, to borrow 3000 rupees. . ‘ '
Nundocomar, Bahader, and Roy Rada Churn, gucft. Did any converfation then pafs I 
fo as aforefaid had, afterwards, to wit, on the Anf. A t that time this converfatiori. I went 
faid nineteenth day of April, in the year afore- to Maha Rajah Nundocomar ; he defiled me 
faid, at Calcutta aforefaid, in Bengal afore- to fit down, and faid to me, Do you know 
faid, did, .againft the will and confent of the any. thing of the Barramut in the bufmefs be- 
faid Cummaul ul Deen Allee Cawn, and not- tween the Governor and me? I anfwered, I 
with ft and ing the exprefs declaration of him have heard fo me thing of i t ; l have not heard 
the faid Cummaul ul Deen Allee Cawn, that all. He faid, There has been- enriiity between 
the faid paper-writing had been forcibly and I Mr. John Graham and me: he was my enemy, 
illegally obtained, and that the contents there- I was his. I was thinking of the enmity be-  ̂
of were falfe, take and carry away the faid 1 tween me and Mr. John Graham, and of that 
paper-writing, and prefent the fame to the with the Governor'; and the Governor has, 
faid Governor General and Council at Fort without caufe, been angry with me, and for- 
William aforefaid, or fome or one of the bid me his houfe; and has told me, I will do 
members thereof, as an arzee or petition o f bad things to you; be upon your guard. Being 
him the faid Cummaul ul Deen Allee Cawn, remedilefs, I took the advice of M r. Fowke. 
to the faid Governor General and Council; they Mr. Fowke gave this anfwer : Until you get 
the faid Jofeph Fowke, Francis Fowke, Maha the paper o f Barramut, till you produce Bar- 
Rajah Nundocomar, and Roy RadaChurn, thus ramut again ft the Governor, Mr. Barwell, 
endeavouring to reprefent the faid Warren Hufhia Jung, meaning Mr. Vanfittart, and 
Haftings as having procured the faid Jofeph other Gentlemen, I cannot fay any thing to the 
Fowke to be falfely accufed; whereas, in truth Gentlemen in your behalf; but if you do 
and in fa (ft, the faid Warren Haftings is not this, I will get you the Kellaut o f Aufneen-.0i 
guilty of all or of any of the Charges* or Being remedilefs, I gave the Barramut papers, 
Accufations fo made again ft him as aforefaid; the Barramut in the bufinefs o f Munny Be- 
to the great damage of him the faid Warren gum; and I have proved the Governor cuF 

x pable».



• pable. Do you likewifeconfider of this. I Gunga Govin Sing; why don’ t you prefent 
. (C. O Been) faid, What you yourfelf have them to the Council? I will procure for you 

done, you have done well. But in the hear- from the General ready money to the amount 
ing of the . world, it will appear Shameful, of the demand, and I will fettle it with Gun- 
that you being fuch a man fliould do fuch bu* ga Govin Sing. Mr. Fowke is at enrriity with 
finefs.  ̂ When Maha Rajah heard this, he you *, do you go with Rada Chum,and be re­
laughed, andfaid, To it, and write a bond for conciled to him again *, and being reconciled 
.the rupees, which you have applied through to Mr. Fowke, he will introduce you to the 
Rada Churn for on loan, and get the rupees General, the Colonel, and Mr. Francis; and 
from him; and two days hence the Burdwan he will get you the appointment to Purnea; 
people will receive the Kellaut; and then I and l (hall, in three or four days, obtain the 
will converfe with you. He then gave, me Kellaut of the Aumeeny of the Khalfa. I 
two Pauns, and my difmiffion. Nothing more replied, When you have got the Kellaut, I 
pafled then. will get introduced by your means to the Gen-

Queft. Had you ever any demand againft the tlemen ; but it does not fignify being intros 
Dewan of the Khalfa for any fum of money? duc£d to Mr. Fowke. I cannot go to-day, I 

Anf. He was not my debtor. I had a de- will go with .Roy Rada Churn to-morrow, 
mand on him for the Tuka collary. He faid, It is well. I then went home to my

Quefi. Did you ever fend any arzees \o own houfe, and went the next day to Mr. 
Maha Rajah Nundocomar or Roy Rada Churn, Fowke, with Rada Churn. Mr. Fowke was 
with refpett to this demand ? laying upon a couch in the hall; I prefented

Anf I depofited two arzees with Maha Rajah him with a nuzzeer of five rupees: he put his 
Nundocomar, but did not mean to complain. | hand upon the nuzzeer, but did not take the 

Quefl. Did you prefent thefe arzees to Maha j rupees. He told me to fit down. 1 fat down* 
Rajah, or Roy Rada Churn? " He-got up, and went into a room. Then

Anf. To Rada Churn, and~defired him to Rada Churn took me with him into the room 
explain to Maha Rajah. Mr. Fowke went to. Mr. Fowke (hewed me

Quell. What paffed when you prefented the tokens of kindnefs; he gave me beetle, - role-
arzees to Rada ChurnV water, and ottar; and told me, Do you do

Anf. 1 faid to Rada Churn, Do you take what Maha Rajah {hall tell you. I have 
thefe two arzees in depofit; I don’t deliver heard your praifes from Maha Rajah ; do you 
them, in as complaints; was 1 to complain, I be perfectly contented. Do 
would complain of what is true. In order to Maha Rajah tells you, and I will give you the 

• * frighten him, I have wrote what I pleafed my- bufihefs of Purneah, and confer many, favors
felf. Do you take thefe as a depofit: when on you. Having given me beetle, rofe-*atei 
Moonfhy Sadder O Deen comes from his out- and ottar, I took my difmifiion, and w 
houfe then we Ihall fettle it among ourfelves; home; and (laid at home two <lays .• I ne. e 
and at hat time I will take thefe two arzees went to Maha Rajah’s or Mr. Fowke s. I 
o youaga n I will give 6000 rupees; 4000 thought the bufinefs bad and therefore did 

’ rupees to Maha Rajah, and 2000 rupees to not go out of my houfe for two days. The 
you I gave him then 12 golden mohurs. third day,-in the evening, 1 Houghly 

S u ,Jt?  Did any particular c o n a t io n  Raj ah’s ; my own ; I

I came ,0 my own. to £ S £ l  -
given him the arzees, and defired him to ex- 1 1  n L e , did yon give.k the laft
plain them to Maha Rajah . I went agam the 1 ■ _ . ^  the 0f Poos, and when
next morning to Maha Rajah s.. Maha Rajah of S ’ the arzee back? Where
faid, I have heard from Rada Churn that you | h n fce k, and
kave depofited with him two arzees againft is that aizee. Bring «. Mr..

MAHA R A J A  N U N D O C O M A R ,  AND ROY RADA CHURN.  3



M r. Fowke wants to fee it •, do you bring it Calcutta, and one or two days after‘Moonfhy 
to -me to-morrow evening, and then go. I Sudder O Deen arrived: after he arrived, the 
then came to my own houfe: the man who bufmefs between Gunga Govin' Sing and me 
was my old Moonfhy was gone home at 12  was fettled. I went to Maha Rajah’s, and 
o’clock; the next day I made my new Moon- told him, that the bufmefs between Gunga 
Ihy Kewdernawaz write out whatever I re- Govin Sing and me is fettled, by n;eans of 
membered. Having made him write it, I kept Moonfhy Sudder O Deen : Give me back the 
it myfclf; and in the evening, having put my two arzees. Maha^ Rajah then faid to me, 
feaf to it, carried it to Maha Rajah’s, and What is to happen in relation to thofe rupees 
faid to him, Sir, this is the arzee. He took you converfed with Roy Rada Churn about ?

, ir, and then gave me my difmiffion. I faid, Sir, I  have not received thofe rupees
Queft. W hatelfepaffed? yet; when I receive back the arzees, I will
Anf I don’t remember. make the fettlement with you, and pay you ;
ghtef W hat was the bufmefs you thought and, if you pleafe, I will give it you in writ- , 

bad? State it, if you can. ing, I will give you a receipt for it. Maha
Anf. I looked upon this as bad bufmefs. Rajah then faid, Roy Rada Churn has, with- 

Maha Rajah told me to give this Barramut out my knowledge, given the arzees to Mr. 
againfl the Governor, M r. Barwell, Mr. Van- Fowke, and he has tranflated them. I faid, 
fittart, &c. I had not given them to Mr. Fowke; I had

Quejl. Who afked you to give the Barra-1 not complained ; I depofited them with yo u ; 
mut ? what is the reafon of your having given them ?

Anf Maha Rajah Nundocomar and Rada He then faid, Never mind the arzee which 
Churn told me. I faw his houfe was a cut- you prefented againfl: Mr. Fowke by direc- 
cherry of Barramuts; the Racjfhaky man went tions of the Governor; do write thus* that 
■ with a Barramut, and others went with Barra- the Governor1 and M r. Graham made you do 
muts. 1  was a poor man, and was fright- it by'force againfl: your w ill; give a writing 
•ened. * . to this purpofe; and Mr. Fowke, from feeing

Queft. Did you fee the Radfhaky men go it, will be pleafed with you, and he will re- 
with Barramuts ? member you in his own mind ; he will give

Anf I faw the Radfhaky people there 5 you that arzee and the two arzees back, 
and all the world know they went with Barra- when you have got the bufmefs of Purneah. Do 
muts. then give me an arzee of this kind. I was

Queftion repeated. , then remedilefs, and confidered in my own
Anf I fat in the Dewan Connah, and faw mind how I fhould get back the two arzees ; *' 

the Radfhaky people there; and from hearing and came home, and wrote, down whatever 
from one and another, my own fenfe pointed occurred to me, /. e. I caufed it to be writ- 
out to me that they went with Barramuts. ten. A t noon I went again to Maha Rajah’s;

Queji. Was the Barramut which Maha Ra- Maha Rajah was not at home. I fat down till 
jah fpoke to you about already made, or one he came. I gave him the arzee, as he was » 
that was to be prepared ? getting out o f his palanquin. Maha Rajah read

They told me to prepare one : How i t ; and faid, This arzee is worth nothing;
fhould it be ready ! had I a Barramut cutcherry, you have not wrote w ell; do you bring your
that it fhould be ready ? Moonfhy with you in the evening, it fhall be

(Comaul O Deen defired to go on with his wrote here. I was angry, and tore that 
flory.)  ̂ arzee, threw it away, and came home. I

Having received my difmiffion from Maha went again in the evening, took my Moonfhy® 
Rajah, I went to my houfe at Houghly ; four and brought him into the prefence of Maha
or five days after I heard that Moonfhy Sudder Rajah. Then he called his own Moonfhy
P  Deen was come to Calcutta. I came to Doman S in g ; having called him, he eaufed

my
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my Moonfliy to write out afoul draught; and I ver, and Adawlet Gnoflen apply? and who 
then direfted his own Moonfhy to write it out' iflfues the order ? Mr. Fowke faid, Leave that 
fair, I am not fure whether he made Doman to me. Then Mr. Fowke was angry with 
Sing or my Moonfliy write out the foul me; when he was angry, I grew afraid. When 
draught. After that, Maha Rajah took it, I faw he was angry, I put my jamma in this 
and Hr nek out fome things with his pen, and manner about my neck, and fell at his feet, 
made my Moonfliy write it out fair. When and faid, Mr. Fowke, this is all a lie ; 1 am 
Maha Rajah took the pen to alter the draught, a poor man ; don’t ruin me. Mr. Fowke,
I  told him I had a pain in my belly, and hearing this, took up a book, and cried out, 
Wanted to go home, and that my Moonfliy G — d d—n you, you fon of a bitch 1 When 
would write it out fair. Then Maha Rajah he took up the book, and called me names, I 
faid, Are you in a great deal o f pain? I faid, faid, Bring it, and I will feal it. tie then 
I am. He then faid, Go, and come to-mor- put down the book; my body (hook for fear, 
row morning ; Rada Churn will go with you and I fat down on the ground in this man- 
to Mr. Fowke’ s, and will there caufe the ner I dried, and fat on the ground. He then 
arzee to be given to you : I will fpeak to gave me the arzee, and I fealed it.  ̂ He then 
Rada Churn to that purppfev I went home) cried out  ̂ fe ll thefe people to be witnefies; I 
and then it was about a par or a par and a faid, It is very well. Fie then took out a 
half of the night.; my Moonfliy and Shuk Yar furd, and fhewed me. Within three years have 
Mahomed came, from Maha Rajah’s. Shuk you given 45,000 rupees to Mr. Barwell; 1.
Y ar Mahomed ' faid,. Maha Rajah fent this 15,000 rupees perannum? _ I faid, I have 
arzee, do you put your feal upon it. I faid, given it. He then faid, Did you give the 
There was no agreement between Maha Rajah Governor a nuzzeer of 15,000 rupees r I laid, 
and me about fealing it. I then gave Sheik I gave it. Did you give Huflieia Jung 12,000 
Y ar Mahomed my Hooka to fmoke, and then rupees ? I faid, Yes, 1 did. Did you give 
he went away. At that time my feal was not Rajah Ragibullub 7,000 rupees. I  laid, I 
in my hand ; it was in my cheft. In the morn- did. Did jm
ing I went to M r. Fowke’ s ; Rada Churn was pees ? I faid, I did. He fai^ S ign  this. Upon 
fitting in young Mr. Fowke’s room ; I weiu fome of the names I wrote, 1 had given ; upon 

” l  c i  there : when I had tat down other* I wrote,
Rada Churn went in to old Mr. Fowke. from me, he fa,d, Go.
Rada Churn (laid a gurry or two with Mr. wiping my face. Running away from thence,

.  ?owke T h en  Rada C lJ n  came from there, I came to the Rair cafe, and flood ere. 
and fat down where he fat before, in young Samflieer Beg was handing there, 1 faid to 
M r Fowke’s room. In a few minutes Accour1 him, See, this force is put upon m . 
M u „!0ahk« J = T n d  called me and told . =  fheer Beg « to me^I f^ th at^ o u  « £ £
that M r. Fowke wanted me. Iw e n tto h im , m g , t  m Will you heat what is
M r. Fowke was fitting on the bed and gave, heartL J '.tod  to > ^  and Rada

* me a chair to fit down oppofite to him i he the lau| hing T and flood at the
fir ft faid a few civil words to me; he then 1 hall. Mhen faid to young Mr.
took the arzee from the bed, and defire _ L  g j ve me back thofe papers which

. to feal it. There were two Irin gy  waiters and I F o u k ,^ C  from me by force, or I
two Bengalees Handing behind me, on ) c , romDiain to the General and to 
the Bengalees was Aubos M ann; the other wi W hen I had faid this, he told
do not know. M r.-Fowke faid, Seal t , n . they both went in to M r. Fowke;
S «  give it. I  faid, there is no agreement mt o ftay ^  after having »sid .
between Maha Rajah and me to fea l; it ! ^  y oung Mr. Fowke brought out
not an arzee ; it is a jabob fawaul. W ho s a Ion tune. ^  ^  ^  faid, Your 
the perfon to whom the words Gurreeb,- Pun* a cover ^  arzee
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a i r f a r e  all within this ; I will put them to-] bad patted between Maha Rajah and me, and 
<hv in mv own cheft; do you come here in then went home. The next morning I went 
t J  m o rn L -; Maha Rajah will come al-fo: again to M r. Fowke’s ; and there was Mr. 
whatever Maha Rajah fays, and will be your Fowke, Maha Rajah, and Roy Rada Churn ; 
u lciure fliall be done. I was remedilefs, I do not know where young M r. Fowke was. 
and came to my own houfe. When I got to For fear, I Rood on the ftair cafe, and did 
mv own houfe, I eat nothing ; fear arofe in not go into the room. About a gurry after 
mv mind When four gurries o f the day Mr. Fowke came out o f the room ; I lalammcd 
were remaining, I went to Moonlhy Sudder to him ; he took no notice of it, and went
0  Deen’s and faid, Roy Rada Churn has dealt o u t: then Maha Rajah and Roy Rada Churn 
treacheroufly (dagger) by me; they have came out; then I alked of Maha Rajah, W hat 
caufed me to write a very fcandalous paper of have you done for m e. He aniwered, 1
Bar-amuds: if in the morning Maha Rajah have fpoke to M r. Fowke about- it, but he docs 
gives me back this paper, it is very w e ll; if not hear me : do not you mind. In faying 
he does not, I fliall ruin m yfelf: do ^ou0 en-1 this, Maha Rajah got intoJiis. palanquin, and 

-quire after me in the morning, and acquaint went away. I called out, Duoy on the Ring, 
M r. Bar well and M r. Vanfittarr, that this op- and the Court, the Governor and-on the Coun- 
preflion has been ufed upon me. I am going cil. Having called out Duoy, I tore my 
now to Maha Rajah’s, and at night I will jamma, and cried out, Mr. Fowke, Maha 
come to you. Having faid this, I went to Rajah, and Roy Radachurn, have caufed me 
Maha Rajah’s ; Maha ra jah  was in private; to write out a falfe baramud paper againft 
Roy Rada Churn was with, him: Samfoeer gentlemen, and I am going, to the court to 
Beg, Shirk. Yar Mahomed and 1 fat down in complain. Then Yar Mahomed and Nelloo 
the gateway, I faid to them, Four pars o f Sing laid hold o f my hands, or one of them ; 
the day this oppreflion has been upon m e; having difengaged my hands, I went into my 
that I have yet four pars of the day to re- own palanquin. Many people, I do not know 
main in this manner. I afked Y ar Mahomed j whether M r. Fowkes, Maha Rajah's, or Roy 
for a glafs of water ; and he gave it me. Sam- Rada Churn's went feu filing <dong with my 
fheer Beg and I in the evening faid our pray-J people and my bearers as far as a houfe of 
ers together. After faying our prayers, 11 Rajah RajibulLub’s, Inafh Connah. Ihen  
went to Roy Rada Churn, and faid to him, they went back. 1 came and gave notice of 
On your account I have been abufed and dif- it to the Chief Juft i ce Lord Saub. I am fifty 
graced by Mr. Fowke ; and he has, by force, (years old ; I have feen the Durbars of Soubah  ̂
caufed.me. to write a paper I cannot prove.: and Kings, and fuch a-Court I have never
1 cannot fit, give me a pillow to lay down. feen. I have read of fuch a court that now 
He then gave me a pillow, and I laid down, fhah wan; and at the time I lodged the com- 
Roy Rada Churn faid, I have explained this plaint, I had no idea it was.fuch a Court. I 
matter to Maha Rajah, and he-is very angry underftood that M r. Fowke was oppreffive 
with Mr. Fowke. Maha Rajah will juft, now and powerful, and Maha Rajah and Rada 
come.; do you go to him, he will tell you all. Churn were fo likewife ; and did not expeft 
I lay there about a gurry or more, when to have found fuch juftice to a poor man. I 
Maha Rajah came out into the Dewan Con- thought to myfelf, I  fliall be ruined, my poft 
nah: I then went to him, and fat down, will go from me. When I go away from the 
Maha Rajah faid, I have ,heard every thing! Adawleet, M r. Fowke or Maha Rajah, who 
from Roy Rada Churn; never mind, I will (are the mafters of the country, will imprifon 
go in the morning to Mr. Fowke’s ; whatever! me, and very great ruin will enfue ; and no» 
will content you (hall be done. He then gave | ruin will accrue to you, from hearing M r. 
me beetle and my difnfftion. I then went to : Fowke's, Maha Rajah's, and Roy Rada Churn's 
Moonfhy Sudder O’Deen, and told him w hat; words. From doing this bufinefs to the plea­

sure
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fure of M r. Fowke, Maha Rajah, and Rovl ' 9upft w u  a-a i_. , ■
Rada Churn ; I thought, if I would agree to agreeable to Mr. FowkT? ‘ be
take a falfe oath before the Committee, no Anf Whatever Mr. Fowke would have bid
rum would enfue j but my rehg.on would me write, I would have written!

t v j  m t . b  • i  r> t> , ■ %?/?• Why fhould you think Mr. Fowke
Quejl- Did Maha Rajah or Roy Rada would be angry if you faid No ?

Churn aflc you for the Barramut? and did Anf. I was in his power ; he was in a paf- 
they tell you for what purpofe they wanted fion, and angry with me. 1

lt ?^ r  w k  * Tv/r i « '•  i DoD,t you know that Mr. Fowke
AnJ. W hat Maha Rajah told me about it wanted you to fay, I did not give ?

I  have caufed to be wrote down, about the (Couldget no other anfwer to this quf-
Governor s being put to lhame mEurope: Mr. tion than what was given to the laft)
Barwell, Mr. Vanfmart, and Mr. John Gra- guejl. What did Mr. Fowke fay to you 
ham, and their confequence in this affair, will about the furd ? J
he ê ŝ# . -Anf- He afked me if I had given Mr. Bar-

- From whom .did you hear that the well 45,000 rupees ? 1 anfwered, Y e s ; I was
Governor and the other Gentlemen would be fo frightened, I fhould have faid Yes to anythin^ 
brought to fhame ? he faid.

Anf I heard it from the Maha Rajah, Mr, Queft. Could you colled, from the manner
Fowke, and Rada Churn. of Mr. Fowke’s putting the queftion, that he

Stueft. When you had fealed the arzee, expefted you fhould anfwer Yes ?
Was it returned to you or Mr. Fowke ? Anf. I know very well, if I did not fay Yes,

Anf. Mr. Fowke kept it. I fhould be difgraced.
Quejl. Do you know what ufe was made of Queft. How did you know that ? 

the arzee ? Anf. When I was fworn at, and called
Anf. I know nothing of it. names, and the book lifted up, what remained
S$ueft. When you fay you know nothing of but to anfwer as Mr. Fowke pleafed ? He did 

it, do you mean, you have never feen it not tell me to fay Y es; but he afked me if I 
fince ? did ; and I anfwered Yes.

Anf. I can’ t fay I have never feen it fince; Quefi. What reafon had you at that time 
I law  it at Lord Saule’s, and in that room, to fuppofe, that M r. Fowke wanted you to 

('pointing to the Grand Jury room), fay rhofe Gentlemen had received money ?
* £>uejl. Did you give thofe fums to the Go- Anf At firfl when I went to Maha Rajah, 

vernor and the other Gentlemen ? he afked for a Barramut, and for the Barra-
Anf. I never gave any body five rupees. mut of Hidgetee. Why am I afked this 
Queft. Then why did you fay to Mr. Fowke queftion, when he has a cutcherry of Barra-

that you had ? muts? •
Anf. Mr. Fowke had taken up a book, and Quejl. Who do you mean by be* Mr. 

was in a great paffion. I did it through fear ; Fowke or Maha Rajah ? . , ,
i f  you was to frighten me, you might make Anf. It was firft held at Maha Rajahs, af- 
me fip-n an affignment of the kingdom of In- terwards at Mr. Fowke’s. Who is he, that 
doftan. all r^e wor^  fhould go to him: he is no Coun­

t y ? .  How came you, when you was fellor: there is no other perfon in Calcutta 
frightened, to fay Yes to the queflions put by that has fuch an aflemblage of black people at

* Mr Fowke ? kk houfe.
Anf I was frightened ; if  he did not intend Sfueft. Who ordered the perfons to folow 

that I fhould fay Yes, why did he write the your palanquin, when you went from Mr,
p a p e r? , , Fo^ kces? Anf
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ti T , then came down; and faid,-he had delivered
i f j  Whofc fervants are Sheik Yar Ma- the chit to Mr. Fowke ; that Rada Churn was 

j m , o;n_ ? then with him; and when' he was gone, we
Maha Rajah Nundocomar’s. fliould be called up. He went away in about

t i 'n  Did any body elfe touch you ? four gurrys. We went up ; Mr. Fowke was
An/ Yes all the Hircarrahs. fitting upon a chair ; he then began to enquire
%ueH What do you expeft would be done of me about Hedgelee the revenues of it, 

rovou ifvour people were lefs powerful than what it was worth, and. every circumftance 
. K m J ) 1 about the fait, and all other matters about

Z r  How do I know whether they would that country. Barnaffy Ghofe then told M r.
carry me to the General’s or elfewhere ? I Fowke, that I had rented the Tecka Collar-
thought they would either confine me in their ries, o f Englifh Gentlemen, at a very great
own houfe, or carry me to the Ceneral’s. expence.

$uejl. Why did you particularly think they $ueft- What do you mean by a very great
would carry you to the General’s, more than expence ? _
to any other of the Council P M -  Barnaffy Ghofe.told M r. Fowke, that

Anf; Mr Fowke ufed to go to three Gen- I had expended large fums o f money on
tlemen the General, Colonel Monfon, and bribes to Englifh Gentlemen for the Tecka
Mr. Francis. I have feen it with my eyes. Collaries. M r. Fowke then asked me,. Does 

Quell. I f Mr. Fowke had wanted you to this man fpeak truth ? I faid, He lies. M r. 
fwear to thus furd, would you have done Fowke replied, You have given rupees to the 
f0 ? Englifh Gentlemen. Then young M r. Fowke

Anf. I f  he had killed me, I would not have came, and there was a great deal of conver- 
fwornfalfely ; but if he had demanded of me fation between them; and then young M r. 
to promife to fwear it another time, I would Fowke gave me my difmiffion; and told me 
have permitted it ; but I would not have done to come next day. I went accordingly the

next morning; and M r. Fowke again inter- 
' Queft. You fay, you have feen the Rad- rogated me, as to all the bufinefs o f the 

fhaky people, and that it was bad; what did country; and again asked me i f  I had not 
you mean by bad ? given money to M r. Yanfittart. 1 anfwered,
y Anf 1 faw them there; and 1 thought It is all a lie ; and then M r. Fowke was 
the keeping a cutcherry of Barramuts was angry, and he and young M r. Fow ke talked 
bad. Englifh together, and difmifled me. I went

Queft. Do you know Barnaffy Ghofe ? again on the third day.
Anf I do ; he is a ryot of mine. % # •  What date was all this ?
9HutJL Did he make any complaint againft Anf I do not remember accurately the day 

y0U ? 1 received the chit from the General ; this
Anf Yes, he did, to the G eneral; he fent iconverfation was either the laft day of Aughun 

for me ; he laid his hand upon the nuzzer of or firth of Poos.
five rupees which 1 offered, but did not take Queft* W hat paffed on the third day ?

• it, and gave me beetle, and told me to come A nf He asked me what I had given to the 
, to-morrow. His Dewan told him I was come ; Englifh Gentlemen, and what to the Mut- 

the General wrote a chit, and fent it and fuddies.^ He told me to tell the truth: if I 
another paper, together with me and Barnaffy did not, I fhould be greatly punifhed. I faid, 
Ghofe, to Mr. Fowke, and Mr. Fowke would 1 had given nothing to any body. He faid, °> 
enquire into it, and report it to hirq.; then You fpeak this without reafon. 1 then faid, 
the General’s man went with me and Barnaffy 1 am a farmer, and no thief.
Ghofe to Mr. Fowke’s houfe ; he went up S/ueJL Did any thing more pafs on the third 
flairs, and left us two below ; the feryant day l

Anf
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i f j  r &  W€Dt ®  “ L ® ?  h° °  p  > Did the arzee contain any t i l ' , £
% f * T D,d y ° uu g °  j ? . the General’s ? than what palled between Mr. Fowke
Anf. I w ent; but did not meet with him fy Ghofe, and you ?

' -TTTTi j - , , Anf. I here might be a word or two -Wi.,
gpejt. W hat did you next . more, about my own affairs, which I M
AnJ. 1 came home, and confidered in my remember, whether relative to Mr. i v

own mind, Whatever has pad between M r. Barnaffy Ghofe, and myfelf 
Fowke and me, if  I write and give fo much, % /? . After you went to Rajah Raieouiiuo,
1  do not know whether the Governor will be who did you firft apply to ?
angry with me. Anf. I firft applied to 'the Governor; he

Jueft. — raid, I cannot adminifter juftice to you ; they
Anf. W hat did I know that the Governor are three Gentlemen; I am but two.

would, be angry with me ! therefore I did not Queft. Who did he mean, by three and two 
write much; bur, having caufed a little to Gentlemen ?
be wrote, I went and gave it to the Governor, Anf. I do not take upon me to explain the
and I told him all by word of mouth. The Governor’s meaning. He faid, If you have
Governor faid, You have wrote in your arzee any complaint, the Kings Court is here ; lodge 
little, and by word of mouth you fay a great your complaint there, 
deal ; whatever you tell me by word of mouth Quejl. Did you lodge any complaint ?
write down in an arzee, and I will enquire Anf I then faid, How {hall I get to the
about it in the Committee. I  anfwered, I have Adawlet, to lodge my complaint? Mr. 
not my Moonfhy with me; I will write it out, Fowke’s people will take me on the road, 
and bring it to-morrow morning. The Gover- Then the Governor fpoke to a Chubdar, and 
nor anfwered, I f  you have not your Moonfhy faid, Do you go along with this man to the 
with you, take mine; and whatever you have Chief Juftice’s houfe. 1 then went to the 
to write, he will write it. The words the Chief juftice’s, and came into his prefence. 
Governor then ufed, in the Hindoftan lan- (Mr. Summer produces two arzees, and a let-
guage, I did not underftand. He defired Mr. ter in which they were enclofed.) 
Vanfittart to explain them to me in Perfian ; Quefl. From whom did you receive thefe ?
then M r. Vanfittart explained them to me, that Anf. I received them from one of the Se-
the Governor had faid, My Moonfhy is here; cretaries of the public department; I received 
do you caufe it to be wrote by him.. I agreed them from Mr. Auriol. 
to i t ; and the Governor called his own Moon­
fhy Shereit Oollah Cawn, and told him, What- Crofs Examination of Comaul 0 Deen. 
ever this man has to write, do you write for /  .  . w .
him. I then caufed him to write whatever had Quejl. Have you converted with any body 
paffed between M r. Fowke and me: having on the fubjett of your examination. 
wrote it, I gave it to the Governor ; and the Anf. With nobody,
Governor having caufed it to be read to him Quejl. Have you giveri an a^onnt m . -
bv the Moonfhy, he kept it, and gave me my verfation or writing, due y o> 1 - '
difmiflion, and returned me the fmall arzee I Anf. I have not faid any g >
had given him. I then came to my own or feen the appearance o pen a 
had gtven 7 Has any Moonfhy ?

Quejl. Was what you dictated to the Moon- AnJ. 1 do not k“ 0J ” ^ n7i did'
.  fhy a true account ? , 1 was ab° ve * *  W3S bebW ’

Anf. Whatever paffed between M r. Fowke to hg^abouu ^  Ghile ^
Barnaffy Ghofe, and myfelf, I caufed to J g r  money of Maha 'Rajah Nundoco,
wrote truly. C c 2
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Anf. I firft demanded it on the firft o f C hyle; Anf. I had occaGon for i t ;  therefore I .
I cot the rupees the 13th or 14th. borrowed it. The bond carries an intereft of

""Quefl Did you receive the money ? one rupee per month. _
Anf. Y es; I was paid in gold mohurs. Quejl. Had you any converfation on any
Quefl Did you give any fecurity ? other fubjeft with Maha Rajah ? •
Anf. I gave a Tomaffuk. Anf Whenever I went, he converfed with
Quefl When did you apply to borrow the me on no other fubjea but the Barramut. 

money7?' §uejl. W hat converfation had -you the day
Auf l often before borrowed money of you received the money ? 

him ; this was not the fir ft time. -Anf* I  did not fee Maha Rajah when I  re-
Quefl. When was the laft time before this, ceivedthe money. .

youborrowed money of Maha Rajah ? was it Quejl. Had you any converfation with Maha 
within two or four months ? Raj$h at the time he defired you to go to Roy:

Anf. Not within two or four months. .Rada Churn about the money ?
Quefl'ion repeated. Anf. There was that converfation about the
Anf It was between 12 or 14  months. Munny Begum I related yefterday : i f  you 
Quefl. Are you fure it was not more ? pleafe, I will tell it again.
Anf I paid the balance due to Maha Ra- Quefl. Did Maha Rajah ask any queftions 

;ah. o f you yourfelf ?
Quejlion repeated. A nf He asked me If I  had heard what had
Anf. It was two or four years fince I borrow- palled between the Governor and him; he faid> 

cd, when Rupea O Din Cawn was Pnoufdar I was not his enemy ; I was John Graham s. 
of Houghly; I have borrowed none fince ; I Quefl. Did he ask any other queftion ?
borrowed through the means of Roy Rada Anf (Relates word for word what he faw~
Churn ; it was in the year .of the famine, five yejlerdayf) > «
or fix months before the famine ; I  cannot ex- Quefl. Did Maha Rajah ask any particular 
attly fix the date. queftions?

Quefl. Did you never apply between that A nf ̂ Hear me what I am going to relate :
time and Chyle to borrow money ? he asked Barramuts.

Anf I never made any application. Quefl. W hat did he - ask about Barra-
Quefl. Had you ever vifited between? muts? %
Anf. I had frequently. Anf. He faid to me, That when the Gover-
Quejl. When did you laft vifit him before nor told me, I will be revenged on you, I,, 

the month of Chyle ? being remedilefs, confulted with M r. Fowke^
Anf M y fon was married in the month of I f  you will bring to me the papers o f Barra- 

Phaugun, and I then paid the cuftomary com- muts againft the Governor, M r. Barwell, and' 
pi intent to Maha Rajah of fending fweet- M r. Vanfittart, thofe Gentlemen will meet 
meats. with fhame at home, and I  will give you the

Quefl. When did you vifit the Maha Ra- bnfinefs of Aumeen of the Khalfa. 
jali ? Quefl. Did he ask you any other words. ex«-

Artf. I carried the fweetmeats myfelf, and cept thofe about the Barramuts > 
prefented him with a nuzzeer. W e were on Anf. He faid, Do you this bufinels of 
terms of friend fliip a long time before. Hedgelee Comgeer, Tumlook, and* the fait.

Quefl. How long before the month of Chile, Mhauls, and from wherever you can. B y  bu­
rn-which you'borrowed the money ? finefs, I mean Barramuts. *>

Anf. It was the laft o f Phaugun. „ 1 Qnefl. Did this converfation pafs on the
Qvefl: W hy did you apply to borrow mo- day Maha Raj all. bid youappjy to. Ray Rada;

ney ?' 1 Churn?
* / : Anff
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Anf. Yes, that day; and he laughed and iBarwell’s and Mr. Vanfittart’s ? Roy Rada
W Then.„the ^ Urdwf  RaJ ah Sets his Churn anfwered, They are always calling him,

© I ?  M W C° n ur W'tb f  !n order to reconcile him to the Governor
. H ?w came thls Particular converfa- but Malta Rajah will not. 1 faid Great men

UOj l ° f  T 1 , „  . kll0W the bu^ eft of 6* * *  ™en ; I am a poorAnJ. How mould I know what was Maha man : Go and tell fo much for me to the Malta
Rajah s reafons for introduc.ng it ? Rajah, that I am going to the wedding of

tn what manner was it intro- my fon, and requeft of him that he will agree 
ducf y  . . to accept of the fweetmeats.* He then faid,

AnJ. I went there to vifit h im ; he told me Do you fit down ; I am going to Maha Rajah, 
all thefe words, and gave thefe anfwers. He returned in two gurries after, and faid, I

T e ll the converfation. have fatisfied Maha R ajah ; he will accept
Anf. Firft, in the month of Phaugun I went the fweetmeats^ I f  you are to go to Roughly 

to Roy Rada Churn, and told him, Do you to-day, go, and fend the fweetmeats; and if 
tell Maha Rajah, that there is to be a wed- you do* not go to-day, come to-morrow, and 
ding of my fon, and beg him to receive the get your difmiffion from Maha Rajah. I faid, 
fweetmeats. Roy Rada Churn faid, Maha 1 have taken difmiffion from the Governor, 
Rajah will take the fweetmeats at your Ion’s and all the Gentlemen, except Mr. Cottrell; 
wedding, and will {hew you many kindneffes; I will go to-morrow and get my difmiffion from 
this is your old home ; you muft be on terms him ; and at a par and a half of the day I 
o f friendfhip with Maha Rajah- He has will come to Maha Rajah, and get my dif- 
taken proper meafures about, the Gover- miffion from him. I went next morning, got 
nor, Mr. Barwell, and M r. Vanfittart, and my difmiffion from Mr. Cottrell, and at a par
other Gentlemen. W hat they have ate, they and a half or two pars of the day I went to
will be obliged to difgorge ; and will be put Maha Rajah’s. He was not there, nor Roy
to ftiame in their own country, and will be Rada Churn. I fat down in the Dewan

' called'thieves. Connah : juft as I fat down, Maha Rajah’s
Quejl. D id Roy Rada Churn fay, proper Sewarry came, and he alfo came. I then- 

meafures taken ? or did he fay, that Maha went down, and Maha Rajah was got out o f 
Rajah Nundocomar faid fo l his palanquin ; as he was going in, I paid my

Anf. It was what Maha Rajah faid. Salams to him ; Maha Rajah ftopt, and faid,
Queji. G o on. I have heard from Roy Rada Churn about

• Anf, And in proportion to the bad name, your marriage: May G od profper it ! Un- 
thatthe Gentlemen have given to Maha Rajah doubtedly, when there is a marriage at you* 
here, he will have a good, one in England. I houfe, and you fend fweetmeats, I will re- 
(.Comaul) faid,, There ufed to be great friend- ceive them^ and if there is a marriage at my 
fhip between the Governor, Mr. Barwell, and houfe, I will fend fweetmeats to you. He 
M aha Rajah.— Was it this ? W hat is the called for the Pandor, gave me Beetle, am 
r.eafon of their reparation? He anfwered, my difmiffion. I then wentto Hough!), aid 
Maha Rajah was Mr. John Graham’s enemy; at the marriage of my lhe
he was not an. enemy of the Governor or Mr. meats to Maha Rajah and Rada Churn ;̂ thej 
Barwell. The Governor and. M r. Barwell'both accepted of them. I returned the lit 
had themfelves made the Maha Rajah their C h y le - I  do nor know- whet!ber the 3 
enemy, and had forbid him to.go to their Phaugun or* 1 ft of Chyle. J ^  
houfcs; and now the Governor preffes Maha my arrival I went to pay my r" P c" s,
Rajah to come to his hoofer and Maha Ra- Governor Mr. Vanlitrart :and al he 
iah fays, I will never fee his face I will never tlemen.- T h 3 2 d day I went to i aha 
g o ; and 1 Stall conlider well of him. I then Maha Rajah was not there, went . n; . 
atked, W hy does Maha Rajah go to Mr. I down, in the Dewan. Connah ,

5*̂



time Mali a Rajah came. I prefen ted him with wrong. Do you bring Barramuts of widgelee 
a  nuzzeer of one gold! mohur. He took it, &c. againft the fame Gentlemen, 
anddefired me to fit down; which I did; He £>ueft. Did Maha Rajah defire you to get 
firft afked me about my health, and the mar- falfe Barramuts?
riage. He then faid, Did you hear at Houghly Anf He faid nothing to me o f falfe Barra* 
what palled between the Governor, and how muts ; he defired me to bring fuch as I could 
I have proved him to be in the wrong ? I faid, get.
I have not heard particularly ; but I have Queft. Did he defire you to get falfe Barra- 
heard you gave in Barramuts againft the Go- muts, or of fuch people who had a&ually 
vernor, and that you have been before the given money ?
Council with refpedt to the Barramuts. I Anf.' He never faid falfe or true.
have not heard the particulars ; but people in Queft. Did you underftand that he meant
general fay, that there was great friendfhip falfe or true ?
between the Governor and you, and now there Anf. How fhould I know what was in his 
is a great nuzzeea; people laugh at this. I f  breaft ?
the Zemindars had done it, it would not have £>uejl. I f  you had been willing to oblige
dignified ; but that yon have done it, is very him, do you think falfe Barramuts would have
bad. 1 hen Maha Rajah faid, What can I anfwered that purpofe ? 
do? I was to efcape from the Governor’s Anf What 1 know, and he faid, I tell. I 
hands. I f  I had not done it, I fhould not cannot tell what he thought, 
have efcaped from .the Governor’s hands : be- £>ueft. W as the matter o f the arzees, com­
ing remedilefs, I* did it, He then began to plaining of Gunga Govin Sing, true or falfe ? 
relate what I related yefterday and to-day. Anf I did not give them in as complaints; 
Ih e  converfation went on as I yefterday re- I did it to frighten him. I wrote therein what- 

h* ' ever I thought.
W h en did you fpeak to Roy Rada Queft* repeated.

Churn about the rupees on loan ? Anf I did not do it as a complaint; I wrote
AnJ. When I went up to Houghly. Maha much, to frighten him. There was fome money 

Rajah then told me to go and get the rupees due to me : I put in a great deal more to.
r̂°n  ^  , Queji* W hat, is the amount o f the money

ffueji. W hat pafled about Barramuts on demanded by the arzees I  
this la ft day you mentioned ? A nf You have the arzees, look at them.

Anf What I have related, interpreting many Queft. W as the whole o f the money <3ue ° 
during the courfe of the examination. *  demanded in the arzees ?

What was faid about Barramuts ? Anf It is the cuftom o f Farmers, where 
Anf He faid, I was an enemy to John Gra- one rupee is due, to put in four. I f  I coin- 

ham, and he was to me.̂  Ihe Governor faid, plained, I fhould fpecify ; i f  on oath, I fhould 
e on your guard, I will confider o f you. I fpecify. There may be money due from me? 

have confulted with Mr. Fowke. Mr. Fowke to the Company : I fhould, i f  afked, fay there 
fays, Do you give me Barramuts againft the was none due.

oveir^or, Mr. Barwell, Mr. Vanfittart, and Sfueft. Is that matter fettled between Gunga 
other Gentlemen ; they will meet with fhame Govin Sing and you f 
m their own country ; and I will procure for A nf It is, by Moonlhy Sudder O Deen.
you the Kallaut o f the Aumeen of the Khalfa. Quefl. W hat did you receive ?
u remec^^e^  gave in a Barramut againft A n f No one talks o f their own richest)

the Governor, on account of Munny Begum. $ueft. repeated.
lhere was a converfation in the Council about A nf I f  Mr. Cottrell was to know what I 

e overnor and me till one par of the night, received, he would, upon my going away 
ave proved the Governor to be in the from hence, immediately imprifon me. Iam

indebted
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indebted to other Merchants: if they were to Roy Rada Churn had informed him what 
know I had received money, they would come palled when he delivered the arzees ? 
upon me. Whatever was wrote in the arzee, Anf Yes. That when the account came 
I got. before the Council, the General would fee*

£>ueJK p id  you get 26,000 rupees, which that juftice was done. How do I know what 
is mentioned in the arzee ? was in his breaft ? What he told me, I have

Anf. I did get 26,000 rupees. Farmers en- anfwered. 
gaged in bufinefs have various accompts. 1 Suejl. When did you firft after go to Mr- 
owed him money ; that was dedufted. I re- Fowke’s ?
ceived fome money. Anf. I don’ t remember the day.

Sguejl. Did you receive the whole in money, Que/l. As near as you can recollect ?
or was the debt of yours to him fet off? A nf I  think the day following.

Anf It was fettled by Moonlhy Sudder O Who did you fee at Mr. Fowke’s?
Deen. W hat was due to me I go t; what was Anf How can I tell ? There was a cut- 
due to him he got. cherry there.

guejl. Did you get 6000 rupees in money Queji. Do you remember the names of any 
or fecurities ? perfons you faw there ?

A nf I got more. Anf I can’t tell the name of any one*. .
Quejl. Did you get it in calh ? There were a great many people •, Zemindars*
Anf. I received in ready money more than Moguls, Bootans, and Hiicarrahs.

6-000 rupees. D ‘> )'ou know the name of any one
Sue ft. Did you receive more than is due l perfon you faw in the houfe ?
Anf I got 10,000 rupees in ready money c Anf. I did not go to write down their names--

1 6,000 was due from me to him ; that was al- I might have feeni many whofe names I knew, 
lowed him. but dont recollect. There was one or Mr-

Sue ft. Was the matter of complaint in the Fowke’s Moonlhys, either that or the next day,. 
arzees"7 true or falfe ? I  don’t know which, quarrelled with me; and

Anf. What was wrote in the arzees was Roy Rada Churn threatened the Moonftiy. 
partly true, and partly exaggerated from the gueft. Did you fee  any one the firft ay 
enmity between us. I had feparate accompts, whofe name }ou reco - * ■
b T X h p a n o f  the bufinefs was fettled. ' t * /  I do not recollefl the name of » ,

n writing in nis room.
he .0,000 r u p e e s  d u e  on th e  Did yo u  .p e a k  to h,n

r e a fo n s  in  th e  a r z e e .  yx/ oc th e re  m uch ccavcrfo t.
Anf. Gunga Govin Sing, as Dewan to the ‘ ^  R Rad . Ghur-t

^ 4  g i » * •  g  :
f o r  *ny a c c o u n t o f  lan d  re v e n u e s . y t tRat time [Do -

. $uefl. Was y o u  g r e a t ly  in d eb ted  on  a c c o u n t .  j  neithcr undenlood »fr to :>
of your lan d  r e v e n u e  ? •> . , r e ro e R  to G u n g a  G o v m  S m ;

Anf I was indebted a large ^m  of money. w 1 P J  underftood in „ •
Snefi. Did Nundocomar ever tell )ou, that bod>
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undcrftood Maha Rajah and Mr. Fowke talk gueft. Did any perfon in the room do any
in this way. I laid to myfelf, I am poor, thing ? -y' ■
don’t go into fuch company; and I went to Anf. "What mould they do .
neither of them for two days. I went on Queft. When you went into the room, w as
thofe two days to pay vifits; why fliould I go the door fattened ? ,
on this bufinefs ? A nf When I went in, it had been fattened ;

Queft. Where was Moonfhy Sudder O Deen when I came out, it was not fattened ; when I 
at that time ? went away, it was opened.

Anf. He was at his out-houfe ; not in Cal- Queft. W ere there many people about in 
cutra. the Veranda ?

Quejl. Did you make any objections to what Anf. A t that time there were but two or 
Maha Rajah (truck out of the arzee? three people-; it was part noon ; they were all

Anf No. gone.
$ueft. What were the words ? • % #  Did you offer to go away when Mr.
Anf I remember, Gereb Puriver (and re- Fowke threatened you ? 

peats feme other words) ; I heard it read; but A nf H o w co u ld lgo , without M r. Fowke’s 
do not remember. leave}?

Queft, When did you go again to M r. $ueft. Did you ever ask leave ?
Fowke’s ? Anf. W hy Jfhould I ask leave ? I put my

Anf. The next day, at nine in the morning, clothes round my neck, and laid down, 
or rather after. Ŝ ueft. Did any perfon befides M r. Fowke

Who was in M r. Fowke’s room when threaten you ? 
you went in ? Anf. Young IVlr. Fowke (liewed me kind-

Anf. Aecoor Munnah called me, and car- nefs. 
riedmewith him. M r. Fowke was fitting on Qucjl. W as he in the room then ? -
his bed, with his feet u p ; there were two Anf. No ; when 1 came to the ftair-cafe, I
Bengallies and two writers ftanding behind faw young Mr. Fowke and Rada Churn, 
me. '  ’ A re you fure you had not fealed the

Queft. How long did the two Bengallies and- arzee before thefe threats ? 
two writers (lay there ? * Anf. I did not.

Anf. As long as there was good converfa- §{uejl. W hen you fealed it, did you fign 
tion between Mr. Fowke and me, I know that it ? c
four men flood there; when he took up the Anf. I do not remember whether I fign <33 
book, and I threw myfelf down on the ground; the arzee or no: I think not.
I then looked up, and faid, Bear witnefs; and §ueft. Do you mean by figning, putting 
after that, I don’t know who went or came; I your name to it, or putting volaab to it ? 
was down on the ground crying. ^ Anf. I was at that time out o f my fenfes;

§!ueji. When you called to bear witnefs, I can fay with certainty, that in my remem- © 
were the two Bengallies and two writers in the branee I did not fign it. 
room ? Queft* W as you ever threatened by M r.

'Anf. I|do not know whether any one was Fowke more than once ?
there; 1 hardly faw myfelf. W hen M r. Anf. Not after the other difpute in the
Fowke took up the book, and I fat on the month of Poos, 
ground, and called out, Bear witnefs, I do Queft. Did he threaten then ?
not know whether there were a hundred or Anf. It was harfh converfation ; but notjo
none: I was diftrelfed at my own fituation. bad as the laft. I  have not feen him fince, 

Queft. Did any body fay any thing to you ? except at the Chief Juftice’ s and here.
Anf. No.. A re you fure you did not fee him

j again that day ? Anf.
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Anf. W hy fhould I ? Young Mr. Fowke Anf I don’t know; the letters appeared to 
comforted m e: I went away to my own be Rada Churn’s : I fpeak from guefs.

: Queft. How came you to fay Yes, rather
^uejt. At the time the book was taken up, than No, to Mr. Fowke’s queftion ?

who i we re there ? Anf. He held up a book to me, when I re-
Anf The four men were there; but not fufed to feal the arzee; 1 intended to fay 

when I was crying on the ground. No.
Queft. Did you write on the ground ? ^ue/l. Did you think Mr. Fowke would
Anf Yes. ftrike you, if you did not fay Yes ?
Queft. Did you carry a pen and ink with | Anf When he held up the book, upon my 

you? I faying No t6 his defire of fealing the arzee,
Anf. There was a Sicca Dewar, pen and 11 conceived he would have (truck me if I had 

paper, ready upon Mr. Fowke’s bed. anfwered No to the queftion put as to the
Sjucft. Do you recoil eft what was wrote ? ford.
Anf Firft, the name of Bar well was wrote, What diftanoe of time was there bt-

15.000 rupees per year for three years, 45,000 tween your fixing your feal to the arzee N ° 1, 
rupees. The Governor, in a Nuzzurana, and your figning the furd ?
15.000 rupees, the word Governor was not mAnf 1 cannot tell the moments or minutes;
ufed, but Mr. Haftings. but, as foon as the arzee was done with, Mr. -

Hufhier Jung 12,000 rupees. Fowke produced the furd.
Raja Rajebullub 7,000 rupees. Quejl. Did any thing pafs, between your
Cantoo Baboo 5,000 rupees. 'fealing the arzee and Mr. Fowke’s producing

9 uejl. Had you ever feen that furd before ? the furd ?
Anf No. No ; nothing paffed.
Qu'ef. Have you fince ? _ $ueft. Did you fee the long arzee. wit-
Anf. N o: It is not a furd ; but fuch a piece nefted ? 

o f paper as this (Jhewing a Jheet of white\ Anf. I did not fee i t ; it was not before me : 
paper\  Mr. Fowke faid, Be witneffes to it.

% e jl. W as there any other writing ? ®ueft, Were the two Tringy writers in the
Anf. Nothing more was wrote; what he room black or white ? 

told me, I wrote; nothing elle was wrote: the Anf. Black: I know one; the other I do
words I wrote were Ruff an nedum and Dadum. {not. ,  , , ,

• » 9 ue(i. How many times did you write thefe gueft. Where was the little arzee fealed.
words ? Anf- In my own houie. .

Anf. On the firft name I wrote Ruffan nedum, %?/?• Did )'ou ieal an>’ oA "  aizee L
I wrote one or the other on the five names. Anf. Two againft

Quell. Did Mr. Fowke read the furd to my own houfe. 1 fealed noo.swt
on? houfe.

5 Anf. He took it in his hand, and asked me, Si< f- Was there any be 
Have von for three years, given 15,000 ru- Tides Mr. Fowke and yomTi 
peesaye rtoM '-.B arw ell? ’ He did not tel] me Yes; there1 were fea -  -
Fo f  cm T id in g  the furd > I anfwered, Yes, % # .  Do y m . ^

I  " ^ h w h a t  language was the furd Anf A cannot ml! As -  -
^  < told me to go, 1 went.

.WT ;  T P rfop ' W  l).d you Obferve ?
Qu'ejl. In  whofe hand did it appear to be jin the room, at the ume S U M  ,

written ? . . j D d
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Anf How do I know ? I went away wiping a great deal by word of mouth. In the little 
my face arzee was wrote, The General has referred

\ D i d  any body offer to flop your going me to Mr. Fow ke; Mr. Fowke has faid fo
outof the room ? and fo to me ; and then, having given in the

Anf. No ; when Mr. Fowke bid me go, I fmall arzee to the Governor, I told him every 
w ntfc /  thing by word of mouth. i .

Queft. At the time M r. Fowke lifted up Queft. Was it the fmall arzee that was 
the book, what pofition was he in ? fealed and- fent to Mr. Fowke, and then car-

Anf. He fat upon the bed, with his feet ried to the Governor? .
hanging down. Anf. When Maha Rajah required the .ar-

iueft. At the time you fealed the large zee from me, the man who had been my 
arzee where was it ? Moonfhy was gone home. I caufed to. be

Anf. Mr. Fowke took it from the bed, near wrote whatever was in my remembrance by 
the pillow ; and asked me whether I had given my new Moon Hi y.
that arzee ? I faid, Sir, this is not an arzee ; .% # •  W as that the fame that was given to
it is • a jabob fawaul : Maha Rajah, having the Governor ?
taken a draught, has given it for your fatis- Anf. It was. 1
fa&ion. When I was upon the ground, 'he Queft. A t the time the Barramuts were firft 
gave it into my hands, and I fealed it. mentioned, by whom were they mentioned ?

Queft. Did you either fign or feal the Anf. W hen I fpoke about the fweetmeats, 
furd } Rada Churn firft told me.

Anf I figned it. Did Rada Churn tell you to get Bar-
Queftion repeated. ramuts, or did he tell you that Maha Rajah
Anf I neither put my feal, nor wrote my wanted them ? 

name. I wrote Rujfan needum and Dadum. Anf. At that time he told me what I have
Whatever Mr Fowke had told me, I fhould repeated about their coming to fhame in Eng-
have done. > land.

Queft. Did Mr. Fowke bid any body be,  ̂Qiieft. Did Roy Rada Churn ever defire yoa 
witneffes to the furd ? to get Barramuts ?

Anf I put my dufkeet to the furd, and Anf. Whenever I-faw  him, he afked them 
M r. Fowke bid me go. from me.

Queft. When Mr. Fowke gave you the §)uejt. Mention the particular time when,
furd, did he bid you do any thing with Anf Whenever, people have any bufinefs *>
i t ?  with Maha Rajah, they firft apply to Rada

Anf. He told me to write upon it. Churn *, Maha Rajah is. the mailer, Rada
Qiieft. After you had wrote upon- it, as Mr. Churn the fon.

Fowke did not underftand Perfian, did he de­
fire any body to explain it? §1' ueftion s  by Mr. F o w k e . e

Anf. No. Queft. Did Gunga Govin Sing know that
Qiieft. At the time you went to the Gover- you had put the arzees againft him into mine 

nor, why did you carry an arzee different to or Rada Churn’s hands ? 
that whiqjaryou afterwards wrote by the Go- Anf. Gunga Govin will tell' you;, how. 
vernoi’s Moonfhy l  fhould I know ?

Anf. T he General had. referred me to Mr. Quefi* Did any body elfe know ? .
Fowke for enquiry. Mr. Fowke is an Englifh- A nf How fhould I know ?
manj, and I am a poor Farmer *, the Governor §ueft. How -could Gunga Govin Sing be* 
is the mafter o f  the country. Go^ knows frightened, if he did not know it ?. . 
whether he will be angry with me if I write a Anf There was a converfation upon it be­
long arzee, therefore 1 wrote a.little, and faid. tween Gunga Govin.Sing and me.

Repeat
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M A B A  R A J A H  N U N D O C O M A E ,  AND R O Y  RADA CHURN
Repeat.that conversion. , i f e ,  ~  ■ U i U R N ‘ *9
I faid to Gunga Govin Sing, Pay me my b a S m f  f  CVer tel1 an? bod7 that you 

rupees; if you do not, Malta Rajah’s doors AnC If ? ' .raentl0ned in the furd ? 
arp open for Barramuts ; I willgo, and, hav- fhould I fav I t J ’T i  , 1 Jfh° U,d have toldi 
mg written a great deal, will prefent an arzee 7 1  hdd’ lf 1 had
agaiftft you to the Malta Rajah. Gunga Go- e>„,n- , , $
vin Sing faid, What will be the effect of your SueS W i f  f ' T i  c CT 'U
g'vmg an arzee ? at lalt you will be put on theatre  S f a f f i ? " 8 ab° Ut carryinS 
your oath on .t in the Englilh Durbar. Do I Fowke defi d
forbid your giving ,n an arzee? whatever then'faid to R o v p J n  ” * 7°  
balance is due from you on account of the I Fowke A s  vou b i t  y° Ung Mr'
revenues, I will imprifon you and o-r-t- from k f  Y h , caLlfed rae to write this
you; or elfe let Moonfhy Sudder O Deen come cil -y° U W‘!1 fend ir to Coun-
* e  will fettle it a t ^ o u r f d '4 , i f ’ “ “ and 1 S»

s i  s S a g ?  e  R ^ i ^ r ' d  oi%t
” e my f  and I will go to the Moon- carried to the Council > ^  P&t bc
£  anl  2 ?  Vn Moon(by 'vib come toge- Anf. At the time I came out of Mr. Fowke 
ttier. He laid, You are at liberty to p*o or' femor’s room I r/iri r> j  *
ffa y ; why do you want difmiffioi/from me ? yQiinfc Mr F o lk e  G i v t l ^ i  and
get difmiftion g m  M r. Cot,tdl. The text L / f J w 5 T l £ t 2 ? S S
" T f  nCf  H  the « »  “ . %n, or I- will la,mediately g,  , « " c  c S

Did you ever acquaint Gunga Govin and complain.

S,11 , ? V 0U hdd a? Uall,y l0dg£dit ? % / •  Did you ever ask Mr. Fowke to rc-AnJ. Every day he threatened me, and I ! turn the arzee >
threatened him. He laughed, and I laughed. Anf. I demanded it of him the next day in 
W e Haul in expectation of the Moonlhy’s the room; Malta Rakh was there, Rov Rada

7-.* . Churn, and Mr. Fowke. ^
-juejt. Did you, at any time, acknowledge Quejl. Did you ever confent to have that 

your leal to be put to the great arzee before arzee delivered into Council ? 
witnefles?  ̂ j[nf  j never did.

Anf. from  that time I have complained, %£/?. Was the pen Englith or Pcr/Ian ?
>  ̂ that M r- Fowke caufed me to put my feal to Anf. It was an Hindortannic pen and a fil-

the arzee by force.  ̂ ver ink-ftand; the Sicca Dewat and ink-ftand
xtuejt. How often did you go to vifit Mr. were both filver.

Fowke fenior before the long arzee was fealed | f&eft. Had you any reafon to think 
and witnefled ? Fowke knew of your com ’ g •

A 'f  All together I went about three times to Anf. The night before ■ :  drs r 
• his houfe; when I came from Houghly, I do arzee had been wrote a ,Yaba R ii.i- 

not remember. fent to call me.
Quejl. When was the firft time ? % # .  When did he f«
Anf. Every thing was from the end of Chyle Anf. In the evening, 

to the 7th of Byfaak. get my difmifflon, Maha (aid, Wrireiiip
§uejl. Knowing Mr. Fowke’s houfe to be a arzee, and carry it to Mr- Fowke, toy, IF' 

cutcherry of Barramuts, how came you to go Churn will go with you.- an 
>to it ? llada Churn’s the next <

Anf. Maha Rajah told me to go, and be go to Mr. Fowke’s, *wh 
reconciled to him. trell’s.

D d  z



®ue/}. Were the fnms in the furd rn words) : W ere the contents of the arzees men-
»t length, or in figures ? • | tioned in Mr. Fowke s Letter ?

jfn f The names were in-words; the ferns I Anf. No. 
in fipures (Mr. Auriol fays, the Letter was dated the

Qiieji. What fort of figures were they wrote i (fth ; and he received it on the 2.0th,
• y* J  * * the day the parties were' before the Chief

J n f  In Perfian. : W & B
Quejlion to Mr. Sumner.

Mr. S U  M N E R. Do yon know this paper ?
, . . . .  Anf I reeceived this paper the 2d of June,

I received two arzees enclo e in 111s et I p  g.jr r ^ n j ) 0yjy . j  received it as Secretary
'ter, figned, Joleph Fow^e, toget ei wit 1 1 c‘0 the Revenue Department,
two Englifh t ran flares, of the arzees. 1 am |
Secretary to the Revenue Council. It is cui-: g jr J O H N  D O Y L Y .
tom ary to- remove papers from one office*to ’ >
another, when they are fent by-miflake. It| I believe this to be the paper I fent to M r. 
fhouklhave been fent originally to my office. I Sumner, by order o f the Council. I  received
Prefentino* an a*rzee is the mode of infliruting ! the paper from the Governor, or one of the
an enquiry. 1 have known cenfures and Secretaries, and delivered it to Mr. Sum- 
punifhments inflifted by the Board in confe- ner. 
quence of arzees. I have known ex-j
amined both on oath and without; the par- C O M A U L  O D E E N .
ties accufed examined : I believe, I have , This is the true arzee. It is the arzee I  de •
known the party accufed examined on oat 1. jjverec] t0 die Governor, to deliver to the 
fire fubjeft o f the arzee was proper mdtt<jr Council. It was not my cuftom to affix my 
be enquired into-in my department: I allude j fcal tQ afzees. 1 did t0 thofe 0f Mr. Fowke’s
to the large arzee.. and Mali a Rajah Nundocomar’s. It was not

t n  t (my'cuftom to write my name to arzees : the
M r. A  U R  U L .  j Moonlhy wrote it- I foiled this, becaufe.the

Young Mr. Fowke called on me one morn- Gentlemen defired it. Send for other a.rzees I 
ing at break faft, and gave me a Letter ad- have given into the Committee, and fee how 
dre(Ted to the Governor General and Council ; many of them Have my feals to them. Aik 
which, as they were to fit that morning, I de- M r. Cottrell for my arzees, and fee how many 
fired might be delivered to them. That letter of them have my feals. 
contained thefe papers. I delivered them to Don’t you feal all arzees ?
the Council ; the Governor General was not Anf. I never put it on C. arzees: but I do 
p re fent-. I received no order r e lf effing them, on darkhaufls (propofils to Government). 
till M r. Fowke had fent a fecond Letter to the tyuejt. Why did you put your feal to your 
Board, applying for original papers he had arzee ; viz. the fmall one ? 
before delivered in. I was then direfted to Anf. If I had not put my feal to it, Maha 
fend thefe papers, excepting the Perfian, which Rajah would not have given credit to it. I 
" ”'.s orderfd to be tranflated, as the original have put my feal on* the arzees of Maha Rajah 
papers which Mr. Fowke applied for had and Mr. Fowke, and on all the arzees in their 
been recorded in the Revenue Department; pofleffion.
and to defire Mr. Sumner to attend the Board Queji.. W hy did you put your feal to the ar- 
with all the papers applied for by M r.Fow ke; zees againft Govin Sing ?
Mr. Sumner accordingly attended th*e Board; Anf To prevent their, being changed, as a 
and received further inftruffiions to carry them mark. I f  the Governor tells m e'to put my 
to Mr. Fowke, at the Chief Juftice’s houfe. ‘ feal, I put it. I lhould of my own accord, to

6 ' know
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would not have takSTk if  ̂  w a fn «  S le d ! 7
That I fent to Yar Mahomed was not fealed ; J | g  Z t e i t l t  * * *
J did not intend that fliould be delivered n
therefore i did not feal it {the large arzee). Ulptain Camac ;
M r. Fowke defired me to feal it. ^  Barramut is a paper delivered in, either

Defendant’s Counfel Jhews him a paper. before or after an aumeen is difplaced;
Queft• Do you know this arzee ? when it is delivered before, it is meant to
Anf 1 delivered two or three arzees; one ^eJ  îm typtoced; i f  after, to accufe him 

from myfelf, the other two from the Zemin- money received in bis office) is often ex-
da-rs. I will fend for the copy, and tell you agg^ated; it may be either true or falfe.
whether I delivered it or not. Mr. Redfearn :

P ° n ’t you know your Moonfhy’s An accifation that may be either true or 
hand-writing ? falfe

A nf No. ' _
Can’t you write Perftan ? ■ W l' J?ucarel:

Anf I can read, but not write well. f  Jatne,
Q yejl. Did your Moonfliy ever write in your f  F w n  f  p  xt a w  a 7 -u * r 

prelence ? v ** 13 L  K N  A W A Z  being fworn.
Anf Yes, always. %?/?. Whofe fervant are you ?
§{uejl. Are the feals to the great and little Anf I am Comaul O Deen’s Moonlhy.

arzee yours ? Quejl. Do you know Maha Rajah Nundo-
Anf Yes, they are. comar?
■ M r. Fowke admits the Letter enclofmg them Anf Yes.

to be his. %£/?. Was you ever at his houfe ?
M r .William Chalmers proves the tranflate Anf Yes. I was never but once, which

of the arzees marked A . and B . a If0 of was upon the occafion of this arzee ; I went
that markedD . with Comaul O Deen. He went into the

Dewan Connah : I Raid without. He fent
The G O V E R N O R  G E N E R A L .  for me. I went and paid falaam to Maha
6)' /1 A _  c f  r Rajah; who faid to me, Come, and fit nearstuejt. Are thele arzees of courfe fent upon W Lan T h.,A r y , * , 51 r \ • -v 1 me. When 1 had lat down, he gave me pen,the confutation ?■ • 7 , j  1 • . 6 ■ 1 , ,

i /i>  t c r r i  ̂ r in̂ 5 and paper; and bid me write out the
> Anf. I cannot fay of courfe; but thefe foul draught of an arzee. I wrote out a foul

1 r draught according to what he told me. When
Are they fent ? I had wrote out the foul draught, he took it

Anf. Not yet; but they are to he fent. int0 his hands> and then looked at it, and gave
Mr. S U M N E R .  it to Doman Sing ; whofe nan e T vav •

® ^  /i a 1 r  r  * 1 -n acquainted with, but have f  nee learnt .it,'zhie/t. Are thefe arzees tranfmitted to Eng* „ , \ , •& told him to copy ft over on
A'r rp! v . ... , When Doman Sing had wiu. over,

f  Anf '  They are UP °n rcCord’  and Wl11 be Maha Rajah, having altered it
en 0 ^ . , r . 7 faw a fmalbdifference, told me to a . -- - -c

Mr. Fowke s Letter read. fair. Then Comaul O Dee : faid, I '
rzees rea . diforder o f . the piles, and a pain

j M r. Elliot explains'his fenfe of the word Bar- let me go away; my Moonf 
ramut: write out t;he arzee according to

An account of the receipts of money improperly tions, C. 'Deen then faic va i. .
. received, which maybe either true or falfe, ling home, do you Ray and ware on: :lu

-'"Mi .. accord*
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according to Maha Rajah’s infiru&ions. He forcibly caufed me to write. I cannot.prove 
.went away ; I Raid till about a par and a half what is wrote in thofe papers againft the Gen- 
of the night; Maha Rajah was fitting, and I demen. He then called out Duoy on the 
was fitting writing the arzee. When I had Gentlemen of the Audaulet. He faid, His life 
wrote it fair, I gave it into Maha Rajah’s and honor will be affefted by this. Maha 
hands. Maha Rajah, having read ten or twelve Rajah gave no anfwer. Comaul O Deen then 

•lines of it, faid, This is the fair copy of the tore the collar of his jammah, and went to go 
arzee I bid you write ; it is very well. He faid |into his palanquin. Then Y ar Mahomed, 
to Yar Mahomed, Go with the Moonfhy, and t Nettoo Sing, and others, took hold of Co­
get Comaul O Deen to feal the arzee. W e!m aul’s hands, and laid, Where are you go- 
then went both together to Gomaul O Deen’s ing ? He then got his hand away from theirs, 
houfe. He was fitting fmoaking his hooka, and got into his palanquin. When he got 
Yar Mahamed fa lamed ; I likewife went out o f the lane which leads to Mr. Fowke’s, 
and fat down. Yar Mahomed fat near C. O a hircarrrah went and fiopt his fawarry, and 
Deen ; I at a diflance. Yar Mahomed Raid,' faid, Where are you going? come back. And 
Maha Rajah has fent this arzee to you ; hav- they kept difputing in this manner, till they 
ing confidered of it, put your feal to it. got to the Bitah Conn ah of Rajah Rajebul- 
Comaul O Deen, having read it, faid, There is lub. He then got . rid of them, and went 
no'agreement between Maha Rajah and me along the high road.
for putting my feal to it. I f  I Ihould put my Qiceft. Was you ever examined concerning 
feal.to the arzee now, and Ihould be called j this before ?

~on to prove the circumRances in it, I fhall not Anf I was; at the Chief Ju Rice’s, and 
be able to prove it. I will by no means put my once before the Audaulet. 
feal to i t : whatever I have wrote, I wrote to <?/?.- Do you know Goolaum Hu Re in- ? 
pleafe Maha Rajah. Yar Mahomed then an- Arif Yes.
fwered, Maha Rajah is the mafler, he has Queft* Do you know whofe fervants they 
fent to you ; you may either put your feal on were that ftopj: Comaul O Deen ?

.it or not, as you pleafe. During the conver- Anf. They belonged either to Maha Rajah 
fation, Comaul O Deen gave him his hooka for Mr. Fowke.
to fmoke, and he foon went away. Queft- .Do you know whofe fervants Y ar

Queft. How long have you known M r.! Mahomed and Nettoo Sing are ?
'Fowke? Anf. They are fervants to Maha Rajah.

Anf I have known him only fince the dif- Queji* D id' Comaul O Deen make any ob- 
■ putes. I never went to Mr. Fowke’s except 1 je6lions to the alterations in the arzee made*3 
the day of the difpute, when I went with j by Maha Rajah ?
Comaul 0  Deen. Anf. No, he faid nothing. He went away

jRelate what pa fed. while the fair copy was writing.
Comaul O Deen went up flairs. I Raid be- Did Comaul under Rand the contents

low. In about three or four gurries Mr.Fowke o f it, after the alteration ? *
.came down, and behind him Maha Rajah, and Anf I  do not know whether he did or not.
then Comaul O Deen. I don’t exactly fix the %*/?. What time of the day was it,, when

- number gurries. you went with Comaul O Deen to Mr.
> ... When did this happen ? Fowke’s ?

A n f It was next day .after the arzee was A nf It was about a par and a half of the 
brought to Comaul O Deen. Mr. Fowke and day.
•Maha Rajah got into their palanquins. Co- How long did you Ray there?
maul O Deen Rood oppofite Maha Rajah, and A nf I cannot exactly te ll; it might be 
faid to him, For God’s fake, give me back that about three or four gurries, 
falfe paper of Barramuts, which you have
< . > . ' ‘
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h' ”  a” y " *  " P ' * & ? *  °  D “ " 'S h0” re- 1 * » *  remember
a  r  Ur,vKT { h n nH t l ' c  . ., f f e  '}. u ] m J  be a month or a month andAnf. How fliould I hear any no.fe in the a halt ago. Two or three days before the dif-

upper.apartments ? I was down below. j puces, I met Kewdernawaz on the ftair-eafe.
Mr. a Farrer  ̂produces a paper, and aJlts I He faid, Comaul O Been is going to f-al a
l r WH m E ltT ■ '  r  I W O  do you bring , he Sicca & w ar,'and
Anf. Mine. I wrote it in Comaul’s pre- j the box where the foil is. I brought them.
6>e‘ a ^Tria ^ ? Cr ab°.Ut * e Audau!et- 1 dld noc carry them into the room where 

• W ho dld y °u g'Ve it to ? they were: I gave them both to Huttoo He
Anf I  gave it to Comaul O Deen ; he is my took them, and Rood with them on the ftair- 

malter. I gave it into his hands. cafe. I told him, When they call for them,
r A . ,  . T _ ^  „  XT do you give them. I went in where Comaul
C O M  A U  L O D E E N .  was fitting, and faw Yar Mahomed fitting near

Quejl, Do you know this paper ? aim, arid Kewdernawaz at a diftance. About
Anf. Yes. I gave it to Roy Rada Churn J  a quarter of a gurry, or not fo much, Yar

, it is a durk. Rada Churn faid, it would have | Mahomed went away. Then I went out, and
no effeft ; and therefore it was not fealed. - â i d Huttoo, Perhaps thebufinefs for which

thefe things were wanted will not be done; 
K E W D E R N A W A Z .  let us take them away again. I took them ;

n t * n \ , r 1 1 I anb Put them in the Toftia Konnah.
5 “ f  ‘ IS that Comaul 0 D een  s feal on the Did Comaul O Deen call for the

arZT >  r • . feal while Yar Mahomed Raid ?
I lr  ii *V rY i  -Anf No.

Dld y °u fee Comaul °  Deen $ueft. Did he feal the arzee?
Wards ?

A nf When he had gone from the cut- ^ (efu I f  he had done it, fiiould you have 
cherry to his own houfe, I did not fee him. feen it?

§lueft. When you was before the Juftices, Anf [  \ muft have feen it ; the feal was in 
was you aiked, Whether you had been at Mr. my pofleiEon.
F o w k e s?  ̂ Wtiejt- Was you ever at Mr. Fowke’s with

Anf It was not afked as to my being at Mr. Comaul O Deen ?
Fowke’s, before the Chief Juftice. ^  Yes„ I was there the day of the dif-

• Where did you* go after you left Mr. putes; it was three or four days, I cannot
r ow.ke s ? # a exactly tell which, after that I was at Mr.

Anf I went with ComauPs palanquin on Fowke’s. 
foot, to Rajah Rajeoullub. Relate what faffed. ^

I do not know what palled a&ve 
H U S S E I N  A  L  L  I. the door-way, firft Mr. Fowke came

Quejl. Wliofe fervant are you ?• got into his palanquin; then ivmlsa Raje’j
Anf I am Confuma to. Comaul O Deen. came out, and got into his p; 1cm i.
§hiefl. Do you know Yar Mahomed and | Comaul O Deen, addrefling himldr 

Kewdernawaz ? Rajah, faid, I cannot prove the fall
Anf Yes. muts you have made me v he our. rki$
£>uejt. Did*you ever fee them at Comaul very bad'buGnefs, and'I fha.L be n-iiv-.e;

O Deen’s houfe ? me the papers back from Mr Fowkc^,
>Anf. Yes. Rajah gave him no anfwer. I. i-Ct: he begp
Relate what faffed.. to tear his jamma,: and call ^ui.D.uoy
It was about one par of the niglit when King, the Company, and Au.i.uidj. auu 

Yar Mahomed and Kewdernawaz came to See, they have caufed me to  ̂r

MAHA RAJAH N UN D O C O MAR, AND ROY RADA CHURN. 23



•forcibly. When he attempted to get into his * guejl. In what language was it wrote?* 
palanquin, Yar Mahomed and Nettoo Sing Anf InPerfian. p
held his hands. They are fervants to Maha Queft. Do you underhand Perfian i
Rajah Nundocomar. Comaul O Deen dif- Anf. Yes.
engaged himfelf from them, and got into his gueft. What were the contents of this 
palanquin. As he went out of the lane to papei ?
come on the great road, two Hircarrahs ftopt Anf. He fir ft wrote and prepared the paper, 
the palanquin, and faid, You mud come back, in which was, written : Let thofe who are 
He went on in his palanquin. I left him : I Muffulmen upon their oath, of God and Pro- 
had bufinefs in the Bazar. I could not go fo phets, and thofe that are Gentoos on their 
faft. I faw as far as Rajah Rajebullub’s Hifn oath and Water o f the Ganges, and their con- 
Connah. fcience, i f  they know any thing of this paper,

Queft. Do you know whofe Hircarrahs they let them witnefs it. He firft wrote it, and 
were? then (hewed it to me and others.

Anf They came out of Mr. Fowke’s houfe.
I do not know who they belonged to. Mr. E  L  L  I O F.

______ „ ^  _ Quefl. Is it cuftomary to draw out fuch
Crofs Examination of H U S S E I N  A L L I .  papers ?

Queft. Have you charge of Comaul O A nf It is. 1 fearce ever knew a caufe in a 
Deen's feal ? Country Court, ip which a Sooruthall was

Anf. The feal is always in my poffeffion. not produced on one fide or the other.
When Coraaul goes out, or to the Durbar,
he puts his fmall feal upon his finger, and a K E E M A G E E T .
bundle of papers into bis cummerband..When Do know c .  O Deen ?
die comes home,, he pulls off his cloaths, and ^nr y eg#
puts the ring into the fmall box again ; and Do you know Mr. Fowke ?'
that box is under my care. Whatever he has j j nr y es^
•is under my care. I §ue/i. W as you ever at Mr. Fowke’s houfe

In what language did C. O Deen with c  q  Deen ?
addrefs Maha Rajah, when getting into his never. j  never faV C. O Deen
palanquin at Mr. Fowke’s? near Mr. Fowke’ s.

Anf. In Moors. What I heard, I remem- palate what you know refpefting a fray® » 
bet. I Was about two yards dinant when he y0U faWj between Comaul O Deen and
/poke to Maha Rajah. others, in the ftreet.

D'd you tell any body what palled. j  was g0jng on the road near the Hi fix Con-
A n f.l told it to the Grand Ju ry ; to no nah o f f ^ J  Rajcbullub j I faw Comaul O

on® e „ •  t- , .  „  Deen in his palanqui , with his collar torn. .
$ueft. Did you not mention it to Mr. Dur- . g j g j  was one Hircarrah running by C. O

n - ' ; Deen, and crying, C. O Deen, flop your pa-
Anf. I don t remember that I did. Comaul ^  . c  }Q Deen did not ftop Ilis palail.

0  Deen^Jked me, You was there did you £  Tfae H ircarrah ran up, and took hold
• .e a -  wtlat part? I faid Yes, I was there, and jt and havi taken hoid of it, faid,

heard it. He wrote out a paper or what • * • _ ^n it  • rr j  • 1 , r • j T , Where are you going? Maha Kajah calls,
part, and I witneffed in Comaul faid, I  have d A e  G efltlem^n cSall you. Comaul O
wrote down what paffed; do you witnefs it. Deen called om Duoy on the King, Council,

eT»'j" , . , t  * . rj. , Audaulet, and Governor ; they have taken a
. ^  Dld y ° u read lt befpre you wimeffed writing from me-by force, and now they fend a
1 ' . ,  T I Hircarrah to make a difturbance. Having

Anf. I did. faid
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n -d th’S,’ a" d d, ^ ngaged himfelf from the I Anf. It is about eight or nine'months fincc 
Hircarrab, he went on. I came to Calcutta.

Do you 'enow whofe Iiircarrah he Sfyeft. Where do you live?
!  t 1 r t x r  i > r / m  1 live in the Mutehee Bazar, in a place 

Anf. W hat do I know of the Hircarrah ? I have liired of my own. I give rmw<
fix annas, per month for it. P '

M A H O M E D  G H O S E  N E W A Z . Do you know Moonfhy Sudder O
Qv.ejl* Whofe fervant are you ? Deen ?
Anf Nobody’s. |  Anf- 1  have heard of his name. I do not

Do yea know Comaul O Deen ? go backwards and forwards to him. He fome-
Anf Yes. -times goes to the Durbar ; I go to'the Dur-
Quejl. Do yop know Mr. Fowke ? ^ar * }  have feen him going there in his pa-
Anf Yes. $ lanquin. I never fpoke to him. He never

• ;% f? . Did you ever fee C. O Deen at Mr. fent anY of llis People to me. As I know the 
Fowke’s houfe ? name of Moonfhy Sudder O Deen, I do that

Anf Yes, I faw him there the day of the| Comaul O Deen. 
quarrel; it is about three months ago. Did you flop when you heard Co-

guejl. What paft there ? \ raaul °  Deen CI7 out DuoY }
A nf F irfl.M r. Fowke came out, after him . ̂ n-f' ^ es* He caHed t0 ^le people to be 

Maha Rajah. I was (landing below. Behind Wlt” e ŝ*
Maha Rajah was C . O Deen. When C. O D,d anY convention pafs between
Deen came out, he addreffed himfelf to Ma- You a*}d Deen ?
ha Rajah, and faid, Thofe falfe papers of ! dl<a not fpeak to him on the day of
Barramuts you have caufed me to write give ^ e  difpute, or fince.
me back again ; I am a poor man, I cannot Have not you figned a paper ?
do this bufinefs, it will ruin me. Maha Ra- „  r , 0
jab  gave no anfwer. ' C. O Deen got into his -H aveyou  not figned a Surat Hall ?
palanquin, and tore the collar of his jammah, No.- C. O Deen when he called out
and cryed out Duoy of the Audaulet; when Duoy faid You will all be called on at the

1 * 1 1  r l,- r,f Audaulet. 1 received a luminous to appeartwo men laid hold or his hands, and itoptL ^ . , r v
i • tj  j • j rj.. ■ J  here : a 1 eon gave it me, and to nve others,him. He did not mind them. 1 hey went on I _ 5 , .  6 , , 5 , T
Vr • r i) • i d „* i, u ;/ i 1 never told any body my name, or where ldifputmg as far as Rajah Kajebuilubs HiluL. , '  . 1 J V
Connah. As they were going there, a Hir- 1 * a TTr7 f  c

1 carrah from fome diluance behind, cryed out,| ^   ̂ J
Bring back the palanqum. He came up, and | QWn houfe. :
feized the bearer8 and ftopt the palanquin ; J  w hen  did you firft fee Comaul O
and fa id, Come back. Comaul O Deen then Lp
called out Duoy of the Council and Audaulet, w hen he began 0 cry out Duov;
and got away. Where he went, I do not J
know. I Being (hewn the paper

Hall, and a/ked, II lus
Crofs Examination of Mahomed Ghofe Newaz. his own hand, he fays,^

. _■  f r I  J  a Dewan Putny. At hull
gueji. \ \  hofe fervant did you fay you was ? a Surat y]an. The i
Anf. I am a ftudent; employ my time in daadj and If you

reading; am nobody’s fervant. I never was a I had figned a Readan
fervant. . I copcerning this bu inete,

Quejl. How long have you lived in Cal- anfwered .1 had. ' Being 
cutta? ! E e
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paper which he calls a Recidaad is not a us at the time of* the difpute at A£r» Fowke s
paper, he fays ix is. ho,ufe.

££uejl> Is he a fenfible man, or a fool?
K E W D E R  N E W A Z .  Anf He is not a fenfible man, and yet not
_  ■. ' * in . • r ** quite an ideot.£>uejl. Do you know the laft witnefs ? ^  h  he fuch an id ag t0 know

Anf. I certainly do. He is my own bro- hiJ  brother?
ther. He is a witnefs to what paffed in the ^  No, I think not. I f  he was, he 
difpute with Comaul O Deen at Mr. Fowkes ^  run abou[ naked>

h°ufe- , . Shtejl. Does he ftnoke bang ?
°rthKrS ? a A Anf-  Not that I know. .Anf. We had the fame father and mother; J  Is he more fenflbIe at one time than

look at his face and mine, we are lik e ; but ?
he is a fool, and has denied it through fear. ^  BuJ. % ^  faw ^  ^  fuch a
He knows not ing o u me s, an never i ag not t0 know His own brother; or not
anv in his life. I am forced to give him vie-  ̂ , , • v- u -r ..i a * •* UV  . : ,  y r 5 r  rs i to know who is his brother, ir the queuion is tuals and cloaths. I was a fervant or Comaul * , , . > ?
O Deen's at Calcutta ; he came to me ; he was
prefent with me when the difpute happened ;
Shake Mahomed, Huffcin A ll j ,  Mahomed M U S H U R E R  R H A M A U N .  
GofeNewaz, Mulhurer Rahmaun, and Keema-
geet were there likewife. A t the time of my Quejl. Do you know Comaul O Deen and
father and mother I maintained him ; and if £rowke j
out of fix brothers one happens to be fen- An̂  j  know them-both.
fible, Would he not maintain the others ? M y g,)uejt. W as you ever at Mr. Fowke’s when
brother knows Comaul O Deen through my q  j ) een was there ?■
means. He lives with me in my apartments ̂ nr  I-was. It may be about two months
at Comaul O Deen’shoufe. He is a man : if or two momhs and a half ago.
he has made himfelr witnefs upon any bun- Relate what you faw .
nefs, he underftauds it; why fhould he not j  was {landing at the door, and faw M r. 
k n ^  truth from faljehood . Fowke, Maha Rajah Nnndocomar, and Co-

.from Mr. Farrer: maul O Deen, come out. Comaul O Deen
Whether j  0l? ^ °ur ^r^ĉ er £ °  t0 faid to Maha Rajah, Give me back that paper 

Fowkes houfe that day or whether anybody which you have forcibly caufed me to write. • 
elfe to your knowledge bid him go ? I have never given money, or caufed any to be

Anf Nobody bid him go. He went of his given, to anybody. I  know nothing of the 
own accord. Huliein A lh  and I are Comaul COntents o f the paper; give it me back again.
O Deen s fervants. W e went by his direc- Then Comaul O Deen called Duoy upon the 

^  „ r • n r . ,  Governor and Gentlemen o f the Council, and
C o f T  CUft° mary f° r y ° U t0 g°  WUh faid> 3 R  me back the paper. W hen they 
*  T* i  „ did not give him back the paper, he tore his

Anf. W hoever be carries me with him, I doaths> ° he collar o f his jamraah, and made a
great piece o f work ; and called out to Gen-

H U S S E I N  A L L  I CQOa and Muffulmeri to bear witnefs. ' He got
into his own palanquin, and went away. A  

££uejti D o you know Mahomed Gofe Ne- .Hircarrah ran after the palanquin, took hold * 
waz? , o f it, and laid, Maha Rajah and M r.‘ Fowke

Anf Yes. His brother apd. he Live with call you ; you raaft come back, C . O Deen®.
nve. in Gomaul O Deen's houfe. He was with C*. O Deen went, towards the Governor's

I  houfe,
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owUfh’ 3f d 1 Went by the Court*houfe to my I the arzees Wh t  G H U R N - 2?

*»<*¥*> Aey t a l k o f m i o u ^ j S ' .  3  g
Crofs Examination. padicular fubieft> I will tell.

, 1 ‘ thâ ^ ‘ W h?°  bid y ° u S °  to Mr. Fowke’s Byfaak 5 there w e re ^ u ^ g u rL T o f1^ ’^thas morning ? remaining A. t4 & es 01 ctle day

F v z l l  1  am Vakeel of faid> 1 have been at Mr. F^vkeTho'ufe^'to S
FyzuUah Iffalam of Bangha. It is my bufi- back the arzees which I gave a^ainft’ Gun^a
Z  n ? , t0H  b° dy’S Durbar‘ 1 did not G™ n  Sing. He has nof given me b a S  t K  
g  I  f Li ai y t0 bls- f zees- He has caufed me to put my feal bv

J g f . b  Dld 72“  fign the Surat Hall > % < *  to an arzee on the bufinels of the Tecka
Anf. I witneffed the Surat Hall, and figned pollanes, and he has made me fi™  a furd. 

it in the afternoon of that day. I did not fee bf  afterwards I told him, Do not do fo. When 
tne burat Mall in his hand at the time he cried I \ became mY own matter, I laid, Sir do nor 
Du5,y- T . 4ofo. Then Mr. Fowke faid, Do noiyou

^ lat bme ° f  the day was it ? be 111 a hurry, Maha Rajah will be here to
Anf. I cannot exadtly tell what hour of the ; raof row> and then we will fettle it, don’t make 

day it was; but believe there was three or a dl^urbance- (Comaul.) I am now going to 
four gurries o f the day remaining. When Maba Rajah’s, if he will procure me back my 
the difpute happened, there were about fix larzees and papers very w ell; and if not, to- 
gurnes of the day advanced. I figned the tnorrow I will make a difturbance; or, I 
Surat I-Iall at my own houfe. Comaul O Demi wdl deffroy myfelf. You are my friend, ’ac- 
brought it to. me himfelf, carried me to read (5uai!lt Mr-. Barwell and Mr. Vanfittart with it. 
and fign it, and went away. Having faid this, he faid, I am immediately

going to Maha Rajah. I  will come back 
M O O N S H Y  S U D D E R  O D E E N . aSain at night, and tell you all the particulars. 
£>ueft Tin vnn r  . A n  3 He went away. He came back at night. I
T f  T h . „ T „ C i-  D “ "  ? , ,  fpeak from 8“ rfs> !t ml6ht be about fivu o 

, 1  have known him more or lefs fix gurries after the night. There was this
tween us." 7 ’S & fnendfhip be' convention between u s: Seeming pleafed,

Quell * 11  ̂ • , be fa^> Malia Rajah will give me back the
arz£es"f* ^  ^  te y° U any tbin"  about arzee and all the papers; he has told me to 

T > ' , . . , T come to-morrow. Do you now hear all the
r  l r?Tv C ay t lGr mont 1 ° f  Byfaak, particulars: The arzees which I gave againft 
Comaul O D een told me fo much on the bufi- Gunga Govin Sing, and depofited with Roy 
nelsof the Tecka Collanes,_ that the difpute Rada Churn, with the knowledge of Maha 

i w .1C was bef ° re : Maha Rajah wants me to Rajah, upon this condition Moonfhy Sadder 
write an arzee, and that there may be fuch a O Deen is gone; if ms d ifv . with T \ni ■

) meaning put in that arzee by which the Go- be fettled, I will take hack 
vernor and M i. John Graham may get a bad give him 6000 rupees: 
name . he has defired me to write it ; but I Rajah, and 2000 rupe > 
will not do i t ; and I will not bring fo bad a Two days ago I defired ■ Ji - Iv 
name upon m yfe lf: you are my friend, and them back again, but Mv. Fo .ke j 
therefore I have communicated it to you. out an arzee on the bu 
f  his was in. the night, upon the bufinefs of Collaries, and then you’ ’; ; 

j arzees, he told me fo much. zees againft Gunga Go in S
£>ueji. W hat time was that in Byfaak ? Deen) fjid, Maha Rajah, how can 11 
Anf. It was either the third or fourth, I do Maha Rajah faid,' It does nd^S^ify  | 

not remember* That was all that patted upon one thing; do you write on one 'h lj - c» ; havt
E  |  2



ing (hewn it to Mr. Fowke, that ftory of yours Idifturbance. A ll this I told to Nundocomat; 
ft,all be torn; and you will receive back the who faid, To-morrow you (hall get'back again 
arzees againft Gunga Gov in Sing that are all your papers and ai zees * 
with Mr. Fowke. I fin'd, I have the diforder
o f the piles, and a pain in my belly; I will Cro/s Examination.
g o ; my Moonfhy will remain, and will write •»
it. I went; my Moonfhy Raid. Maha Rajah \ y as you at Comaul. O Deen’s lad
caufed the Moon my to write the dictates or njo-ht?
his own heart; and in the night Maha Rajah ^  j  nelther faw him nor heard from hIm.
font it by Yar Mahomed for the purpofe of Rave you heard what evidence he
getting my leal upon it. 1 told Dim, in  ere was L-ave ? 8
no agreement between Maha Rajah and me b Jt is thecuftom  here for perfons t0
that I lhould put a feal to it. I did not put a talk about what paffes in the Court f  fome are 
feal to it. Yar Mahomed went back again d merij forae bad and have a£
upon that bufmefs. Mr. Fowke has to-day diftereilt: times, Comaul O Deen gave fuch and
forced me to put my feal, and tidied up a book fuch an evidence. Nobody cam? to my houfe
to ftnke me, and was very angry wuh me ; tQ inforft  me of his evidence. '
for which realon i  lealed it, and pave it to . c),.0a  a \a  n  \ t \ r  a *, .  tt i r j  • 5 l - i %uejt. When did Comaul O Deen firfl m-him. hie took out a turd, in which was r._m „  r r  , f , 1 , ., ii r- vr n v n  iorm you or any difputes between him andwrote the names of M r. Barwell, the Cover- G  l Govin ? r
nor, Mr. Vanfittart, Cantoo Bahoo, Rajah a J r  j  J ?  £• i T r
t> • i n i t  a . • r J AnJ '  He toId me ot 11 when I came from myRajebullub •, tbele names, and certain .turns, 0wn houfe
were wrote in the furd, and defired me to put <5),ian- t v  a n  \ t\ r_  n /z , • i i • i n -Did Comaul O Deen defire you tomy Diifkut to it. 1 a/ked him what Dufkut ^  0  . c . l  r
tt - i • i a . • > ^  i y-v t-v obtain riom Grunga Govin Sine any fum ofKeir he had put upon it r Comaul O Deen mrmow i i p  j 11 Ui/-•i t  r r T j -o fr j  money which he had upon him ? .laid, in lome places 1 wrote Ku an neauni. and a J r  n r\ r\ ' £ • /  T ,Ti i a j  i i i • i i  h.. U JJeen laid to me, I have, on vourothers Dadiim. And he told me a great deal a a • IS? Ml ' *i • i • • ■ r r r i r -account, depouted arzees aeainft Gunpaabout his being m a great meafure fenfelefs. p  •* & • ' 1 . , , br r > U“ S«°  5 Crovin o ing; do you get the bufmefs fettled

Gunnijfan Dofs being afked as to the difference\ tv r r 1 • > ' -
Dulkut and Duikut Kier : Did you fettle J t .?

. •  ̂ ’ • AnJ. I did.
Duskut generally among great men to in- Queft. On what terms? what fum of money 

feriors means a mark of authentication, was paid to Comaul ? 0
without a name. Anf. W hen I came home, Comaul com-

plained much againft G . G . Sing; and he 
Moor,Joy i,udder 0  Deen : afterwards told me, He is now in my.power.;
It may be either a figning or a Angle letter P'oa are ^  (r’e“4 ^1,4 “ ipe ; i f  you’ll fettle it; 

or any mark they chufe to make; the V£̂ . We^ ’ '/n o t, there will be a difpute; I 
fame from an inferior to a fuperior, a s ; ^ |nj ure very much. He began to talk
from a Superior to an inferior. ’  anc  ̂  ̂ Difputes are not good :

v> r t . Why lhould there be difputes between friends ?
Iw f n L a  n  T? wor*  mennoned Such converfation palled every day. They

y ^ T V ! , °  FeCn ■J f Ut\ T , were both my friends; for which reafon I told
what^ncknr b T  a lich reafon 1 f sked llim them lt was.better to fettle it ; and about the 
what Duskut he had put to i t ; and undoubt- 5 ,h day I fettled it, for 10 ,000 rupees.

If D i d i? n  nhat. \ 7 ‘s %ueS- 10,000 rupees A e k h o le  paid ‘
harm- wrote them “ l ' rc  ^ f" r to Comaul O Deen, either in money, or any
navin5 wrote tlaem, I (C. O Deen) made a other confideration ? .• •

Anf '
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Anf. Comaul O Deen claimed 26,000 ru- Anf. No, never

pees 5 G . G . Sing faid, I have written off this Did you ever defire him to write an
to your revenue account: you have no claim arzee again fl: Mr. Fowke ? 
upon me. .1 told this to Comaul O D een; Anf No, never, 
who then faid, I am much in arrears, on ac­
count of the Tecka Collaries ; and my cha- ._ T
rafter will go ; if  I can get 10,000 rupees, 1 ^  r* H A S T I N G S .
fhall efcape. I then told Gunga G . Sing, You | Quejl. Do you know Comaul O Deen
are my friend, and he too; it is not well tolCawn ?
quarrel among ourfelves; and now the times Anf Yes, Ido.
are fuch, that it behoves every good man to Queft. Did he make a complaint to you, in 
avoid having any complaint againft him ; it the month of December laft ? 
is neceffary for you to give C. O Deen 10,000 Anf Y e s ; I will endeavour to relate what 
rupees. Then Gunga G . Sing faid, You fay pafled : Comaul 0  Deen, in the month of De- 
this to prevent quarrels; it does not fignify ; cember, complained that Mr. Fowke had at- 
*what you fay is very well : you tell me to give tempted, by promife and threats, to extort
10,000 rupees; the remaining 16,000 rupees from him a declaration, that, he had given 
fhall be written off on his land revenues. bribes to Englifii Gentlemen, and mutfuddies 

Shiefl. Did Comaul O Deen mention any | for the grant df the Tecka Collarries, on the 
other arzees than thofe againft G. G .S in g? adjudment of accounts relative to them; I 

A nf He faid fomething about having given j  'am not certain which. Thefe were fait works, 
aD uskutfor theAudaulet of Hidgelee to Maha'not originally included in the leafe of the 
Rajah. farm of Hidgelee, but worked by other far-

Queft. When C. O Deen fpoke to you about mers, by people brought from other-parts, 
the book being held up to him, was it about and afterwards given to the farmer of Iiidge- 
G . G . Sing ? j  lee, to prevent competition. ~ I told him, I

A nf It was to feal the arzee about the would not receive a verbal complaint; if he 
Tecka Collaries. He told me nothing of the defired me to take cognizance of it, he mu ft 
contents of the arzee, that was wrote at commit his complaint to writing, and deliver 
Nu-ndocomar’s when he went away and faid jit in writing. He did fo ; but in terms io 
he was ill, which was carried to his houfe to j brief and general, that I returned it to hi nr, 
be fealed, and about which M r. Fowke held j  telling him, that, as he had ftared it, it did 
up the book. * I not amount to a complaint ; that I would have

1 W as it that arzee, or any other, that nothing to fay to it ; but if he wifhed I really
M r. Fowke made him feal ? would take notice of it, he muft mention the

Anf. From his telling me, I know it was fa&s by which he thought himfelf injured, in 
that arzee-. writing, and relate-their circumftances^ I

/ kuefi. Which Mr. Fowke was it, that bid I think, while I was'talking to him, Mr. Van- 
• him~not make a dillurbance ? Ifiuart arrived in' the ap.n-jent where ”.-e

Anf. I did not ask which; he faid Fowke were converfing. I told inm 
g au  ̂ and what I had been Dy^ig

9 nefl. Did you ever advife Comaul how to| D een; he repeated the Ian. : ■
a£l, when he went to Mr. Fowke’s ? • Comanl O Deen laid, He r a j
' ■ Anf. No, never. . the eomplamt, and make >

®ue[i. Did you, in your own name, or in circumltantial ; but thar m. 
any"other, ever promife Comaul O Deen any with him. 1 told! hirn, 
rhino-, for giving the evidence he has given ? if he would d‘61ate it. « « « ■  
or told him; that advantage would relult to wrote the firft arzee ■ whtd. 
him from it?  ' ; - was then brought to me, 1  ^



O Deen, and I laid it before the Council. In to declare, that I had the orders o f my Supe- 
converlation between Comaul O Deen and me, riors to employ this man. He never was, in 
other particulars may have happened, which, if any period of my life, in my friendfhip or 
there were, I cannot recoiled, and have totally confidence ; never.
forgot. Did not you fay, that you would be

Quejl. Did Comaul O Deen ever tell you revenged on him, and would ruin him? 
that there were falfities in the arzee, to which Anf. I never mentioned revenge, or’ that I 
he could notfwear ? would ruin him. I am clear I did not mention

An/ No, never. I underftood what was thefe words, becaufe it is not in my difpo- 
written ; and believed it to be true, as far as I fition.
could believe a fingle witnefs ; I put feveral §!ueji. Did you never tell Rajah Nundo- 
queftions to eftablifh my belief, fo far as to comar, that you would withdraw your coun­
lay it before the Council. tenance and protection, and would not be his

Qtiejl. What directions did you give, as to friend?
.the drawing up of the arzee ? or what did you Anf. M y friendship he never had. ,1 cer- 
fay on the occafion ? * tainly did ufe expreffions which implied, that

Anf. I only, faid, A ll circumftances mutt be he was neither to expeCt my protection or 
related. I believe I might fay, I f  it is true, countenance ; and'difmifled him my houfe. 
as you have faid, that M r. Fowke told you it Queft* Did you ever fay, that you would 
would be better for you to-make declaration; conduCl yourfelf to him as he deferred ? 
and, if not, .you would be puniflied : this is Anf I never made ufe of the expreffion. 
material to the complaint, and fbonld be men- Stuejk Did you, direCtly or indirectly, coun- 
lioned. I believe I might have faid fo, be- tenance or forward the profecution againft 
caufe I think, in like circumftances, I Ihould Maha Rajah Nundocomar ? 
do fo now. A nf I never did ; I have been on my guard ;

Queft. Did the arzee contain nothing more I have carefully avoided every circumftance 
than the accufation, as related by Comaul O which might appear to be an interference in 
Deen? that profecution.

Anf The circumftances put in the arzee did Queft. When did you firft hear c f  Comaul 
not in the leaft, I  believe, vary from the ac- O Deen’S complaining againft Mr. Fowke ?
cufation in effential points; only in a different A n f That morning I examined into it. He
manner of relating the fame fa d s : they ap- came with his complaint, and broke in upon 
peared to me the fame. me very abruptly. He told me his ftory, and

Quejl. Had you not connections with Maha I put many queftions-during the relation ; and-) 
Rajah Nundocomar ? arterwards 1 doubted it. When he firft re-

Anf I certainly had ; that is to fay, I em- lated it, I afked him queftions, to clear up
ployed him on mauy occafions; I patronized thofe doubts. I bid him be cautious in what 
and countenanced him, it is well known. I he related. I obfervecl, he feemed much agi- * 
never had an opinion of his virtue or integrity, tated with paffion, or had much the appear- % 
I believe he knew I had not. I beg leave to ance of it. And I advifed him ferioufly and 
add, that when I employed him as an inftru- repeatedly to weigh what he was about, before 
ment of Government, I might have other mo- he perfifted in an accufation, which might be 
tives tb^ci my reliance on the man’s integrity; dictated by prejudice, intereft^ or prefent 
motives which did not depend upon me. I paffion. He perfifted in his ftory, affirmed 
might have other motives— I had— I con- the fame fads, with much vehemence, in fuch 
fidered it as a point o f duty, which I could manner as to induce me to give a degree 
not difpenfe with ; I have, till lately, concealed credit toTt; but, as I was a party, I told him, 
the motives, becaufe I thought it my d u ty ; I could not redrefs i t ; that was the reafon I 
but 1 think it neceffar.y, for my own character, affigned, and directed him to make his appli­

cation
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o f the J u ^ s  $  H°e f f i  S ' " *  d11 1 had
he would | o  to the Chief Juftice, and defired S s  ? * * & are forae 5n
I would procure him an introdufiion. I S  W  w S ? ?  k??W, 0D. ' rtat tcrm!
a Cbubdar with him, ,o pre,ent any * 2  ®  w „ , ,u  “  EnSl“ <1-,
non or prevention he might have met with von not’ hln 35?  y° '!  t',ave employed him, had
from the Chief J„llice-S Servants. I alfo wrote fo d o l ‘  ‘h'  ° rd" S ° f y°”  S“P“ i«»for

own fervants. < Y y , AnJ ' 1 bel e.ve 1 ; but I never ftiould

Ju W s^ o u fe a n d ^ h e ^ M 1" ^ 011 af theChj ef emPlo7 him ^  * pa^icular S i t e ^ i  to juitice s; houle and the Monday, when we de- make it his intereft to exert himfelf I never
termmed to profecute. I queftioned him two had orders to give him particular countenance 
days fucceffively, and urged him, by the argu- and'proteftion.
ments which 1 thought molt likely to have Queft. Ac what time did you employ him 
weight with him, to declare the truth that particularly? / i 7

S t  bconM?nrhirai 1° ^ '  a  He ^  ^  II was about the removal of Mahomedftrictly confident when he told the> Rory, re- Reza Cawn, and the making new arrai^e-
peated always the fame fafts, varied only in ments. His intereft and inclination were con- 
the manner of telling them, and introducing trary to Mahomed Reza Cawn’s. and he was 
immaterial circumftances ; he did not vary in thought fitteft to deftroy the influence of Ma- 
the lenfe : he did not repeat the fame words, homed Reza Cawn, till the new arrangements- 
or make the fame arrangements ; the material fhould be confirmed, 
rafts were the lame,

In wh* did Mr .  G E O R G E  V A N S I T T A R T .

Anf. In the Hindoftanny. Slueft. Was you at the Governor Gener-aPs-
Que/i. Did you ever examine any other of when Comaul O Deen made his complaint? 

the witneffes l Anf. I was.
Anf. No, never. Relate what you recolleff of it.
£$uejl. D id you ever fee Comaul O Deen’s Mr-Haflings was in the fourh-eaff room of 

• ^Moonfliy ? his houfe; Comaal O Deen was- there, and
Anf. I  never faw him but at the Chief Juf- others, when I went in : Mr. Ha [lings told 

tice*s-. me, that Comaul O Deen had beencomplain-
Comaul O Deen always perfifled in the ing of him, that Mr. Fowke had threatened 

/  fame flory o f the furd ; it was on that point him with punifhment, if he did not deliver an 
9 chiefly that I examined him, becaufe it was account ofBarramuts; th< i be 

lefs capable of evidence, and I  wifhed to be lating every thing very - 
convinced, as far as I could be, from the word of mouth ; but had mn 
man’s manner of relating it. I was thoroughly very Ihort, and of no kind - 
fatisfied in my own mind, when I commenced He defired me to explain t( • 
the profecution, that the flory was true; and that if what he had related 1 
I have had no reafon fince to alter my opi- and he meant to coin pi ah:, 
nion. circumftantial in his Petition .

* §lueft. Was Nundocomar never in your in his verbal relation; and 
private friendfhip or confidence ? he fhould* mention the cir .

Anf. There never was a period in which he Fowke having threatened 
Was in.my private friendfhip or confidence: Tment,. i f  he did not give ;

MAHA RAJAH NUNDOCOMAR,  AND ROY RADA CHURN „



T R U L  O F  J O S E P H  F O W K E ,  F R A N C I S  F O W K E ,-  

paper, or account of bribes , it was OP the, .% # . Did Moonlhy Sadder O Deep ever

ggllSSSbSSOT ?|p§g: w;s it ?
S “ ‘ 3 l ?  c L H o r Deeen W c^H e'“ S  ^ j f o .  f e g M '  or Wednefday before

ho Be that he might diftate it to bisMoonfliy , Anf. I bel.eve about feven or eight o clock 
he would order his Moonlhy to write what in the evening. He acquainted me that G. O 
Comaul O Deen dictated. He then left the Deen had called on- him, and told him that 
room. I repeated over again to Comaul O M r. Fowke had ufed him ill that^ morning ; 
Deen, in Pcrfian, to the fame purport, as the that he had obliged him, againft his will, to 
Governor had been telling him in the Hindof- write an account again ft M r. Barwell and me, 
tan language. I particularly asked him if the of bribes pretended to have been received by 
circumftance of Mr. Fowke’s threatening -him us ; that he was determined, however, to get 
with punilhment was true, and particularly back what he had written, or would complain 
charged him, that he mu ft write nothing but to the Governor. < ,  , ^
what was ftriftly true. He faid, that circum- % # •  Did he mention nothing of the Gover-
ftance was true ; promifed he would not write nor s name ? ^
anything but what was fo ; he then went with Anf. I do not recolleft that he did I am
the Moonlhy, I believe into the South Veran- not fure.
da, and I returned home ; I believe I did ft ay * v  •
till it was wrote. . Crof s Examination.

§ucft. Did C. O Deen ever- give you any f ■
reafon to think his complaint not true ? - Dow long have you known G. O

Anf No. never; his affertions have always Deen ? # - .■ ... .
been that it was true. Anf. I had an acquaintance with him about

Quell. Where was vou on the 20th April ? twelve years ago, and not after till. 1773- .
Anf. At the Chief juftice’s. S^ueft. How came you acquainted with
Shteft. Did you ever hear Mr. Fowke fay, him ? a , .

that he ufed threats to make C. O Deen fign Anf. I  know him as being member, and he 
the paper? a^farmer.

Anf No • he faid he lifted up a.volume of fu e ji. Do you know o f any complaints 
Churchill’s Voyages : I think the reafon he being preferred again ft him . 
gave for it was, that C. O Deen went into his . Anf I do not.
room when he was lying on the bed, and was Qyeft. Had you ever any particular conver- 
troublefome to him. I believe it was to get fation with him at your houfe ? ^
back his arzee. I cannot fay that certainly. Anf. I think he has called on me; but 

Quejl. Do you remember any thing elfe whether I had any particular converfation I 
that palfed at the C. Juft ice’s ? do not recoil ecf. ;

Anf. 1 remember Mr. Fowke fpeaking to, Qazft' Did you never turn him out of the
Mr. Barbell, with great vehemence, u Can room, as a man not worthy to be credited l
“  you fay, upon your honour and your oath, Anf. No, never. 
cc that you did not receive the 45,000 rupees?’’ Que/i. W hat is your opinion of him ?
Mr. Barwell replied, upon his honour and Anf. I  never had reafon to put confidence
his oath,he did not.— 1 am generally called in his credibility, or to doubt it. I thought 
Hofhia Jung by the black people, it is a title him a creditable man, and never heard any 

I have* thing amifs of him.
$uc(t.



f t ? '  Do you remember any inftance of a ■ guejl- Did you ever write an arzee for 
..complaint of his which was found to be ground- Comaul O Deen by the Governor’s order >
lefs]  r ' T v . • Anf. Yes, I did.

Anf. N o ; though I have frequently heard Relate the circumjances. 
o f  accufations againft him in the Fanning bufi- As I go every day to pay Selam to the 
nefs; the only one I can recolleft made by Governor, that day, as I was {landing in the 
him, was againft an Englifh Gentleman ; and outward room, I was called, and went in.

I believe to be true. The Governor was fitting at his writing-table,
Quejl. Did you believe ComauFs accufation and Coraaul. O Deen was at a fraall diftance

10 hf  rtriTC ? ‘ from him* AnotIier perfon, Cantoo Baboo’s
Anf. I did ; elfe I ftiould not have joined Deputy, was there, and the Governor’s Auriz- 

my name in j:he profecution. beggy. The Governor called me to him ;
Queft. W as it not from your doubt of his then he took the arzee, and gave it me to 

credit, that made you tell him to write only copy it fa ir ; and went out with Comaul O 
what was true ? ' Deen, at fome diftance from him. When I

Anf No-; from the nature of his ftory ; and began to write, Comaul O Deen faid to me, 
not from thinking his credit doubtful. Write what I dictate. He then, looking on
& Qnefl. How long have you known Mr. the other arzee, began to dilate, and I to 

Fowke ? * write : when I had wrote it, Coraaul O Deen
Anf. I have known him 1 6 years. read it over ; towards the latter end there ap-
Quejl. W hat is your opinion of his charac- peared fomething confufed; he put it right, 

ter? in order to prefent to the Governor. When
Anf. I have ever looked on Mr. Fowke as I had wrote it .fair, I gave it to the Governor, 

ftriftly honeft, and o f ftrict honour, according Comaul O Deen followed me. The Governor 
to his own principles; but I believe the vio- began to read; and I,explained it in places he 
lence of his temper may in fome points lead did not underftand. When the. arzee was 
him out of the road of honour without he him- read, the Governor looked at Comaul O 
felf being fenfible of it. Procuring accufa- Deen, and laid, You fay one thing, and write 
tions 1 think one of thofe inftances that may another. Comaul O Deen anfwered, I have 
lead him out of the road of honour. I ihould written what I before laid. The arzee re- 
be embarrafted to put any other cafe, but ac- mained with the Governor ; I and Comaul 
cufations againft the Governor General and went away, 
thofe immediately connected with him.

Quefl. Is Mr. Fowke in the Company’s fer- G U N G  A  G O V  I N  S I N G  
l vice I

Anf, No, he is not ; I believe he is cm- Quell. Did you give di reft ions to Comaul 
J  ployed by General Clavering; he is in of- Q ^  t0 compla£  again# M r. Fowke ?

^ce* i  \ - . Anf I did not.
Quefl. Did you, or did you not, receive ghtcjl. Did Comaul O Deen ever {hew you 

the 12,000 rupees, on account of the Tecka I arzce  ̂ complaining of Mr. Fowke ? 
•Collaries, as mentioned in the furd . Anf I faw an arzee in his hands, at the

Anf I never received that fum, or anY j Governor’s houfe ; I do not know whether he 
other on that account. i put *lt ;lU0 ray hands; I did not read it.

Quell. Had you ever any dilpute witli Co- 
M O O N S H Y  S E E R  A T  A L L  I C A W N . mâ O D e e n ?

» * Anf. There'was fomething of a difpute be-
Quejl. Whofe fervant are you ? tween me and him, about 26,000 rupees.
Anf I am in the fervice of the Company; 4

but remain about the Governor. , jr f  Mr.

M A H A  R A J A H  N U N D O C O M A R ,  A N D  R O Y  RAD A C HURN.  3*



34 T R I A L  O F  J O S E P H  F O W K E , F R A N C I S  F O W K E ,

Mr. A L E X A N D E R  E L L I O T .  Do you remember any thing that
pafled between M r. Barwell and Mr. Fowke 

Queft. Do you remember what pafled at the at the Chief Juftice’s ?
Chief Juftice’s, refpe&ing a book which M r. Anf. Mr. Barwell fpoke to Mr. Fowke with 
Fowke Jifted up to Comaul ODeen ? fome warmth about his conduft in this affair ;•

Anf. Mr. Fowke acknowledged, that he had and M r. Fowke, appearing to be angry, asked 
lifted a volume of Churchill's Voyages again ft him if he could give his honor and oath that 
Comaul O Deen, I do not remember why, on he had not received the 45,000 rupees. M r. 
the morning of the day he came for the arzee. Barwell faid, he would give his honor and 
He faid, Comaul O Deen was teazing him ; oath, he had not. M r. Fowke then faid, H e 
and I think faid, feized on his legs; I am not muft acquit him ; that is the way I generally 
fure; in confequence of which he lifted up a wipe off accufations againft myfelf. 
volume of Churchill’s Voyages ; it was fome- 
thing about the arzee..

o

I
Not guilty..
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J O S E P H  F O W K E>.

Maha . Rajah N U N D O G O M A  R,  ,
I

A/N D ,■

R  O Y  R A D A  C H U R  N r\

F O R :

A l  C  O N S P ' I  R A C Y  againft ; R I C H A R D  : B A R W E L L , „ E % ;

* Yown of Calcutta and f  J U R O R S  reprefent him as an unjufl and difhoneft
\ Faftorv of Fort Wil-< ôr our Lord , the perfon, and unfit to be trailed with the high. • 

liam in Bengal to wit I King, upon their oath, office and authority which he holds in the 
j  3 5 [ prefent, That Jofeph faid Province of Bengal, and thereby to bring

'Towke o f Calcutta Gentleman, Maha Rajah him into the ill opinion, hatred, and contempt, .
$ Nundocomar Behader late of Calcutta in- of all His Majeiiy’s fubjefls, both in India * 

habitant, and Roy Rada Churn of the fame and Great Britain, did, on the nineteenth ■ 
place inhabitant, all o f whom are fubjecl day of A pril, in the fifteenth year of the 
to the jurifdiftion of the Supreme Court reign of. our Sovereign Lord George the 
o f Judicature at Fort William in Bengal, Third, by the Grace of G o d ,' o f'G re a t : 
being perfons of evil name and fame, fold Britain, France, and Ireland, King, Defender 
difhoneft reputation, wickedly deviling, and of the Faith, and fo forth, at the town of 
unjufRy intending, to deprive Richard Barr Calcutta, and faftory of Fort William, frau- • 
Well Efquire,. one of the Members o f the dulently and unlawfully* confpire, combine, 
Council for the Province of Bengal, o f his and,agree among themfelves, falfely to charge 
good name, credit, and reputation, and to and accufe the faid Richard Barwell, for-that

* A  a a ||f11



i  * 2 i
v .  w  rnrrnnfk and collufively received fe- had been fo paid and received; to wit, to 
veralfnm s o f  money from one Cummaul al W arren Haftings Efquire fifteen thoulknd 
Deen Allee Cawn, in the nature of bribes, rupees; to Richard Barwell M quire forty, 
or for fervices rendered by him to the faid five thoufand rupees, to Hoftiyar Ju n g, 
Cummaul al Deen Allee Cawn, by virtue of thereby meaning George Vanfittart Efquire, 
his office and the authority o f his Ration in twelve thoufand rupees, and other fums o f 
this province and by that means to repre- money to other perfons •, and did falfely and 
fent the‘ faid" Richard Barwell as guilty o f wickedly prevail with and force, by intreaties, 
wilful bribery and corruption in his office and menaces, and other unlawful means, the faid 
d u ty  And the Jurors aforefaid, upon their,oath Comaul al Deen Allee Cawn, to write 

aforefaid, prefent, That, according words on the faid paper, purporting, that he 
, Confpiracy. to tJje faid confpiraCy, combination, acknowledged to have paid the faid fums to 

and agreement, the faid Jofeph Fowlce, the faid perfons: whereas in truth and in 
' Maha Rajah Nundocomar Bahader, and R oy fa il the faid Richard Barwell never received 

Rada Churn, did at feveral times, makje ufe any fuch fum o f money ; and the faid Co- 
o f perfuafions, promifes, and threats, to maul al Deen A llee Cawn, at the fame time, 

-prevail on the faid Comaul al Deen Allee and immediately thereafter, and alfo fince that 
; Cawn to accufe the faid Richard Barwell of time, declared the faid accufation to have been 
having received the faid fums, and of being falfe, and violently extorted from him as 

’ guilty& of the faid offence o f wilful bribery aforefaid, to the great damage o f the faid 
and corruption; and the Jurors aforefaid, Richard Barwell, to the evil example o f all 
upon, their oath aforefaid, do further pre- others in the like cafe offending, and againft 
fent, that alfo the faid Jofeph Fowke, Maha the peace o f our faid Lord the King, his 
Rajah Nundocomar Bahader, and Roy Rada Crown and Dignity.
Churn, on the faid nineteenth day o f A pril, in
the year aforefaid, according to the faid con- Signed,
fpiracy, combination, and agreement between
themfelves, before had as aforefaid, did J â  P r i t c h a r d ,
make, frame, and write, and caufed to be 19th June 17 5 5 , C l. o f the Crown,
made, framed, and written, a certain writing W . M. B e c k w i t h , 
or paper, purporting, that fums of money CL of Iodi&ments.

• *
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Maha Rajah N  U N D O C O M A R ,

A N D

R O Y  R A D A  C H U R N ,

F O R  1

A CONSPIRACY againft RICHARD BARWELL,  Efq;

(p -• »
I C O M A U L  O D E E N  C A W N  being fworn. I fat down in the Dewan Connah, and Maha 
I Rajah came foon after: I gave him a gold

J  Stuejl. A R E  you acquainted with Nundo- mohur : he alked me whether I had heard 
comar ? what pafled between the Governor and Coun-

1 A n f Yes. cil about Barramut, and the Munny Begum :
Quejlo Did you ever make application to I anfwered, I have not heard a l l : Maha Rajah 

him for money ? faid, Mr. John Graham is my enemy, and I
Anf. I  have often- am his : I was not an enemy to the Governor:
Styef Did you in the month of Chyle laft ? the Governor has told me, I will think much 
A nf Y e s ; I borrowed 3000 rupees of him about you, be upon your guard. I there­

in that month. upon conflilted with Mr. Fowke : Mr. Fowke
• Relate the converfation that palfed between anfwered me, Do you get Barramuts againlt 

you and Nundocomar. the Governor, Mr. Barwell, Mr. Vanfittart,
When I returned from Houghly, I went to and other Gentlemen and I will procure or 

Nundocomar’s houfe : he was not at home: you the place of the Aumeen of the KJialfa;
1 B b b  theu
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then gave him the Barramut, on account of things to me, that he had heard of my praife 
Munny Begum, and I have proved the Go- of Maha Rajah : he alfo faid, You will be on 
vernor to be in the wrong in the Council, good terms with Maha Rajah : I will get the 
Nundocomar faid to me, Do you get Ear- bufmefs o f Purnea for you, and whatever 
ramuts for the Pergunnah, of My fad el, Avin- Maha Rajah bids you do, do it : he then gave 
gun, Tumlook, and whatever places you can me beetle, otter, &c. and my difmiffion. 
get them from. I then anfwered, You have Sueft. W hen did you go again to Maha 
told me of getting Barramuts againft the Rajah ?
Governor and other Gentlemen ; but on hear- Anf Two days after, in the evening: I did
ing this, the people fpeak ill o f you ; you not choofe to go fooner, becaufe I heard bad
was before in friendfhip with the Governor, words.
and now you talk of getting Barramuts againft £>uejl. What bad words ?
him; and there is now a friendfhip between Anf. About the Barramut.
Mr. Barwell and Mr. Vanfittart; you are Sueft. W hat did you go for?
going backwards and forwards to their houfes: Anf. I went to get my difmiffion to g o to
Nundocomar faid, They fend often to call me; Houghly. -
therefore I g o : I then faid, I have given Queft. What paffed that evening?
nobody any thing, on account of Hidgellee. Anf. Maha Rajah asked me, Where is the
What do I know,, what has been done at fmall arzee you befo’re gave in to the Go- 
other places ? There was other converfation vernor againft Mr. Fowke ? I faid, I have i t : 
paffed, but I do not remember it now : he Maha Rajah faid, Bring it to me to-morrow 
laughed and faid, go and get the rupees you evening, that I may fee i t : when I have feen 
wanted to borrow from Roy Rada Churn, and it, I will then give you your difmiffion: I
when the Burdwan man gets his Kellaut, I went: home my old Moonfhy was gone to his 
will talk to you further on the fubjedt. houfe ; at noon, whatever I remembered, I

Sueji. When did you fee Nundocomar caufed to be wrote by my new Moonfhy. 
again ? Suejl. W hy was the old Moonfhy gone

Anf. It was either on the 30 Phaugoon, or from your houfe ! 
the 1 ft Chyle. Anf. The arzee was in the poffeffion of my

Sue ft. Did you fee Mr. Fowke foon after old Moonfhy. 
that ? . Sueft* What did you do with what you bid *

Anf. Yes ; a few days after I went to M r. your *n£w Moonfhy write ?
Fowke5s with Roy Rada Churn. Anf. I kept the paper newly written in my <f)

Sueft. On what occafion ? poffeffion till the evening: I fealed it, and . -
Anf. Maha Rajah had told me, You have carried it to Maha Rajah. Maha Rajah read" f

have had a quarrel with Mr. Fowke; go and it, and kept it, then gave me my difmiffion . I  
be reconciled to him, and by his means get for Houghly. ^
introduced to the General Colonel Monfon - Sueji. W hy did you imagine that Mr. 
and Mr. Francis: I faid, There is no great Fowke and the Maha Rajah would afk'you 
things in being reconciled to Mr. Fowke; till for Barramuts ?
you get your Kellaut, I would not be in- Anf. They talked to me about Barramuts; 
troduced to the Gentlemen : I will not go to- there was a cutcherry of Barramuts, for all 
day, Twill go to-morrow. The next day I the Jemindars v I alone do not know' th is; 
went with him to Mr. Fowke5s : I offered all Calcutta knows it.
Mr. Fowke a nuzzer o f 5 rupees, which he §)u;eji. You fay you went to afk your 
did not take: he told me to fit down: he got difmiffion- for H oughly: When did you re- 
up and went into his bed-chamber: he'then turn?
called me in to him, and Roy Rada Churn Anf. P went to Houghly ; while I was therey 
and I went in together 1 he faid many kind I heard that Moonfhy Sudder O Deen was

coming 5
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coming : hearing that, I returned: I believe in his heart; he will know that you are hi! 
about the laft of Chyle. o\yn man : I then replied to Maha Raiah r

When did you fee Maha Rajah Shall 1 tell a lie ? Maha Rajah faid, It muft be
again;  -ITT! T A c : * , ^ rote: was ncceffary for me to get back

Anf When I went for the arzee back : the arzee again* Qunga Covin Sing • and I
about the 4th or 5 th Byfaak. faid, Very well, I will write it when I get

„ c , .  home- 1 came to my own houfe, and wrote 
' ^  t0 Maha RaJ ah> Moonfhy Sudder | in fuch manner, as in fome meafure to com-

0  Deems come back, and the bufmefs with ply with his defire, and at the fame time to 
Gunga Coving Sing is fettled : give me the fave myfelf harmlefs, and left room for my 
arzee back again: then Maha Rajah faid, own confcience: I took it to Maha Rajah’s* 
What has been done about the rupees you] he was out: 1 fat down in the Dewan Connah: 
fpoke to Roy Rada Churn about? I anfwered, I Maha Rajah foon came, and as he was get-
1 have not got the rupees from Gunga Govin ting out of his palanquin, I gave him the
Sing ; and I will now, if you pleafe, give it arzee. He read it, and laughing, faid, This is
you in writing, that when I receive them, Lj nothing ; in the evening bring your Moonfhy 
may give you the fum promifed. - with you : I became angry, tore the arzee,

(Cormaul O Deen here fays, that he has and'went home; every body knows, I am a 
not his recolle&ion about him to-day, j paflionate man when I hear a lie. In the eve- 
and accounts for it as follows:) - ning I returned, and took my Moonfhy with

My vakeel has been tied up by Ram- me to Maha Rajah’s: I fat (till in filence:
chunder Sein for money, and great difgrace Maha Rajah caufed draughts to be wrote out
has fallen on me : I am the renter of Hidgelee, I by my Moonfhy and his own Domaun Sing ; 
I let it to farm out again to BufTunt Roy, and he then altered them with his own hands, and 
gave fecurity to government : BufTunt Roy I told my Moonfhy to write out a fair copy; 
pays the rent, and Ramchunder Sein,. Dewan I alfo *told him to do i t ; I acquainted the 
of the Khalfa, has tied up my vakeel without Maha Rajah that I had a great pain in my 
M r. Cottrell's order, or without his being belly, and defired to go home. Maha Rajah 
acquainted with it : Ramchunder Sein is a afked me if  my pain was very great: I faid, 
mutfuddy, and I am a man of reputation ; the Yes, and got my difmiflion. When one part 
tying up my vakeel is the fame as tying me of the night was paft, my Moonfhy and Yar 
up. __ Mahomed came to me: Yar Mahomed faid,

Quejl. What did Maha Rajah fay was done Maha Rajah has fent this paper, put your 
with the arzee ? feal to i t : I faid, N o ; there is no agreement

Anf Maha Rajah faid, 1 have it not, Mr. between Maha Rajah and me about fealing 
Fowke has it: 1 then faid, I depofited it with it. I then gave Yar Mahomed my Hookah to 
Roy Rada Churn; why has Mr. Fowke got fmoke; he fmoked a little and went away. 
it?  In the morning I went to Maha R ajah : m

Qyejl. What anfwer did Maha Rajah make? faid to me, Rada Churn is gone before, with 
Anf. He faid, W hat does it fignify to you ? the arzee; do you follow him to Mr. Fowke’s : 

come to-morrow: when I went the next day. I*went from Maha Rajah to Mr. Cottrells; 
to Maha Rajah’s, he told me, Mr. Fowke fays, and cas I came out from Mr. Cottrell’s, Rada 
t;he large arzee which you gave to the Go- Churn’s Hircarrah came to me, and faid, ft is 
vernor in the month of Poos, complaining matter was at Mr. Fowke’s houfe, and called 
againfl him *, if you will write thus, that you me thither: I then went, ycung Mr. Fowke 
did not give in the arzee on your own accord, and Rada Churn were fitting in his room 

• but by the direftion of Mr. John Graham (young M r. Fowke’s room). After the ufual 
and the Governor: write in this manner: compliments, Radda Churn went into old Î\lr- 
M r Fowke having read it, will remember you Fowke’ s room ; he came out again in a out 
A 5 1 B b b 2 ~
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two gurrys. A ' little after, Acoor Munnah $ueft. W here did you go ?
came to me, and faid, Mr. Fowke called me. Anf. I went out, wiping my face, and flood
j  w e n t Mr. Fowke was fitting upon the bed, upon the flair-cafe. There was a man named 
with his feet hanging down; and ordered me Samftieer Beg Handing there: I faid to him,, 
a chair, to fitoppofite to him. Two writers j See what violence has been ufed with me. 
and two Bengalies flood behind me. One o f He anfwered, I fee the eonfequence; but 
theBengalies was Acoor Munnah, and I know know nothing of the caufe. I faid to him, 
one of the writers.. He then took out the Let me fetch breath, and 1 will make you ac- 
arzee from off the bed, near the pillow, and quainted with the caufe. Then Roy Rada, 
afted me if I had given that arzee. I faid, Churn and young Mr. Fow ke, holding each 
Sir, that is not am arzee; it is a jabob fa- other’s hand, came and flood upon the land- 
wand: I wrote it according to the pleafure of ing-place. I faid to them, Tell Mr. Fowke 
Malia Rajah.- Then Mr. Fowke put on an to give me back all the papers which he has 
angry face.. I faid, There is wrote in this by force caufed me to write, or I will fpoil 
the words, Gurry Perivium, Adawlut Boof- myfelf (arab kurra), and, tearing my clothes, 
“  ter, and Erlhaud Melhawud;”  i.e . Protec- go immediately to the Council. They then 

. tor of the Poor, Diftributor o f Juftice; and faid, Don’ t be an gry ; be a little cool, and 
fc is ordered. I faid, W ho is the giver o f we will fpeak to Mr. Fowke. They went to 
orders ?' Mr. Fowke then angrily told me to him; and in about one and a half or. two 
leal it. I was afraid; and, putting the end gurrys came out again. Young M r. Fowke 
of my jamma about my neck, faid, Sip, for had the cover o f a letter in his hand, and faid' 
God’s fake, do not require me to do fuch bufi- to me,.. Your papers are all in th is ; I have 
aefs. H e then took up a large book, and brought them out, but will keep them with 
faid, God d—n you, you fon of a bitch. I me to-day: You come to-morrow; M ahaRa- 
faid, Sir, well, give it me, and I will .feal it. jah will likewife com e; and whatever Malta 
(C. 0  Deen here deferibes the Book.) M r. Rajah pleafes, and fltall be agreeable.to you, 
Fowke laid down the book, and I fat down fhall be done. I then came away, 
on the ground : the tears ran down my Styejl. After-you came away,. what did you 
eheeks, and I quivered and fliook through! do?
anger and fear. 1 then fealed it : he took'it I Anf. W hen four gurrys o f the day were 
of me; and then took out a furd, and afked remaining, I went to Moonfhy Sudder O Deen, 
me, Have you given M r. Barwell in three and faid to him, M r. Fowke has by force 
years 45,000 rupees, at the rate o f 15,000 caufed me *to put. my feal upon an arzee, and 
rupees a year? 1 faid, I had. Did you give to fign a furd: Tam going to Maha R a ja h j I 
Mr. Haftings 15,000 rupees? I faid, I bad. defire, if you have an opportunity, that yon 
Did you give Mr. Vanfittart 12,000 rupees ? will go and acquaint Mr. Barwell and M r. Van- 
I feid, Yes. Did you give Rajah llajebullub Yittart o f all the circumftanCes.
7000 rupees? I faid, Yes. Did you give Can- £>uefl. W hat was he to acquaint them 
too Baboo 5000 rupees? I faid, Yes. He faid, I with ?
Sign it; and then put the furd into my hands: Anf. O f thefe circumflances. - I went to
1 looked at it, and faw the five names, with Maha Rajah’s ; he was in- his inner apart- 
the different fums oppofite to each. The ink- ments: I went and fat down with Samfheer 
ftand was laying on the bed, and I put my B e g ; we faid our prayers together. I  then, 
dulkut on it—writing “  Rufl'um Rudum and went to R oy Rada Churn, and, talking to: 
Dudam.”  When I had figned the arzee, M r. him, took a pillow and Tat down. Maha Ra- 
Fowke bid me tell the people behind me to jah came out into theDewan Connah : I  went 
witnefs it. I faid, Very well, let them do fo. and fat down by him ; I ’then related to him 
1 then gave him the furd, and he told me to all thefe circumflances. Maha Rajah con- 
£°* foled me, and faid to-me, Do you, be content;

I  will
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m° rning5 S  f 1 8  back f  'M  BecaUfe they had taken from me, by 
your aiZee. He gave me beetle, fife; and force, a falfe Barramud. W hy Should 1 not 
my difmiffion. I went away. calf but? J  “  1  “ ot

Syeft. W here did you go to next ? $ueft. In what language was the furd writ*
Anf* I went to Moonfhy Sudder O Deen, ten?

and told him all thefe things. The next An/. In Perfian.

T T 7 *  V ? V ?  “ *'• Ra- Had y ° “  « s r  fa n  the hand-writing'jah , Roy Rada Churn, and old M r. towke, before? ®
were in the room : L flood upon the flair- ’ An/ No.
cafe, and did not go in, through fear. Soon Queft. Did you form any opinion then -
after, Mr. Fowke came out; then Maha Ra- whofe it was? 
jah  came out, and Rada Churn. I addrefled An/ No.
myfelf to Maha Rajah, and faid, Sir, what Sfyeft. W hen Mr. Fowke afked you, if you 
have you done for me ? Maha Rajah faid, had paid the fums of money to Mr. Rarwell, 
W hat can I do for you ? I have talked a why did you fay-—yes ? 
great deal to Mr. Fow ke; but he does not An/ I faid fo, becaufe I knew he wanted 
mind me. Saying this, they went down flairs Barramuts, and in faying fo I fliould get 
to their palanquins: juft as they were fetting free.
off in their palanquins, 1 began to tear my £!ueji. Did you ever give thofe fums to 
clothes, and called out Douy. I then got Mr. Barwell, or any other fums of money ? 
into my palanquin : hircarrahs laid hold of An/ N o, never.
it, and fcuffled with my people; and went on £>ueft* Had you ever any quarrel with
in that manner, fcuffling, till I got to the Bi- Mr. Fowke ?
tah Connah of Rajah Rajebullub. I went An/ That day, and once' before in the' 
and complained to the Chief Juftice. month o f Poos. There was no direft quar-

Queft. Did you go no where elfe,. before re l: Barnafly Ghofe complained to the Ge- 
you went to the Chief Juftice ?- • neral, and the General referred his complaint

An/ Yes, I went to the Governor’s. to Mr. Fowke. Barnafly Ghofe told Mr.
S$ue/t. What did he fay to you ? ' Fowke, that I had taken the farm at a very

.An/ He faid, W hat can 1 do ? They are great expence: on which Mr. Fowke faid to 
three gentlemen, I am but tw o: I can do me, Do you tell true what you have given to- 
nothing for you in this. You muft go and the Engli/h gentlemen, and what to theMut- 
complain in the King’s A daw let; I cannot fuddies; i f  you do not tell, you lhall be 
dofyou juftice. puniftied.

'feue/t. Whofe hircarrahs laid hold of your £>ue/t. W hat anfwer did you give? 
pajanquin ? A n/ I faid, I have not given any body any

jA n / How fhould I know ? D o I write down thing: what’s the ufe of telling a lie ? 
yieir names ? How can I tell ? . gueft. In confequence of. this, what did
“ Sue/t. Do you know whether they be- you do ?
longed to Mr.^Fowke, Maha Rajah, or Rada An/ I had numberlefs thoughts in my own 
Churn ? mind ; but I went and gave the fraall arzee to

A n/ I do not know whofe they were. W hy the Governor, and wrote out a little ; for 
fhould they belong to any body elfe but one this reafon, that the Governor was a great 
o f them ? They called me to come back; man, .and Mr. Fowke an Englifhman; and 
fometimes Maha Rajah, fometimes Mr. Fowke, that if  I wrote a great deal, he might be angry, 
and fometimes Rada Churn, wanted me. # #  When Mr. Fowke a&ed you to tell

Que/t. W hy did you call Duoy, when him what fun>you gave to the Lnglilh gentle- 
Mr. Fowke and Maha Rajah were getting men, did he not fay fomething to you about 
into their palanquins ? taking an oath ?
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Anf. N o, lie did not. but to fay fome lies and fome truths, when
Slue ft. W hat, not when M r. Fowke was they are not put upon their oaths, 

examining the complaint o f Barnafiy .Ghofe ? ~£ueft. W hy did you demand more than 
Anf No. • ‘ was really due?

Anf By my accounts, I judged a fum to 
Crofs Examination of Comaul &  Deen. that amount was due. G . G . Sing laughed,

and faid, Are you a fool ? you have no fuch 
Queft. Did Maha Rajah tell you to get claim upon me. I then faid, I f  you have 

falfe Barramuts? any claim, you malt make it on Bulfunt
Anf He did not tell me either, true or falfe : Roy.

'hetold  me to bring Barramuts. S>ueft. How much did you actually receive
£>ueft. Did he tell you to bring Barramuts from Gunga Govin Sing ? 

againft any .particular people, or only again ft Anf. By the means o f Moonfhy Sudder 
-thofe to whom you had given money? O Deen, I got ioooo rupees. I told Moon-

Anf. He named the Governor, M r. Bar- (hy Sudder O Deen, W hatever is due, do
well, M r. Vanfirtart, the Mutfuddi<fs, and you, upon your religion and confcience, ad- 
other people. He told me .to get whatever judge to me. And I told G . G . Sing, Do 
Barramuts I could find, from Hidgelee, &V. you, -as a Hindoo, upon your religion and 
and named the names as before. I did not confcience, pay me what is due. 
mean to lodge , a complaint againft Gunga £>ueft. Was 10,000 rupees the whole you
Govin Sing; and therefore why fhould I received, in money or otherwife ?
write every thing that was true ? I had-a claim Anf l only got 10 ,000 rupees. I have 
•againft him for 26000 rupees. fettled every thing from the rft o f Affin to

. Queft. Did you offer Maha Rajah any the end o f Bhaudun. 
money, provided he fhould recover this S^ueft. W hat became o f the other 16 ,000 
Turn ? | rupees |

Anf I  told Rada Churn that I would give Anf. W hatever was, Bulfunt Roy know s; 
4000 rupees to Maha Raja, and 2000 rupees I do not.
10  himfelf, provided he could recover the £>ueft. W as it wrote off, on account of 
whole amount. I revenue ?

Queft. Was the whole 26000 rupees (bona\ Anf. Gunga Govin Sing told me, that 
jide) due to you? whatever remained we would fettle with Buf-

A nf It w as; but Gunga Govin Sing has funt Roy. I got 10 ,000 rupees, which I 
told me, that he has brought the money due thought a great d e a l: it is now public, ^nd • 
to me for the teeka collaries, to account of all the merchants come to me for money, 
money due from me to the revenues. T he claim that was upon me from the Ire-

Queft* Is it not cuftomary with you, when venue, was ended on the la ft 'o f  Bhaudmi« 
one rupee is due, to demand four \ from that time to this, there has been lip

. ^ nf '   ̂ atn a farm er: this is a Bengally claim on me, on account of revenues. G . G  ̂
difpute.  ̂ Am ong ourfelves we fay fifty dif- Sing fhewed me many papers, and made 
ferent kind o f things. There was at that many demands. I do not know what was 
time no complaint lodged : when a complaint actually due.
is lodged, and we are put upon our oaths^ we Queft. Did Gunga Govin Sing take the 
Tay whatever -is true. Ten o f my under- 16 ,000 rupees to fettle the accounts? 
tenants may come to me, and I will fay to Anf. God knows: I fettled them on his 
>©ne, You arê  indebted to me one thoufand confcience. I was cleared; and he was 
rupees: he will-fay, N o ; I only owe you one fatisfied in refpedi to all claims, except 
-'hundred. Till this d^y it nev%r was in the fait.
•cuftom in .Bengal for zimindars, or farmers,

■ Q u efU
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gueft. Who was to pay whatever was due Anf When Accoor Munnah called me 
before Bhaudun, on the fettlement of that ac- then I went. ’

C0X V  T was ■ . . .  C I t l ^  went yoir into Mr.
Txr * i , . Fowke femor’s room ?

gyeji. W ere the claims made by Gunga Anf. Acoor Munnah took me there.
Govin Sing on your own account, or of Go- gueft. Were there any body elfe?

-a ! M -  Acoor Munnah, another Bengally, .
Anj.. l liacl.none but revenue accounts with and two writers, came afterwards.

5, . tti , .  Queft. Did thefe people come in direftly
^uejt. When was the firfl day you went after him ?

to M r. Fowke s? By the time I had fat down, they came ‘
Anj. it was when I went with Rada Churn, and flood behind me. 

towards the laft of Chyle ? S^ueft. Did they flay as long as you did?
. ‘<lleP ‘- 1 he firfl time you went to Mr. A n f.l have already told you, whilft mode- -

Fowke s houfe, did you fee him ? rate converfation 1 ailed, they were -there.
Anf* I did ; and offered him a nuzzeen of When I was on the ground, I know not whe- • 

five rupees, which he would not accept. It ther there were four or ten in the room, 
was the fiift time after the affair of Barn ally Qucft, When did you fall'on the ground?
Ghofe, about-the end of Chyle. Anf When I a/ked Mr. Fowke who w'as

Did you fee young Mr. Fowke that the Gurry Purwar, Adaulet Boofter, &c. 
day ? and when he was angry: I then went down

Anf I faw him in his own room: I did not on the ground, putting the end of my jam- 
fpeak to him. mah -round my neck, as I have already

Queft. Did you at this time tell Mr. Fowke (hewn ? 
fenior what had paffed between you and Ma- Queft. What then paffed ? What made 
ha Rajah Nundocomar ? you go down on the ground ?

A n f N o.. A nf Mr. Fowke took up a book, and ■
Queft. In the arzee you carried to Maha called out, G — d d— n you, you fon of a 

Rajah, what part did Maha Rajah ftrike out? bitch; when he told me to feal the arzee : - 
The arzee afterwards fent to Mr. Fowke ? on which I faid, Give time,- and I’ ll -feal 

Anf How Ihould I know what he {truck it. 
out ? I did not fee what. «%*/?, Do you always fit when youfign and •

• ®u<ft. Did'you hear the whole dictated to feal ? 
th« Moonfhy ? Anf .Sometimes when I am Handing, and $

Mnf Have I not ears? W hy fhould I not fometimes fitting, 
h JLr ? Queft. What paffed when you was down on ?
/Shieft. Did you make any obje&ions ? the ground ?

/  A nf No. What objections could I make ? Anf I cried, .(hook, and put my feal to the
He told me to bring my Moonfhy, to write arzee...
another. Had you your fenfes at the time ?

Queft. W hen'did you go next to Mr. A n f.l was not abfolutely gone mad, but •
Fowke’s ? I was in great fear.

-Anf The next day, after I had been at Qtteji. Do you recolleft any thing that 
Mr. Cottrell’s. : - ■ paffed at the.time l  ' ..

Queft. W hat time o f  the day was it? Anf I put my feal ,to the arzee, and lignea ■
Anf I had no watch ; more or lefs than the furd. M,r. Fowke then bid me-go : what - 

one. par. ' more Ihould I remember.
Queftk Did you go into Mr. Fowke fenior’s Sueft. Do you remember the people t at  ̂

room ? were, in the room at -the time. Anf . *
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"  AnfMv head was downwards; after he I Did M r .F o w k e  ever threat*, yob
bid me £  I eoald not teH who, or bow can a. any oAer ume.

‘  " S ' D H W W J 1' p S k  »  yo n ! d ’fi-  A re you fare thatyoung M r. Fowke

V d°  W  * *  elfe > < * « £ ■ • £ • *  teli l  ,  did nor fee then,.

Was the door Ihn, I  did you firft. fee ,he furd
/  tsj you lpeak or r

Z l  When you went out, did you fee Anf. I faw it at that tim e; never before or 
J p t p je  mentioned, or know ,bem #  , • bn, nor rhe

f t  How long do you think you was in Sunjl. W as the furd fhewn immediately 
Mr Fowke's room: (Mr. F . feuior.) when you went down on the ground •

ie d  I had no wa ch ; about one or two Anf. After I had fealed the araee: and told 
m p i  nau ^  Fringies to be witnefes, the furd was an*

^W ue'/l Was you in Mr. Fowke’s room more mediately produced.
Quejl. Did any thing intervene between

' S T n ”  your (haling the areee and the produftion o f
Queft. Was the door ftanding wide open, the fu rd . . »

■ when you went in ■ A /  I faid Let them be wimeffea i he then
if a/: Both when I went in and came out. produced the furd.

When you went in to Mr. Fowke’s Queft.̂  Do you recolleft what you wrote on
room, how many people were there ? the furd ? n .
' I told you before. M -  J  wrote> Ruffum Nudum and D a*

Quell. How'many people were thereabout “  dam." 
the Houfe ? did you obferve fereral ? % £ •  W as there any thing elfe wrote on

Anf. When I went in, there were many; the furd ? 
when I came out, there were few. -Anf. Yes.

(Being further interrogated, he can* M r. Barwell 45,000 rupees,
not fay exactly, how many at either Mr. Haftings 15,000
tjuie.) M r. Vanfittart 12 ,000

Quejl. Do you know, or think, that the four R . Rajebulleeb 7,000 ' )
people, two Fringies and two Bengallys, were Cantoo Baboo 5?000 (3
Jet on you as guards ? ‘ ' % #  W ere there fio other words whatfl

Anf. No. ever on the furd ? ^
Quell. Did you ever attempt to go away Anf. I faw no. more. _ * \

before you actually did go? Quefl. W as there any thing o f 15 ,000
Anf. When Mr, Fowke told me to go, I rupees a year ? 

did <To. Anf. H e told me that by word of mouth.
Quejl. Did you write any thing on the'  Quejl. A t the time you. wrote this on the 

arzee ? furd, were there any body in the room ?
Anf. I fealed it. Arf. 1 don t know.
Quefl. Did you ever write your name on Qiteft. W ere you frightened .

;the arzee ? , Anf. Y e s ; elfe why fhould I have be$n
Anf. I did-not write any thing ; ,the Moon- down ? 

fby wrote my name ; l did not ; l do not know Quefl. W hen M r. Fowke aiked, whether 
what Moonlhy-wrote ; it was all wrote at you had given the fums mentioned in the furd
Maha Rajah’s houfe. tq Mr. Barwell, &c. did he bid you fay yes .

J 1 Anf.
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i t n 1 Who i°V bif  me fay Y f '• , , Did you never at any time tell Rada
. ghiejl. Who had the pen and ink when Churn that you would go to Mr. Fowke’s ?
you figned the furd ? Anf, No. I told Maha Raj ah.

AnJ. It was upon the bed* | J
gueji. Did M r. Fowke take it from the Moon&y S U D D E R  O D E E N  being called 

bed and give it you ? ~ and fworn> 5
Anf* N o ; I took the pen and ink, and

W1^ e\  v-rr. - • . . . ' ' Quejl. Are you acquainted with Comaul
z{ueJL • W hole hand-writing was the furd ? O Deen Cawn ?
Arif. How fhould I know? how can I guefs? Anf Yes.
Quefi. W as it like any body’s hand that you _ gueji. W hat paffed between you and him 

know •  ̂ in the month of Byfaak laft ?
^ if ' I ^now nothing of it. Anf\ He fpoke to me two or three times,

i Hid you feal any other paper at M r. I believe about the 3d or 4th and 8th of that
Fowke’s that day ? month.

AnJ. N o ; none except the large arzee, which Quejl. What did he fay to you ? relate it. 
was by force. A nf He told me, that Maha Rajah had

Que/i. Did you never fay that you gueffed faid to him, that he mult write an arzee on 
who wrote the furd ? the fubjeft of the Tecka Collaries; he would

Anf. 1 don’t remember that ever I did. not give it him; he would not bring fo much 
§>uejl. Did you ever fee Rada Churn write? (harne upon himfelf. Maha Rajah alfo told 
Anf He has wrote a thoufand times before him to get a Barramut againfl Mr. Barwell : 

me, he gave him a denial: this is all that paffed
Quejl. Did the Governor General ever fay the firft meeting between Comaul O Deen 

to you thefe words, u They are three Gentle- and me.
“  men, I am but two; I cannot redrefs you;  . Styejl. Did Comaul O Deen mention any 
“  you muft go to the Adawlet ?”  other name than Mr. Barwell’s ?

Anf Yes-, the day I went to complain. A nf I well remember Mr. Barwell’s name :
(A  paper being {hewn.) I do not recolleft any other 5 at that time he

Quejl. Can you form any judgement whofe did not mention Mr. Haftings’s name, 
writing this is ? State what paffed on the 8th Byfaak.

A nf I can’t tell; you may call my Moonfhy. j When about 4 gurries of the day were re- 
I told him to write fuch an arzee, or requi- maining, Comaul O Deen came to my houfe, 

? jition, for the Adawlet of Hidgelee. and faid, that he had been that day at Mr.
1 Queji. Did you ever fee any other arzee j Fowke’s *, .and that Mr. Fowke had by force
j on any other day at Mr. Fowke’s houfe ? caufed him to feal a paper account of Tecka

J  Anf. I never did. Collaries, and had made him fign a furd : he
i  Are you very certain ? faid, He fealed the arzee and Jigned the furd.

Anf Except that paper, I never did ; what When he had got into his own management, 
more can I fay ? I am on oath. he difputed with Mr. Fowke; and it was agreed

Quejl. Had you any reafon to think that upon, that in whatever manner Maha Rajah 
Mr. Fowke exp eft ed you that morning? fhould fettle it in the morning, fo it Ihouid 

Anf. What do I know, whether he ex- be. If, fays he, Mr. Fowke will give me 
pOfted me or not ? A  Hirearrah came for me ; back my arzee and papers, it is very well; if 
f  went. — , ' '  not,. I will ruin myfelf. You are my friend,
>. £hieft\ Had you told Rada Churn the night Comaul O Deen faid to me, It is proper you 
before, that you would next day go to Mr. fhould acquaint Mr. Barwell and Mr. \ anfi- 
Fowke’s? tart: He then faid, He was going to Maha

Anf, No. C c e  RaJ ahs»
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R ajah ’s, and would come back at night; and § ) u e jt . W^hen did Comaul O D een fa y , 
acquaint me with all the particulars : he M aha Rajah would give back the papers ? ' 
came back after 6 gurries o f the night were A n f  On the  ̂ morrow morning. I likewife 

. palled, and told me, that Maha R ajah  w ou ld 1 remember afking Comaul O Deen, whofe 
give him back all his papers: he laid, D o names were on the furdP.and he told me, M r. 
you now hear the particulars. Barw ell, M r. H aftings, M r.-Vanfittart, R a ja

u I gave in arzees againft Gunga G ovin  KajebulJub, Cantoo B ab oo . So much I re- 
u  Sing, and depofired them with R o y  Rada member.
C( Churn, with the knowledge o f M aha R ajah , Q u e j l .  Y o u  fay that Com aul O D een de~
“  and laid, Let thefe arzees remain as a de- fired you to acquaint M r. B arw ell what had
<c pofit : if, upon the return o f Moo’nfhy | palled. D id you ?
c ‘  Sudder. O D een , the difference between A n f .  I told M r.Vanfittart that day.
Li Gunga Govin Sing and me (hall be fettled ; § ) u e ft . D id  you ever acquaint M r . Bar* 
u  I will then take back the arzees, and give w ell ?
“  4000 ru p ees ,to  M aha R a ja h , and 20QO A n f .  T h e re  were but 4 gurries o f  the*
“  rupees to y o u : It  is now two days fince|day rem aining: I acquainted M r . B arw ell o f  
Ci I  made a demand on M aha R a jah  for the fom ething; but he does'not know  the lan* 
a  arzees ; and M aha Rajah faid, T h e y  were j guage ; I told him but little. 
u  with M r. Fow ke : he (M aha R ajah) then Y o u  fpeak o f  an arzee prefented b y
fS faid,Do you write an arzee fo as to give a bad Comaul O Deen to Rada Churn againft G u n ga  
f*  name to the Governor and M r. Graham  : I G ovin Sin g : D o  yo u  know  any thing o f the 
“  faid, H ow can this be? But M aha R ajah  difpute l

u  faid, D o one thing, write a ftory about A n f  I  heard o f it when I  .returned to-C aJ- 
u  the T ecka Col lari es ; and when I  have cutta.
u  fhewn it to M r. Fow ke, I will get you Q u e ft*  W as th is difpute fettled b y  your 
u  back your arzees againft G unga G ovin means ?
** S in g : I  then told M aha R a jah , that I had A n f  Y e s , it w a s ; they both agreed .
\ a pain in my belly , and wifhed to go home ; Q u e ft *  D id  Com aul O D een  acquaint you
“  I  told him, my M oonfhy was there to write : with any quarrel he had with M r. F o w ke in:
** I went h om e; Y a r  M ahomed came to me the fnonth o f  Poos?.
u  at night, and brought the arzee about the A nf H e  did.
“  T ecka Collaries, and told me to feal i t :  I State what you know  refpefting it.

anfwered,. T h ere  is no agreem ent between Com aul O D een  told me th is : T h a t  B a r-
u  M aha R ajah  and me, that*I lhould feal Daffy G hofe had lodged a com plaint again ft D 
u  11 ”  him on. account o f  the T eck a  Collaries to the I

Com aul O D een faid, T hat he had been G e n era l: the G eneral had referred  it to> |
at M r. Fowke's that day, and that M r. F o w ke M r. F o w k e : that B arn affy  G h o fe  and he \
was very angry with him, took up a book to had converfed on the fu b je ft before M r . 
beat him, and had caufed him b y  force to F o w k e ; w hatever queftions M r. Fow ke asked 
feal an arzee, and fign a furd ; I  asked Co- him , he anfwered : that Barnaffy Ghofe had : 
maul O  D een , what fignature he had put told M r. F o w k e that he got the bufinefs b y  
upon i t ;  he anfwered, In fome I  put Ruffun giving many b r ib e s ; and M r. Fow ke faid to ; 
N udun, and fome D adam . Afterw ards, when h im ; T e ll me w hat you have given to the 
he became his own mafter, he made a dif- different p e o p le : Com aul O D een anfw ered, . 
turbance about it, as before related : he told T h a t he had not given  any thing to any.body. 
M aha Rajah  o f all this, and M aha R ajah  faid, Com aul O D een came to me another d ay , and » 
H e would give him back the pap er, .T h is  is faid , T h at M r. F o w ke had called on him that 
a l l  that Com aul O D een told rae .̂ U a y , and told him , T o  tell tru ly what he h ad

given
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I S  £ • the •? u ntl^ eD) and ^  tG the and hereafter, and will certainly go to hell. 
Mmfudd.es; If, he did not, ,t  would not be $uejt. Do you believe that Comaul O Deen 
well for him, and he fhould be pumfhed. So would fwear ten times to a falfity > 
much I  remember. No. I  believe in my own mind, that

.. You %  the difpute between C. a Muffulman who underftands the Koran will
O Deen and G . G . Sing was fettled by you: not take a falfe oath.
How much did you fettle to be paid on ba- $u eJt. Did you ever hear of a Muffulman 
lancmg the accounts ? taking a falfe oath ?

A n f.l ordered 10,000 rupees. Anf. I fay that a Muffulman who is ac-
How much was demanded by Co- quainted with the Koran will not; others may. 

maUJ  ? . D >ee“  ' Qiteji. Do you think that Comaul O Deen
26,000 rupees. will not fwear falfely, merely from his know-

Quejl. After having ordered 10,000 rupees, ledge of the Koran ? 
how was the remainder iettled ? Anf I fuppofe he will not on that account;

Anf Comaul O Deen made a claim of but he is my friend, and I know him to be
26,000 rupees : G . G . Sing faid, That amount an honefl man : I believe he would not fpeak 
was due from C. O Deen, on account of re- falfely in common converfation ; I always 
venues; and that C . O Deen had no claim found him to fpeak the truth, when not on 
upon him:  I told C. O Deen what claims oath, 
were made on each other: C. O Deen faid,
He fhould be ruined; many demands were Crofs-Examination of Moonjhy S U D D E R
making on him on account of Tecka Col- O D E E N .
laries ; if  he could get 10,000 rupees, his cha- Quefl. Did Comaul O Deen tell you that
rafter would be fa fe : I then faid to G . G . Mr. Fowke lifted up any thing befides a
Sing,You are two friends; this is a bad time^to book ?
breed quarrels : a man of reputation will now Anf No.
a days rather fuffer a fmall lofs than enterjnto Shiejl. Did he tell you any thing about a 
quarrels ; it is become neceflary to pay Comaul pillow ?
O Deen 10,000 rupees : Gunga Govin Sing A nf No.
faid, It is very well, the 10,000 rupees {hall Quejl. W hy did you tell Ginga Govin Sing
be paid him, and the 16,000 rupees {hall be' that it was neceflary to give Comaul G Deen 
carried to account o f revenues: do you tell 10,000 rupees?
him that I will give him 10,000 ru p ees:.I  A nf Becaufe they are both my friends, 

* then told Comaul O Deen ; and he agreed. and I wiftied to fettle the difpute.
1 Sguejl. Do you know whether the 10,000 Queft* Are you in any employment ?
I rupees were paid, or not ? Anf I have no fettled wages; but I (lay

' A nf Yes ; I paid them. about Air. Harwell's: Mr. Graham recom-
£>uejl. Do you know if the 16,600 rupees mended me to him when he went away, 

were carried to account of the revenues ? Queft. What wages did you receive from
Anf I did not fee the books: if  they were M r. Graham ? 

not carried to account of revenues, why {hould A nf When at Bind wan, Mr. Graham 
C. O Dein be filent ? gave 100 rupees per month. After thar, I

Qnejl* How long have you known Comaul had no fettled w ages: he gave me what he 
O'Deen ? pleafed. r ■

Anf I  have known him 20 years; he is Quejl. How long did you flay at Burdwan.
> niy friend ; and I believe him to be an honefl: Anf. About three years.

man, and to be trufted upon oath : if  a Mulful- Qitfft- How long, in the whole, did you
man takes an oath, he mud be believed ; if live with Mr. Graham?
he fwears falfely, he mult be ruined here Anf Eight years.

€  c c 2 S.cond
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; 2>iicft. What mare- paffed ?

Second D a y  o f  the T R I  A  L .  Af :  1 hav" fa!d>. tlvdt 1 dcfire? Kim t0 deli'ocTuuiiu -l'a y  ver h-js complaint m writing. I am not cer-
tain whether he brought it to me that day or 

 ̂ T H E  G O V E R N O R  G E N E R A L  not, j ( -  was fhort, and 1 did not think it fuf-.
being fworn. ficient for a complaint. I told him, That, if

§fueft. Did you ever receive from Coraaul he wifhed I fhould take publick notice of what 
O Deen the fum of 15,000 rupees, direftly I he complained, his paper fhould contain the 
or indireftly ? whole o f his injuries. M r. Vanfittart was

Anf I never did receive that fum, or a ‘ there, and faid the fame'words, or to that 
promife of it, nor any other fum, dir eft] y or effeft. Comaul O Deen took my M oonfliy; 
indireftly. I do not believe I ever faw Co- they fat down, and drew out his complaint, 
maul ODeen till he came to make his com-1 He Iafd it before the Board, 
plaint: he might have attended in the courie Did Comaul O D een ever make any
of bufmefs; but I did not recoiled his face. Mother complaint to you ? ;

Que/l. Did you ever tell Mr. Fowke, that Anf. He complained to me in April L ift 
he might get rid of his fcruples, if he meant He came to me one morning in great agony, 
tQ.be ferved ? and, the collar o f his jamma was torn : he

Anf. Never, in the fenfe which I under- complained that Mr. Fowke had compelled 
ft and Mr. Fowke has given to them. I knew. | him to fign an arzee, mifreprefenting the con- 
Mr. Fowke to be a man of great Angularity: [tents o f the former.
I might have faid, I cannot ferve you unlefs Quefl. Do you remember any particular 
you part with this Angularity. I might, out 1 converfation between Mr. Barwell and M r. 
o f delicacy, have faid, You mud part with Fowke, at the time o f the examination at 
fcruples; but that I ever meant or faid any the Chief Juflice’s ?
thing which could imply fuch a meaning, Anf Some words of heat paffed, refpefting 
That he mu ft part with his integrity, his vir- the furd. Mr. Fowke addrefled M r. Barwell 
tue, or his honour, I mod folemnly deny. I with much vehemence both in countenance 
have never betrayed fuch a licentioufnefs of and expreffion; and faid, “  Mr- Barwell, will 
fentiment even to my mod intimate friends; “  you declare, on your honour and your oath, 
and I was not on terms of confidence with <c that you never received the 45,000 ru- 
Mr. Fowke at the time in which this conver- \iC p ees?”  They were mentioned fo pointed, # 
fa ti on. is faid to have paffed. ' that I believe them to be'the- very words: I

Queft. Did you not promife that you would will not fay pofitively they are the exaft words, 
ferve Mr. Fowke? M r. Barwell replied, He could declare, upon

Anf. I did ; and I ferved him. I believe it his honour and his oath, that he never had/ 
was owing to my not having ferved him to the There were many more words paffed., 
extent o f his wiflies, even to the gratification Are you acquainted with Comaul
o f his private refentments, that he has been O D een?
fo inveterate in his enmity to me. I Anf I know him only from circumftances

£&*/*• Do you remember the time the com- by which I am nearly affefted. I have heard 
plaint was made to you by Comaul ODeen? nothing particular' o f his charafter. The 

Anf. In the month of December. caufe of his coming, to Calcutta was to an-
Qucft. What was the complaint? fwer to a complaint made by Sir Edward
Anf. lh a t  Mr. Fowke had been very ur- Hughes, for want of provifions to fupply his

gent with him t̂o declare, that he had given (hips at Ingella. I defired the Chief of the
babes to the Englifh Gentlemen, and toche Commirtee of Revenue to fend for him: I da 
Mutluddies. The complaint was made to me not know whether he appeared, 
verbally- I defired to have it in. writing.
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n  J kLy0U %  words to Comaul | $ueji. Had Mr. Fowke' any employment
O Deen, I hey are three gentlemen, I am under Government? r  J
“ but two” ? Anf No.

Ar,f. I do not reeqllea. I believe I did not $ueft. How long have you known Mr. 
make nfe of thefe words, beeaufe I did not | Fowke ?
tbink his complaint a matter cognizable by the Anf I have feen him fome years.
Co^nci 1. %£/?• Dkt you know"him on the CoafD

' W w - w eye ever the contents of the ford An/. I did not know him on the Coaft. I 
mentioned in Council, or any where elfe, that do not know his character: I might have 
they came from Mr. Fowke? | heard of him; but nothing that made any

Anf. I believe, from no other than Comaul: imprefiion upon my memory. W hat I know 
O Deen, or from thofe 1 underftood he had i of him, I know fince.
fpoke to of it. • Did you ever know him guilty o f

QuaJI. Had you ever any converfation with any dilhoneft or diflionourable act?
Comaul O Deen ? A n /'lt  is a difficult queftion. I will not

Anf I converfed with Comaul O Deen on pretend to fay that I know him guilty of 
the day in which I fent him to the Chief Juf- either : unlefs I could prove fuch afts, I fliould 
tice. On the clofe o f the examination, the not care to mention them in a Court of Juf- 
Judges delivered it as their opinion, That tice. He has had difputes, and thofe difp'utes 
there were grounds for a profecutiou. He have been referred to me; but people that 
was allowed till the Monday to declare whe- difpute, are apt to place difhoneft motives to 
ther he would profeeute or not. I faw Co- thofe with whom they difpute. I always con- 
maul O Deen on the Saturday and Sunday : fidered' him of a violent and morofe temper; 
On Saturday I examined him, and crofs- and, while under that influence, too apt to 
examined him, and put queftions, to lift the infmuate aftions in which he is concerned to 
truth ; and warned hi-m as to the confe-1 bafe and bad motives in others. I do not re- 
quences of a falfe complaint, o f the certainty colleft any -dilhoneft or diihonourable acts ; 
o f detection, and its effects; which I told him but he is violent to the laft degree. The 
would be infamy to him, and injury tome,  difputes were perfonal quarrels; I believe, 
He perfifted in it repeatedly, with circum- never determined. I afted as a. Mediator, 
fiances which, to my judgement, convinced never as a Judge, 
me there were grounds for a profecution. I 

• had the precaution to alk the Judges, I think Mr. B A R W E L L  being fworn* 
tha Chief Juffice, M r. Hyde, and Mr. Juftice
Clumbers, W hether I might, with propriety, ' Queft. Do. you know Moonfhy Sudder. 
fey and queftion Comaul O Deen ? To which O Deen ? 
tVey replied, That I might. I accordingly Anf - I do.
I w  Comaul O Deen on the Saturday and Do you remember any converfation
Sunday* ' that paffed between you and him ?•

Queft. Did you interrogate him thus from Anf. Yes. He gave me information of 
any diftruft you had of his character, or from what Comaul O Deen told him : it was at the 
any doubt of his complaint ? time that Comaul O Deen made his complaint

Anf Neither from any did ruff in the cha- of violence by Mr. Fowke and Maha Rajah 
rafter o f the man, or circumftances in the Nundocomar, which I underftood was the 
ftory ; but from this principle, that I would making him prefer a. complaint, in which the 

" rather have fubmitted to the injury, if I had Governor General and - my name were men- 
not had the ftrongeft grounds for my own tioned, that papers had been taken from him,, 
conviftion*. .which- he delired. to be returned, from which

ruin;



ruin would be the confluence of their being mind, that I declared publickly and pofitively, 
.delivered in to the Board. I was, at the pe- before many other Gentlemen concerned, that 
riod of time Comaul O Deen firft went to I would profecute Mr. Fowke. _ On this, 
complain, at my gardens. Moonlhy Sudder fome remark was made on the vindiflivenefs 
O Deen did not mention to me any fums: the o f the affurance, and the exiftence o f fuch 
firft I heard of it was when I attended the a paper as the furd abfolutely difclaimed. 'As 
Judges, on a fummons. The manner in which I was only offended at the queftion which had 
the complaint was mentioned was general. been put to me, and which feemed to _con- 

gueft. Do you remember what paffed be- firm the evidence of Comaul O Deen in fo 
tween you and Mr. Fowke, at the examina- ftrong a manner, I was rendered wavering by 
nation, before the Judges ? the affurance of Mr. Fowke, imagining there

Anf. As foon as Mr. Fowke made his ap- might poflibly be fome miftake, and it might 
pearance before the Judges, he declaimed a be a means artfully wove-in by a Black Man 
good deal on the goodnefs of his character, to engage' in his caufe: I therefore profeffed, 
kmg eftabliftie-d; that, on the charge o f fuch at the dole o f the evening, that I would 
a man as Comaul ODeen, who, he faid, was weigh all thefe circumftances in my mind; 
the fcumi of the earth, and deferved no credit, that a public affurance from M r. Fowke 
his charafter Ihould ftand fuperior. In the]might fatisfy m e; and it was not my inten- 
courfe of this declamation, there were manyjtion to have profecuted that Gentleman. I 
contradictions. I was of .opinion at that time, neither, aflted bail, nor was bound over to 
jn d  am at prefent, Mr. Fowke profeffed much profecute. But, confidering all circurn- 
-candour. In proof of this candour, I faw fiances, confidering that M r. Fowke was un- 
two papers produced, which had been deli- der profecution, it might poflibly be imputed 
vered in as the voluntary aft o f .a man who to other motives, i f  I did not give him an op- 
had pofitively declared they were the papers portunity of acquitting himfelf to the Public; 
he aiked back; that they were falfe, and influenced by thefe reafons, I direfted my 
muft not be delivered in to the Governor Ge- Counfel to profecute, and left-the proof to 
neral and Council. In the courfe.of the de- the evidence there might be produced before 
clamation, Mr. Fowke further faid, That he the Court. Yet, though I have done this, I 
prided himfelf in the conduft he had taken cannot end without remarking, that it is not 
-up; and that it Ihould be his part to bring confident with the good of fociety, or the 
every villain, rogue> or rafcal, or words to profeflion of candour, and attention to the 
that effpft, to juftiee. I did not expeft that welfare , o f the community, that a private • 
■ he would take upon him, before the Tribunal Gentleman, not poffeffed of any public truftl 
of the JufHces, to judge of the conduct o f Ihould declare that he has, and prppofes tlb 

myfelf. * He applied direCtly hold, an Office for the inveftigating and rm 
further led awa t0 me’ and faid, “  Sir, can yon, dreflang of grievances; and, whatever mayV 
w/th this idea/ “  - upon your honour and your be the determination of the Ju ry  touching^

“  oath, declare that you never,the innocence of Mr. Fowke refpefting the .
“  received 45,000 rupees from Comaul O furd, I flatter myfelf, fome effectual means will 
“  Deen ?”  I was fo much hurt by this, and be taken by them, to put a flop to all Of- 
confefs a little irritated, that I interrupted fices of Inquilitioh but what the Law  autho- 
Mr. Fowke, and denied the receipt o f the rizes.
mpney in the folemn manner he had called £>ueft. Did you, or did you not, ever re- 
upon me. There was more altercation be- ceive the 45,000 rupees, or any part o f 
■ tween u s; but he, at laft, feemed fatisfied it ?
with my reply : he expreffed himfelf to that Anf. I did not receive the money, or any 
.effeft. This extraordinary call, at the period part o f i t ; nor ever benefited by any dona- 
it was applied, had fuch an effeft upon my 1 tion from Comaul O Deen.

4 - £>ueft.
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Queft. Do you recolleft any thing that! Anf. I never heard of the furd but from 
paffed, refpefling a book ■ which M r. Fowke .Comaul ODeen and fuch as he had told it 
lifted up to ftrike Comaul O Deen ? to. The ftrong prefumption I had at fir ft to

Anf. What 1 recollect of the' evidence believe the exiftence of the furd was from 
given on the firft day before the Judges, and the queftion put to me by Mr. Fowke, and 
of Mr. Fowke’s Speech : It was declared, on his public declaration refpedting the powers 
the Complainant’s fide, That, for refufing to he proposed to' execute in the inveftigation of- 
authenticate the fu!d properly, to the belt of complaints.
my recolle<ftion> M r. Fowke fpurned him, and . guefl. (by the Jury.) Did Mr. Fowke" 
lifted up this book, putting himfelf in a pof- deny the exiftence of the furd before he 
ture to ftrike-Comaul O Deen. M r. Fowke, put the queftion to you, and before you 
on the other fide, faid, The man was whining declared you could not profecute him, - or ' 
and troublefome ; that he made fome repre- after ?
fentations about the papers which had been Anf. I do not recoiled! that Mr. Fowke 
delivered in to the Governor *and Council; before denied the exiftence of the furd ; orf 
and M r. Fowke, not being fatisfied with his my reply in affeveration, he‘ faid, He was 
reprefentations, retained-the papers, and or- fatisfied; it was at or after the time I faid V 
dered him to go about his bufinefs; that would profecute him 5 it was net denied before 
Comaul O Deen did this-in great diftrefs ; the queftion was asked me; that was in. the' 
and foon-after, as I underftood, returned with morning, the other in the afternoon.
M r. Francis Fowke, to gain a refpite of a day . __
or two for the delivery of the papers..- T h e  M r. E L L I O T  being fworrt.-
difturbance that arofe in the ftreet,.I believe, v ,  • _
is publickly known to every inhabitant in the Queft. D o  you remember any particular^ 
town : it was, of confequence^. a-declared one convention between M r. Bar well and Fowke 
of the apprehenfion the- man was in for the at the Chief Juftices?
delivery of thofe papers; which however Anf- Y e s  ; Mr. .Barwell fpeaking to_Mr.
were, in defpite, delivered in to the public Fowke refpeftingjhis conduft m this affair: 
Board- as to-one, it feems of a nature that Mr. Fowke-alked him, with-a degree of pafiion, •
I  think might be in fome degree admitted; I f  he could give him his honour and his oath,
that his c L a f t e r  had been feandalized by that he had not re c e iv e d ^  45,000 rupees i
h min, S h i s  h , thought a proper .node M r. Barwell t o  S'ou-
• „ n ’ V n u r  T nrdfhiD and the Turv him his honour and his oath, -lie nad not . on

• iudge how juftifiable thefe means were, which Mr. Fowke then faid, He inuft acquit
f  making that the free-will o f a man, which him ; as he always himfelf took-that method -
in making ap-ainft it of wiping away accufations brought again ft -

f e Pofitively declared was agamlt it. him . Pan3 he thought that every Gentleman -

!  Crofs-Examination of Mr. B A R W E L L .  remember any thing* par- -

Queft. W hat do you underftand to be the ticular that paffed M  
caUe o f  M r. Fowke^s lifting up the book }> a h

AnfI underftood M r. Fowke’s retfon for X do not re­
lifting up the book was to get rid o f a ma which with a view to afeertain the ■
that was troublefome. M r. Fowke did con- Fowke’s having lifted up a great •
fefs, that M r. Francis Fowke fued him for a Mr* Fowke faid, He would fave them- -
refpite from prefenting the papers. that-the '

Did you ever hear o f t h e ± J  n p ^ a  a volSmeof Churchill's ^
from any other perfon befi^ s' Comaulj Voyages.! that h^ did it becaufe Com gl O ;
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D«en was troublefome, took hold o f his. Rajah’s pleafure ; and if hereafter he fhould . 
legs, and demanded back the arzee which he be called upon, he could not prove it : Co-
Jvjri’ vipfm-F o-iven. maul O Deen faid, How can I feal it? Yar
ta d  before g Mahomed then faid, You may do as you

K E W D E R N A W A Z  being fworn. pleafe ; if  you won't feal it, PH go aw ay:
Comaul O Deen then ve Y ar Mahomed his 

Qyeji. Was you ever with Comaul O Deen hooka to fmoke ; he foon after went away ;
at Mr. Fowke’s houfe? and when he had got on the ftair-cafe, I alfo

Anf. I was. went away : Comaul O Deen, when Y a r  Ma-
.Qtte/l. Did you ever write an arzee by the. homed was going away, alked me, What do 

direction of M ahaRajah? you think would have been the confequence
A#f. Yes. had I put my feal as Maha Rajah defir'ed: I

Relate the circumftances. anfwered, It would be very b ad ; whatever
. One day Comaul O Deen took me to Maha you do, look to the confequences*

Rajah’s houfe: he went and fat down with £>yeft. W as you at M r. Fowke’s with Co- 
Maha Rajah; I ftaid without: About 2°or 3 maul O Deen, the day the difputes hap- 
gurries afterwards he called m e; when I went pened ? 
is, Maha Rajah defired me to fit near him ; Anf. I was. 
lie gave me a piece o f paper, and bid me Hwate them,
write out a foul draught of an arzee ; I took Comaul O Deen went up flairs ; I {laid 
the paper, and began to write out a draught: below ; about 2 or 3 gurries after, at firfl Mr. 
when I had wrote out the fair draught, I gave Fowke, then Maha Rajah, and after Comaul 
it Maha Rajah; Maha Rajah gave it to O Deen, came down; M r. Fowke had got 
Doman Sing, and bid him write it over again ; into his palanquin, Maha Rajah was getting 
I did not know his name then: Doman Sing in, when Comaul O Deen went up to him, 
wrote it, and gave it to Maha R ajah ; Maha and faid, Get me back thofe falfe papers o f 
Rajah then faid to me, Do you write a fair Barramutts, that you and M r. Fowke have’ 
copy of i t : Comaul O Deen, addreffing the 1 caufed me to write againfl the Gentlemen ; I 
Maha Rajah, faid, That he had a pain in his [cannot by any means prove them; this will 
bejly, and defired to go home ; that he left be very bad both for you and m e; but more 
me to write whatever the Maha Rajah might fo for me, both my honour and fortune will 
order, and bad me flay, faying, Do you, be affefted; for God’s fake, get me them again; 
having wrote the fair copy o f the draught, and begged by the Duoy of the Company and 
follow me : he then went away : I flaid there the CdUncil for them1 again : I law th is; when*) 
one-half par of the night; when 1 had Maha Rajah gave him n a anfwer, he thenP 
wrote a fair copy o f the arzee, I gave it to cried out again Douy, and attempted to get |  
Maha Rajah : Maha Rajah read it ; and when into his palanquin : Y ar Mahomed and N et- \  
he had fo done, he faid it was well, and bid too Sing asked him, W here he was going? \  
Y*ar Magomed go with me to Comaul O Deen: he difengaged himfelf, and got into his pa- 
Yar Mahomed and I came away from Maha lanquin : W hen he had got out o f the lane 
Rajah’s together,, and went to Comaul O which leads from M r. Fowke’s houfe on to 
Deen’s ; Y ar Mahomed fat near Comaul O the great road, a Hircarrah came up to him, 
Deen, and faid, Maha Rajah had fent him;  and faid, W here are you going? you mu ft 
do you put your feal to this arzee: Comaul turn back; Mr. Fowke and Maha Rajah call 
O Deen then took the arzee, and read i t ; and you : having difengaged himfelf from the 
faid, There was no agreement between the Hircarrah, he went to the G overnor's: J  
Maha Rajah and him, that he (bould feal it; ffaid below ; Comaul O Deen went up to ac­
he faid, He never would feal it f  that he quaint him.
caufed it to be wrote only for the Maha . Qzccft.

;  l 6  t h e  T R I A L  OF J O S E P H  F O W K E ,

1 .



Sguejl. Whofe fervants were Y ar Mahomed hear what converfation paffed between .Co- 
and Netto Sing? I maul © Deen and Yar Mahomed. C. O

Anf I now hear they are Maha Rajah’ s. Deen gave him his hooka to fmoke, and 
Queft. Did you know whofe Hircarrah it when he had done, he went away; I followed: 

was that came up to C. O Deen ? Huttoo then faid to me, Do you want ’ the
Anf. I did not know then ; I  fince hear he ftua dwoit and the leal: I faid, The bufinefs 

Was Maha Rajah’ s. for which it was wanted perhaps will not be
done : I took the fiua dwoit and the box away, 

H U S S E I N  A L L I  being fworn. and put them in their proper place, in the
jolha connah: I then went to my own apart- 

£j>uejl, W hofe fervant are you ? ment.
Anf. Comaul O Deen’s. Do you know Mr. Fowke ?
£>uejl. W hat is your employment ? Anf Yes.
Anf la m  his Confuma; all the expences $uejl. Were you ever with Comaul O 

of his houfe and his wardrobes are under Deen at Mr. Fowke’s houfe ? 
my charge. Anf I was, about two or three days after

Quejl. Have you the cuftody of his feai ? this.
A nf Yes. State what palled. s

Can it be ufed*without your know- What paffed out of doors I know: Mr. 
ledge i  Fowke firft came out, then Maha Rajah, and

A n f W hen he goes to Durbar, he takes then Comaul O Deen : Comaul O Deen faid 
the fmall feal upon his finger ; when it is in to Maha Rajah, The falfe Barramut, which 
my poffeffion, he cannot ufe it without my you have caufed me to write again ft the 
privity ; it is always in my poffeffion but Gentlemen, I cannot prove: this will' be very 
when he goes out. bad for m e; give me the papers back : whether

The arzee being fhewn : Maha Rajah gave him any anfwer or no, I
Shiejl. Is that the impreffion of the feal did not hear: Comaul O Deen then tore the 

which Comaul O Deen ufed to wear on his collar of his jammah, and began to cry out 
fijjggj. ? Duoy upon the King, the Company, and the

A nf It is. Court -, he went to get into his palanquin, but
Queji. Do you know Y a r  Mahomed ? Y ar Mahomed and Hetto Sing laid hold of
Anf. Y es. his hands : he difengaged himfeJf from them,
Quell. W hofe fervant is he ? and, crying out Duoy, got into his palanquin,

. Anf. I hear, Maha Rajah’ s. and went aw ay: when the palanquin had got
• ( 9 ueft. Did you ever fee him at Comaul out o f the lane upon the great road, there
I 1 q  ]^eeil’s houfe ? were two Hircarrahs, one laid hold of the

Anf. Yes • that night he brought the paper palanquin before, and the other was behind :
■ l  to feal * I  was at that time at .a dillance, and did not
'*  ‘ Give an account what paffed. hear what paffed between them : the palan-

As he and Kewdernawaz were going up quin went on, and I went on towards the Lilia 
flairs, Kewdernawaz faid to me, Bring the cutcherry.
fiua dwoit and the box, in which the feal is, C O M A U L  O D E E N  again called. 
•nerhaDs there will be a. paper to be fbalcd• _ . «
I went and got the fiua dwoit, and the box fueft. A t the-time Mr. Fowke lifted up the 
with the feal, and gave them to Huttoo, and book, and fell in a paffion with you, what 
mid him to ft and with them on the flair-cafe; was the oceafion o f i t .
Hmtoo is Comaul O Deen’s cook: 1 then Anf. JVhen h e a te d  me tp feal the arzee. 
•went to where C . O Deen was fitting, and I faid, this is not an arzee, this is a ja 
walked up and down the veranda. I did not
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Gfoiefts Did Mr. Fowke fay any thing to you A nf It may be two, two quarters, or two
that day about bribes ? half months ago.

Anf. Not that day : we took out the furd, Relate what paffed when you taw Comaul 
but laid 'nothing about bribes before he flew O Deen comeout of M r. Fowke’s houfe. 
in a paffion, after I fealed the arzee, and was M r. Fowke came out firft, then M alia 
down on the ground. Rajah and Comapl O Deen. Comaul O Deen

gue/l. Did Mr. Fowke ever direct you to faid to Maha R ajah , Give me back again the 
write any thing particular upon the furd ? fiilfe papers which you have caufed me by 

Anf. He did not tell me what particular force to w rite: I have given no one any 
words to write: I wrote Rujfan needum and money ; give me back the p ap ers: he then 
Dadum. called out, Duoy upon the King, the Council,

and the Company, and tore the collar o f his 
K E M I J E T  being fworn. jammah he got into his palanquin; and

when he had got upon the great road, a Hir- 
J|8 p . Did you fee any difturbance, feme car rail, or Hircarrahs, ran up, and laid hold 

time ago, about Comaul O Deems palanquin o f his palanquin, and faid, Maha Rajah calls 
in the road ? , you, and Mr. Fowke calls you, turn back*

Anf, Yes. They difputed for fome time-, Comaul O
Quejl. What did you fee ? Deen then went away to the Governor-, and
Anf I  was going on the road near the n  came by the Council-houfe to my own 

Bitah Connah of Rajah Rajebullub: I faw houfe.
ComaufO Deen in his palanquin with the
collar of his jammah torn ; a Hircarrah from Crofs Examination 0/ M U S H U R E R  
behind called out, Comaul O Deen, (top your M A H O M E D ,
palanquin. C. O Deen did not mind him,
and went on. The Hircarrah ran up, got Queji. Whofe fervant are you ?.?
Hold of his palanquin, pulled it, and faid, Anf I  am the fexvant of TyzulJa JSalem, his
Where are you going ? Maha Rajah calls you, Vakeel*
and Saub calls you. The palanquin (topped, Quefl. Flow came you’ to go to M r. Fowke’s* 
and Comaul O Deen called out, Duoy upon houle ?
the King, the Company, the Audalet, and the AnfV There is a Durbar there ; every body
Governor; and faid, They have caufed me goes there.
by%force to write out a paper, and now have. jjhieft**Did any body order you to go there?
fent u.Hircarrah, and are making difputes Anf My particular bufmefs was, to go there
having "difengaged from the. Hircarrah, he. to fee if  any. complaints were, lodged againft. 
Went on.. This is all I  faw.. my matter. >

Quejl. W as you up (hairs ?.
MUSHUPvER. M AH O M ED  , being fwom.. A nf No ; I was at the outer gate.  ̂ ^

Suefi. Did you not- ufually-. go. up>ftairs to 
Queft. Do you know Comaul O Deen?- the Dunbar.?.
Anf Y es. A nf I f  I had. heard o f any complaints, F
Quejl. Do you know Mr. Fowke ?; (hould have gone tip : I  had heard there was *
A rif Yes. to be a complaint made againft my matter by,
Quejl. Do. you know his. houfe ?• one Permauy, and I went there; but upon
A nf Yes. , enquiry, I found that the complaint was- not,.

Did you never fee Comaul O Deen there; I therefore went away:  When* I had.:^
there ?  ̂ bufmefs, I ufed to go up flairs ; when I only

A nf One day I faw him there. .. wanted to make an.enquiry, I (laid below.
Quejl* Ho.w. long .fince?- GaloueT

I
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Anf. I  do not know; I only anfwer for 
Colonel T H O R N T O N  being fworn. myfelf.

Quejl. Was you prefent at the examination 
Sfueft. Were you formerly acquainted with at the Chief Juftice’s ?

Maha Rajah Nundocomar ? Anf. I was fome part of the time; T went
Anf. I have feen him. I upon what I heard from others, not believing
Queft.. Were you one of his bail ? (the exiftence of the paper.
Anf. I was. Que/l. W ere any of the other Gentlemen
igye/l. W ere you one of thofe Gentlemen prefent ? 

who formed the proceffional vifit to Maha Anf Captain Webber was prefent at times; 
Rajah Nundocomar ? none of the other Gentlemen who were on

Anf. I vifited him ; I went in my chaife, but the vifit there, 
not in proceffion. Did you ever hear the Gentlemen at

Sgjfefi. W ho went with you ? any time declare their reafon for making this
Anf. General Clavering, Colonel Monfon, vifit ?

Mr. Fowke, M r. Addifon ; and I  believe A. No, never.
Captain W ebber, but I do not perfedtly re- §>uejl. What palled between Nundocomar 
member. and the Gentlemen during the vifit}

Quejl. Do you remember the day on which Anf. Nothing but Salams and the common 
this vifit was paid ? ceremonies.

Anf. I  do not recoiled!; I think it was the _
day after, or two days after, the examination Crofs Examination of Colonel T H O R N I O N -

beS . h Wasdfhe vifit made before you gave fu e jl. How long have you known Mr. 
bail or after > Fowke ?

Anf. I cannot recollect. M - }  >’ « '  j‘ n0',n  , I,lm ■ '* ° r 1 t f j f g
Shell. A t the time of the vifit, was you ac- three of which he has been m India i my ac- 

quiunted with the examination ? qnaintance wttb htm preceded hts eom.ng

t S upon what occafion was this vifit W  Do T ™  him t0 be ”  honc'1
Efe I r  man ? f
L / i  I confefs that I thought the accufation A. I do, from my foul, believe him to be 

rr * il Moli'i ■ Rniih uniufl: and that he was an honeft man, of ftrift honour, and I think

i l l i l S l i s i .
J Do yon vifit every man you think g r e a s e d  to h t s ^ o u ,  ^  ^  tar>

unjuftly accufed. before or after the vifit, any reafon given by

m r  r  n 1 •
Nundocomar before ? . _ _  J . D ; , ever hear that General

before ? \ Anf. I think not ; I do not knew,
Anf. No. , . , • . . , , J
Quell. Do you think that his being looked 

•upon as an injured man, was the general rea on
for the vifit? D  d d 2- Captain
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Quejl. Did you ever know General Cla- 
Capt. J A M E S  W E B B E R  being fworn. vering pay yifits to other Black Men

K A nf I  never knew General Clavering vifit
Queft. Are you acquainted with Maha Ra- any Black Man, except him and Mahomed 

jah Nundocomar ? Reza Cawn.
Anf. Iam.  Qneft. What do you believe was the reafon
Queft. How long have you been ac- for this vifit ? 

quainted ? Anf I  believe they vifited Maha Rajah
Anf Since my arrival. Nundocomar, becaufe he'had been formerly
Queft. Was you bail for him ? Minifter of this Country.
Anf I was. Quefl* Do you believe they had, or had
Quef. Did you ever vifit him ? not, other motives ?
Anf But once; about three months ago, as [The above Question repeated.jj 

the GeneralVAid de Camp, and attended him, Anf I believe they had. 
as my duty.

.Queji. Who were o f the party ? * x Mr. F R A N C I S  F O W K E  being fworn.
A nf The General, Col. Monfon, Mr. Fran­

cis, Col. Thornton, Mr. Fowke, Mr. Addi- Qaeft. Did you ever fee your father lift 
fon, and myfelf. The General called on me up a b o o k* to Comaul O Deen \ 
at my houfe, in his carriage: it was but an Anf I did. 
hour or two before that I was given to un- Queft. W here was it ?
derftand the General meant to pay the vifit. A nf In my father’s bed-chamber.

Queft. Did you ever hear the General, Queft. W as you in your father’ s bed-
before or fince, give any reafon for making chamber before Com aufO D een ? or was he
the vifit ? there firft ?

Anf I do not recolleft that I ever did. Anf I was there firft.
Queft. Do you remember the day on which Quefi. W hich o f you went out firft?

this vifit was paid ? A nf Comaul O Deen did.
Anf I can’t recollett whether it was the day Queft. Upon what occafion did your father 

after the examination, or whether it was be- lift up the book to Comaul O Deen ? 
fore or after I gave bail. I  think I recollect Anf Comaul O Deen came to my father’s 
it was after the firft examination. bed-cha*mber: I think the words that he faid

, Do you recolletft what pafled at the were, “  I will write it over'again.”  W hen
? he came into the room, I obferved the end o f fj

Anf No. I believe M r. Fowke might in- his jammah over his neck, and his hands in ’• 
terpret the common compliments. a fupplicating pofture. He advanced, repeat- |

Quefi. Did you not think the vifit an ex- ing, I believe, the fame words. My father 
traordinary one ? was fitting on the bed : Comaul O Deen threw ^

Anf N o, I  did not. himfelf at his feet, and attempted to’take hold
Quejl. Did you ever know thefe Gentlemen of his legs. My father threw himfelf back, 

pay Maha Rajah a vifit before? or rather obliquely, on the bed; and his legs,
A nf I  do not know if they had been there I believe, pafled through Comaul O Deen’s 

before. It is my duty to go on vifit-s with arms. I am not perfectly clear whether my 
the General ; I  generally do. father had the book in his hand or not : I

Quejt. Did you know the character of Ma- rather think it was lying on the bed. M y 
ha Rajah Nundocomar ? . father immediately lifted up the book, and a>

A nf I had heard a bad charafter of h i m; peremptorily ordered Comaul O Deen to 
b u t,I  thought people prejudiced. I heard leave the room. C . O Deen immediately did 
Wm Fowke fpeak well of him. leave it.

5  Queft*
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Styeft. While Co-maul O Deen was on the Sluefl. Did he give any reafon why he 
ground, was any paper produced to him by wanted to have it changed, and wrote over 
your father? . again?

Anf. Not that I faw. Anf. There was an expreffion in the be-
Styeft. I f  he had produced any paper, fliould ginning of it [ “  Erfhaud Mifhawud” ] which 

you not have feen it? he objefted to, and withed to have it wrote
Anf. I think I fliould.. over again. Thefe words mean, in Englilh,
Queft. Did you fee your father and Comaul “  It is ordered, or required.”

O Deen the whole time ? S>uejl. What did he fay refpefting thefe
Anf. I did, words |
Queft, W as you near to them ? Anf. Looking at the words, he faid, Who
Anf. I was. orders or requires ? This does not refpeft the
Queft. Did you hear your father alk any arzee fealed in my room, 

queftions while Comaul O Deen was on the Queft. What arzee did he feal in your 
ground ? room ?

A nf I did not. %Anf. He fealed a final! arzee, which he faid 
£>ueft. I f  he had, f lio u ld  you have hearc| was the real arzee he delivered to the Go- 

him ? vernor. He did not fe a l the great arzee in
Anf. I  think I f lio u ld . my room (prefence). ■ - *
S$ueft. Have you heard all that C o m a u l Did he bring the long arzee ready

O D een has faid, refpefting the furd, while fealed to your father’s houfe ?̂  
he was on the ground? Anf. I cannot anfwer pofitively to this : I

Anf. There was no furd produced. rather think that I recolleft the mark of the
Shieft. W ho did you hear fir ft mention feal upon the large arzee. 

fa} Let us know all that you know re-
Anf I  never heard of it till the day of the fpefting the fealing and figning of any papers 

examination ; I then heard of it fir ft from at your father’s houfe, the day he lifted up 
Comaul O Deen. the book to Comaul O Deen.

$ueft. Had Comaul O Deen made any M f. Comaul O Deen came to my lathers 
noife or clamour in your father’s houfe re- houfe in the morning of the 18th or Pr* - 
fpefting an arzee ? ' In my father’s bed-chamber, he acknow-
^  Anf He had. ledged his feal affixed to the large a r z e e b *

Queft. Did he feal any arzee in your fa- fore two witneffes, who arretted the acknow- 
,  the^s houfe that day? judgement t° it. ^
I Anf He did, in my writing-room. fifted his feal to the fmaU arze , ►

f e f t .  W h o  w a s  in  th e  ro o m  a t  th e  tim e  w e re  p r e fe n t , m y fe lf ,  R o y  R a d a  C h u rn , m y 
■ y o u r  fa th e r  l i f te d  u p  th e  b o o k  ? M o o n lh y , G e e tc u flu U a b , a n d  th e  u » P

y y  Anf. R a d a  C h u r n ,  a n d  n o  o th e r  e x c e p t  g u e z e  w rite rs  Who .a tte ft f  to n g  _ 
* m v fp |p H e  fe a le d  th e  a rz e e  m  p re fe n c e  o f  th e ie  t w o ,

W e .  You have faid that Comaul O Deen and alfo acknowledged tin. b tb e j
leafed an arzee iu your writing-room, were attetted.
there any threats made ufe of* to frighten and the tranflations of ithe: , } , f A

N o " ' 10 fOTCe bim t0 fe5d k  ? Councih Comaul’ O Keen objeffed to their
bare that arzee back

'  W  He wanted to hare it changed, and °  yVatiiS d ?  wt confine
to have u wrote over again.. p nt mt0 ^ 0UD 1 ■ ' to>
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to this: Comaul O Deen urged him for fome or whether he faw them in my hand; but he 
time; and afterwards made the objection be- met me at the door o f my writing-room, 
forementioned to that expreflion in the long and thanked me, in very warm terms, for 
arzee. He aiked my father, When he fhould having brought back the arzees. He ftooped 
be called before the Council? and a Iked, down, and touched my feet: he faid, He would 
Who had ordered or required ? who he fhould bring his Moonfhy with him very early the 
fay ? My father anfwered him, by a/king, next morning, to write it anew. He afked 
Who he would fay ? Comaul O Deen’s reply, me, I f  he fhould go in, arid take leave o f my 
I think, implied that he would make ufe o f father. I  told him, not to g o ;  that my fa- 
the General’s name. My father aJked him, ther paid no great attention' to thofe cere- 
Whether the General, or he (Mr. Fowke) in monies. It was near one o’clock; I  was 
the General’s name, had ordered or required going out to dinner. M yfelf, Rada Churn, 
him ? He faid, They had not ; but urged the and Comaul O Deen, went down flairs toge- 
diflrefs he fhould be under, if  that queftion ther: when I got into my palanquin, Comaul 
fhould be put to him in Council. I believe O Deen came to the door of it, and again re-
he repeatedly urged it. My father did not peated his acknowledgements o f gratitude, 
alter his intention o f fending the papers in- §>ueft. Did any other circumflance pafs, on 
to Council. Comaul O Deen foon after left the 18th, refpe&ing the arzees ? 
the room: Rada Churn went out likewife ; I Anf. There was'another circumflance, I did 
do not remember whether immediately, or j not mention, relating to the arzees. In the 
fome time after. Rada Churn fcon after re- long arzee it was written, that the caufe o f 
turned into the room, nnd faid, That Comaul Barnafly Ghofe and Comaul O Deen was re- 
O Deen was crying, and tearing his jammali, ferred to my father for decifion: T  told Co- 
becaufe the arzees were to be fent into Coun- maul O Deen, that the expreflion was wrong; 
cil that day. Comaul O Deen, foon after that it was referred for enquiry only, in 
this, came to the door of my fathers bed- which he- acquiefced. About the-tim e, the 
•chamber, and then that pafled which I have fmall arzee was fealed, with his acquiefcence, 
before related. Ilfcratched out, in my writing-room, the word
• You have told us that Comaul-Ojin Perfian which fignifies Decifion; and Co-

Deen left tne room before you did ; did you maul O Deen, in the .prefence o f the two 
fee him when you went out? Portugueze writers who had attefled the long

Anf. Yes, I faw him in the hall. arzee, wrote with his own .hand the Perfian
$ueft. What pafled between C. O Deen word fignifying Inquiry. 

and you then? - Queft. Did you ever hear Comaul O Deen I
Anf. xiQ begged of me to intercede with declare that day, that the long arzee was 

my father that the papers might not be fent I falfe'i 
in that day, repeating.the difficulty he fhould Anf. I did not.
be expofed to from that expreflion ; and fay-1 Queft. At any other time, did- you ever \  
rng, That he Would bring his Moonfhy the hear him declare it, at your father’s houfe ? 
next day, and write it over again. I returned Anf. N o, never.
to my father, and urged him to comply with gueft. Is there' any other material circum- - 
Comaul O Deen s requefi, which for a long fiance relating to the arzees ? 
time he refufed : lie did at laft, very reluc- Anf. W hen Comaul O Deen was going to 
tantly, comply. I went to the Portugueze write the word, he afked Roy Rada Churn
7 "u Z , XO° :  t j0V.er. r̂oin/^ Im? .as was how to fpell it : Rada Churn told him the Ict- 
°l C \  | Cf 1! ,e n 1̂ lt? writing-room, ters; he defired him however to write it down •

w^e" P n feparat.e paper, that he might copy it: He 
een that I had got the papers, did fo ; and, when he had written it, the ink

1 had
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had not marked well, owing to fome pounce; Anf. I cannot pofitively declare it was then; 
and Roy Rada Churn aJked him if he ftiould but, I think, I have a recollection that it was 
make it plain C.. O Deen gave him leave, fealed.
and he made it plainer. , Quejl. Was it in your father’s houfe that

Rada Churn (hewed it to you? 
Crcfs-Examination of M r. F R A N C I S  An/ Yes.

F  O W  K E . Quefl* Do you know what Rada Churn did
with it, after he had {hewn it to you ?

Queft. A t what time in the morning, of the An/ He left it with me. I tranflated i t : 
r8th, did Comaul O Deen come to your fa- I began to tranflate it on the 16th;  and had 
ther’ s houfe ? - not quite finifhed it that day.

An/ About nine or ten o’clock in the %£/?. After mandating it, what did you 
morning. do with it ?

Queft. Did you fee him come into the An/ I kept the original, 
houfe ? | Ŝ ue/t. How long did you keep it ?

Ain/ I cannot fay that I faw him come in. An/ I believe I had it in my poffeffion till 
ghieft. In what part o f the houfe did you the 1 8th. 

firft fee him ? - Queft. Did you givei t  to your father be-
An/ I think I firft faw him in the hall. fore Comaul O Deerr came to your houfe, or 
Queft. Had you been out o f doors, or did after ? 

you come out o f your own room? Anf. I  cannot recolleft.
An/ I  believe I had not been out of the 'Queft* What were the words Comaul ■ O 

houfe, and. might have been in my own Deen made ufe of when he acknowledged
room? ft- /  ,

Slue ft. How long did -he ftay in the hall ? An/ Fdo not recollefttheparticular words. 
Anf. I really cannot fay. ■ gpe/t- Was it before, or after he acknow-
£>ueft. Did you ftay with him all the time ledged it, that he objected to thofe wor h .

he was in the hall ? fc Anf. After; %
Anf I cannot recolleft. ■ .■ %<•/?• After finding fault with thefe wordsj,
Shie[t. When did he come into your how long did he ftay in the room. 

writing-room ? M -  He ™ t  go immediately; I cannot
A nf A fter the attention of the long ar- precifely fay. < .

zee i be then came into my room,, and fealed Where did you fee Gomanl- O Deen
I  the little one. a t̂er ttfatc ,
* 9 ueft. Where did he acknowledge the feal r Anf. In the hall, 

to the long arzee? $ ileA  After acknowledging the long arzee,,,
■ Anf. In my father’s bed-chamber ? where did C. O Deen go to ?

/ Aueft. W as you there at the time ? Anf. Into my^wnung-room.
"  j nf  j  wag ; Sfueft. Who defired him to go there.

P l i S P " your S
f d o  n o t r e c o lle c t . ^ A n f/ l  d o  n o t r e c o lfe ft ': w h e th e r  I  w en t o u t ,

. W ^at time had you the long arzee you fee him next >
in your hands. r. a. t:me t recolleft feeing hinr
# Anf. On the 1 6th, two days before? Anf. Ihe tirlt urn £

A t .Who (hewed you M  was when he fealed the faaH ar.ee my,
• A nf Rada C hurn .. writing-room-

tyueft. Was. it them fealed? 1/
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Queft. What converfation pafled between: .Que/l. After fealing the little arzee, did you
you and Coniaul O Deen in your writing* leave Comaul O Been in your writing-room ? 
roorii, refpefting the fin all arzee ? A n f I do not recoil ee l; I am more difpofed

Arif. I do not recolleft any particular con- to think that Comaul O Deen went into the 
verfation. • hall.

Quefl. Who defired him to feal the final Queft. Did you foon after go into your 
arzee? • j father's roomJ

Anf. I  do not recoil eft. Anf. I did ; not long after.
Queft. Do you recolleft any body talking Queft. Who was there? * 

to him in your writing-room l Anf. Roy Rada Churn was there.
Anf. The two writers aiked him whether Qiieft. Any other perfon ? 

he acknowledged the feal. Anf. I believe Accoor Munnah was there.
Queft. Had Comaul O Deen the little arzee Queft. W hat converfation pafled between 

in his own poffeffion ? your father, Rada Churn, Accoor Munnah,
Anf He had it; but I don’t know exaftly! and yourfelf, in your father’ s room ? 

how it came into his pofTeffion. Anf. I do not recolleft any particular con-
Queft. Did he bring it with him ? verfation.
Anf. To the belt o f my recolleftion, the ' Queft. Can you mark by any tranfaftion, 

fmall arzee was given to me, with the long when Rada Churn told you, that C . O Deen 
one, by Roy Rada Churn j but I am not | was crying ?
clear. A nf It was after fealing and attefling both

Quell. Did you tranflate the fmall arzee ? arzees.
A nf Yes, I did. Quejl* How long after fealing the fmall
Quejl. Are you fure the long arzee was, or arzee ? 

was not, fealed before ? Anf. I cannot precifely fay.
A nf I cannot charge my memory whether Quejl. Cannot you guefs ? 

it was or not. Anf I  cannot recolleft.
Quejl. Is it ufual to put two feals co an Quejl. W as there any converfation pafled 

arzee ? between the fealing o f the fmall arzee, and
Anf I remember that, when he put the the time when Rada Churn told you Comaul 

feal to it, it was blotted, having been laid O Deen was crying ? 
down careleflly : I believe it was a wet blot: Anf. There was.
he dipt the feal in the i n k ; I faw him put Relate it.
the feal to the paper; I do not think the Comaul O Deen defired my father to fend  ̂
blot was occafioned by fealing twice." in to the Council the arzees againft Gunga *

Queft. After fealing the fmall arzee, did you Govin Sing before thefe ; which my father 
go into your father’s room? did not confent to^ A fter this, Comaul O

Anf. I cannot precifely fay when I went Deen objefted to the words mentioned before, v 
into my father’ s room. and asked my father, I f  he (C, O Deen)

Quejl. You have acknowledged both the fhould be interrogated in Council,, who had 
arzees to be fealed the fame d ay : how comes ordered or required, who he fhould fay ? 
it that'One is dat^d the 17th, and the other Qgeft. W here did this Converfation pafs ? 
ipe iStb?  ̂ It was in my father’s bed-chamber.

Anf. It is very tru e ; when I  wrote the ac- Queft* How often was Comaul O Deen in 
- knowledgement of the large one, one of the your father’s room that morning ?

Writers told me, I had made a miftake in the Anf. I  recolleft thefe threetimes 5 when he, 
4*^  • thought it immaterial, and did not acknowledged the long arzee, at this conver- 

^ ter fation, and when my father lifted up the
book. .

Quejl,
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Quejl. Upon what account did Comaul O Anf I  do not recolleft any particular con- 
Deen want the arzee altered ? • verfation.

A nf I have already faid, becaufe of the Quejl. Did you fee Comaul O Deen there- 
words (erjhaad mejhaweed)  which mean: (it that morning ?
is ordered or required.) Anf Yes ;  I  asked him, If he had brought

Qiieji. Do you think, if there had been his Moonflby ? He faid, he had, or that he’ 
no other thing but the alteration of thefe was coming : he alfo asked me, i famy father 
words, that it was an adequate occafion for was calm that morning *, and I faid, he was. 
his tearing his jammah, &c. Queft. Did Comaul O Deen fee your-"

Anf It is very difficult for me to form a father l 
determinate opinion of what, may be the Anf. I think he did not in my prefence. •
ideas of the natives of this Country: my Queft. Did you hear any noile ?
opinion at that time wavered: if I was to Anf I think I heard a noife, as though ia~
judge for myfelf, it would not; but 1  con*.the ftreet.
fidered.the timid difpofition of the natives o f .QuefU What did you diftinguilh ?
this country; I did not know but C. O D een! Anf I did not hear any words; I hoard*a ■
might conclude, that, if he did not anfwer perfon calling out.
that queftion, it might be attended with bad Queft. W as it Comaul O Deen’s voice ?
confequences to him. Anf I cannot fay ; it Teemed at a diftance.

Quejl. Did you hear Comaul O Deen that $ueft: Did Comaul O Deen fay any thing- 
day fpealc of any falfe papers that had been more to you/ than ask if your father was -
forced from him ? co° l  *? *

Anf. I did not. Anf Y e s ; he likewife obferved lome cir-
Queft. Is Roy Rada Churn your father’s cumftances that had irritated my father the

Banyan ? or does he do bufinefs for him ? morning before, and attributed his having \
A nf No ; no bufinefs at all. been in a paffion with him to that irritation •,
m j k  Did he formerly I  ‘  he mentioned the tranflaticms the arzees,.
Anf. I do not recoiled one or both of which had- been loft on a
Quell. W hat converfation had your father fuddeh, and we hunted a long white *or

with Maha Rajah Nundocomar ? Did you them ; m7 f a t e  was angry at . t j t e  other ■
conceive that he promifed him patronage or .was, that a perfon called Douly Chund had conceive mat ne proi v come. intQ my father>s bed-chamber, and was *

P A / T ° d o n o .  know that he made any obftinate in not going out agai„ Mae  ̂alto t a l  
, promife like i t ; there was an acquaintance made my father angry; and Comauf O De 
| { tt.„m marked this circumltance. .

S  W as'he employed by your father in • Sgefi. How do you account for Commt-
i n v S t i n g  any fourees o f cortiption in this O M  comtng m,o the room as he did, . 
lnveuigauug m i r  with his ammah over his neck, and in a fap-

i  country ? r  . .
Anf I  "do not know. P faiv any one do it before or *

(The Judges here put a flop to any further finC(_  j  heard it is a mark of fuppli- -
queftions of the above nature.) cation; I cannot tell from whom I heard i t ;

Quell. Was Maha Rajah Nundocomar a t but I have that idea.
yomMhther’s houfe, th e ia y  after the , „ h  i you mean «
7 Anf He was • and Roy Rada Churn in the not been before in your father room .

* 7 Anf. I do not pretend to fwear that he was
^  G)ue/t W as there any particular conver- never in the room when-1 ŵ a o t

Maha Rajah, Rada
Churn, and yourfelf, that morning a tranfaftion might pafs m your ^

jitf £  e  —
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J n j r  f  aafwered # s  in my Iaft reply. our, and gave me this arz-ee,on the 17th ;
Queft. You fay that Comaul O Deen ob- there were particulars of it I did not under- 

; iefted to fome words in the large arzee ? ftand; I afked him concerning thofe parts, and 
J Anf. He did. H  he explained them to me.

§uefi. Did .you ever u-nderftand the great Mr. Elliot. Maha Rajah Nundocomar and 
arzee was not his production ? Roy Rada Churn had repeatedly requefted of

Anf. No doubt entered my mind when he me to introduce Rajah Nundocomar to the 
obje&ed to'the words: I confidered it as his General; I refuted, affigning as a reafon, 
oroduftion. that they were well acquainted with my con-

' Queft. When your father lifted up the inedtion with M r.‘R aftings; and that I would 
book, was. it in a very threatening pqfture ? I not introduce him without his permiffion.

Anf. No ; it was not in a, very threatening One morning R oy Rada Churn came to my 
- Tiofture. h-oufe early, and told me, that he came 'by

W as your father calm then ? direction of M r. Haftings, to requeft that I
Anf. N o; he was irritated j he was angry, would introduce his father-in-law to the 
§>ueft. Did your father call Comaul O j General: I anfwered him, It was very poffible ; 

IfDeen any names at that time ? (but I  begged leave to have Mr. Haftings’s
Anf H e might , make ufe o f fome harlh I order from his own mouth, before I would 

■ words; but I do not think that he,, damned comply with his requeft: I accompanied him 
him for a fon of a b— h, becau.fe I never heard to the Governor’s, where I met Rajah Nundo- 
my father make ufe of thofe words to any comar in one o f the outer room s: Rajah 
black man. Nundocomar accompanied me into the room

-gkd/i. .Why fhould a feal be put to the where Mr. Haftings was fitting, but fell back 
fmall arzee, which the Governor did not fend when we came to the door, and faid, As Mr. 
in to the Council ? Haftings; is conyerfing with fome Englifli

Anf. I never underflood that to be a copy Gentlemen, he wilhed I would afk him if  I  
o f the fmall arzee; I underftood it was the might not introduce him to the General.

• original; I  thought it was not to authenticate 1 Every fufpicion was by this time removed 
it  as an arzee, but an acknowledgement of! from me ; and I went up in a hurry to Mr. 
that part likewife. * # H aftings,. and afked him, I f  I  fhould intro*

Quejl.: Had Comaul O Deen attefted itlduce Rajah Nundocomar to the G e n e r a l h e  
before he came, with his jammali torn ? faid, I might i f  I pleafed : I went from thence

Ahf.. He^al-* with Rajah Nundocomar to the General’s :
£$uejl. How long was the interval between when I went in to the General’s, he was at 

his going out the fecond time, and coming breakfaft : I put Rajah Nundocomar into \ 
in with his jammah torn ? another room, and went in to the General

Anf. I  believe a very fhort tirne  ̂ myfe.lf: When, the General got up from
M r. J .  Fowke, recollefting. himfelf, fays, breakfaft, he retired with me to a window,
1  now clearly recolleft, that Comaul O Deen and afked me the character o f the perfon I 

had twice before that time repeated the whole was to introduce : I painted his chara&er as 
contents o f that arzee, before me. and my I had always underftood it to b e ; a man of 
father; and he repeatedly faid, they were, deep intrigue, and who would not flick at any 
true; and that he was ready to take hiis oatjh,; thing,to carry any point he might have at 
he infilled very ftrongly on his, innocence. re- heart: from thence we went and fat. down 
fpedting the arzee of. the. 13th  of December, with Rajah Nundocomar; and I  had foon an 
grounding it on the contents o f the long one. opportunity o f feeing that Rajah Nundo- 

I was fitting in the, hall, I  faw him and comar did not, though I had introduced him, • 
Roy Rada Churn pafs through it fnto my confider me as his friend; for M r. Addifon,

^father's room : foon after Rada Churn came who had in itye interim entered into conver-
1 4 fation
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fation with him, informed the General, That after his tendering his fervices, Mr. Elliot 
he only w idled to make his Seltim then, and'came to me, and acquainted me, that he un- 
would wait upon him on bufinefs another t imederftood,  that* the Interpreter to the Com- 
I underftood what Maha Rajah meant very mander in chief had been recommended by 
well ; and what palled that day was nothing the Governdr to the late Commander; but, 
but general converfation. I lie next time 1 on my making fbtne difficulty to accept an In- 
waited upon M r. Haftings, I made more par- terpreter that might have been recommended ■ 
ticular enquiry refpe&ing his willies of having by the Governor to the late Commander, M r. • 
Rajah Nundocomar introduced to the General; Elliot opened himfelf further to me, and told 
and I then found, that the ftory of Rada me, in a very honourable manner, that I muft.  ̂
Churn was a fiftion *, and that I had not been be fenfible, from his clofe connexion with the 
defired by the Governor to introduce Rajah Governor General, how unpleafant a thing 
Nundocomar to the General. it would be to him, to accept of fuch a truft *

Queft. Did you ever introduce-any other from me. 
black man to the General ? 1 . “  Mr. Elliot here wiffies that the General

Anf. I am not fure whether I introduced “  would recolleft, whether the occafion of 
Rajah Rajebullub to the General, by defire “  this converfation, was not a letter received • 
o f the Governor ; I now recollect that the. “  from the King at Delhi.”
Governor bad. firft.-. Mr. Elliot, however, ftill offered to tranf- «

Qyejl.: Did you confider this as an intro? late fuch papers as might be fent to me. I 
duftion from the Governor General ? ‘ accordingly did fend them, I believe, all to

Anf. I djd not confider it as an introduc- him. About the middle of January, I was 
tion from -the Governor General, but by his affaulted in my palanquin by a number of Pe- 
permiffion. titioners, who had nearly overfet i t : they

M r. Elliot recollects, that it was not the were the Molungies o f the- 24 Pergunnahs. 
fame morning in which he faw Rajah Nundo- I ordered my palanquin to be fet down, and 
comar at the Governor’s that he introduced took their petition from them: I read it, in 
him to the General. my way to the Council-houfe; and .feeing in

it what I thought fome very grofs abate or 
General C L A V E  R I N G  being fworn. power, and that the feveral petitions which I

l had .before laid before the Council, which - 
A  little time after my- arrival, M r. Elliott had been presented in the ftreets to me, had 

came to me, to propofe himfelf to be my In-1 had no effeft in redreffing their grievances, 1  
terpreter. I acquainted him, That I under- refolved to inquire into this myfelf, as well as 
flood there was an Interpreter on the eftablifh- |I could. I therefore told my feivant to go to 
ment, who was then with the Arm y, and I the Salt Contra&or’s houfe, and tell mm to e 
had heard a very good charafter .of him, and with me at my return from Council. ;  e 
therefore I did not chufe to make any difpo- manner in which the Contiactoi exp ainec 
fition of it at that time, but would wait till himfelf to me;-rendered it necellary t a.
the Interpreter returned to Calcutta. M r. ffioukl have.an Interpreter. The man teaz ^1 
Elliot underftood it as explained by me, and with evafions and contradictions; an g
was pleafed to-offer me his fervices, till fuch frequently told him that t ere was
K  my Interpreter arrived. From that Court o f Juftke eltab.lifted in Caletu tn
t iS e  f a m n o .  confcious that I received any fnch grievancea would be r e d r e f l c d ; 
Perfian letter, or petition, that I did not put he would do better to fur ‘

» into his hands. In the mean time, divifions of redrdhng them, by P10 j ? „  for Mr.
in the Council had broke out; M r. Elliot, I full jveight and full play. tilIie ]iac\
underftood, had been admitted a private Se- Fowke, who, I believe, jn my
cretary to the Governor. About a month not" been above three houfe,

1 E & e,z
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Jioufe, nor had. once dined with me iincejcome there to explain his conduft, I had no 
my arrival. 1 referred the complaint to him, other means left than to examine him myfelf,

• as a perfon of whofe honour and integrity I at his return. I defircd him to write a Letter 
.had the higheft opinion; more from general to the Council, and to give them the fame 
report which his reputation bore in England, explanation which had fatisfied m e; and I 
than from any perfonal acquaintance with him think, but am not pofitive, that I took his af- 
rhere.. He was acquainted with the language fidavit to the truth of the contents o f the Let- 
in which this complaint was. to be examined, ter: but, as I hill thought that the affertions 
and, as I imagined, with the manners and made by Comaul O Deen fhould not, for M r.

- ^cuftoms of the country. The Contraftor, Fowke’s honour and mine, hand— I defired 
Tearing that Mr. Fowke’s report to me would Mr. Fowke to examine his own fervants, who 
jnot be fo favourable to his caufe as he widled, had been prefent at the examination, and to 
iwent to complain to the Governor General; fend their depofitions in to the Council. The 
'When, on the following day, I prefented the perfons themfelves being examined, I was o f 
^petition to the Council, I  found the Cover- opinion that all the affurances o f Comaul O
• nor had been apprized of the reference made Deen were entirely falfe and groundlefs. M r. 
Mo M r. Fowke; and reproached me warmly, Roberts, my Perfian Interpreter, came to me 
for taking up a bufinefs in which lie was fo foon after this ; and, from that time to this 
•immediately concerned. I, at fird, did not day, I am not confcious that I have ever fent 
underdand his allufion. He told me, “  You one petition to Me- Fowke. A ll my Perfian 
f‘ mud know that Captain W eller was con- papers I have regularly fent to Mr. Roberts, 
4i nefted with m e”  I told him, that I had and the Englidi to M r. Elliot. M r. Elliot 
.‘been intirely uninformed o f  it, till Mr. Fowke was, about the 20th of December, appointed 
.had acquainted me with it, upon the exami- Superintendent o f the Khalfa Records, with 
nation of the Molungies. The Governor, on the intention of receiving all petitions. This 
that, faid many things again ft Mr. Fow ke; was done with an intent to prevent my em- 
and, as I faw no occafion why Mr. Fowke ploying Mr. Fowke," and I acquiefced in it : 

.fhould have concealed that circumdance from there was no office to receive and examine pe­
ine, I refufed to comply with his requeff o f titions. Either Mr. Elliot or Mr. Roberts 
mot truding any more petitions to M r. Fowke. ever lince received all petitions fent tp me. 
Some time after this, came the petition of From the 15th o f November, to the 20th of 

/Barnaffy Ghofe, which I likewife referred to December, was the only time in which I fent 
Mr. Fowke, after having previoufly fent to petitions to M r. Fowke.
Comaul O Deen. This reference produced In regard to Maha Rajah Nundocomar, whe- 
janother. complaint o f the Governor General ther I received my opinion of him from Mr. 
.againd Mr. -Fowke (the arzee), requeding Elliot, or from other people, it fufficeth to 
.again that I would withdraw my confidence fay, that I confidered him o f an intriguing 
.-from M r. Fow ke; or, at lead, that I would character; and never, upon any occafion that 
not differ him to examine petitions but in pay I know of, intruded him with the fmalled 
.prefence As this complaint and the peci- confidence. His having been accufed of 
tions which accompanied it were to dand(forgery was not known to me till late; I can- 
upon our confutations, it was the opinion of not fay exadtly, but before the 18th of April, 
the Council, that Mr. Fowke fhould be defired As I underftood he condantly villted the Go­
to come there himfelf, to explain his whole vernor General, I did imagine that, if  there 
conduft. I  affured the Council, that, if Mr. were any kind of grounds for it, the circum- 
Fowke had afted improperly in the execu- dances mdd be known to him, as they had all 
tion of the truft which I had committed to been in the D.ewanny Court of Audaulet, 
liim, I would withdraw it. But the Governor which was immediately under his own in- 
General not ehufing that M r. Fowke fhould Ifpeftion.

§!uejl.
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$ueft. Is the Dewanny Court o f Audauletll believe I defired him to draw up his 
a Court o f Criminal Junfdiaion ? thoughts on paper, to get rid of the fubieft;

not* _ , ;  . and> ln confequence of this, in about a week
Does the Governor General fit in or ten days afterwards, he did bring; me, I 

that Court, or fuperintend it? think, an Englifh tranflated paper. I have
Anf. 1 do not know that he does. never read it to this day, nor do I know what
This anfwered by the Counfel. It is not. j I have done with it. Mafia Rajah had heard
£>ueft. A re the proceedings m the ordinary that Col. Monfon, Mr. Fowke, and myfelf, 

courfe o f bufmefs laid before him? had paid a vifu to Mahomed Reza Cawnj
Anf. N o, l do not know that they are. and believe he had, fome how or other, difco- 
Quejl. How could there be a charge o f fe- vered that Mahomed Reza Cawn had given 

lony in a Civil Court? or how could the Go- us fuch a paper o f his ideas o f the Govern- 
vernor General know it, if  there was ? | ment of this Country. Mahomed' Reza

A nf I do not know ; but I have reafon to j Gawn’s paper I delivered into Council. On 
think the Governor General did know it. | or about the loth of March, Mahah Rajah 
— In the vifits which Maha Rajah made to fent a Letter to the Council; in confequence 
me, I  took for my Interpreter the firft per- o f which, the Council gave direftions to their 
fon who prefen ted himfelf to m e; but always j Attorney to confult the Counfel, whether an 
M r. Roberts, if he was with me : his general j aftion might not lie againft the Governor 
converfation was, the declared hatred that the General on account of the matter contained 
Governor had (hewn him. He faid, “  His j in that Letter. As to the vifit, Maha Rajah 

enemies were admitted to the Governor: 11 was fummoned about the 19th of A p ril; and 
x< am told, Mohun P erfan d•, but I do not af-j I underflood, after having undergone a very 
<c fert it as a fa& .”  M y anfwer was, That!long and exact fcrutiny of his conduit, there 
no innocent man need fear oppreffion ; but was not found fufficient matter to hold to 
would be protected by the Englifh laws. I j bail.
faw the Maha Rajah twice with M r. Fowke : | Shiefl. (by the Court.) Were you informed 
once by chance at Mr. Fowke’s houfe, where that the Judges declared there was not fuffi- 
I called in ; and at another time, by his own cient matter to hold to bail? 
appointment, at my own houfe: thefe times Anf I was.
were without my Interpreter. At M r. Fowke’s, Chief Justice* You was much abufed and 
as much as I remember, he was giving an ac- iwpofed on. The Chief JufUce declared that 
count o f his long fervices, as Minider o f this night, that he did not think there was fuf- 

• Country; and 1 remember it ended with' a ficient matter to hold Mr. Francis Fowke to 
tale, which I underftand is in fome of the bail.
Perlian books;  the purport o f which was, ijW/?. W ill you inform the Court who told 
“  A  number o f people faying the fame thing, you fo ?
Ct though it be not true, is at lead believedl Anf I think, M r. Fowke told me.
“  to be true.”  I underflood from this, he % $/?. Did Mr. Fowke tell you, that the
meant to recommend himfelf to me. I re-(Judges declared him innocent?
member now—-it was a dory about a kid being! A nf I don’t remember that he did.^
faid to be a dog; and that fo many people Shiefl. Did not M r. Fowke acquaint you
faid the kid was a dog, that at lad it was;that he was ordered to attend the Monday
taken for a dog. The other converfation j following; and that the Parties were then
was in my own room; and, as much as 1 re-[to declare whether they would profecute or
colleft, to offer to give me a date o f the not ?
country, o f the manner in which the Go* Anf. I think he did.
vernment o f it would be bed adminidered. j .
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JO T H E  T R I A L  O F  J O S E P H  F O W K E ,

Queft. As a Juftice o f the Peace, would [have taken bail, without the confent o f the 
yov, in a Mifdemeanor, bind over the perfon parties; and I conceived an idea that the 
complained again ft, if  the oppofite parties profecution was done to fruflrate the inquiry 
would not undertake to profecute ? in Council.

y b f  I mo ft certainly would. Mr. Fowke came to me in the month of
Quejl. To what purpofe? April, and told me Comaul O Deen— [Stopt.

^  Anf. I would do it.
Queft. Did not your Aid de Camp attend Crofs-Examimlion.

on the Monday, to be hail, with your know- .
ledge, forTome of the parties? Did you give M r. Fowke any parti-

Anf He did.. cular inflruftions ?
Quejt. Could you then think that the Anf* I gave him inftruflions to inquire into 

Judges thought the parties innocent ? the grounds of BarnalTy Ghofe’s complaint,
Anf., I did, becaufe the Judges fuffered and report them to me. 

them to go without bail that night. " Quefl* Do you remember the fubftance of
Quejl. That was by confent o f the pro- BarnalTy Ghofe’s complaint ?

feoffors. • The examination began early in Anf. I underftand that Comaul O Deen 
the morning, and laded till late at night, had let out portions o f Salt W orks of the 
Would it not have been fev%re, when the Tecka Collaries to different people, and after- 
profecutors did not delire it, to oblige the wards refumed them.
perfons accufed to find bail that night ? Quejl. On what grounds did the Governor

Anf I would have done it in a charge of General found his complaint againft M r.
fo high a nature; though the profecutor did Fowke ?
not defire it, yet I think it Ihould have been Anf. That he exceeded his duty and 

j done. truft.
I underftood that there had not been fuf- Qusft. W hy was not M r. Fowke examined « 

ficient matter to hold parties to baih*and before the Council ?
confequently I was to underftand it an unjuft Anf. The majority o f the Council ac- 
accufation ; and a crime of fo black a die, o f quiefeed with the Governor General, that 
accufing innocent people, and particularly M r. Fowke Ihould not be examined, 
fuch perfons' a* .the*Governor General and £>ueft. In what manner did you employ 
M r. Barwell, that they would not have been1 him ?
fuffered to go out without bail, had there A nf Only to receive petitions through my 
been - any reafon to fuppofe them guilty. I hands. 8
had reafon to. confider this as an attack made S>ueft. W ho gave you the information of
on Nundocomar, who had produced an accu- what palfed at the Chief Juftice’s ? 
fation in Council, and to prevent his ap- Anf. M r. Fowke, and from thence I drew 
pearing as an evidence to maintain his charge, the inference.
It was on that ground, confidering him as an §&?/*• You fay, that i f  there had been 
innocent man, and the viftim o f State Policy, fufficient matter for a profecution, and though 
I  went to fee him : I would have done the the profecutors did not defire it, you would 
fame thing to any other man in the Settle* have obliged them to find bail, or committed 
ment* Mr. Fowke certainly did acquaint them that night ? 
me, that he was to appear before you on Anf. I would.
Monday; but I did ftifl imagine there was . Queft. On what day did you pay the vifit 
no ground to fuppofe him guilty. I con- to M ahaR ajah? 
ceived that, i f  you judged there uwas fuffi- Anf The day after the examination, 
cieat matter Tor a profecution, you would

gueft*



Qiieft. In what light did you confider the Anf I cannot tell that any places have 
profecution againfl him ? been given to Maha Rajah’ s family.

Anf l under flood it as a profecution to Queft, Were not every means taken to 
fruflrate that ordered by the Board. afford Nundocomar influence?

Queft. Are not you firft in Council, next Anf I never did ; and fhould have been 
to the Governor General ? forry to join in any aft to give Nundocomar

A nf I am. ^  any influence whatfoever.
gueft. In cafe of death, refignation, or £>uejl. Don’t you know that any one. of 

removal, are you not to fucceed him ? Nundocomar’s family is provided for ?
Anf I am. Anf I do not know Maha Rajah’s family
S u ef. What may your falary be, as fecond or friends; I do not know that any one has 

in Council ? had preferment: Rajah Goordaffes; l  do not
A?if Ten thoufand pounds per year. know i t ; I have been told fo.
Queft. Don’t you think that the Governor 

General might be difcharged, on complaints Mr. R O B E R T S -
of peculation from hence to the Court of ^  What do you think was the General’s

,  r r 8 i -l ’- f t  opinion of Nundocomar ?
I think he might. ' .. Anf I have always heard General Claver-

P °  Letters from the Council . A that he thQUght Maha Rajah Nundo- 
mention that the profecution is ordered to comar t0 a Yery*bufy, troublefome, man. 
be carried on againft the Governor Ge- Do you reconea  the fubj eft-matter
nera  ̂ of what palled at the vifit paid to Maha

Auf I believe they do. ,  ̂ Raiah?
Queft. Is not this profecution principally AnA I do not recolleft any converfation but 

founded on the evidence of Nundocomar and ^ as ;~fry _aps jn a vjflt Df  compliment. 
Hoy Rada Churn ?

A nf No. | 6>uea by Mr. L E M A I S T R E .  Where
S>ueft. Did you never authorize Mr. Fowke afe t^e your enters that were at Mr. 

to offer the Kallaut o f the Khalfa, or of Pur- p QWjte»s that morning? Where is Accoor 
nea, to any body ? Munnah, Mr. Fowke’sTVIoonfliy ? Are they

Anf. N o, never. _  ̂ alive ?
Sfueft. Has not feme of Maha Rajah’ s fa- Defendant's Connfel anfwers. Yes. 

mily been appointed to the firft Office undgp Quejl. Are they in Calcutta?
Government, fince the commencement of the ^  y e3t 
profecution ?

Upon Mr. H A S T I N G S ’S Profecution,.
* Not guilty.

Upon Mr. B A R  W E L L ’ s Profecution,
J O S E P H  F O  W K E , |  G uiity.
N U N D O C O M A R ,  J  
R A D A C H U  R N,  Not guilty.

E X*
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